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LIST 0F APPENDICES-DECEMBER-APRIL SESSION, 1926-27

No. 1.-,Select Standing Committee on Railways and Shipping, owned, operated
and controlled by the Governrnent,--Recommending.in their third and final
report that their proceedings together with the evidence adduced before
the Committee, be printed as an appendix te the Journals of the flouse.
Printed. See Journais at pages 480-481, 483.

N\7o. 2.--Special Comimittees of the Senate and of the flouse of Commons, meet-
ing in joint session, to inquire into the dlaims of the Allied Indian Tribes
of British Columbia, as set forth in their IPetition presented Vo Parliament
in June, 1926,-Recommending in their second and final report that this
report together with the evidence, be printed as an appendix Vo, the Jour-
nais of the flouse, and also in Blue Book form te the number of one thou-
sand (1,000) copies. Printed. See Journals at pages 509l-522, 527.
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ORDER 0F REFERENCE

IJOUSE 0F C0MMONS5

FR.iDAY, February 18, 1927.
Iesolved,-That Rule 10 of the House of Gommons relating to, the appoint-muent of the Select, Standing Cominittees of the Huse be amended by addingto the Select Standing Committees of the bouse for the present session a SelectStanding Comrnittee on Railways and Shipping, owned, operated, and eontrolledby the Government, to which will be referred the estimates of the CanadjanNational Railways and the Canadian Merchant Marine for the present session,for consideration and for report to the Huse, provided, however, that nothingin this resolution shail be construed to eiirtail in any- way the fuil right of dis-cussion in Committee of 'Supply; and that the said Commîttee consist of Messrs.Bennett, Canitley, Chaplin, Duif, Dunning, Fiset, Cîoodison, Harris, Jelliff,

Jenkins, Jones, McLean (Melfort), Milne, Power, and Stevens.

Attest.
ARTHJUR BEAUCHESNE,

Clerk of the Homse.

FRIDAY, February 25, 1927.
Ordered,-That the said Committee be given leave to print their Minutesof pr*oceedings and the evidence taken by theru, froru day to day, for the use ofthe rueiners of the Committee and of the Huse, and that Rule 74 be suspended

in relation thereto.

Attest.
ARTHJUR BEAUCHESNE,

Clerk of the Houme.

FpirmÂ, February 25, 1927.
Ordered,--That the Estimates 1927-28, respecting Loans to CanadianNational Railway Company and Canadian Government Merchant Marine,Lirnited, be referred to the said Committee.

Att est.
ARTHTUR, BEAUCHESNE,

Clerk of the Houme.

TuESDAY, March 29, 1927.
Ordered,-That the said Committee be given leave to sit while the buse

15 in session.

Attest.
ARTHUR BEAUCHES~NE,

Clerk of the Homse.



SELECT STANDING COMMITTEE

REPORTS 0F THE COMMITTEE
FIRST REPORT

FRiDAY, February 25, 1927.

The Select Standing Committee on Railways and Shipping, owned, operated
and controlled by the Government, beg leave to present the following as their
First Report:-

Your Comimittee recommend that they be given leave to, print their minutes
of proceedings and the evîdence taken by them, from day ta day, for the us'e
of the members of the Committee and of the Blouse, and that Rule 74 be sus-
pended in relation thereto.

Ail which is respectfully submitted.
W. T. GOODISON,

Chairman.

SECOND REPORT

TuEsDAY, March 29, 1927.

The Select Standing Committee on Railways and Shipping, owned, operated
and controlled by the Government, beg leave ta present the following as their
Second Report:-

Your Committee recommend that they be given leave ta sit while the
House is in session.

Ail which is respectfully submitted.
W. T. GOODISON,

Chairman.

THIRD AND FINAL REPORT

FRDA-Y, April 8, 1927.

The Select Standing Committee on Raîlways and Shipping, owned, operated
and controlled by the Government, beg leave ta, present the following as their
Third and Final Report:-

Your Committee ta whieh was referred for consideration and for report

ta the House the Estimates of the Canadian National Railways and the Cana-
dian Government Merchant Marine, Limîted, held five meetings, in the course
of which it examined sundry witnesises, including:-

Sir Henry Thornton, K.B.E., President and Chairman of the Boards,
Canadian National Raiiways.

S. J. Hungerford, Vice-President, Operation and Construction Depart-
ments, C.N.R.

W. D. Robb, Vice-President, Departments cf Land, Colonization, Develop-
ment, Insurance and General Mattersý, C.N.R.

R. A. C. Henry, Director, Bureau of Economies, C.N.R.
T. H. Cooper, General Auditor, C.N.R.
R. B. Teakie, General Manager, Canadian Government Merchant Marine,

Limited.
J. P. Doherty, Traffic Manager, Canadian Governent Merchant Marine,

Limited.
F. DavicLson, Auditor. Canadian Government Merchant Marine, Limited.
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CANADIAN NATIONAL RAILWAYS

Your Committee bas had under consideration Item 408 of the Estimates,
which provides for loans or guarantees of $22,500,000 te the Canad-ian National
Railway Company for the fiscal year ending March 31, 1928, and bas in the
course of its deliberations examined the operating statements of the Company
for the year ending December 31, 1926.

Your Commjttee notes that the resuits of the operations of the Canadian
National Railway System, which includes_ for the flrst time -the operations of
the Central Vermont Railway, show a substantial improvement in the volume
of business handled and a continued improvement in operating methods, result-
ing in an increase of $21,861,000 in Operatinýg Revenue accompanied by an
increase of only $7,079,O00 in Operating Expenses.

While nlot providing for interest charges, due the Government on capital
advances your Committee notes with considerable satisfaction that for the
flrst time, the net earnings of the railway for the year are more than sufficient
to pay aIl fixed charges due te the public.

Your Committee is led to believe that the properties embraced in the
system have heen maintained te a standard commensurate with the trafflo
requirements.

Your Committee agrees that the estimate of $22,500,000 (heing a reduction
of $8,500,000 from the amount asked for last year) is necesary for the purpose
of the Conmpany during the coming year, and should be voted by the House.

CANADIAN GOVERS MENT MEIICHANT MARINE

Your Committee has also had under consideration Item 409 of the Esti-
mates, which provides for a boan of $18,500 to, the Canadian Government Mer-
chant Marine, Limited, and bas in the course of its deliherationýs examined
the operating statements of the company for the year ending December 31,
1926. Your Committee notes with considerable satisfaction that the Operating
deficit has been reduced to $90,159, an improvement over the previous year of
$858,893, and it is rccallcd that the improvement in 1925 in comparison with
1924 was $492,826.

From the evidence given, it appears that therù lias heen an improvemnent
in the earnings on the business handled in the case of practically alI the routes
operated and that this improvement has heen aceomplished at a relatively
small expense. The increase in operating revenue was $1,114,735, while the
operating expenses only increased $256,841.

Your Committee draws attention te the fact that the amount of the
appropriation for last year on account of the Canadian Government Merchant
Mlarine, Limited, was $600,000, whereas for the coming year, the sum of $18,500
is asked. Your Committee is of the opinion that this ainount is neCessary for
the purpose of the company during the coming year and Qhould be voted by the
Huse.

Your Committee notes with satisfaction that the Canadian National al
ways continues ta hold the confidence and goodwill of the public through the
excellence of the service rendered and the courtesy extended to patrons.

Your Committee further desires te express its appreciation of the manner
in which the President of the Canadian National Railways and the Officers
assisting him gave their evidence to tbe Committee.

A copy is attacbed bereto of the Minutes of the Proceedings and Evidence
of the attending ofiicers.

Your Committee further rccommends tbat its proceedings and the evidence
adduced before the Committe.e be printed as an appendix te the Journals of
the House and that Rule 74 in respect bereto be suspended.

All whieh is respectfully submitted.
W. T. GOODISON,

Chairman.
Note.-For concurrence by the Huse of these three reports, see Journals at pages 167,

422 and 483.



RAILWVAYS AND SHIPPING

MINUTES 0F PROCEEDINGS

HOUSE OF COMMONS,

FiDxy, February 25, 1927.

Thc foliowing Members were present: Messieurs Cantley, Duif, Dunuîng,
Fiset (Sir Eugene), Goodison, Jeliif, Jones, McLean (Melfort), and Milne-9.

The Select Standing Comxnittee on Raiiways and Shipping, owned, operated
and controlled by the Government, met, pursuant to Notice, at eleven o'clock a.m.

It was moved by Mr. Duif and seconded by Sir Eugene Fiset that Mr.
Goodison be the Chairman of the Comnittee,-The Motion was declared carried.

Mr. Goodison took the Chair; thanked the Members for the honour accorded
him and assured them that with their coôiperation the matters referred to the
Committee would be given every consideration.

Mr. Dunning informed the Committee that the financial. statement of the
National Railways and the Government Merchant Marine wouid very soon
be available, and that if the usual procedure were followed, Sir Henry Thoruton
would be available for examination regarding his Estimates- Mr. Dunning
suggested that the Committee might obtain leave to, print their minutes of pro-
ceedings and the evidence taken.

The Committee upon the Chairman's suggestion also considered the advisa-
biiity of obtaining leave Vo ýsit whiie the Huse was in session.

Upon the question of the day and hour of meetings, Mr. Jeilifi expressed the
hope that such would flot confliet with those of other important committees and
instanced more particuiariy that of the Committee on Railways, Canais and Telle-
graph Lines.

After further consideration, it was moved by Sir Eugene Fiset, that leave
be obtained to print the Committee's proc7eedings and the evidence,-Motion
carried.

The Committee then adjourned until the cail of the Chair.

T-uEsDAY, March 29, 1927.

The meeting came Vo order at 11 a.m., Mr. Goodison, presiding.
Members present: Messrs. Bennett, Cantiey, Duif, Dunning, Fiset, Goodi-

son, Jeliif, MeLean (Meifort), Milne, Stevens-1O.
Sir Henry Thornton, president, R. A. C. Henry, bureau of economics, T. H.

Cooper, general auditor, and severai other officiais of the raiiway staff were
present.

Sir Henry Thornton made a generai statement and answered questions
reiating Vo, the operation of the Canadian National Railway and to, the Annual
Report of the Canadian iNational System for the year ending Decomber 31st,
1926. An analysis of 1926 operating expenses ascompared with 1925 to which
hie referred during his remarks was ordered printed in the evidence.
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The Chairman stated that he believed it was understood that they were to
take up the report of the Canadian National Railways, which was before the
Committee, and if agreeable to the Comrnittee they would start at page 16,
"Railway Operating Revenues and Expenses ".

Items 101 to 112 inclusive, 114, 115, 116, 131, 132, 133, 134 and 135 were
considered and disposed of.

On motion by Air. Bennett, seconded by Mr. Fiset, the Chairman was
instructed to present a report to the House asking leave to sit while the House
is sitting.

Motion carried
The Clerk reported to the Chairman that there was not a quorum, and on

motion of Mr. Jeliif the Committee adj ourned until the cali of the Chair.

THURSDAY, Mardi 3lst, 1927.

The meeting came to order at 3 p.m., Mr. Goodison presiding.
Members present:-Messrs. Cantley, Duif, Dunning, Fiset, Goodison, Jeilliff,

Jenkins, McLean (Melfort), Milne.-9.
Sir Henry Thornton, K.B.E., president, Mr. S. J. Hungerford, vice-president,,

Mr. W. D. Robb, vice-president, Mr. R. A. C. Henry, director of bureau of
economics, Mr. T. H1. Cooper, general auditor, and several other officiais of the
railway staff were present.

Items, 136, 137, 138, 139, 141, 142, 143, 151 and 152 on page 16 of the Annual
Report were considered and disposed of.

Items under the heading of Railway Operating Expenses, were taken up and
considered by the Committee.

After discussion it was moved by Mr. Duif and seconded by Mr. Fiset that
"The Annual Report of the Canadian National Railways for the year ending

the 3lst December, 1926, be received and adopted."
Motion carried.
The Committee then proceded to a consideration of Vote 408 of the Esti-

mates and after discussion, it wvas moved by Mr. Fiset seconded by Mr. Cantley,
that, "lVote 408 of the Railway Estimates, $22,500,000, be recommended to the
House."

Motion carried.
The Chairman stated that Mr. MacLaren, M.P., was present and would

like to ask a question of Sir Henry Thornton if the Committee would grant
permission. In accordance therewith Mr. Duif moved, seconded by Mr. Cantley,
that Mr. MacLaren be heard.

Motion carrîed.
Mr. MacLaren desired information as to the practice of issuing passes to

employees of the railway in the Maritime Provinces.
On motion of Mr. Fiset the Committee adjourned until the cali of the Chair.
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WEDNESDAY, April 6th, 1927.

The meeting came to order at 3 p.m., Mr. Goodison, presiding.
Members present-Messrs. Cantley, Duif, Dunning, Fiset, Goodison, Jelliti,

Jenkins, McLean (Melfort), Milne, Power-10.
Sir Henry Thornton, IK.B.E., president, D. E. Galloway, vice-president,

C.G.M.M., R. B. Teakie, general manager, C.G.M.M., J. P. Doherty, traffie
manager, C.G.M.M., F. Davidson, auditor, C.G.M.M. and several other officiais
of the staff were present.

Mr. Jenkins, M.P., asked for certain information from Sir Hery Thornton in
connection with railway matters in Prince Edward Island. Information to be
furnished.

The Chairman stated that the report of the Canadian Government Merchant
Marine, Limit-ed, was before the Committee.

Sir Henry Thoraton made a general statement and answered questions in
respect to the operation and finances of the Merchant Marine.

After discussion it was moved by Mr. Duif seconded by Mr. Cantley that,
"The Annual Report of the Canadian Goverament Merchaiit Marine, Limîted for
the year ending 3lst December, 1926 be received and adopted."

Motion carried.
The Committee then proceeded to a consideration of Vote 409 of the Esti-

mates and after discussion, it was moved by Mr. Fiset, seconded by Mr. Jelliff,
that Vote 409, which provides for a loan of $18,500 to the Canadian Government
Merchant Marine, Limited, be recommended to the flouse.

Motion carried.
The Committee adjourned until the cali of the Chair.

TiimisDÂY, April 7th, 1927.

The meeting came to order at 4 p.m., Mr. Goodison presiding.
Memnbers present: Messrs. Cantley, Duif, Goodison, Harris, Jelliff, Jenkins,

McLean (Melfort), Povier.-8.
It was ordered that a memorandum prepared by Sir Henry Thornton in

reply to certain questions asked by Mr. Jenkins, M.P., at a previous meeting
be printed in the evidence. (Sce p. 45 herein.)

The Chairman submitted a draft of the final report for the consideration
of the Committcc.

On motion of Mr. Duif, seconded by Mr. Harris, the Third and Final
Report of the Committee was adopted unanimously.

The Chairman was thereupon instructed to present the said Report to the
flouse, forthwith.

The Committee adjourned.

42324-2



MINUTES 0F EVIDENCE

ComMýrrm1IE Rom 425,
HOUSE 0F COMMONS,

TvESDAY, March 29th, 1927.

The Select Standing Committee on Railways and Shipping met at il A.M.,
the Chairman, Mr. Goodison, presiding.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, we have a quorum, and if you will corne to
order we will open our meeting. I do not think it is necessary for me to, ex-
plain to any member of this committee the objeet of our meeting; it is weIl known
that this is the medium between the Dominion governent and the Canadian
National Railways. I arn not going to, make any remarks just now. It has been
the custom in the past, for Sir Henry Thornton to give us a review of the
business carried on by the railway during the past year, and we have ail been
pleased to hear from him. If that is your pleasure now, we wilI be glad to hear
from. Sir Henry along these fines.

Sir HENRY THORNTON: Mr. Chairman and gentlemen, the annual report
of the company's affairs, which you already have, explains in much detail how
those affairs have been conducted during the past year. I think perhaps the best
way for me to proceed would be to give you a résumé of an analysis which has
been prepared, comparing the expenses for 1926 with those of 1925. It con-
tains a good deal of information and covers ail of the essential points without
confusing detail, detail which, in many cases, would only be appreciated or under-
stood by those who are experienced in railway accounting.

CANADIAN NATIONAL RAILWAYS SYSTEM

Analysis of 1926 opcrating Expenses as Compared With 192~5

The accounts of the Central Vermont Railway have been included with those
of the Canadian National Raiiways for the first tîme, hence the comparisons
enumerated hereunder should be understood as including the Central Vermont as
part of the Canadian National Railway System.

The operating expenses of the Canadian National Railways are classified in
accordance with the accounting rules of the Dominion Bureau of Statisties, and
are divided into, 140 primary expense accounts, these beîng grouped under 7
main heads, with self-descriptive heads as follows:-

(1) Maintenance of Way and Structures ........ .............. .... 40 primary accounts
(2) Maintenance of Equipmnent ................................ 24
(3) Traffic .......... ............................... ...... ... 8
(4) Transportation.................... ....................... 50 "
(.5) Miscellaneous ............ ........ ........... ................ 5
(6) General. .......... ... .................. 12
(7) Transportation for Investment, Or..».................... 1

Total ................... ................. ..... 140 "

42324-21j



2 SELECT STANDING COMMITTEE

The comparison of expenses under these heads for the years 1925-1926
follows:

Item 1926
Maintenance of W. & S ............. S 48,536,503
Maintenance of Equipmnent ............ 51,211,821
Traffic ..... .......................... 7,026,004
Transportation ............... ....... 111,393, 758
Miscellaiteous ........... ..... ........ 2,336,041
General................ ........... ... 7,881,496
Transportation for Investment, Cr..1,040,343

Total ..................... $227,345,280

1925
S 44,753,310

49,324,911
6,902,502

110,386,975
2,272,918
7,520,303

895,443

$220, 265,476

Decrease or
Increase

foc. $3,783,193
foc. 1,886,910
Imc. 123,502
Inc. 1,006,783
lac. 63,123
fue. 361,193
foc. 144,900

Inc.8 7,079,804

The expenses may be further divided, for purposes of comparison, into
Employees' Compensation and Other Expenses. This compari-son follows:

Employees' Compensation Wages
Item 1926

Maintenance of W. & S............... S 27,181,100
Maintenance of Equipment............. 27,621,589
Traffic............................... 3,303,451
Transportation....................... 71,653,991
Miscellancous ..................... .... 1,169,144
General ...................... ........ 5,061,032

Total. ................... $135,990,307

Material and Miscellaneous
Item 1926

Maintenance of W. &S............... S 21,355,403
Maintenance of Equipment ....... ..... 23,590,232
Traffie ............................... 3,722,554
Transportation....................... 39,739,767
Miscellaneous.......................... 1,166,897
General......................... ..... 2,820,464
Transportation for lnvestment, Cr..1,040,343

Total....... ................ $ 91,354,974

1925
S 24,708,160

27,587,866
3,089,203

69,542,027
1,161,850
5,073,150

$131, 162,256

1925
8 20,045,150

21,737,045
3,813,298

40,844,948
1,111,068
2,447,154

895,443

S 89,103,220

Decrease or
Inerease

fnc.S 2,472,940
foc. 33,723
!ne. 214,248
loc. 2,111,964
foc. 7,294
Dec. 12,118

Inc.$ 4,828,051

Decrease or
Increase

Inc.$ 1,310,253
foc. 1,853,187
foc. 90,744
Dec. 1,105,181
foc. 55,829
foc. 373,310
foc. 144,900

foc.S 2,251,754

The expenses under the 7 general accounts may be further analyzed into the
primary accounts, which are to be found in detail on Pages 17 to 20, inclusive,
of the Annual Report.

Some of the larger factors causing the variation in expense in 1926 as
compared with 1 925 may bie briefly enumerated under the general accounts, the
factors taken into consideration being: Variations in Traffic; Prices of Material;
Wages; and Other Conditions: each of which would naturally be expected to have
an, influence upon the expenses necessarily incurred in the carrying on of the
operations of the railway.

It will be seen t-hat from the standpoint of gross revenue, the traffic lias in-
,creased du ring the year 1926 to the extent of 8.62 per cent over 1925.

MAINTENANCE OF WAY AND STRUCTURES-

Maintenance of Way and Structures Expense, 1926 ......................... $48,536,503
1925 ............ ............ 44,753,310

Increase in 1926................................. .. ................. $S 3,783,193

Principal f ocreases: Tics.......................... ................. $ 1,388,614
Ballast........................ ................... 226,349
Tracklaying and Surfacing. ........................ 1,580,289
Station and Office Buildings ........................ 226,747
flemoving Snow, Sand and Ice ....... .............. 624,836

Principal Decreases: Roadway Maintenance................ ......... $ 100,337
Bridges, Trestles and Culverts. ................... 470,250
Shops and Engine houses.... «......................49,855

[Sir Hlenry Thornton.]
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The increase in ties was due to the fact that there were over 1,000,000
additional ties installed in 1926, compared witb 1925.

The increaIse in ballast was due principally to the fact that a prograin
involving the provision of rock ballast on the main line has been commenceti.

The increase in track laying anti surfacing was due to the installation of the
additional ties, the rock ballast and a larger program of relaying of rail during
the year.

The increase in Station and Office Building was caused by the necessity for
heavy repairs to sheds and piers at Halifax, renovating immigration quarters
at Winnipeg, alteraticrns to Annex Building, Main St., Winnipeg, and repairs to
salmon shed, Prince Rupert.

The increase in the cost of removing snow, ice, and sand, was caused by the
extreme weather conditions in the early months of 1 '926 on the Atlantic Region.

The reduction in the amount of roadway maintenance; bridge, trestles, and

culverts; and shops and engine bouses, was because of the occurrence of several
items involving large expense in 1925 not recurring in 1926.

The effect of the various factois are summarized as follows:

Changes due to Price of Materials-

Ties ............ ....................... ........... Dec. $ 226,700
Rails. ......................... Dec. 297,600
0Other MÏaterial.......................lue. 153,695

Decrease........ .......... ..................... ........ S 371,000

Changes due to Variation in Quantities of Material Ised-

Ties............................................... la. $ 1,832, 000
Rails ........ ................................. In. 84,000
Other Material................... ................... Dec. 57,000
Tracklaying and Surfacing ........................... Ie. 1, 191,000

Cags increase..... .................................... ...... S 3,050,000

Cagsdue to Weather ............................................. mec 625,(00

Total of above. ................................................... mce $3,304,000
Balance of inereame................... ................................... 479,0ON

Total Increase ................................ .............. $3,783,000

Serviceable Serviceable Improve-
1926 1925 ment

Freight Cars ................ ........ 9370% 92-91% 0-79%

Locomotives....................... 88-90% 88-20% 0-70%

The improved condition of the Company's equipment, both freight cars and
locomotives, bas been attained, baving regard to the increase in traffle, with
decreaseti maintenance of equipment, expenses relative to 1925.

Maintenance of Equipment Expenses, 1926 ............................... $51,211,821
Il 1925 .................... ............ 49,324,911

Increase......................................... ....... 3 1,886,910

Principal Increases: Superintendence .................... ........ ... $ 117,562
Freight Train Car Repairs......................... 2,459,446
Passenger Car Repairs ........... .......... ........ 278,698
Pass. Train Car Retirements....... ................ 121,430
Motor Car Equipment Repairs ........ .............. 118,200

Principal Decreases: Steamn Locomotive Retirements,.................S 854,157
Freight Train Car Retirements.................... 389,629
Work Equipment Retirements..................... 153,072

[Sir Henry Thornton.]



4 SELECT STANrDING COMMITTEE

Summa&iig factore affecting Maintenance of equipment expenses, broadly,
we have the following:-

Changes due to Price of Materials .................... 664,836
Changes due to Wages............................... men. 408,490
Changes due to Operation of Reserves i 1925............ Jc. 1,005,893
Relative decrease in expnses after correction rabve factors.. 282,000
An increase ini traffie of 8.62% might have been expected to increase

the Maintenance of Equipment expensea by. ............... 2,950,000

TnAÀnc-
Traffie Expenses, 1926 ............................ ................ .8 7,026,0051925......................... ................. .... 6,902,502

Increase ......................... .................. S 123,503

Principal Increases. Superintendence............................. - 83,986
Outside Agencies................................ 68,830Advertising .................................... 75,099

Principal Decreases: Other Expenses..............................$8 72,710
British Empire Exhibition....................... 60,100

TnANSPORTATION-

Transportation Expenses, 1926 .................. .......... ......... 8ý111,393,758« 1925 .................. .......... .......... 110,386,975

Increase ........................... ..................- $ 1,006,783

Principal Increases: Train Enginemen .............................. $s 615,070
Yardmasters and Yard Clerks ...... .............. 178,110
Yard Conductors and Brakemen ........... ....... 420,111
Yard Engmnemen........... ........ ........ .... 397,798
Trainmen........ ................... ...... ... 550,028-
Train Supplies and Expenses ............. 268,564

Principal Decreases: Fuel for Yard Locomotives .............. .... $ 102,791
Fuel for Train Locomotives-. . ý................ 1,115,270
Engine Huse Expenses-Train ............... .... 171, 251
Loss and Damage.-Freight ...................... 112,166

The t.ransportation expenses are subjeet to the following corrections, due
to the undeiuientioned factors-

Increae in Rate of Pay.............................. ....... ....... 8 721,000
Lacreasp in Price of Material .......................................... 7,000

Total Increases...... .............................. ... 8 1,471,000
Decrease in Price of Coal............................................S 2,366,000Decrease in Accidents..................................... ........ 132,00o

Total Decreases. ......... .......................... $ 2,498,(00

Excess Decreases over Increases...................................... s 1,0(27,000
Relative increase in expenses after correction for above factors ..... ...... 8 2,034,000

The increase in transpoirtation expenses which might have been expected due
to the increase in traffic was $7,900,000; so that there has been an actual de.
crease in TransportWtion expenfts, due to inereftsed efficiency and improvemnents
in roadway and equipmnent, of approximately $6,000,000.

[Bkr Henryr Thoenton.]



RAILWAYS AND SHIPPING

MiselaneusExpenfes, 1926 .............................. .......... $ 2,330,041
M ce1 eos " 1925 ...............«......»... 2,272,918

Increase ............................................... S 63,123

Practically the whole of this increase is due te dining and buffet'service.

GENERAL--

General Expenses, 1926 ........................................... $ 7,881,496
1925 .. ............. .............................. 7,520,303

Increase ................................................ $ 361,193

This is practically entirely due to an increase in Account No. 457-Pensions.
There was an increase in pensioners f rom 1,326 to, 1,417, involving an inerease in
expense of $76,000. The Intercolonial Railway and Prince Edward Island Rail-
,way Provident, Fund being unable to meet their expenses, it was necessary for the
railway to implement the fund to meet current obligations to, the extent of
$308,000 in 1926, as against $46,000 in 1925, involving an increase of $262,O00.

Transportation for Investment, Cr., 1926....................... ....... $ý 1,*040,343
«1925...... ................. ........ 895,444

Increase ý................ ................... -.......... S$ 144,900

This simply means that during the year 1926 there was more construction
work car.ried on by the Company's forces than in 1925.

Sir HENRY THOBNSTON: Mr. Chairman, and gentlemen, 1 have only given
the high spots of this analysis.

I might venture the suggestion that we take each one of these 140 primary
accounts and discuss each one in detail. That was the practice which was
followed the first time that this Committee met. As the years went by rather
less and lcss attention was paid to the detail of these expenses and last year,
1 think 1 am fairly safe in saying, they were only given a rather cursory ex-
amination. I think that more effective work would be done if, instead of taking
each one of these 140 items of primary account, as shown in the Annual Report,
we take this analysis and use it as a basis of discussion. This analysis shows
ail the fundamental and essential informatioin but it avoids confusing details.
But that is obviously a matter for the Committee te decide, and 1 only make
that suggestion for what you may think it is worth. 1 have nothing further
to add, Mr. Chairman.

Hon. Mr. BENNETT: AU the figures that you gave are found in this report
on pages 16 and 17?

Sir HENIIy THORNTON: Yes.

Hon. Mr. DuNNiNG: The totals of pages 16 and 17.
Hon. Mr. BENNETT: Yes.
Sir HENity THORNTON: Mr. Bennett will easily see that there is a great

deal of detail. We have always tried to give the utmost detail in the Annual
Report, but there are a lot of small items that represent increases of from one
to five thousand dollars which. do not amount to very much, and it is just a
question whether you would like to, devote your attention to, that detail or
whether you would prefer to deal with the essentials as 1 have tried to give
them to you. Ail of the different figures given in the analysis, will lie f ound
in the Annual Report.

[Sir Hery Th*nlto5j
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Hon. Mr. BENNETT: Perhaps you would bring one of the Interstate Com-
merce forms with you such as you make to the Interstate Commerce Commis-
sion in connection with the American lines. There is one variation in the
form there.

Sir HENRY THIORNTON: This report, Mr. Bennett, follows the accounting
rules of the Interstate Commerce Commission. I might say that we do that
because the Interstate Commerce Commission requires rather more detail than
is required in Canada, and by conforming to their regulations we meet also
the requirements of the Dominion Government and save the preparation of
two sets of accounts. i

There is one exception, to which Mr. Bennett cails attention, and that is
account No. 279, Depreciation. That will also be found in Item iNo. 337.

Hon. Mr. BrlNNFir: It is not No. 337, it is right under it.
Sir HENRY THORNTON: It will be found on pages 17 and 18, and it is noted

as "Depreciation. United States Lines Only" on both Sheets. That is the only
exception to the Interstate Commerce system of accounting. What would you
like us to do, Mr. Bennett?

Hon. Mr. BENNFTT: I said that the form was the same as the Interstate
Commerce, with one exception, and that one exception is the item to which
you have directed attention.

Sir HElNRY THORNTON: You are right.
Hon. Mr. BENN=T: And the depreciation account, as 1 understand it, in

the United States is fixed by certain rules of the Commission. I was rather
curious to know what would happen if the same rules were applied to Canadian
property.

Sir HENRY TIIORNTON: I cannot tell you that offhand, but 1 can tell you,as bearing on that question, that the rules of the Interstate Commerce Commis-
sion require the American railroads to write off a certain arbitrary percentage;
when I said arbitrary, I mean a certain statutory perceiitage which is fÈxed.
Mr. Cooper, you understand that better than I, and perhaps you could ex-
plain it.

Mr. CoopER: The present accoun.ting ruies of the Interstate Commerce
Commission require a certain depreciation for rolling stock equipment, 'but there
is no rate fixed. The question, as I understand it, is: What would be the effeot
on our accounts if we adopted the Commission's regulations.

Hon. Mr. BENNETT: Perhaps I can. put the question a littie clearer. What
would be the effeet on our accounts if you applied the same principles of depre-
ciation to the whole system as are applied to the American lines? That is, you
applied last year $1,318,369.56 for depreciation on U.S. lines only, and I was
curious to know what the effect would be if you applied the same principle to
the entire syStem. I do not expect that you wiIl be ahle to do that now.

Hlon. Mr. DUNNING: This American depreciation only applies to equip-
ment, does it?

Sir HENRY THORNTON: Yes. I cannot answer that just offhand, Mr.
Bennett.

Hon. Mr. BENN=Yr: I did not expect that you would be able to do so.
Mr. Cooper, you are familiar with the keeping of your accounts for the

Grand Trunk Western and Vermont Central; therefore you kpow exactly what
I have in mind The rate of depreciation that you set up for your report ta
the Interstate Commerce Commission involves the writing off of $1,318,000, and
if it is flot too much trouble perhaps you might let the Committee know how
that is done and what would be the resuit if you applied this principle to the
Canadian system.

(Sir Henry Thornton.]
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Hon. Mr. DTJNNING: We can tell you what the application of that prin-
ciple would be to, our accounts.

Hon. Mr. BENNETT': And you might give the percentages you apply to

.the various items to which they are referrable.

Sir EUGENE Fisicr: You do that for your Merchant Marine?

Sir HENRY THORNTON: Yes.

Hon. Mr. DUNNING: Mr. Cooper, what difference is there in the United
States systein, between the manner in which equipment is financed; what 1
mean is this, your equipment is financed by equipment bonds and they are
serial in nature; 1 understand the principal payments are made as operating
charges.

Mr. CoopER: No.
Hon. Mr. DUNNING: Not as operating charges? So that, would make no

difference to this question of depreciation,?

Mr. COOPER: No.

Sir EuGENE FisET: Such a report, to be understandable, would have to
give the details of the articles on which depreciation is charged.

Hon. Mr. BENNETT: And the rates.

Hon. Mr. DUNNING: Do our other Canadian railroads apply the American
systemn of depreciation at ail, Mr. Cooper?

Mr. CoopER: I do not believe the Canadian Pacific do.

Sir EuGENE FisET: 1 thought we did.
Mr. CooPER: They do not f ollow the Interstate Commerce Commission.
Hon. Mr. DUNNING: Do I understand you to say that in the United States

there is not a fixed percentage?
Mr. CoopER: Yes.
Hon. Mr. DUNNING: That is, written-off for the depreciation of equip-

ment?
Mr. COOPER: On equipment only.
Hon. Mr. DUNNING: And the rate is not fixed at ahl?
Mr. COOPER: Yes, sir. 1 might say that under a new order of the Com-

mission, which comes into effeet on January first next, all steamn railroad car-
riers will 'be obligated to, a depreciation on fixed property as well as on rolling
stock property.

Hon. Mr. DUNNING: It goes into effect next year?
Mr. CoopER: Yes, sir.
Hon. Mr. BENNETTr: Some roads have been doing that already?
Mr. CoopER: A few of thcm, ycs.
Sir HENRY THiORNTON: What has generally happened in the pas t, and

before this becaine a matter of regulation, the railroadis generally determîned
their depreciation by the extent of their operations. For instance, if they had
a good year it was obviously good business to charge off as much depreciation
as possible. If they had a bad year they tempered the wind to the shorn lamb.
That -was open to both praise and criticism. It had its good points, because if
you got rid of a large amount of depreciation in a certain year it meant that
you could continue with your purchases of rolling stock and supplies, and s0 on,
in a lean year on a more or less generous scale, and there was a tendency to
balance bard times against good times.

Mr. McLEAN (fllelfort): The stronger roads finanýcially would charge off
more than the weaker ones?

5ir Henry Thornton.]
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Sir HENRY THOeINT0N: They would undoubtedly follow good, sound busi-
ness principles and try to get rid of as much of the charges which might
accumulate in a good year as they possibly could.

Mr. McLEAN (Melfort): And the roads doing more business, their
depreciation would run out faster than the other on-es?

Sir HENRY THORNTON: Principally, yes.
Hon. Mr. BENNETT: It does not work out that way.
Mr. DuFF: Sir Henry has given a synopsis of the expenditures; what about

a synopsis with regard to receipts?
Sir HENRY THiORNTON: That is not often a contentious subject, especially

if it happons to show an increase. Our gross revenue for the y'ear 1926 was
$275,570,310.28; in 1925 the gross revenue was $253,708,774.19. 1 might say, as
is explained ini the report, that this year our Annual Report includes, lx>th in
the varjous items of revenue and expense, the operations of the Central Vermont
Railway, so that you have before you the operations of ail the transportation
lines of the Canadian National Railways. These figures represent an inorease
of $21,861,000O. That increase is divided as follows; an inerease of $19,400,000
in freight; an increase of $1,464,000 in passenger revenue; a decrease of $5,290
in mail; and an increase of $1,009,000 in mîscellaneous revenue. The explanation
of that, I would ascrihe to the improved business condition throughout the
territory served by the Canadian National Railway; there was more business
and consequently larger gross earnings.

Hon. Mr. BENNETT: That, of course, includes the earnings from Chicago
to Portland, ail the'American lines as well as inoluding the Vermont Central?

Sir HENRY THORNTON: Precisely. It will, perhaps, be of interest. to the
Commttee to know that last year the groes revenue accruing: to the Canadian
National Railroïads on what might be described as purely Amnenican b>usiness,
that is to say, traffic which originated at somne point in the United States and
was carried to another point in the United States-

Hon. Mr. DuNNiNG: Through Canada?.
Sir HENRY THORNTON: It may have gone through Canada or it may not;

I do not know how much of it passed through Canada.
Hon. Mr. DuNNiNG: Purely United States business?
Sir HENRY T11ORNTON: Purely United States business, which, as 1 say,

-originated at sorte point in the United States and was carried to another point
in the United States, was represented by $45,000,000.

Mr. CANTLEY: 0f profits?
Sir HENRY THoRý'roN: No, that is gross.
Hon. Mr. DuNNING: That is the business we did for the people of the

United States exclusively.
Sir HENRY THORNT0N: There is no way, without very expensive account-

ing and a long Investigation, to segregate that, but if you would apply, and
we are very conservative i doing so, 20 per cent of that as profit, it would
represent a profit of $9,000,000. Our whole operating ratio was eighty-two
and a fraction per cent. This is lucrative business because it is carried over
parts of the line i*here operating conditions are favourable. I should say
that the net profit on that was accurately $9,000,00, but Vo get at it precisely
wouid invoive a lot of accouniting expense and considerable time.

Mr. CANTLEY:' Why the decrease in the mail receipts with an increuse of
business? Was there a reduction in rates?

Hon. Mr. DUNNING: That statement does not include any international
business, it just inc]udes the business whichl was done for the people of the
United States?

[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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Sir HENRY THoRNTON: Yes. Now, if you added to that the business
that crosses the border, either from the United States to, Canada or from
Canada to the United States, that is $42,000,000, so that the total business
done is $87,000,000, either from points in the States to other points in the
States or back and forward across the border. It represents a very large
proportion of our total revenue.

Mr. MILNE: Was the increase in business about the same in the States and
Canada, or have you any way of determining that?

Sir HENRY THORNTON: Well, it is a littie difficult to get at that, but I
should say that there was flot very much difference in the general business.
If anything, I think proba'bly we had a littie the best of it. 0f course, a good
deal of our American revenue depends on the condition of the automobile
trade, because we serve alI of the important automobile manufacturiug centres
in Michigan, A depression in the automobile trade probably ham a greater
effect on our United States revenue than any other single thing. Fort-unately,
the thirst for automobiles in the States seems insatiable.

Regarding the mail revenue, there was a decrease of $5,000, which was
due cntirely to reduced train service iu Ontario; that is, we took off certain
unremunerative paýssenger train mileage and, of course, the mail business went
along with it.

Mr. CANTLEY: There was no change in the remuneration received for
mail service?

Sir HIENRY THORNToN: No, the rates were the same.
The CHAIRMAN: If you wîll refer to page 16 in the Report we will take

up Items of Revenue there. We cannot do anything to-day with the expenses
until we get the detailed report. Take Item No. 101, Freight Receipts,
$207,157,000 for 1926 as compared -with $187,763,000 in 1925. Are there
questions to be asked on that?

HEon. Mr. BENNETTr: Could you give us the receipts for that traffic west
of the Lakes; a general indication of how much of that $207,000,000 originated
west of the Lakes?

Sir HENRY THOUNTON: How much of our total freight revenue accrued
on traffic originating west of the Lakes?

Hon. Mr. BENNETT: Yes.
Sir HENRY THORNTON: In answering a question of that sort, Mr. Bennett,

I can only give you figures which I ama convînced, and which the accounting
department are convinced, are sufficiently accurate for your purpose. The
answer to your question is; $60,700,000.

Hon. Mr. DuNNiNG: IIow ffiuch did you say was American business?
lion. Mr. B3ENNETT: $45,000O,000 and $42,000,000.
Sir HENRY THOHNTON: That represents the gross earnings f rom freighlt on

the western region, and I would take it that that probably is an accurate answer
to your question.

Hon. Mr. BENNEIT: As nearly as you can get it?
Sir HENRY THoUNToN: Even if you put a corps of accountants on you might

find a variation of a million dollars, or something like that, but it would be
within a small percentage of accuracy.

Mr. JELLIËF: You could not subdivide that and give us the earnings on
grain?

Sir HIENRY THORNTON: Yes, I think perhaps we can do that. I think we
can get that for you by to.-morrow, but it will involve further êxamination than
we can do here at the table.

[Sir Remy Tharntqn.]
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Hon. Mr. BENNETT: Would it be possible to differentiate between eastbound
and westbound traffic?

Sir HENRY THORNTON: That would be practically impossible.
Hon. Mr. BENNETT: I just wanted to know if possibly you had it.
Hon. Mr. DUNNING: You spoke of $60,000,000 as being the revenue from

freight for the western region. You would require to add to that total the
$45,000,000 of international United States business, I suppose?

Sir HENRY THORNTON: No; that represents the gross total of the western
region. There inight be a lot of different kinds -of trafflo in that; that might
involve a certain number of sbipments from Winnipeg to Minneapolis, for
instance, or Chicago.

The CHAiRmAN: You mean Western Canada?
Sir HENRY TýHORNTON: 1 mean that part of the Canadian National Rail-

ways which lies west of the head of the Lakes.
Hon. Mr. DUNNING: Let us get the picture for eacb region in order to have

it complete; $60,000,000 for the Western Region, how much for the Central
'Region? That is the Central Region apart from United States lines?

Sir HENRY THORNTON: NO, that includes the limes from Winnipeg to
Duluth.

Hon. Mr. DUNNING: But your Central Region does not include United
States limes?

Sir HENRY THORNTON: No, that is right.
Hon. Mr. DUNNING: The figures for the Central Region would be Canadian,

figures?
Sir HENRY THGRNTON: The Central Region; $93,500,000. The Atlantic

Region, $13,575,000.
Hon. Mr. DUNNING: And the United States lines?
Sir HENRY THORNTON: The Grand Trunk Western lime; $30,132,000 for

the Western Region, which imeludes the D. W. and P., that is, from Winnipeg
to Duluth, $62,780,000; Central Vermont, $7,153,000.

Hon. Mr. DUNNING: For the information of the members of the committee,
on the map in the back of the report the lines in each region are differemtly
coloured, so that the members of the committee will know what the regions
are.

Sir HENRY THORNT0N: Please add this to the report, that the D. W. and P.
gross earnimgs were $2,088,000. 1 gave you the western region of $62,780,000
s0 that if you subtraet that $2,000,000, you will have the previous figure of
$60,000,000 which I gave you as representing the gross freight earnings for the
western region.

Hon. Mr. DtJNN'ING: To complete the picture, there is also the Central
Vermont.

Sir HENRY THORNT0N: Yes, $7,153,000.
Hon. Mr. BENNETT: 0f course, these freight revenues include the col-

lection of freight for ahl the f reight traffie carried, but when you segregate
these between the various regions, how do you arrange that?

Sir HENRY THORNTOI,: You might have a shipment, we will say, moving
from Vancouver to Moncton. That would pass over the three regions; it is on
a mileage basis.

Hon. Mr. BENNETT: Ton mileage?
Sir HENRY THO1RNTON: No, ýmileage hauled. We apportion the revenue

to each region passed over on the basis of mileage used in that region; it may
[Sir Henry Thoruton.1
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not be quite an accurate way of gettting it, but it is accurate enough, and to
get it any more accurately would involve a great deal of unnecessary expense.

Hon. Mr. BENNETT: That is what 1 wanted the committee to understand;
for instance, grain shipments, originating in the west and moving to the head of
the lakes, would be considered as sole western region traffic, but if, in the
winterseason, it moved fartber east, the other regions would get a correspond-
ing credit on a mileage basis.

Mr. HENRY: But the rates break at the head of the lakes. In the case
of traffic going between that region and the central region, the rate would be
a combination of the two rates.

Hon. Mr. BENNETT: But stili applied on a mileage basis.
Sir HENRY THORNTON: Generally speaking, yes.
Sir EUGENE FisET: What is the Atlantic region again?
Sir HENRY TIIORNTON: $13,575,000.
Hon. Mr. DUNNING: That is from Rivière du Loup east.
Sir HENRY THORENTON: Right.
The CHAIRMAN: The next item is Number 102 "Passenger"-$39,427,264.87

as compared with $37,963,479.53.
Hon. Mr. DUNNING: An increase of $1,400,000 rougbly.
Hon. Mr. BENNETT: That is not profitable traffic, Sir Henry.

Sir HENRY TIoRNTON: No, it is not, Mr. Bennett. As a matter of fact,
curiously enough, passenger traffic generally on trunk line railways is not
regarded as profitable, and it only becomes profitable where yeu are dealing
wîth large suburban traffic in metropolitan districts like London and New
York, but it is a thing that obviously bas to be done.

Hon. Mr. BENNETT: Would your accounting system indicate what your
losses might be in passenger traffic last year? Was it not something like
$9,000,000?

Sir Hr-N-RY THORNTON: We estimate that the loss on our passenger traffic
last year was $6,500,000.

Hon. Mr. BENNETT: That included the wbole system?
Sir HENRY THORNTON: Yes.
Hon. Mr. DUNNNG: Does,- that include the other items in operating

revenue which are creditable to traffie carried on passenger trains?

Sir HENRY TIIORNTON: That occurred as the result of tbe instrumentality
of passenger trains. 0f course, in allocating the expenses cbarged against
passenger traffie there is no precise formula for doing that; you cannot deter-
mine precisely how much maintenance expense is caused by a freight train of
îifty cars, and a passenger train of ten cars, and you must apply a percentage.
Thiat is the usual practice in the railway world, so tbat the allocation of
expenses as between freight and passenger is not precise.

Hon. Mr. BENNETT: Does that include the United States lines?

Sir HENRY THORNTON: That includes the wbole system.
Hon. Mr. BENNETT: Some of the United States lines are operated profit-

ably?
Sir HENRY THORNTON: That is true.
Mr. MILNE: Generally speaking, are the losses greater on the trans-

continental trains or on local traffic?
Sir HiENRT THORNTON: 1 would say they would probably be greater on

the transcontinental. Your most profitable business is generally the suburban
business, because no expensive equipment is required; the trains are usually

[Sir Henry Thornton.]



SELECT STANDING COMMITTEE

filled in the xnorning toward the cities, and flled in the evening returning from
the cities. On the transcontinental pasaenger trains, you have to haul day
coaches, tourist cars, dining cars, sleeping cars and observation cars, and a
service is provided which is necessarily more expensive per passenger than the
facilities which you provide for suburban traffic.

Hon. Mr. DuNNrxLa: The only places where we have considered suburban
traffic are Montreal and Toronto.

Sir HENRY 'PHOnNToN: That is right.
Hon. Mr. BENN=rr: And Detroit and Chicago in the United States.
Sir HENRY THORNTON: 0f course.
Sir EuGENE FisEr: You have a treinendous 'traffie between Lévis and

Quebec.
Sir HENRY THOUNTON: I would not cali that suburban traffic. I would

describe suburban traffic as the movements in and out of cities within a radius
of thirty miles-men who live in one place, go to their offices in the morning,
and return in the evening.

Mr. JELLIFF: Has there been any way discovered to lessen the los-ses on
passenger traffic?

Sir HENRY THortNTON: Nobody has yet discovered it.
Mr. JELLIFF: What about the electrification?
Sir HENRY THOmKNTON: Electrification is a greatly misunderstood thing.

It is only profitable where your density of traffic exceeds the capacity of a
steam operated railway. It is extremely expensive and has only been employed
successfully and economically in serving suburban areas where there is a great
density of traffic or where perhaps it is necessary to employ electricity in a
long tunnel or on very heavy grades, or for somie reason of that character.

Mr. JELLIFF: Does the service pay in a congested city like New York?
Sir HENRY THORNTON: WeIl, if you agk the suburban railways serving

New York, they will tell you no, that it does not pay at all. The only
experience I have had wîth suburban traffic was on the Great Eastern Railway
in England. We handled in and out of the Liverpool Street Station an average
of 225,000 passengers per day; they all came in ini the morning and they alI
went back in the evening. We made money ont of it; we made a lot of money,
and it was profitable business, but àt wa-s only profitable because of the great
density of traffic and the further fact that the cquipment which was provided
was not luxurious and was not expensive.

Hon. Mr. BENN=T: And they went longer distances.
Sir HENRY THO.RNTON: Yes, they would go longer distances than you would

flnd on this side of the Atlantic.
Mr. CANTLEY: And the great density of traffic--
Sir HENRY THORNTON: It was the great density of traffic which "brought

home the bacon"
Mr. CANTLEY: What success are you having with the Diesel engine?
Sir HENRY THORNTON: That is, to somie extent, in an experimental stage.

We have been giving an intensive study to the development of the Diesel
electric engine, and we are convinced, from the result of our experience, that the
Diesel electrie engine represents generally the best type of motor self-propelled
vehicle of which we know. How f ar that may be extended to through paesenger
services, we do not know. There are two large units in existence of which we
know, and which we have examined; when 1 say "Large unitis" I mean Diesel
electi'ic locomotives which would compare in capacity to our 6,000 type loco-
motive. One of these is in Germany and the other in Russia; both were built
in Germany. The great difficulty with the Diesel locomotive-I do not want

[Sir Hfemy Thornton.]
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wo get into a technieal discussion of this .unless the commiittee want to hear

Several MmBms. Go ahead.
Sir HENRY THORNTON: The great difficulty is with the transmission. No

one has yet solved the problem of satisfactory direct transmission, although this
last locomotive which has been built in Gerrnany Oumer some promise toward
the solution of that problem. Consequently, we are obliged to emnploy in the
Diesel electrie locomotive, electrical transmission. That is the trouble with the
Diesel electric locomotives wo-day, but saine time--perhaps within the next two
years-sume one will salve that problem, but that is the difficulty with the
Diesel eleetrie locomotive as applied ta large units. Our experts have examined
both of these locomotives. The one in Russia is faulty because it cannot be run
faster than 30 mâl1es ain hour withaut oïverheating. There is samething radieally
wrong with the cooling apparatus. 1 think that the Diesel electrie locomotive
is ultimately going to, have a considerable effect on transportation. We ran one
of aur sinail units f rom Montreal to Vancouver wîthout stopping the engine.
The resuit was highly satisfactory; it made 'better time than our through
continental trains. Some day somndbody will develop a ibig unit which may
perhaps have a large effeet on transportation, butit is aIl yet in the experimental
stage. The engineers of all railroads ahl over the world are working un it and
studying it.

Mr. JELLIFF: How expensive was that trip as compared with a steaii trip?
Sir IIENny THORNTON: If yau could get a large Diesel locomotive built at

a price which would not exceed two or three times the cast of the steam loco-
motive, it would undoubtedly be profitable. In the first place, there is no engine
house attention; for instance, if we had a large Diesel unit we could start a
train at Montreal, hauled by such an engine, and run it directly through wo
Vancouver, just changing crews when necessary. You do not have to, put it
on the ashpit; there is no coal; fuel ail is much cheaper than coal; no engine
house or ashpît attention at al. and yau get a better mileage aut of it. Theoretic-
ally, it is a mucli more economical unit than the steam unit.

Mr. JELLIFF: Can you carry fuel enough ta, make a trip like that?
Sir HENRY THORNTON: No; you would have to stop at appropniate points

ta put in mare ail, but that is only a matter of ten or fifte-en minutes.
The CHAIRMAN: Item 103 " Excess Baggage "-$242,890.44 as compared with

$238,443.05-a gain af $4,000 roughly.
Sir HENRY THIORNTON: That is a small percentage, probably resulting from

increased. traffie.
Mr. CANTLEY: I assume that passenger rates are considerably higher now

than they were before the war; apparently they are not high enaugh yet.
Sir HENRY THOUNTON: I should nat dispute that.
Mr. CANTLEY: Seriowsly speaking, the raLes are highier than Lhey were before

the wan?
Sir HENRY THORNTON: Yes.
Mr. CANTLEY: And you still have a deficit of about $6,000,000?
Sir HENRY THORNTON: That is right.
Mr. CANTLEY: Sa there is no likelihood of much reduction?
Sir HENRY THORNTON: Quite irnespective of what we would like ta, charge

for passengers, there is a limit beyond which one cannot go.
Mn. CANTLEY: There is, not much likelihood of a reduction in passenger

rates-in view of thýese figuresý?
Sir HENRY THORNToN: I should hope not.

[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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The CHAiRmAN: Item 104-" Sleeping Cars "-- $2,204,070.53 as com-
pared with $1,952,221.20.

Sir HENRY THoRNToN: That is an increase of about $252,000 and can
be accounted for by increased travel.

Hon. Mr. BENNETT: I was going to ask you about the sleeping cars. To
what extent does the system own its own sleeping cars?

Sir HENRY THoRNToN: -We operate our sleeping cars over ail the Canadian
lines, and Pullman cars only where we run into the United States.

Hon. *Mr. BENNETT': Ail of your trains in Canada carry your own sleep-
ing cars?

Sir HENRY THORNTON: Yes.
Hon. Mr. BENNETT: Andi the only Pullman cars are the cars that run

into the United Statýes, to Portland, Chicago, etc.?
Sir HENRY THORNTON: That is right.
Mr. CANTLEY: You have some sleeping cars in the east that you cannot

sleep in.
Sir HENRY T-HOR.NTON: Then you would enjoy the beauties of the scenery.
Mr. CANTLEY: No, you would not. because it is at night.
Sir HENRVý TH-ORNTON: Somctimcs pcople sit Up aIl night and find it

more profitable to stay Up and play bridge than to sleep.
Mr. CANTLEY: 1 arn not referring to that at ail. You have some old

equipment in the east which is a disgrace. When are you going to remove
them?

Sir HENRY THORNTON: Most of themn will disappear this year; we have
provided for additional sleeping cars and practically ail cf the> old equipment
to which you refer will corne out this year.

Hou. Mr. DUNNING: The sleeping car business is net profitable, is it?
Sir HENRY TIîORNTON: 1 think the sleeping car business is profitable, if

you get enough of it. Perhaps the best illustration of that is the success of the
Pullman company in the States. They have made a good deal cf money, and
it is profitable.

Mr. CANTLEY, When do you expect to take tbemn off?
Sir HENRY THORNTON: By the middle of summer or the early autumn.
Hon. Mr. BENNETT: Do you keep a separate account in your system, as the

Pullman cornpany does, for each car?
:Sir HENRY THORNTON: Yes.
Hon. Mr. BENNETT: You take its cost and the cost of maintenance and

equipment and everything, and then its revenue, and you charge the haulage
as well?

Sir HENRY THORNTON: That is right.
Hon. Mr. BENNETT: So that you know what you are doing with your

sleeping cars with very great exactness?
Mr. COOPER: The cost of haulage would not be kept separate.
Hon. Mr. BENNETT: No? You charge it ail up?
Mr. COOPER: No.
Hon. Mr. BENNETT: You get a profit witbout regard to haulage?
Mr. CoopER: Yes; Account 403 shows the cost of operating sleeping cars.
Hon. Mr. BENNETT: But that does not include, in any eveut, the haulage?
Mr. COOPER: NO.
Sir HENRY THOUNTON: That is for porters, lin-en, and things lîke that.

[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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Hon. Mr. BENNETT: Quite so; some of your cars are very good cars.
The CHAIRMAN: Item 106-"4 Mail' -$3,688,356.86, as compared with

$3,693,646.75.
Sir HENRY THORN,,TON: I have just explained that.
The CHAIRMAN: Item 107 " Express "-$13,954,167.88, as compared with

$13,504,380.15.
Sir HENRY THORXToN: That is an increase of $450,000, roughly, and repre-

sents increased traffic.
Hon. Mr. BENNETT: Where do you charge your equipment for express?
Mr. COOPER: The upkeep of the cars?
Hon. Mr. BENNE'rFP: No, you have your express cars; they are buit, and

whatever ordinary appropriations you have for equipment-do you segregate
the business of the express with respect to the items of the cost of cars and al
that sort of thing from the other accounts?

Mr. COOPER: No, I do flot think so; it would go into passenger train cars.
Hon. Mr. BENNETT: That is what I want to make clear, beause the item

of what you get out of express shows you got more m'oney out of it, and it
formerly was a very profitable business. I do not know whether it is now or
not, or bas been in recent years.

Mr. MILNE: The express busipess is profitable?
Sir HENRY TH-ORNTON: Oh, yes.
Hon. Mr. BENNETTr: One of the most profitable businesses in the world.
Mr. HENRIY: Is it the cost of operation to which you are referring, Mr.

Bennett?

Hon. Mr. BENNETT: No. I do not want to take up too much of the coin-
mittee's time, but you have your express cars and express revenue. What I had
in mînd was wliether or not you charged the construction of each car separately
or in the general equipment.

Mr. HENRY: It is in the general equipment.
The CHAIRMAN: Item 108-" Other Passenger Trâains", $29,592.66 as comn-

pared with $1M5,183.91.
Sir HENRY TIHORNTON: That is a. decrease of about $100,000. The con-

tract with the Puliman company cails for a division with the railway of Pull-
man car earnings in excess of $7,500 per car per~ annum. In the 1925 account, it
included $28,901 for the year to June 30, 1925; the 1926 account included a
charge of $130,000 due to the new arrangement with the Pullman company
under whîch the $7,500 per car was raised to $9,000, and the arrangement was
made retroactive for the three years to June, 1923, 1924 and 1925. In 1916
the contract betwcen the Grand Trunk Railway and the Pullman Company set
out and provided for an arrangement whereby the railroad would receive fifty
per cent of ail gross earnings in excess of $7,500 per Pullman car per arnnum;
in 1920 the Pullman Company represented that owing to post-war conditions
the $7,500 per car vear earnings was not sufficient to meet their expenses and
asked that the car earaings per annum, before participation by the railways,
he inereased from $7,500 to $9,000. This was agreed to by the eompany on
June 18, 1926. I may say that that also was the general policy adopted by ail
the railways represented in the American Railway Association using Pullman
cars.

The ýCHAIRMAN: Item 109 "Mîlk "-$781,320.90 as eompared with
$753,552.1O.

SirHENRY THORNTON: That represents an increase of about $27,700 due
to increased business, but we shall have trouble with that this year on account
of the embargo on milk going inito the United States.

42.324-3 [Sir Hienry Thornton.]
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The CHIAIRMAN: Item 110 " Switching "-$2,491,106.73 as compared with
$2.420.560.94.

Sir HENRY THORNTON: That is a general increase on the system of traffic
offered by ind'ustry.

.The CHAIRMAN: Item 111 "Special Service Train "-$149,893.83 as com-
pared with $69,291.66.

Sir HENRY THORNTON: That was caused by the increased movements of
circus trains, which increased eighty-two per cent.

The CJIAIRMAN: Item 112 " Other Freight Train "-That is a very small
item. Item 114 " Water Transfers-Passenger "-$9,406.80 as compared witlj
$3,992.20.

Sir HENRY T1noRNTON: That was due to the increased number of passengers
on the Grand Haven-Milwaukee ferry.

The CHAIRMAN: They drink water on that, do they?
,Sir HENRY THoRNTON: They have to.
The CFIAIRMAN: Item 115 " Water Transfers-Vehicles and Live Stock"

-$25,318.76 as compared with $16,367.67.
Sir HENRY THORNTON: That was due also to an increased number of auto-

mobiles carried betxveen Grand Haven and Milwaukee.
The CHXAIRMAN: Item 131. '-Dinng and buffet "-$1,506,207.20 as compared

with $1,436,527.16.
Hon. Mr. BENNTrr I suppose they operate stili at a loss, Sir Hlenry?
Sir HENRY TH1-ORNTON: Oh, yes, Mr. Bennett.
The CHAIRMAN: Item 132 "Restaurant "-59,780.18 as compared with

$73,597.72.
Sir HIENRY TIIORNTON: The decrease was due to the transfer of station

restaurants from the railway te the Canadian News Company for operation.
The CNHATRMAN?- Item 133 " Station, Train and Boat Privîleges"$8,

732.64 as compared with $175,743.80.
'Sir HENRIY THoRNToN-: That is a small increase due to increased travel.
The Cr1IAIIaM-N: Item 134 " Parcel Room " is practically the same thing.
Sir HENRY THiOR-ýTON: Yes.
The CHAIRMAN: Item 13~5 ' Storage-Freight "

Sir HEINRY THORNTON: What item is that?
The CHAIRMAN: Item 135.
Sir HENRY THORNTON: Practically the same; there is practically no vari-

ation.
Hon. Mvr. BENNETT: I move that the committee recommend that they be

given leave to sit while the Flouse is in session.
Hon. Mr. DuNNiNG: That is in case we need it.
The CHAILIMAN: Yes, we may not need it, but if we do we want to be ready.
Sir ETJGENE Fisur: I second the motion.

Motion agreed to.

Discussion followed.

The Committee adjourned until Thursday, March 31, 1927, at 11 a.m.

[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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Comýtn'r= Room 425,
HUSE 0F COMMONS,

THiuRSDAY, March 3lst, 1927.

The Select Standing Committee on Railways and Shipping met at 3 p.m., the
Chairman, Mr. Goodison, presiding.

The CHAIRMAN: We lcft off the day before yesterday at Item No. 135 on
page 16 of the 'Report. The next Item is Storage-Baggage; 1926, $52,602.15;
1925, $51,654.41, an inecase of $950. The next Item is Demurrage; 1926,
$833,738.70; 1925, $689,487.04; an increase of $144,251.

Mr. JELLIFF: How did that increase corne about?
Sir HENRY THORNTON: From increased business and a littie closer collec-

tion of demurrage charges. The increased business carnies with it more use of
cars.

Mr. JELLIFF:- You enforced your demurrage rules more closely?
Sir HENRY THORNTON: Yes.
The CHAIRMAN: Item 138, Telegraph and Telephones; 1926, $2,507.28; 1925,

$2,559.40, a decrease of $52. Item 139, Grain Elevators; 1926, $391,408.87; 1925,
$502,988.19; a decrease of $11,579.

Mr. JELLIEF: Will you explain that?
Sir HENRY THORNT*N: The decrease is not because there was less grain

handled but it is for storage and insurance due to the grain being held in the
elevators for a shorter period than in 1925.

The CHAIRMAN: Power; an increase of $14,711.86. Item 142, Rents of
Buildings and other Property; 1926, $368,738.54; 1925, $336,153.21.

Mr. CANTLEY: What is the explanation of that;. Power item?
Sir HENRY THORNTON: It is revenue from power sold Co the Armour Grain

Company, and others, at Depot Harbour, and which in 1925 was credited t'O
Account No. 443; simply a change in accounting.

The CHAIRMAN: The rents of buildings and other property shows an increase
of $32,585.

Sir HENRY THORNTON: That was due to the difficulty experienced in segre-
gating expenses and maintenance of properties rented. It was considered advis-
able to segregate rentais from employees to this account in preference to Account
No. 510, as was donc in 1925.

Mr. MILNE: Is that for car rentals?
Sir HENRY THORNTON: No, rentais for property.
The CHAIRMAN: Item 143, Miscellaneous; 1926, $1,546,898.93; 1925, $1,433,-

892.60; an increase of $113,006.
Sir HENRY THORNTON: That increase is made up by a number of factors;

the principal ones are the operatîng of boarding cars, an increase in the Victoria
Bridge tolls, an increase in the International Bridge tolls, a.nd an increase in
the sale of cinders, gravel and water, and an increase in heating and cleaning
cars.

The CHAIRMAN: Item No. 151, Joint Facility-Credit; 1926, $26,787.62; 1925,
$22,763.39; an increase of $4,024.

[Sir Hcnry Thornton.]
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Sir HENRY THoRNToN: That. is due to increased credit f rom the Canadian
Pacifie Railway as te the Quebec Joint Terminal; an increased credit from the
Wabagh Section, that is, the section'of our track which the Wabash uses.

The CHAImmAN: Item 152, Joint Facility-Debit; 1926, $118,671.41; 1925,
$99,553.71; an increase of $19,117.

Sir HENRY THORNTON: The Wa:bash, being a portion of the joint revenue,
was formerly eharged to accounts Nos. 101 and 102, but the Interstate Com-
merce Commissions order of August lst, 1926, instructed that this account
be used in the future; it is mereiy a change in accounting practice.

The CHAIRMAN: We had the statement from Sir Henry Thornton the day
before yesterday on the operatîng expenses, and you have that statement in the
Minutes of the meeting furnished to-day. If any of you wish any explanation
of any of those items we will 'be glad to take it up with you now, but if you
are satisfied with them we will go ahead with something else.

Sir EuG.ENE FisEr: The detaids of that general statement are contained
in the Report.

Sir HENRYi THORNTON: There is just the question of whether you would
like to take the special items of operating expenses and go through themn
item by item, using that as the basis of discussion, or whether the Comsnittee
want te confine their investigation te the general explanation set forth in the
document which was furnished at the last meeting. We prepared that docu-
ment and it is in the Minutes of the last meeting. That was prepared for two
purposes; the first, te enable the members of the Committee to more easily grasp
the essential features of the expenses, and secondly, if they wished te use that

as a basis of discussion rather than the more detaiiled operating expenses as
shown in the Annual Report. It is for the Cemmittee te decide which they
would like to do.

Mr. JELLIFF: We asked the day before yesterday if we could get a state-
ment as te the grain items. Were you able to segregate that?

Sir llHNRY THORNTON: I suppos~e you refer to the question that was asked
at the last meeting, as to what revenue accrued from grain in the Western
Region. The answer to that question is: $24,500,000.

Mr. JELLIFF: That includes ail grains?

Sir HIENRY THORNTON: That includes ail grain; that is the earnings from

ail grains accruing from, the Western Region, that is te say, that part which
is west of the head of the Lakes.

Mr. JELLIFF: That is just the grain going east to Fort William?

Sir HENRY THORNTON: It is ail the grain, both east and west.

Sir ELTGENE FISET: Have you decided, Mr. Chairman, which report you

are going to consider? Are you going te consider the general report?

The CHAIRMAN:- You have the generai statement there. It is for you
gentlemen te say whether you want those details ail gone inte, or wish to take

the general statement, as shown in the Minutes of the last meeting.

Sir EIJGENE FisET: I think it would be quite sufficient te take the general
statement.

The CH1AIRMAN: Then we will go ahead.

Sir HENRY THORNTON: I suppose you had bet.ter take the general expenses
and have discussion on those.

Sir EUGENE FisrnT: Start at page 2 of the Minutes of the last meeting.

Sir HENRY THORNTON: The first of the special items of expense is, " Main-

tenance of Way and Structures." There is shown a number of increasesý and

decreases in the Maintenance of Way and Structures expenses. If you want to
[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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follow that, 1 will be happy to try to answer any question wbich you may ask.

You will observe thât the Maintenance of Way and Structures expense increased

by $3,783,193. The principal increases are expiained below; ties, ballast, track-

laying and surfacÀng, station and office buildings, and removing snow, sand and

ice. Against those there are certain decreases; there were decreases in roadway

maintenance, in bridges,' trestles and culverts, and in shops and engine houses.
The diffcrcncc bctween the increases and the decreases is a net increase of
$3,783,193.

At the bottom of page 3, you will sec that Maintenance of Equipment Ex-

penses increased by $1,886,9110. The increases are given below and the principal

item is freight train car repairs. The decreases are shown immediately under-
neath that and the largest item is a decrease of $854,157 in steam locomotive
retirements. The differenee between the increases and the decreases is an in-
crease of $1,886,910.

The CHAIR-MAN: The next item is, Traffie.

Sir HENRY THORNTON: The traffic expenses, at the top of page 4, shows an

increase of $123,503. That is made Up of an increase of $83,986 in superintend-
ence; $68,830 in outside agencies; and $75,099 in advertîsing. The decreases

were, other expenses, $72,710; and the British Empire Exhibition, $60,10O. The

difference betwecn the increases and the decreases leave-s a net inerease of
$123,5W3.

Sir FUGENE FisET: Does that advertising include press advertising also?

Sir HENRY THORNTONY-: That includes ahl advertising of ail sorts wbatso-
ever.

Mr. JELLuFF: An increase in superintendence indicates an inorease in
salaries?

Sir HENRY THORNTON: Yes; 1 wiii give you the details of that. The in-

crease on account of superintendence was in round figures $84,000. That is made
up of an increase in existing staff and for new offices $60,000; in rentais for offices
$3,300, and in general expenses $17,0O0. Those are the principal items of in-
ereasc whieb practicaliy make up the $84,00.

Mr. JELLIFF: Did you increase the heads of the staffs or just the personnel?

Sir HENRY THORNTON - No. When 1 say " increases to existing staff " it
means the salaries which would be paid to outside solicîting forces and local
agents off the uine, and posts of that character. There has been no increase in
the more important oficers of the department; this amount is spread over the
smaller officers. For exampie, there is just one item which may be of interest
to the committee. The year before last--in the autumn-we opened an office in
New York on Fifth avenue on the stireet level just above 42nd street, on the east
side of the Street. The rentai we pay for that office is $55,000 a year. In the
roonths of June, July and August, the cash taken in iii that office in ticket sales
ran from $50,000 a month to $75,000 a month; in other words, the cash sales for
tickets in any one of those months more than met the rent of the office for the
vear. One might say " Perhaps you wouid have had that anyway "; our judg-
ment is we wouid not have had it aflyway. We are pursuing the poiicy
where we think it justified, of opening offices for the sale of our transportation,
and these offices are not only for the sale of tickets and the Solicitation of freight,
but also for immigration and colonization purposes, and for propaganda relating
to Canada as a whole, and apart from the railway itself.

Mr. JELLIFF: Do you stili niaintaýin ail your downtown offices?

Sir HENRY THORNTON: We maintain a downtown office for freight purposes,.
but we changed our uptown ticket office te this particular location.

[Sir Henry Thoraton.]
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Mr. CANTLEY: 1 think the New York office to which you refer was a good
move; I was in that office several times immediately after you opened it. You
have a pretty good man in there.

Sir HENRY THoRNýTON: Yes, he is a pretty good man. Very often people
corne in to ste Mr. Young, our agent, not with respect to, transportation but
with respect to opportunities inCanada, starting a new f actory, or something of
that sort. We have an engineer there who is able to answer questions of that
sort, and while 1 have not the figures at hand, as a resuit of those facilities, we
have attracted a good deal of investment to Canada for industrial purposes.

Mr. CANTLEY: I was, speaking more in reference to travel to the Maritime
Provinces during the summer months.

Sir HENRY THORNTON: That is quite right, Colonel.
Sir EUGENE FISET: In your charges for superintendenýce in your General

Report, you have divided them under three headings, Maintenance and Equip-
ment, Charges, and Transportation. Does that include your charges for super-
Thntendence of headquarters staff?

Sir HENRY THORNTON: No, that simply relates to superintendence as
ielated. solely to maintenance of way-

Sir IEIGENE FISET: Does that appear in your general report under a special
heading?

Sir HENRY THORNTON: You will find general superintendence under the
heading of " General Officers "; for instance, a train-master's salary is super-
intendence, but it is, transportation superintendence.

The CIIAIRMAN: The next item "Transportation"-$111,393,758 as com-
pared with $110,386,975, an increase of $1,006,783.

Sir HENRY THORNTON: Transportation expenses, of course, on ahl railroads,
represent the largest, single item of expenses, and you will note that there was
an inorease of $1,000,000 in what might be described as the cost of moving the
company's business, but there was an increase in the total business of $21,000,000
-in round figures-so that to have handled an încreaseid business--and there
were no increased rates, by the way-to have handled an increase in the volume
of business of $21,000,000 at a cost of $1,000,000, I think is something with
which we may be satisfied. The increase itself of that $1,000,000 is divided, and,
as you might suppose, is mostly absorbed in wages. Below you will see an
increase of train engine men, yard masters, yard clerks, yard conductors and
brakemen, yard engine men, and train men, and train supplies and expenses.
There was a decrease in fuel for yard locomotives and fuel for train locomotives;
that decrease for train locomotives is partly due to decreased price of coal, and
partly due to improved consumption. There is also a simillar decrease in engine-
house expenses, and what is especially gratifying, a substantial decrease due to
loss and damage, so that practically ail of the expenses, or 'by far the greater
part of the increase in transportation expenses was absorbed in wages which
grew out of a larger movement of traffic.

Sir EUGENE FIsET: What. was the sum involved in your last settlement on
account of the proposed 9trike?

Sir HENRY TEGENTON: We settled with the conductors and trainmien-I
cannot give you offhand the exact amount, of that increase, but we estimated that
including that increase, as well as other increases which must of necessity follow
in its train, because you cannot increase one class without doing something for
the others, the total increased expenses growing out of inereased wages, will,
for this year, amount to somewhere between five and a haif and six million
dollars.

Sir FUGENE FISET: That is for 100,000 employees? <
[Sir Hienry Thoruton.]
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Sir HENRY THORNTON: It runs from 80,000 to 100,000.
Mr. JELLIFF: When did that take effeet, Sir llenyy?
Sir HENRY THORNTON: The increase took effeet last December-the

increase to tbe conductors and trainmen. We are in negotiation now with
respect to other increases. I do not know when tbey will take effect; they will
probably take effect when the negotiations are completed.

Sir EIJGENE FisET: Was the same settiement made with the C.P.R.?
Sir HENRY THORNTON: We worked entirely in consultation with tbe Cana-

dian Pacifie; in fact, the settiement wbicb we madle with the conductors and
trainmen was the resuit of the conference wbich Mr. Beatty and myseif, accom-
panied by our proper officers, bcd witb the leaders of the men. In general, the
wage position on botb roads is identical; in fact, it could not weIl be otberwise.

Sir EucGENE FisET: And, of course, all tbese settiements are included in
those increases under the different beadings which you are mentioning-under
Superintendence.

Sir HENRY THO1RNTON: You are dealing with last year. These increases
were not effective except over a very, very small proportion of last year, so that
in comparing lest year with the year before, the increases of whicb we are
speaking are not a factor.

Mr. DTJFF: When did they commence-what time?
Sir HENRY THORNTON: December lst, was it not, Mr. Hungerford?
Mr. HUNGERFORD: Some of tbem were.
Sir HENRY 'THORNTON: The settlement with the7 conductors and train-

men, wbich represents the largest item, was effective December lst lest year.
There were some smaller items wbich were effective lest year, running from
Marcb lst to December Sth, but tbey were not of great importance. By f ar
the largcst item, whicb was the increase to conductors and trainmen, was effec-
tive Decem-ber lst.

Sir EuGENE, FISET: Is tbe proportion of increase tbe same for everybody?
'Sir HENRY THoRNTON: Substantially so; as nearly as circumstances will

permit it to be worked out ini tha.t fasbion.
Mr. JELLIFF: Wbat other classes arc you considcring now?
Sir HENRY TIORNTON: Ail other classes, Mr. Jelliff-pra:ctical-ly ali o>ther

classes.
Mr. MILNE: Tbat is as a result of those increases to the train-men and

conduetors?
Sir HENRY THORNTON: Yes. You see w1bat happened-and perbaps this

might be interesting to tbe committee to hear; tbe American railways were in
nogotiation-in fact, were in arbitration witb their men -with respect to a general
wvage increase vie bad been asked. Toward tbe latter part of these arbitra-
tion proceeings, tbe increase to our conductors and týrain-men became a subjeet
acute in Canada, and we macle a setticinent witb our men, although at that
tirne we were paving, as 1 recaîl tbe figures,, about five and a baîf par cent lower
wages than were paid in the United States. Tbe Canadian railways took the
position that tbe wages paid in tbe United States bad, in tbemselves, no bearing
on wbat sbould be paid in Canada; tb-nt is to say, living conditions in Canada,
the cost of living, and other things, sbould be given due weight, and we refused
to recognize tbe principle tbat we were in any way bound to pay a similar scale
of wages in Canada as compared with the wages paid in tbe United States.
However, you cannot entirely escape fromn the effect of certain scales of wages
across the'border. Our men had really been quite patient in the matter of
increases, and bad finailly got to the point Wbere they f elt something ougbt to be
clone for them, and in consultation wi.th the Canýadian Pacifie, and the two

[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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railways in consultation with the Unions, we agreed to increase the wages of
our men by something like five per cent, but almxost imrnediately upon that
settlement, the Board of Arbitration in the United States handed down a
decision increasing the wrages of the men in the United States by seven and a
half Me cent, so that, as it 110W stands, the general scale of wageis as ýapplied
to train crews in this country, is seven and a lhalif per cent below the more or Iess
prevailing scale of wages in the United States.

Now, when we agreed to this increase for the conductors and train-men, it
necessarily carried with it an obligation to do sometbing for other classes of
labour who, if the conductors and train-men were entitled to an increase, were
probably equally entitled to an increase. Then, after the settiement with the
çonductors and train-men, there followed negotiations and the opening of the
sehedules with ail of our Trade Union people, to rearh an adjustinent respecting
an mncrease in wages.

Mr. McLEAN <Melfort): .1-ave you completed negotiations with any class
excepting the train-men and conductors since that day, or are you stili nego-
tiating?

Sir HENRY TioRN'rON: I will ask Mr. Hungerford to answer that.
Mr. HUNGERFORTI: The shop men and the maintenance of way men.
Mr. McLEA,4N (Mlelfort): You are making f airly f ast progress thien with

your negotiations?

Mr. Hu.NGERFoRB: We think so.
Mr. JELLIPF: Do the earnîngs since the first of the year indicate that you

will be able to take care of that increase, and make a reasonably good showing?
Sir HENRY THoRiNrON: Thiat is a difficuit question to answer, Mr. JeIlîiff.
Mr. JELLIFF: I know it is.
Sir HENRY THORtNTON: 0f course, a good deal depends on what increase

there is going to be in the company's 'business; also very much depends on what
is done to us in the way of freight rates for the year. I would isay-and it is
only 'conjecture-that if our business continues in its present state, and if we
suifer no material depreciation of revenue on account of reduced freight rates,
witb the improved zeal and loyalty and spirit which wilil be excited in our men as
the result of this increase, we shal *be able to show at the end of the year a
satisfactory increase in our net earuings.

Now, it is -a very difficuit thing for a railwaycompany sncb as the Canadian
National, to increase its net earnings from tbree million dollars in 1922, to over
forty-eight million dollars, încluding the Central Vermont, in l926--in four
years. This is a very considerable increase, a large part of which has been due
to the very fine services we have bad froin ail of our men-and you who use the
railway and travel -on it know what the spirit of the men is better than I. Lt
is very dilficuit to do that and refuse any recognition at ail to those who have
participated in bringing that -about. Lt constitutes an extreiely diffleuit, argu-
ment for me, as, the president of the com'pany, to meet, and quite frankly I do
not begrudge at ahl the inerease which we have agreed to, and wbich 1 think we
will negotiate very sbortly witb the reit of the men. However, someone once
said that "polities do not suceeed by iprayer ýalone", and in a measure, the saine
thing applies to the railway business; you get eventually 'to the point where
prayers fail to "bring home the bacon", and you have to do a littie actual work.

Mr. JMILIFF:- Sir Henry, you sipoke about the wage situation, as to the
increase of wages. 1 suppose you do not care to suggest wbat migbt be the
resuit of tbe decrease in rateson the Maritime section of the road?

Sir EtTGENE Fismx: Amounting to $2,00,000).
rSir Henry Thornt,>n.]
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Sir HENRY THoRNToN: It is already set ýforth, 1 believe in the Bill that is
before the flouse. And the effect of that is to be set up as a separate item,
whieh will appear for the consideration of the flouse, and the flouse will be able
to preciseiy say what it wi1l cost.

Mr. DUFF: The Railway will not suifer.
Sir HENRY THORNTON: That seems to be the intent of the B ill.
Mr. JELLIFF: You anticipate larger business in natural produets, owing to

the decrease of rates in the Maritimes?
Sir HENRY TIIORNTON: I think one must say that if as a resuit of this

decrease in the freight rate that bas been given to the Maritimes, and the
general relief which it will bring to the Maritimes, if that, does not increase
business in the Maritimes, then everybody is wrong; and we are proceeding upon
premises that cannot be defended from any point of view.

Mr. JELLIFF: If the rates fixed be too low, the ýloss woul be ail the greater.
Sir HENRY THORNTON: It becomes a question of wrhether the law of i.ncreas-

ing returns will compensate for the increased cost.
Hon. Mr. DUNNING: That can be better discussed when the Bill is before

the flouse.
Mr. DUFF: The Railway is very much interested.
Hon. Mr. DTJNNING: The Railway is not at all interested. If you wil

carefully read that Bill, you will find the Railway is not very much interested;
it is the Dominion of Canada that is interested.

The CHAIRMAN: The next item is "Miscellaneous $2,336,041.37, as compared
with $2,272,917.98?'

Sir HIENRY THORNTON: Those are small amounts -whi'ch are chiefly due to
increased expenses in connection with the dining and buffet and restaurant
service.

The CHAIRMAN: The next item is "General Expenses: $7,881,495.87 as
compared with $7,520,303.27." That is an increase of $361,000.

Sir HENRY TiuioitN:N As I understand, it is practically ail due to increased
pension allowance. There was, in fact, no increas-e, but a substantiai decrease
in the salaries and expenses in connection with the general offices. The entire
expense is due, as explained, to the pensions. That is something which is engaging
our best attention at this time, to find out what we are eventually going to, do
with the pension situation.

Sir EUGENE FisET: At the present time, how are you dealing with the pensions
in connection with the Intercolonial Railway and Prince Edward Island Railway?
Have you adopted the sanie systeni as you have in connection with the Canadian
National proper?

Sir HENRY THORNTON: We are following the sanie pruedure, uiitil sueli
time as we can have a definite understanding as to what the pension policy will
be. We are prot.ecting the Intercolonial and Prince Edward Island employees
by adopting the sanie system that is extended to the rest of the systeni. The
pension system is more or less in vogue on the Grand Trunk. There will be,
eventually, a Bill brought before the Hor-se, I take it, which will correct and
sîmplify the whole of our pension systeni. It bas been a verylong and contentious
problem. In the first place, we required to have a great deal of ýactuarial data,
before we cotild ýdecîde for ourselves as to what we wanted to do. Thcn, wc had
a number of friendly discussions with the men to see if we coiild hit upon some
pension scheme which would be acceptable to them. That arrangement is
progressing as rapidly as possible. In the meantime, we are protecting the
pensioners, although they are not on the pension roll.

[Sir Henry Thoruton.]
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Sir EuGENE FisE'r: Do you say that the Canadian National are treating
men as pensioners, who were before employees of the Intercolonial and Prince
Edward Island Railways?

Sir HENRY THîORNTON: On page 5 the statement is made that the Canadian
National Railways found it necessary Vo have a fund of $308,000 te ineet current
obligations, in 1926, as gainst $46,00O in 1925; invo'lving an increas.e of $262,O0O.

Mr. CANTLEY: Sir Henry, will you be good enough to let us know what is
the policy in reference to insurance? On page 17 Insurance is referred to.

Sir HENRY THORNTON: The policy of the company is Vo do its own insuring.
We began in 1923 te contribute to our insurance fund an amount which was
represented by the premiums which were paid in the previous year, and out of
that money we paid our fire losses. Now, as the resuit of that policy, we have
built Up our insurance fund of $8,049,000.

Mr. CANTLEY: What did the fund start with?

Sir HENRY THORNTON: I arn speaking f rom mernory, but I think it was
about $3,00O,000. We took into that fund the surplus which I believe the old
Grand Trunk had, of about $1,00O,00O. We built that up, ini the manner 1
have mentioned te, $8,049,000. That represents money which is invested in
Victory bonds, and it is held in trust for that fund.

Mr. CANTLEY: You actually have the money in1 liquid form?

Sir HENRY THORNTON: We have it invested in Victory bonds.

Hon. Mr. DUNNING: The total shown on page 12 of the Balance Sheet
is shown as "Insurance and other funds-Railway and C.G.M.M."* That is
item 721.

Sir HENRY Ti-iORNTON: We get four and a haif per cent on the Victory
bonds, and four per cent on the bonds of the Detroit and Shore line. $400,00O
is invested in Pontiac, Oxford and Northern, six per cent bonds. I may say
that practically ail of it is in Victory bonds, which are held in trust, and are not
hypotheticated. 1 should Vhink it woiild be a wise policy te continue to build
Up this one until it reaches some'where between $10,000,000 and $15,OOO,OOO.

Sir EuGENE FISET: At the present time, the fund is not paying its way?
Sir HENRY THORNTON: t is pretty close to it. Interest of four and a haîf

per cent on $8,000,000 would be around $350,0O0 a year. Our basses last year,
încluding railway and Canadian Government Merchant Marine, were repre-
sented by $793,000. Se we are getting on towards it being haif self-sustaining.

Mr. DUFF: Why do you include the C.G.M.M. fund in the Canadian
National Railway account? t is a separate company.

Sir HENRY TiHoRNTON,: Yes, it is a separate company, but Our fund insures
them because we are an insurance company with respect Vo the Canadian Gov-
ernment Merchant Marine.

Mr. DtrFF: Would it noV be better Vo keep .them separate? Why should
it be pu t in the Canadian National Railway fund.

Sir EUGENE FisET: It is a general insurance fund.

Mr. Dt'FF: They are two different companies. Would noV it be better
to have Vwo separate accounts?

Sir HENRY THIORNTON: 1 do noV see any particular advantage in it.

Mr. DUFF: It is the only item I see in the whole statement that covers
Canadian Government Merchant Marine.

Sir HENRY THORNTON: 0f course, the Canadian Goverument Merchant
Marine report will corne before this Committee.

[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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M -r. DUFF: It is a separate company, and I should think there should be
a separate statement. The answer is, it is because the Canadian National Rail-
way insures, the Canadian Government Merchant Marine.

Sir HENRY THORENTON: We carry the insurance for the Canadian Govern-
ment Merchant Marine.

Mr. JEIJKiNs: If you kept the accounts separate, it would cost more for
administration?

Sir HENRY THIORN1,TON: We save one staff by doing it this way.
Mr. MOLEAN (Melfort): $400,000 is a contr ibution fram the railway alone.
Sir HENRY THORNTON: That is only the part chargeable te maintenance

of way and structures. You will find that item in ail the large sub-divisions
of aur expenditures; Maintenance of Way contributes something, and Trans-
p-ortation contributes something.

Mr. McLENx (Melfort): It does net include the contribution from steam-
ships?

Sir HENRY THORNTON: No, that will appear as a separate item in the
Merchant Marine Report.

Mr. DUFF: But the details of the grass amount will bc includcd in that
report '

Sir HENRY THORNTON: There will be found in the annual report of the
(4overnment Merchant Marine -a charge for insurance. I arn not sure that Mr.
Duif and I understand each other.,

Mr. CANTLEY: What is your policy? Do you insure them at their replace-
ment value?

,Sir HENRY THORNTON: That is a question I cannat answer at the moment.
Hon. Mr. DUNNING: We will have that in the Merchant Marine account.
Sir HENRY THoRNTON: It is 50 much a ton, Colonel, but just how much I

cannot tell you at present.
Mr. DUFF: You and I were going to, try ta agree on this item.
Sir HENRY THORNTON: I will let Mr. IHenry explain it.
Mr. HENRY: I thînk yau had the idea that the railway accounts were

charged with the cost of insuring the ships. That is not sa.
Sir HENRY THORNTON: Then I think we do not understand each other.
Mr. DUFF: The total amount shown here on this page is aver $9,000,000.

It might be better if, înstead of putting in there the C.G.M.M. account-let us
say for the sake of argument that it is $2,000,000, that this should be $7,200,000,
and then in the C.G.M.M. accaunt there wauld be $2,000,000.

Sir HENRY THORNTON: Are you referring to Number 721?
Hon. Mr. DuNNiNG.: There is a nice question of accounts in there. It is

not really a practical question, but, one of accaunting theory.
Sir EUGnNE FiSET: Practically spcaking, this insurance schcmne is a scparate

campany from bath the C.G.M.M. and the C.N.R. It is an insurance campany
that insures bath services, under one heading, the same as if you had two separate
items in the C.G.M.M. statement; they will show the proportion they are con-
tributing ta that fund.

Mr. DUFF: You wauld nat need the accauntants ta deal with it. As Mr.
Iluel said a ifnment ago it is a matter of accounting; the same officials have
two accounts, one for the Canadian National I<ailways and one for the C.G.M.M..
and bath amounts would show in different statements. That is all right.

Sir ErGENE FisET: I think the way it is donc is goad business.
Mr. DUFF: I will defer ta ylour opinion.

[Sir IIenyy Thornton.]
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Hon. Mr. DiuNNiNG: Suppose we, agree that when the Merchant Marine
accounts corne up, that will be cleared up, Mr. Chairman?

The CHAIRMAN: 1 think that is the best way, to thresh it out when we corne
to that.

Sir EUGENE FisiEr: Will the sarne criticism apply to your insurance fund,
and also to your pension fund? You are obliged to contribute a certain portion
every year to supplement your pension fund, and I suppose the amount that.
cornes frorn the ernployeees goes to the general fund, and the balance is spread
over the railways.

Sir HENRY THORNTON: Do you rnean that we distribute our pension charges
to the dîfferent departmrnents?

Sir EuGENic Fisirr: Yes.
Mr. CooPniR: That is operating. There is no pension fund. There is not

a surplus set aside in a fund for pensions.
Sir ETJGENE Fismx: The arnount of your contribution goes to a central

fund?
Sir HENRY THORNTON: That contribution, General, only exists with respect

to the Intercolonîal Railway.
Sir EUGENE FisET: That is what I wanted to, ascertain.
Sir HENRY THIORNTON: And that is balanced against the deficit.
Mr. CooPER: That goes to reduce the arnount that the railway is required

to contribute.
Sir EUGENE Fism?: In the future scherne of pensions, it entails contribu-

tions by the employees, does: it not?
Sir HENRY THORNTON: No, we do not think it wîll, but that is a question

that we are stili disicussing, and the present drift of the thing is that it will not.
TheCHAiRMAN: So far as any rnisunderstanding in regard to this $9,000,00O

is concerned, I think when we have the staternent frorn the Merchant Marine
we can compare the two and thresh that part out. Have you any further
questioný to ask *on this statement?

Mr. McLEAN (Melfort): In the Miscelianeous items that we have passed,
would yoýu rnind telling me whether the dining service is breaking even?

Sir HENRY THORNTON: That is the dining and sleeping car service?
Mr. M1eLxAN ( Melfort): Yes; 1 do not want exact figures at ail.
-Sir HENRY THORNTON: The revenue was $1,506,000. The expense was

$2,026,000; a difference of rather less than haîf a million dollars; a deficit of
about that.

Mr. MCLEAN (Melfort): Has that been redueed?
Sir HENRY THORNTON: Yes. 0f c~ourse, as your business increases, you

reduce your deficit, and without, going into figures, I should say it was less last
year than the year before.

Mr. McLnAN (Melfort): That is what I rneant.
The CHAIRMAN: Are we ail through with the operatîng expenses?
Sir EuGENE FisET: Before taking up the Merchant Marine, should we

net accept this report as it stands?
Mr. DTJFF: Mr. Chairman, if there is no further -question, I would move

that the annual report of the Canadian National Railways for the year 1926 be
receivied and adopted.

The CHAIRMAN: You have heard the motion, gentlemen. I declare the
motion carried.

[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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Mr. DUFF: I mnight say, there are one or two members who are not here.
I presume, a" a matter of courtesy, if they corne another day, they May be
permitted te ask a question?

Sir HENRY THORNTON: We will have ail the data here, and if any member
wishes to reop-en anything, we will be only too glad to, explain it.

Hon. Mr. DUNNING: As a matter of fact, any member would have an
opportunity on the est-imates. 1 suggest that we take up the estimates inasmuch
as the Merchant Marine staternent is not yet tabled in the Huse. We cannot,
therefore, go'on with sornething that lias not been referred to. The estimates
for the Canadian National Railway, we can go on with.

Mr. DUFF: There is an increase of $8,500,OOO0 in the estimates.
Hon. Mr. DUNNING: Oh no, a decrease.
Mr. DUFF: Yes, I beg pardon. Will you explain that, Sir Henry?
Sir HENRY THOaNTON: I want te use the sarne figures that Mr. Duif is

using. May I ask where Mr. Duif is readin-g from? There is a decrease of
$8,500,000. In detail, there is a decrease of $8,748,9N0.48 in interest on funded
and other debt. There is a decrease of $554,040 in Grand Truak Pacific guar-
antccd interest. There is an increase of $662,585.06 in sinking fund payrnents.
Tliere is a decrease of $1,153,400 in equipment principal payniqent. There is
no change in the dîvidend on Grand Trunk Railway four per cent guaranteed
-stock. There is a deecase of $788,000 in retirement of capital obligations.
Those items added, and subtracting the increase to which 1 referred, leave a
net increasé in total financial requirements of $1O,581,755.32.

Hon. Mr. DuNNiNO: A net decrease?
Sir HENRY THoRNToNs A net decrease. There are less resources. There

is to lie subtracted from that, resources of $4,732,621, leaving a decrease in net
financial requirements of $6,257,134.32. There is a decrease on account of new
equiprnent, of $5,O00,0O0; an increase of $3,107,134.32 on account of general
additions and betterments; a decrease on account of additions te the Cliateau
Laurier Hotel at Ottawa, of $2OOOOOO; an increase on account of discounts on
.9ecurities to, bc is8ucd of $1,650.,0O0, making, in the last analysis, a total not
decrease of $8,500,0O0. In other words, the budget for the nine months ending
December 3lst, 1927, is $22,500,000, as compared witli tlie saine period last
year, for the twelve months, of $31,000,000.

Mr. JELLIFF: How mucli of last year's estiinated $31,00O,0O0 did you use?'
Sir HENRY THORNTON: We cannot tell until Mardi 3lst, Mr. Jelliff. That

closes the fiscal year on whicli tliis is based.
Mr. JELLIFF: Do you think you are using it ahl?
Sir HENRY TîoRNT0N: Mr. Henry can answer that better tlian I can.
Mn, HF.NY: I think perhaps we will not use the whole of it, but that

we will iiot lie able to tell precisely until probalily tlie first of April, wlicn alI
tlie accounts will lie in.

Hon. Mr. DuNNiNG: Sir Henry, I think there is something you said there
that miglit lie a little confusing, wlien you referred to nine months and twelve
montlis. Is it the fact that the conmparison here made is lietween tlie two
governmental fiscal years, twelve montlis eacli?

Mr. HENRY: No, this is made for the nine months ending December 3lst,
1927; with the twelve months ending Mardi 3lst, 1927.

Hon. Mr. DUNNING: This estimate before Parliament contains tie amount
whici was voted for tie fiscal year 1926-27; the whole fiscal year.

Mr. HENRY: That is correct.
Hon. Mr. DUNNINU: And the twenty-two and a haîf millions is for the

wliole fiscal year 1927-28 se far as Parliament is concerned.
[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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Mr. HENRY: So far as Parliament is concerned that is correct, yes.
Hon. Mr. DTJNNiNG: These are Parliamentary figures we are dealing with.

This raises again the awkkvard question of the railway year ending with the
calendar year, and the fiscal year of the country ending on Mardi 3lst.

Sir HENRY THORNTON: That is a very awkward fact.
Hon. Mr. DLTNNiNG: But the aggregate figures here are for the twelve

months.
Sir EIJGENE FisET: No, not quite, sir. 1 tjIink this is the means of the

railway for the next twelve months; but for the first three months of the fiscal
year they do not spend any of it. They spend it in nine months. Is not that
what it means?

Hon. Mr. DUNNING: NO. Sir Henry, did the Canadian National draw upon
that $31,00,000 until the 3lst of Mardi, 1927. If we vote this $22,500,000 they
cati draw on it until the 3lst of Mardi, 1928, but in figuring their own require-
ments, they necessarily must figure upon the twelve months ending in Decem-
ber in each year.

Sir HENRY THIORNTON: That is correct.

Hon. Mr. DUNNING: Tie point I want to clear up is tiat thc information
which Sir Henry lias given to the Coînmittee, is lis own forecast based upon
bis own calendar year; it cannot be otierwise.

Sir HENRY THORNTON: That is right.
Sir EVGENE FisET: But tie bulk of bis estimates is for betterment and new

equipment; $80,000,000 goes into tiat., and tic purchase of that equipment cannot
possibly take place during the first tirce months of the fiscal year.

The CHAIRMAN: We are dealing with $22,000,000 as compared with
$31 ,000,000.

Hon. Mr. DUNNING: In estimating the amount of resources to contribute
towards this result, what basis did you use in- comparison with 1926? Your
estimate Of resources, of course, is based upon the estimate of earnings for 1927,
is it not?

Sir HENRY THeýRNTON: Yes.
Hon. Mr. DIJNNING: Do you allow for increased earnings in 1927 over

1926 in arriving at your contribution from resources?
Sir HENRtY THIORNTON: Yes.
Hon. Mr. DUNNING: Tell the Committee what that xvas.
Sir HENRY THORNTON: I do not know whether we cati quite answer it in

that way. We estîmate on about the same resources. That was due partially
to two indeterminate factors; and an anticipation of wage increases of which we
could not estimate the effect; and some possible effect with respect to rates.
In other words this is a conservative figure; it must necessarily lie so.

Hon. Mr. DIJNNING: It means that you will flot require this money from
Parliament if your earnings are better in 1927 than they were in1 1926?

Sir HENRY TH1ORNTON: Yes. 0f course, in a thing of that kind you have got
to bie absolutely safe.

Hon. Mr. DTJNNING: The point I want to make is tiat you are not asking
for $8,500,000 less based upon some fancy picture of earnings?

Sir HENRY THORNTON: NO.
Hon. Mr. DIJNNING: The earnings -calculation is approximately the same

as the resuits of last year would indicate as being possible.
Sir EUGENE FISET: I move the adoption of these estimates.

[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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Mr. MAcLAREN: I was going to ask Sir Henry if he would tell the Corn-
rnittee wbat the regulations are regarding the issuing of passes to railway
employees.

Sir HENRY THORNTON: We have certain regulations. For example, any
employee who bas been in tbe service of the Comnpany continuously for over 50
years receives an annual pass, good over the system, for birnself and bis wife.
Then-certain other ernj1loyecs, wbo bave been in the service of the Company for
a certain number of years, receive annual passes over a certain section of tbe
railway, usually for that part of'tbe railway on wbicb they are ernployed.

Mr. MÂcLAjIEN:1ý Occasionally, frequentlv, or at any tirne?
Sir HIENRY THORNTON: Tbey are given annual passes over that part of tbe

raîlway on wbich tbey are ernployed.
Mr. MAcLAREN: Do tbose passes include their families?
Sir HENRY THORNToN: No, just tbe individual birnsëlf. Tben employees wbo

bave been in the service of the company a lesser number of years may bave, on
request, tnÎp passes for thcrnselvcs and their families; a certain number for a
certain period of service. I can give you a brief to-ýmorrow which will show
just wbat the regulations are. I arn only stating now in a gencral way what is
done.

Mr. MACLAREN: Could we bave a retura of the number of passes issued, say,
in Moncton, over the Atlantic Division?

Sir HENRY TIHORNTON: I think we could get that.
Mr. MACLAREN: I bave a communication frorn a very reputable merchant,

who states that passes arc issued to railway employecs and their farnilies over
a large area, and that they do their shopping at Moncton, where there is a large
departrnental store. This practice covers a large area, from Camphellton,
perhaps to, Truro, and it is interfering witb tbe local merchants in other portions
of tbe communîty.

Sir HIENRY TMQENTON: That is not an unusual complaint; you bear it pretty
rnucb çverywbere. To-rnorrow we can give you a staternent of the practice of
tbe company in regard to, free transportation. Týhat practiýce, I rnigbt say, is
substantially tbe same as the practice on pretty nearly ail the railroads on the
North American Continent. It may vary slightly in detail bere or there, but
it is pretty much the practice that is followed everywbere. We can give you
tbat precisely in a comparatively Short time.

In regard to the question of passes generally, it is the.practice of aIl rail-
way companies, under certain regulations, to give passes to certain. of their ern-
ployccs, depending upon their years of service. Tbat practice bas grown up pretty
rnuch alI over the North Arnerican Continent and has corne to be, in a measure,
part of the compensation of railway ernploycos. It is not actually a Compensa-
tion but it has hecorne so cstahlishcd that any revision of it, or its witbdrawal,
would immrediately attract the attention of the Trade Unions. I arn not arguing
for or against tbe practice; I arn just trying to tell you wbat it is.

Hon. Mr. DTJNNING: Is it the intention, wben issuing these passes, that the
farnilies of ernployees sbýou]d he able to travel a considerable, distance to do tbcir
shopping?

SIR HI-N-RY THORNTON: That is not the objeet of issuing tbe passes, but it
is prohably the result. If you give passes to your emplovees as a reward of good
service anà long service, of course tbey will use that pa'ss in wbatever way tbat
contributes to the econorny of if e.

Hon. Mr. DU-NNLNG: Or tbe enjoyrnent of it?
[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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Sir HENRY T1IORNTON: Or its enjoyment. Passes are not issued for the Pur-
pose of enoabling the employees to go to some other place to buy their goods, but

that is what happens, and'that is the complaint.

Mr. MacLAREN: 1 eau understand that, if it is an occasional paes, but if it

is given very frequently, every week, or two or three times a week, then it is

rather a différent thing.

Sir HENRY THouNrroN: The point you bave raised is, a point which I sup-

pose is raised 110W and then pretty much ail over the'North American Continent;

it is not peculiar Vo Canada or the Canadian National Railways. 1 will ask Mr.

Henry to make a note of that and we wîll get it as quickly as we eau.

Hon. Mr. DUNNI'G: Will you include in that statement your pass policy

with reference Vo servants of the company who are not fuil-time employees, sucb

as lawyers and doctors? You know what I mean; there'is certain transportation

granted ta nien who are noV permanent employees, such as land agents?

Sir HENRY THORNTON: Very often transportation is given Vo a doctor who

looksafter our interests, and ail he gets out of it is bis pass.

Mr. MacLAREN: H1e is a medical officer of the company, very often?

Sir HENRY THORNTON: I suppose that most of the tîme be uses that pass in

the interests of the company.

Sir EuGENE FISET: Would you also include in your statemelit the passes

issued to the press?

Sir HENRY THORNTON: That is on the basis of publicity.

Sir EUGENE FISET: If you put it in writing I think it will salve a great many
difficulties.

Sir HENRY THORNTON: We do not issue transportation in return for
advertising.

Sir EIJGENE FISET: I tbink if tbis could lie stated iu writing it would save

a lot of trouble.

Sir HENRY THORNTON: We will have that donc.

Hon. Mr. IJUNNING: Wbat about the otber department, Sir Henry, such

athe Natural Resources Department and the Industrial Department; are passes

issued to any of tbemn who are not employees tbemselves?

Sir HENRY THoRNTON: No, not unless it is in the service of the company.

Hon. Mr. DUNNING: If a man is agent for the sale of lan~d or for the

reception of immigrants, and sa forth, do you give him transportation?

Sir HENRY THoRNToN: We do, in connection witb certain societies.

Hon. Mr. DUNNING: I mean a business man who may lie operating bis

own business in a town but wbo is an agent for Canadian National lands, or

bas ta do witb immigration; does tbe pass system extend to sucb?

Sir HENRY TIIORNTON: Can you answer that question, Mr. Robb?

Mr. ROBB: We give certain passes to men who do work for us, sncb as

colonizatioli, and so on1.

Hon. Mr. DUNNING: 'Are those annual passes?

Mr. ROBB: No, trip passes. We only give annual passes to sncb as the

Hudson Bay people, wbo are in the same business as we are; we give annual

passes Vo their agents, but all the rest receive trip passes.

[Sir Henry Therntofl.]
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Mr. JELLIFF: There is a gratifying decrease in the amount asked for for
the Canadian Merchant Marine. Perliaps you will give us a statement on that?

Hon. Mr. DUNNING: We are not taking that up yet, because we have not
got the accounts.

Mr. CANTLEY: I second that motion of Sir Eugene Fiset.
Motion~ agreed to.
Sir EUGENE Fisirr: Then is there only the Merchant Marine left?
Hon. Mr. DUNNING: That is ail.
Sir EUGENE FisET: When will that bie ready?
Sir HENlRY THORNTON: That will be in your hands, printed, on Monday.'
Sir EuGENE FisET: Then the next meeting will be on Tuesday?
The ICHAIRMAN: We will be governed by the meetings of the other Rail-

way Committee. You will lie gîven ample notice.
Sir EUGENr FIsET: 1 move the adjournment of the Committee.
Mr. DUFF: I second the motion.
Motion agreed to.

The Committee adjourned.

CommirrTEE Room 425,
HOTJSE 0F COMMONS,

WEDNESDAY, April 6, 1927.

Tlie Select Standing CommUitee on Railways and Shipping met at 3 p.m.,
Mr. Goodison, Chairinan, presiding.

The CITAIRMAN: The first thing this afternoon is, I think, tliat Mr. Jenkins
lias a few questions lie wants to ask of Sir Henry Tliornton.

Mr. JENK-iNs: Yes, I understand tliis meeting was called for a furtlier
discussion of railway matters, and 1 understand that to-day you are going to
discuss tlie eigitli annual report of the Mercliant Marine. I wanted to ask a
few questions, in order to get some information, because in our province, trans-
portation offers a very vital problem. We are cut off from the maînland, and
naturaily, we liave a great niany problems. I want to ask tliese questions for
two reasons; first, because it will save discussion in the House, and we are al
anxions to expedite business, and secondly, because Sir Henry Thornton is liere
to answer tliem. Tlie questions are as foliows:

Nb. 1. Wbat capital expenditures are to lie made on the Prince
Edward Island dlivision in 1927?

2. On terminais?
3. WiIl the work of standardization of tlie Murray Harbour brandi

lie proceeded with?
4. A report is current in our province tliat tlie Hilîshoro bridge is

not safe for spreading the heavy rails. Has tliis any foundation in fact?
A prominent member of the legisiature of our province the otlier day
stated that lie had made inquiries from an enkineer, and tliis engineer
toid him the bridge was quite safe for beavy traffie, and I am anxious to
find out in an autlioritative way wlietber or not tliis is correct.

5. The Eastern Section was spread iast year. Is it to lie bailasted
and, if so, wliat portion?

6. Are ne-w rails required? If so, wliat expenditure wiIl lie =~de
in 1927?
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7. Several applications for new sidings at different points on the
Prince Edward Island Division have been presented to the government.
Has the management given consideration to such requests?

8. Several branch lines are required, viz.:-

(a) Birt's crossing to Mount Herbert or Mount Albion.
(b) Hunter River to Rustico.
(c) Emerald to New London.
(d) Charlottetown by South Shore to Victoria.
(e) O'Leary to West Cape, and Kensington to Malpeque and

others which are very important to aid the development
of the potato growing industry. It is necessary to encourage
this business in every possible way.

9. What action has been taken up to date re second car ferry? This
steamer is an absolute necessity.

We are more intensely interested in transportation in our province, than in any
other question, and I would like Sir Henry, in a general way, to give the
answers to these questions.

Sir HENRY THORNTON: I cannot answer all the questions which have been
asked offhand, but answers to these questions can be supplied in a day or two,
and incorporated in the minutes, if that is the wish of the Committee. Such
answers as can be given to-day offhand, I will undertake to give now.

The answers to the first and second questions will have to be deferred.
The answer to the third question, " Will the work of standardization of

the Murray Harbour branch be proceeded with ", is " No, not this year."
The answer to question Number 4, " A report is current in our province

that the Hillsboro bridge is not safe for spreading the heavy rails. Has this any
foundation in fact? " in that, it has a considerable foundation in fact, and the
Hillsboro bridge is not safe for heavy traffic. I do net care what any outside
engineer may have said, or what opinion he may have expressed; our engineers
have g.one into it carefully and have said it is unsafe.

Question Number 5, " The eastern section was spread last year. Is it to
be ballasted, and if so, what portion?" I cannot answer that question, nor
can I answer question Number 6.

Question Number 7, " Several applications for new sidings at different points
on the Prince Edward Island Division have been presented to the government.
Has the management given consideration to such requests?" Well, I cannot
remember offhand just what sidings may have been asked for in Prince Edward
Island, but I can answer in a general way, and also that any applications for
sidings always receive careful and sympathetic consideration, and if there is
anywhere near enough traffic to justify the expense, the siding is generally put in.

The answer to question Number 8 in regard to several branch lines being
requested is, that they are not included in this year's branch line program.

Question Number 9 "What action has been taken up to date re second car
ferry. This steamer is an absolute necessity." I understand that that is one
of the things which is included in the Duncan report, and I suppose that is in
the hands of the government for the time being, and I would not care to express
a definite opinion about it. I am sorry, Mr. Jenkins, but that is the best I can
do at the moment. e

Mr. JENKINs: Thank you, Sir Henry, and I understand the balance of
the information will be forthcoming, and will be included in the minutes.

The CHAIRMAN: Has any member any question to ask before we start in
with the report of the Merchant Marine?

Sir EUGENE FisET: We have dealt with the Canadian National Railways.
Hon. Mr. DUNNING: It was understood that any member who desired to

raise any question in respect to the railway should be free to do so.
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The CHAIRMAN: Then we shall be pleased to have the report from Sir Henry
on the Merchant Marine.

Sir HENRY THORNTON: A member of my staff will shortly circulate among
the members and pass around a little synopsis for examination.

There is being handed to you a synopsis of the report relating to the
Canadian Government Merchant Marine, and if it is the wish of the Committee,
I will run over it hastily, touching on the essential points.

You will observe that operating revenues increased by $1,115,000-I am
now giving round figures-and operating expenses increased by $257,000, the
increases being 11.3 per cent, and 2.4 per cent respectively. You will note that
an increase of $1,115,000 only occasioned an increase of $257,000 in expenses;
the result is that the operating loss this year is $90,000 as compared with $948,000
last year, or an improvement of $858,000.

There has been an improvement in the earnings on the business handled in
the case of practically all the routes operated, and while it is true that the coal
strike in the United Kingdom caused a demand for full cargo tonnage at
abnormal freight rates, particularly for the transportation of coal overseas from
United States ports, our steamers operating regular transatlantic services to and
from Canadian ports were precluded from participating in outside trade routes,
although we did benefit in some degree from increases in grain and other rates
from Canadian ports.

What happened, briefly, was this. We could have materially increased. our
earnings if we had withdrawn our ships from standard and established trade
routes, and turned them into the carrying of coal. To do that, however, would
have worked an injury to Canadian shipping, and we thought it was preferable
to maintain our established trade routes, rather than temporarily to embark upon
the carrage of coal. Likewise, the coal strike in England increased our expenses
because we were required to bunker at our Atlantic ports for the round trip,
thereby using up valuable cargo space. There was no particular difference in
the actual tonnage handled; the export and import tons were pretty much the
same. In 1926, we handled 821,000 tons of export as compared with 820,000
tons in the previous year, and we handled imports of 398,000 tons as compared
with 319,000 tons in 1925, an increase of about 79,000. You will notice a remark-
able decrease in the cattle handled. The total number handled was 6,007 in
1925 and 1,522 in 1926. That is due entirely to trade conditions in England.
Irish cattle apparently came into the English market at a lower rate than it was
possible for our producers to meet. Furthermore, our producers found the United
States field more attractive than the foreign field.

The grain handled involves no material change.
The increase in operating expenses is entirely due to the additional expense

incurred by handling increased business.
Insurance. Generally speaking, the policy of the National Railways in

connection with the handling of insurance of the boats of the Canadian Gov-
crnment Merchant Marine is to adopt the same rules and principles as are fol-
lowed by insurance companies in the setting up of premiums and in the adjust-
ment of losses. There follows a statement of the losses. You will notice that
the total credit balance on account of insurance to the accounit of the fleet
insurance account in the Canadian National Railways insurance fund, is
$1,840,500. That, represents entirely a sum which bas been built up in the course
of the last four years, by charging to the fleet the insurance premiums which
were in vogue prior to our doing our own insuring, and charging against that
fund such losses as there were. The net result bas been to build up, on account
of the fleet, a reserve fund of $1,800,000.

Sir EUGENE FisET: That is included in the $10,000,000 reserve fund for
the Canadian National?

52324-4j



34 SELECT STANDING COMMITTEE

Sir HENRY THORNTON: That is held really in trust by that fund for the
account of the Merchant Marine.

Mr. DUFF: How do you make Up your partial claim losses? Suppose a
vessel gets on the rocks and they haul it off and it is not a total loss?

Sir HENRY THORNTON: We settie that, 1 take it, in the same way as we
wouid settie with underwriters.

Mr. DUFF: Do you send it to an adjuster and then charge it up against
the fund?

Sir HENRY THOUNTON: I do flot think there is any question of an adjuster.
because it is our own fund and we determine what proper charge should be
made.

Mr. DUFF: 1 was wondering if you would charge the total amount of the
cost of repairs, or the same proportion as an insurance company would?

Sir HENRY THORNToN: We would follow precisely the practice of însur-
ance companies in that case.

Mr. CANTLEY: Was there any sum voted to the creation of this fund?
Sir HENRY THORNTON: That started with nothing and bas been buiît up

in the manner I describe. 0f course, that is buÎît up out of operating expenses.
Mr. CANTLEY: As in the case of the million dollars taken over from the

Grand Trunk insurance fund?
Sir HENRY, THORNTON: We did not have any start of that sort with

respect to the Merchant Marine.
Mr. DITFF: Lt was just from premiums charged?
Sir HENRY THORNTON: It started from nothing and buiît up from

premiums charged.
Mr. PowEn: Up to four years ago you insured with outside companies?
Sir HENRY THORNTON: That is right.
The other items are, Depreciation on Vessels. This is practically the same

for each year.
Sir EUGENE FisET: Is that four per cent?
Sir HENRY THORNTON: Four per cent.
Interest on Government Advances; practically no change.
There is a small item, Adj ustment-Department of Marine and Fisheries'

Account; and a credit for Reserves Written Back. There is nothing there that
is particularly different from the previous year.

During the year three vessels were sold; two to the Canada Atlantic Tran-
sit Company, a subsidiary of the Canadian National Railways, and one to the
Arbor Ship Building Company. The two boats transferred to the Canada
Atlantic Transit Company were the "Canadian Gunner" and the "Canadian
Harvester," of approximately 4,000 dead weight tonnage, and were transferred
at a lump sum of $50,000 each. The "Canadian Settler" was sold to the Arbor
Ship Building Company of London, England, for £17,750, or $17.50 a dead-
weight ton..

Sir EuGENE FisET: Were the others sold by deadweight?
Sir HIENRY THORTON: 1 do not think they were. As far as the Canadian

Atlantic Transit Company is concerned, that was merely a transfer from one
subsidiary of the Government to another. As f ar as the "Canadian Settler"
was concerned, we were offered this price and it looked to be a good one, in fact
a better one than we expected to get, and we took it.

Sir EtTGENE FisEr: You were advertising all over the world, practically
speaking, trying to seIl those boats?

Sir HENRY THORNTON: We used a scatter gun and advertised everywhere.
We got some answers, and then subsequently sold by negotiation.
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Mr. JELLIFF: Can you give us the original cost of those vessels?
Mr. DUF~F: They averaged about $200 a ton, did they not?.
Sir HENRY THORNTON: It is about that, Mr. Duif. The original cost of the

"Canadian Settier " was $985,273.34.
Mr. DLJFF: How many tons was it?
Sir HENRY THORNTON: 4,900 tons.
Mr. JELLIFF: Can you give us the others?
Sir HENRtY THORNTON: The original cost4 of the " Canadian Gunner" was

$859,162.65. The original cost of the " Canadian Harvester " was $730,914.63.
They were both transferred at $50,000 each to the Canada Transit Company.

Hon. Mr. DTJNNING: Our friend Colonel Mullins is not here in body this
year, but he is here in spirit; tell us something about the cattle rates.

Sir HENRY THORNTON: Perhaps Mr. Teakie had better answer that question
and give us a general statement on the cattle rate position.

Mr. TEAKLE: Up to about eîght weeks ago we were charging $20 a head,
and the rate was then ýchanged to $15 a head. Does that answer the Minister's
question?

Mr. PowER: At that rate, what profit would you make on a voyage from
Montreal to European ports?

Mr. TEAKLE: We would lose just about $1,200 on the voyage. With a full
complement. of 233 head at the $20 rate, the figures as subrnitted last year-I
amn speaking from memory-showed a total loss of $42. If you multiply 233
by five. we are up to about $1.275 which would be the loss.

Mr. POWER: At the $15 rate?
Mr. TEAKLE: At the $15 rate.
Mr. POWER: And the $20 rate?
Mr. TEARLE: We lest $42.
Mr. POWER: From. Montreal or Quebec?
Mr. TEAKLE: Or St. John, or any place.
Hon. Mr. DUNNING: Are you looking for cattle business this year on that

basis, Mr. Teakle?
Mr. TEAKLE: Well, we hope to get cattle, sir, but so far we have no inquiries

for cattle.
Sir HENRY THORNTON: We would be looking for cattle business, Mr. Dun-

ning, in the ýsense that it would be of assistance to our Canadian farmers. So
far as the Merchant Marine îtself is concerned we would be losing money, but
what we lost we concluded we would gain in helping our western farmer friends,
or our farmer friends generally.

Mr. MCLEAN (Melfort): Is that loss due to the fact that your ships arc too
small to take a fair cargo?

Sir HENRY THORNTON: Well, of course, the ships are not designed as cattie
carriers. In the second place, they are a small size. I do not know whether I
could answer off-hand, whether with a large ship especially designed for cattle
we could make money at $15 a head or not; I do not know that we could.

Mr. POWER: Your difficulty would be to have the cattie rnoving all the
time?

Sir HIENRY THORNTON: Precîsely.
Mr. POWER: If you.designed a ship for cattie carrying you would not know

just where she was going?
Sir HENRY TEHORNTON: You rnight find a ship all dressed up and nowhere

to go.
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Mr. JENKINS: Was the rate reduced in order to get increased business?
Sir HIENRY THoRNToN: No; I think that rate reduction was voluntarily put

on by the North Atlantic carriers.
Hon. Mr. DUNNING: Lt was to test out the market.
Mr. CANTLEY: What lias been the general trend of freiglit rates in the last

few years?.
Mr. DoHERTY: If anything, the tendency'bas been downward. I arn talk-

îng about ail our general services.
Mr. CANTLEY: They did not change that way last year.
Mr. DOHERTY: With the exception of the trans-Atlantic rates.
Mr. McLEx~ (Melfort): On account of the coal strike?
Mit. DoH-ERTY: Yes.
Mr. CANTLEY: The grain rates went up enormously in the f ail.
Mr. DOHERTY: That is a transatiantic grain movement. I was speaking

of our other serviccs.
Mr. CANTLýEY: I arn taking the average transatiantie business from this

side to the other.
Sir HIENRY THORNTON: You will have to revise the question.
Mr. CANTLEY: Was, fot the average for the year higher, and your operating

expenses aise?
Sir HENRY THORNTON: Yes.
Sir ETJGENE FisxEr: Are your relations wit.h the Atlantic Combine stili

fricndly?
Sir HIENRY THORNTON: They are what you miglit eall amicably competitive.
Mr. JELLIFF: Your statement of 1926 shows that you handled for export

and import 1,290,000 tons as against 1,253,000 tons for 1925?
Sir HENRY THrORNTON: Yes.

Mr. JETLLIFF: So you made a gain of 47,000 tons, round figures? You
show an increase in expenses of $256,000. That would represent $5 per ton on
the increase. Do you not think tLhat is a pretty high increase?

Mr. TEÉAKiE: You wiill also notice that we had an increase in earnings and
an increase in operating of course neressarily follows.

Sir HENRY TinoRîNrot: I do not think you got Mr. Jelliff's question.
,Mr. JELLIFF: You show an increase in tonnage hauled in and hauled out,

from ait sources, of 37,000 odd tons, and an increase in expenses of $256,000.
That would make an increase in expenses of about $7 a ton?

Mr. TEAKLE: That would bie accounted for in many ways. You sec, our
voyages are fairly long voyages, and we do the larger amount of additional
moving on the longer voyages.

Mr. JELLIFF: I do not know that I get that.
Mr. PowER: That is to say, the more business you get the more it costs you.
Mr. TEAKLE: Natura]ly, it depends upon the places where you are operat-

ing, the cost of handling freiglit, and s0 on.
Sir HENRY THoRNION: On account of the coal strike, there was a material

additional expense, ýbecause of the fact that we were obliged to bunker for the
round trip voyage.

Mr. DUTFF: Did you have more voyages?
Mr. TEAKLE: Just about the same.
Hon. Mr. DTJNNING: That will corne out in the report.
Mr. TEAKLE: And the Iength of tlhe voyages as welI.
Mr. MILNE: Have you any dificuity in getting cargo?
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Sir HENRY THoRNTON: We are always short, as bas been pointed out in
previous years, on westbound cargo. We do not do so badiy eastbound, but
our principal difficulty is to get westbound cargo.

Mr. DUFF: That is the imports are about haif as mucli as the exports.

Sir HENRY THORNTON: Yes, that is shown in the tonnage.

Mr. MILNE: You have no difficulty in getting tonnage going out?

Sir HENRY THORNTON: Well, we have to fight for it of course, but we do
not do badly outbound.

Mr. MILNE: The point 1 want to get is, are the vesseis tied up sometimecs
when they should be operating, on account of the dearth of the tonnage.

Sir HENRY THORNTON: The vessels that run on scheduie, on regular trade
routes, of course, sail on the advertised'times. 1 shouid not say the vesseis are
tied up much on account of insufficient cargo. Pretty neariy ail of this tonnage
moves on advertised schedules and advertised freight routes.

Mr. MILNE: Sornetimes they may be completeiy full and at other times
there may be a scarcity of cargo, and they miglit go with 80 or 90 per cent
of cargo?

Sir HENRY THORNTON: That is right.
Mr. CANTLEY: Sir Henry, we used to have at qne time a detailed report

on each individuai ship so that we were able to formi a conclusion as to al
the slips, and as to whieh ship and what trade was deasirabie and what shouid
be encouragcd, and what should be discontinued. That, I think, is the crux of
the whoie question.

Sir HENRY THORNTON: We have a Iltatement, showing the profits or losses
as the case may be, of ecd trade route. That was discussed at the meeting
iast year, and 1 wouid not care to put that in the report. My recoliection is
that last year, that information was at the disposai of any member of the
Comm"ttee who desired to see it.

Hon. Mr. DUNNING: That is riglit. That is what was done iast year.
Sir HENRY THORNTON: That is at your disposai.
Mr. CANTLEY: '['at is the most enliitening information we can have,

I think.
Hon. Mr. DLTNNING: Last year, I think, Mr. Chairman, we agreed that,

whiie the members of the Committee may have access to the information, it, was
rather that ciass of competitive information that shouid not be made a matter
of record.

Mr. CANTLEY: Ail right. One other question. There was a ship disposed
of, 1 do not remember when, perhaps two years ago. 1 thînk she was taken back
iast year. Can you state the arrangements that were made in regard to that,
and how the transaction was completed?

SSir HFNRY THiORNION: Mr. Teakie can expiain that. That was the

Canadian "Settier." She was soid at a price of $140,000, and the purchaser paid
us s0 much down but could not pay the balance, and we had to take the slip back.
She is the one that bas been mentioned as soid again.

Mr. CANTLEY: I am aware of that, but what I am asking is at what price
you took bier back, and how the transaction turned out for the company?

Sir HENRY THORNTON: I have a generai recoiiection-and Mr. Teakie can

add the detais-that the party who bought the ship, wbose naine las escaped
me at the moment, faiied. We had to make the best of it, and we took the ship
back.' The details Mr. Teakie can suppiy.

Mr. TEAKÇLE: Yes. They paid a deposit of $25,000, wiaicl the Government
bas kept. We took over bis charter wbich was good to some time in May, and
the net resuit was that we were out about $3,000 or $4,000.
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Mr. CANTLEY: What did it cost to recondition the ship.
Mr. TEAKLE: About $30,000.
Mr. CANTLEY: And $25,000 was the original payment made on account?
Mr. TEAKLE: Yes.
Sir HENRY THORNTON: Then there were sonie credits which made the net

loss about $3,000.
Mr. DUFE: You reeonditioned her, after you took ber back?
Mr. TEAKLE: Yes, there were certain repairs necessary to be made on ber,the details of which 1 have not with me, to put ber in shipshape and to takeover and continue the charter.
Mr. DUFF: I heard something about the owners when they purchased bermaking some repairs, and their story is that the company promîsed to make good

those.
Mr. TEAKLE: No, as I remember the details, the ship was sold as she stood,in Halifax barbour, for a price.
Sir HPNny THORNTOIN: We did flot obligate ourselves as 1 recail the trans-

action, to make any repairs. Ail the repairs and reconditioning was done at
their expense.

Mr. MCLEAN (Melfort): What price was she sold at originally?
Mr. TEAKLE: $140,000.
Mr. MCLEAN (Melfort): You gave us some figures of actual freiglit, and of

costs.
Mr. TEAKLE: That is the actual ca¶riage one way.
Mr. MOLEÂN (Melfort): Then those figures you gave us would show the

cost of taking thc ship with her cargo from this side to the other side.
Mr. DOHERtTY:- It was the actual out-of-pocket chsts that we have because

of the fact that we are carrying cattle instead of general cargo; the space, plusthe space taken for feed and bedding that thc slip, is deprived of, for carrying
water and so on; the cost of the supplies, or rather the carrying charges for theoriginal cost of thc supplies and the various other details involved, particularly
as to the cattle. That lias nothing to do with the operation of the steamer.

Mr. DUFF: It is not part of the coet of operating the steamer from the time
she leaves Quebec.

Mr. DoHERTY: No, that is not taken into consideration.
Mr. DUFF: Why not? You should charge up your portion of the cost of

thc voyage.
Mr. TEAKLE: It would be as broad as it is long, whethcr you carry cattle or

general cargo.
Mr. DUEF: No, for instance you might carry deals on deck instead of cattie,or you miglit carry flour, where you are carrying feed.
Mr. DOHERTY: We are taking credit for that in the figures which we have

set up.
Mr. DUEF: What I am asking is this: In this cat which you say if takesto get those cattle across, do you include a portion of your wages, coal, oil and

engine supplies?
Mr. DOHERTY: NO.
Hon. Mr. DUNNING: I think there is a misunderstanding as to your loss

figures. Your figures werc not on the loss in actually carrying tlic cattle, but thedifference between carrying cattlc and carrying other cargo in the same space.
Mr. DOHERTY: Yýes, that was part of thc consideration, because we carry

cattle where we do not carry cargo on the fore and after deck. Thc place where
we carry cargo is in thc bridge deck space.



JiAILWVAYS AND SHIPPING

Hon. Mr. DIJNNING: When you state that it was at a fifteen dollar rate,
vou would lose so much. You mean lose it by comparisen with carrying cargo
in the same space?

Mr. DoHERTY: And provided the ship was not fitted with staîls to carry
cattie.

Hon. Mr. DTJNNING: That is not very conclusive as to the actual trade done.
Mr. MCLEAN (Melfort): He would not have the other proviso in mind, that

the ship would be loaded to capacity with other freiglit.
Mr. DOHERTY: Quite so.
Mr. MCLEAN (Melfort): Could vou tell us this: supposing you took a isbip

wvith cattie to the other side, could you tell us what it cost to take that sbipload
of cattie to the other side, either per head or per shipload, and what you got out
of it, and make a -comparison of it in that way?

Sir HENRY THOUNTON: In other words. what does it cost to move a cargo of
cattie fromn Canada to the United Kingdom?

Mr. TEANLE: 1 amn not in a position to answer that question, because our
experience is with -our own steamers.

Mr. McLEAN (Melfort): I mean with our own steamers; the cattie is one
particular cargo.

Hon. Mr. DUNNING: You have no ships exclusively in the cattie business?
Mr. CANTLEY: Two ships were fitted up last year about 'wbich we heard a

good deal. We have beard notbing about them this year.
Mr. McLEAN: Perbaps we could bave the same gentleman here to tell us

about tbem.
Mr. DOIIERTY: As f ar as I can gather, thev were net a success. They were

witbdrawn even before 'the movement diminished last Spring.
Mr. MCLEAN (Melfort): Those special steamers were withdrawn?
Mr. DOHERTY: Yes, tbose steamers that were special1y.fitted to carry a f ull

Cargo of cattie carried cattie in the bolds as well as on deck. Tbey were specially
constructed for the purpose.

Mr. CANTLEY: What became of tbem?
Sir HENRY THORNTON: Mr. Teakie eau tell wbat bappened to the ships.
Mr. TEAKLE: There were two slips. One was turned over to a man named

Olsen, and be got a company formed to go into this particular cattie trade.
Sir HENRY THORNTON: 1 remember now. What happencd was this: those

ships werc fitted for carrying cattie on ail decks.
Mr. ýCANTLEY: Fitted witb elevators.
Sir HENRY THORNTON: And it was a complete failure. And those who were

engagcd in this business, 1 think, lost what thcy put into it.
Hon. Mr. DUNNING: Did you seli the ships to tbem, Sir Henry or what

bappened to the sbips?
Sir HENRY THORNTON: Were not tbe ýsbips rented?
Mr. TEAXLE: As 1 remember, they were Norwegian sbips, an outside com-

pany. Tbey were flot our sbîps.
Sir HENRY THORNTON: He got, these ships and fixed them up, and be started

in the business, and the result was-I do not remember ail the detaîls of it-that
be failed.

Mr. CANTLEY: One of the ships was tied up at St. John.
Sir HENRY THORNTON: He came to me for relief, and he wanted us to

guarantee bim at the bank.
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Hon. Mr. DuNNING: It was Jansen. I thought you were talkîng about the
C.G.M.M. slips.

Sir HENRY THORNTON: No, these were outside slips.
Mr. DUFF: In that table of totals of freights export and import and inter-

coastal, what do you mean by "inter-coastal"?
Sir HENRY THORNTON: From maritime ports to British Columbia ports

through the PFnama Canal.
Mr. DUFF: How much foreign tonnage is in this?
Mr. HENRY: The balance takes care of ail our other trade.
Sir HENRY THORNTON: The inter-coastal is between the two points in

Canada.
Mr. DUFF: The reason 1 asked about "inter-coastal " was that this speaks

about your export and import, and that would seemn as if it might be ail Cana-
dian trade.

Sir HENRY THORNTON: No, that is fromn Canada to foreign ports. The inter-
coastal, as 1 say, is between Canadian ports.

Mr. JENKiNs: On page 12 it would show you.
Sir EUGENE FIsET: Have you any boats on the Great Lakes now?
Sir HENRY THORNTON: No, we have not.
Sir EUGENE FisET: Are w-e considering the general report or the annual

report?
The CHAiRMAN:- We are taking the general report of Sir Henry first.
Sir HENRY THORNTON: I thought perhaps we might take a short cut, and

that if you went through this, by the time you got through it you would find
that you had pretty well cleaned Up the annual report.

The CHAIRMAN: This report by Sir Henry Thornton, I understand, covers
practioally the whole thing in a concise form.

Sir EuGENE FISET; Will you explain what you mean by "Reserve for
Depreciation," $15,OO,OO-how is that reserve made up, is it cash or what
is it?

Sir HENRY THOUNTON: That is a book-keeping entry and there is no cash
involved.

The CHAIRMAN: Have you any further questions to ask on this state-
ment?

Mr. JELLIFF: 1 thought, Mr. Chairman, 1 was going to get a little further
information f rom the gentleman who, is here as to the increase in business over
the expense. He had not quite finished with me.

Mr. DAVIDSON: Yes, I can give Mr. Jelliff some more information. For
instance, in 1925 we had twenty voyages to Australia and New Zealand; and
in this last year we lad twenty-seven voyages to Australia and New Zealand.
The longer voyages necessitate the extra cost in handling. We lad two hun-
dred and forty-seven voyages against two hundred and forty-four voyages;
we lad three more voyages in this statement for 1926 as compared with 1925;
and in the longer voyages, to Austrahla and New Zealand, we had seven more
voyages.

Mr. JENKINS: Did any of your normal voyages, for instance, take more
time, which would involve larger wages and more expense?

Mr. COOPER: Some of themn would. Some ships meet delays, and others
make their time rigît along. You cannot always depend upon themn every day.

Mr. DUFF: On page 8 in your assets, you have an amount lere-you
have it every year in fact-"Accounts Receivable," $1,328,000, in round figures.
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Then against that, on the liability or debit side,, there is an item, "Balances of
Uncornpleted. Voyages " $709,000. Why do you put that in?

Mr. Coopi: The " Uncompleted Voyages " are carried forward into the
next year,-the balance on uncompleted voyages is carried forward into the
next year.

Sir HENRY THORNTON: That is, if a voyage runs into the following year,
you carry that cost into the followving year.

Mr. DiivF: Is that the whole cost or the partial cost?
Mr. COOPER: That is the cost up to the end of the year.
Sir HENRY THoRN-ToN: The reason is that 1V is generally a credit. Speak-

ing of the $709,000, we have received the revenue but have not met the entire
cost.

Mr. DUFF: If you have the total revenue, why should you noV charge
the cost of the voyage?

Mr. COOPER: Because the voyage is not yet completed.
Mr. DUFF: Then should not the credit of the receipts be, made on the

voyagc?
Sir HENRY THORNTON: This is the usual accounting practice in such cases.
Mr. DUFF: If you have ail your freight credited, you should have a charge

against that freight of the total cost of the voyages.
Mr. CoopER.: In the voyages to Australia, most of the freight is prepaid;

but the boat is on its way; and the costs are not paid and will flot be paid until
the voyage is completed.

,Sir HENRY THORNTON: I suppcOse that balances from- year to year any-
way, does it not?

Mr. CoopEit: This does not go into the Income Account.
Mr. DUFF: But iV makes your assets that much higher.
Mr. CooERii: This is a credit balance. I arn speaking of this item of

$928,000.
Mr. DTJFF: Then that is ahl right, but what about the accounts receivable?
Mr. COOPER: Those are freight charges which are not collected.
Mr. DuvF: Is that on completed voyages.
Mr. PowER: Is there any relationship between the Accounts Receivable

and the Balances of Uneompleted Voyages?
,Mr. CooERio: To the extent that it is not paid, that is what the item of

$1,328,000 is,-all accounts due to, the company.
Mr. PowER: Whether tTncompleted Voyages or any other thing?
Mr. COOPER: Yes.

Mr. PowEaR: There is no real relation between the two at ail.
Sir HIENRY THORNTON: That is ail.
Mr. Powu't: Your usual conduet is Vo ask payment of freight in advance?
Mr. CoopFEa: I think the bulk of the freight is in advance.
Mr. PowER: But sometimes you have allowed people credît, and those

accounts have not been paid, and those are receivable during the whole year.
Mr. COOPE-R: They are offset more by the Accounts Payable than by the

Balance of Uncompleted Voyages.
Mr. CANTLEY: The general practice is freighit payable in advance. Until

the war broke out there was practically no such thing, but it was payable on
delîvtery of the Bihl of Lading.
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Hon. Mr. DtTNNING: The Accounts Receivable are $1,300,000. Your total
revenue is $10,900,000. Is it not a large proportion to have in the form- of
Accounts Receivable?

Sir HENRY THORNTON: I will ask the Auditor to answer that.
Mr. DAVIDSON: iPart of that money is due from agents on the other side. 1t,

might be in Australia, England, or any other foreign part. Accounts Receivable
$476.000; Outstanding Freight $402,000; Agents $407,000.

Hon. Mr. DTJNNING: That is three ainounts of approximately $400,000
each?

Mr. DAvIDSON: Yes.
Hon. Mr. DuNNING: Do you make any provision for bad debts?
Mr. DAVIDSON: No, sir, the charter is always operating; there are very few

hbad debts.
Hon. Mr. DUNNING: You hold the goods, in practice?
Mr. DAvIDsoN: Yes, sir.
Sir EUGENE FiSET: Are all your freiglits payable in advance or at the time

of delivery?
Mr. DAVIDSON: Excepting for a week or so, where we give a credit to

shippers.
Sir HENRY THORNTON: To a large firm doing a considerable business, we

might give a line of eredit; it would not be a large amount,
Sir EUGENE FismE': What goes against that balance of $709 ,000? Is that a

debit balance?
Mr. DAVIDSON: No, it is a credit balance; that will be the dishursements,

when they are received from foreign parts. For instance, on a voyage to Australia
in December, that is not received until February or March; and we charge up
that voyage wîth the disbursements and transfer the balance to closed-voyages
which will go into 1927 profit and loss.

Hon. Mr. DUNNING: Now will you take up the Operating Account.
The CHAIRMAN: Yes, if you will turn to Page 10 of the accounts, we will

go through this. First are the capital Operating Revenues. Vessels with closed
voyages, for the year 1926 $1O,955,000; for 1925, $9,839,000; showing a gain of
$1,115,000. iNow, Operating Expenses. Vessels having closed voyages, for
1926, $10,395,000, as compared -with $10,177,000 for 1925; a difference of
$2 18,135.

Sir HENRY THORNTON: That is an increase in Operating Expenses, which
have been more or less deait with before.

The CHAIRMAN: Miscellaneous Wharf Expenses, $12,000 for 1926 as com-
pAred with $20,000, a decrease of $8,000. Operation of Agencies, $167,000 for
1926 as compared with $136,000 for 1925.

Sir HENRY THORNTON: What is the explanation of that increase of $31,000?
Mr. DAVIDSON: That is partly due ta expenses for 1925 whicli were not

charged up the first year, pending settlement as to the division of the expenses;
s0 that we have two years' expenses charged in 1926.

Sir HENRy TiORINTON: That is our own office, you understand.
Sir EUGENE FisET: Were there any new agencies?
Mr. DAvInSON: The Brisbane Office was opened in October 1925; of course

three months' expenses were charged in 1925 as against one year in 1926.,
Mr. TEAxwE: The opening of that office means a saving in operating.
The CHAIRMAN:- Management and Office Salaries, for 1926,4$352,111; for

1925, $335,376; an increase of $16,735.
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Mr. TEAKLE: Those are salary increases which have been meted out to
the staff deserving of them.

Sir HENRY THORNTON: Those are simply increases to clerks, stenographers,
and so oni.

Sir EUGENE FISET: Did it ineliude superintenaence?
Sir HENRY THORENTON: There was no increase to superintendence.
The CHAIRMAN: Rent, Taxes and Insurance $13,188, for 1926, as com-

pared with $13,642 for 1925, a decrease of $454. Travelling Expenses in 1926,
$22,948, as against $24,355 for 1925, a decrease of $1,387. Printing and
Stationery, 816,479 for 1926, as compared with $6,000 for 1925. That is an
increase of $10,464.

Mr. DAVIDSON: That was iýargely due to the practice being changed.
Previous to 1925, it was the practice to charge up ail the stationery expenses
to Operating. At the end of 1925 wc took stock of ail the stationery on band
and credited the Stock Account; debiting that Stock Account with the value of
the stationery, etc. used and carricd it back to, Operating, which accounts for
the low charge in 1925.

Sir HENRY THORNTON: In other words, that was a revision of accounting
practice.

Mr. DAvIDSON:- Yes.
The CHAIRMAN: Advertising, $25,000 as compared with $32,000, a decrease

of $7,000; postages, cables and telegrams, $35AOO as compared with $32,000,
an increase of about $2,500.

Mr. DAVIDsoN: That was due to increased, business.
The CHA&iRmAN: Office supplies and expenses, an increase of about $2,500.
Mr. TEAKLE: That is the same thing.
The CHAIRMAN: Miscellaneous expenses, a decrease of about $7,000. Other

-charges: Depreciatiort on vessels, a decrease of about $76,000.
Mr. DAVIDSON: That was at the same rate, four per cent.
Mr. CANTLEY:. What rate of depreciation are you charg.ing off?
Sir HENRY THORNT0N: Four per cent.
The CHAILIMAN: Interest on government advances, a deerease of about

$75,000.
Sir HENRY THoRNToN: That is occasioned by fewer vessels.
The CHAIRMAN: Adj ustmnent-Department of Marine and Fisheries Account.
Hon. Mr. DIJNNING: That is an old account.
The CHAIRMAN: Reserves written back.
Hon. Mr. DENNING: That does flot apply to 1926, eith-er.
Mr. DAVIDsoN: That was accumulated in 1925, and written back.
The CHAIRMAN: The total Ioss as compared with the previous years is

$982,2191 less.
Sir EUGENE FismT: A good showing.
Hon. Mr. DUNNLNG: Sir Henry, 1 would like to, go into the deficit account

a littie, and the statement of interest due the Dominion Government, as at the
3lst December, 1926. I think the Cominittee should see what is involved in
that. I do not think we touched upon that Iast year. The financial operation
is a somewhà involvcd one, bctween the govcrnment and thc Mcrchant Marine.
That first item, $39,000,000, balance of deficit account at December 31, 1925,
is the aggregate deficit from the beginning, of the Merchant Marine?

Sir HENRY THORNTON: Yes.
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Hon. Mr. DUNNING: And you deduct the interest cancelled on notes due
the Dominion Government? That means, the Dominion Government writes off
the interest?

Sir HENRY THORNTON: That is right.
Hon. Mr. DUNNING: And the cancellatîon of the amount set up for deprecia-

tion of certain vessels--what happened to that?
Mr. DAVIDSON: Those vessels were sold, and we wrote off the depreciation;

it is credited back to the deficit account.
Hon. Mr. DUNNING: It reduces your deficit account to that extent?
Mr. DAVIDsoN - Yes, sir.
Hon. Mr. DUNNING: So the total deficit account up to date, including the

loss of last year, is $45,516,000; that, is, in addition to any amnount. which. the
Government bas written off from time te time in the form; of interest?

Mr. DAVIDSON: Yes, sir, on vessels sold.
Hon. Mr. DUNNING: There lias been no writing off of Interest on any

v'essel which is stili owned by the Merchant Marine?
Mr. DAVIDSON:- NO, sir.

Hon. Mr. DUNNING: The interest charge is sti11 set up?
Mr. DAVIDSON: Yes.
Hon. Mr. DL-NNING: The total interest written off by the Government is

$20,636,109.51.
Mr. DAVIDSON: No; that is what is due the Government.
Hon. Mr. DUNNING: The amounts cancelled are those defined by an

asterisk before the figures in the third column, $335,000, $724,000, $1,788,000,
and $478,000.

Mr. DAvmDsoN: A littie over $3,000,000.
Hon. Mr. DIJNNING: What happens when you seli a vessel? What do you

do with the money?
Mr. DAVîn-SON: Turn it over to the Government.
Sir HIENRY THORNTON: We turn over the principal sum to the Goverument,

to go along with the loss already incurred on that particular vessel.
Sir EUGENE Fisrr: Does it go to the Receiver General?
Sir HENRY THORNTON: 1 think it does, General.
Sir EIJGENE FisET: I thought. you were going to, change that system last

year, but 1 suppose the amount involved was not worth it.
Hon. Mr. DUNNING: The Finance Minister said he could not ,,ee it that

way. He said it was bad enougli to write off the interest, and he should at
least rccve.t.he principal.

Mr. JELLIFF: Was the " Settler " sold for cash?
Mr. DAviDsON: Yes.
Mr. PowER: Is there any way of telling how much this whole fleet now

actually stands the governmnent?
Sir HENRY TIIORNTON: Oh, yes.
Hon. Mr. DuNNING: $45,0,000 and $3,000,000 interest on notes ean-

celled totals $48,000,000, and in addition to that, there is the original co6t.
Mr. Pow-ER: That is the total amount due the government f romn all sources?
Mr. DAviDSON: The total amount due the government is found on the

balance sheet at pages eight and nine. $20,636,000; interest accrued on, advances,
$ 1,940,000; that would be about $22,500,00.

Hon. Mr. DUNNING: Then there is the cost of the vessels.
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Mr. DAVmDsoN: That is interest on the cost of the vlessels, Plus the interest
on advances.

Hon. Mr. DuNNING: And in addition you would have to take the amount
written off by the government, which is $3,OOM,000.

Mr. DAVIDS0N: Yes, that would have to be included.
Hon. Mr. DUNNING: And the original capital cost.
Mr. DÂviDsoN: Yes.
Hon. Mr. DUNNIING: Then that last item in the first column represents

the principal amount of the notes-that is., the principal up to date for each
year?

Mr. DAviDsoN: Yes.
Hon. Mr. DUNNING: There is no interest added to it, no compounding it?
Mr. DAVIDSON: No.
Hon. Mr. DUNNING: Just the principal sum?
Mr. DAVIDsoN: Straight interest.
Hon. Mr. DUNNING: And so the amount the Merchant Marine stands the

government to-day is $63,000,000 plus $45.OOO,OOO plus $3,0OO,000 less deprecia-
tion reserve--that would ho about correct?

Mr.' HENRY: That is right.
Mr. CANTLEY: Whcre do'you get the $3,0O0,000?
Hon. Mr. DUNNINO: Written off by the government; it does not appear

here at all.
'Sir HENRY TH-ORNTON: About $100,0O0,0O0.
Mr. DUFF: I move the adoption of the report.
Mr. CANTLEY: I second the motion.
Motion agreed to.
The CHAIRMAN: Now, what about the estimates?
Sir Et-GENE FISET: I move the adoption of the estimates as they stand.
Mr. JELLIFF: 1 second the motion.
Motion agreed to.
The CHAIRMAN: That concludes our business, gentlemen.
Sir HENRY THORNTON: I congratulatc the committee on the businesslike

way in which its affairs have been conducted.
Mr. DUFF: And I congratulate you, sir, upon the frank manner your

officials have answered our questions.

The Committee adjourned until the cail of the Chair.

Note.-For following meeting, me Minutes of I'roceedings of 7th April,
P. xvii.
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APPENDIX

MEMORANDUM PREPARED BY SIR HENRY THORNTON IN REPLY
TO QUESTIONS ASKED BY MR. JENKINS

Q. What capital expenditures are to be made on the Prince Edward Island
Division in 1927?-A. $209,000.

Q. On terminals?-A. $50,000.
Q. The Eastern Section was spread last year. Is it to be ballasted and if

s0 what portion?-A. It is intended to do some ditching, widening cuts and
surfacing during 1927.

Q. Are new rails required? If so.' what expenditure will bc made in 1927?
-A. It is intended to instaîl 32 miles of relay rail.

Q. Several applications for new sidings at different points on the P.E.
Island Division have been presented to the Management. Has the Manage-
ment given consideration to such requests?-A. AIl applications for sidîngs are
given careful consideration by the Management. (See also p. 31.)



INDEIX OF EVIDENCE

WITNESSES

Cooper, T. H.,'General Auditor, C.N.R.'
Describes aecounting rules of the Interstate 'Com.merce Commission re depreciation for

rolling Stock equipment, 6-7.
Cost of haulage in connection with sleeping car charges, 14.
Equipment charges for express, 15.
There is no pension fund and no surplus is set a.side in a fund for pensions, 26.
'Cannot always depend upon ail ships to make voyages within a given time, 40.
lJncompleted voyages account, how desit with, 41.

Davidson, F., Auditor, C.G.M.M., Ltd.:
Stateinent re voyages tu Australia and New Zealand, 40.
Three items which make up Accounts Receivable, 11,300,00, 42.
Explains practice re freight charges account, 42.
Explains as to increase of $31,000 in Operation of Agencies account--New Agency, the

Briýbane office, 42.
Explains increases of $10,464 in Printing and Stationery account-Also decrease on

Depreciation Charges account, 43, 44.
Deficit Account-Interest written off by the Governinent-Total amount due the Gov-

eroLment, etc., 44, 45.

Doherty, J. P., Traffic Manager, C.G.M.M., Ltd.:
Freight rates, general services-Grain rates, 36.
What is meant by out-of-pocket coosts when cattle are carried instead of general cargo,

38--39.
Steamers specially fitted to carry a full cargo of cattie, 39.

Henry, R. A. C., Director, Bureau of Etouemics, C.N.R.:
Freight rates on grain sihipments -originating in the West. and moving eastward break

at the head of the lakes, 11.
Cost of construction of expre3s cars is chargeable to the General Equipýment account, 15.
Statement re expenditure of balance of estimates of 1926, 27, 28.

Hungerford, S. J., Vice-President, C.N.R1,,Operation and Construction Department:
Statement re certain increases when considering Transportation Expenses, account, 21.
Negotiations with shop men and maintenance-of-way men progressing in respect te

wage increases, M~2

Robb, W. D., Vice-President, C.N.R., Departments of Land, Colonization, Insurance, Etc.:
Statement re practice followed regarding the issue of Passes, 30.

Teakie, R. B., General Manager, C.G.M.M.:
Transportation rates- on caitie shipments--Lýosýs on voyage Irom Montreal to, Buropean

ports-Total loss last year Outlook for cattle transportation this year, 35.
Increase in expenses naturally follows increase in earninggs-How an increase of about

$7 per ton, in expenses-, is accounteil for, 36.
Statement re the sale of the Canadian ,Settler and cost of reconditioning same-Price

of Settler sold at, 37-38.
Cost of voyage when carrying cattle and general cargo and relative proportion of cost

for cach, considseisd, 38-39.1
Two ships sperially fitted to carry fou cargo ouf eal (le--Sale of one to a Mr. Olsen, 39.
Brisbane office opened in October, 1925-Opening of some means a saving in operation

expenses, 42.
Salary increases to the staff deserving of same account for an increase of $16,735, in

"Management and Office Salaries " accourmt, 42-43.
Increased business accounts for an increase of about $2,500 in " Office Supplies and

Expenses " account, 43.

Thornton, (K.B.E.), Sir Henry W., President, C.N.R. & C.G.M.M., and Chairman of
the Boards:

Proceeds to give a résumé of an analyss showinz the operating expenses of the C.N.R.
System including the Central Vermont Railway, for 1926, as compared with the
expenses for 1925, which are divided into 140 primnary accounts, groueSed under
7 main head.s, 1-5. 4
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States that said operating expenses are cliaasifiod in accordance with the aocountinz
rules of the Canadien Bureau of Statistioe, 1.

Çoniparison of expenses, 1926, 1925, under 7 main heada, 2-5.
ftefera in general ternis to details set forth in the 1404 primary items as shown in the

Annual Report-Consideration of same, 5-26.
Explaina requirements of the Intenstete Commerce Commission re aceouniting rulee in

connection with American lines--Pointa out difference in "Depreciation" account-
ing forras in respect to Cânadiar. and American lines systems, 6-8.

Gives a synopsis of the revenues for 1926 as compared with those for 1925, 8-11.
Allocation of expenses as between freight and pessenger service is not precise-Explains

praotice in railway world, 11.
Would say that losses are greater on transcontinental service than on local and suburban

-Explains advanteges of the last named, 11-12.
Electrification of railways, where profitable, 12.
Diesel electric engine: describes merits and faults of same--Stili in experimen'tal stage

-Engineers of ail raitroada working and study.ing it, 12-13.
Various revenue accounts explained re increases and dlecreaises as for 1926, 1925, 13-18.
Explaîns policy of the company re transportation and opening of offices therefor-New

York ýoffice, 1N-20.
Maintenance of way and structures expensea and maintenance of equipinent expensea,

18-19.
Superintendence and increases ta existing staff-Transportation expenses, 20.
Inipending strike and settiement re demanda of conductors and traininen-Settlement

with other cla.sses of men being considered-Expleins what happened, and position
taken re men on Canadian railways-, after conference wi'th Mr. Beatty, 20-22.

Maritime situation and possible resuIt of decrease in freight rates-Employees' pensinna
and policy of the comnpany respecting saie, 22-26.

Policy of the company in respect to insurance, explained, 24, 25.
Explains investinents in Victory Bonds and certain other bonds, 24.
Examinaition of Annual Report, C.N.R., concluded-Report adopted, 26.
Estimates, C.N.R., considered-Expla'ins variouz- items ahowing increases and decreases

in same-Total net decrease-Estimatea adopted, 27-28.
Explains regulations governing the issue of passes, in reply te questions put by Mr.

MacLaren. M.P.-Particular reference ta passes issued et Moncton, over the
Atlantic Division-Pracitice of aIl railway companies, under certain regulations-
Specified complaint re frequency of passes issued to e persan, 29-30.

Mmnual and trip passes, te whomn given, 30.
Evidence of, in reply ta Questionnaire of Mr. Jenkins, M.P., re Transportation preblein

in Prince Edward Island-Nine prmncipal queitions dealt witb in statemnft given.
31-32.

Canadian Covernment Merchant Marine---Synopsis of Annuel Report showing operating
revenues and operating expenscs; improvement in eernings,; tonnage of exporta and
importa--References te cattie and grain ahipinents. and insurance, 33.

Explains how insurance reserve fund of S1,800,000 hcld in trust for the account, cf the
Merchiant Marine has been built up in the course of the last four yeers, 33,-34.

Accounts re Depreciation on Vessels, Intereat on Governinent Advances, Adjustmnent
-Depert.ment of Marine and Fisheries, Zeserves Written Back, deait with, 34.

Relations with Atlantic Combine are amicably cempetitive, 36.
Sale of tbree vessels: Canadien Gunner, Canadian Harvester and Canadian ,Settler

during the year, 34-M5, 37--38.
Explains " Inter-coastal " and " Uncompleted Voyages," 40-41.
Rate of " Depreciation on Vesselc," chargeaile et four per cent, 43.
Deficit Account and Statemnent of Interest due the Dominion Government, as et 3lst

December, 1926, M345.
Annuel Report and F.stimates, C.OM.M., edopted, 45.

GENERAL SUBJECTS

Accounts re Operating Expenses of C.N.R. System:
Divided into 140 primary, these being grouped unde-r 7 main heads-Analysis of sub-

mitted by the President, ;Sir Henry Therieton, 1-5.

Advertising:
Expenses on account of C.N.R. trafflc, 4, 19.
Advertised everywýhere re sale cf the Canadien Gunner, Can odian II«rvester and Cana-

dian Selier, 34.

Ageneies, Outside:
Expenses on eccount of C.N.R. traffic, 4, 19.
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American Lines, C.N.R. System: See United States Business, Revenue and Expenses.

Atlantic Combine:
Relations with, are ýamicah]y competitive, 36.

Ballast:
Amount of increase for, in OperTating Expenses account. 2.

Bridges, Trestieo and Culverts:
Amount of decrease for, in Operating Expenses account, 2.

Brisbane Office, C.G.M.M.:
Office opened in October, 1925-lIt meane a saving, 42.

British Empire Exhibition:
Reference to, in evidence relating to traffic expenses, 19.

Canadian Goverument Merchant Marine, Limited:
insurance C.G.M.M. f und entered in the Canadian National Railways account, Item

721, and reason theref-or, considered, 24-26.
Policy of insurance-Premiumns chargeable to the fleet-Reserve fund buit up within

the course of the la.st four years, 33-34.
Annual Report, 1 *926, re expenditures and revenues considered, 33-45. Adopted, 45.
Estimaates, conEidered and adopted, 45.
Vessels sold, three, during the year, 34.

Canadian National Railways System-
Analysis of 1926 operating expen!ses accounts. including those of the Central Vermont

Railway, 1-5.
Annual Report comprising expense4s accounts, considered, 5-7, 18-26--Cýompriaing

revenues accounIs, con-sidered, 8-18.
Annual Report of C.N.R., on motion, received and ado-pted, 26.
Estimates considered and adopted, 27-28.
Prince Edward Iland, Division of-Qýucetionnaire of Mr. Jeakins, M.P., and evidence

in reply thereto, 31-32.

"Canadian Settier", "Canadian Gunner" and "Canadian Harvester":
Sale of vessels--Price sold at-Purchasers;, 34.
Particulars of the sale of the Canadian ,Settler-Cost of reconditioning lier, 37-38, 44.

Cattle Shipments:
Nuinher of, handled in 1925 and 1926, 33.
Freight charges ver head-Operating at a loss, 3M.
,Cause of extrn cost when carrying cattie inetead of general cargo, 38--39.

Central Vermont Railway:
Accounts of, included with those of the C.N.R., in 1926, 1, 8.
Freight, revenue of, 10.

Coal:
Owing to strike in Great Britain, C.G.M.M. had to bunker for round trip voyages at

Atlantic ports, thereby using up valuabie cargo space, 33, 36.

Decreases, Principal:
Principal decreases in operating expenses, analysis of, 2, 3, 4.

Defleit Account, C.G.M.M.:
Particulars of, re interest due the Government-Balance of defloit -at 3lst December,

1925-Aggregate defiitý-Deductions--Totai amount due the Governinent, 43-45.

Depreciation Account:
System of accounting in respect bt depreciation conforms with one exception with that

of the Interstate Commerce Comîmission, particulars of which. are considered, 6-7.
Amount written off for depreciation last year in conneetion with American lines, 6.
Depreciation on vessels -acco-unt, showing a decrease, 43.
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Diesel U.oomotfrei.
Intensive ïtudy given to the development of the Diesel eélectric engine--Two large

uits of same have been examined-Now in use in Germany and inu Russia, 12.
Merits of, and f aults pointed out. 13.

Dining and Buffet: See Revenues, C.N.R. Company.

Electrification of Railways:
Greatly xnlisunderstood-Profitable orily where density of tramEc exeeeds tihe capacity

of -a steamn operated railwy-Extremely~ expensive, 12.

Estimates (1927) Canadian Goverument Merchant Marine:
Considered and adopted, 45.

Estimates (1927) Canadian National Railways System:
Considered, 27-28.
Decreaise in intereaý.t on funded and, other debt-Decrease in G.T.P. guaranteed interest

-Increase in sinking fund payments-Deoreaee in equipment payosent of principal
-GadTrupk Railway guaranteed four per cent, no, change-Decrease on new

equipment-Increase on account of general, additions and betterments-Decrease
on aecount of Chat'ait Laurier-Inerease on account of dâseouats on. securities, 27.

Heow estimates of res-ources are arrived at, 28.
Estimotes adopted, 2&

Excess Baggage: Sec Revenues, C.N.R. Company.

Expenses <1926) of C.G.M.M., Operating:
Increase, et, entixelyý due te adjditienal expese ineurred by hausIîng increased business

-Insurance and net resuit, 33-34.
Depreciation en vefflel*-Adàustiment r'e Account of Marine an&~ Fisheries Department

-Reserves Written Back account, credit-Advertising, fer sale of three, vessels--
Amount of incresse ini expense, $256,O4% accoiuieà for, ini msny ways, 34-W7.

Expenses in connection with the Canadien Setter, 37"e3.
Material ad&tional expense eausect onx aceaunt of coal strike wheu vessels were eblied

te bunker for round trip> voyages, 36.
Out-of-peeket coats when carrying cattie, 38-39.
Total opcrating expense* for ]M9 as, compomed with thoee of 1W6&, 42.
Miscellaneous wharf expenses-Operation osf agencies--New office -at Briàbane-Man-

agenset and, offce sainries-Rent,, taxes, and, insurance, travelling, printing and
stationery, advertising, postages, cales snd telegrams, -miscella-neous, 42-43.

Expenses <1926) of C.N.R. Company, OperaWg-.
TabulMed s-tatemnent of, grouped und.er geven, miain heade shewing oomparieon of

expenses a& for L9O6 a»4 l2, 2.
Details of, as shown in Annual Report, pages 17 te 20, and set out to show respective

mecreases and decreases under caoh main head, viz., Maintenance of W-ay aud
Structures, etc., 2-6.

Further details of expenses for purposes of comparison, iuto Employees' Compensation
and Wages item. sud Material and MiscellanpouQ item, 192' sand 1925, 2.

Expenses of purely United States business was eighty-two and n fraction per cent Of
the grose proceeds, 8.

f hrtker consideration. el expenses under the follewinz headîags: Maintenance of Way
snd Structure@-IXfaintenance of Equipment-Traffle, inclroding superintendence,
outaide agencies, advertising, salaries, 18-19.

Transportation, including wages, fuel,, engine house, 20-23.
MÊisMelaneous-Genera. inchding pensio n al -rem-ies-nfiac-Ding and Sleeping

Car Service, 23--26.

Fe4»t Carwsr
Percestagm osf, servîeealble, 1926, 1925,, showing improvemoeyrt, 3'.
Repairs of, bhowing amount of inerease in exvenses9 account, 3.
Retirements of, showiug decrease of amount. 3.

Fneigb* Ftu4mm
1tateg chargeci fiw eattite, from. Mentreal, Quelbec or St. John, 35.
Rate reduction voluntarily put en--Tendeney. of' freight rates has been downward, 36.
Decrease of f reight rates ou the Maritime division as per intent of legisiation, con-

sidered, 23.
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Freiglit Receipte:
Item No. 101 showing totals for 1926 and 1925, 9.
mount of revenue accrued on freight traffie originating west of the Lakes or Western

Region-American business-Central Region-Atiantie Region-Grand Trunk
Western Lîne--Duluth and Winmipeg-Central Vermont, 9-10, 18.

Freiglit Revenue, Payments, Etc., C.G.M.M.:ý
Bulk of freight charges is payable in ad'vance-Total revenue-Total accounts Receiv-

ab:le comprising Outstanding Freight, and Agents' accounts-Miight give a line of
credit to a large firmn doiing considerable business, 41-42.

Fuel:-
For yard and train loccmotives, deereases in operating expenses, 4.

Grain Elevators: reeus12,19-xpaaingenrarng evuen
Item 139, showing rvne,12,12-Epaaingvnrgrigrvnei

1926, 17.

Grain lrafil Revenue:
Revenue a.ccrued frora shipments of grain ea8t and west bound, originating in the

Western Region, 18.
Increase of grain, and other rates in shipments from Canadian ports, 3C3.

Grand Trunk Western Division, C.N.R.:
Arnount of revenue accrued including also amount of the D.W. & P., 10.

Increases and Deereases, Principal:
Varlous increases; and decreases set f ort~h in analysis of Operating Expensws accounts,

2, 3, 4, 5.

Insurance:
Policy of 'the C.N.ýR. Company regarding insurance, 24.
How Insurance fund of $8,0M,000 was bulît up, 24, 25.
Item including C.G.M.M. insurance f und in the Canadian National Railways fund,

explained, 24-26, 33-34.

Inter-Coastal Freighte:
Explanation of, as between two pointa in Canada, also via Pasnama canal from Mari-

time ports to British Columbia ports, 40.

Interstate Commerce Commission:
Ita systema of aceuntlng described, requiring more det.ail in connection with deprecia-

tion for rolling stock ecpuipmenît entries in Primary Aceount, 6.
Order from, li August. 1926, re revenue from the Wabash, 18.

Investinents:
tnsurance fujid iiavested in Victory Bonds, Detroit aind Sh~ore LUne Bonds, and Pontiac,

Oxfod and Northern Bonds--Amount invested, 24.

Jenkins (M.P.)., R. IL-.
Questions relating to fhe Prine Edward Island division of the C.N.R., and Sir Rlenry

Thornton's answers thereto. 31-32. Sec also Appendix to Evidence, p. 45.

Loomotves,:
Perceutage of, serviceable in 1926, 1925, showing improvement--Steam Locomotive

Retirements account, &howing amount of decrease, 3.

MacLaren (MV.P.), M.:
Questions -relating to the ii;suing9 of passes, and'Sir Henry Thornton's answers thereto,

29-3W.

Maintenance of Way and Structures:
Primary accounts, number of, 1.
Compariêon of expenses, 1926, 1925, under this bead as set out in the Analysis, 2--&.
Amount of increaffe for 1926ý over that of M9~ due to ties, ballast, tracklaying and

aurfacing, station and office buildings, and removîng snow, &and and ice, 3, 18-19.
Decreases noted in roadway maintenance, bridges, tresties and culverts, shops and

engine houses, 3, 19.
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Maintenance of Equipment:
Primary accounts, number of, 1.
Comparison of expenses, 1926, 1925, under this head as set out in the Analysis, 2-3.
Increases and decreases of, set forth under primary aceounts headings, 3.
Factors affecting mauintenance of equi-pment expenses, 4, 19.

Maritime Division (Atlantic Region), C.N.R.:
Amount of revenue from traffie, etc., 10, Il.
Decreas-e in the f-reight rate that has been given to, 22-23.
How protection in respect to pensions is given to Intercolonial and Prince Edward

Island employees, 23-24.

Miscellaneous:
Prima-y accounts, number of, 1.
Comparison of expenses, 1926, 1925, 2-3, 5, 23.

New York Office, C.N.R.:
Néw office opened in 1925 on Fifth avenue-Amnount of rental-What the -ob.iect was

in opening this office in respeot to transportation, immigration and colonîzation,

Passenger Account:
Item 102, showing revenue, 1926, 1925, increase of about $1,400MO 11.
Loss estimated on passenger traffic-No precise formula in allocating the expenses

charged against passenger traffic, 11.
Profitable, and inprofitable business in passenger service, considered, as between

submrban, local and transcontinental traffic, 11-12.

Passenger Rates:
It is admitted that passenger rates are now higlier than they were before the war-

Quite i-respective of what passenger rates- should be there îa a lirait beyond which
one caiinot go, 13.

Passe@s:
Regulations governing the issuing of passes explained, 29-30.

Pensions and Pensioners.
Increase set out under main heading " General " prqctically entirely due to an increase

in Account No. 457-Pensions, 5.
Number of pensioners, 1925, 1926--Provden-t Fund of the In'tercolonial and Prince

Edward Island Railw-ay insufficient te meet cur-ent obligations-Amounts impie-
mented by company in 1926, 1925, 5.

Procedure followed in respect to pensions-A Bill will eventually be brouglit before
the House which will correct and sirnplify the whole of the Pension system-Pen-
sioners are protected although they are nlot on the pension roll, 23-24.

Prince Edward Island Railway:
Series of questions put by Mr-. Jenkins, M.P., end answers therete by Sir Henry Thorn-

ton, 31-W2. See ýalso appendix to, the evidence et page 45.

Provident Fond, I.C.R. & P.E.I. Railways: Sec "Pensions and Pensioners."

Pullman Cars:
Operated when running int-o the United States-Expect to, take them off by -the middle

of summer or early autumn-Procedure foflowed in keeping Pullman car accounts, 14.

Pullman Company Contract:
How earnings are divided in accordance with contract entered into-The 1916 eontract

between the Grand Trunk Railway and the Pullman Company, 15.

Rails:
A larzer program of rail relaying in 1926 w-as one of thec factors which increffsed the

maintenance-of-way and structures expenses, 3.

Regions. Atlantic. Central and Western, C.N.R.-
Revenues of C.N.R. operations according to Atlantic, Central and Western Regions, 10.
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Repairs and Retirements:
Principal increases and decreases for repairs and retirements set forth in respect to freight

train cars, passenger cars, motor car equipment, steam locomotives and work equip-
ment, 3, 19.

Report of C.N.R. Company, Annual:
An analysis of the Annuýal Report of the Canadian National Railways Company, 1926,

comprising 140 prirnary expense accounts; also Revenue accounts. oonsidered, 1-26.
Report adopted, 26.

Report of C.G.M.M., Limited, Annual:
A synopsis of the Annual Report of the Canadian Government Mercbant Marine,

Limited, showing operating revenues and expenses for the year 1926, considered,
W3-45.

Report adopted, 45.

Reports of the Committee:
First report recommending that leave be given the C'ommittee to print their minutes

of proceedings and the evidence taken by tbem, xii.
Second report recominending that leave be given the Committee to sit wbile the Huse

is in session, xii.
Third and Final report comprising list of names of persons who gave evidence, also

findings and recommendations of the Conimittee, xii-xiiu.

Revenues, C.N.R. Systcm:
Gross revenues for 19,26, 1925, Showing increase-Revenue of purely United States

business-Revenue of business that crosses the border, either from the Ulnited States
to Canada or from Canada to the Unitedi States, 8-9.

Freight receipts. 9-11.
Pa.ssenger receipts, 11-12.
Excess bagg-age rceipts, 13.
Sleeping car receipts, 14.
Mail, express, other passenger trains, milk, receipts, 15.
Switching, Special service train, Other freigbt train. Water transfers-Passengers, Water

transfers-Vebicles and live Stock, Dining and buffet, restaurant, station, Train and
boat privileges, parcel room, storage-freight, receiptis, 16.

Storage-baggage, demurrage, telegrapb and telephones, grain elevators, power, rents of
buildings and other property, nîLscellancous including Victoria bridge and Inter-
national bridge toill, Joint facilîty--credit, 17.

Joint faciity-debit, 18.

Revenues, C.C.M.M., Ljmited:
Opera-ting revenu-es increased by $1,115,000, 33.
Various factors given sbowiwg improvements, 33-41.
Total revenues, 1926. 1925, 42.
Proceeds from the sale of tbree vesSels, 34.

Roadway Maintenance:
Decrease in expenses, 1926, $100,337, 2.
Expense inývolved in 1925 not recurring in 1926, 3.

Shops and Engine Houses:
flecreasc' in expense, 1926, $49,855.

Sleeping Cars:
Revenue of in 1826 as compared with that of 192, sbowing increase-Present situation

of company re ownership of Sleeping cars, 14, 15.

Snow, Sand and Ice, Removing:
Increase of expense for 1926, 2.
Wea-tber conditions in tbe early montbs ùf 1926 on tbe Atlantic Region, cause of

increase, 3.

Station and Office Buildings:
Amount of increase in expense account, 2.
The increase in station and office building ex-oenses was ca:used by the nPcessity of

heavy repaîrs at Halifax, Winnipeg and Prince Rupert, 3.
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Sirike, Impending:
Settled witb the conduotors and tramen ,re wage increse, wlikh took effect on lst

December, 1926-Negotiations n.ow on ini respect to al otlier clasie9, 20-22.

Strike in Great Britain, Coal Mines.
Obliged to bunker coal for round trip voyages, hence material. additional. expense, 33, 36.

Superintendence:-
Amount of increase of expense, 3.
Explanation of increase of expense re superintendence given, 19.

Telegraph and Telephones:
Amount of revenue, 1926, 1925, 17.

Tics:
Amount of increase in expense for ties, 2.
Over one million more ýties installedl in 1926 than in 1925, 3.
Amount of inerease alqo due to changes in price of materials, as well as quantity used, 3.

Toils:
Increase of revenue under "Miscel'lsneous " for 1926, partly due to an increase in the

Victoria bridge and Intcrnational bridge tolls, 17.

Tonnage~:
Number of tons of freiglit hand-led by the C.G.M.M. for expert and import in 19,26,

1925, 36.

Traffic:
Traffie expenses, 1926, 1925, 2, 4.
Items of expense in, connection with traffic further conisidered, 19.
Traffie receipts considered, 9-12.

Tracklaying and Surfacing:
Amount of increase in expense for, 2.
Increase of expense was due t-o installation of additional ties, 3, 19.

Transportation:
Number of primary accounts relating to, 1.
Expenses for 1926, 1925 shown in analysis, 2.
Statement of increases -and decreases for various accounts under main head, 4.
Expenses further considered in evidence given, 20-23.

United States Business:
Gross revenue accrued from purely American business, 8.
Revenue accrued from international business having to cross the border, 9.
Estimated profit. 8.
Furbher details of American business considered, 9-40.

Vessels, Sale of :
Particulars of the sale of the Canadian Gunner, Canadian Harvester and Canadian

.Settler, 34.
Further particulars re sale of the Canadian Settler, 37-38.

Victory Bonds, lnvestments i: See "Investmnents", 24.

Voyages, Uncompleted:
Item "Balances of Une.ompleted Voyages " explained, 41.

Wabash Section:
Change of ýaccounting pmectice relative to this joint revenue account to conformi with.

order of the Interstate 'Commerce Commission. See pages 17-18 at Items 151, 152.

Wages, Employees' Compensation:
Items set forth showing derease or increase, 1926, 1925, 2, 4.

Wages re Transportation Expenses:
Inerease $19W0,783 under item "Tranýsportation" mostly absorbed in, wages to train

enginenlen, yardmasters and yard clerks, yard conductors and brakemen, yard
enginemen and trainen, 20.

Wage Situation re Inipendîng Strike: See "Strike, Impending", 20-22.
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SPECIAL COMMITTEE

MEMBERS OF COMMITTEE FOR HOUSE OF GOMMONS

HAY, Mr. F. WELLINGTON, Chairman

and Messieurs
Stewart, Hon. Charles (Edmon-

ton West),
McPherson, E. A.,
Bennett, Hon. R. B.,

Morin, L. S. R. (St. Hyacinthe-
Rouville),

Stevens, Hon. H. H.,
Boys, W. A.

WALTER HILL,
Clerk of the Committee for the Commons.

MEMBERS OF COMMITTEE FOR THE SENATE

Hon. IIrwirrr BOsTOCK, Chairman
(Speaker of the Senate)

and Hon. Senators:
Belcourt, N. A.,
Barnard, G. H.,
Green, R. F.,

Murphy, Chas.,
Taylor, J. D.,
McLennan, J. S

A. H. HINDS,
Clerk of the Committee for the Senate.



CLAIMS 0F THE ALLIED INDIAN TRIBES, B.C.

ORDER 0F REFERENCE

HuSE 0F ýCOMMONS,

OTrAwA, March 8, 1927.

Resolved,--That a Special Committee of this House consisting of Messrs.
Stewart (Edmonton West), llay, MePherson, Morin (St. Hyacinthe-Rouvilýle),
Stevens, Bennett, and Boys, be appointed to meet with a similar Special Com-
mittee of the Senate, if such Committee be appointed, to inquire7 into the dlaims
of the Allied Indian Tribes of British Columbia as set f orth in their petition sub-
mitted to Parliament in June, 19-96; and that such Committee have power to
send for persons, papers and records, and to report from time to time by bill
or otherwise.

Attest.
ARTHUR BEAUCHESNE,

Cle'rl of the House.

THURSDAY, March 24, 1927.

Ordered,-That 500 copies in English and 200 copies in French of evidenýce
to be taken by the said Committee, and of papers and records to be incorpor-
ated with sueh evidence, be printed, and that Rule 74 be suspended in relation
thereto.

Attest.
ARTHUR BEAUCHESNE,

Clerk of the House.

THUISDAY, March 31, 1927.

Ordered,-That the said Committee have leave to sit while the Huse is
sitting.
Attest.

ARTHUR BEAUCHESNE,
ClerIc of the Hou-se.

REPORTS OF THE COMMITTEES
F1RST REPORT

TtIEsDAY, March 22, 1927.

The Special Committee appointed to inquire into the dlaims of the Allied
Indian tribes of British Colum'bia, beg leave to present the following as their
First Report:-

Your Committee recommend that 500 copies in Englîsh and 200 copies in
French of evidence to be taken, and of papers and records to, be incorporated
with such evidence, be printed, and that Rule 74 be suspended in relation
thereto.

Ail which is respectfully submitted.
F. W. HAY,

Chairman.

Note.-This Report was concurred in on 24th Mardi. See Journals, p. 393.
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SECOND AND FINAL REPORT

MONDAY, April 11, 1927.

The Special Committees of the Senate and House of Commons appointed
to inquire into the dlaims of the Allied Indian Tribes of British Columbia, as
set forth in their Petition presented to Parliament in June, 1926, beg to submit
their Second and Final Report:-

The Committees convened on March 22nd, 1927, and held prolonged sittings
on March 3Oth, 1927, Mardi 3lst, 1927, April 4th, 1927, April 5th, 1927, and
April 6th, 1927, at which the following witnesses were examined:-

Mr. Duncan C. Scott, Deputy Superintendent General of Inýdian Affairs;
W. E. Ditchburn, Indian Commissioner for British Columbia;
Mr. W. A. Found, Director of Fisheries;
Mr. John Chisholm, Assistant Deputy Minister of Justice;
Andrew Pauli, Secretary of the Allied Indian Tribes of Brîih Columbia;
Chîef John Chullihitza, of the Nicola Valley Indian Tribes of British

Columbia;
Rev. P. R. Kelly, Chaîrman of the Execrntive Committce of the Allied Indian

Tribes of British Columbia;
Chief Basil David, of the Bonaparte Indian Tribe of British Columbia.

In addition to the foregoing witnesses, there also appeared the following
Counsel who addressed the Committee on behaif of their respective clients,
viz:

A. E. O'Meara, Counsel for the Allied Indian Tribes 'of British Columbia;
A. D. Mclntyre, Counsel for the Indian Tribes of the Interior of British

Columbia.

As Interpreters for Chief John Chillihitza and Chief Basil David, there were
also present:-

iNrs. Julian Williams and Mr. William Pierrish.

The evidence of the witnesses and the arguments of Counsel were taken
down in shorthand and printed from day to day. The printed reports of such
evidence andc arguments also contain the documents and other material in writ-
ing that were submitted to your Committee by the witnesses and the Counsel
who appeared before it.

It is thought proper to refer to the manner in which the evidence given by
the Rev. P. R. Kelly, Mr. Andrew Paull, Chief Chillihitza and Chief Basil David,
the Indian witnesses was presented. The Chiefs spoke through their inter-
preters, who translated the Indian language into En-glish in a competent way.
The evidence of Messrs. Kelly and Vaull was gîven in idiomnatic English, clearly
and forcibly expressed, and both the matter of their evidence and the manner
of presentation were highly acceptable to your Committee. Due praise should
be accorded them, and the Indian members of their organization can be assured
of the competent and thorough fashion in which they dealt with the case.

It may be informative to include here a brief historical retrospeet which
will summarize the facts regarding the occupation of the country now known as
British Columbia.

On Maroi 29th, 1778, the f amous explorer Captain Cook with two ships
(the Resolution and the Discovery) arrived at Hope Bay near Nootka, which
place lie made lis headquarters and made repairs, and from which point he
explored the coast northward until lie struck the Arctic ice. The next year
Captain Clerke who had accompanied Captain Cook returned. Vo the coast from
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the Sandwich Islands where the vessels had winteTeéd and coatinued the
explorations, again making Nootka his headquarters. During the next ten years
many ships visited the coast exploring and trading. In 1788 .Captain John
Meares formed an extensive establishment at Nootka, and in 1799 two Spanish.
warships under Don Stephen Joseph Martinez appeared at Nootka and seized
Captain Mcarcs' buildings and settiement and sbips, one of whicb named the
Northwest American was the first boat to be built on the Pacifie Coast. As a
resuit of this action on the part of the Spaniards the British Governinent
demanded of Spain restitution of Nootka and the territory tributary thereto,
together with an indemnity for losses sustained. For a time Spain resisted this
demand and it appeared that war would be the resuit, but finally a settiement was
made by Articles of Convention of October 28th, 1790. The Articles of Convention
were to be given effeet to at Nootka, and Spain despatched Don Juan Francisco
de la Bodega y Quadra while Britain entrusted ber interest to Captain George
Vancouver with instructions that he should explore the coast and then go to
Nootka " to be put in possession of the buildings, districts or parcels of land
which were occupied by His Majesty'is subjeets in the month of April, 1789,
agreeable to, the first article of the late Convention.". These two parties met
finally at Nootka but failed to agree as to the area that was to be delivered. Cap-
tain Vancouver insisted upon all of that area in which trading and exploration
had been carried on by the British, while the Spaniards desired to restrict the
area ceded to Nootka. During the following year Captain Vancouver continued
his explorations to Alaska and the following year concluded his survey of the
whole coast. Finally on March 28, 1795, the actual surrendering of the country
was made to Lieut. Thomas Pierce of the Royal Marines by Brig.-General Alva
and Lieut. Cosme Bertodano. The whole area claimed by Captain Vancouver
was included in the transfer; which area included. that territory later known as
the State of Washington and the whole coast of British Columbia northward to
the Alaskan boundary.

Two other explorers Simon Fraser and Alexander Mackenzie explored por-
tions of interior British Columbia approaching from east of the Rocky Moun-
tains. In each case these well known explorers mistook what was later called
the Fraser River for the upper reaches of the Columbia River, indicating that
it was considered at that early time, that the British territory east of the moun-
tains extended through to the mouth of the Columbia River.

In 1846, the boundary line between Canada and the United States was fixed
at the 49th parallel by Great Britain and the United States after a period of
warm dispute. Prior to this the British had claimed the territory now known
as the States of Washington and Oregon, and it will be noted that these two
Governments at that time recognized that one or the other were in possession
of this area and by Treaty between the two countries fixed the boundary line.

Later a dispute arose as to whether or not San Juan Island was in British
territory or American. The British Governmnent maintained their riglit tW tlis
Island as evidenced by a despatch from Lord Russell to Lord Lyon, British
Minister at Washington, dated Augulst 24thj, 185W, in which he said:

Her Majesty's Government must therefore under any circumstances
maintain the riglit of the British -Crown to the Island of San Juan.

Again indicating that the land was viewed as belonging to the Crown. This
dispute was finally settled hy reference to the Emperor of Germany for arbitra-
tion in favour of the United States on October 21st, 1872.

In 1858 Lord Lytton wrote Governor Douglas instructions regarding the
attitude of the British Government towards the Colony, and used the following

langage:You will keep steadily in view that it is the desire of this country
thait representative institutions and self-government should prevail in
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British Co1umbia.ý . A party of Royal Engineers will be despatched
to the Colony immediately. It will devolve upon themn to survey those
parts of the country which may be considered most suitable for settie-
ment, to mark out allotments of land for public purposes, etc.

Here again is evidence of the recognition of the lands as belonging bo the Crown.
And the record shows that the land was surveyed and lots were later put on
sale.

It is claimed that no conquest had ever been made of the territory of
British Columbia. The historic records would seem bo indicate that this is not
accurate. Ail the posts of the Hudson's Bay Company were fortificd and the
officers and servants of the Company were prepared bo resist hostile attacks.
When a fort was established at Victoria a band of Cowichan Indians under
Chief Tzouhalen seized and slaughtered several animais belonging bo the whites.
The official in charge, Roderick Finlayson, demanded payment for the animais,
which was peremptorily refused. In this action Chief Tzouhalen was upheld
by Chief Tsilatchach of the Songhees and the Indians attacked. the fort, but
were easily o>ver-awed by artîllery and later approached the fort bo sue for
peace. The historie records contain numerous other like references. The fort
just mentioned was established at Victoria in 1848, and in 1849 Vancouver was
made a Crown Colony. British Columbia (the mainland and Queen Charlotte
Islands) was made a Crown Colony in 1858, and the two colonies were united
in 1866. British Columbia entered Confederation on the 20th July, 1871.

The Report of your Committee on the proceedings may now be resumed.
Mi the outset it was made evident that the Indians were not in agreement

as to the, nature of their dlaims. For instance, the representatives of thc Indian
Tribes in the interior of British Columbia did not make any dlaim bo any land
of the Province based on an oboriginal titlc. The representatives of the Allied
Indian tribes, on the other hand, practically rested their whole case upon an
alleged aboriginal title through which they claimed about 251,000 square miles
out of a total area of approximately 355,8,55 square miles in the Province of
British Columbia. This latter point, for the sake of convenience, should be
first deait with, as its elimination will lJeave for consideration only matters in
regard bo which the Indians of British Columbia may be said bo have a commun
interest.

Early in the proceedings it developed that the aboriginal title claimed was
first presented as a legal dlaim against the Crown about fifteen years ago. The
dlaim then began to take form as one which should be satisfied by a treaty or
agreement with the Indians in which conditions and terms put forward by themn
or on their behaîf must be considered and agreed upon before a cession of the
alleged title would be granted. Tradition forms so large a part of Indian men-
tality that if in pre-Confederation days the Indians consideredi they had an
aboriginal title bo the lands of the Province, there would have been tribal records
of such being transmitted from father bo son, either by word of mouth or in
sorne other customary way. But nothing of the kind was shown to exist. On
the contrary the evidence of Mr. Kelly goes bo confirm the view that the Indians
were consenting parties to the whole policy of the governmcnt both as to reserves
and other benefits which they aecepted for years without demur. (See page
224 for Mr. Kelly's evidence, also the dispatch of Mr. Pearse at page 227 bo be
found in full in a dispatch dated 2lst October, 1868,.from B. W. Pearse to the
Chief Commissioner of Lands and Works in the Sessional paper of British
Columbia 1876, 39 Vie. page 212-13). The fact was admitted that it was not
until about fifteen years ago that aboriginal title was first put forward as a
formal legal dlaim by those who ever since have made it a bone of contention
and by some a source of livelihood as well.

The Committee note with regret the existence of agitation, not only in
British Columbia, but with Indians in other parts of the Dominion, which
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agitation may be called mischievous, by which the Indians are deceived and led
to expect benefits from claims more or less fictitious. Such agitation, often carried
on by designing white men, is to be deplored, and should be discountenanced, as
the Government of the country is at all times ready to protect the interests of
the Indians and to redress real grievances where such are shown to exist.

Counsel representing the Allied Indian Tribes continued to press the
aboriginal title claim upon the attention of successive Governments, and although
the Government was willing to litigate the claim, Counsel for the Indians sought
permission to take the matter direct to the Imperial Privy Council, instead of
first submitting it for judicial decision to the Courts of Canada. This the Gov-
ernment very properly declined to do; but at the same time it made a generous
offer to the Indians, the details of which are embodied in an Order in Council
passed on June 20th, 1914. The full text of this Order in Council was as
follows:-

P.C. 751
Privy Council

Canada

Certified Copy of a Report of the Committee of the Privy Council, approved
by His Royal Highness the Governor General on the 20th June, 1914.

The Committee of the Privy Council have had before them a Report from
the Superintendent General of Indian Affairs, dated 1lth March, 1914, sub-
mitting the accompanying memorandum from the Deputy Superintendent
General of Indian Affairs upon the Indian claim to the lands of the Province of
British Columbia, in which he concurs.

The Committee, on the recommendation of the Superintendent General of
Indian Affairs, advise that the claim be referred to the Exchequer Court of Canada
with the right of appeal to the Privy Council under the following conditions:-

1. The Indians of British Columbia shall, by their Chiefs or representatives,
in a binding way, agree, if the Court, or on appeal, the Privy Council,
decides that they have a title to lands of the Province to surrender such
title receiving from the Dominion benefits to be granted for extinguish-
ment of title in accordance with past usage of the Crown in satisfying
the Indian claim to unsurrendered territories, and to accept the finding
of the Royal Commission on Indian Affairs in British Columbia as
approved by the Governments of the Dominion and the Province as
a full allotment of Reserve lands to be administered for their benefit
as part of the compensation.

2. That the Province of British Columbia by granting the said reserves as
approved shall be held to have satisfied all claims of the Indians against
the Province. That the remaining considerations shall be provided
and the cost thereof borne by the Government of the Dominion of
Canada.

3. That the Government of British Columbia shall be represented by
counsel, that the Indians shall be represented by counsel nominated
and paid by the Dominion.

4. That, in the event of the Court or the Privy Council deciding that the
Indians 'have no title in the lands of the Province of British Columbia,
the policy of the Dominion towards the Indians shall be governed by
consideration of their interests and future development.

All which is respectfully submitted for approval.
RODOLPHE BOUDREAU,

Clerk of the Privy Council.
The Honourable

The Superintendent General
of Indian Affairs.
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Instead of accepting the otTer thus made by the Government, itwas rejected
and Counsel for the Indians kept up a correspondence on irrelevant issues with
tâhe then Minister of Justice until the latter gentleman ended the controversy
with the following letter:

OTTAWA, l4th November, 1914.
The Reverend ARTHJR E. O'MEARA, B.A.,

Prince George Hotel,
Toronto, Ont.

Smx: It is in my view unnecessary to, correct the narrative of your
letter of the 26th ultimo, because except in the two points which I arn
going to mention it is immaterial to any question now under considera-
tion.

As to your remark that it has always been the view of those advising
the Nishgas that the only feasible method of securing a judicial deter-
mination of the rights of the Indians of British Columbia is that of bring-
ing their dlaims directly before His Majesty's Privy Council, I wish you
would realize and endeavour to convince those whoni you describe as
advising the Nishgas that this Government has no power or authority
to refer a question directly to Hîs Majesty's Privy Council; that the
only constitutional method of obtaining the judicial view of His Majesty
in Councîl relating to a question limited to the internai affairs of Canada
is by appeal from the local tribunals, and that His Royal Highness'
Government is deterrnined for these reasons, which have been so, often
explained to you and those whorn you profess to represent, not to advise
or concur in any proceedýings looking to a decision in which the courts
of the Dominion shall not have an opportunity to express their views.
If, therefore, it be possible for me to make anýy staternent here which
can consistently with the amenities of officiai correspondence, irnpress
you wi 'th the futility of urging upon this governrnent a reference direct
to the Judicial Comrnittee, I beg of you to, consider that statement
incorporated in this letter.

The policy of the Governrnent with regard to the British Columbia
Indian question is very clearly stated in the Order in Council of 2Oth
June last, and you should, 1 think, be able to perceive that one of the
conditions upon whîch further progress may be made is that the Indians
shahl corne under the obligation dcfined by the first enumeration of the
Order in Council. You state that the Order in Council lias been brought
before the Nishgas Indians, and that they will, as soon as possible, place
their answer before the Government. So far it is well, but when you
say that it is clearly necessary that before the Nishgas 'answer they
should be advised regarding the procedure of the courts, and dernand
to be informed under the authority of what enactrnent. and for what
reasons a refereince to the Exdhequer, Court is proposed, I rnay I trust
be permitted to observe that the essential question for consideration of
the Nishgas is as to whether, if their alleged titie be upheld by the
ultimate tribunal, they are willing to surrender that titie in consideration
of benefits to be granted in extinguishment according to the ancient
usage of the Crown. I think it would be a pity that this question should
be obscured or involved in the difficulties which you have encountered
about the procedure, and which the Indians presumably would be no
better able to understand. Therefore, without rnaking any further
attempt to explain the procedure which perhaps could flot succeed within
the compass of an ordinary letter, I suggest that the Indians should be
permitted to consicler 'the question in which they are really interested
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as subniitted by the Order in Council. It is unlikely 1 should think that
the Indians would concern themselves with procedure. They have I
in1agine sufficient discernment to perceive, if their deliberations be flot
i4fluenced to, the contrary. that a question of procedure is at present
qjiite irrelevant; but if necessary you may unhesitatingly assure them
tl ttno point of procedure wiIl be permitted to prejudice a decision upon
týe merits of the case, and that the Goverrment wiIl see toi it that the
piocecdings are brought and conducted in such a manner as to provide
fjr the admission of ail the facts and arguments which are inaterial. to
tlje controversy.

May I he allowed to add that ini view of what I have stated 1 do
not propose Vo consider the procedure until it is ascertained that the
Id 4i[ians have acquiesced in the conditions of the Order in Council. which
arýýpreliminary to any proceaure.

I have the honour Vo be,
Sir,

Your obedient servant,

('Sgd.) C. J. DOHF«RTY,
Minister of Justice.

The Indians did flot acquiesce in the conditions of the Order in Council as
the Riglit Honourabie C. J. Doherty informed their Counsel in the above letter
they wo'uld have Vo do before he would move farther in the matter. Con-
sequently, there was no further action on the part of the Dominion Government.

A change of tactics was adopted in Jâme, 1926. In that month a Petition
embodyipg the Indian claims, based on aboriginal tîtie, was presented to Parlia-
mnt. 'IThe session thcn in progress terminated abruptiy and action on the
Petition was noV taiken until the present session, when the Petition in question
was refer red to your Committee for enquiry an 'd report.

Iaviýng given full and czireful consideration to, ail that was adduced before
3,xut Coiûmittee, it is the unanimous opinion of the members thereof that the
petitioniers have not established any dlaim to the lands of British Columbia
haýed on aboriginal or other titie, and titat the position taken by the Government
ini j14,ýas evidenced by the Order in Concil and Mr. Doherty's letter above
([uoted, afforded the Indians full opporiumity to, put their claim Vo the test. As
they have declined Vo, do sýo, it is the f urthier opinion of your Committee that
the matter should now be regarded as finally closed.

Whie making this declaration the Committee wish to state that they are
impresseci by the fact that the Indians of British Columbia receive benefits
whih arc in excess of those granted by Treaty to, Indians in other parts of
Caniada. Comparison of these expenditurcs wili be found in the statements
made by the Deputy Superintendýent Generai of Indian Affairs at pages 15-17
of the j~nted evidence. It is clear,,thât, they are noV discriminated against;

t{atesrves have been set aside for them sufficient for their needs, and that
theob1i'ation for Indians assumed by the Dominion when British Columbia
entered %onfederation has been generousiy fulfilled. In considering the extent
of this bounty the Committee could not f ail Vo notice from facts submitted that
it had exceeded the benefits which appertain to, Indian treaties, and that if a
treaty bad been made, the compensation wouid have been in comparison much
'less than, the generous expenditures now made on behaif of the Indians in British
Columbia, which amounted to $690,683 in 1925-26.

As it was the desire of your Committee to give the very fuliest and most
sympathetie consîderation to ail the dlaims of the Indians and to give Vhem
every opportunity to state any existing hardships or disabilities under which
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they suffered as residents of the province owing to their native blood, ail
branches of the subject were deait with, and by questioning the witnesses and
eliciting information f rom departmental officers, the Committee came int pos-
session of a mass of interesting f acts in connection with the various' subjets
under review. The Indians, in claiming aboriginal titie, had given to the pro-
vincial government under date of November l2th, 1919, an exhaustive staleinent
of the case, and set forth " conditions proposed as a basis of settiement." tt is
thought to be hîghly desirable that your Committee should review these dlaims
and inform Parliament of the extent te which the conditions are at present
being met, and te make reemmendations that. would tend to meet the conditions
proposed, where týhey are not already provided for.. It is theught well to deal
with these conditions under each sub-head in sequence as shown at page 36 of the
Proceedings, and to make such remarks as are relevant:

(1) That the Proclamation issued by King George 111 in the! year
1763 and the Report presented by the Minister of Justice in ithe year
1875 be accepted by the two Governmenls and established as the main
basis of ail dealings and ail adjustments of Indian land riglits and other
rights whieh shall be made.

The subjecl malter of the foregoing paragraph has already been deait
with by your Committee in Iheir Finding contained in the recomnmendation
hereinhefore made, and further comment thereon is, therefore, unnecqssary,,

(2) That it be conced-ed Ihat each Tribe for whose use arnd ben,ýfit
land is set aside (under Article 13 of the 'Terms of Union') acqui1res there-
by a full, permanent and beneficial title te the land se set aside together
wilh ail natural reseurces pertaining therelo; and that Section 127 of the
Land Act of British Columbia be amended accerdingly.

(5) That adequale additional lands be set aside and that le this end
a per capila standard of 160 acres of average agricultural land having in
case of lands silualed within the dry bell a supply of water suffcient for
irrigation, be established. By the word " standard," we mean not a hrd
and f ast rule, but a general estimale te be used as a guide, and te be
applied in a reasonable way te the aclual requirements of each ttibe.

(6) That in sections of the Province in case of which thechairacter
of avaîlable land and the conditions prevailing make it impossible or
undesirabie le carry eut fully or at ail thal standard, the Indian Tribes
concerned he compensated for such deficiency by grazing lands, by
timber lands, by hunling lands or olherwise, as the particular characler
and conditions of each such section may require.

(7) That ail existing inequalities in respect te both acreage and
value beitween lands set aside for the varieus Tribes be adjusted.

(8) Thal for the purpose of enablîng the two Governments te set
aside adequate additional lanids aad, adjust ail inequalilies there be
eslablished a system of obtaining lands including compulsorv purchase,
similar te that which is being carried out by the Land Settiement Board
of British Columbia.

It may be statcd at once Ihat the reserves as sct apart under Article 13 ef
the "Terms of Union" and allotled in the report of the Royal Commission on
Indian Affairs for the Province of British Columbia, and confirmed by both ëDv-
ernments, are held by the Demninien in trust for the full and permanent beneficial
interest of the Indians, and ail such natural resources pertaining thereto as are
the preperty of the Indians. lb is interesting te note the progressive steýs which
have been taken hy the lwo interested governments in the setîlement of the claltns
cf the Indians for reserve lands. Such reserves as were set apart before Con-
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f ederation were granted by the Colonial Government. After Confederation, the
lands reserved were set apart by a Joint Reserve Commission, and later by a
single*Commissioner, and the reserves so, set apart were scheduled by the prov-
ince and appropriated as Indian reserves. As it was desirable to further and
complete this work, and to allot reserves in territories. which were becoming
settled and in which it might be difficuit later to get suitable lands for Indians,
the two governments made an agreemnent known as the McKenna-McBride
agreement, and later formed a Royal Commission on Indian Affairs for the
Province of British Columbia; the duty of the Commission being to review and
revise the whole reserve situation, to provide new reserves, and to have the power
o! disallowing reserve lands not required for Indian use, but in such cases pre-
serving one moiety of the Indian ir1terests. By this arrangement when final con-
firmation of the reserves was made, any provincial interests wouid disappear and
the Dominion, in trust for the Indians, would have the full use and benefit of
these reserves. The Commissioners visited ail parts of the Province, and every-
where and at ail times the Indians gave evidence as to their requirements, an 'd
it is clear that the Commissioners, endeavoured to meet the wishes of the IndianS
wherever it was possible to do 50 and to give them adequate reserves.

After the report had been received by both governments, two competent
officers of the governments were delegated to make a further examination into
the needs of the Indians, and representative Indians were appointed to confer
with these officers and to make f urther representations. This action was com-
pleted and the report of the Commission and a schedule of reserves was adopted
and confirmed by both governments tmder the statutory provisions of Chap. 51,
1920. It is apparent that the average of agricultural land set up by the proposed
conditions of settlement is not applicable to British Columbia, where the Indians
generally cannot derive their subsistence from. agriculture. The allotment of
reserves, of which there are 1,573 in tlie province, preserves to the Indians in a
remarkable degree their old fishing stations and camping grounds.' and the action
of the Comissioners was evidently extended to, preserving Indian rights in
traditional locations which the Indians had enjoyed in the early days.

(3) That al] existing reserves not now as parts of the Railway Belt
or otherwise hcld by Canada be conveyed to Canada for the use and
benefit of the various Tribes..

This work is now in progress, and without delay the reserves confirmed by
both Governments will be conveyed by the province to the Dominion.

(4) That ail foreshores whether tidal or inland be included in the
reserves with which they art connected, so that the varîous Tribes shal
have full permanent and beneficial titie to such foreshores.

The Indians have riparian rights on all reserves on tidal waters. The owner-
ship of the foreshore being in the province, the Superintendent, General of Indian
Affairs endeavoured to obtain some concessions on bchalf of the Indians in this
regard. The Prime Minister of British Columbia under date of April 23, 1924,
stated as follows:

The Honourable
The Superintendent General of Indian Affairs,

Ottawa.

DEAR SIR,-Referring to our conversation of yesterday and having
reference to the fears expressed- by the Indians that where their reserves
fronted on the water, access to their lands might be interfered with by
construction of wharfs, docks, booms or other obstructions erected or
placed along any foreshore on account of ownership of such foreshore
being in the Province, as 1 expressed myself yesterday, 1 would f avour a
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policy treating the Indians on exactly the same footing as I would treat
the. whites, and would if necessary advise the Governrnent of the Province
to give the Iiïdian Departrnent a written assurance to that effect. 'II arn,
however, of the opinion that no suoh 'assurance is necessary, as I think
the principle of Riparian Rights would apply Vo any Indian reserves
having water frontage to the same extent as Riparian Rights would apply
Vo the same lands were such lands subject to the private ownership of any
person other than an Indian. In other words, Riparian Riglits would
accrue to the Indians (through the Indian Departrnent) to the sarne extent
as they would apply to a white owner. I should be pleased if you would
obtain the advice of your legal Departrnent on this phase of the situation.

I arn,
Yours faithfully,

(Signed) JOHN OLIVER.

(9) That if the Governments and the Allied Tribes should not be
able to agree upon a standard of lands Vo be reserved that matter and ail
other matters relating to lands Vo be reserved which cannot be adjusted in
pursuance of the preceding conditions and by conference between the two
governrnents and the Allied Tribes be referred to the Secretary of State
for the Colonies to be finally decided by that Minister in view of our
land rights conceded by the two Governments in accordance with our
first condition and in pursuance of the provisions of Article 13 of the
"Terms of Union" by such method of procedure as shall be decided by
the Parliament of Canada.

It would appear to be a sufficienýt answer to this condition Vo state that
under the provisions of Article 13 of the " Terrns of Union " a reference Vo the
Sccrctary of State for the Colonies was only to be resorted to if the two govern-
ments f ailed Vo agree. They have agreed under statutory authority and the
allotrnent of reserves is. therefore concluded.

(10) That the beneficial ownership 'bf ail reserves shall belong to
the Trihe for whose use and benefit they are set aside.

When the reserves are conveyed by the Province Vo the Dominion, which
procedure is now in progress, they shaîl belonýg Vo the Indian Bands for which
they are set apart. Tribal ownership is noV recognized unless by desire of the
Bands cornprising the Tribe. If any such case arises due consideration will
be given to all the surrounding circurnstances.

(11) That a system of individual titie Vo occupation of particular
parts of reserved lands be established and brought inVo operation and
adrninistered by each Tribe.

Provision is already nmade in the Indian Act for the issue of location tickets
which are equivalent to a title in f eesimple. Indians of British Columbia are
at liberty to take advantage of this.' proviý'ion at any tirne.

(12) That ahi sales, leases and fother dispositions of land or timber
or other natural resources be made by the Governrnent of Canada as
trustee for the Tribe with the consent of the Tribe and that of ail who
rnay have rights of occupation affected, and that the proceeds be disposed
of in sucli a way and used froin tirne to time for suchi particular purposes
as shall be agreed upon between the Governrnent of Canada and the
Tribe Vogether with ail those having rights of occupation.

Apart from the emphasis which seems Vo be placed upon tribal ownership
in this paragraph, it merely contains a staternent of what is 110W the procedure
of the Departrnent as provided by statute.



CLAIMS 0F THE ALLIED INDIAN TRIBES, B.C.

(13) That the flshing rights, hunting righits and water rights of the
Indian Tribes be fully adjusted. Our land rights having first been
established by concession or decision we are vvilling that aur general
rights shall after full conference between the two Governments and the
Tribes be adjus'ted by enactment of the Parfiarnent, of Canada.

Your Committee heard evidence on the disabilities of the Inchians of
British Columbia arising from restrictive regulations regarding flshing, hunt-
ing and the use of water for irrigation purposes. The Indian Cammissioner
for British Columbia and the Dirctor of Fisheries, of the Departmnent, of
Marine and Fisheries, were heard on this subject. The flshing industry is a
most important ane in the life of the Indians, and at least one-third of the
fishermen engaged in the commercial fisheries are Indians and a large number
of Indian women are employed in the canneries. The chief complaint was
against the restriction ta take flsh for food purpoes, and in this matter the
sympathies of the Committee are with the Indian&; at the samne time the neces-
sity of preserving by adequate regulations, the fisheries is paramount. By
co-operation between the Department af Indian Affairs and the Department af
Marine and Fisheries grievances have gradually disappeared and we wauld
commend ta the Government the desirability af having as close co-operation as
possible not only between these two Departments, but between ail the Depart-
ments of the Dominion Public Service that have ta deal with problems affecting
Indians or Indian reserves, and that in ail cases an extremely sympathetie
and liberal view of the Indian situation should influence regulations and their
enforcemnent as against Indians. The amelioration af local difficulties must
be worked out by local afficers, and we are convinced of the importance of
leniency in the enforcement of the regulations that might, if rigidly enforced,
work hardship and even suffering upon Indians.

It must be recognized that Indians have had from the earliest times, special
interest in hunting, and that in thoýse regions where their subsistence is obtained
from the hunt they should receive every consideration. It is clearly ta -the
benefit of the Indians that there should be strict regulations to conserve the
fur-bearing animais, and the Provincial regulations appear ta have that in
view. It is the duty of the Department of Indian Affairs ta see that any privi-
leges or rights which the Indians have under these regulations are taken advan-
t age of to the fullest degree. In this connection it is noted that the Provincial
authorities do not exact any license foc f rom Indians for hunting or trapping,
and like exemption of Indians in s0 f ar as commercial flshing licensesl is con-
cerned might ho considered favourably by the Dcpartmcnt of Marine and
Fisheries.

Watcr for irrigation, where this is a nececsity for successful agriculture, is
a matter of the utmost importance in certain districts of British Columbia.
These affairs are regulated by the Province, and the Indians are on the same
footing as ordinary citizens in the allatment of the availablo wat-cr. In the
endeavour ta obtain watcr records, the Dcpartment of Indian Affairs bas been
insistent in advocating the claime 6-1 thél Indians ta, sufficient water for their
reserve lands, and .where success bas ,flot fallowed, it bas been owing ta the
insuiflciency of wvater for all claimants or from some inherent flaw in the original
r ecords. The number of cases of the latter class is, however, very small. Wc
wYould recomniend that the Department of Indian Affairs continue ta, give the
most careful attention ta the development of irrigation systems on the reserves
so that the water may be utilized ta the fullcst extent, and we commend #co-
operatian between the Department and the Watcr Powcrs Branch of the De-
partment of the Interior.

(14) That in connection with the adjustment of aur flshing rights
the matter of the international treaty recently entcred inta which very
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seriously conflicts with those rights, be adjusted. We do not at present
discuss the matter of fishing for commercial purposes. However, that
matter may stand. We dlaimu that we have a clear aboriginal right to
take salmon for food. That right the Indian Tribes have continuously
exercised f rom time immemorial. Long before the Dominion of Canada
came into existence that right was guaranteed by Imperial enactment, the
Royal Proclamation issucd in the year 1763. We dlaimn that under that
Proclamation and another Imperial enactment, Section 109 of the British
North America Act, the meaning and effect of which were explained. by
the Minister of Justice in the words set out above, ail power held by the
Parliament of Canad!, for regulating the fisheries of British Columibia
is subject to, our right of fishing. We therefore daimn that the regulations
contained in the treaty cannot be made applicable to the Indian Tribes,
and that any attempt to enforce th6se regulations against the Indian
Tribes is unlawful, being a breach of the two Imperial enactments men-
tioned.

The privilege of taking salmon for food purpoSes bas been deait with under
heading No. 13. As there is no international treaty in existence between the
Dominion and the United States, further reply to this clause seems unnecessary.

(15) That compensation be made in respect of the following par-
ticular matters.

1. Inequalities of acreage or value or both that may be agreed
to by any Tribe.

2. Inferior quality of reserved lands that may be agreed to, by
any Trihe.

3. Location of reserved lands other than that required agreed
to by any Tribe.

4. Damages caused to the timber or other natural resources of
any reserved lands as for example by mining or smelting operations.

5. All moneys e.xpended by any Tribe in any way in connection
with the Indian land controversy and the adjustment of ail mattirs
outstanding.

0f the sub-heads of this section, Nos. 1,, 2 and 3 have been deait wit 'h.
No. 4, re damages to timber and other natural resources: Claims have been
made and compensation received in such cases, and as other cases arise, they
should be deait with in a like manner. No. 5: As the expenditure of moneys
by Indians in connection with their aileged land dlaims have been undertaken
without the authority or control of the government, the request should not
be compied with.

(16) That general compensation for land to be surrendered b
made:

1. By establishing anid meintaining an adequate system 'of,
education, including both day schools and residential industriif
schools, etc.

2. By estabiishing and maintaining an adequate systemi of
medicai aid and hospitais.

Regarding Sub-head No. 1: There is already in existence throughout the
province a system of education for Indians. There are at present 16 resi-
dential schools and 42 day schools in operation in the province. The enrol-
ment in residentiai schoois is 1,506 and in day schoois 1,309. The residential
schools are conducted under an arrangement with the Churches interested in
Indian education. They are financed by payment of a Government pet capita
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grant. The Department reserves the privilege of approving the more im-
portant appointments to the staffs of these institutions and has in effect a
thorough and efficient system of inspection. Tuition is academic and voca-
tional. In addition to the scholastic studies girls are taught domestic science
and boys are given manual and technical education that will fit them to meet
the conditions of life in the respective sections of the province to which they
belong. In the opinion of the Committee it is desirable that this system should
be maintained and extended and that residential and day schools be gradually
established in districts not already provided for; that the tuition should tend
to emphasize the industrial side; and that individual Indians should be given
opportunities to develop natural aptitudes. Arrangements should also be made
to enable Indians of pronounced ability, who wish to qualify for the professions
or fit themselves for positions in the industrial fields, to pursue the necessary
studies in institutions of higher learning, each case to be considered on its
merits.

Regarding Sub-head No. 2: There is already a system of medical aid and
hospitals throughout the province, and we note that one large item of expendi-
ture made on behalf of the Indians is for this very purpose, the expenditure for
the last fiscal year being $102,000. It seems to your Committee that this item of
expenditure might be developed and that as Parliament provides funds for the
purpose, hospitals should be established, particularly for the treatment of tuber-
cular Indians or for the fullest use of such hospitals established for the citizens
of the province. Special efforts should at all times be made,-and it is as much
in the interest of the white citizens as of the Indians,--to diminish the incidence
of tuberculosis and other diseases that are communicable. Where necèssary,
hospitals for the treatment of general diseases should be established, and by the
employment of nurses and field matrons, the Indian women should be instructed
in the care of children, and as required, the medical staff should be enlarged.

(17) That all compensations provided for by the two preceding
paragraphs and all other compensation claimed by any Tribe so far as
may be found necessary, be dealt with by enactment of the Parliament of
Canada and be determined and administered in accordance with such
enactment.

The Parliament of Canada has power to legislate for Indians and Indian
reserves, and no doubt will, as occasion requires, exercise that power.

(18) That all restrictions contained in the Land Act and other
Statutes of the Province be removed.

By the confirmation of the Report of the Royal Commission on Indian
Affairs the restrictions of the Land Act have been removed, and as it was not
shown that other statutes of the Province of British Columbia were oppressive or
lad not been enacted in the interests of the Indians, your Committee does not
consider it proper to make any reference in this regard.

(19) That the Indian Act be revised and that all amendments of
that Act required for carrying into full effect these conditions of settle-
ment dealing with the matter of citizenship, and adjusting all outstand-
ing matters relating to the administration of Indian Affairs in British
Columbia be made.

Parliament will no doubt revise and amend the Indian Act from time to
time in the interests of the Indians as often as found necessary.

42325-B



(20) That ail moneys already expended and to be expended by the

Allied Tribes in connect ion witb the Indian land controversy and the

adjustment of ail matters, outstanding be provided by the Governents.

Your Committee cannot reeommend the appropriation of any publie funds

for this purpose, but rather tlîat parliamentary appropriations, if and when made,

'should be te further the progress and civilization of the Indians themselves.

In addition to t.he paragraphs already deait with, the Indians had made

certain addîtional dlaims before the Deputy Superintendent General in Victoria

in 1923, and these may now be deait with seriatim:-

M OTHERS' AND WIDOWS' PENSION S WERE ASKED FOR AS EFFECTIVE IN BRITISH

COLUJMBIA FOR WHITE WOMEN

Parliament provides funds for sustaining indigent or destitute Indians in

British Columbia and applications frorn Indians who reqire assistance in this

w ay should be made through the Indian Agents to the Department.

CASH COMPENSATION FOR AINNUITIES SIMILAR TO TREATY ANN-UITIES

It may be remarked with reference to the payment of annuities that the

policy for the payment of annual sums to individual Indians was inaugurated

in the early days, having in view the then condition of the Indians, and that the

annuity mighit he a source of revýenue for their support, but conditions have

changed so materially that the need and usefulness of such a per capita payment

to Indians of British Columbia is negligible. In lieu of an annuity your Com-

iitee would recommend that a sum. of $100,000 shiould be expended annually

for the purposes already recomîncnded, that is, technical education, provision of

hospitals andl medical attendance, anîd in the promotion of agriculture, stock-

raising and fruit culture, aîîd in the development of irrigation projects. An

annual expenditllre of thîs amount for these purposes would scem to be f ar more

applicable to the Indians in their present condition than thc payment of any

per capita amount.
In concluding this Report your Committee would recommend that the

decision arrived at should be made known as completely as pdo'sible to the

Indians of Britisli Columbia bv direction of the Superintendent General of

Indian Affairs in order that thev mav beconie aware of the finality of the

findings and adviscd that no fundis should be contributed byv thcmn to continue

further presentation of a dlaim which has now been disallowed. Furthermore,

the Committee recommend that this report together with the evidence, be printed

as an appendix to the journals of the Huse, and also in blue book form to the

number of one thousand (1,000) copies and that Rule 74 relating thereto be

siuspended.

Ail which is respectfully submitted.

lIE WITT BOSTOCK,
(hairman, Senate Committee.

E. A. McPHERSON,

Acting Chu irrnan, Commuons Comrnittee.

NO'rE.-Thîs Report was concurred in on April 12. Sec Journals, p. 527.
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ADDENDA

Your Committec begs tô report that after ail evidence had been received,
the expected letter referred to, by Mr. Andrew Pauli at pages 96 and 97 of the
printed evidence was laid hefore the Committee. The text of the letter follows,
and it wiIl be observed tlîat the diary of Father Fouquet, while it mentions the
meeting referred to, does not disclose that any promises were made by the
Governor:-

ST. MARY S MISSION, Jan. 3, 1923.
DEAR PAP'L,-Excuse me of my delay on answering to your letter of

Nov. the 16th. 1 looked over our old papers. 1 am sorry to, say that 1
could not find anything that would help the Indian cause. Rev. Father
Fouquet mentioned an Indian meeting on the 24thl of May, .1864, when
several Indiani chiefs made soine speeches to the new GTovernor at New
Westminster. The Governor answered to thcm. But unfortunately
Father neyer mentione(l what has been said in that circumstance, whea
4,000 Indians were gathered headed by7 60 Indian chiefs. Look please in
INew Westminster archives of 1864. You may find some information; if
those papers have not bcen dcstroycd by the big fire.

I hope Dear Paul that the year 1923 will successfully termninate that
long struggle about the Indian rights. 1 enclose here an almanack and
wish to you and your family a goed and happy year.

PETITION TO PARLIAMENT, JUNE, 1926
The Petition of the Allied Indian Tribes of British Columbia humbly

showeth as follows:
1. This Petîtion is presented on behaîf of the Allied Indian Tribes of

British Columbia by Peter R. Kelly, Chairman duly authorized by resolution
unanimously adopted by the Executive Comnittee of allied Tribes on 19th
December, 1925.

2. When British Columbia entcred Confederation Section 109 of the British
North Arnerica Acf. was made applicable te, ail publie lands with certain specific
exceptions. By virtue of the application of this Sect.ion if was enacted f.haf.
publie lands belonging to the Colony of British Columbia should belong to the
new Province. Bv virtue of the application of the samne Section as explaîned
by the Minister of Justice in January, 1875, ail territorial land rights claimed
by the Indian Trihes of the Province were preserved and it was enacted that
sueh rights should be an "interest"' in the publie lands of the Province. The
Indian Tribes of British Columbia dlaim actual beneficial ownership of their
territories, but do not dlaim absolute ownership in the sense of ownership
excluding any title of the Crown. It is recognized by the allied Tribes that
there is in respect of ail the publie lands of the Province an underlying title
of the Crown, whîch titie at least for present purposes it is not thought necessary
to define.

3. In order to make clear what is meant by an "interest" tbe Petitioners
quote the following words of Lord Watson to be found in the Indian Claims
Case-L. R. 1897 A. C. at page 210:-" An interest other than that of the
Province in the same appears to them to denote some right or interest in a
third Party independent of and capable of being vindicated in competition with
the beneficial interest of the old Province."

4. The position taken by the allied Tribes was placed before Parliament
by means of Petition presented to the bouse of Commons on 23rd March, 1920,
and read in the House of Commons and recorded on 26th March, 1920 (Hansard
p. 825) and Petition presented to the Senate on 9th June, 1920, to ail contents
of whieh two Petitions the Petitioners beg leave to refer.
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5. In the month of August, 1910, Sir Wilfrid Laurier, having been advised
by the Department of Justice that the Indian land controversýy should be
judicially decided, met the Indian Tribes of INorthern British Columbia at
Prince Rupert and speakiýng on belf of Canada said-"I think the only way
to settie this question that you have agitated for years is by a decision of the
Judicial Committee, and 1 will take steps to help you."

6. By agreement which was entered into, by the late Mr. J. A. J. MeKenna,
Special Comiîssioner on behalf of the Dominion of Canada and the late
Premrier Sir Richard MeBride on behialf of the Province of Britishi Columbia
in the month of September, 1912, and before the end of that year was adopted
by both Governments, it was stipulated that by means of a Joint Commission
to be appointed, lands sliould be added to Indian Reserves and lands should
lie eut off from Indian Beserves. By that agreement it was provided that the
carrying out of its stipulations should be a "final adjustment of ail matters
relatiing to Indian affairs in the Province of British Columbia."

7. On the 3Oth day of .June, 1916, the Royal Commission on Indian Affairs
for the Province of British Columbia appointed in pursuance of the agreement
above mentioned issued Report which was placed in the hands of both Gov-
ernments.

8. In the month of September, 1916, the Duke of Connaught, acting as
Ris Majesty's Representative in Canada and in response to letter which liad
been addressed to, him on behaîf of the Nishga Tribes and the Interior Tribes,
gave assurances communicated by, His Secretary to the General Counsel of
allied Tribes in the following words:

"RHis Royal Hligliness lias interviewed the Honourable Dr. Roche with
reference to your letter of the 29tli May and your interview with me and I
arn commanded by Ris Royal Highness to state that lie considers it is the duty
of the Nisliga Tribe of Indians to await the decision of the Commission, after
which, if tliey do not agree to the conditions set forth by that Commission, they
can appeal to the Privy Council in England, when their case wilI have every
consideration. As their contentions will lie duly considered ýby the Privy
CouncÇl in the event of the Indians being dissatisfied with the decision of the
Commission, Ris Royal Highness is not prepared to interfere in the matter
at present and lie liopes that you will advise the Indians to await the decision
of this Commission."~

9. The allied Tribes have always been and still are unwi[iling to be bound
by the agreement ahove mentioned and have always been and still are unwilling
to accept as final settleihent the findings contained in the Report of the Royal
Commission.

10. In tlie year 1920 the Parliaiment, of Canada enacted the law known as
Bill 13 being Chapter 51 of the Statutes of that year authorizing the Governor-
General in Council to carry out the agreement ahove mentioned by adopting the
Report of the Royal Commission. From the preamble and the enacting words
the professed purpose of the Bulýl appeared to be that of effecting settlement by
actually adjusting ail nmatters.

11. In course of debate regarding Bill 13 had in the Senate on 2nd June, 1920,
Sir James Lougheed, leader of the then Government in the Senate, answering
remarks of Senator BStock hy which was expressed the fear that if the Bill
sliould become law the Indians mîglit " lie entirely put ou{ of Court and lie unable
to proceed on any question of titie," gave the following assurance (Debates of
Senate-1920 p. 475 col. 2):-

" I miglit say further, lionourable gentlemen, that we do not propose to
exelude the dlaims of Indians. It wiill be manifest to every lionourable gentle-
man that if tlie Indians have dlaims anterior to, Confederation or anterior to tlie
creation of the two Crown Colonies in the Province of British Columbia they
couid lie adjusted or settled by the Imperial Authorities. Those dlaims are still
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valid. If the claim be a valid one which is beingy advanced by this gentleman
and thoýse associated with him as to the Indian Tribes of British Columbia being
entitled to the whole of the lands in British Columrbia this Government cannot
disturb that dlaim. That dlaim can stili be asserted in the future."

12. lipon occasion of interview had with the Executîve Committee and the
General Counsel of allied Tribes at Vancouver on 27th July, 1923, the Minister
of Interior speaking on behaif of the (Govermnent of Canada conceded that the
allied Tribes are enitled to seure judicial deciýsion of the Indian iland controversy
and gave assurance that the Dominion of Canada would h&lp them in securing
sucli deeision.

13. By Order in Council passed in the month of August, 1923, the Govern-
ment of the Province of British Columbia adopted the Report of the Royal
Commission.

14. By Memorandum which was presented to the Government of Canada
on 29th February, 1924, the allied Tribes opposed the passing of Order in Council
of the Govermnent of Canada adoptîng the Report of the Royal Commission
upon the ground, arnong other grounds, that, no matter whatever rdlating to
Indian affairs in British Columbia having been fully adjusted and important
matters such as foreshore rights, fishing rights and water riglits îot having been
to any extent adjusted, the professed purpose of the Agreement and the A.et had
not been accomplished.

15. By Order in Council passed on l9th July, 1924, the Government of
Canada, acting under Chapter 51 of the Statut-es of the year 1920 and upon
recommendation of the Minister of Interior adopted the Report of the Royal
Commission.

16. From the Memorandum issucd by the Deputy Minister of Justice on
29th February, 1924, answering questions which had been submitted by the
allied Trihes to the Government of Canada, the Order-in-Council passed on
19th July 191,4 and the Memorandum issued by the Deputy Minister of Indian
Affairs on 9th August, 1924, it clearly appears as is submitted that both the
Dcpartment of Justice and the Department of Indian Aiffairs regard the Statute
Chapter 51 of the year 1920 as intended, not for bringing about an actual adjust-
ment of ail matters relating to Indian affairs, but for the purpose of bringing
about a legisiative adjustment of ail such matters and thus effectiag final settle-
ment under the laws of Canada without the concurrence or consent of the Indian
Tribes of British Columbia.

17. The allied Tribes submit that, so far as Section 2 being the main enact-
ment of Chapter 51 may he interpreted as being întended for accomplishing the
purpose above mentioned and thus bringing. to an end ail the aborîginal rights
claimed by the Indian Tribes of British Columbia, that enactment is in conflict
wîth the provisions of the British North America Act.

18. On the lSth January 1925 the Executive Committee of the allied Tribes
iinanimously adopted the f llowing resolution:

"In view of the fact t} at the two Governmcnts have passed Orders-in-
Council confirming the Report of the Royal Commission on Indian Affairs, we
the Executive Committee of the allied Tribes of British Columbia are more than
ever determined to take such action as may be necessary in order that the
Indian Tribes of British Columbia may receive justice and are furthermore
determîned to establish the rights clainied by them by a judicial decision of lis
Mai esty's Privy Council."

19. In the course of debate 'had in the flouse of Commonsý on the 26th June
1925 the Minister of Interior speaking on behaif of the Governent of Canada
in answer to the representations wlîich had been made on behaif of the allied
Tribes recognized that the allied Tribes are entitled to obtain from His Majesty's
Privy Council decision of the Indian land controversy and agreed that the Gov-
eriment would give authoritative sanction for doing so.
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20. With regard to the rcmark then made by the Minister that the Govern-
ment would not be justified in providing funds unlesq " something very concrete"
should bie presented, the ailied Tfribes submit that they have already presented
" something very concrete ", namely tleir own conditions propOsed for equitab.ie
settiement by their Statement presented te the Government of British Columbia
in response to request, of that Government in the month of December 1919, and
subsequently presented to the Governintent of Canada.

21. With regard to the generai subject of the funds which as the allied Tribes
claim the Dominion of Canada is under the obligation of providing, the aiiied
Tribes have placed iii the hands of thec Superintendent-General of Indian Affairs
the following Memorial:

THE ALLIED INDIAN TRIBES OF BRITISH COL-UMBIA TO THE SUPERINTENDENT

GENERAL 0F INDLXN AFFAIRS

By this Meinorial of tho allied Indian Tribes of British Columbia it is
respectfully submitted as follows:

The allied Tribes submit that the Dominion of Canada is under obligation
for providing ail funds already expended and ail funds requiring hereafter Vo be
expended by the allied Tribes in deaiing with the Indian land controversy, in
establishing the rights of the allied Tribes, and in bringing about final adjust-
ment of ail matters relating to Indian affairs in British Columbia.

The ailied Trihes so submit upon grounds briefiy stated as follows:
1. Well establishied precedent reiatîng to judicial proceedings intended for

estabiishing the righits of Indian Tribes and in particular that of the Oka case,
which was carried independently to the Judicial Committee of is Majesty's
Privy Council by the Indians interested and of which the total cost was pro-
vided by the Parliament of Canada.

2. The fact that the Dominion of Canada being by virtue of the British
North America Act and the "Ternis of Union" Trustee for the Indian Tribes of
British Columnbia and under ail obligations arising fromi such trusteeship bas
by entering into the compact with British Columbia above mentioned rendered
itseif incompetent for taking effective action estabiishing the rights of the
Indian Trîbes of British Columbia, as is clearly shown by the Opinion of the
Minister of Justice issued in the month of December 1913, and moreover bas
put itself in the position of a party in the case upholding the contentions of the
Province of British Columbia, and by the acts so stated has piaced upon the
Indian Tribes the absolute necessity of proceeding independentiy for establish-
ing their rights.

3. The principle of compensation in respect of ail aboriginal land and other
rights of the Indian Tribes of British Columbia, responsibility for which bas
already been conceded by the Dominion of Canada, and of which as the allied
Tribes submit the first item consists of the full expenditure required for
establishing such rights, of the Indian Trîbes and bringing about adjustment
of ail matters now requiring to be adjusted.

4. The assurances which on behaif of the Dominion of Canada have from
time to time been given to the Indian Tribes of British Columbia and in
particular that of Sir Wilfrid Laurier and those of the present Minister of
Interior.

5. The lands and funds held by the Dominion of Canada in trust for the
allied Tribes and being the full beneficial property of the ailied Tribes.

Therefore the Allîed Tribes now formally demand from the Dominion of
Canada payment of the sum of one hundred thousand dollars, being the Votai
amount of such expenditure already incurred, and further demand from the
Dominion of Canada that full provision be made for paying ail additîonal
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funds which hereafter shall be required for such expenditure, as shall be agreed
upon between the aliied Tribes and the Dominion of Canada or if necessary
shall be determined by the Judicial Committee of His Majesty's Privy Council.

Dated at the City of Ottawa the June, 1926.

Chairman of Executive Committee of Allied Tribes.

To Honourable CHARLES STEWART,
Superintendent-General of Indian Affairs,

Ottawa.

22. The government of Canada having definitely agreed as is above shown
that the Dominion of Canada will facilitate securing from the Judicial Com-
mittee of His Majesty's Privy Council decision of the Indians land controversy,
the Generai Counsel of allied Tribes entered upon discussion with the Minister
of Justice regarding the particular rnethod. by which the securing of such
decîsion will be facilitated, and offered to suggest for consideration of the
Minister of Justice common ground which might be reached by the Government
of Canada and the allied Tribes in connection with the carrying forward of
the independent judicial proceedings of the allied Tribes.

23. In presenit;ig this Petition to the Parliament of Canada as the
Supreme Body representing the Dominion of Canada the allied Tribes declare
that, while it is necessary for them to demand what tbey consider to be their
rights from both the Province of British Columbia and the Dominion of Canada
and even to contest the validity of an Act of the Parliament of Canada, they
(lesire and intend to act tow.irds ail1 Ministers of the Crown, ail Members of both
buses of Parliament and ail others concerned in a thoroughly reasonable and
conciliatory way and that their one* central objective is, by sccuring judicial
decision of ail issues involved, to, open the way for bringing about an equitabie
and moderate settlement satisfactory to the Governments as weli as to them-
selves.

Therefore the Petitioners humbly pray:
1. That by amcndment of Chapter 51 of the Statutes of the year 1920

or otherwise the assurance set outiiii paragraph 11 of this Petition be made
effective and the aboriginal rights of the Indian Tribes of British Columbia
be safeguarded.

2. That steps be taken for defining and settling between the allied Indian
Tribes and the Dominion of Canada ail issues requiring to be decided between
the Iridian Tribes of British Columbia on the one hand and the Goverument of
British Columbia and the Government of Canada on the other hand.

3. That iinmediate steps ho taken for facilitating the independent proceed-
ings of the allicd Tribes and enablîng them by securing referetice Vo tbe Petition
now in lis Majesty's Privy Council and such other independent judicial action
as shall be found necessary to secure judgment of the Judicial Committee of
lis Majesty's Privy Council deciding ail issues involved.

4. That this Petition and ail reiated matters be referred to a Special
Committee for full consideration.

Dated at the City of Ottawa, the lOth day of June, 1926.

Peter R. Kelly,
Chairman of Executive Committee of Allied Tribes.
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MINUTES 0F PROCEEDINGS

TuFSDAY, March 22, 1927.
The Committee met at il a.m.

Present.-Messrs. Hon. Mr. Stewart (Edmonton West), Hay, McPherson,
Morin (St. Hyacinthe-Rouville).

On motion of Hon. Mr. Stewart:
Resolved.-That Mr. Hay be Chairman of the Committee.

The Order of Reference upon being read was considered.

On motion of Mr. McPherson:
Resolved.--That the committee do report and recommend that 500 copies in

English and 200 copies in Frenchi of evidence to be taken, and of papers and
records to be incorporated with such evidence be printed, and that Rule 74 be
suspended in relation thereto.

On motion of Mr. MePherson:
Ordered.-That Messrs. Andrew Pauli, A. E. O'Meara, Rev. P. R. Kelly,

W. E. Ditchburn and Chief Chillihitza be summoned to appear at next meeting
of Committee.

In attendance.-Duncan C. Scott, Deputy Superintendent of Indian Affairs.

Committee adjourned to call of Chair.

WEDNESDAY, 3Oth March, 1927.

Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Special Committee appointed to
inquire into the dlaims of the Allied Indian Trihes of British Columbia as set,
f orth in their petition to Parliament in June, 1926, met this day at il a.m. in joint
session with a like Committee of the Senate.

Present:
Senate.-The Honourable Mr. Bostock, Chairmian; the Honourable Mes-

sieurs Barnard, Bclcourt, Green, MevILennan, Murphy and Taylor, 7.
House of Commons.-The Honourable Charles Stewart, Messieurs McPher-

son, Morin (St. lyacinthc..Rouville), the Honourable H. H. Stevens and the
Honourable R. B. Bennett, 5.

The question of procedure and future meetings was discussed behind closed
doors.

The Committee having corne to order, Mr. D. C. Scott, Deputy Superin-
tendent General of Indian Affairs, was called as a witness.

Mr. Andrew PaulI, sccrctary, executive committee of the Allied Indian
Tribes of British Columbia, was sworn.

Mr. Warwick Beament, Barrister-at-law, Ottawa, Ontario, Indian counsel
for the petitioners, was heard.

At 1 p.m. the cominittee adjourned until to-morrow at 10 a.m.
42325--C
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THUUSDAY, 3lst Mardi, 1927.

Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Special Committee appointed to
inquire into the claims of the Allîed Indian Tribes of British Columbia as set
forth in their petition to Parliament in June, 1926, met this day at 10 o'clock,
a.m. in joint session with a like Committee of the Senate.

Present:
~Senate.-The Honourable Mr. Bostock, Chairman. The Honourable

Messieurs: Barnard, Belcourt, Green, MeLennan, Murphy and Taylor, 7.
House of Cornmons.-Tlie Honourable Charles Stewart, Messieurs: llay,

MePherson, Morin (St. Hyaeinthe-Rouville), The Honourable H. H. Stevens
and the Honourahie R. B. Bennett, 6.

The question of tie witnesses to be examined was discussed behind closed
doors.

The doors being opened, Mr. Warwick Beament, Barrister-at-law, Ottawa,
Ontario, appeared as counsel for the petitioners, and filed two documents
(Exhihits 1 and 2) as to the authority of Mr. A. E. O'Meara to represent the
Allied Indian Trîbes.

Mr. A. D. Mclntyre informcd the Committee that he was appearing on
behaif of certain Indian Tribes located in the interior of British Columbia.

Mr. O'Meara and Mr. Mclntyre were requested to file a list of the Indian
Trîbes they represent.

Mr. Andrew Pauli, a witness already sworn, was recalled.

iMr. A. E. O'Meara, counsel for the pctitioncrs, rend a statcmcnt, whic'h
was filed (Exhibit 3).

Mr. Andrew Pauli, was again recailed.

At 1.00 o'clock p.m. the Committee adjourned until Monday, the 4th April,
1927, at 10.00 o'clock a.m.

MONDAY, 4ti April, 1927.

Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Special Committee appointed to
inquire into tiec daims of the Allied Indian Tribes of British Columbia as set
forth in their petition to Parliament in June, 1926, met this day at 10 o'eloek
a.tn. in joint session with a lîke Committee of the Senate.

Present:

Senate: The Honourable Mr. Bostock, Chairman, The Honourahie Messieurs:
Barnard, McLennan, Murphy and Taylor, 5.

House of Co'mmons: The Honourable Charles Stewart, Messieurs: Hay,
McPherson, and the Honourable H. H. Stevens, 4.

Mr. Andrew Pauli was again recalled. (Exhibit No. 4. list of Indian Tribes,
filed).

Mr. A. D. MacIntyre, representing interior truces of British Columbia, was
heard. (Exhibit No. 5, list of Indian Tribes, filed).

Mr. .Julîan Williams, a member of the Tompson tribe of Indians, was
sworn as an interpreter.

xxvi



CLAIMS OF THE ALLIED INDIAN TRIBES, B.C. xi

Chief Johnny Chillihitza, of the Tompson Tribe, Nicola Valley, British
Columbia, was sworn and was heard through an interpreter.

Chief Basil David, of the Cariboo Tribe, British Columbia, was sworn and
was heard through an interpreter.

William Pierrish, of the Schuswap Tribe, was sworn as interpreter.

At 1 o'clock p.m. thc Committee adjourned until 3.30 o'clock p.m.

AT 3.45 o'ciock p.m. the Committee rcsumed.

Rev. P. R. Kelly, Chairman of the Executive Committee of Aliied Tribes
of British Columbia, was sworn and was heard.

Mr. Andrew Pauli was again heard.

At 6.10 o'clock p.m. the Committee ad.journed until 10 o'clock a.m. to-morrow.

TUESDAY, April 5th, 1927.

Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Special Committee appointed to
inquire into the dlaims of the Allied Indian Tribes of Britisli Columbia as set
forth in their petition to-Parliament in June, 1926, met tlhis day at 10 o'clock,
a.m., in joint session with a like Committee of the Senate.

Present of the Senate:-

Hon. Senator Bostock, Chairman.
The Honourable Messieurs Green, Murphy, Taylor, M\cLennan-5.

0f the bouse of Commons:-

Hon. Chas. Stewart, Hon. H. H. Stevens, Messieurs F. W. Hay, A. E.
MePherson, L. S. R. Morin (St. Hyacinthe-Rouville) 5.

Rev. P. R. Kelly, recalled. Filed cupy of the Hudsou Bay Comipuiiy's
Treaty with certain Indians in British Columbia. (Retired) (Exhibit No. 6.)

Mr. A. E. Dîtchburn, Commissioner of Indian Affairs in British Columbia,
called, sworn and examined. (Retired.)

Mr. Found, Department of Marine and Fisheries, called sworn and
examined. (Retired.)

On motion of Mr. A. E. MePherson, it was ordered that Chief Basil David,
William Pierrîsh, and Mrs. Williams be paid their expenses for attendance before
the Committee, at 12.45 p.

The Comrnittee adjourned until to-morrow, Wednesday, April 6th, 1927.

WEDNESDAY, April 6, 1927.

Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Special Committee appointed to
inquire into the dlaims of the Allied Indian Trihes of British Columbia as set
forth in their petition to Parliament in June, 1926, met this day at 10 o'clock a.m,
in joint session wîth a like Committee of the Senate.

Present for the' Senate: The Honourable Mr. Bostock. Chairman; the lion-
ourable Messieurs Barnard, Green, Belcourt, MeLennan, Murphy-6.
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For the Houme of Commons: Hon. Chas. Stewart (Edmonton West), Hon.
H. H. Stevens, A. E. McPherson, L. S. K. Morin (St. Hyacinthe-Rouville), F. W.
Hay-5.

In attendance: Mr. Chisholm, Department of Justice.

Mr. A. E. O'Meara, counsel for the Allied Indian Tribes of B.C., was heard,
and produced a number of documents.

Mr. Kelly (Recalled) Filed Exhibits No. 7 and 8.

Mr. John Chishohm (Department of Justice) was heard.

Mr. A. D. MacIntyre filed exhibit No. 9.

The committee adjourned tili 10 a.m., Thursday, April 7th, 1927.

MONDAY, April 11, 1927.

Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Special Committee appointed to
inquire into the dlaims of the Allied Indian Tribes of British Columbia as set
forth in their petition to Parliament in June, 1926. met this day at 10 o'clock
a.m. in joint session with a like Cornmittee of the Senate, with closed doors.

Present:

Semite :-The Honourable Mr. Bostock, Chairman; The Honourable
Messieurs: Barnard, McLennan, Green and Murphy.-(5).

Homse of Commons :-The Honourable Charles Stewart, The Honourable
H. H. Stevens and Mr. McPherson.-(.3).

Mr. D. C. Scott and Mr. W. E. Ditchburn were in attendance.

A draft report was submitted, discussed and adopted with certain additions.

On motion of Mr. McPherson it was resolved to report recommending that
the evidence and report be printed as an appendix to the Journals, and also in
blue book f orm. to, the number of 1,000 copies.

(For Report see Votes and Proceedings for April 11, 1927).

The committee then adjourned.



MINUTES 0F EVIDENCE

CommrrrnR Room 368,

WEDNESDAY, March 30, 1927.

The Joint Special Comxnittee appointed to, inquire into the dlaims of the
Allied Indian Tribes of British Columbia, as set forth in their petition submitted
to Parliament in June, 1926, met at il o'clock, a.m., Hon. Mr. Bostock, presiding.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, we have a quorum of the two Committees
present, and I propose that we get down to business. I arn sorry that Mr. Hay,
the Chairman of the House of Commons Committee, is not able to be here.

1 would suggest that before we actually commence the business of the Com-
mittees, we should hold a meeting with closed doors, to decide on the course of
procedure.

The Committee then met in camera.

The CHAIRMAN: These two committees are sitting together, for the pur-
pose of hearing evidence, and making their report. I understand, the buse of
Commons Committee have arranged for certain evidence to be presented this
morning. It is getting towards the end of the session, and it is a question of how
we can arrange this meeting so as to put through the matter in question as
quickly as possible. 0f course, I must remind the Hon. members of the Senate,
that the Senate meets now on Friday morning, at eleven o'clock. I do not kno>w
just what to suggest.

Hon. Mr. BELCOUËT: WTe are going to be very busy.
The CHAI.RMAN: We could probably meet at ten o'clock, if that will suit

the gentlemen of the Senate. Would it be possible for us te meet tomorrow
morning at ten o'clock.

lion. Mr. STEWART: Ycs, as far as we are concerned.
The CHAIRMAN: The question cornes up as to how we are to proceed in

this matter. We have present Mr. 0'Meara, Dr. Scott, Rev. P. R. Kelly, Andrew
PaulI, and several other gentlemen.

Hon. Mr. MTURPH-y: Are those witnesses summonsed for this morning?
The CHAîIuwMŽ: I un(lerstand Mr. 0'Meara is te appear as counsel. I

presume the right way would be te allow the Indians to present their case, first.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: I hiave a suggestion I should like te make in that

regard; 1 might say 1 have been fairly f amiliar with this controversy ever
since Mr. 0'Meara took it up in 1910. 1 think the Committee would get a
better grasp of thc situation if wc had Dr. Scott before us, flrst, and Jet him
give us the background of the whoýle business. You will then get, in a short
time, a grasp of the general situation. Then, we can have Mr. 0'Meara.

Hon. Mr. BELCO-URT: What authority has Mr. O'Meara te speak for any-
body? If he has no authority, I, for one, do not propose to listen to him.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS. If we heard Dr. Scott, the Committee could then judge
how te narrow it down to a proper basis.

Hon. Mr. BENNETT: Dr. Scott bas told me the story, and I agree with
what Mr. Stevens says.

Hon. Mr. STEWART: We ask that the brief te be presented by Dr. Scott be
printed.

Hon. Mr. MURPH-Y: What about Mr. Stevens' suggestion? Are we not to
have Dr. Scott and get to work.
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The CHAIRiuAN: 1 understand that is agreeabie 'to the Committee. 1
understand that Mr. Stevens proposes that Dr. Scott corne now, without the other
witnesses being present.

Hon. Mr. STEWART: May 1 say that Mr. O'Meara has been summonsed
as a witness. So far as the Department is concerned, there is no objection to
his acting as solicitor for the Allied Tribes. I think it is important that he
should aiso appear as a witness, so that he may be questioned.

Hon. Mr. BIELCOURT: We cannot, prevent him from being here; he will
insist upon being here.

Hon. Mr. STEWAR~T: It is a question of whether the Committee can question
hun.

Hon. Mr. BENNETT: He cannot be asked to disclose any information he
has received as solicitor.

Hon. Mr. BELcOURT: He can disclose his, authority.
Hon. Mr. MuRPHY: If he is here as a witness, the Committee can examine

him.
Hon. Mr. BENNETT: Let us get Dr. Scott in.
The CHAIRMAN: Is it your pleasure that Dr. Scott 8houid be heard first?
Hon. MEMBERS: Agreed.

The Com.mittee then resurned in open session.

The CHAIRMAN: We had better have the minutes of the iast meeting.
Hon. Mr. BENNETT: It is agreed that the minutes be, taken as read and

confirmed.
The CHAIRMAN: We have decided, Dr. Scott, that we would like to, hear

what you have to, say, first of ail.
Mr. ANDRRW PAULL: Hon. Mr. Chairman, may I be allowed te, say a

word before Dr. Scott proceeds? I arn the Secretary of the Executive Com-
mittee of the Allhed Tribes in British Columbia, and on their behaif, I take this
privilege of thanking the Government, and previous Governments, for having
arrived at this stage of this troublesome question. Now, the purpose of my
arising is to say. that I have been instructed to ask that ail proceedings 'before
this Comnmittee be reportcd in book f orm, and that the Indians be eupýplied
with that record. I also wish to ask if this Cornxitte has invited representa-
tives of the Province of British Columbia to, appear before this Committee. If
they have refused, we wish te have their refusai recorded in the records.

The CHAIRMAN: At the present tiýme, I understand the Committee has
decided to have a record taken of ail the proceedings, and te have a certain
number of copies printed. These are for the use of the members of the House
of Cýommons, and the Senate. It will be for the Committee, later, te decide
whether the record can be used by others, as weli.

Copies of thcse telcgrams have been handed te me. (Reading):

VicroRiA, B.C., Mar. 17, 1927.
Hon. CHRILES STEWART,

Minister of the Interior,
Ottawa, Ont.

Replying te your wire this date re Indian lands this Government
relies on Section 109 of B.IN.A. Act and upon paragraphs ten and thirteen
of "Terms of Union" and wili not be represcnted before Committee
named.

JOHN OLIVER,
Premier.
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DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR,

OTTAWA, March 18, 1927.
Honourable JoHN OLIVER,

Premier of British Columbia,
Victoria.

Your wire seventeenth. Note your province will not be represented
before Committee of House enquiring into Indian Lands petition.

CHARLES STEWART.

I think that answers Mr. Paull's question.

We will now call on Dr. Scott.

Dr. DUNCAN C. SCoTr: Mr. Chairman and gentlemen, I have prepared a
memorandum on the subject, and an historical sketch, giving the different steps
that have occurred since this matter came up before the Government many
years ago; accompanied by appendices which I think will be of use to the
Committee, and informative.

During the course of the memorandum, I express my own views on the
subject, perhaps rather emphatically, once in a while.

Hon. Mr. BENNETT: Could you, for the use of the Committee, give us a
concise statement to enable us to know what the whole thing is about, in your
own words, and as short as possible.

Dr. SCoTr: I have made my memorandum as short as possible, and if I
may be permitted to read my memorandum I think it would be more succinct.
(Reading):

" REPORT ON THE BRITISH COLUMBIA INDIAN QUESTION
Sm,-I have the honour to submit a memorandum on the relations between

the Dominion Government and the Indians of British Columbia. An aboriginal
title to the provincial lands has been since Confederation claimed for the Indians
of the province, and has been presented in different forms and by various methods
to His Majesty's Privy Council, to the Dominion Parliament, and to the Domin-
ion and Provincial Governments. It is not my intention to deal with the legal
questions involved, but to present the facts as clearly as possible and to mae
such recommendations as appear to be appropriate.

No cession of the aboriginal title claimed by the Indians over the lands of
the Province of British Columbia has ever been sought or obtained. . In this
respect, the position is the same as in Nova Scotia, Prince Edward Island, New
Brunswick, Quebec and the Yukon. The total area of the province is approxi-
mately 355,855 square miles. Of this area, 104,400 square miles lie within the
boundaries of a larger area of 329,400 square miles, covered by an Agreement
known as Treaty No. 8, whereby the aboriginal title was ceded to the Crown,and 358 square miles, part of Vancouver Island was ceded by the Indians to
James Douglas, Governor of the Hudson's Bay Company. Subtracting these
areas from the area of the province, 251,097 square miles remain. The Indians
have not ceded any aboriginal title to this part of the province; they claim that
the title is theirs, and that they should be compensated therefor.

The statement of the Allied Indian Tribes of British Columbia made to the
Provincial Government' on the 12th November, 1919, in the pamphlet hereto
attached, sets forth fully the claims and nature of the expected compensation
for the purchase.

The Proclamation of 1763, which is referred to by the advisers of the
British Columbia Indians as a basis of their aboriginal title to the lands of the
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province, was issued after the conquest of Canada, to establish lis Majesty's
government in the newly conquered territory. By subsequent Acts of the
Imperial Parliament, the Proclamation was repealed, the courts were set up,
and a system of government was gradually developed.

The Proclamation states that it is issued for the purpose of establishing a
government in the " extensive and valuable acquisitions in America " secnred
by the Treaty of Paris. The Frenchi made no claim to any portion of the
present province of British Columbia. In 1793, thirty years after the date of
the Proclamation, Vancouver landed on the island now known by his name,
and in 1794 McKenzie made his overland journey to the coast. In 1843 the
Hudson's Bay Company established a post on the site of the present city of
Victoria, and in 1849 Vancouver was made a Crown colony. British Columbia
(the niainland and Queen Charlotte Islands)I was made a Crown colony in 1858,
and the two colonies were united in 1866. British Columbia entered Confedera-
tion on the 2Oth July, 1871.

The " Terms of the Union " hetween British Columbia and the Dominion are
set forth in the Imperial Order in Couaicil of the luth May, 1871. The l3th
clause of the ternis establishes the relations between the two governments and
the Indians.

In order to understand the bearing of this clause, it is necessary to state a
f ew of the facts with reference to the entrance of British Columbia into Con-
f ederation. 'The 146th section of the British North America Act provides for the
inclusion in the Union of other North American colonies. Amongst those men-
toned is British Columbia. Mr. Anthony Musgrave had been appointed Governor
of British Columbia for the express purpose of conciliating the different factions
in the colony and of promoting its best interests. He was appointed on the
17th June, 1869, and on the l4th August, Earl Granville, the Secretary of State
for the Colonies, addressed to him a despatch, No. 84, in the latter part of whicli
hie touchied upon the Indian question as follows:-

It will not escape you that in acquainting you with the general
views of the Government, I have avoided aIl matters of detail, on which
the wishes of the people and the Legislature will of course be declared
in due time. I think it necessary however to observe that the Constitu-
tion of British Columbia will oblige the Governor to enter personally
upon many questions, as the condition of Indian tribes and the future
position of Government servants with which, in the case of a negotiation
between two responsible governments, lie would not hbe bound to concern
himself.

Preliminaries te Union were actively taken up by both the iColony and the
Dominion, and in 1870 we find Governor Musgrave writing te the Governor
General of Canada as follows:-

GovERNMENT HUSE,

British Columbia, 2Oth Fdbruary, 1870.

SiR,-I have the honour te forard to Your Excellency a copy of
the Message with which I caused the Legisiative Council to be opened
on the lSth instant, and of a Resolution which the Government will
introduce, embodying the termis on which it is proposed to join the
Dominion of Canada.

9. In Lord Granville's despatch, No. 84, of the l4th August, which
was communicated to Your Excellency, hie mentioned the condition of
the Indian Tribes as among some questions upon which the Constitution
of British Columbia will oblige the Governor to enter personally. I have,
purposely, omitted any reference te this subject in the terms proposed
to the Legisiative Council. Any arrangement which may be regarded
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as proper by Her Majesty's Government, eau, 1 think best be settled
by the Secretatry of State, or by me, under his direction with the
Government of Canada. But 'Indians' and 'Lands reserved for
Indians,' form the twenty-fourth of the classes of subjects named in the
7lst Section of the Union, which are expressly reserved to the Legisia-
tive authority. of the Parliament of the Dominion.

I have, etc.,
(Signed) A. MusGR.AvE.

lis Excellency, Sir John Young, G.C.B., G.C.M.G., etc.

This explains why we do not find any reference to Indians in the original
Union resolutions of the British Columbia Legisiature.

The consideration which was gîven the Indian question resulted in the l3th
Clause of the " Terms of Union ";

13. The charge of the Indians and the trusteeship and management
of the lands reserved for their use and benefit, shall be assumed by the
Dominion Government, and a policy as liberal as that hitherto pursued
by the British Columbia Government, shall be continued 'by the
Dominion Government after the Union. To carry out such pýolicy, tracts
of land of such extent, as it has hitherto 'been the practice of the British
Columbia Government to appropriate for that, purpose shall from tîme
to time be conveyed ýby the Local Government to the Dominion Govern-
ment in trust for the use and benefit of the Indians, on application of
the Dominion Government. and in case of disagreement between the
two Goveruments respecting the quantity of such tracts of land to bce
so granted, the matter shahl be referred for the decision of the Sccretary
of State for the Colonies.

By the Dominion Parliament and the Government of British Columbia
this was considered a satisfactory division of responsibility for the Indians,
and the Imperial Government acquiesced. The " Terms of the Union " were
approveii hy Order of 11cr Majcsty in Council on the l6th May, 1871.

The Governor of the Colony, arting under the powers of His Commission,
the Dominion Goverument, and the Imperial authorities agreed on Clause 13
of the Terms of the Union, which cmbodied the Indian policy of the Govern-
ment of the Colony. That policy was set forth by the Honourable J. W.
Trutch in a memorandum to Governor Musgrave, which was transmitted by
him to Earl Granville, the Secretary of State for the Colonies, under date of
the 29th January, 1870. Mr. Trutch's memorandum, from which the follow-
ing words are an extract, was prepared to refute the allegations made against
the Indian administration of the Colonial Government by Mr. W. S. Green:-

The Indians have, in fact, been held to be the special wards of the
Crown, and in the cxcrcîsc of this guardianship Government has, in all
cases where it lias heen desîrable for the interests of the Indians, set
apart sucli portions of the Crown lands as were deemed proportionate
to, and amply sufficient for, the requirements of each trîbe; and these
Indian Reserves are held by Government, in trust, for the exclusive
use and benefit of the Indians resident thereon.

But the fîtle of the Indians in the fee of the public lands, or of
any portion thereof, lias neyer been acknowledged by Government, but,
on the contrary, is distinctly denîed. In no case lias any special agree-
ment been made with any of the tribes of the Mainland for the extinction
of their dlaims of possession; but these dlaims have been held to have
been fully satisfied by securing to each tribe, as the progress of the
settlemcnt of the country seemed to require, the use of sufficient tracts
of land for their wants for agricultural and pastoral purposes.
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The Indiar. policy of the Colonial Government wa.s again referred to by
the Honouraible Mr. Trutch, after lis appointment as first Lieutenant Governor
of the Province, in a letter addressed to Sir John Macdonald on Octdber 14,
1872, of whicli thi- is an extract:-

We have in British Columbia a population of Indians numbering
f rom 40,000 ta 50,000, by f ar the larger portioix of whomn are utter
savages living along the coast, frequently committing murder and robbery
among themselves, one tribe upon another, and on white people who go
amongst themn for purposes of trade, and only rest.rained f rom more out-
rageous crime by being always treated with flrmness, and by the con-
sistent enforcement of the law amongst them ta which end we have often
ta caîl in aid the services of H.M. slips on the station. 1 cannot see
how the charge of these Indians can be entrusted ta one having no0
experience among them nor do 1 think it likely that the assistance of the
Navy would be willingly and effectively given ta any subordînate officer
of the Government. Wi1thout further descanting on the matter however
1 may tell you that I arn of opinion, and that very strongly, that for some
time ta corne at least the general charge and direction of ahl Indian
aff airs in B.C. should be vested in the Lt. Governor, if there is no con-
stitutional obj ection ta sucli arrangement, and that instead of one there
should be three Indian Agents, anc for Vancouver Island, one for the
Northwest Coast and the third for the interior of the mainland of the
province, which latter gentleman might very properly ibe a Roman
Catholic as the Indians in this section are for the most part unde *r the
influence of missionaries of that persuasion. Then as ta Indian policy
I am fully satisfled that for the present the wiscst course would be ta
continue the systemn which bas prevailed hitherto only providing increased
means for educating the Indians and gcncrally improving thcir condition
moral and physical.

The Canadian system as I understand it wi.ll hardly work here.
We have neyer bought out any Indian dlaims ta lands, nor do they expeet
we should, but we reserve for their use and benefit from time ta time
tracts of sufficient, extent ta fulfill ahl their reasonable requirements for
cultivation-or grazing. If you now commence ta buy out Indian title
ta the lands of B.C. you would go back of ail that bas been donc here
for 30 ycars past and would be equitably bound to compensate thc tribes
who inhabited the districts now scttled farmed by white people cqually
with those in the more remote and uncultivated portions. Our Indians
are sufficiently satisfled and had better Ibe lcft alonc as far as a new
system towards them is concerncd only give us the means of educating
them by teachers employed directly by thc Governnt as well as by
aiding the efforts of the missionaries now working among them.

I have given these extracts ta prove the 'Colonial policy as ta the general
treatment of the natives and particularly as ta the aboriginal titie. It should
be kept constantly in mind when anc is considering this question, the point of
view was not altered when provincial status was reached, and it is now as
flrmly flxed as it ever waZ.

The harmony ýbetween the Governments apparent from this defigition of
rcsponsibility for Indians was not sharcd by the Indians themselvcs. They
had complained constantly of the insufficiency of land allotments for reserves,
and rather indeflnitely as ta the nccessity for an acknowlcdgment of thc Indian
title. From the year 1875 until thc present tîme there lias been, a definite dlaim,
grawing in clearncss as years wcnt by, gradually devcloping into an organized
plan, ta compel the Provincial and Dominion Gaveruments, eithcr or bath, ta
acknowledge an aboriginal tithe and ta give compensation for it. The record of
these actions, which I shaîl attempt ta trace as 'bricfly as possible, will show
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the Provincial Government ever constant in the stand that there is no Indian
title in the Provincial lands, and the Dominion Government uncertain of its
position on that question, but as generous to the Indians of British Columbia
as to other Indians, giving them protection and supervision, educating them,
relieving evitable suffering and providing for their advancement, extending to
them the same policy and system (with the single exception of annuity pay-
ments) as prevails in other parts of the country where the Indian title had been
ceded and where special treaty obligations required fulfilment.

After the admission of British Columbia into Confederation the Dominion
assumed the Indian, administration, appointed officials and obtained appropria-
tions from Parliament for Indian purposes, and it was not until 1875 that any-
thing occurred to indicate that the provisions of Clause 13 of the " Terms of
Union" were inadequate as a settlement of the Indian question between the
interested Governments. The British Columbia Government had passed an
Act to amend and consolidate the laws affecting Crown Lands in British
Columbia, which Was assented to on the 2nd of March, 1874. This Act was
recommended to be disallowed by Order of His Excellency in Council of 23rd
January, 1875, the main reason being the fact that no cession of the Indian
ttile had been obtained, and the Act was dissallowed by Order in Council of
16th March, 1875. It was amended by the Provincial Legislature, and after
consultation between the Governments and after a definite procedure had been
established to be followed in the selection and allotment of reserves, the Act
was allowed .to go into operation. (Copies of the documents will be found in
Appendix B.)

Hon. Mr. BELCOURT: You speak of disallowance. Was that exercised
by the Home government?

Dr. Scorr: No.
Hon. Mr. BENNETT: No, it is by the Dominion government.
Dr. ScoTT: (Continuing reading):

It will be observed that the Hon. Edward Blake, then Minister of
Justice, under date of 28th April, 1876, reported that:

I have copies of these documents and Orders-in-Council here; they may be
added afterwards.

Although the undersigned cannot concur in the view that the
objections taken are entirely removed by the action referred to; and,
though he is of opinion that, according to the determination of council
upon the previous Crown Lands Act, there remains serious question as to
whether the Act now under consideration is within the competence of
the provincial legislature, yet since, according to the information of the
undersigned, the statute under consideration lias been acted upon, and
is being acted upon largely in British Columbia, and great inconvenience
and confusion might result from its disallowance; and, considering that
the condition of the question at issue between the two governments is
very much improved since the date of his report, the undersigned is of
opinion that it would be the better course to leave the Act to its
operation.

It is to be observed that this procedurq neither expresses nor
impliedly waives any right of the government of Canada to insist that
any of the provisions of the Act are beyond the competence of the Local
Legislature, and are consequently inoperative.

The action referred to is represented by the Orders in Council of
the Dominion and the Province providing for the appointment of a Joint
Commission to allot Indian reserves. (See Appendix C).
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After the weighty language of the Memorandum to Council of 18th
January, 1875, the final action seems inconsequent. It would hardly be
possible to draft a stronger document in support of the claim for an
aboriginal title than this memorandum. Its force is somewhat lessened
by the remark 'that the policy of obtaining surrenders at this lapse of
time and under the altered circumstances of the province, may be ques-
tionable, yet the undersigned feels it his duty to assert such legal or
equitable claim as may be found to exist on the part of the Indians. But
the antithesis is striking; on the one hand a statement of great import:
'The undersigned feels that he cannot do otherwise than advise that the
Act in question is objectionable, as tending to deal with lands which are
assumed to be the absolute property of the province, an assumption
which completely ignores, as applicable to the Indians of British
Columbia, the honour and good faith with which the Crown has, in all
other cases, since its sovereignty of the territories in North America,
dealt with their various Indian tribes.' And on the other hand, the
virtual acceptance of the Thirteenth Clause of the " Terms of Union " as
an adequate settlement of the Indian Claims.

I hope the committee finds all this useful, and that I am not going too much
into detail. This is the way the administration is carried on (Continuing read-
ing):

In order to present a clear view of action subsequent to the agree-
ment between the Governments as to the best method of carrying out the
provisions of the Thirteenth Clause, it is, I think, necessary to separate
the facts into two main divisions: (1) the administration by the Dominion
Govern.ment of Indian Affairs in British Columbia; (2) the presentation
of the aboriginal claim of the Indians.

When once the governments bad appointed the Commission to select
reserves, the action proceeded, and lands were set apart for the use of the
Indians, at first by a Joint Commission, and later by a single Dominion
Commissioner, the last being Mr. A. W. Powell who retired on 31st March,
1911.

In 1912 the Dominion Government decided to approach the govern-
ment of British Columbia and endeavour to obtain a settlement of the
Indian question, and by Order in Council of 24th May, 1912, Mr. J. A.
J. McKenna was appointed a Commissioner 'to investigate claims put
forth by and on behalf of the Indians of British Columbia, as to lands
and rigbts, and all questions at issue between the Dominion and Provincial
governments and the Indians in respect tbereto, and to represent the gov-
ernment of Canada in negotiating with the government of British
Columbia a settlement of such questions.'

The claim for aboriginal title came within the scope of his com-
mission, but the Prime Minister of British Columbia refused to discuss
the question.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: The provincial government refused to discuss the
aboriginal title?

Dr. Scorr: Yes.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: But not the other?
Dr. ScoTT: No, they went on, as I will show. Mr. McKenna made an

exhaustive memorandum to Sir Richard on that subject, and endeavoured to get
him to consent to that, but he would not. His report is as follows; under date
of 29th July, 1912:

Adverting to our conversations, let me say that I understand that the
claims made on behalf of the Indians are:-(1) That the various nations
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or tribes have aboriginal title to certain territories within the province,
which, to perfect the Crown title in the right of the province, should be
extinguished by treaty providing for compensation for such extinguish-
ment;

As to the first claim, I understand that you will not deviate from
the position which you have so clearly taken and frequently defined, ie.,
that the province's title to its land is unburdened by any Indian title,
and that your governnent will not be a party, directly or indirectly, to
a reference to the Courts of the claim set up. You take it that the
public interest, which must be regarded as paramount, would be in-
juriously affected by such reference in that it would throw doubt upon the
validity of titles to land in the province. As stated at our conversations,
I agree with you as to the seriousness of now raising the question, and,
as far as the present negotiations go, it is dropped.

Mr. McKenna then directed his efforts to negotiating for the abandonment
by the Province of the claim to a reversionary interest in the Indian Reserves.
In his interim report on his mission, dated 26th October, 1912, Mr. McKenna
states that:-

During intervals in the negotiations he visited different parts of the
province and met many representative Indians. His investigations con-
firmed the opinion, which he had formed from a study of the records,
that the great source of Indian disaffection was the provincial interest
in lands reserved for Indians, recognized by the joint agreement of 1875-6,
and, as the country developed and Indian reserves in certain districts
increased enormously in value, asserted more clearly and largely by the
province through 'legislative acts and otherwise. That agreement was the
outcome of discussion respecting Article Thirteen of the " Terms of Union",
which determines the respective obligations of the Dominion and the
province as to the Indians of British Columbia. The position taken by
the province was that the title of Indians to lands reserved for them was a
mere right of use and occupancy; that under said Article no beneficial
interest in such lands was to be taken by the Dominion as guardian of
the Indians; and that, whenever the Indian Right to any such lands or
to any portion or portions thereof became extinguished through surrender
or cessation of use or occupation, or diminishment of numbers, the land
reverted, unburdened, to the province. The Indians as they advanced in
knowledge, became aware that they were not regarded as having the same
right in reserved lands as Indians in other parts of Canada were recognized
as having in lands set apart for them; and without clearly understanding
the situation, became in the measure of their advancement disaffected by
the consequences of the unsatisfactory nature of the Dominion's tenure
of their reserves. The undersigned, therefore, concentrated his efforts
to the extinction of the interest in reserves dlaimed by the province, and
to securing for the Indians of British Columbia lands by the same title
as that under which lands are held by the Dominion for Indians in the
other parts of Canada.

The result of the negotiations between Sir Richard MeBride and Mr. Mc-
Kenna was the appointment of a Royal Commission to adjust the acreage of
Indian Reserves in British Columbia, and to set apart new lands for reserves.
The reserves finally fixed by the -Commissioners were to be conveyed by the
province to the Dominion free of any provincial reversionary interest therein.
There were other provisions of the agreement, unimportant to this report. The
Commission was appointed on March 31, 1913, and dissolved on June 30, 1916,
having made a voluminous report. The governments obtained statutory authority
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to accept the report, and after a final revision by oficers of both govern-
ments, assisted by representatives of the Indians, the report was confirmed by
Orders in Council of both governments, by British Columbia on July 26, 1923,
and by the Dominion on July 19, 1924. This is a final adjustment of aIl Indian
questions between the Dominion and the Province and therefore excludes the
possibility of reference to the Secretary of State for the Colonies.

Uipon this point it mighit 'be well here to quote the answer given by the
Honourable Mr. Justice Newcombe, who was then Deputy Minister of Justice,
to a question asked the government by the Indians. The question was: "The
effect of the McKenina-McBride Agreement and in particular the words 'final
adjustnient of ahl matters relating to Indian affairs in the Province of British
Columbia.'" The answer was: "I arn of opinion that as between the two
Governments the agreement and the action of the Commissioners thereunder, if
approved by both Governments, operate as a final adjustmnent of ail matters
relating to Indian affairs in the Province of British Columbia. These are the
words of the agreement, and would 1 should think be interpreted to exolude
dlaims by either government for better or additional terms."

During the years after British Columbia came into Confederation, and
while the Dominion Government was active in obtaining reserves for the
Indians, it was also extending to, themn the benefits of an Indian policy that
obtained generally east of the mountains in regions where there bad been a
cession of the Indian title. The special mark -of a treaty with Indians i6 the
payment of annuity. This bas been absent in British Columbia, but in ail other
rcspects likc expenditures arising from similar motives wili be found in ail
the provinces. There bas been no discrimination against the Indians of British
Columbia. As their needs became apparent, tbey bave been satisfied and the
Dominion Parliam&it bas granted tbis Departmnent fumds to develop a pro-
gressive policy. (In Appendix D wilI be found a schedule of the expenditure
aggregating $10,800,300.37 since Confederation.) It is clear that the guardian-
ship of the Indians of British Columbia by the Dominion bas been conducted
with the samne care, governed by tbe saine principles as tbe general trust, and
tbat the non-recognition of an aboriginal title bas not prejudicially affected the
intercsts of these Indians.

Hon. Mr. BENNETT: Is that ten million dollars without interest?
Dr. SCOTT: Yes.
Hon. Mr. BENNETT: The ordinary year to year expenditure?
Dr. SCOTT: Yes, the ordinary grants. iNearly eleven million dollars.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: In how long a period?
Dr. SCOTrT: Since Confederation.
Hon. Mr. BELCOtTRT: What is tbe proportion of that as compared with

the other provinces?
Dr. SCOTTv: I did not work that out, Senator Belcourt, but it might be

readily worked out.
Then I deal witb the presentation of tbe aboriginal dlaim.
It is perhaps unimportant to note each incident of the many which have

led Up to, the present position of tbis question. However, it is well at the outset
to note the ýstatement made by Lord Dufferin, when hie was Governor General
of Canada, in a speech in the city of Victoria in September, 1876. His Excel-
lency strongly supported tbe advisability of recognition of an aboriginal title
in the provincial lands.

It was not until about ten years after that date that tbere was any active
discussion as between the Indians and t.he Goverament of British Columbia.
This agitation arnongst the Indians led to the visit to England of tbree import-
ant Indian Chief s in the year 1906, the purpose being to lay tbeir grievances
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before His Majesty King Edward VII. It was flot until 1909 that an
onganization or Society was formed for the purpose of promoting the dlaim. In
the spring of 1909 a petition was presented te His Majesty, which was after-
wards referred to the Government of Canada. Sir Wilfrid Laurier visited British
Columbia in the summer of 1910, and at Prince Rupert met a deputation of
Indians of the ýsurrounding country, and he also met Indians at Kamloops, and
received communication of their dlaims and opinions on the subjeet of Indian
titie. In December, 1910, a deputation fromn the Friends of the Indians waited
upon Sir Richard McBride, the Prime Minister of British Columbia, and pre-
sented their dlaim, and in March of the next year a large nuwiber of Indians
again waited upon the British Columbia government, and upon both these
occasions Sir Richard McBride informed them that in the opinion of bis Goveru-
ment, the Indians had no titie te the public lands of the province. Consideration
by the Dominion Government of the petîtion of 1909, referred to above, led te,
a decision to prepare a stated case for the Courts, and a case wais actually
framed containing ten questions, the first three of which related te the general
inatter of Indian title, but when this plan was, presented to the Government of
the Province, they objected te the preliminary clauses and would flot consent to
the reference.

It is clear that the Dominion Government was sympathetic with the Indian
dlaim and witb the desîre of the Indians to have a judicial decision thereon.
Thi.s is evident from Sir Wilfrid Laurier~s remarks to a deputation which waited
on him at Ottawa on the 26th April, 1911:-

The matter for us to immediately consider is whether we can bring
the Government of British Columbia into Court with us. We think it is
our duty to have the matter enquired into. The Government of British
Columbia may be right or wrong in their assertion that the Indians have
no dlaim whatever. Courts of Law are just for that purpose-where a
man asserts a dlaim and it is denied by another. But we do not know if
we can force a Government into Court. If we cati find a way I may Say
we shaîl surely do so, because everybody will agree it is a matter of good
government to have no one restîng under a gricvance. The Indians will
continue to believe they have a grievance until it bias been settled by the
Court that they have a dlaim, or that they have no dlaim.

In the previous year the Dominion Government, at the Session of 1910, had
passed legislation, Clause 37A of the Indian Act, to enable the Government to
bring the case before the Courts, and this first amendnient te the statute having
been found te be not quite broad enough, the Act was further amended at the
Session of 1911, and ail with the express purpose of having a judicial decision on
the case despite the refusai of British Columbia te consent te the stated case.
After this amendment became law. the Law Officers of the Crown gave further
consîderation as to how the case might be dealt with, and it resulted in the
passage of an Order of His Excellency in Council of the 1,7th May, 1911, a copy
of whieh will be found in Appendix E. The policy of the Govcrnmcnt as thcn
exprcssed waS "to institute proceedings in the Exchequer Court of Canada on
hehaîf of the Indians against a provincial grantee, or licensee, in the hope of
obtaining a decision upon the questions involved as soon as a case arised in which
the main points in difference can be properly or conveniently tried." Mr.
Newcombe drew the attention of the Department to thîs Order in Council on
the lSth April, 1912. It wýill be observed that the Memorandum te Council was
drafted by the Department of Justice and it would appear that this Department
was not advised of its passage, and was, therefore, ignorant of it until the above
date, namely l8th April, 1912, when a certified copy was obtained for our
papers.

Hon. Mr. BENNETT.- Do you say that is the Department of the Interior?
[Mr. Duncan C. Scott.]
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Dr. SCOTT: The Department of Justice.
Hon. Mr. BENNETT: How do they say. it was drafted by the Department of

Justice, and that their attention was not directed to it?
Dr. SCOTT: That is the fact.
Hon. Mr. BENNET=: Bu it is a refiection on their own Department.
Dr. SCOTTr: W"elI, 1 do not want to reflect on their Department.
Hon. Mr. BENNETT: But they are themselves reflecting on their own Depart-

ment.
Dr. SCOTT: At that time the Department of Justice had charge of the case,

and were really dealîng with it. 1 cite these facts te show that the government
of that date at least was trying to get the case before the Courts.

It will be remembered that the Governnient changed in the autumn of 1911,
and Sir Robert Borden's Government came into power. While the Order in
Council of the 17th May, 1911, was dormant, Mr. McKenna had recommended
that there should be discussions anew with the Provincial Government, and as
previously stated, he was appointed a special Commissioner on the 24th May,
1912, the appointment of a Royal Commission followed, and subsequently the
confirmation of their Report by the Governments. These incidents have been
deait with in the previous pages of this miemorandum.

Hon. Mr. BELCOUIRT: Ail that preceded the Royal Commission of 1912,
and really led up to the Royal Commission.

Dr. SCOTT: Yes. It is claimed that Sir Wilfrid Laurier's governent was
willing to take the case to the Courts. They amended the Indian Act twice to
enable thcm to do it, and cvcn then they found they hiad not succeeded, and
then they passed that Order in Council saying that whien they could take a case
against a provincial grantee, that was perfectly clear, they would put the matter
into the Courts. (Continuing reading):

The undeïrsigned was appointed Deputy Superintendent General on
October 11, 1,913, and \xas almost imniediately confronted with this ques-
tion. The government had accepted the agreement arrîved at by Sir
Richard McBride andi Mr. McKenma by Order in Council of the 27th
November, 1912. The Royal Commision had been appointed and was in
the field, but the advisers of the Indians were stili pressing for action
on the quesiÂon of aboriginal title. The Nishga Tribe, inhabiting the
Naýss River country, had presented a petition te, Ris Majesty's Privy
Council in May of 1913, which had been referred to the Dominion Gov-
ernment on the l9th June, 1913. In reviewing the previous action of the
Government I could not discover-

I am speaking, of myself as the then Dcputy of the Department. (Con-
tinuing reading>:

-that the expenditure by the Dominion Government on behaîf of
the British Columbia ladians, growing year by year since Confedera-
tion, had ever been compared with the probable value to the Crown of
the Indian titie in British Columbia estimated upon, a comparison with
appraîsed values as shown by existing treaties in other provinces. A
few interviews wîth the advisers of the Indians convinced me that they
were in possession of erroneous ideas about the nature of the Indian
title and exaggerated views of the value of the title, and had in fact not
fully grasped the conditions under which the Crown had made treaties
with the Indians in other parts of the Dominion. I became convinced
that the expectation of receiving compensation of very large value cither
in money or privileges was influening to a great extent the strength of
the pressure being :brought to bear on the Goverumnent, and I found the
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idea prevailing that the improvements made by white citizens te pro-
vincial lands, both in cit.y and country, had enhanced the value of the
Iudîan titie. As it is clear that this is net the case, and as 1 believed that
the Indians were already receiving in value what might be considered
adequate compensation for the titie, it occurred to me to recommend to
the Government the proposai which wa8 contaixned in my memorandum,
of the llth March, 1914. The points were carefully considered by the
Gevernment. 1 had the priviiege of consultation with the Honourable
Mr. Justice Newcombe, who was then Deputy Minister of Justice, and
with the Right Honourable the Prime Minister, Sir Robert Borden, and
my memorandum was approved of, and accepted by Order inl,Council of
2Oth June, 1914. (A copy of this Order in Council, with memorandum
attached, will be found in Appendix F.)

Hon. Mr. BENNET'r: How long would that be? Perhaps you might read it.

Dr. SCOTT: I have a précis of it here. I think this will give the committee
what they require.

Hon. Mr. BENNETT: The substa.nce of it?

Dr. SSorr: Yes. The proposai was to refer the claim to the Exchequer
Court of Canada when the Indians agreed to accept the findings of the Royal
Commission on the reserve question and to accept 'Sbenefits to be granted for
the extinguishment of titie in accordance with the past usages of the Crown."
That is, if they won this case in the Exehequer Court, they were to accept like
benefits to, what had been, accurded to Indians in oLlier parts of the country.

1Hon. Mr. BENNETT: Did the Indians dlaim that they ýhad not received in
proportion to the other provinces?

Dr. SCOTT: ýOh, yes, that is the cla.im to-day. 1 do not know that they
say they have received nothing for the týitie, but they want a cession of this
titie on their ewn terms, which you will find in one of their pamphlets. If and
when the matter is printed, the committee wili read my argument in this mcm-
orandum;-has been somewhat criticized and perhaps I might amend it a littie
new at this date. At any rate, those are my views and I thinik they are per-
fectiy sound on the subject of Indian titie and of the compensation that has
been accerded in the past.

By this plan the arrangement between British Columbia and the Dominion,
established by Clause Thirteen of the Terms of Union, was te be respected, and
the Dominion was to grant any additional compensation on the same scale as
had been adopted in the past. A f orm of agreement with the Indians was
prepared, but was neyer presented. The plan became generaily known to their
advisers and to the chief members of their organiza.tion, but ne definite action
was taken. Naturaily, they neyer approved of it, as it was virtualiy a denial
of thc extravagant expectu.tîens which had been aroused.

Eariy in the month of February, 1915, the undersigned had lengthy con-
versations with a deputatien of the Nishga Indians (Nass River), who -had
come te Ottawa te censuit with the Government. The Nishga petition is f re-
quently referred to in the statements of the Indians, and the fiction is maintained
that this petitien is stili before the Privy Council, and onjy methods of procedure
rema.in undetermined. The fact is that the Canadian solicitor fer the Nishga
Indians was advised that if the petition was te he considered by the Privy
Council, the matter must he litigated in the Cana.dian Courts. In Appendix G
wiil be f ound a letter from Sir Aimerie Fitzroy and an extract frein a letter
frem the Honourabie C. J. Dehert.y. In this Appendix will be aise found a
letter frem the Seeretary of His Royal llighness the Duke of Connaught, te
whieh reference is frequentiy made, and aise a letter from the Secretary of the
Duke of Devonshire, both Governer Generals of the Dominion..

[Mr. Duncan C. Scott.]



SPECIAL COMMITTEE

At the Session of Parliament of 1919-20 the Department had presented
legisiation in the form of t-wo bis: one to amend the Indian Act, and another
to enable the Dominion to deal with the Report of the Royal Commission. A
special committee of the House was formed to consider the first-mentioned bill,
and the solicitor for the British Columbia Indians appeared before the com-
mittee and presented their dlaims. When these bis were in the Senate, he
and a deputation of British Columbia Indians appeared before a Senate com-
mittee and again presented their dlaims.

The Government of the Right Honourable, Mackenzie King came into
power in December, 1921, and soon after the a.ppointment of the Honourable
Charles Stewart as Superintendent General of Indian Affairs he began to give
personal attention to this case. He visited Vancouver and met the Indians in
the summer of 1922, and he met them again in the same place in the summer
of the next year. This last meeting was preliminary to a conference which I
held with the executive of the Allied Tribes and their solicitor at Victoria. Mr.
Stewart had hoped that it would be possible te settie the dlaim. for aboriginal
titie out of Court, if the Indians wouid fix upon reasonable compensation which
the Dominion Government might supply without involving the Government of
the Provinces. The conference which 1 had with them in August of 1923 was
held with the hope of coming te soine conclusion. I reported the resuit of the
conference on October 29, 1923. The Indians' demands at that time were
practically the same as they are to-day, and were based on the dlaims advanced
in 1919. The only entirely new item was the plea for a cash payment, which
was, I understand, made on behaîf of the Indians 110W living who as the Chair-
man, Mr. Kelly, stated "wiIl not be in a position te, profit by any of the future
benefits that we have claimed."' (In Appendix H wiil be found a copy of my
report to the Minister of October 29, 1923.)

The Executive of the Allied Indian Tribes of British Columbia and thieir
solicitor are pressing the Government for a decision, and have requested that
they be allowed te litigate their dlaim in the Courts and appeal te the Privy
Council, the Governinent ta bear ail the expenses of the proceedings.

Now 1 have some general remarks which will not take long te read. Per-
haps the commit.tee might like te hear t.hem?

Hon. Mr. STEvENS: Yes.
.The CHAIRMAN: Proceed.
Dr. ScoTr' (Reading): The undersigned is still of opinion that the Indians

are f airly compensated for the aboriginal title by the provision of reserves, and
by the extension te the Indians of British Columbia of the policy which obtains
in the other provinces of the Dominion. The Indians of British Columbia are
not suffering any greater disabilities nor restrictions in hunting and fishing,
and in the use of unoccupied territory than are other Indians of the Dominion.

If the Dominion decides to take the case te the Courts, and finds that it is
possible te do so in consideration of the Thirteenth Clause of the Terms of
Union and of the McKenna-McBride agreement and the statutes, the dlaim
will be against the British Columbia Government. If the Indians win, there
will be a cloud on ail the land titles issued by the province, and this point has
always been an obstacle in the way of the reference. As early as the Order-
in-Council of 1875 the policy of obtaining a cession was held te be questionable.
During one conference between Sir Richard McBride and Mr. McKenna, the
Prime Minister held that the public interest was parainount, and the question
was dropped owing to the seriousness of then raising that question. The serious-
ness and importance of that aspect has not lessened, and it is now as much a
question of public policy as of Indian interest. It may be even more question-
able in view of the statute and the Orders-in-Council confirmin. g the findings
of the Royal Commission. The Honourable Mr. Justice iNewcombe has stated
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that this action constitutes a final settiement of ail Indian questions as between
the Dominion and the province, and the Dominion Order in Council confirming
the McKenna-McBride agreement was passed with the knowledge of that
opinion.

It 'will be interesting to analyze the terms of an existing treaty with the
Indians. An examination of our expenditure for Treaty No. 6, which covers
Saskatchewan, the terms of which are the same as those of Treaty No. 8,
which includes part of British Columbia (104,400 square miles) discloses the
fact that the Dominion is spending large sums annually in the erection and
maintenance of residential s«hools, in supervison and instruction in agricultural
operations and stock-raising, in medical attendance, medicines and hospitals,
in the care of insane Indians. These expenditures and others do not arise from
obligations imposed on the Dominion by the treaty with the Indians, but are
for the most part actuated by humane motives and by a desire to raise the
natives of the country to full citizenship. The law provides for their accept-
ance as citizens, and the policy is intended to fit them for that condition. A
strict fulfilment of the stipulations of the treaty alone would neyer advance
them to that, state.

This I think is rather a valuable part of this nieuorandum, if I may say so.
An examination of treaties and surrenders arranged with Indians since the

eighteenth century would prove that the compensation for the title was regulated,
and that any demands beyond those thought reasonable by the Crown were
refused. The consideration offered and accepted was fair, but it was settled by
the Crown, and in fact was often fixed for the Crown's officers before the negotia-
tions. The appraised value of the title in British Columbia is shown by the
fact that Sir James Douglas, -when he was the Agent of the Hudson's Bay
Companv on Vancouver Island, paid the Indians at the rate of £2. 10. 0 per
family for the southern one hundred. square miles of Vancouver Island. H1e
asked the Imperial authorities for a loan of £3,000 (Say $15,000) to obtain a
cession of the remaining area of the Island at the rate of £3 per f amily. If
we allow an average of four in a f amily for the present population of British
Columbia (23,792), the cash value of the title to the whole of the unsurrendered
area is $89,175.00 If we take Sir James Douglas' report for a loan of £3,000
and use the area of the Island, 16,000 square miles, as a factor, we find that he
was contemplating a complete stirrender for less than $1.00 a square milc.
On this basis the cash value of the title would be $251,097.00 as the unsur-
rendered portion of the province is 251,097 square miles.

The followîng is an analysis of the mutual obligations arising from Treaty
No. 6. Area ceded: 128,800 square miles.
The Indians Promised:

(1) To observe treaty.
(2) To conduct and behýave themselves as good and loyal subjects.
(3) To obey and abide hy the law.
(4) To maintain peace and good order.
(5) Not toi molest person or property of inhabitants or property of the

governrnent or interfere with or trouble travellers.
Obligations Assumed by the Government:

iReserves not to exceed one square mile to each family of five.
Indians to have the right to hunt and fish throughout the tract surrendered.

Expenditure Once for AU:
Gratuity at time of Treaty :-$12 per head.
Miscellaneous expenditure in agriculture; toolýs, cattie, fiags, medals, etc.,

including special provisions for the Indians at Fort Carlton and Fort
Pitt when adhering to the Treaty, $110,000.
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Perpe tual Expenditure:
Annuities: Chiefs, $25.
Headmen (Not to exceed four to each band), $15.
Indians, $5.
Total payment in 1924, $41,290. Government to maintain sehools on re-

serve. $1,500 Vo be expended annually for ammunîtion and Vwine. In the event
of pestilence or a general famine among the Indians such subsistence shall be
granted as the Chief Superintendent of Indian Affairs may deem necessary.

A medicine ehest shall be kept at the house of each Indian Agent for the
use and benefit of the Indians, at the discretion of such Agent.

Each chief and headman receives a suitable suit of elothing triennially.
IV will be seen that the perpetual expenditure in Treaty No. 6 amounts Vo

about $43,000 per annum under the terms of the treaty. That is ail that the
government was obligated to spend.

Hon, Mr. BENNETT: Huw many Indians were under Treaty iNumber six?
Dr. Sco'rr: I have not the number here, but 1 think it was about 4,000.
Hon. Mr. BENNETT: That, is in Saskatchewan.
Dr. Sco=: Ye-,. The cost of the medicine chest and the triennial clothing

is negligible, and the contingency regarding pestilence and famine has neyer
arisen,

I want the committee Vo note this comparison. We find for the fiscal year
.1924-25, that over and above the Treaty obligations, our total expenditure for
general purposes has been $121,01 3.28 and for education $317,619.

Hon. Mr. STEVTNS: That is for the whole locality?
Dr. Scorr: No, for Treaty Numiber six alone.
Hon. Mr. MURPHY: There was no obligation to pay either of these sums.
Dr. SCOTT: No, no obligation whatever. What we were obligated Vo pay was

$43,000 a year. What we did pay was that amount, and in addition Vo that,
$121,000 plus $317,000. That is, $439,000.

Hon. Mr. BELCOURT: Was there an actual cession of the land comprised
within Treaty Number six, within that area at the time?

Dr. SCOTT: Yes.
Hon. Mr. BELCOUET: There was a surrender?
Dr. Sco'rr: Yes, there ivas a cession.
Hon. Mr. STEvENS: That takes in Vhe nort.heast corner of about one-quarter

of British Columbia; that port-ion of British Columbia lying east of the main
range.

Hon. Mr. BELCOURT: No, that is Number eight. Was Number six sur-
rendered at Vhe time?

Dr. SCOTTr: Yes.
Hon. Mr. BELCOTJRT: But they want the matter reopened. The quesVion here

for us is whether we should allow them to reopen the matter so f ar as this area
is concerned, under Treaties Number six and eight.

Dr. SccYrT: Oh, no, not six. I am simply using that as a comparison,
showing what the Crown appraise the value of Vhis titie to, be. What I want
to make clear to the committee is that before a Commission went out V'O arrange
a treaty with Vhe Indians, the Commissioners were given directions; that ie, the
Crown decided what should be paid for this titie. An Order in Council was
sometimes passed. But sometimes the instructions were 'merely written. When
I made what is called Treaty Number nine for thie northern part of Ontario,
just before the transcontinental road went Vhrough there, it was by pre-arrange-
ment between the Ontario governent and the Dominion government. An agree-
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ment wau made and signed by both governments, and under these orders that
is ail we were enabled to give the Indians.

We were to offer theni reserves, and $4 a head annuity, and schools. I
could flot have gone beyond my instructions.

The obligations assumed by the Government,' were practically the sanie;
the Indians were to get 160 acres of land per head. The expenditure amounted
to $150,592, as being once for ail. What I mtean by "once for ail," is that
it was a cash payment, and the Indians were to ýbe given a certain number of
axes, hoes and cattie-once for ail.

The following is an analysis of the mutual obligations arising from Treaty
No. 8.

Area ceded: 324,900 square miles.

The Indianis Prornised:
To observe treaty.
To conduct~ theniselves as loyal subjeets.
To obey and abide by the law; maintain peace and assist Government

officers to bring Indian offenders to justice.
To agree to Government's power of expropriation on reserves upon pay-

ment of just compensation and agree to Government's right of dealing with
settlers who may be within limits of reservýe and also agree to the Govern-
ment's right to seli for the Indians' benefit any reserves, provided the consent
of the Indians is first obtained.

Obligattions Assumed by the Government:
Reserves or land in severalty; 160 acres per Indian.

Expenditure once for All:
Gratuity at time of treaty............ 43,960
Miscellaneous expenditure: tools, cattle, flags, medals,

etc....................106,632

Total. .................. $150,592
Perpe tuai Expenditure:

Annuities: Chiefs, $25; Headmen, $15, Indians, $5. Total payment in
1924, $26,895.

Salaries of teachers as Government may deem advisa;ble.
Chiefs and headmen get suitable suit of clothes triennially.
Families preferring to continue hunting and fishîng receive ammunition

and twine to the value of $1 per head annually.
It will be seen that the perpetual expenditure in Treaty No. 8 amounts to

between $27,000 and $30,000 per annum under the ternis of the treaty. We
find for the lest fiscal year, 1924-25, over and above treaty obligations, our
total expenditure for general purposes hw, heen $95,914, and for education
$63,574.

To emphasize the point of the comparative figures just given the matter
may be reduced to a statement: eptaExndur

Square Miles Giuaranteed by Treaty
Treaty No. 6..............28,800 $43,000 00
Treaty No. 8.............324,900 30,000 00

453,700 $73,000 00
Total Expenditure,
British Columbia
Indians, 1925-26British Columbia...........251,097 $690,63 14
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The Indian expenditure in the Province of British Columbia, where no
treaty exists, has been generous. The average expenditure for the fiscal years
from April 1, 1923, to March 31, 1926, has been $715,292.40, and, the Main
Estimatos for the current fiscal year allow $892,000 for Indian purposes in
British Columbia.

Hon. Mr. BELCOUnT: If this comparison which I have is taken from the
West, does it hold good throughout the rest of Canada, with regard to the
Indians?

Dr. SCOTT: I do not think our expenditure is so large, per capîta, east of
Lake Superior, because we had not to, face the problem of supporting the
Indians. In Ontario the Indians are practically self-supporting. In the country
north of the Great Lakes, there are stili Indians who can be classed as, hunters
and fishers. After the buffalo disappeared in 1878-79 it was necessary for the
Government to interpose, and practically feed the Indians on the plains. They
were hunters, for a number of years, and then became agriculturists. I arn sure
they are now practically self-supporting. The actual outlay to prevent desti-
tution or suffering in the central parts of the prairies is almost nil, but that
obligation begins to press vcry severely upon us in regard to the hunting Indians
because as the hunting disappears, and the competition. of independent white
hunters takes place, with ail sorts of restrictive regulations to prevent the
disappearance of game, the Indians are gradually being thrown on the goveru-
ment for support.

Hon. Mr. BmnLcouwR: That is outside the Province of British Columbia?
Dr. Scorr: Yes.

Hon. Mr. BELCOURT: Do you anticipate the same resuit, in the more or less
distant future, as far as British Columbia itself is*½oncerned? Is hunting goinýg
to disappear?

Dr. SCOTT: The hunting is disappearing, yes. The Indians who hunt, in
British Columbia, are under great disabiIities owing to the hunting restrictions
by the provincial authorities, in regard to the settleinent undertaken in respect
of the preservation of game, timber and fishing. We can have some valuable
information on the question of fishing, from Mr. Found, the Commissioner of
Fisheries. It is very strik;ing, the part the Indians of British Columbia take in
the fishing industry of the province.

Hon. Mr. BENsiErn": You see them at it in the canneries.
Dr. SCOTTr (Reading):

The important question to be decided by the Dominion Goverument,
guardian of the Indians, is whether the dlaim of aboriginal tîtie is to be
referred to the Courts, and if not, what course is to be adopted, in the future
treatment of the question, and what motive or policy is te prevaîl in our
future relationship with our wards. It is our duty to cuiîsider what
advantage is to be gained by the Indians from this referenoe. If success-
fui, will their position in British Columbia be improved, or will any
advantage follow, financial or otherwise? Or will ail that is favourable
in their relations with the British Columbia government be jeopardized?
We must, I think, consider the effeet of a reference to the Courts by the
Dominion Governmcnt upon the confirmed agreement between the Gov-
ernents. If that agreement is impaired or destroyed, the allotment of
the reserves now secured may depend upon favourable intervention at
some future time by the Secretary of State for the Colonies. Is the
Dominion Government debarred by the final settiement of ail differences
between the Governments respecting Indian lands and Indiani affairs
generally in the province from referring the question te the Courts?
These are questions which the Committee will have to consider. and the

[Mr. Duncan C. Scott.]
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undersigned has endeavoured te assist their deliberations by setting forth
the histoirical fact,-, by gîving statistics to show the value of Indian titie
as appraiscd by past agreements, and to make plain the policy of the
Government which Ieads to expenditure much larger than trea.ty obligations
would warrant, undertaken for the graduai civilization of the Indian and
his advancement te full citizenship. The consideration of the questions
above set out will naturally give rise to a review of the present Indian
policy of the Dominion Government in British Columbia. It will be found
not to differ ini any respect fromn the general policy, and the British
Columbia Indians wiii appear as recipients of like benefits to other
Indians. The special mark of a treaty with Indians is the payment of
annuity. ln British Columbia this is absent; it is a questionable benefit,
and was only resorted te as a rnethod of giving individual Indians equal
compensation. If the Committee will make a comparison between the
character and condition of the British Columbia Indians as described
by Honourable Mr. Trut.ch in 1872 and the Indians who have appeared
before the Government urging their dlaim!s, the result will be striking.
Mr. Trutch states that ' by f ar the larger proportion of them are utter
savages"; the deputations of the present day have been headed by an
Indian who is a Minister of the United Church. is companions speak
and write English and are self-supporting members of society. These
representatives are no doubt. in advance of the Indians generally, but
they speak for their people and supply them with ideas. This contrast
arises as a result of civilization working upon the natural intelligence of
the race; it can be employed most usefully in comparing the treaty terms
of the past with the dlaims set up by these progressive and educated
Indians.

The value to the Crown of the Indian title has not been increased
by the settlement of the Province and the developmnent of its natural
resources, or hy the prescnt needs of the natives, but the Indian, possessed
of the idea that he has aboriginal title, feeling the pressure of competition
and of disabilities which are not pecuiliar te his environment in British
Columbia, has magnifled the value and lias brought into the settlement
of the problem factors which arc foreign to it. In other words the Gov-
ernment is dealing with educated and progressive Indians in-stead of with a
primitive people.

As it is clear that the Dominion Government assumed certain respon-
sibilities under the Thirteenth Clause of the Terms of Union, and while
at that time the British Columbia Government had no very well developed
policy, yet they had established or were thinking of establishing schools
for the Indians and were looking forward te a time when they would
become self-supporting members of the cominunity. It is f air te say that
the Dominion Governinent haS carricd on and developed that iticipient
policy. This is apparent particularly in the item of Indian education,
and as that is placed by the Indians themselves in the forefront of their
requirements, it is interesting to note that the Department is gradually
developing a system of Indian schools which when completed may be found
te meet ail the reasonable needs of the case. A complete building pro-
grain tetalling $1,31,0,000 would suffice te establish ahl necessarv Indian
schools within the province. Whîen it is rompleted the annual mainten-
ance would cost $468,000, and 4,415 Indians will be under training. If,
in addition to this, a care fui administration is .maintained, and if in-
struction is provided in agriculture and fruit-growing in districts where
it is applicable, and if the present medical superivision and hospital treat-
ment is gradually improved, it appears to the undersigned that the needs
of the British Columbia Indians will be provided for, and by sudh an
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expenditure not only would the supposed Indian titie be amply satisfied,
but the obligation which the Dominion undertook at the time British
Columbia came into the Union will be met most futlly and comprehensively.

Ail of which is respectfully submitted.

DUNCAN C. SCOTT,
Deputy Superintendent Generat of Indian Aiffairs.

OTTAWA, March 30, 1927.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: How many Indians are there in British Columbia?

Dr. SCOTTr: About 23,000.
Hon. Mr. BELCOURT: I should like Dr. Scott to read to us that part, he

read a littie while ago, which mentions the subjeets which have been specifically
referred to us for investigation.

Dr. SCOTTr:
The important question to be decided by the Dominion Government,

guardian of the Indians, is whether the dlaim of aboriginal title is to be
referred te the courts, and if not, wbat course is to be adopted in the
future treatmient of the question, and -what motive or policy is to prevail
in our future relationship with our wards.

The petition asks for reference to the courts.
As far as my opinions of this question are concerned, 'which I expressed

rather freely, I have been expressing them to the Indians just as freely, for the
fast ten years. As a tuatter of f act, there is nothing new in it; in giving those
opinions, they will not b-e new to the Indians.

Hon. Mr. BENNETT: If the court wcrc to decide in f avour of their titie,
do you believe that would be a settiement of the dlaims which would arise?

Dr. SCOTT: If it were left to the Province of British Columabia to settle

the dlaims, we ail know it is their opinion that there is no dlaim. And if the

courts said, "Yes, there is a dlaim, British Columbia ought to give you one
dollar an acre for the title," we know what the reply of British Columbia would
be.

Hon. Mr. BELCOURaT: How can this committee recommend a course of
action that would bring about a settlement, if the Province of British Columbia,
which is a necessary party, refuses to deai with the subject at ail? Are not our
hands tied?

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Did I correctly gather, from your memorandum, that

prior to Confederation, British Columbia, as a colony, had deait with the Indian

question in a manner which they thought was satisfactory; what appeared to be
a definite settiement.

Dr. SCOTT: I think so.
Hon. Mr. BENNETT: And then, when British Columbia entered Confedera-

tion, the Dominion Government's duty consisted only in looking after the

interests of the Indians, urder section 13, of the Tierms of the Union?

Dr. SCOTT: Their obligation went f ar beyond that.
Hon. Mr. BENNETT: Later on, agitation and dispute having arisen, the

Dominion and Provincial Governments came to an agreement, and the Royal

Commission of 1912 ratified the agreement. In 1923-24, Parliament brought

about what the two governments assumed to be a final settlement of the question
in dispute.

Dr. SCOTT: Yes. And Mr. Newcombe gave it as his opinion that it was
a settlement.

[Mr. Duncan O. Scott.]
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Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Through ail those years, the Indians stili persisted
in claiming aboriginal titie to the land.

Dr. SCOTT: Yes.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: That is really the main question that is outstanding,

as far as the Indians are concerned.
Dr. SCOTT: 1 think se.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: But not as far as the Provincial and Dominion govern-

ments are concerned.
Dr. SCOTT: iNo. The question hetween them was finally settled by this

allotment of the land.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: As f ar as the Department cf Indian Affairs is concerned,

the Superintendent-General and ycurself as Assistant Superintendent-General,
are really guardians or trustees cf the Indians' rights.

Dr. SCOTT: Yes, under the provisions cf the Indian Act.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: We corne back to the position as pcinted out a moment

ago by Senator Belcourt; that any dlaims which we mîght now recognize would
be against the province, and not against the Dominion.

Dr. SCOTr: That is clear, because the province has the lands,
Hon. Mr. BELCOURT:- Might I ask, on that point, what part, if any, the

Indians took in connection with the Royal Commission of 1912.
Dr. SCOTT: They appeared before the Commissieners.
Hon. Mr. BELCOURT: Did they submit their rights?
Dr. SCOTTr: No, the Commission met with this question by saying to thc

Indians they had no power te deal with it; the Commission said they were te
set apart reserves.

Hon. Mr. BELCOURT: In 1914, the Dominion and Provincial gcvernments
agreed upon a reference te the Exchequer Court.

Dr. SCOTT: No, net the Provincial goverument.
Hon. Mr. BENNETT: The Provincial government, refused te do it. That is

the difficulty.
Dr. SCOTT: May I say that I asked the government te, pass that Order in

Council se that, for the first time, the nature cf the titie cf the Indians would
be recognized. By that Order in Ceuncil, the Dominion and Provincial
governments stated they were willing te assume the responsibility cf giving the
land, but they said the Indians must a.ccept the land subjeet te control by that
Commission.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: The Indians neyer agreed te that.
Dr. SCOTT: No, the Indians neyer agreed te that.
Hon. Mr. Bxz.COURT: If that is the case, is there anything te show that the

Indians committed themselves at any time, in regard te these questions? They
have accepted money.

Dr. SCOTT: They have accepted those benefits fromn the land.
Hon. Mr. BELCOUET: Did the Indians commit themselves in respect of any

cf the provisions cf the agreement, in regard te title?
Dr. 'SCOTT: With the exception cf what is already stated in the Treaty;

104,000 miles on the southern point cf Vancouver Island.
Hon. Mr. BIELCOIJET: Let us take it with regard te the province cf British

Columbia; the Royal Commission cf 1912 stated the amount cf expenditure
whîch British Columbia was hcund te make.

Dr. SCOTT: They ratified that.
[Mr. Duncan C. Scott.]



SPECIAL COMMITTEE

Hon. Mr. BELcouRT: Ail this committee can do now is to say to the Pro-
vincial government, you agreed to do so and so.

Dr. SCOTrT: That is ail.
Hon. Mr. MURPHY: What did the Indians say with reference to the land

set aside by that Commission, did they occupy the land?
Dr. SCOTT: Yes.
Hon. Mr. IVuR'HY: Did the Commission set spart new reserves for them.,

and is that held by the government to be a fair settiement of the question of
reserves?

Dr. SCOTr: 0f course, the Indians are demanding 160 acres per head, in
the province of British Columbia. You will find that stated ini the pamphlet;
that may be developed later on before the Committee, as to what the dlaim
actually is.

Hon. Mr. MURPHY: Which would be in excess of the land set aside by
the Royal Commission?

Dr. SCOTT: Yes, tremendously in cxcess.
Hon. Mr. McLENNAN: Have any areas been selected for them?
Dr. SCOTT: They were selected with great care by them, as lands being

occupied and used by the Indians, to which they had aboriginal title. There
are over 1,200 reserves in British Columbia.

Hon. Mr. MURPHY: They were not moved to other placpç;?
Dr. SCOTT: No, they were not evicted. Some hardship occurred on

account of land being pre-empted which had been occupied by Indians, but
this was through inadvertencee. The British Columbia government bas been
able, in some cases, to get back the land, and give it to the Indians. The British
Columbia government has acted throughout, reason.5bly and generously. We
were willing to do what we could, in regard to such allotmcnt, but thc Indians
are not satisfied with those reserves; in some instances, in regard to the quantity
of the land, and some places, as to location.

Hon. Mr. MCLEN.ýNAN: Did they appear before the Royal Commission?
Dr. SCOTTr: In some cases they were represented.
Hon. Mr. BELCOURT: Did they ever put forward dlaims which have not

-been adjudicated upon?
Hon. Mr. MURPHY: No, they refused to do so.
Mr. MCPHERSON: No compensation was made, outside of the compensa-

tion for land.
Dr. SCOTT: Yes. You will find it in the pa.mphlet which was printed, and

presented to the British Columbia Governiment in 1919, and which contains the
conditions imposed as the basis of settlement.

Mr. MCPHEBSON: That is in the printed report, filed.
Dr. SCOTT: Yes, you will see it in one of the appendices of my report.
With reference to the 160 acres of land, in sections of the province where

the character of the available land made it undesirable to carry out the a.gree-
ment, it was proposed that the Indians should be compensatcd for such defici-
ency by being given hunting lands, or otherwise, accordin'g to the conditions of
eacli section. Any existing inequalities in respect of acreage, and value, were
to be adjusted. The dlaims with respect to land were enormous.

Hon. Mr. BELCOURT: We cannot suggest anything to our parliameigt that
could be at aîl effective. If we were to decide on this question of law, British
Columbia would refuse to accept our jurisdiction. If British Columbia takes
the ground that they have an agreement, and that is the end of it, I do net
see what purpose this committce can serve 'by hearing ahl these people. It
seems to me that we are up against an insuperable difficulty.

[Mr. Duncan, C. Scott.]
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Hon. Mr. BENNETT: In the New England States, title was predicated upon
the same basis.

Hon. Mr. BELCOURT: It becomes a purely academic question.
The CHAIRMAN: The point is, do you want to ask Dr. Scott any more

questions.
Hon. Mr. MURPHY: He will be at our disposal.
Hon. Mr. BELCOTIRT: I seriously suggest that I think the work of this

Committee is finished; we cannot do anything more; we cannot make any kind
of suggestion, or report that will be effective. It is a question of law in which
one of the parties interested refused to come here and have anything to do
with it.

Hon. Mr. STEWART: The adjustment between the two governments is
complete, as to what they agree is required for reserves, for the benefit of the
Indians.

Hon. Mr. BELCOURT: That is not in dispute here.
Hon. Mr. STEWART: It is, to this extent, the Indians, as our wards, have

never agreed to it as a definite settlement. However, it must be borne in mind
that even if they have not agreed, they have been occupying and accepting the
reserves. That situation is not uncommon in other provinces where they have
the same problem. I understand that British Columbia takes the ground that
the Indians will get nothing more, that the settlement arrived at was thought
to be a reasonable settlement. British Columbia may take the ground that
if we want more ground for the Indians, we will have to pay for it. The other
provinces will not always take that position, particularly if they have lands
that arc Crown lands. They would not buy the lands, that is true, but it seems
to me that as this is such a controversial question, we might as well hear these
people who have come here, It must not be said that the Government, after
hearing Dr. Scott, closed the case.

Hon. Mr. BELCOURT: My observation had particular reference to the
question of title, which I understand is the main question that bas been referred
to this Committee. You have separated that question from the one point of
which you have just spoken; it is a different question all together. As to the
question of acreage, that is a matter to be adjusted between the departments.
On the question of aboriginal title, I say it is utterly hopeless for us to proceed.

Hon. Mr. B1E''r: I think, to the extent of which it is possible for us to
make a declaration, it might be desirable for us to do so. I quite agree with
what Senator Belcourt bas said. We could make a report and declaration that
our opinion is so and so, and Parliament might possibly implement that later,
by some forn of legislation which would be of a declaratory character.

Hon. Mr. BELcouRT: I have no objection to hearing the witnesses, but
I thought I should point out that situation.

.Hon. Mr. STEVENS: I suggest that we hear the Indians, and their repre-
sentative, but that the case, in its presentation, should be divided into two
parts. Dr. Scott will correct me if I am wrong in my interpretation of the
situation when I say that the present claim in regard to the aboriginal title,
which is the thing that has been adjudicated, should be kept separate from the
other questions regarding administration, and whether there has been a full
settlement made by the province of British Columbia in accordance with the
findings of the Royal Commission of 1912. That is the question which I do not
think the Dominion Government will have very great difficulty in adjudicating.
As far as this Parliament is concerned, the question of aboriginal title should
be disposed of, and the other dealt with separately; otherwise, we will get
into an endless discussion.

[Mr. Duncan C. Scott.]
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Mr. MÇPIIERSON: AiU the information Il have on this, Mr. Chairman, is a
copy of a petition filed in the Senate last year. 1 gather that the government
had practically decided. what they thought was the correct settiement of this
question between the Dominion and the Provinces, but that that is net satis-
factory to, the Indians and they want to submit their dlaims to the Privy Council.
It would look as if that was one of the main issues in their petition. If there
is a dispute and the Indians will net accept the provision made, then the corn-
rnittee will have to decide on that point, which might waive the necessity for us
going into detail.

Hon. Mr. MURP-HY: Can we determine what is at issue unless we hear the
other side? Is it not ail speculation in advance of that?

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Yes.
Hon. Mr. BELCOURT: Do I understand that the Indians are asking te have

a stated case?
Mr. MCPHERSON: To be subrnitted to the Privy Council. "That immediate

steps be taken for f acilitating an independent proceeding." That is a reference
se that their petit-ion might be brought before His Majesty's Privy Council.
" Or such other judicial action as might be found necessary to secure the judg-
ment of the judicial comrnittee of the Privy Council,"

Hon. Mr. BELCOUET: Would that have to he submitted to our own Courts?
Mr. MOPHERSON: They ask for the Privy Council.
Hon. Mr. STEWART: Would it net be well now to, hear argument frorn the

representative of t.he -Allied Tribes as to their contention that they have an
aboriginal title, despite the fact that the dlaim is made, and acquîesced in;
apparently, that that was cancelled. Doctor Scott has suhmitted a memorandum
which will be printed for the benefit of the members of the committee. The
point as te the aboriginal tîtie is one upon whîch they should he given an
opportunity to ýspeak te the committee, and then we can decide how f ar WC will
go later.

Hon. Mr. MURPHY: Who is te do that, Mr. Stewart?
Hon. Mr. STEWART: Who is te speak for yen, Mr. Pauli?
Mr. PA-ULL: Dealing with the constitutional matters, Mr. Chairman? I

would like to ask Doctor Scott a question hefore he leaves.
The CHAIRMAN: Certainly.
Mr. PAULL: Docter Scott has deait with one phase only of the constitutionai

matters included in this case. I would respectfuliy ask the hon. members of
the cormîttee net te forrn any hurried conclusions hefore they have distened
te the constitutional matters involved in this question.

The CILAIRMAN: Mr. Pauli, hefore yeu start, I think for Lhe information ef
the members of the cominittee, yen had better state why yen are here, and your
standing. Whomn do you represent?

Mr. PAULL: My name is Andrew Pauli. I arn a fulI-hlooded Indian of-the
Squamisli tribe, and I arn secretary of the executive conirittee of the Ailied
Indian Tribes of British Columbia.

The CHAIEMAN: Mr. Pauli, do the AIlied Tribes include ail of your peopl1e?
You are not, speaking for every tribe in British Columbia?

Mr. PAIJLL: As f ar as the ahoriginal titie is concerned, I am speaking for
the organization of the Indians in British Columbia, deaiing with this, question.
Other Indians may corne here and represent themnseives, dealing with their -own
particular reserves.

Hon. Mr. BENNEiTT: What trîbes do yen represent?
Mr. PAULLL: I represent neariy ail the tribes in British Columbia. I might

narne somne of themn from memory. On the southern coast, the Squamish Indians;
'Mr. Duncan C. Scott.]
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ail the Indians on Vancouver Island, east and west coasts; the Indians, up the
coast of British Columbia, ail along the coast.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Do you represent the Indians in the interior? At
Kamloops and the Okanagan?

Mr. PAULL: The greater part, of the Interior Indians, with the exception
of those Indians represented by Chief John Chiliihitse. I do not know just the
proper name of bis Iocaiity, but he is striving for the same thing.

Hon. Mr. MeLENNAN: Could you tell us about the relative number of
Indians that you represent and týhat are not represented?

Mr. PAULL: I think we lack only about 200 of the Indians in British
Columbia.

Hon. Mr. STEvENs: Then there is a committee of white men associated
with you, is there not, Mr. ?aull?

Mr. PATJLL: In a sympathetie way; they are giving us their moral support;
the Society of Friends of the Indians of British Columbia, in1 British Columbia.
Then there is a society of white people in eastern Canada.

The CHIIARMA&N I3efore voii give further evidence, Mr. Paulil, you should
be sworn, to give evidence before the committee.

ANDREW PAULL sworn.

Hon. Mr. MTRPHiy: I understand Mr. Pauli to say he wanted to ask
Doctor Scott a question or two before he gave bis own evidence. It might be
more regular to do that, and then the witness could go on.

The WITNESS: 1 wvould like Doctor Scott to inform the committee if it is
not a fact that the major portions Of the expenditures of the government
towards the Indians of British Columbia did flot go in a large way for schools
and education? I wish'Doctor Scott would make it clear that the Indians in
British Columbia did not receive any monetary compensation individually.

Dr. SCOTT: I stated that they received no annuity; which answers a portion
of the question. The financial statement is arrangcd in sub-heads. $5,422,870.05
has been spent on education.

Hion. Mr. STEVEINs: That is boarding schools?
Dr. SCOTT: Yes, boarding and day schools. I might read ahl the headings:-

Relief, $601,787; aid to agriculture, $162,881; medical attendance,
$1,364,000 odd; schools, $5,442,000; travelling expenses, $50,000.

That is the travelling expenses of agents.

Miscellaneous, $578,150.

That is dyking and irrigation anid 'ah sorts of miscellaneous expenditures.
Surveys and Irrigation, $314,385.

Hon. Mr. MOLENNAN: Have you the total there?
Dr. SCOTTr: Yes, the total is $10,800,300.
Hon. Mr. McLENNAN: About haîf for education then?
Dr. SCOrT: Yes.
The WiTNEss: iNow I would like Doctor Scott to file a report with this

committee showing how much of the Indians' own funds have been expended
for sehools, education, hospitals, medicine, medical attendance, and for the
maintenance of law and order in British Columbia. It may be a bit of informa-
tion to the hon. members of this committee to knnw that the Indians themselves
bave expended some money out of their own tribal funds in paying policemen

[Mr. Andrew Paull.]
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to maintain law and order in the province of British Columbia. I am sorry
the Honourable Mr. Oliver has left. That would have been a good piece of
information for him. I would ask Doctor Scott to file a report to show how
the Indians have spent money on those things.

Hon. Mr. STEwART: Mr. Paull, we only have twenty minutes; will you
deal with that very important matter, the question of aboriginal title, first.

The WITNEss: It is impossible to deal with it in its entirety in twenty
minutes, but I will endeavour to give the gist of it. I would like to ask Mr.
O'Meara to present the argument on our behalf on the constitutional matter.
Doctor Scott dealt with Article Thirteen of the Termg of Union. It would
appear from his memorandum that that article alone was the one which governs
this whole controversy. It is not. I am sorry to see that he did not deal with
Section 109 of the British North America Act, which, in my humble opinion,
concerns the aboriginal title. I notice the reply of the government of the
Province of British Columbia. They depend on Section 109.

By Hon. Mr. Belcourt:
Q. Have you the text of that?-A. I am sorry I did not come here this

morning prepared, but I am sure Mr. O'Meara has that.
Hon. Mr. STEWART: Here it is.
Hon. Mr. McLENNAN: Would you read it, please?
Hon. Mr. BELCOTURT: (Reading):

All lands, mines, minerals, and royalties, belonging to the several
provinces of Canada, Nova Scotia, and New Brunswick at the union, and
all sums then due or payable for such lands, mines, minerals, or royalties,
shall be known to the several provinces of -Ontario, Quebec, Nova Scotia,
and New Brunswick in which the same are situate or arise, subject to
any trusts existing in respect thereof, and to any interest other than
that of the province in the sare.

By Hon. Mr. Belcourt:
Q. You are relying on the words "subject to any trusts existing in respect

thereof?"-A. Yes. Now it may be hard for me to give an expression of opin-
ion as to the exact meaning of that, but we hope, during the course of our
representations to this committee, to construe it. We will quote decisions to
explain just exactly what that means, and we are relying on that section and
the decisions to substantiate our claim.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q. May I ask you there, Mr. Paull, so as to get your claim clearly stated,

under that section of the Act; do you claim that British Columbia, when it
entered Confederation, held in trust for 'you all the lands, mines, minerals, and
so on, as set forth in that section?-A. The title of the lands in the province
of British Columbia rested in the Crown, to be held in trust for the British
Columbia government. But before that, there was another interest; it was
subject to another interest, and that interest was the Indian interest, which
was capable of being brought into competition with the interest of the province.

By Hon. Mr. Belcourt:
Q. Do you mean the Indian occupation interest? The claim derived from

occupation?
Hon. Mr. BENNETT: No, they do not limit it to occupation.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: I should like to get precisely what they do claim.
The WITNEss: I have not got the decisions with me.

[Mr. Andrew Paull.]



CLAIMS 0F THE ALLIED INVDIAN TRIBES, BfC. 27

Hon. Mr. BELCOURT: We should know what is the nature of this interest.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: The committee would like to get your view, representing

the Indians, as to just what they claim.

By Hon. M1r. Belcourt:
Q.Would you rather ]eave that to someone else to deal with?-A. I would

rather be given an opportunity to quote from documents which I have preparcd,
and which we have had prepared. 1 do not intend to lirait my representations
to this committee, to this time only; 1 hope to have the privilege of appearing
again, and I would rather not be presýsed in that matter for the time being.

wiîQ. Ail right; go on with your statement.-A. Our chairman, Mr. Kelly,
wilbe here this week, and I hope the committee will give him an opportunity

tomake representations as well. There are other Indians here in the City now,and we would like the commnittee to listen to them before we make our repre-
sentations. Mr. Kelly and myseif realize the responsibility that we have to the
Indians in British Columbia. I would ask Mr. O'Meara to present our consti-
tutional argument before this committee, either now or at the pleasure of the
committee, before we, the Indians, make any further representations, so that the
committee may not hurriedly arrive at a decision upon the memorandum of
Dr. Scott. 1 would humbly pray that you listen to Mr. O'Meara's argument
now.

The CHAIRMAN: We have hardly time for that this morning. Have the
members of the Committee any further questions they want to ask Mr. Pauli
at tîle moment?

Hon. Mr. MuRPHY: This witness says, Mr. Chairman, that their argument
with reference to the constitutional phase of the matter is ta be presented by
another gentleman. Then why not adjoura now and hear him next?

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: I hope, Mr. Chairman, that the comrnîttee will try to
keep to the points 1 ment.ioned.

Hon. Mr. MURPHY: I must certaînly object to hearing speeches from other
gentlemen who are said to be in the City. We want first representations, of
fact.

Hon. Mr. STEWART: 1 think, Senator Murphy, that we have summoned thee
witness.ýeq, and the eommittee can decide whether they want to hear them or not
after we have heard the main argument. I take it that what the committee are
anxious about now is rehuttal evidence on the constitutional ýquestion.

The CHAIRMAN: For the information of the committee, 1 may say that
Messrs. Andrew Pauli, A. E. O'Meara. Rev. P. R. Kelly, W. E. Ditchburn, and
Chief Chillîhitza have been summoned to appear hefore the committee.

Hon. Mr. TAYLOR: Then had we better flot adjourn now until tomorrow
morrnng?

Hon. Mr. STEWART: Let us be clea.r about this: shall Mr. O'Meara appear
at ten o'clock tomorrow morning to present argument on this question, or on any
other?

Hon. Mr. BELCOURT: Mr. Chairman, may I suggest that the proper way
for the committee ta proceed would be ta hear what is evidence, and when wehave heard the evidence, then hear an argument by whoever wants to make it.We want the evidence first. If we have arguments submitted before we hear theevidence, we will he here for a longer time than we are able ta give.

Hon. Mr. STEWART: The evidence is in rebuttal of what is claimed.
Hon. Mr. BELCOURT: Let us distinguish between evidence and argument.

Mr. O'Meara is simply going ta argue the question. Then let us hear him when
we have ahl the facts before us.

[Mr. AnLIrew Pauii.]
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Hon. Mr. GREEN: Is flot Mr. O'Meara here to present the case for the
Indians?

.Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Mr. Pauli is asking that Mr. O'Meara, as counsel, argue
tAie constitutional point. 1 tbink before he does that, the Indians sbouid present
to us their views of their clainis to the degree that, they want to show tbem.
Then Mr. O'Meara can make bis argument as counsel, if we are going to recogni*
him as counsel instead of as a witness.

Hon. Mr. McLENN1ýAN: In otber words, the Indians will present what they
have to say in criticism, or modification of Doctor Scott's departmentai state-
ment.

Hon. Mr. MuEpHy: Or in support of their own dlaim.
Hon. Mr. McLENNAN: Yes, or in support of their own dlaim.
Hon. Mr. BEI.COUET: Mr. Pauli was sworn, for the purpose of giving

evidence. He bas flot yet gîven us a single f act. He bas argued, and that is
ail.

Hon. Mr. BARNARD: Is it not of importance.tbat we sbould know exactly
wbat tbey dlaim, and then we cani to some extent confine the evidence and argu-
ment to the issue?

Mr. McPiiERsoN: Apparently Mr. Pauli wants Mr. O'Meara to state bis
(daim.

Tbe WITNESQS: If it is tbe wisb of the committee that I sbouid give evidence
before the constitutional argument is made, I am prepared to do so. I wouid like
to be given the priviiege of speaking after Chief Cbilibitza.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: We do net want to get into a squabble between different
parties here. Let tbem. give their evidence as they are summoned before tbe
committee, and we wiil treat tbem ail f airiy.

Hon. Mr. STEWART: I arn of the opinion that Mr. O'Meara sbould appear as
a witness, rather than as counsel. Tbere is not any doubt that the dlaim of
the Indians wiil bave to be presented by someone f amiliar with putting f acts
before the committee. They apparently bave selected Mr. O'Meara, and I tbink
be sbouid give bis statement before tbe wîtnesses are cailed.

MCPHERSON: The same as Mr. Pauli.
Hon. Mr. STEWART: H1e sbould present the case of tbe Indians with

respect to tbe aboriginal tîtie. Tbe argument xviii come inter.
Hon. Mr. BEILCOUnT: We wiii bave both statements of f act and argument

f rom Mr. O'Meara.
The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, I understand there is a Mr. Beament here,

who wants to know wbetber the comnmittee will ailow bim to appear as counsel
for tbe Indians. He is bere now, and perbaps you will bear wbat be bas to,

Sa.Hon. Mr. MuRWHY: Mr. ýCbairman, witb ail respect, I tbink we sbouid
decide one tbing, at a time. First let us settie our own procedure as a commit-
tee.

Mr. A. W. BEAMENT (Barrister, Ottawa): Mr. Chairman, I wish to&
appear as counsel for tbe petitioners. I was tryîng to get tbe ear of tbe coni-
mittee witb regard to the discussion wbicb bas taken place. I think Mr.
MePherson bas toucbed the reai point at issue. Tbe petitioners sbould, I sub-
mit, be given an opportunity now to put in evidence proving the ailegations
stated in the petition, and tbat aill the evidence put in and the argument sbould
be directed towards the dlaimas stated in the petition. That ie, we shouid
satisfy tbis committee first of ail that there are substantiai legai questions at
issue between tbe Indians and the two governments. If we satisfy them that
tbere are substantial iegai questions, we shouid not go on to argue the absolute

[Mr. Andrew PauBl.]
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mýerits of those questions; we should then confine ourselves to proving our
right, to have those substantiaý1 judicial questioins adjudicated upon by a
competent tribunal. That is ail wýe are asking this cornrittee to do. We are
not asking the cornmittee to adjudicate upon the merits of our substantive
claim. We are only asking them to, facilitate and expedite a hearing by as
competent a tribunal as can be found, of these dlaims that we make.

With regard to, Mr. O'Meara's position, which thc Hon. Mr. Stewart bas
touched upon, 1 will subrnit to the committee that it is not inconsistent with
bis appearing as counsel for the petitioners, and also giving evidence, as long
as professional opinions are not included in that. Certainly he has no objec-
tieon to acting as I have stated.

Hnn. Mr. STEvENS: There is this difficulty, that I tbink we ought to
avoid; we are not putting the Department of Indian Affairs on trial before this
cornmittee, as regarcts minor matters. As I understand it, we are here for
the purpose of hearing the Indians regarding this dlaim of aboriginal title
chiefiy. There may be some other matters that they would like, to bring before
us, but certainly we should not put the Department of Indian Affairs on trial
here before the committee.

Mr. McPmnsuN: May I suggest that when we finish that question we
will then be in the position of settling something that the government of British
Columbia is affected by only. I arn rather puzzled as to what we can do if
we want to, do anything here.

Hon. Mr. STEWART: There is just this one point, and that is that I would
like the evidence first, because there is no use wandering ail over the map on
the question of what the Federal and Provincial governments should do with
the Indians. We would be very glad to hear that, but I agree witb Mr. Stevens
that there bas been so much said about the rights of the Indians and their
right to consideration for their aboriginal tifle, and also statements have been
made definitely that 'hy the right!of conquest the lands of British Columbia
became the property of the Crown, and that the Crown was willing to treat
the Indians and give to them similar rights that were enjoyed in other parts
of Canada, treating themi exactly as other aborigines were treated in Canada.

Hon. Mr. BENNETT: Perhaps a little better.
Hon. Mr. STEWART: If t-here is to be rebuttal cvidcncc offered in respect

of the question of c.onquest, te show us that that was not the fact, and that
there is an Indian claim that xvas not extinguished, I think the committee should
have evidence to that effect.

Hon. Mr. B.NNETT: But a speech will not do it.
Hon. Mr. STEWART: No, we want evidence.
Hon. Mr. BELCOLET: There is no objection to that. I do not w-ant to be mis-

nnderstood. I do not ohject to tagt, at, ail, but I want to get the facts hefore I
pronounce upon the facts.

Hon. Mr. STEWART: That is the point. Let the witnesses understand that
they are te corne prepared on these questions, and not to spread ail over creation
on other matters.

Hon. Mr. MuRPHY: Then shall we meet to-morrow morning at ten o'clock,
LMvr. Chairman, and hear the witncsses?

The CHAIRMAN: Yes.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: And ail the witnesses will be called to-morrow morning.
The CHAIRMAN: Whoever they decide te caîl.
Mr. O'MEARA: I have not stated a. sentence on behaîf of the tribes yet, 31r.

Chairman.
[MIr. Andrew Pauli-1
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The CHAIRMAN: You wîl] be given an opportunity at ten o'clock to-morrow
rnorning.

Mr. O'MEARA: To go into the whole matter?
Hon. Mr. STEwAwT: The comxnittee wants you to corne prepared te, argue

the points raised this rnorning.
Mr. O'MEARA: I understand perfect1y well.

The Witness retired.

The cornrittee adjourned until 10 a.m., Thutsday, March 3lst, 1927.
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APPENDIX A

STATEMENT 0F THE ALLIED INDIAN TRIBFJS 0F BRITISH
COLUMBIA FOR THE GOVERNMENT 0F

BRITISH COLUMBIA

PART I.-GENERAL IbNTRODUCToitY REmARKS

The Statement prepared by the Committee appointed by the Conference
held at Vancouver in June, 1916, and sent to the Government of Canada and
the Secretary of State for the Colonies, contained the following:

The Committee concludes this statement by asserting that, while
it is believed that ail of the Indian tribes of the province will presa
on to the Judicial Comimittee, refusing te, consider any so-called settie-
ment made up under the McKenna Agreement, the Committee aise feels
certain that the tribes ailied for that purpose will always be ready to
consider any really equitable method of settiement out of court which
might lie proposed by the Governments.

A resolution, passed by the Interior Tribes at a meeting at Spence's Bridge
on the 6th December, 1917, contained the following:-

We are sure that the governments and a considera;ble number of
white men have for many years had in their minds a guite wrong idea
of the dlaims which we make, and the settiement which we desire. We
do not want anything extravagant, and we do not want anything hurtful
to the real interests of t.he white people. We want that our actual rights
be determined and recognized. We want a settiement based upon justice.
We want a full opportunity of making a future for ourselves. We want
ail this done in such a way that in the future we shall be able to live
and work with the white people as our brothers and fellow citizens.

Now we have been informed by our Special Agent that the Government
of British Columbia desircs to have fromn us a statemient, furthcr cxplaining
our mind upon the subject of settiement, and in particular stating the grounds
upon which we refuse to accept as a settiement the findings of the Royal Com-
mission on Indian Affairs for the Province of British Columbia, and what we
regard as necessary conditions ef equitable settiement.

In order that our mind regarding this whole subject may lie understood,
we desire first te, make clear what is the actual present position of the Indian
land controversy in this Province of British Columbia.

Throughout practical the whole of the rest of Canada, tribal ownership
of lands lias been fully acknowledged, and ail dealings with the various tribes
have been based upon the Indian titie se acknowledged.

It was long ago conceded by Canada in the most authoritative way possible
thiat the Indian trîbes of British Columbia have the samne titie. This is proved
beyond possibility of doubt by the report of the Minister of Justice, which was
presented on January 19, 1875, and was approved 'by the Governor General in
Council on January 23, 1875. We. set out the following extract from. that report:

Considering then these several features of the case, that no surrendier
or cession of their territorial riglits, whether the saine lie of a legal or
equitable nature, lias been ever executed by the Indian Tribes of the
province-that they allege that the reservations of land made by the
Government for their use have been arbitrarily so made, and are tetally
inadequate to their support and requirements and without their assent-
that they are not averse te hostilities in order te enforce riglits which it
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is impossible to, deny them, and that the Act under consideration flot only
ignores thosýe rights, but expressly prohibits the Indians from enjoying
the rights of recording or preiëmpting land, except by con8ent of the
Lieutenant-Governor, the undersigned feel that he cannet do otherwise
than advise that the Act in question is objectionable as tending to deal
with lands which are assumed to be the absolute property of the province,
,an assumption which completely ignores as applicable to, the Indians of
British Columbia, the honour and good f aith with which the Crown has
in ail other cases since its sovereignty of the territories in North America
deait wîth their various Indian tribes.

The undersigned would aise refer te the British North America
Act, 1867, section 109, applicable to British Columbia, which enacts in
effect that ail lands belonging to the province, shall belong te, the prov-
ince, ' subject to any trust existing in respect thereef, and te any interest
other than that of the province in the same.'

That which has been ordinarily spoken of as the 'Indian titie' must
of necessity consîst of some species of interest in the lands of British
Columbia.

If it is conceded that they have not a freehold in the soil, but that
they have an usufruct, a right of occupation or possession of the same for
their own use, then it would seem that these lands of British Columbia
are subject, if not to, a ' trust existing in respect thereof,' at lcast ' to ,In
interest other than that of he Province herein.

Since the year 1875, however, notwithstanding the report of the Minister
of Justice then presented and approved, local governments have been unwilling
to recognize the land rights which werc then recognized by Canada, and the two
,governments that entered into the McKenna-cid Agemnfaedt
recognize those land rights.

If now the two governents should be willing to accept the report and
Order in Council of the year 1875 as deciding the land controversy, they would
thereby provide what we regard as the only possible general basis of settlernent
other than a judgment of the Judicial Committec of His Majesty's Privy Council.

By means of the direct and independent petition of the Nishga Tribe, we
now have our case before is Majesty's Privy Council. We dlaim that we have
a right to a hearing, a right whîch lias now been made clear beyond any possi-
bility of doubt. Sir Wilfrid Laurier, when Prime Minister, on behialf of Canada,
met the Indian Tribes of Northern British Columbia, and promised without -any
condition whatever that the land controversy would be brought before the
Judicial Committee. Moreover, the Duke of Connaught, acting as lis Majesty's
representative in Canada, gave positive writtcn assurances that if the Nishiga
Tribe should not be willing to agree to the findings of the Royal Commission,
His Majesty's Privy Council will consider the Nishga petition. In view of Sir
Wilfrid Laurier's promnise, and the Duke of Connauglit's assurances, both of
which confirm what we regard as our clear constitutional right, we confidently
expeet an early hearing of our case.

Before concluding these introductory remarks, we wish to speak of one
other matter which we think very important. No settlement would, we are very
sure, be real and lasting unless it should be -a complete settiement. The so-
called settiement which the two governments that entered into the McKenlia-
MeBride Agreement, have made up is very far indeed from being complete.
The report of the Royal Commission deals only with lands to be reserved. The
reversionary title claimed by the Province is flot extinguished, as Special Com-
missioner McKenna said it would be. Foreshores have not been deait with.
No attempt is made to adjust our general rights, such as fishing rights, hunting
rights and water riglits. With regard to fishing riglits and water rights, the
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Commissioners admit that they can make nothing sure. It is clear to us that
all our general rights, instead of being taken from us as the McKenna-McBride
Agreement attempts to do by describing the so-called settlement thereby arranged
as a " final adjustment of all matters relating to Indian affairs in British Colum-
bia " should be preserved and adjusted. Also we think that a complete settle-
ment should deal with the restrictions imposed upon Indians by Provincial
Statutes and should include a revision of the Indian Act.

Now, having as we hope made clear the position in which we stand, and from
which we look at the whole subject, we proceed to comply with the desire of the
government of British Columbia.

PART II-REPORT OF THE ROYAL COMMISSION

Introductory Remarks

The general view held by us with regard to the report of the Royal Com-
mission was correctly stated in the communication sent by the Agents of the
Nishga Tribe to the Lord President of His Majesty's Privy Council on 27th
May, 1918.

We now have before us the report of the Royal Commission, and are fully
informed of its contents, so far as material for the purposes of this statement.
The report has been carefully considered by the Allied Tribes, upon occasion
of several meetings, and subsequently by the Executive Committee of the Allied
Tribes.

Two general features of the report which we consider very unsatisfactory
are the following:-

1. The additional lands set aside are to a large extent of inferior quality,
and their total value is much smaller than that of the lands which the Commis-
sioners recommend shall be cut off.

2. In recommending that reserves confirmed and additional lands set aside
be heild for the benefit of bands, the Commissioners proceeded upon a principle
which we consider erroneous, as all reserved lands should be held for the benefit
of the Tribes.

Grounds of Refusal to Accept

In addition to the grounds shown by our general introductory remarks, we
mention the following as the principle grounds upon which we refuse to accept
as a settlement the findings of the Royal Commission:-

1. We think it clear that fundamental matters such as tribal ownership of
our territories require to be dealt with, either by concession of the governments,
or by decision of the Judicial Committee, before subsidiary matters such as the
findings of the Royal Commission can be cquitably deailt with.

2. We are unwilling to be bound by the McKenna-McBride Agreement,
under which the findings of the Royal Commission have been made.

3. The whole work of the Royal Commission has been based upon the
assumption that Article 13 of the Terms of Union contains all obligations of the
two governments towards the Indian Tribes of British Columbia, which assump-
tion we cannot admit to be correct.

4. The MeKenna-MeBride Agreement, and the report of the Royal Com-
mission ignore not only our land rights, but also the power conferred by Article
13 upon the Secretary of State for the Colonies.

5. The additional reserved lands recommended by the report of the Royal
Commission, we consider to be utterly inadequate for meeting the present and
future requirements of the Tribes.

6. The Commissioners have wholly failed to adjust the inequalties between
Tribes, in respect of both area and value of reserved lands, which Special Com-
missioner MeKenna, in his report, pointed out and which the report of the Royal
Commission has proved to exist.

42-



SPECIAL COMMITTEE

7. Notwithstanding the assurance contained in the report of Special Com-
missioner McKenna, that " such further lands as are required will be provided
by the Province, in so f ar as Crown lands are available." The Province, by Art
passed in the spring oif the year 1916, took back two million acres of liand, no
part of which, as we undertand, was set aside for the Indians by the Commis-
sioners, whose report wa-s soon thereafter presented to the governments.

8. The Commissioners have failed Vo make any adjustment of water-rights,
which. in the case of lands situated within the Dry Belt, is indispensable.

9. We regard as manifestly unf air and wholly unsatisfactory the provisions
of the McKenna-McBride Agreement relating Vo the cutting-off and reduction of
reserved lands, under which one-haîf of the proceeds of sale of any such lands
wvould go Vo the Province, and the other haif of sucli proceeds, instead of going
into the hands or being held for the benefit of the Tribe, would be held by the
Governent of Canada for the benefit of adi the Indians of British Columbia.

PART III.-NECISSAUY CONDITIONS OF EQUITABLE SE'rTLEMENT

Introductory Remcvrks

1. In the year 1915, the Nishga Tribe and the Interior Tribes allied with
them, made proposais regarding settlement, suggesting that the matter of lands
Vo be reserved be finally deait with by the Sccretary of State for the Colonies,
and that ail other matters requiring Vo be adjusted, including compensation for
lands Vo be surrendered, be dealt with by the Parliament of Canada. Those
proposais the Government of Canada rejected by Order in Council, passed in June,
1915, mainly upon the ground that the Government was precluded by the
McKenna-McBride Agreemcnt from accepting them. For particulars, we refer
to "'Record of Interviews," published in July, 1915, at pages 21 and 105. It will
be f ourid that Vo some extent these proposais are incorporated in this statements.

2. Sonie f acts and considerations which, in considering the matter of addi-
tional lands, it is, we think, specially important to take inVo account, are the
following:-

(1) In the three States of Washington, Idaho and Montana, ail adjoining
British Columnbia, Indian tiLle has been recognized, and treaties have been made
with the Inwdian tribles of those States. Under those treaties, very large areas
of land have been set aside. The total lands set aside in those Vhree States con-
siderably exceeds 10,000,000 acres, and the per capita area varies froni about
200 acres Vo about 600 acres.

(2) Portions of the tribal territories of four tribes of the Interior of British
Columbia extend into the States above-mentioned, -and thus portions of Vhose
tribes hold la.nds in the Colville Reservation, situated in the State of Washing-
tot, and the Flathead Reservation, situatcd in the State of Montana.

(3) By treaties made with the Indian Tribes of the Provinces of Saskatche-
wan and Alberta, there has been set aside an average per capita area, of about
180 acres.

(4) For the five Tribes of Alberta that entered inVo Treaty No. 7, whose
tribal territories ahl adjoin British Columbia having now a total Indian popu-
lation of about 3,500, there was set aside a total area of about 762,000 acres,
giving a per capita area of 212 acres.

(5) The facts regarding the Indian Tribes inhabiting that part of Northern
British -Columbia lying to the East of the Rocky Mountains shown in Interini
Report No. 91 of the Royal Commission at .pages 126, 127 and 128 of the Report
show that, the Royal Commission approvcd and adopted as a standard for the
Indians of that part of the Province ocdupying Provincial lands the per capita
area of 160 acres of agricultural land per individual, or 640 acres per family
of five, set aside under Treaty No. 8.
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(6) As shown by the facts above stated, ail the Tribes that are close-neighbours of the British Columbia Indians on the South and East have hadlarge areas per capita set aside for their use and benefit, and the Indians inhabit-ing the Nort.heastern portion of British Colum:bia have also been fairly treated'in the matter of agricultural lands reserved for them. Notwithstanding thatstate of affairs, thc arcas set aside for ail the other British Columbia Tribesaverage only thirty acres per capita, or fromn one-fifth to one-twentieth of theacreage of Reserves set aside for their neighbours.
(7) It may also be pointed out that at one time even this small amouint ofland was considered excessive for the needs of the Indian Tribes of BritishColumbia, as is shown ýby the controversy which in the year 1873 arose betweenthe two Governments on the subject of acreage of lands to be reserved for theIndians of British Columbia. (See Report of Royal Commission at pages 16and 17.) At that time the Dominion Government contended for a basis of80 acres per family or 16 acres per capita, and the British Columbia Govern-

ment contended for a basis of 20 acres per family or 4 acres per capita.
(8) IL~ may further be pointed out that at that very time, wle the ýGov-ernments were diseussing the question whether each individual Indian required16 acres or 4 acres, the Provincial Government was allowing individual whitemen each to acquire by pre-emption 160 acres West of the Cascades 'and 320acres East of that Range, each pre-emptor choosing his land how and where

he desired.
(9) Ahl the facts which we have above stated when. takeil together proveconclusively, as we think, that the per capita area of 30 acres recommended 'bythe Rloyal Commnission is utterly inadequate, and that a per capita area of 160acres would be an entirely reasonable standard. That conclusion is completelyconfirmed by our knowledge of the actual land requirements of our Tribes.
(10) At the same time it is clear to us that, in applying that standlard, thewideiy differing conditions and requirements of various sections of the Province

should ibe taken into consideration.
(11) We proceed to state what are the conditions and requirements of eachof the sections to which wc have referred.
(12) For that purpose we divide the Province into five sections as follows:
I. Southern 'Coast.
II. Northern Coast, together with the West Coast of Vancouver Island.
III. Southern Interior.
IV. Centrai Jinterior.
V. Northern Interior.
In the case of Section I ail conditions are favourable for agriculture, and

the Indians, require much more agricultural land.
In the case of Section II the conditions are sucli that the country is notto any great extent agricultural. The Indians require some additional agricul-

turai land together with timber lands.
In the case of Section III the conditions are more favourable to stockraising than to agriculture. Throughdut the Dry Beit irrigation is an absolute

necessity for agriculture. The Indians require large additional areas of pasture
land.

In the case of Section IV there is abundance of good agricultural land,but the climatic conditions are not favourabie for stock raising and fruit grow-ing. The Indians require, additional areas of agricu!ltural land.
In the case of Section V the conditions arc wholly unfavourable to bothagriculture and stock raisîng. The main requirement of the Indians is that,either ýby setting aside large hunting and trapping areas for their exclusive

use or otherwise, hunting and trapping, the main industry upon which of*necessity they rely, should be fully preserved for them.
3. It is quite ciear to us that these conditions of settlement requiÎre, tobe considered by the Government of Canada as well as the Government of-

British Columbia.
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Conditions Proposed as Basis of Settlement

We beg to present for consideration of the two Governments the following
which we regard as necessary conditions of equitable settlement:

1. That the Proclamation issued by King George III in the year 1763 and
the Report presented by the Minister of Justice in the year 1875 'be accepted
by the two Governments and established as the main basis of all dealings
and all adjustments of Indian land rights and other rights which shall be
made.

2. That is be conceded that each Tribe for whose use and benefit land
is set aside (under Article 13 of the " Terms of Union ") acquires thereby a
full, permanent and beneficial title to the land so set aside together with all
natural resources pertaining thereto; and that Section 127 of the Land Act
of British Columbia be amended accordingly.

3. That all existing reserves not now as parts of the Railway Belt or
otherwise held by Canada be conveyed to Canada for the use and benefit of
the various Tribes.

4. That all foreshores whether tidal or inland be included in the reserves
with which they are connected, sa that the various Tribes shall have full
permanent and beneficial title to such foreshores.

5. That adequate additional.lands be set aside and that to this end a per
capita standard of 160 acres of average agricultural land having in case of
lands situated within the dry belt a supply of water sufficient for irrigation
be established. By the word "standard" we mean not a hard and fast rule,
but a general estimate to be used as a guide, and to be applied in a reasonable
way to the actual requirements of each tribe.

6. That in sections of the Province in case of which the character of avail-
able land and the conditions prevailing make it impossible or undesirable to
carry out fully or at all that standard the Indian Tribes concerned be com-
pensated for such deficiency by grazing lands, by timber lands, by hunting
lands or otherwise, as the particular character and conditions of each such
section may require.

7. That all existing inequalities in respect of both acreage and value
between lands set aside for the various Tribes be adjusted.

8. That for the purpose of enabling the two Governments to set aside
adequate additional lands and adjust all inequalities there be established a
system of obtaining lands including compulsory purchase, similar to that which
is being carried out by the Land Settlement Board of British Columbia.

9. That if the Governments and the Allied Tribes should not be able to
agree upon a standard of lands to be reserved that matter and all other
matters relating to lands to be reserved which cannot be adjusted in pursuance
of the preceding conditions and by conference between the two governments
and the Allied Tribes be referred to the Secretary of State for the Colonies
to be finally decided by that Minister in view of our land rights conceded by
the two Governments in accordance with our first condition and in pursuance
of the provisions of Article 13 of the " Terms of Union " by such method of
procedure as shall be decided by the Parliament of Canada.

1,0. That the beneficial ownership of all reserves shall belong to the Tribe
for whose use and benefit they are set aside.

11. That a system of individual title to occupation of particular parts of
reserved lands be established and brought into operation and administered by
each Tribe.

12. That all sales, leases and other dispositions of land or timber or other
natural resources be made by the Government of Canada as trustee for the
Tribe with the consent of the Tribe and that of all who may have rights of
occupation affected, and that the proceeds be disposed of in such way and
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used from time te time for such particular purposes as shall be agreed upon
hetween the Government of Canada and the Tribe together with ail those having
rîghts of occupation.

13. That the fishing rights, hunting rights, and water rights of the Indian
Tribes be fully adjusted. Our land rights having first been established by con-
cession or decision we are willing that our general rights shall after full con-
ference between the two Governments and the Tribes be adjusted by enactment
of the Parliament of Canada.

14. That in connection with the adjustment of our fishing rights the matter
of the international treaty recentiy entered into which very seriously conflicts
with those rights be adjusted. We do not at present discuss the matter of fishing
for commercial purposes. However, that matter may stand. We dlaim that
we have a clear aboriginal right to take salmon for food. That right the Indîan
Tribes have eontinuously exercised from time immernorial. Long before, the
Dominion of Canada came into existence that right was guaranteed by Imperial
enactment, the Royal Proclamation issued in the year 1763. We dlaim that
under that Proclamation and another Imperial enactment, Section 109 of the
British North America Act, the meaning and effect of which were explained by the
Minister of Justice in the words set out above, ail power held by the Parliament
of Canada for regulating the fisheries of British Columbia is subject to oui' right
of fishing. We therefore dlaim that the regulations contained in the treaty can-
not be made applicable te the Indian Tribes, and that any attempt to, enforce
those regulations against the Indian Tribes is unlawful, being a breach of the
two Iîîiperial enactmnents mentioned.

15. That compensation be made in respect of the following particular
matters:

(1) Inequalities of acreage or value or both that may be agreed to by any
Tribe.

(2) Inferior quaiity of reserved lands that may be agreed to by any
Tribe.

(3) Location of reserved lands other than that required agreed Vo by any
Tribe.

(4) Damages caused te the timber or other natural resources of any
rcserved lands as for example by înining or smelting operations.

(5) Ail moneys expended by any Tribe in any way in connection with the
Indian land controversy and the adjustment of ail matters outstanding.

16. That gcncrai compensation for lands to bc surrcndcred be made.
(1) By establishing and maintaining an adequate system of education, in-

cluding both day schoois and residential industriai sohools, etc.
(2) By establishing and maintaining an adequate system of medical aid and

hospitals.
17. That ail compensations provided for by the two preceding paragraphs

ani ail other compensation claimed by any Tribe so far as imay be fuund
necessary be deait with by enactment of the Parliament of Canada and be deter-
mincd and administered in accordance %vith such enactment.

18. That ail restrictions contained in the Land Act and other Statutes of
the Province be removed.

19. That the Indian Act be revised and that ail amendrnents of that Act
required for carrying inte full effect these conditions of settiement, deaiing with
the matter of citizenship, and adjusting ail outstanding matters relating to the
administration of Indian affairs in British Columbia be made.

20. That ail moncys already expended and Vo be expended by the Allied
Tribes in connection with the Indian land controversy and the adjustment of ail
matters outstanding be provided by the Governments.



SPECIAL COMMITTEE

PART IV.-CONCLUDING REMARKS

In conclusion we may remark that we have been fully informed on all
matters material to the preparation of this Statement, and have been advised
on all matters which we considered required advice. We have conducted a full
discussion of all points contained in the Statement, and have been careful to
obtain the mind of all the principal Allied Tribes on all the principal points.
These discussions have taken place at various large inter-tribal meetings held in
different parts of the Province, together with a meeting of the Executive
Committee. As result, we think we thoroughly understand the matters which
have been under consideration. Having discussed all very fully, we now
declare this Statement to be the well-settled mind of the Allied Tribes.

We have carefully limited our Statement of what we think should be
conditions of settlement to those we think are really necessary. We are not
pressing these conditions of settlement upon the Governments. If the Govern-
ments accept our basis and desire to enter into negotiations with us, we will be
ready to meet them at any time. In this connection, however, we desire to make
two things clear. Firstly, we are willing to accept any adjustment which may
be arranged in a really equitable way. but we are not prepared to accept a
settlement which will be a mere compromise. Secondly, we intend to continue
pressing our case in the Privy Council until such time as we shall obtain a
judgment, or until such time as the Governments shall have arrived at a basis
of settlement with us.

To what we have already said we may add that we are ready at any time
to give whatever additional information and explanation may be desired by the
Governments for the further elucidation of all matters embraced in our State-
ment.

We may further add that the Allied Tribes as a whole and the Executive
Committee are not professing to have the right and power to speak the complete
mind of every one of the Allied Tribes on all matters, particularly those matters
which specially affect them as Individual Tribes. Therefore, if the Govern-
ments should see fit to enter into negotiations with us, it might become necessary
also to enter into negotiations regarding some matters with individual tribes.

We certify that the Statement above set out was adopted at a full meeting
of the Executive Committee of the Allied Tribes of British Columbia held
at Vancouver on the 12th day of November, 1919, and by the Sub-Committee
of the Executive Committee on the 9th day of December in the same year.

PETER R. KELLY,
Chairman of Executive Committee and

member of Sub-Committee.

J. A. TEIT,
Secretary of Executive Committee and

member of Sub-Committee.
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APPENDIX B

EXCERPT FROM DOMINION AND PROVINCIAL LEGISLATION
1847-1895, PAGE 1024

REPORT 0p THEiF HONOURABLE THE MINISTERi OF JUSTICE, APPBo-vED BY His
EXCELLENCY THE GOVERNOR GENERAL IN COUNCIL ON THIE 23iRn JANUJAIE, 1875.

DEPARTMENT 0P JUSTICE,
OTT-rrA, lOth January, 1875.

The undersigned lias the honour to report:-
That the Act passed by the legisiature of the province of British Columbia,

in the 37[h year of Her Majesty's reign, and assented ta on the 2nd March,
1874, is the following:-No. 2, intituled: "An Act to amend and consolidate the
laws affecting Crown Lands in British Columbia."

Thle titie of the Act explains its abject. It is a consolidation of the lawýs
relating ta the recording and pre-emptian af lands, the surveying and sale of
them; the regulatian af miners' rights, etc.

By its concluding section, the Act is not to corne into force, until the
Lieutenant-Gaveinar's assent thereto lias been praclaimed by notice in the
British -Columbia Gazette.

The 2nd, or interpretation clause, defines that the wards ",Crown lands"
shall "mean ail lands of this province held by thg Crown in free and common
saccage.

It is probably through inadvertence that this definition bas been made,
and that the tenure of free and common saccage which is that of freehold
under grant frorn the Crown, is made applicable 0 lands of the Crawn held
as sucli by the Crown as lord af the soul.

Were it an intentional definition, it could on..y then mean, a recognition of
the Indian savereignty therein, and that Her Majesty is tenant by freehold.

Abandoning, therefore, this statutable definitian, which is inapplicable,
the words "Crawn lands," may, far the purpose af this memorandum, be con-
sidered to mean ail lands mn, the province vesteci in the Crown of which no grant
had been made.

A distinction is made between "unsurveyed land" and "surveyed land".
As to "unsurveyed land," it pravides that any persan qualified under that

section may record any tract of unoccupied, unsurveyed and unreserved Crown
lands (not being an Indian settlement) nat exceeding the extent mentioned;

"Pravided that such riglit shail not be held to extent ta any of the aborigines
of this continent. except to sucli as shaîl have obtained permission in writing
ta so record by a special order of the Lieutenant.'Governor in Couneil."

The record is dane by stating and rnarking out the boundaries af dlaim,
and making a declaration in respect thereof.

As to "surveyed land," it is defined by 23rd section.
A provision is made by the 24th section as ta who may pre-empt any tract

of surveyed, unreserved, unoccupied and unrecorded land (not being an Indian
settlement), and a similar praviso ta that above mentioned prohibits the abori-
gifles af the continent the riglit of pre-emptian, except as before mentioned.

Sucli persans are pre-empt are known as "home settlers".
The undersigned deerns it proper ta notice that there is not in this Act any

reservation af lands in favour af the Indians ar Indian tribes of British Column-
bia; nor are the latter thereby accorded any riglits or privileges in respect to
lands, or reserves, or settlements.
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On the contrary, the right ta record unsurveyed land, or to pre-empt sur-
veyed land, is expressly enacted not ta extend to any of the aborigines, except
such as shall have obtained permission in writiug of the Lieutenant-~Governor
in Council.

Nor can the undersigned find that there is ýany legisiation in force in British
Columbia which provides reservations of lands for the Indians, the only ordi-
nance in that respect being anc of the l5th March, 186~9, whieh speaks of Crown
lands in the colony being Indian reserves or settiements.

The undersigned refers ta the Order in Council, under which the province
of British Columbia was admitted into the Dominion, and particularly the l3th
section as ta the Indians, which is as follows:-

"The charge of the Indians, and the trusteeship and management of the
lands reserved for their use and benefit, shall be assumed by the Dominion
government, and a policy as liberal as that hitherto pursued by the British
Columbia goverument shah -be continued by the Dominion government after the
union. To carry out such policy, tracts of land of such extent as it has hitherto
been the practice of the British Columbia gavernment to appropriate for that
purpose, shall from time ta time be conveyed by the local government ta the
Dominion government in trust for the use andl henefit of the Indians on applica-
tion of the Dominion government; and in case of disagreemeut1 between two
governments respecting the quantity of such tracts of land to 'be s0 graxAted,
the matter shall be referred for the decision of the Secriýtary of State for the
Colonies."

The question as ta the provision which has been made of reserves for the
Indians, lias been the subi ect of an Order of the Governor General in Council,
dated 4th Noven-iber, 1874, and it is not necessary, therefore, ta enter upan a
discussion of the merits of the case.

But having regard ta the known, existing and încreasing dissatisfaction of
the Jaidian tribes of British Columbia at the absence of adequate reservation
of lands for their use, and at the liberal appropriation for those in other parts
of Canada upon surrender by treaty of their territorial rights, and the difficulties,
which. may arise from the not improbable assertion of that dissatisf action by
hostilities on their part, the undersigned deems it right ta caîl attention to the
legal position of the public lands of the province.

The undersîgned believes that hie is correct in stating, that with ane sliglit
exception as ta land in Vancouver Island surrendered ta the Hudson Bay Com-
pany, which makes the absence of otýhers the more remarkable, no surrender
of lands in that province has ever been obtained from the Indian tribes inhabit-
ing it, and that any reservations which have been made, have been arbitrary
on the part of the government, and without the assent of the Indians themselves,
and though the policy of obtaining surrenders at this lapse of time and under
the altered circuinstances of the province, may be questionable, yet the under-
signed feels it his duty ta assert such legal or equitable dlaim as may be found
ta exist on the part of the Indians.

There is not a shadow of doubt, that from the earliest times, England bas
always felt it imperative to meet the Indians in council, and ta obtain surren-
ders of tracts of Canada, as from time ta, tîme such were required for the pur-
poses of settiements.

The 4Oth article of the treaty of capitulation of the city of Montreal,
dated Sth September, 1760, is ta the effeet that,

"The savages or Indian allies of lis Most Christian Majesty shahl be
maintained in the lands they inhabit if they chose to remain there."

The proclamation of King George 111, 1763, erecting within the countries
and islands ceded and confirmed te, Great Britain by the treaty of the lOth
February, 1763, four distinct governments, sty'led Quebec, East Florida, West
Florida and Grenada, contains the following clauses:-
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"And whereas, it is just and reasonable and essential to our interests and
the security of our colonies, that the several nations or tribes of Indians with
whom we are connected, and who live under our protection, should not be
molested or disturbed. in the possession of such parts of our dominions and
territories, as not having been ceded to us, are reserved to themn, or any of themn
as their hunting grounds; we do, therefore, with the ad-vice of our Privy Council,
declare it to be our royal will and pleasure that no governor or commander-in-
chief, in any of our colonies of Quebec, East, Florida or West Florida, do pre-
sume upon any pretense whatever to grant warrants of survey or pass any patents
for lands beyond the boundaries of their respective governments, as described. in
their commissions; as also, that no governor or commander-in-chief of our other
colonies or plantations in America, do presume for the present and until our
future pleasure be known. to grant warrants of survey or pass any patents for
lands beyond the heads or sources of any of the rivers which f ail into the
Atlantic Ocean f rom the west or north-west; or upon any lands whatever, which,
not having been ceded to or purchased by us, as aforesaid, are reserved to the
said Indians, or any of them; and we do further declare it to be our royal will
and pleasure, for the prescrit, as aforesaid, to reserve under our sovereignty,
protection and dominion, for the use of the said Indians. ail the land and terri-
tories not included wîthin the limits, and territory granted to the Hudson Bay
Company; as also ald the land and territories laying to the westward of the
sources of the rivers which faîl into the sea from the west and northwest as
aforesaid; and we do hereby strictly forbid, on pain of our displeasure, ail our
loving subjeets from making any purchases or settlements, whatsoever, or taking
possession of any of the lands above reserved without our special leave and
license for that purpoýse first obtained. And we do further strictly enjoin and
require ail persons whatsoever, who have eîther wilfully or inadvertently seated
themselves upon any land within the countries above described, or upon any
othýer lands, which not having been ceded to or purchased by us, are still reserved
to, the said Indians as aforesaid, forthwith to remove themnselves fromn such
settlements.

Ani whereas great frauds and abuses have been comrnitted in the purchas-
ing lands of tlie Indiarîs, to the great prejudice of our interests, and to tdîe
great dissatisfaction of the said Indians; in order, therefore, to, prevent such
irregularîties for the future, and to the end that the Indians may be convinced
of our justice and determined resolution to remove ail reasonable cause of
discontent, we do, with the advice of our Privy Council, strictly enjoin and
require that no private person do pres-ume te, make any purchase fromn thc said
Inýdians of any lands reserved to, the said Indians, within those parts of our
colonies where we had thought proper to allow settlements; but if at any time
any of the said Indians should be inclined to dispose of the said. lands, the
sanie shall be purchased only for us, in our name, at some public meeting or
assembly oif the said Indians, tri he held for that purpose hv the governor or
commander-in-chief of our colony, respectively, within which. they shahl be; and
in case they shaîl be within thie limits of any proprietaries, conforînable to
such directions and instructions as we or they shaîl think proper to give for
that purpose; and we do, by the advice of our Privy Council, declare and enjoin
that the trade with the said Indians ;shall be free and open to ail our subjects
whatever; provided that every person who may incline to, trade with the said
Indians do take out a license for carrying on such trade from the governor or
cormmander-in-chief of any of our colonies, respectively, where such persan shal
resîde, and also give security to observe such regulations as we shaîl at any
time think fit, by ourselves or corrmmssaries to be appointed for this purpose,
to direct and appoint for the benefit of the said trade; and we do hereby author-
ize, enjoin and require the governors and commanders-in-chiefs, of aIl our
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colonies, respectively, as well as those under our immediate government, as
those under the government and direction of proprietaries, to grant such licenses
without fee or reward, taking special care to insert therein a condition that
such license shall be void, and the security forfeited, in case the person to whom
the samne is granted shall refuse or neglect to observe sueli regulations as we
shall think proper to prescribe as aforesaid.

And 'we do further expressly enjoin and require ail officers whatever, as
well military as those employed in the management and direction of the Indian
affairs within the territories reserved, 'as aforesaid, for the use of the said
Indians, to seize and apprehend ail persons whatever, who standing charged with
treason, niisprisîon of treason, murder -or other felonies, or misdemeanors, shall
fly fromn justice and take refuge in the said territory, and to send them. under
& proper guard to the colony where the crime was conxmitted, of which they
shall stand accused, in order te take their trial for the saine.

It is not necessary now to inquire whether the lands to the west of the
Rocky Mountains and bordering on the Pacific Ocean, form. part of the lands
claimed by France, and which, if such dlaimis were correct, would have passed by
cession te England, under the Treaty of 1763, or whether the titie of England
rests on any othe'r ground, nor is it necessary to consider whether that proclama-
tion covered the land now known as British Columbia.

It is, sufficient, for the present purposes, te ascertain the policy of England
in respect to the acquisition of the Indian territorial rights, and how entirely
that policy lias been followed to the present time, except in the instance of
British Columbia.

It is true, also, that the proclamation of 1763, to which. allusion lias been
made, was repca]ed by the lImperial Statute 14 George III, chapter 83, known
as Thc Quebec Act; but thýat statute merely, so far as regards the present
case, annuls, the proclamation, "so far as the saine relates te the province of
Quebec, and the commission and the authority thereof, under the authority
whereof, the government of the said province is at present administered," and
the Act was passed for the purpose of effecting a change in the mode of the
civil government of the administration of justice in the province of Quebec.

The Imperial Act, 1821, lst and 2nd George IV., chapter 66, for regulating
thie fur trade, and establishing a crimiinal and civil jurisdiction within certain
p)arts of North Amierica, legislates expressly in respect to the portion of this con-
tinent which is therein spoken of as " the Indian territories,' and by the Imperial
Act, 1,849, 12 and 13 Victoria, chapter 48, "An Act to provîde for the admin-
istration in Vancouvcr's Island." The last-mentioned Act is recited, and it is
added on recital that "for the purpose of the colonization of that part of thc said
Indian territories called Vancouver's Island, it is expedient that. further provision
should be made for the administration of justice therein."

The Imperial Act, 1858, 21 and 22 Victoria, chapter .98, "An Act to provide
for the government of British Columbia," recites, "that, divers of Hler Majesty's
subj ects and others h ave by the license and consent of Her Maj esty resorted to
and settled on certain wild and unoccupied territories on the North-west coast
of iNorth America, now known as 'New Caledonia,' fromn and after the passing
of the Act to be named British Columbia, and the islands adjacent," etc.

The determination of England, as expressed in the proclamation of 1763,
thbat the Indians should not be molested in the possession of sucli parts of the
dominions and territories of Engiand as, not having been ceded te the King, and
reserved te them, and which extended also to the prohibition of purchase of lands
f romn the Indians, except only to the Crown itself-at a public meeting or as-
sembly of the said Indians to be held by the governor or commander-mn-chief--
lias, with sliglit alterations, been continued down te the present time, either as
the settled policy of Canada, or by legislative provision of Canada to that effect,
and it may be mentioned that in furtherance of that policy, so lately as in the
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year 1874, treaties were made with various tribes of Indians in the North-west
Territories, and large tracts of lands lying between the province of Manitoba and
the Rocky Mountains were ceded and surrendered to the Crown upon conditions
of which the reservation of large tracts for the Indians, and the granting of
annuities and gifts annually, formed an important consideration; and in various
parts of Canada, from the Atlantic to the Rocky Mountains, large and valuable
tracts of land arc now rcscrved for the Indians as part of their consideration of
their ceding and yielding to the Crow,,n their territorial rights in other portions
of the Dominion.

Considering, then, these several features of the case, that no surrender or
cession of their territorial rights whether the same be of a legal or equitable
nature, bas been ever executed by the Indian tribes of the province-that they
allege that the reservations of land macle by the Government fer their use,
have been arbitrarily so made, and are totally inadequate to their support and
requirements, and without. their assent-that they are not averse to hostilities
in order to enforce righits which it is impossible to deny them, and that the Act
under consideration not only ignores those rights, but expressly probibits the
Indians from enjoying the riglits of recording or pre-empting lands, except by
consent of the Lieutenant-Governor;-the undersigned feels that he cannot do
otberwise than advise that the Act in question is objectionable, as tending to
deal with lands which are assuined te be the absolute property of the province,
an assumption which completely ignores, as applicable te the Indians of British
Columbia, the honour and good f aith with which the Crown bas, in alI other
cases, since its sovereignity of the territories in North America, deait with their
various Indian tribes.

The undersigned w ould also refer to the British North America Act, 1867,
section 109, applicable to British Columbia. which enacts in effect that ail lands
helonging te the province shail belong to the province, " subjeet te any trust
existing in respect thereof, and to any interest, other than that of the province,
in the same."

That which has heen ordinarily spoken of as the " Indian titie " must, of
necessity, consist of some species of interest in the lands of British Columbia.

If it is conceded that they have nuL a freehold in the soil, but that they bave
an usufruet, a right of occupation or possession of the same for their own use,
then it would seem that these lands of British Columbia are subjeet, if not te
a " trust existing in respect thereof," at least " to an înterest other than that of
the province alone."

The undersigned, therefore, feels it incumbent on him te recommend that
this Act should be disallowed, but suggests that sucli disallowance be postponed
until the last day at which such can take place, with a view of communication
on the subject with the Lieutenant-Goverrior of British Columbia.

It may be anticipated that no practical inconvenience can arise from its
disailowance should such be necessary, as the previously existing Crown land
Act will probably suffice to enabie the province to continue, in the meantime,
disposaI of lands.

The undersigned, whilst commenting on this Act, deems it also expedient te
eall attention to that provision of the Order in Concil under which. the province
of British Columbia entered confederation, which refers te the conveyance by
the province to the Dominion governrient, in trust, of public lands along the
line of the Pacific Railway, throughout the entire length of British Columbia.
It may, of course, be argued that there has been no actual commencement, with-
in two years of the date of the Union, of the Canadian Pacifie Railwav; but
having regard to the practical commencement of that work in the surveys which
have been made along different portions of the contemplated route, the under-
signed deems it bis duty te note that no reservations are made in the Act now
under consideration, and that without them, the recording and pre-emption
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of lands under this Act might. be the subject of great embarrassment to the gov-
erilment of Canada, in the construction of the line or in the granting of any con-
tracts for construction of portions of it.

He suggests, therefore, that this is a f urther subjeût on which it is desirable
that communication should be had with the Lieutenant-Governor of British
Columbia.

I concur,
T. FOURNIER, H. BERNARD,

Minis ter of Justice, Deputy Minis ter of Justice.

EXCERPT FROM DOMINION AND PROVINCIAL LEGISLATION,
1867-1895, Page 1038

REPORT OF THE HON. TUE MrNISTE1I 0F JUSTICE, APPRovED BY uis EXCELLENCY
THE GOVERNORt GENERAL IN COUNCIL ON THE 6TH MAY, 1876.

DEPARTMENT 0F JUSTICE,

OTTAWA, 28th April, 1876.
With reference to the Acts of British Columbia assented to on the 22nd

April, 1875, the time for action upon which will expire on the Sth May next the
undersigned begs to report as follows:

1. By minute in council of the l6th October, 1875, the report of the
undersigned upon the Act chapter 5, intituled: " An Act to make provision for
the better Administration of Justice," was approved.

A copy of that minute was transmitted to the Lieutenant-Governor of
British Columbia.

Tihe views of the government of British Columbia not having been com-
municated to His Excellency. the Secretary of State recently asked for a tele-
graphic communication upon the subjeet.

By telegraph, dated 27th April from the Lieutenant-Governor to the
Secretary of State, he is informed that the government of British Columbia
concurs in the disallowance of the Act for the better Administration of Justice;
that the general question involved therein is now under consideration, and a bill
reorganizing the system will, if time admit. be submitted to the legisiature.

The report of the undersigned proposed that it should be suggested to the
government of British Columbia to repeal the Act, and to effect the division
of the province into districts, &c., by legisiation, instead of by the machinery
proposed by the Act.

As the provincial government suggests the exercise of the power of dis-
allowance, and it is not certain whether amendatory legisiation wiIl be held
this session, the undersigned recommends that the said Act be disallowed.

2. By minute in council of the lOth November, 1875, the report of the
undersigned upon the Act, intituled: "An Act to amend and consolidate the
laws respecting Crown Lands in British Columbia,"~ was approved.

The same steps were subsequently taken upon this subject, as those detailed
with reference to the subject treated of in the first paragraph.

The Lieutenant-Governor's communication upon this Act states that the
objections taken by council to it are considered to be removed. by the agreement
for a settiement of the Indian land question by commissioners.

Although the undersigned cannot concur in the view that the objections
taken are entirely removed by the action referred to; and, though he is of
opinion that, according to, thie determination of council upon the previous
Crown Lands Act, there remains serious question as to whether the Act now
under consideration is within the competence of the provincial legisiature, yet
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since accordîng to the information of the undýersigned, the statute under con-
sideration has been acted upan, and is being acted upon largely in British
Columbia, and great inconvenience and confusion might resuit from its dis-
allowance; and considering that the condition of the question at issue between
the two governments is very mucli improved since the date of his repart, t he
undersigned is of opinion that it would be the better course to leave the Act
to its operation.

It is to be observed that this procedure neither expresses nor impliedly
waives any right of the gavcrnýment of Canada to insist that any of the pro-
visions of the Act are beyond the competence of the Local Legisiature, and are
consequently inoperative.

The undersigned recommends that the Act be left to its operation.
3. By minute in council of the 7th January, 1876, the report of the under-

signed respecting an Act, intitulcd: " An Act ta make Powers of Attorney valid
in certain cases," was approved.

The same steps were subsequently taken upon this subject as those detailedt
with reference to the subjects treated of in the first paragraph.

The Lieutenant-Governor's communiaction upan this Act states that it
will be immediately amended, ta remove the objections taken ta section 7,
which was the anly clause abjected ta. Upan this assurance of the gavernment
of British Columbia, the undersigned recommends that the Act be left ta its
aperatian.

EDWARD BLAKE,
Minister of Justice.
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APPENDIX C

EXCERPT FROM BRITISH COLUMBIA PAPERS RELATING TO THE
INDIAN LANDS QUESTION 1875-1878. Page 160

Copy of a Report of a Committee of the Honourable the Privy Council, approved
by His Excellency the Governor General in Council, on the lth November,
1875.

The Committee of Council have had under consideration the Minute in
Council of the Government of British Columbia of the 18th August last, adopt-
ing the recommendations contained in a Memorandum of the local Attorney-
General, as the expression of the views of that Government as to the best method
of bringing about a settlement of the Indian Land question, and submitting
those recommendations for the consideration and assent of the Government of
the Dominion.

They have also had before them the Memorandum herewith annexed, from
the Honourable Mr. Scott, acting in the absence of the Honourable the Minister
of the Interior, to whom, the above-mentioned documents were referred, and
they respectfully report their concurrence in the recommendations therein sub-
mitted, and advise that a copy thereof and of this Minute be transmitted for
the consideration of the Government of British Columbia.

Certified.
(Signed) W. A. HIMSWORTH,

Clerk, Privy Council, Canada.

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR,

OTTAWA, 5th November, 1875.
Memorandum:

The undersigned has had under consideration the Report of the Executive
Council of the 18th of August last, adopting the recommendations contained in
Memdrandum of the local Attorney-General, the Honourable George A. Walkem,
as the expression of the views of that Government as to the best method of
bringing about a settlement of the Indian Land question, and submitting those
recommendations for the consideration and assent of the Government of the
Dominion.

The action of the British Columbia Government in this matter was no
doubt brought about by the Order of Your Excellency in Council of the 4th
November, 1874, on the subject of the Indian Reserves of British Columbia,
which was communicated officially to the British Columbia Government by the
Secretary of State.

The suggestions contained in Mr. Walkem's Memorandum, and adopted
by the Order in Council of the British Columbia Government, are as follows:-

1. That no basis of acreage for Indian Reserves be fixed for the Province
as a whole, but that each nation (and not tribe) of Indians of the same language
be dealt with separately.

2. That for the proper adjustment of Indian claims the Dominion Govern-
ment do appoint an agent to reside with each nation.

3. That Reserves of land be set aside for each nationality of Indians; such
Reserve to contain, in addition to agricultural land, a large proportion of wild
and forest land. Every application for a Reserve shall be accompanied by a
Report from the agent having charge of the nation for whom the Reserve is:
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intended; and such Report shall contain a census and give a description of the
habits and pursuits of each nation and also of the nature and quantity of the
land required for the use of such nation.

4. That each Reserve shall be held in trust for the use and benefit of the
nation of Indians to which it has been allotted, and, in the event of any material
increase or decrease hereafter of the members of a nation occupying a Reserve,
such Reserve shall be enlarged or diminished as the case may be, so that it shall
bear a fair proportion to the numbers of the nation occupying it. The extra
land required for any Reserve shall be allotted from vacant Crown Lands, and
any land taken off a Reserve shall revert to the Province.

5. That the present local Reserves be surrendered by the Dominion to the
Province as soon as may be convenient, the' Province agreeing to give fair
compensation for any improvements or clearings made upon any Reserve which
may be surrendered by the Dominion and accepted by the Province.

The suggestions in question are stated by Mr. Walkem as having been made
by Mr. Duncan, in a letter which is appended to the Order in Council.

The undersigned would remark that the suggestions, as given by Mr.
Duncan in the letter in question, do not correspond precisely with the propositions
formulated by Mr. Walkem.

Mr. Duncan's suggestions are as follows:-
1. That no basis of acreage for Reserves be fixed for the Province as a

whole, but rather that each nation of Indians be dealt with separately on their
respective claims.

2. That for the proper adjustment of such claims let the Dominion and the
Provincial Governments each provide an agent to visit the Indians and report
fully as to the number and pursuits of each nation and the kind of country they
severally occupy.

3. That the Provincial Government deal as liberally with the Indians as
other Provincial Governments in the Dominion.

My opinion is that a liberal policy will prove the cheapest in the end, but
I hold it will not be necessary in the interests of the Indians to grant them
only cultivable lands; rather I would recommend that a large portion of their
Reserves should be wild and forest lands, and hence may be very extensive
without impoverishing the Province, and at the same time so satisfactory to
the Indians as to allay all irritation and jealously towards the whites.

4. I think the Provincial Government might reasonably insist upon this
with the Dominion Government: That no Indian shall be allowed to alienate
any part of a Reserve, and in case of any Reserve being abandoned, or the
Indians on it decreasing, so that its extent is disproportioned to the number
of occupants, that such Reserve or part of a Reserve might revert to the
Provincial Government.

Mr. Duncan adds: " The existing Reserves are shown to 'be, by the
correspondence, both irregular in quantity and misplaced as to the locality,
by following tribal divisions, which is no doubt a mistake and fraught with
bad consequences.

My advice would be, in the meantime simply to ignore them, as it certainly
would not be wise to regard them as a precedent, and it would be impolitic
to have two systems of Reserves in the Province, one tribal and the other
national."

It will be observed that Mr. Walkem speaks of the appointment of an
agent by the Dominion Government whereas Mr. Duncan proposes that the
Dominion and Provincial Governments shall each provide an agent to visit
the Indians and report upon the question of Reserves.

While the undersigned is of opinion that in view of the very large experience
Mr. Duncan has had amongst the Indians of British Columbia, and the marvel-
lous success which has attended his labours amongst them, that gentleman's



SPECIAL COMMITTE

suggestions on matters of Indian policy are entitled to the greatest weight,
and, while lie eoncurs entirely in the general principles enuneiated by Mr.
Dunean yet lie thinks that both the suggestions of Mr. Duncan and the pro-
positions of Mr. Walkem, adopted by the Governmont of Birtish Columbia in
their Minute of 8th August last, f ail to provide a prompt and final settiement
of this long-pending contrcversy.

Mr. Walkem provides merely that the agent shall make an application
for a Reserve and report upon the subjeet, atnd Mr. Duncan recommends that
the Dominion and Provincial agents shahl report merely as to the numnber and
pursuits of the Indians. Looking te Mr. Walkems admission " that the Indians
have undoubtedly become discontented, and that they are restless and uneasy
as to their future," and te bis t'urther statement " that the Local Government
have been keenly alive net only te the advantage but to the absolute necessity
and urgent importance cf a speedy settiement cf aIl the questions cennected
with their Reserves," and again te Mr. Duncan's expression cf opinion as te
" the urgency and importance cf the ]and question and its vital bearing on
the peace and prosperity cf the Province," the undersigned sulimits that ne
scheme for the settlement cf this question can lie held te be satiýsfactory whidh
does flot provide for its prompt and final adjustment.

In lieu, therefore, cf the propositions submitted by Mr. Walkem and
sanctioned liy thc Order in Council cf the British Columbia Government, the
undersigned wouid respectfully propose thc following:

1. That with the view te the speedy and final adjustment cf the Indian
Reserve question in British Columbia on a satisfactory basis, the whole matter
bie referred te thrce Commissieners, one te lie appointeýd by the Government
cf the Dominion, one liy the Government cf Britishi Columbia, and the third
te lie named by the Dominion and the Local Governments jointly.

2. That thc said Commissioners shall, os soon as practicalile aftcr their
appointrnent, meet at Victoria, and make arrangements te visit, with all
convenient speed, in sueli order as may lie found desirable, ecd Indian nation,
(meaning by nation ail Indian tribes speaking the sanîe language) in British
Columbia, and, after full enquiry on the spot into ail matters affecting the
question te fix and determine for ecd nation, separately, the number, extent,
and locality cf the Reserve or Reserves te lie allowed te, it.

3. That in determiniing thc extent cf the Reserves te lie granted te the
Indians cf British Columbia, ne basis cf acreage lie fixed for the Indians cf that
Province as a whole, but that ecdl nation cf Indians cf thc same language lie
dealt with separately.

4. That the Commissioners shahl lie guided generally by tic spirit cf the
Tcrms cf Union lietwecn the Dominion and the Local Govcpnments, which
centemplates a " liberal policy " being pursued tewards the Indians, and, in
thc case cf each particular nation, regard shal 'be had te the habits, wants
and pursuits cf sucli nation, te the amount cf territery available in the regien
occupied liy them, and te the claims cf thc white settlers.

5. That each Reserve shal lie hcld in trust for the use and benefit cf the
nation cf Indians te whidh it lias been allotted, and, in the event cf any material
încreasc or decrease hereafter cf the nunilers cf a nation eccupyîng a Reserve,
sucli Reserve shal li bc nlargcd or diminished, as the case may be, se that it
shall bear a fair proportion te the members cf thc nation occupying it. Thc
extra land requîred for any Reserve shal lie allettcd from Crown Lands, and
any land takea off a Reserve shaîl revert te the Province.

6. That se scen as the Reserve or Reserves for any Indian nation shall
have been fixcd and determined by thc Commîssioners as aforesaid, thc cxisting
Reserves liclonging te sucli nation, se f ar as tliey are not in whole or in part
included in sudh new Reserve or Reserves so determined hy the~ ýCommisýsioners,
shal lie surrendered by thc Dominin te the Local Goverament se son as may
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be convenient, on the latter paying to the former for the benefit of the Indians,
such compensation for any clearings or improvements made on any Reserve
so surrendered bv the Dominion and accepted ýby the Province, as mnay be
thought reasonable by the Commissioners aforesaid.

It will be observed that the preceding paragraphs, Nos. 3, 4, 5 and 6, are
substantially the same as those submitted in the Memorandum of Mr. Walkem,
approved hy the Order in Couneil of the British Columbia Government.

The undersigned would further recommend that each Commissioner be
paid by the Governent appointing him, and that the third Commissioner
be allowed ten dollars per day while acting, and that bis rnay and other expenses
be borne equally by the Dominion and the Local Governments; and the under-
signed wîould further recommend that if this Memorandum be approved liv
Your Excellency, a copy thereof and of the Minute of Council passed thereon
be communîcated to, His Honour the Lieutenant-Governor of British Columbia
for the consideration of is Government, and that another copy be placed inYour Excellency's hands for transmission to the Right Honourable the Secretary
of State for the Colonies.

The whole respectfully submitted.

(Signed) R. W. SCOTT,
Acting Minister of the Interior.

42325-4
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APPENDIX E

P. C. 1081

Certified Copy of a Report of the Committee of the Privy Council, approved
by lis Excellency the Governor General on the l7th May, 1911.
Privy Council, Canada.

The Committee of the Privy Council have had befo re them a report, dated
llth May, 1911, from the Minister of Justice, stating, with reference to Lord
Crewe's despatch of the 31st March, 1909, and the subsequent correspondence with
regard to the dlaims of the British Columbia Indians, that no0 settiement of these
dlaims has yet been reached, and th-at Your Excellency's Government and te
Government of British Columbia in the negotiations which have subsequently
tiaken place have failed to conclude any arrangement. for the determination
of the question involved.

The Minister further states that it is now proposed, therefore, on the part
of Your Excellency's Government, to institute proceedings in the Exchequer
Court of Canada on behaif of the Indians against a provincial grantee, or
licensee, in the hope of obtaining a decision upon the questions involved as soon
asa case arises in which the main points in difference can be properly or con-
veniently tried.

That meantime the Indians and their friends are pressing the Government
to make representations on the subject to the Colonial Office, and recently a
memorial bas been handed in, signed by the Rev. A. E. O'Meara, on behaîf
of the Conference of the Friends of the Indians of British Columbia, copy of
which together with copies of the documents therein referred to, are herewith
submitted.

That the statement of facts contained in Mr. O'Meara's memorandum
is, so far -as it is within the knowledge of the Minister, substantially correct.

The Committee, on the recommendation of the Minister of Justice, advise
that Your Excellency may be pleased to transmit a copy hereof, tûgether with
the stveral documents referre-d to herein, to the Right Honourable the Principal
Secretary of State for the Colonies.

Ahl which is respectfully submitted for approval.

(Sgd-) F. K. BENINETT,
Asst. Clerk of the Privy Council.

Copy 59335-2

Privy Council
Canada

(Annex to P.ýC. 1081, Order in Council, dated l7th May, 1911.)

BRITISH COLUMBIA INDIAN LAND SITUATION

MEMORANDtrM FOR THE GOVERNMENT 0F'CANADA

Statement of Facts

1. By a petition which in March, 1909, was presented to His Majesty and
the Colon ial Office and in April, 1909, was forwarded to is Exceltency the
Governor General with request that he secure a report thereon fromn his Min-
isters, and hy a resolution adopted at a general meeting held at the City of
Vancouver in September, 1909, the Indian Tribes of the Province of British
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Columbia asked the Imperial Government to submit their dlaim directly to the
Judicial Committee of His Majesty's Privy Council and asked the Government
of Canada to facilitate the securing of such submission.

2. In January, 1910, the Indian Triýbes placed in the hands of the Depart-
ment of Justice a "Statement of Facts and Claims."

3. It is understood that, after full consideration of the above mentionecl
documents, the Department of Justice-camne to the conclusion that existing -con-
ditions render necessary the securing of the judicial decision desired by the
Indians and so advised.

4. It is understood that, the advice so given having been approved and
adopted, it was and is the desire of the Government of Canada that such decision
should be secured by means of a reference to, the Supreme Court of Canada and
wjth the consent and concurrence of the Government of British -Columbia.

5. It is understood that theGovernmengt of Canada entered into negotiations
with the Government of British Columbia, for the purpose of obtaining such
consent and concurrence, and in May, 1910, the Deputy Minister of Justice and
the Deputy Attorney General of the Province of British Columbia met at the
City of Ottawa and prepared Ven, questions for submission to the Supreme Court
of Canada with a view to their being carried to the judicial Committee of the
Privy Council. 0f these the first Vhree related to the general matter of Indian
titie and the remaining seven related to matters connected with lands reserved
for the Indians. The said ten questions as finally drawn by the Deputy Minýister
of Justice were approved by the Deputy Attorney General and by Counsel for
Vhe Province of British Columbia and were su'bsequently submitted Vo and
approved by Counsel for the Indian tribes.

6. It is undersiood that, when the said ten questions were submitted to the
Government of British Columbia for final action, that Government objected to,
the first three of the said questions and expressed unwillingness to proceed with
the proposed reference unless those three questions were omitted.

7. In the month of August, 1910, at the City of Victoria "The Conference
of Friends of the Indians of British Columbia,"' an organization formed in the
month of Marci, 1910, presented a memorial to, the Prime Minister of Canada.

8. On 23rd September, 1910, lhe Moral and Social Reform Council of Can-
ada assembýled in annual meeting at the City of Toronto passed Vhe following
resolution:

In view of Vhe national importance of securing full justice for Vhe
native race in all parts of Ca~nada, Vhis Council, while noV expressing an
opinion upon the merits of Vhe dlaims now being made by the Indian
Tribes of British Columbia, expressed its sympathy with the aims of Vhe
Conference of Friends of the Indians of British Columbia in seekîng to
bring about as rapidly as possible a just and advantageous solution of Vhe
problems presented ýby existing conditions in that Province, and its sense
of the great importance of accomplishing that objeet. This Council
expresses the hope that the Governments concerncd will f acilitate a prompt
and final settiement of thc wholc question of Vhe Indian titie. 1V is furtier
resolved that Vie members of Vhe delegation already appointed be author-
ized to present this resolution Vo the Prime Minister of Canada and Vhe
Superintendent-Generiýl of Indian Affairs.

9. On 6Vh Octoier, 1910, in pursuance of the Memorial and Resolution above
mentioned, a delegation representing both the Friends of Vhe Indians of British
Columbia and the Moral and Social Reform Council of Canada waited upon Vhe-
Prime Minister of Canada and the Superintendent-General of Indian Affairs,.
who were accompanied by Vhe Deputy Minister of Justice. A copy of the report.
of that interview prepared by the delegation is in the hands of Vhe Government.

10. In pursuance of the recommendation of the Prime Minister set out in,
the above mentioned report, a delegation from the Friends of the Indians of
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British Columbia on l4th Deceniber, 1910, at the City of Victoria waited upon
the Governent of British Columbia. A copy of the stenographie report of
the Interview prepared under instructions of the Premier of British Columbia is
in the bands of the Government.

11. On 23rd December, 1910, the Premier of British Columbia addressed to
the Chairman of the Friends of the Indians of British Columbia the formai
answer, copy of whiujh is in the hands of the Government.

12. On 2Oth February last the Chairman of the Friends of the Indians of
British Columbia adclressed to the Premier of British Columbia the reply,
copy of which is ijn the hands of the Government.

13. On the lst, 2nd and 3rd of March iast, ninety-six Indians delegates
representing a large number of the tribes of British Columbia assembled at the
City of Victoria and on the 3rd oif March waited in a body upon the Government
of British Columbia and presented to that (Jovernment the statement, copy of
whîeh is in the hands of the Government.

14. A copy of the stenographic report, of the interview had upon that
occasion prepared under the instruction of the Premier of British Columbia is
in the hands of the Government.

15. On the 26th April last a delegation representing both the Friends of the
Indians of British Columnbia and the Moral and Social Reform Council of
Canada waited upon the Prime Mînister of Canada, thc Superintendent-Generai
of Indian Affairs, and the Minister of Justice.

A copy of the stenographic report of flie interview is in tlie hands of the
Government.

Statement of Request

1. That as soon as conveniently possible there be sent to the Imperial
Government a full report of the whole matter including the facts above stated.

2. That with such report there be ýsent copies of the documents mentioned in
the above statement.

3. That ail matters contained and views expressed in those documents be
submitted for the consideration of His Majesty and the Colonial Office and for
such action as may be deenied wise.

4. That together with the foregoing there be sent a report of the Govern-
ment of Canada regarding the Petition of the Indians as requested by the
Imperial Government in April, 1909.

Ail of which is respeetfully suhmitted on behaîf of the "Conference of
Frîends of the Indians of British Columbia".

(Sgd.) A. E. O'MEARA.

OTTAWA, 3rd May, 1911.
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APPENDIX F

Privy Council

Canada

"A

P.C.751.

Certified Copy of a'Report of the Committee of the Privy Council, approved by
His Royal Highness the Governor General on the 20th June, 1914.

The Committee of the Privy Council have had before them a Report from
the Superintendent General of Indiain Affairs, dated 1lth March, 1914, sub-
mitting the accompanying memorandum from' the Deputy Superintendent
General of Indian Affairs upon the Indian dlaim to the lands of the Province
of British Columbia, in which he concurs.

The Committee, on the recommnendation of the Superintendent General
of Indian Aiffairs, advise that the dlaim be referred te> the Exchequer Court of
Canada with the right of appeal to the Privy Council under the following con-
ditions.

1. The Indians of British Columbia shall, by their Chiefs or representatives,
in a binding way, agree, if the Court, or on appeal, the Privy Council,
decides that they have a titie to lands of the Province, to surrender
sucli titie, receîving from the Dominion benefits to be granted for
extinguishment of titie in accordance with past usage of the Crown
in satisfying the Indian dlaim to unsurrendered territories, and to accept
the finding of the Royal Commission on Indian Affairs in British
Columbia as approved by the Governmeiith of the Dominion and the
Province as a full allotment of Reserve lands to be administered for
their benefit as part of the compensation.

2. That the Province of British Columbia by granting the said res-erves
as approved shall be held to have satisfied ail dlaims of the Indians
against the Province.
That the remaining considerations shall be provided and the cost
thereof borne by the Government of the Dominion of Canada.

3. That the Government of British Columbia shall be represented, by
counsel, that the Indians shaîl be represented by counsel nominated
and paid by the Dominion.

4. That, in the event of the Court or the Privy Council deciding that the
Indians have no title in the lânds of the Province of British Columbia,
the policy of.the Dominion towards the Indians shail be governed by
consideration of their interests and future development.
Ail which is respectfully submitted for approval.

RODOLPHE BOUDREAU,

Clerk of the Privy Council.

The Honourable
The Superintendent General of Indian Affairs.
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DEPARTMENT 0F INDiAN AFFAlEs, CANADA,
OTTAwÂ, March 11, 1914.

The Honourable#
The Superintendent General of Indians Affairs.

The undersigned has given consideration to the petition of the Nishga
Indians to the Privy Council, with reference to the alleged dlaim of those Indians
to titie in the lands of British Columbia and to a like dlaim on the part of the
other Indians of the Province. I find indications in the papers that the Govern-
ment is not unwilling to submit this dlaim to the courts, but the difficulties which
are inherent in the dlaim and which may have prevented its submission have so
f ar not been overcome; the two main difficulties would appear to be:

1. The refusai of British Columbia to consent to a stated case which would
include any reference to the indian titie.

2. Uncertainty as to the extent of compensation which might be demanded
by the Indians if they were successful before the courts, and if the Crown found
it good policy to extinguish the titie of the Indians.

With reference to the first difflculty 1 would propose that it be held that
British Columbia bas fully discharged its obligation to the natives by granting
from the publie domain of the Province reserve lands to be administered
exclusively for their benefit, and that, if the Indian dlaim is found valid by the
Court or the Privy Council, and, if it is thought advisable to offer anything
further for extinguishment of titie, the Dominion should assume the burden and
compensate the Indians aecording to the past usage in such arrangements as
have been made by the good-will of the Crown with the aborigines. The
Dominion bas interest in the lands in the Railway beit, and, to this extent, would
benefit by extinguishment of the Indian titie.

There are two Indian treaties whiefh might be taken as prototypes for this
divided responsibility, namely, the Treaty known as the Northwest Angle Treaty
No. 3, and Treaty No. 9; both of these treaties are within the Province of Ontario.
The first was negotiated when the Dominion Government thought the territory
covered belonged to the Dominion. When by settlement of the boundary
question it was discovered that most of the territory lay in Ontario, the Dominion
claimed from Ontario for past expenditure and for the discharge of future liabili-
ties. The case went to the courts and was decided in favour of Ontario. Ontario
thereupon expressed ber willingness to grant the reserves, and the Dominion
bears the financial outlay for annuities and the other considerations.

Treaty No. 9 formed the subj ect of an agreement between the Qovernments
of the Dominion and the Province of Ontario. Ontario agreed to furnish reserves
and pay the annuities; the Dominion was to bear the cost of administration,
education and the other provisions of the treaty.

Dealing with the second difficuty,--it would be a serious matter if the
Dominion were to, assume the undetermined liability which might arise if the
Indians' dlaim were upheld by the courts. The erroneous view of the Indians as
regards the nature of the aboriginal titie is shown by a memorandum from, the
Nishga Nation, of which I attach a copy. 1 may quote here the sentences bearing
on this point:-

" Some of the advantages to be derived from establishing our aboriginal
rights are:-

1. That it will place us in a position to reserve for our own use and benefit
such portions of our territory as are required for the future well-being of our
people.

2. That it will enable us to a mucli greater extent and in a free and indepen-
dent manner to make use of the fisheries and other natural resources pertaining
to our territory."
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"We cannot prevent the Province from persisting in this attempt, but we
*an and do respectfully deciare that we intend to persist in making our dlaim
against the Province of British Columbia for the foliowing among other reasons."

"4. While we claim the right to be compensated for those portions of our
territory which we may agree to surrender, we dlaim. as even more important
the right to reserve other portions permanently for our own use and benefit,
and beyond doubt the portions which we would desire so to reserve would
include much of the land which bas been sold by thc Province.

We are not opposed to the coming of the white people into our territory,
provided this be carried out justly and in accordance with the British principles
embodied in the Royal Proclamation. If, therefore, as we expect, the aboriginal
rights which we dlaim should be established by the decision of is Majesty's
Privyv Council, we would be prepared to take a moderate and reasonable position.
In that event, while claiming the right to decide for ourselves the terms upon
which we would deal wîth our territory, we would be willing that ail matters
outstanding between the Province and ourselves shoul be finally adjusted
by some equitable method to be agreed upon which should include representa-
tion of the Indian Tribes upon any Commission which miglit then be appointed."

From these words it will become apparent what fancies occupy the minds
of the Indians when they think of the aboriginal title and its purchase.

The Privy Council, to which the Nishga Nation desire to appeal, has
already pronounced upon the nature of the Indian titie, describing it as " a
personal and usufructuary right dependent upon the good-will of the Sovereign."

It follows that the Indian title, when acknowledged by the Crown, cannot be
separated fromn what the Crown elects to grant. In appraising the Indian title
we should go back to the time when the lands were a wilderness, when we find
a wild people upon an unimproved est.ate. The Indian title cannot increase
in value with civilized development; cession, of Indian territory has always
preceded the settlement of the country and whatever has been granted for the
transfer bas represented the good-will of the Crown, -not the intrinsic, value of the
land at the time of the cession, and assuredly not the value enhanced by the
activities of a white population. From the earliest times this beneficial interest
has ever been appraised by the Crown, the Indians accepting what was offered,
with, upon occasion, slight alterations in ternis previously fixed by the Crown.
It is optional when, if at ail, the Crown may proceed to extinguish the Indian
titie, and, therefore, if it is decided that the Indians of British Columbia have
a title of this nature, there can be no dlaim for deferred benefit fromn the Crown.

I would, therefore, propose thaLtLhe claini be referred to the Exehequer
Court, with right of appeal to the Privy Council upon the following con-
ditions:

1. That the Indians of British Columbia shah, by their Chiefs or repre-
scntativcs, in a binding way, agree, if the Court, or, on appeal, the Privy Councîl,
decides that they have a title to lands of the Province, to surrender such
title, receiving fromn the Dominion benefits to be granted for extinguishment
of title in accordance with past usage of the Crown in satisfying the Indian
dlaimi to unsurrendered territories.' and to accept the finding of the Royal Com-
mission on Indian Affairs in British Columbia, as approved by the Governments
of the Dominion and the Province, as a full ailotment of Reserve lands to be
administered for their benefit as part of the compensation.

2. That the Province of British Columbia by granting the said reserves
as approved shaîllbe held to have satisfied ail dlaims of the Indians against the
Province.

That the remaining considerations shahl be provided and the cost thereof
borne by the Government of the Dominion of Canada.
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3. That the Government of British Columbia shall be represented by
counsel, that the Indians shall be represented by counsel nominated and paid bye
the Dominion.

4. That in the event of the Court or the Privy Council deciding that the
Indians have no titie in the lands of the Province of British Columbia, the
policy of the Dominion towards the Indians shall be governed by consideration
of their interests and future development.

DUNCAN C. SCOTT,
Deputy Superinten dent General,

STATEMENT 0F THE NISHGA NATION OR TRIBE 0F INDIANS.

From. time immemorial the Nishga Nation or Tribe of Indians possessed,
occupied and used the territory generally known as the Valley of the Naas
River, the boundaries of which are well defined.

The dlaims which we make in respect of this territory are clear and simple,
We lay dlaim to the rights of men. We dlaim to bo aboriginal inh abitants of
this country and to have rights as such. We dlaim that our aboriginal rigbts
have boon guaranteeýd by Proclamation of King George Third and rocognized
by Acts of tho Parliament of Great Britain. Wo dlaim that holding undor the
words of that Proclamation a tribal ownership of the torritory, wo should bo
deait with in accordance with its provision, and that no part of our lands should
bo takon from us or in any way disposed of until the same has been purchasod
by the Crown.

By reason of our aboriginal rights above stated, we dlaim tribal ownership
of ail fisheries and, other natural resourcos pertaining to the torritory above-
mentionod.

For more than twonty-fivo years, being convinced that the recogniition of
our aboriginal rights would be of very groat material advantago, to us and wouid
open the way for the intellectual, social and industrial advance of our peopleo'
wo bayïe in common with other tribes of British Columbia, actively pressed our
dlaiýms upon tho Governmonts conccrned. In recent yearsý, being more than
ever convinced of the advantages to be dorivod fromn such reognition and foaring
that without such tho advance of sottioment would endanger our wholo future,
we have prossed those dlaims with groatly increased earnostness.

Some of the advantagos to be derivod from establishing our ahorigmnal rights
are:-

1. That it will place us in a position to reserve for own use and benofit
such portions of our torritory as are requirod for the future well-ýbeing of our
people.

2. That it will enable us to a much greater extent and in a free and
independent manner to mako use of the fishories and othor natural resources
pertaining to our ternitory.

3. That it will open the way for bringing to an end as rapidly as posisible
the system of Reserves and substituting a. system of individual ownership.

4. That it will open the way for putting an end to ail uncertainty and
unrest, bringing about a permanent and satisfactory settloînent between the
white poople and ourselves, and thus removing the danger of serious trouble
which now undoubtedly exists.

5. That it will open the way for our taking our place as not only loyal
British subjects but also Canadian citizens, as for many years we have desired
to do.
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In thus seeking to realize what is highest and best for our people, we have
encountered a very serious difficulty in the attitude which has been assumed
by the Government of British Columbia. That Government has neglected
and refused to recognize our claims, and for many years has been selling over
our heads large tracts of our lande. We claim that every such transaction
entered into in respect of any part of these lands under the assumed authority
of the Provincial Land Act has been entered into in violation of the Procla-
mation above mentioned. These transactions have been entered into notwith-
standing our protests, oral and written, presented to the Government of British
Columbia, surveyors employed by that Government and intending purchasers.

The request of the Indian Tribes of British Columbia made through their
Provincial Organization, that the matter of Indian title be submitted to the
Judicial Committee of His Majesty's Privy Council, having been before the
Imperial Government and the Canadian Government for three years, and
grave constitutional difficulties arising from the refusal of British Columbia
to consent to a reference, baving been encountered in dealing with that request,
we resolved independently and directly to place a petition before His Majesty's
Privy Council.

In following that course we desire to act to the fullest possible extent in
harmony both with other tribes of British Columbia and with the Government
of Canada.

We are informed that Mr. J. A. J. McKenna sent out by the Government
of Canada has made a report in which be does not mention the claims which the
Indians of the Province have been making for so many years, and assigns as the
cause of all the trouble, the reversionary claim of the Province. Whatever other
things Mr. McKenna found out during his stay, we are sure that he did not find
out our mind or the real cause of the trouble.

We are also informed of the agreement relating only to the so-called reserves
which was entered into by Mr. McKenna and Premier MeBride. We are glad
from its provisions ta know that the Province has expressed willingness to
abandon to a large extent the reversionary claim which has been made. We
cannot, however, regard that agreement as forming a possible basis for settling
the land question. We cannot concede that the two Governments have power
by the agreement in question or any other agreement to dispose of the so-called
Reserves or any other lands of British Columbia, until the territory of each
nation or tribe bas been purchased by the Crown as required by the Procla-
mation of King George Third.

We are also informed that in the course of recent negotiations, the Govern-
ment of British Columbia has contended that under the terms of Union the
Dominion of Canada is responsible for making treaties with the Indian Tribes
in settlement of their claims. This attempt to shift responsibility to Canada
and by doing so render it more difficult for us to establish our rights, seems to
us utterly unfair and unjustifiable. We cannot prevent the Province from
persisting in this attempt, but we can and do respectfully declare that we intend
ta persist in making our claim against the Province of British Columbia for the
following among other reasons:-

1. We are advised that at the time of Confederation all lands embraced
within our territory became the property of the province subject to any interest
other than that of the province therein.

2. We have for a long time known that in 1875 the Department of Justice
of Canada reported that the Indian Tribes of British Columbia are entitled to
an interest in the lands of the province.

3. Notwithstanding the report then made and the position in accordance
with that report consistently taken by every representative of Canada from the
time of Lord Dufferin's speeches until the spring of the present year, and in
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defiance of our frequent protests, the Province has sold a large proportion of the
best lands of our territory and bas by means of such wrongful sales received a
large amount of money.

4. While we dlaim. the right to be compensated for those portions of our
territory which we may agree to surrender, we dlaim as even more important the
right to reserve other portions permanently for our own use and benefit, and
beyond doubt the portions which we would desire so to reserve would include
much of the land whidh bas been sold by the Province.

We are not opposed to the coming of the white people into our territory
provided this be carried out justly and in accordance with the British principles
embodied. in the Royal Proclamation. If, therefore, as we expeet, the aboriginal
rights which we dlaim should be established by the decision of His Majesty's
Privy Council, we would be prepared to take a moderate and reasonable
position. In that event, while claiming the right to decide for ourselves the
terms upon which we would deal with our territory, we would be willing that
ail matters outstanding betwcen the Province and ourselves should be finally
adjusted by some equitable method to be agreed upon which should include rep-
resentation of the Indian Tribes upon any Commission which then might be
appointed.

The above statement was unanimously adopted at a meeting of the Nishga
Nation or Tribe of Indians held at Kincolîth on the 22nd day of January, 1913,
and it was resolved that a copy of same be placed in the hands of each of the
following:

The Secretary of State for the Colonies, the Prime Minister of Canada, the
Minister of Indian Affairs, the Minister of Justice, Mr. J. M. Clark, K.C.,
Counsel for the Indian Rights Association of British Columbia, and the Chair-
man of the " Friends of the Indians of Britishi Columbia."

W. J. LINCOLN,
Chairman of Meeting.
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APPENDIX G

Copy 59,335-4A

16 December, 1918.

GENTLEmEN,-Referring to your letter of the 27th May last, on the sub-
ject of çertain claims of the Nishga Tribe of Indians in British Columbia, 1 amn
directed by the Lord President of the 'Council to state as follows:-

1. One of the matters in dispute is set out in the Petition lodged
by you on the 2lst May, 1913, as "the nature and extent of the rights of
the said Nishga Nation or Tribe in respect of the said Territory". The
other is the question whether the Land Act of British Columbia is ultra
vires of the T4 egislature of that Province.

2. If the contention of the, Nishga Indians is, as it appea.rs to be,
that they have suffered an invasionof sorne legal right, the proper course
would, in is Lordship's opinion, be for thern to take such steps as rnay
be open to them to litigate the matter in the 'Canadian Courts, ýfrom
whose decision an appeal in the ordinary way can corne to the Judicial
Committee. It would seern that any intervention by the Crown by
referring the matter specially direct to the said Cornmittee would be an
unconstitutional interference with the local j urisdiction.

3. If however the dlaim of the Indians does not rest on an.y legal
basis, but is, in effect; a complaint of the executive action of the Provin-
cial or the Dominion Governrnent, it would appear that, in accordance
with constitutional principles governing relations 'between the Crown
and the Colonial Governments a special reference to the Judicial ýCorn-
mittee to consider the action of the Dominion or Provincial Goverument
could only be ordered on the recornmerndation of the Secretary of State
for the Colonies, and that he would only advise su-eh a reference after
consulting, and in accordance with the advice received frorn the Domin-
ion Government.

In these circumstances His Lordship cannot see his way to take any further
action on the Petition.

I arn, etc.,
(Sgd.) ALMERIC FITZROY,

MESSRS. SMITHS, FOX AND SEDGWIÇK,
26 Lincoln's Inn Fields,

W.C. 2.

Copf,.
0,.rrAWA, l4th November, 1914.

The Reverend ARTRuR E. O'MÂAR, B.A.,
Prince George Hotel,

Toronto, Ont.

Siu: It is in rny view unnecessary to correct the narrative of your letter
of 26th ultirno, because except in the two points which I arn going to mention
it is immaterial to any question now under consideration.

As to your remark that it has always been the view of those advising the
Nishgas that the only feasible rnethod of securing a judicial determination of
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the rights of the Indians of British Columbia is that of bringing their dlaims
directly before lis Majesty's Privy Council, I wish you would realize and
endeavour Vo convince those whom you describe as advising the Nishgas that
this Government has no power or authority to refer a question direct-ly to is
Majesty's Privy Council; that the oniy constitutional method of àbtaining the
judicial view of His Mai esty in Council relating to a question limited Vo, the
internai affairs of Canada is by appeal from the local tribunals, and that is
Royal Highness' Government is determined for these reasons, which have been
so often explained to you and those whom you profess to repres.ent, noV to
advisýe or concur in any proceedings looking Vo a decision in which the courts
of the Dominion shall not have an opportunity to express their views. If,
therefore, it be possible for me to make any statement here which can, consist-
ently with the amenities of officiai correspondence, impress you with the futility
of urging upon this Government a reference direct to the Judicial Committeýe,
I beg of you Vo consider that statement incorporated in this letter.

The poiicy of the Governinent with regard Vo the British Columbia Indian
question is very clearly stated in the Order-in-Council of 2Oth June last, and
you should, I think, be able Vo perceive. that one of the conditions upon which
further progress may be made is that the Indi.ans shall corne under the obligation
defiined by the first anumeration of the Order in Council. You state that the
Order in Council has been brought before the Nishpas Indians, and that they
will, as soon as possible, place their answer before the Government. So far
it is well, but when you say that it is clearlv necessary that before the Nishgas
answer they should 'be advîsed regarding the procedure of the courts, and
demand Vo, be informed under the authority of what enactment, and for what
reasons a reference Výo the Exchequer Court is proposed, I may I trust be
permitted Vo observe that the essential question for'consideration of the Nishgas
is as Vo whether, if their alleged title be upheld by the ultimate tribunal, they
are willing tu surrender that title in consideration of benefits Vo be granted
in extinguiohment according Vo the ancient usage of the Crown. I think it
would be a pity that Vhis question should ýbe obscured or invoived in the diffi-
culties which you have encountered about the procedure, and which the Indians
presumably would be no better able Vo understand. Therefore, without making
any further attempt Vo, explain the procedure which perhaps could not succeed
within the compass, of an ordinary letter, I suggest that the Indians should
be permitted Vo consider the question in which they are really interested as
submitted by the Order in 'Council. IV is unlikely I shouid think that the
Indians would concern themselves with procedure. They have I imagine
sufficient discernment Vo perceive, if their deliberations be rnot influenced Vo
the contrary, that a question of procedure is at present quite irrelevant; but if
necessary you may unhesitatingly assure them that no poinit of procedure will
be permitted Vo prejudice a decision upon the merits of the case, and that the
Government wiIl sec to it that the proceedings are brought and conducted in
sucli a manner as Vo provide for the admission of ail the facts and arguments
which are material Vo the controversy.

May I be allowed Vo add that in view of what I bave stated I do noV
propose Vo, consider the procedure until it is ascertained that the Indians bave
acquiesced in the conditions of the Order in Council w'hich are preliminary
Vo, any pro cedurt-

I have the honour Vo be,
Sir,

Your obedient servant,

(Sgd.) C. J. DOHiEUTY,

Minister of Justice.
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Copy59,35-4.OTT'AWA, 125tlh September, 1916.
Rev. ARTIWR E. OMFARA,

1621 Hutchison Street,
Montreal.

DEAR MR. O'MEARA,-His Royal Highness has interviewed the Honourable
Dr. Roche with reference to ypaur letter of the 29th May and your interview
with me and I arn <ommanded by His Royal Highness to state that, he considers
it is the duty of the Nishga Tribe of Indians to await the decision of the Com-
mission, after which, if they do not agree to the conditions set forth by the Com-
mission, they can appeal to the Privy Council in England, when their case will
have every consideration. As their contentions will be duly considered by the
Privy Council in the event of the Indians being dissatisficd with t.he decision of
the Commission, His Royal Highness is not prepared to interfere in the matter
at present and he hopes that you will advise the Indians to await the decision
of this Commission.

Yours sincerely,
Lieut.-Coýl. ED. S. STANTON.

Governor General's Secretary.

Copy 59335-4A.
OTTrAWA, l7th March, 1920.

Rev. A. E. O'ME~AR.,,
Chateau Laurier,

Ottawa,

SiR,--I arn commanded by is Excellency the Governor General to acknowl-
edge the receipt of your letter of the 2Oth ultimo with regard to the Nishga
Indians. You are probably aware that the claims of the Nishga Tribe of Indians
in British Columbia have already been considered by the Privy Council. In
May, 1913, a pctition to His Majesty in Council was lodged on hehaif of the
Nisliga Tribe of Indians praying that certain dlaims of theirs to land in British
Columbia might be referred to the Judicial or other Comimittee of the Privy
Couneil and Their Lordships, having given the petition their careful consideration,
were of the opinion that no action oit their part was required in the matter.
The Lord President of the Council directed Sir Almerie Fitzroy tO state as
follows:

1. One of the matters in dispute is set out in the Petition lodged by
you on the 2lst May, 1913, as " the nature and extent of the rights of the
said Nishga Nation or Tribe in respect of the said Territory ". The other
is the question whether the Land Act of British Columbia is ultra vires of
the Legisiature of that Province.

2. If the contention of the iNishga Indians is, as it appears te be, that
they have suffered an invasion of some legal right, the proper course
would, in the opinion of the Lord President of the Council, be for them
to take such steps as may be open to them to litigate the matter in the
Canadian Courts from whose decision an appeal in the ordinary way can
corne to the Judicial Committee. It would seem that any intervention by
the Crown by referring the matter specially direct te the said Committee
would bc an unconstitutionaýl interference with the local jurisdictîon.

3. If however the dlaim of the Indians does not rest on any legal
basis. but is, in effeet, a complaint of the executive action of the Provincial
or the Dominion Government, it would appear that, in accordance with
constitutional principles governing relations between the Crown and the
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Colonial Governxuents a special reference to the Judicial Committee toconsider the action of the Dominion or Provincial Gcvernment couldonly be ordered on the recommendation of the Secretary of State for theColonies, and that the latter could only advise such a reference afterconsulting, and in accordance with the advice received from the Dominion
Government.

You have already been informed on several. occasions of the attitude of theDominion Goverument towards this dlaim and there does flot appear to be any-thing further for me to add except that the Governor General takes no action,nor does he desire to take any action, except upon the advice of bis constitu-tional advisers. Under these circumstances, I must ask you to consider this letter
as final.

I have, etc.,
(Sgd.) Lieut.-Col. H. G. HENDERSON,

Governor General's Secretary.
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APPENDIX H

DEPARTMENT 0F INDIAN AFFAIRS,

CANADA

OFFICE 0F THE DEPUTY SUPERINTENDENT GENERAL,

OTTAWA, October 29, 1923.
Memorandum:

Honourable CHARLES STEWART.

1 have the honour to transmit herewith the stenographic report of the meet-
ings with the Executive Council of the Allied Tribes of British Columbia in
Vancouver and Victoria. As you are aware the meetings at Vancouver were
preliminary to the more detailed discussion which took place in Victoria.

As yc>u thought it advisable that some representative of the British Colum-
bia Government should be present at the round table conference with the Indians,
1 wrote to the Hon. Mr. Oliver as follows--

" NEW WESTMINSTER, B.C., July 27th, 1923.

The Honourable JOHN OLIVER,
Prime Minister of British Columbia,

Victoria, B.C.

DEAR MR. OLIVER,--YOU were kind enougli to promise me an appointment
on Monday morning next, and 1 shall expect to be in Victoria and cali upon you
then.

We propose to have some furtber conferences with the Indians on general
matters pertaining to their dlaims, and I expect to be able to arrange a time for
these meetings in Victoria by Tuesday or Wednesday.

The Honourable Mr. Stewart would urge upon you the advisability of the
Government of British Columbia being represented by one of your Ministers at
these meetings.' 1 have, therefore, on his behaîf to ask that you will give thai
matter your careful consideration.

Yours very truly,

(Signed) DUNCAN C. SCOTT,
Deputy Superintendent General of Indian Aif airs.

OTTAWA, ONTARIO.

As I knew that the Prime Minister intended to leave Victoria and be absent
three or four weeks, I thoughit àt well Wo iake a special Lrnp to Lhe capital in
order to urge upon him the consideration of what is known as the Supplementary
List of Reserves. I interviewed him on the morning of July 30th. The Hon. Mr.
Patullo was present during part of the interview. In discussing the matter 1
went into it rather fully and urged very strongly that the Supplementary List
should be favourably considered. Mr. Patullo promised on behaîf of his Govern-
ment to have it carefully examined by Mr. MacKenzie, Grazing Commissioner,
and Chief Inspector Ditchburn, but he did not give any assurance that any of
the additional applications would be granted. Mr. Oliver expressed the opinion
that there could be no finality of the Indian reserve question taking into con-
sideration the Thirteenth Article of the Terms of Union, as under this section
the Province was bound to give lands for Indian reserves from time to time
whenever such were really required. This appeared to me to be Mr. Oliver's
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personal opinion. I referred to my letter dated at New Westminster July 27th,
and asked him to consider appointing a representative to be present at our meet-
ings with the Indians. He said that he would consider that in Council that
afternoon, and Mr. Ditchburn received later a note dated the 31st July, signed
by Mr. Oliver's Private Secretary, as follows:-

PRIME MINIsTER's OFFICE,
VICTORIA, B.C., 31st July, 1923.

Mr. W. E. DITCHBURN,
Indian Agent,

- City.
DEAR SIR,-In reference to the conference held yesterday between your-

self and the Superintendent of Indian Affairs with the Premier and Hon.
Mr. Patullo, I am directed by the Premier to say that the question of a
representative of the Province attending any conference held between
representatives of the Government of Canada and the Indians of British
Columbia, was considered by the Executive Council this morning, and
it was the opinion of the Council that whereas the charge of the Indiang
and their trusteeship and management of the lands reserved for ther,
use is a function of the Dominion Government, therefore, any conference
with the Indians should be solely with the representatives of that Govern-
ment.

Any questions arising in respect of the Indians of B.C., involving any
responsibility on the part of the Province, should be adjusted as between
the Province and the Dominion, and therefore it is not necessary or advis-
able that the Province should be represented at any conference between
the Indians and the Government of Canada.

Yours truly,
(Signed) J. MORTON,

Secretary.

The meetings in Victoria opened on. Tuesday morning, August 7th. The
Executive Committee of the Allied Tribes was present and Mr. O'Meara, their
counsel. There was some preliminary discussion as to what procedure should
be followed and I made clear to them the purpose of the meeting and the extent
of my powers; also that it was your wish that we should have a full and frank
presentation of the Indians' case and that they should be prepared to state what
they would accept as compensation for the Indian title in the Provincial lands.
They requested me to allow Mr. O'Meara to make a general statement of their
case and I thought it proper to allow this. This statement will be found on
pages 34 to 56 of the typewritten report. Mr. Kelly, the Chairman of the
Executive Committee asked me to explain the true meaning and intent of the
statute which was passed to enable us to confirm the report of the Royal Com-
mission, and the effect of the passage of Orders in Council under that statute,
and similar legislation by the Province of British Columbia. This I attempted
to do and probably succeeded. There is lack of distinctness in the stenographie
report of this passage, but I believe the Committee finally understood the
matter.

After Mr. O'Meara made his statement we entered into a discussion of the
report of the Royal Commission, and at first an, attempt was made to deal with
it somewhat in detail. Although the members of the Committee had been in
possession of this report for some time, they were not familiar with its contents.
After some waste of time in dealing with certain agencies, it became evident
that no progress would be made if we were to attempt to consider with minute-
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ness the allotted reserves, the reduced reserves, and the new reserves. (See
pages 85-87-88.) I expressed willingness to go on with the discussion, but the
Chairman of the Committee said that the task would be "endless".

The Committee then. fell back on a statement which had been made in a
pamphlet prepared for the British Columbia Government in 1920, and as the
discussion developed, it became clear that the Indians intended to rely on the
claims made by that pamphlet, and in the end it will be found that all the
claims made there, with one important addition, are now made conditions for
the cession of the Indian title. I think it well, therefore, to place with the report
a copy of this pamphlet.

The Indians expressed unwillingness to accept the report of the Royal Com-
mission, giving their reasons and stating what in their opinion would be an ade-
quate reserve allotment. These statements will be found on pages 87 to 101.
The Indians demand that all foreshores, whether tidal or inland, be included in
the reserves, and that a per capita standard of 160 acres of average agricultural
land should be adopted in the allotment of reserves. While the demands and
their reasons are set forth in the typewritten report of proceedings, it will prob-
ably be more convenient for you to read them in the printed pamphlet; they
run from page 8 to 15.

The questions of grazing lands and irrigation were dealt with and the full-
est information was given on these questions, which are of such great moment
to the Indians in the central section of the Province.

The other conditions put forward by the Committee as a basis of settle-
ment are set forth and argued in the remaining pages of the report and are as
follows:-

Fishing Rights

There was an extended discussion on the question of fishing rights, which
will be found between pages 135 and 172. At page 166 and for a few pages fol-
lowing the Chairman of the Committee made certain definite proposals in cen-
nection with the fishing question.

The Indians wish to claim the right to catch fish in all rivers, lakes and
tidal waters of the Province without permit and without any limit, with the
explicit understanding that the fish will be used by the Indians for food only.

They wish to be allowed to fish or troll for salmon without license in all
tidal waters of the Province, and to be allowed seining licenses (both drag seine
and purse seine) at half the prevailing fees.

They desire that the Indians only should be granted seining licenses to
catch fish at the mouths of streams or rivers which flow through Indian reserves.

They desire that in all fishing districts certain waters be reserved for the
exclusive use of Indian bands or tribes in those localities.

You will observe that on page 172 I got the Chairman of the Committee to
state that they considered the favourable consideration of these requirements
as absolutely essential to the surrender of the Indian title.

I am informed by the Chief Inspector for the Province of British Columbia
under date of October 17th, that Mr. J. A. Motherwell, Chief Inspector of Fish-
eries for the Province, has stated that salmon and herring seining licenses similar
to those which in the past have been issued to resident whites will in the
future be available to Canadian Indians in their own names.

These are matters which will have to be discussed with the Department of
Fisheries. I am in sympathy with the desire of the Indians to take fish for food
and I do not think they should suffer any disabilities whatever in the prosecu-
tion of the fisheries. They should be on the same footing as any citizen of the
Province when it comes to the prosecution of this industry.

The Fisheries Department had instructed their Chief Inspector, Mr. Mother-
well, te give sympathetic attention to any representations that were made and
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I had two interviews with Mr. Motherwell iin Vancouver. I f ound him to be
entirely willing to consider any questions relating to fisheries that Were brought
before him; and the intimation conveyed by the Chief Inspecter of this Depart-
ment that the Indians were now able to obtain seining liceikses, would appear
te me te be clearly the resuit of our interviews and the sympathetie attitude
taken by the officers of this Department. I intend to have an extract made
from the report of the proceedings of the discussion on the fisheries question
eand forward itto the Deputy Minister of Fisheries.

Huinting

The Indians desire that areas should be set aside for -hunting, which only
~Indi.ans should be allowed to use; th at they should be allowed to, hunt un-
restrictedly for food purposes and that the restrictions irnposed by the British
Columbia Game Act, which limits trapping privileges te those regularly em-
ployed in that occupation, shoulid be removed.

Tîmber

The Indians request that they ýshould be secured the perpetual privilege
of cutting timber outside the reserves for fuel or for the manufacture of canoes
and baskets.

Funded Moneyis

The Indians request that an amendment to the Indian Act be passed
whereby they will have freer use of their Capital Funds. They urge that there
is a strong feeling among the people that the moneys funded for their benefit
could be more usefully employed than at present.

Pela gic Sealing

Thcy request that an amendment should be obtained te the pelagic sealing
treaty of 1911 to allow towage of canoes by gasoline launches te the scene of
the deep.-sea hunting. They state that while they were given the privilege
under the treaty of hunting in their canees, it is dangerous te venture into the
deep sea without the use of some larger auxiliary vessels.

Education

The Committee urged the establishment of an educational system which
would reach all the Indian children of the Province; that the education should
be teclinical and specially designed to fit the children for their after life, and
Ébat there should be provision for higher education in special cases.

Medical Attendance and Hospitals

The Committee urged the establishment of free medical and hospital
service which. will meet the special needs of the case. This would involve the
establishment of sanataria for the treatment of tuberculosis.

Mothers' and Widows' pensions, as effective in British C.olumbia for white
wometi.

Cash compensation for Annuities similar'to Treaty Annuities.
To explain this item it is only necessary te quote Mr. Kelly's words given

at the morning session on August llth. (Pages 251-253):
We have come to a time when we are within sight of the closing

of our series of meetings. And before summing up in a very brief
general way, the subject matters which we discussed here during this
conference, I would like to mention two matters of great importance.
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The first one is t-his: It xnay be referred ta as a monetary compen-
sation. Nsow 1 arn not unconscious of the position that we have taken
when we met -the Minister and yourself in Vancouver last year-that is
July of 1922. At that time, although the words are not on record, 1
think we ail have a very clear memnory of what we have said. We
deprecated the idea of putting un the same basis as the Indians in the
territory and eastern provinces. That is to say, we deprecate the idea
of receiving a f ew dollars annually. This sort of a thing we realize
in the long run aniounts ta a great deal; for I understand that on this
system the treaties guarantee that those annuities would continue until
the Indians beoame extinct, or even absorbed into the larger body of
citizenship. Generally speaking, Indians in this province have not
*looked upon that with any great f avour. They think it does not really

bring them anything worth while. Therefore we have taken the position
that we did.

But we have learned several things since that time; and the general
consensus of opinion among the Indians is this, that all that we have
been claiming as necessary conditions for an equitable basis of settlement,
plan more for the future rather than the present. When 1 say that, I do

not for the moment forget the statement made by the Chief Inspector of

Indian Agencies in Vancouver on the 27th of July last; but during the
years since Union took place, since the Province entered Confederation,
when this matter should have been adjusted, should have been deait
with and settled for ahl time, as was done in the other Provinces, the
matter of course was left over; not because it wns not known, but it was
ignored-deliberately ignored. We ail know the history of that. We

ail know the report made by the Chief Justice of the Dominion in 1875
on that very matter.

iNow I need not try and make out a case there; but because of that
position taken, we think that a monetary compensation running over a

given period is nothing more than fair. Now we do not say that there
should be an eternal annuity; but perhaps because of the brunt of the
battie borne by the present generation, and also the lasL generation to

some extent, in trying to get this matter up for real consideration by
the Governments from time to time, we take it it would be a fair proposaI
to make, that monetary payments, perhaps covering a given period-
I do not know how long,-that is open to negotiation-perhaps twenty
years more or less; so that the people who are now living, and who wili
not be in a position to, profit by any of the future benefits that we have
claimed, would receive direct benefit fromn the question that is now being
brought we hope to a position where we are in sight of a settiement.

Based on the present population of the Province, 24,744, for a twenty-year

period and at the usual annuity of $5 per capita, this would mean a payment
of $2,474,400.

Reimbursement of about $100,000 spent endeavouring to secure settiement
of land titie question.

To explain this item 1 would quote further from Mr. Kelly's speech on
August llth. (Pages 253-254):

And the second point that 1 want to deal with this morning, is

what we might term the cost of the case. That is contained in paragraph
20, p. 15, of our statement. 1 will just read these words once again:
" That ai moneys already expended and to be expended by the Allied
Tribes in connection with the Indian Land controversy, and the adjust-
ment of ail matters outstanding be provided by the Government." We

have always insisted on this. And since the Minîster has recognized
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our aboriginal title, and has assured us that we are in a position as of
having won our case in Court, we take the ground that we are entitled
to the cost of the case. We have been put under heavy expense during
these years past, when this matter bas been pressed; not only in our
particular organization known as the Allied Indian Tribes, but different
organizations, we have pressed the matter before that. We think of the
Indian Rights Organization, we think of the independent efforts that
have been made by the different bands from time to time sending dele-
gates to Ottawa.

It is true that those delegations looked only to adjustments in
their own particular localities, but, nevertheless, it was part of the one
large question. We are not putting any specifie sum in at this particu-
lar time; we say that is open to negotiation, but I am inclined to think
looking over accounts, the cost up to the present time bas been some-
thing like a hundred thousand dollars, in a round sum. This we con-
sider one of the necessary conditions to be seriously considered in the
final settlement of this question.

Mr. DiTcHBURN: Has that money all. come from the Indians?
Mr. KELLY: Mostly from the Indians; some of it from other people,

who have given it as loans. We must pay that back. Now it is not
necessary for me to dwell on that any longer, I think. I think that is
sufficiently covered.

This ends the transcript of the terms and conditions thought by the Indians
to be essential for an equitable settlement of the Indian title in the Provincial
lands of British Columbia. At the beginning of the meeting I drew the atten-
tion of the Committee to statements they had made at Vancouver a few days
before. You will find the words on page 27 of the report, but I think it well to
repeat it here.

We see, Sir, that the Government has not got any magic powers to
bring forth funds, their funds must come from the good-will of the people
of Canada; and we recognize this, that to take an unreasonable stand,
to make our demands unreasonable, would be antagonizing the citizens
of Canada generally, and we are not prepared to go that far. We recog-
nize the danger of taking such a stand. Therefore, we are always open
to reason, and I can assure you, any demands-claims, not demands, that
we make, will always be within reason.

It must be taken then that the claims which are made are considered by
the Committee at least within reason.

I had expected that the discussion would take a different course but it was
apparent frorn the moment the Indians referred to their pamphlet prepared for
the Government of British Columbia that they intended to take t1eir stand upon
the demands therein made. They saw fit to add to these claims a plea for a cash
payment which would amount, at the twenty year period which was suggested,
to nearly two and a half millions. That, so far as I can discern, is the only
new item which appears in the schedule, as they had previously claimed a return
of the money they had expended in the prosecution of this claim. I cannot re-
frain from expressing the opinion that far from being reasonable claims, they
are exacting and extravagant. Favourable consideration would lead to the ex-
penditure of such very large sums of money on the Indians of British Columbia
that an envious feeling would be created in the minds of other Indians in the
Dominion.

As the matter of most pressing importance was the acceptance by His Ex-
cellency in Council of the report of the Royal Commission, which action has
already been taken by the Lieutenant Governor of British Columbia in Council,
I directed the particular attention of the Indians to it.. A short discussion on this
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point will be found on pages 250-251. It had become clear that they did not
think the report of the Royal Commission was a satisfactory settiement of the

Indian reserve question, but 1 pointed out that they had not stated definitely

that they would recomrnend that the report be not confirmed by the Dominion

Government. The other point that I pressed home was our desire to, obtain an

expression of their wish as to a judicial decision on the general question of titie.

This brought forth a very cmphatic declaration from the Chairman; ho said:

" We launcli an emphatio negative to, the passing of any Order in Council, if that

Order in Council is going to be the final adjustment of ail matters relating to

Indian affairs in this Province. We dlaimi that Indian lands and Indian rights

generally are just part of one big question, and, therefore, we refuse to have

Orders in Council dealing with just, one jnatter when thîat matter cuts away from
under our f eet, as it were, our constitutional stand."

With reference to the question of litigation, they wish to be considered as

willing to have a settiement out of court, but if it seems impossible to, get a

fair and equitable settiement they wish to, " press on to the Judicial Committee
of the Privy Council."

In spite of this, vigorous protest from the Indians as to the ýacceptance of

the report of the Royal -Commission, I cannot, with a due sense of responsihility
and having the bcst interests of these people at heart, recommend any other

action but the adoption of the report. The Indians will receive in the aggregate

a large acreage of reserve lands free from any vexatious dlaims of the Province.
such as the so-called " reversionary interest"' bas been in the past. WThile it is

true that in some districts it wouid have been more satisfactory if larger

reserves could have been set aside for them, conditions peculiar te, British

Columbia rendered that almost impossible, but the report of the Royal Com-

mission provides reserves for these Indians which can be developed and utilized

by them. Over against their complainit that they have not sufficient lands, we

must set the statement, often well founded on fact, that they are not making
good use of the lands provided for them.

If our Government refuses, to further consîder the report of the Royal Com-

mission and f ails to use the statutory power to confirm the report, I arn afraid

the future welf are of the British Columbia Indians will be jeopardized. The

report is the outcome of long negotiations between the Governments, of an

examination into the needs of the Indians on the ground, during which the

evidence of Indians was taken and their advice and cobperation sought, and

finally, there was a resurvey of the whole report by officers of the Goveraments

and representatives of the Indians. I would recommend that the " eut offs "

in the Railway Beit be cancelled and the reserves as originally set apart, in the

Railway Beit be confirmed. With the reserve question finally* disposed of I

had expected that the Indians would realize that their aboriginal title was

in part already annually compensated for by the generous grants that the

Dominion Parliament is making on their behaîf, and would wish to add to, those

obligations of the Dominion an extension of the educational system and some

better provision for hospîtals and medieal attendance. Such is not the case,
and I have to, submit the facts for your consideration.

DUNCAN C. SCOTT,
Deputy Superintendent Generai.
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Comm iTTEE Roýom 368,

Ti-uR-DAY, March 3lst, 1927.

The Joint Special Committee appointed to inquire into the dlaims of the

Allied Indian Tribes of British Collumbia, as set forth in their petition submitted

to Parliament in June, 1926, met at 10 o'clock, a.m., Hon. Mr. Bostock, presiding.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. O'Meara, we would like to know exactly whomn you

represent?

Mr. O'MEARA: Mr. Beament will deal with that very matter.

The CHAIRMAN:- Cannot you state yourself whomn you represent here?

Mr. O'MEARA: Mr. Beament is ready to state that very matter; he has the
papers and he is with me in this case.

The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Beament, will You just make a statement?

Mr. BEAMENT: Mr. O'Meara,' with whomn I appear, is appearing as General

Counsel for the Association of Indian Tribes of British Columbia, which are

known as the Allied Trîbes, and who are the petitioners before these flouses.

The Secretary of that Association, Mr. Pauli, is here at the present time, and the

Cliairmati of tlhe Executive Committee of the Association is, 1 undcrstand, on

bis way here. Is it desired that 1 should go into the details of who are the

Allied Tribes?

The CHAIRMAN: 1 do not think there is any necessity to do that.

Mr. BEAMENT: Shortly, Mr. O'Meara's"position is as 1 have stated. If it is

the desire of this Committee, I can file Mr. O'Meara's written authorîty signed by

the Chairman and the Secretary.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: What is the date of that, Mr. Beament?

Mr. McINTYRE: May I intrude? I represent the Chiefs from. the Interior.

I heard the Chairman inquire of this gentleman as to whom, he represented, and

I understood him. to say that he represented the AI-lied Tribes of British Columnbia.

There is no such entity as that fromn the lawyers' point of view, and it is my

duty to interrupt and to point out to the Chairman that my friend can only

be representing the Indians known as the Coast Indians, although they are

under the name of the Allied Tribes. I apologize for interrupting, but it was

absolutely necessary. As I remarked to you this morning, Mr. Chairman, I was

not present yesterday, nor were the Chiefs present, because we were misled by

the instructions of the Deputy Superintendent General on Indian Affairs, from

whomn we understood that nothing was to be dune yesterday. It was only in

the afternoon that I learned for the first time that very important matters had

corne up and that a Chief from the Coast had spoken, named Andrew Paull.

Later on I learned, not fromn Dr. Scott, but from another party, that he had also

made a statement. I pointed out to Dr. Scott that these Indians fromn the Interior

ail should have been present at the meeting of the Committee yesterday. They

are ail here this morning and they profess to represent the whole of the Interior

Tribes, specifically twenty-eight. Authority to that effect was sent in to you,

Mr. Minister, about a year ago, subscribed by twenty-eight chiefs.

Hon. Mr. BENNETT: Do your clients make any dlaims with respect to

aboriginal title?
Mr. MCINTYRE: YeS.
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Hon. Mr. BENNETT: That is ail I want to know.
The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Mclntyre, would you file a list of the names of the

tribes you represent in the Interior, and we will ask this gentleman to do the
same thing?

Mr. BEAMENT: Hon. Mr. Stevens asked the date of the authority to which
1 referred; it is 1922. 1 bave in addition a circular letter signed by the same
Chairman and Secretary to ail the Tribes comprising that alliance.

Mr. MCINTYRE: What is the date, may 1 ask?
Mr. BEAMEINT: Dated 2nd December, 1926, in which the authority of the

General Counsel of their Alliance is speciflcally conflrmed, especially with a view
to this particular matter.

Hon. Mr. BENNETT: Is it signed by the various tribes?
Mr. BEAMENT: No, it is signed by the Chairman and the Secretary of that

Alliance.
Hon. Mr. BENNETT: Is the Chairman here?
Mr. BEAMENT: The Chairman is.
Hon. Mr. BENNETT: Let us flnd out froîn him who Mr. O'Meara represents.

ANDREW PArLL, re-called.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Pauli, you are alreadv sworn?
Mr. PATYLL: Yes, your Honour. 1 truthfully say that the Allied Indian

Tribes of British Columbia are composed of an organization which was formu-
lated in the year 1922, when ail these Chiefs, whom Mr. Mclntyre is now rep-
resenting, were a party to this Alliance. A meeting was held in North Vancouver
and we discussed the formation of this Alliance for three days before we agreed
to form an organization to represent the Indians of British Columbia in making
representation to the different Governments. Again 1 say that every one of these
Chiefs whom Mr. MeIntyre represents attended that meeting and they were
parties to the formation of the Allied Indian Tribes of British Columbia.

Hon. Mr. BENNETTr: Have you had a meeting since?
Mr. PAULL: Yes.
Hon. Mr. BENNETT: When was the last meeting?
1\r. PAULL: Last October.
Hon. Mr. BENNETT: And what tribes are now rcpresented by Mr. O'Meara?
Mr. PAULL: Ail of the Coast tribes; the Okanagan Tribes, the Lillooet

Indians, and some of the Chilcottens; ail the Indianis of Vancouver Island. Somp,
of the Northeastern Interior Indians and a few of the Indians actually residing
in Kamloops; a meinher from the Kamloops Reservation is a member of our
Executive Council.

Hon. Mr. BARNARD: You say ail the Indians of Vancouver Island?
Mr. PA-ULL: Yes.
Hon. Mr. BARNARD: 1 understand, fromn a statement that was made yester-

day, thnt the lands on the Southern part of Vancouver Island were obtained by
Treaty with the Hudson Bay Company. For instance the Songhees, are they
represented in the.se proceedings; are they making any dlaim?

Mr. PAUILL: I must correct my statement. With the exception of the
Songhees Indians and the Sooke Indians of Vancouver Island, ail the rest are
in our organization. The Saanich Indians made a Treaty with the Hudson Bay
Company; the Nanaimo Indians also made a Treaty with the Hudson Bay
Company. They are included, in our organization. It was contended by the

[Andrew Fauli.]
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officiais of the Indian Department, up te the ycar 1923, that these Indians that

bad made a Treaty with the Hudson Bay Company could flot be recognized

as having any dlaims fofý aboriginal titie.

The CHAIRMAN: I do not think we are getting any furtber with this

evidence. The best way is for Mr. O'Meara te make a full statement of what

tribes he represents.
Hon. Mr. STEvENs: And lis authority to repreýsent them. There ouglit

to be some minutes of their meetings. This question of whom Mr. O'Meara

represents bas been a bone of contention for years. Sometimes be seems to

represent tbe Allied Tribes and other times he does not, and there ought to be

some definite minutes of their meetings sbowing that Mr. O'Meara has an

appointiment. After ail, we have got to respect the word of these other Chiefs;

we cannot ignore that.

Mr. PAULL: If the Committee will allow me, I will go Vo my botel and get

my Minute Book and I can read f rom the Minutes of our organization when

Mr. O'Meara was appointed.
Hon. Mr. BENNETT: That was in 1922?

Mr. PAULL: 1922, yes, sir.

Hon. Mr. STEWART: There is evidently confliet here. If the two Counsel-.

would give the names of the Tribes they are representing that wîll be sufficient

for our purpose.
Hon. Mr. MCLENNiN: And the Trihes tbat~ are noV represented at ail.

Mr. O'MEARA: We represent here, officiaily and professionally, these very

tribes, as well as other tribes, and that can be proved to you hon. gentlemen.

Hon. Mr. BENNETT: Mr. Melntyre says they are bis clients.

Mr. BEAMENT: Is it desired that I should file this authority? I submit

it is a continuing autbority unless there is something shown te the contrary.

Tbe CHAEm.AN: Mr. O'Meara, are you ready te, go on?

Mr. BEAME3sT: In addition,' 1 would cail your attention to the fact that

the petition is the petition of the Allied Tribes. Mr. Mclntyre says there is no

sucli petitioner.
Hon. Mr. STEWAIý'RT: We arc going te iisten to any evidence about tbat.

Mr. BEAMENT: Before proceeding further, migbt I ask this Committee

just exactly what they want; whether they want us to stick to tbese allega-

tions contained in the petition or not. We take a very narrow position, and if

we confine ourselves exclusively Vo tbe petition, the matter, I think, may be

deait witb very shortly. What we say is this; we are advised, whether rigbtly

or wrongly, that we have in law a rigbt by a petîtion to His Majesty in Council

to bave a judicial determination of the substantive question that ri-ses out of

the merits of our dlaim. We may be wrong in tbat, but we only ask these

Ilouses Vo facilitatc the hearing of that dlaim. This whole question of ahor-

iginal titie is admittably a most vexed one. I tbink it is also admitted that

there are specifie questions to be decided on their merits. To date, apparently,

ît bas been impossible te reacb an agreement witb the Indian Tribes. Tbese

Tribes now corne forward and consent to be bound by tbe decision of the Privy

Counci.l. We are not asking for an expression of opinion from this Commîttee

or from Parliament on the substantive questions involved in our dlaims, but we

are simply asking tbat you will recommend the facilitation of the hearing of

these dlaims without waiving, any defence wbich the Government of Canada may

have to our substantive allegations.
In 1913, the Ni.shga Tribe whioh is one of the Allied Tribes, filed a petition

witb His Majesty in Council. Our suggestion is that a further petition be

prepared. [Andrew Patill.]
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Hon. Mr. STEVENS: What happened to that petition?
Mr. BEAMENT: It ie stili standing, I understancL
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Were not material charges referred back to this

Government?
Mr. BEAMENT: That I do not know.
Mr. O'MEARA: That is a matter to be placed before the Committee.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Was it or was it not? Surely you must know?
Mr. O'MEAiA: That widl be fully deait with.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: WVas it or was it not referred back to this Govern-

ment?
Mr. O'MEARA: There were communications on the subjeet, several dis-

patches between the Imperial Government and the Canadian Government; the
full facts will be laid before the Comimittee.

Mr. BRA&MENT: What we are really asking is. that this Committee reconi-
mend that the petitioning Tribes be permitted to file with His Majesty in
Council, for decision, a petition in the terms extended te0 include ail the Tribes
who are now petitioning, 'but in the ternis, or similar terms, of that petition
which was filed in 1913. 1 was reading a copy of Hansard and saw that Mr.
Stewart bas taken the position that our dlaims are not sufficiently definite. I
think the dlaim as stated in the petition would be sufficiently definite to place,
without any particular degree of doubt, the question at issue before the Cern-
mittee of the Privy Council.

The CIIAIRMAN: This Cornmittee wants you to produce evidence on what
you base that dlaim of aboriginal title.. Now, are you prepared te do that?

Mr. BRAMENT: Yes, we are prepared te do that, if thi-s Committee thinks
it is necessary. We want it clearly understood we are not asking this Commit-
tee te decide the merits of the question of our titie.

Hon. Mr. STEWART: But you are asking us to, decide the merits as to
whether we should give you the privilege of going to the Privy 'Council?

Mr. BRAMENT: Exactly. It seenis to be admitted by Dr. Scott's memx-
orandum that there are specific questions for determination.

Hon. Mr. BENNETT: As I understand it, a petition was presented to His
Majesty in Council at London, a.nd His Majesty's Ministers referred it to
Canada, and this Committee is now sitting to determine the matter as a Com-
mittee of the High Court of Parliament in joint session; is that right?

The CHIAIRMAN: Quite right.
Hon. Mr. BENNETT: This Committee of the High Court of Parliament is

going to settie this matter as I understand. it, or make a recommendation to
Parliament.

Hon. Mr. STEWART- That is set out in the preamble.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: May I ask Mr. Beament this: The dlaim of your

clients, as set forth in this petition to Parliament is: "The Indian Tribes of
British Columbia dlaim a.ctual beneficial owxAership of their territory, but dO
not dlaimn absolute ownership in the sense of ownership existing in the titie of
the Crown. It is recognized by the Allied Tribes that there is, in respect of
ail public lands of the province, an underlying title of the Crown, which title,
at least for the present purposes, it is not thought gjecessary te define." The
point is, do you dlaim an underlying titie on behaîf of your clients?

Mr. BEAMENT:' We dlaim a beneficiai title.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: 1 think we had better let them produce what evidence

they have to support that and give us an opportunity to get to the root of this
matter.

tAndrew Pauli.]
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Mr. BEÂMENT: 1 take it that it is the desire of this Committee that this
petition should not be treated in the terms of the petit-ion but should ho treated
as a petition, for the determination of the substantive riglits of the Tribes, which
it is most certainly not, according to its ternis.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Have you read the ternis? It is about 90 per cent
historical.

Mr. BEAMENT: I was referring particularly to the relief asked.

The CHAIRMAN: What petition are you referring to?
Mr. BEAMENT: The petition this Commîttee is considering.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: If you limited it to the last of that, our problem is very
simple. Ail we have to do is to sit in camera and consider whether we shall do
a certain thing or not. There is no caîl for evidence on the latter part of the
thing at ail.

.Mr. BENNETT: Mr. Chairman, we are carrying out paragraph No. 4 of the
prayer; that this petition ho referred to a speciai committee for full considera-
tion. -That is what we are now doing. The other three paragraphs of the prayer
involve certain references to aboriginal rights and the third paragraph is the
one dealing with the facilitation of a reference to the Judicial Committee of the,
Privy Council. This Committee is carrying out now the terms of the reference,
and I do not suppose Parliament is going to provide money for a reference te
the Judicial Cornmittee. Are we not to settie it ourselves?

Mr. MOPHERSON: I think, Mr. Chairman, that is the whole petition really;
the riglit to submit it to the Privy Council.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: That is shown on page 256,
Mr. MOPHERSON: It is covered really by the third, asking that stops bc

taken to, submit these matters.
Hon. Mr. BENNETT: Paragrapli two is the important one; that steps ho

taken for defining and settling between the Allied Tribes and the Dominion.
That is a clear and definite statement of the situation and we will settle the
issue here.

Mr. BEAMENT: I submit, Mr. Chairman, that this is only a settiement of
the issue for determination, and not a decision of the substantive question.

Hon. Mr. BENNETT: We understand what the English of it is.

Mr. O'MEAisA: My ]earned friend is absolutely right, Mr. Chairman. It is
the deliberate intention to limit that petition to the one matter of judicial
decision.

Hon. Mr. MuRPHY: The language of prayer No. 4 of the petition is, that this
petition and ail related matters be referred to a Special Committee for full
consideration. That is what we are doing.

The CHAiRMAN: The Committee desires evidence from Mr. Beament, of
what lie bases his statement on. That is what we wait, now, and are we prepared
to go ahead?

Mr. BEAMENT: I take it the committee wishes to, go into the whole question
including the actual merits of the dlaim.

Mr. HAY: The committee wants- evidence. There lias been a statement
filed. It is already on file and was sent in by mail for certain of the Tribes.

Mr. BEAmENT: The only question that stîli concerns me is, exactly on what
points the committee wants evidence.

Hon. Mr. STEWART. You were told yesterday, and Mr. O'Meara was also,
to confine himself this morning to statements in rebuttal of the statement made
by Mr. Scott yesterday wîth respect to the aboriginal title and that alone; other
matters would come, later. Mr. O'Meara was instructed to be prepared on that

point.[Andrew Pauli.]
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Mr. O'MEARA: If that was Sa understood, it was not rightly understood.
Hon. Mr. ýSTEWART: You are at your aid tricks again, Mr. O'Meara. I

told you myseif sa that týhere would be no mistake about it, before you left this
roorn.

Mr. O'MBARA: My duty, Mr. Chairman, is to present that petition to the
Parliament of Canada through this committee, that is what I arn here for.
I arn here for that serîous business and I arn ready to go on and not for any
lirnited purpose such as is suggested.

Mr. HAY: Is it not the rule that we have evidence first subrnitted as to
whorn you ,represent; then whom Mr. McIntyre represents, and so on?

Mr. O'MEARA: I do not admit for a moment that Mr. MeIntyre represents
thase tribes.

Mr. IIAY: H1e admits it and he bas made the statement. Now if you
will file sorne evidence with reference to yourself, as ta whom you represent
and whorn Mr. Mclntyre represents, we will receive it.

Hon. Mr. MuRPHY: Mr. Chairman, there can be no doubt of the under-
standing reached yesterday. Here it is in the officiai report. Addressing Mr.
O'Meara the Chairman said:-

The Committee wants yvou ta corne prepared to argue the pointe
raised this morning.

Mr. O'MAR1A: I understand perfectly well.
What is the use of wasting time now?

Mr. O'MEARA: I think, Honourable Gentlemen, that I can make the
position clear in five minutes.

The CHAIRMAN: Then take your place at the foot of the table and pro-
ceed.

Hon. Mr. MULoeHY: It is a quarter ta eleven 110w and we have wasted
aIl this time.

Mr. O'MEAu1A: Mr. Chairman, and honaurable gentlemen of the Com-
rnittee: Following up my friend's statement ta the Comrnittee, I wish ta read
a part of the paper that has been handed in ta the Chairman a fe'w minutes
ago, because it very materially bears upon this petitian that is before the
committee, and deals with the petition. This is a cireular letter senL ouL on
the 2nd December last by Mr. Kelly, Chairman of the Executive Cornmittee
of the Allîed Tribes, and Mr. Paull, Secretary of that committee. Mr. Pauli
is here at the present tirne. The part that I arn going ta read is the part that
directly bears on and deals with the case before Parliarnent as it is to-day. I
read now from that circular letter:-

The present position of the Indian case at Ottawa is that the petition
as brought hefore Parliarnent, and the Indian case as brought before
His Majesty's Privy Cauncil, therefore manifestly requires ta be dealt
with along sound judicial lines. There is good reason for expecting that
on an early day of the session, leading members of the House of Commons
will press for the t.aking of action upon the petition of Allied Tribes.
If as a result the House of Gommons shall appoint a special committee,
the first business of such committee will be consideratian of the matters
which are subject of discussion which was entered upon by the Generai
Council with the Minister of Justice, namely the fiat which was promîsed
by the Minister of the Interior in the Ilouse of Commons, and common
ground which might be reached by the Government of Canada and the
Allied Tribes in connection with the carrying forward of their independent
judicial proceedings. The special committee will also consider the closely
related matter of the first three prayers of the petition asking for, lst:

[AL B. 0'Meara.]
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safeguarding of the aboriginal rights of the Indian Tribes of British
Columbia.

2nd: Defining of the issue between the Allied Tribes and the two

Governments, which require to be judieially decided.
3rd: Helping forward the independent judicial proceedings of the

Allied Tribes.

Hon. Mr. BENNETT: Why do you leave out the words "and settling"

when you are reading it? " That steps be taken for defining and settling between

the Allied Tribes and the Dominion of Canada ".

Mr. O'MEAiiA: 1 beg pardon; I did not catch the question? Why did 1 leave

out?
Hon. Mr. BENTNETT: The words " and settling "

Mr. O'MEnýRA: May 1 remark that I arn reading from a circular letter sent

out by the two executive officers, giving a popular statement, so to speak, to the

Indian Tribes, but not purporting to give the very words. May I proceed?

After these matters shall have bcen discussed we shail be in a position

to decide whether it has become necessary for the Chairman or other

representative of the Allied Tribes to go to Ottawa. The Allied Tribes

are advised that the sending of a larger delegation would be rendered

necessary only by some quite new developments which might occur in

Parliament but not now thought to be probable.

That is the extract. iNow honourable gentlemen, I wish next to place before

this committee for special consideration the exact debate that occurred in the

Senate, showing for what purpose the committee of the Senate was appointed.

Hon. Mr. BENNETT: The order of reference covered that. There is no neces-

sity for reading that Mr. Chairman.

Mr. O'MEA&&: 1 think the honoiurablc gentleman will see in a minute or two
why I read it.

Hon. Mr. BENNETT: What may be said in thc Senate is not nccessary. The

order of reference covers that, Mr. Chairman.

Hon. Mr. MÇLENNAN: It does not help us.

The CHAIIIMAN: I do not think it is necessary.

Mr. O'M&%MRA It has a direct bearing upon the procecding with this petition

before this committee. And if the honourable gentleman will bear with me, I
will read a few words from if.

The CHAIRMAN: What we want to get is the evidence upon which you base

your claim. You are not produeing evidence now. You are only going back

to what has happened before these commîttees.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Mr. Chairmian, this is an old trick of our friend who is

now addressing the Committee. He is building up out of quotations from here

and there, something which lie thinks will support lis own contentions;- trying to

trip a Senator who may have made an observation in the Senate, or a member

in the House of Gommons, or a public man outside. It is not evidence. Our

order of reference shows why we are here and nothing that was said in the Senate

will alter that. I think it is absurd f0 bring in what members may have said,
without consideration, and present if to this committee as a support to, his

own views. That is really what the object is in presenting this Hansard report.

Hon. Mr. BENNETT: It is in no sense binding.

Mr. O'ME,4nA:- The representative of the Governent in the Senate made a
definite statement.

Mr. McPHFRxsoN: Mr. Chairman, I agrec with Mr. Stevens that what we

want is evidence, and we are not going, to he bound by what has been said in
[A. E. O'Meara.]
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the past by public men in this discussion. If we are, we do not need to hear it
now; we can read if.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: You do not help your case a bit, Mr. O'Meara, by read-
ing that.

Mr. O'MEARÂ: If the honourable gentleman will permit, me to read these
few words, then the Committee will see why I want to read them.

Hon. Mr. BARnNARD. I wouid like to know whether Mr. O'Meara i's going
to respect the ruling of the Chair.

Mr. O'MEARA: I will certainly drop it at once6 if you say so. My definite
advice to the Tribes last Octoher was that in dealing with this petition no oral
evidence was needed; that all flie f acts couid be proved by documentary evidence;
that therefore there wvas no necessity of sending f rom British Columbia any
witnesses to give evidence before the committee. Also my advice was that it was
not necessary to, send a delegation and that no delegation should be sent on behaif
of the Allied Tribes until the matters that are referred to in that circular letter
had been discussed. with the Cornmittee or Parliament. The fact is that ail the
tribes of British Columbia were informed of that by circular letter. The fact
also is that the statement in the Senate will be found, hoîîourable gentlemen, to
be completely in accordance with the advice that I then gave, and speaks of
dealing with this case on the record as it stands.

Hon. Mr. M-Rpiiy: Then ýail we need, Mr. Chairman is the record. We
need not take time with this at ail.

Hon. Mr. BENNETT: That record should be handed in.
Hon. Mr. MURPHY: Yes, get the papers.
The CIIAIRMAN: Have you ail thte documentary evidence there, Mr.

O'Meara?
Mr. O'MEARA: And I so informcd the Minister of Justice by a communi-

cation which went te lîim immediately after the first debate occurred on the llth
February.

Hon. Mr. MOLENNAN:- Have you lîanded in that statement of documentary
evidence? And have we got that stafement before us?

Mr. O'MEARA: I have everything right here.
Hon. Mr. McLENNAm,: Tien hand it in.
Hon. Mr. STEWART: That was filed wifh the Minister of Justice, I may say

for information. It was flot filed with us.
Mr. O'MEARA: The main work immediately to be donc is te convince this

commiftee of the correctness of everything that is in that petition. I humbly
submait tlîat tlîat is not altogether a matter of evidence sucb as would be given~ by
witnesses. It involves ail sorts of other evidence. Evidence regarding the
constituùional position as shown by the decisions, for instance, of the Judicial
Committee of His Majesty's Privy Council.

Hon. »Mr. STLWAPT: Mr. O'Meara, that document that you filed with the
Minister of Justice, you did not file with the Departîment of Indian Affairs at
ail. Is that the one you are now referring to, which you say is a complete state-
ment of your case?

Mr. O'MEA1tU: 1 heg pardon?
Hon. Mr. STEWART: That document or memorandum that you fiied is with

the Minister of Justice. We have no document of that character in the Depart-
ment of Indian Affairs.

Mr. O'Mn.A: Doce the Honourable Mr. Stewart refer to a paper called
«Intrductery notes for the Parliament of Canada?"
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Hon. Mr. STEWART: No, I arn asking you about your case that you state
you fled with the Minister of Justice. I say we have nlot a copy of that state-
ment in the Department of Indian Affairs.

Mr. O'MEAA: Oh, the communication to hlm; I sent his statement by
lettergram to the Minister of Justice immediately after seeing the report in
the press of the debate in the buse of Conimons.

Hon. Mr. STEWART: I am not asking about that at ail. I arn asking about
a full staternent that you say you made on behaif of the Allied Tribes, to the
Minister of Justice.

Mr. MCPHERSON: A brief that you filed.
Mr. O'MEARA: 1 arn now going to refer to the paper that I have put in

the hânds of the Minister of Justice. I have it here. I did not intend just now
to refer to, any full paper.

The CHAIRMAN: If you have fled that with the Minister of Justice, it
is not necessary to take up the time of the committee by reading it.

Mr. O'MEARA: Well, Mr. Chairman, and honourable gentlemen, I definitely
and delibierately dlaim to represent ail the principal tribes of the province of
British Columbia, and I say to this august 'body that every one of those tribes
is expecting me to seriously present their case au is ýshown by that petition te
Parliarnent, to this committee, and that is what I arn proposing now to do;
and in order as much as possible to shorten that and ýalso to make it as clear
as possible I arn about to read the main parts of the staternent which was
actually sent by me to the Minister of Justice and it is headed " Introductory
Notes for the Parliament of Canada." I arn about to read the main parts of
that if the Committee sees fit to, permit me.

Hon. Mr. STEWART: Have you a copy of that statement with you. Mr.
O'Meara?

Mr. O'MEAA: At the preseat moment I only have the one.
Hon. Mr. STEWART: I wish you would file it with the Chairman.
Mr. O'MEARA: I 'will see that a copy is made.
Hon. Mr. STEWART: Proceed then please. I do net want te interrupt you

any more.

Mr. O'Meara's staternent fled as follows:

"THE BRITISH COLUMBIA INDIAN LAND CONTROVERSY

INTRODTJCTORY NOTES FOR THE PARLIAMENT 0F CANADA PREPARED BY TE

GENERAL 'COIJNCIL OF ALLIED INDIAN TRIBES
It is important at the outset to ma.ke clear that the claims of the Indian

Tribes of British Columbia which now are presented by me as General Counsel
of the ailied Indianý Tribes of British Colunibia are the very dlaims which had
been consistently and persistently pres.ented by the Indian Tribes thernselves
to the Governments and ail others concerned throughout fty yea.rs when in
the year 1916 the alliance of Tribes was formed and I undertook professioinal
charge of the Indian case.

As is shown by officiai Memorandum, issued la the month of January, 1922,
copy of which is on file la the Departrnent of Justice, I arn Advocate of every
allied Tribe "before His. Majesty's Privy Council, the Parliament of Canada,
the Governments and ail others coAcerned." Through my voice every allied
Tribe speaks. The dlaims presented 'by me are the dlaims actuadly made by
every allied Tribe. Every Indian Tribe of this Province has always said of
the territory of the Tribe-this is our country-we dlaim that to ail our terri-
tory we have a real beneficial tribal titie.
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The territorial land rights so claimed have been in a remarkable degree
misunderstood and misrepresented. The allied Tribes do flot dlaim such terri-
torial rights for any purpose of ej ecting fromn the territory those who are not

members of the Tribe or disturbing any titie held in good f aith in this Province.
They dlaim such territorial rights and are iseeking to establish them as a basis

of equitable settiement to be brought about between the Indian Tribes, and the
two Governments. They think that such settiement should include their per-

manent rights in respect of reserved lands together with their foreshore rights
and their fishing rights, hunting rights, water rights and ail other general rights,
and in respect of ail territory which shall be surrendered should provide for
compensation to be equitably settled.

The objective of the allied Tribes bas always 'been and now is settiement-
a real settiement based upon the actual rights of the Tribes and equitably
brought acbout-such settiement as the late Mr. Harcourt Secretary of State
for the Colonies in course of lis Despatch which was sent to the Governor
General of Canada in the month of July, 1911, described as 'an equitable solu-
tion of this troublesome case.'

The allied Tribes and all advising them. professionally and otherwise and
ahl helping thein have done their utmost towards accomplishing such settiement
by means of discussion and negotiation with the two Governments, and they
continued to do so notwithstanding serious difficulties placed in the way notably
the McKenna-McBride Agreement and the law of the year 1920, until on 19th
July, 1924, by paýssîng Order in Council adopting the Report of Royal Com-
mission the Government of Canada closed the door against the bringing about
of any such settlement.

From the door so closed against them the allied Tribes turned to the door
of His Majesty's Privy Counicil which had already for a length of time been
opcncd bcforc them. Thus judicial decision of the Indian land controversy
became their one fixcd immediate objective and they resolvcd to cxclusively
devote themselves f0 the establishment of their rights.

Consequently it will be found that the Petition now before Par1 ament does
not br.ing before Parliament the subject of ternis of settlement and that the
prayers of the Petition seek to obtain, only the safeguarding of the aborîginal
rights of the Indian Tribes, the defining and settling of tbe issues requiring to
be judicially decided, and tbc facilitating of the independent proceedings of the
allied Tribes now in His Majesty's Privy Council and such other indcpendent
judicial proceedings as shahl be found necessary.

The dlaims of the allied Indian Tribes, the grounds upon which their claàms
rest, the present position of their case in Ris Majesty's Privy Council and before
the Parliament of Canada, and the resulting responsibility rcsting upon the
Dominion of Canada are shown with some degrec of fulness by three pa'pers to
whîch attention is requested, namely:

1. Letter addressed by Gencral Counsel to Minister of Justice on l7tb
August, 1925.

2. Petition presented to both Huses of Parliament on the 1Oth day of
June, 1926, and fully recorded in botlh Hansards of the l4tb day of
samne month.

3. Notes prepared for the Acting Minister of Interior by the Chairman
and the General Counsel of allied Tribes. on lOth July, 1926.

1 have advised the allied Tribes that the territorial land rights wbich they
bave always claimied are constitutionally of the nature of tribal or communal
ownersbip, have been expressly preserved by the British North A.merica Act,
and under Section 109 of that Act are an interest in ahi lands acquired by the

Province of British Columbia wbich an Indian Tribe can assert against the
Province.
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The advice so given is supported by the Report of the Minister of Justice
issued in the month of January, 1875, the opinion of Mr. E., L. Newcombe,
K.C., now a Judge of the Supreme Court of Canada stated in his 'book " The
British North America Acts " pu'blished in the year 1908 at page 89, and a
numiber of judgments delivered by their Lordships of the Judicial Committee
of His Majesty's Privy Council notabiy that deiivered in the Southern INigeria
case which. was decided in the month of July, 1921.

In the month of September, 1916, the aliied Tribes receivcd definite assur-
ances of is Majesty the King, conveyed in writing by His Majesty's Repre-
sentative in Canada the Duke of Connaught. that lis Majesty's Privy Council
wouid consider the Petition of the Nisfiga Trihe which had been presented to

is Majesty in Council.
In the month of December, 1918, by correspondence which had been con-

ducted betxveen the London Agents of the Allied Tribes and the Lord President
of is Majesty's Privy Council it had been made clear, as the allied Tribes
are advised, that they are entitied to obtain judgment of the Judicial Committee
decichng the Indian land controversy and that the only question then remain-
ing open was that of procedure.

The result of what has beeîi stated in the preceding two paragraphs, as
the allied Tribes are advised, is that their constitutional right of proceeding
independently in lis, Majesty's Privy Council and securing judgment of the
Judicial Committee bas been established in the most authoritative possible
way. Havîng thus stated the position of the Indian case in England I proceed
to state the assurances which on behaif of Canada have been given to the
allied Tribes.

In the month of August, 1910, at Prince Rupert Sir Wilfrid Laurier,
Primo Ministcr of Canada, addressing in tihat capacity representatives of the
Northern Tribes gave assurance that Canada would help the Indian Tribes
of British Columbia in obtaining judgment of the Judicial Committee of is
Majesty's Privy Council deciding the Indian land controversy.,

On the 27th day of July, 1923, at Vancouver the Minîster of Interior,
addressing the most representative gathering of the Indians of British Columbia
ever heid and speaking on behaif of the Government, of Canada, conceded
that the aliied Tribes are entitled to obtain judicial decision of the Indian land
controversy and gave' assurance that the Dominion of Canada wouid help them
in obtaining such decîsiýon.

On the 26th day of June, 1925, in course of debate in the buse of
Commons the Minister of Interior speaking on behaif of the Government of
Canada conceded that the allied Tribes are entitied to obtain from is
Majesty's Privy Council decision of the Indian land controversy and agreed
that the Government would give authoritative sanction for doing so.

In view of ail the assurances which have been above briefly stated, I bcg
respectfully on behaif of everv allied Tribe to say that the allied Trihps a~re
not prepared te rclcase the Dominion of Canada from the assurances whichi
have been given on behaif of Canada, but on the contrary are seeking and
expeet to obtain fulfilment of those assurances.

By letter which acting under resolution adopted by the Executive Coin-
mittee of allied Tribes the Chairman addressed to the Minister of Interior
on l3th November last the Minister's attention was requested to the assurances
which have been given on behaif of Canada and to the Petition now before
Parliament and the Minister was invited to answer ail or any of the contents
of the Petition. The Minister has not yet given any such answer. This ex-
perience does not greatiy surprise the allied Tribes. It is exactly the experience
that they have had in relation to ail outstanding papers which by or on behaif
of the allied Tribes have been presented to the Governinent of Canada since
1 undertook professionai charge of the Indian case, to no one of which the
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Department of Indian Affairs has attempted to give a meritorious answer. It
is thouglit by the allied Tribes that for the absence of answer there is a very
simple explanation. They think that ail the main representations which have
been made by them and on behaîf and in particular those contained in the
Petition now before Parliament are unanswerable.

It is submitted on 'hehaif of the allied Tribes that, as the ýPetition 110W

before Parliament deals with property rights, whieh are. the subject of con-
troversy between the Indian Tribes and the two Governments, they are entitled,
according to British constitutional principles firmly established and founded
upon the provisions of Magna Charta, to secure that their Petition shall be
referred to a Special Committce.

1 conclude these Notes by requesting special attention to the following
words quoted from, my letter addressed to the Minister of Justice:-

Notwithstanding the provisions of the law of the year 1920 and the
position which bas arisen fromn that law as stated in1 the two papers
issued by the Delegates and my own letters, the serious character of
which 1 fuily appreciate. I believe that the Minister's "unending diffi-
culty " might be hrought to an end very simply and speedily. If you
should be prepared to discuss this matter I shail be prepared to suggest
for your consideration common ground which might be reached by the
Government of Canada and the allied Tribes. I would with somne degree
of confidence expect to convince you that it is the only common ground
constitutionally and practically possible.

The offer then made whieh was placed before Parliament by paragraph 22
of the Petition stili stands. When, action having been decided upon, a Special
Committee or Special Committees of the two Houses shaîl have been appointed,
1 shahl be preparc to bring hefore the Special Committee or Special Committccs
partîculars of the common ground to which I made reference.

A. E. O'M.

VANCOUVER, B.C.,
4th February, 1927."

Mr. O'MEARA: I wiil put before you the material parts showing the basis
of what I propose to say to the Committee. It is not a matter of handing in a
copy of it.

It is important, at the outset, to inake clear that the claims of the Indian
Tribes of British Columbia, whielh are now presented by me as generai counsel
of the Allied Indian Tribes of British Columbia, are the verv dlaims which have
been consistentiy and persistently presented by the Indian Tribes themselves to
the Governments, and alI others concerncd, throughout the past 50 years. In
the year 1916, an alliance of the Tribes was formed, and I undertook the pro-
fessional charge of the case for the Indians. This is shown by the officiai memo-
randum which bas been handed to the Chairman. I am the advocate of every
Allied Tribe before his Majesty's Privy Council, the Parliament of Canada, and
the Governments of other provinces. This memnorandum. represents My voice on
behaif of the Allîed Tribes, and is a presentation by me, of their dlaims, which
claims are actually made by every Allied Tribe in the Province of British
Columbia. Every Indian Tribe in British Columbia has always considered
British Columbia to be the territory of the Tribes; their country; territory te
which they have a real beneficial tribal titie.

Hon. Mr. M-URPHY: Is it stuif like this the aboriginal titie is based upon?
If so, it is a mo'st scandalous waste of time of tiis Cominittee.
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The CHAIRMAN: You stated a moment ago you were going to put forward
the basis of your contention, supported by documentary evidence. Cannot you
do that so that the Committee can read and study it, and time need not be taken
Up in this way.

Mr. O'MEARA: 1 have just had an intimation that I am responsible for
proceeding witli my argument, Mr. Chairman.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: This is not argument, and you ought to know it.
Mr. O'MEARiA: It is argument.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: It is not argument. If you would present facts to this

Committee, 1 know the Com&ittee would lie delighted. If you have any docu-
ments and decisions that you dlaimn are in support of your contention, the Com-
mittee will bie glad to have them. It is these endless dissertations which are so
wearisome.

Mr. O'MEARA: The trouble has been rather endless, because it bas existed
for sixty years. I know I have a responsible task, hon. gentlemen, but perliaps
you will have a sufficient, degree of confidence in me as counsel for the Allîed
Tribes, or, perhaps confidence in the Tribes, to permit me a certain measure of
discretion in presenting this case to the Committee.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: I must confess that experience teaches us to the
contrary.

Hon. Mr. MOLENNAN: The gentleman undertook to only take five minutes
to explaîn certain things, he bas now taken nearly 20 minutes, and bas simply
gone over various questions. From what I know, there is a dispute as to whom,
hie represents. Hie lias purported te read from a document which had apparently
been presented to 'the Minister of Justice. IL cannot bie a statement of that
kind. It is not with any liostility to any dlaims Mr. O'Meara wishes to present,
that I make this interruption; it is a waste of time te talk of irrelevant matters.

Mr. O'MEARA&: With ail sorts of deference to, this Committee, I neyer, for
one moment, gave sucli an undertaking, tliat I would make my remarks in five
minutes.

Hon. Mr. MC-LENNAXN: You were to make an explanation whicli would dlean
up the whole matter.

Hon. Mr. MURPHy: It was then a quarter to, eleven, and lie lias now been
speaking for hlf an liour.

Mr. O'MEARA: I will say this; a discussion of this matter was entered upen
between tlie Minister of Justice and myseif on tlie l9tli of August, 1925, and
was continued witli a number of very serious interviews between the Deputy
Minister and myseif, extending to tlie montl of Octeber of that year. ,It bais
a very decided bearing upon wliat I arn now presenting to this Committee.

Hon. Mr. BENNTT: It lias nothing te, do with the reference te tliis Com-
mittee. As Mr. MePlierson lias said, the reference covers. ahl we liave to deal
witli.

Mr. O'MF-ut: I was about to give tlie Committee the exact f acts in regard te
that position; if the Committee does not desire te bave that, at this stage-

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Thie Cominittee have asked you, as you dlaimn to lie
counsel'for these Indian Tribes, to present te the Committee the arguments and
evidence supporting tlie prayer of your petition, whicli is sliown at page 266 of the
Senate records of 1926.

Mr. O'MEA&4A: If it is tlie pleasure of the Committee, I will reserve certain
matters umtil I have done that, and I will go right on with the petition. This
is a petition of tlie Allied Indian Tribes of Britishi Columbia-

The CHAIRMAN: You are not going te, rend the petition, are you? The
Committee bas thie petition before tim.
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Hon. MT. STEVENS: We have it here, and are waiting for you to give your
support to it.

Mr. O'MniA~: I arn now ready to furnish such evidence as this Committee
requires. In one part of this petition-

Hon. Mr. BENNETT: The case for the petitioners rnust rest upon the facts
and the law. The facts should bc deposed to, by wîtnesses, and the law argued
by counsel. I should like to ask this witness what he can say in the way of
presenting the facts, first, that corne within the order of reference. Then we
will listen to a legal argument, based upon authorities.

Mr. MCPHInRSON: In addition te that, I think sorne member asked Mr.
Pauli, yesterday, what was the Indian's dlaim, and he said he did not wish to
make a statement, that Mr. O'Meara would make the statement. INow, in
order to get that point disposed of, could we have Mr. O'Meara say what is
the dlaim of the Indians,, for instance, as to their beneficial intereist in the lands
of British Columbia, and then dealing with the other points in succession. Can
we restrict it to that?

Mr. O'ME,.xI: 1 appreciate the remarks made by the hon, gentlemen, and
I was proceeding along that line, 1 wa-s about te give, ini the shortest possible
forrn, a statement of this matter. Then I was going on to give the evidence in
support of the petition, as far as the Committee thought necessary. I think littie
actual evidence is necessary, that ail the evidence can be given by the documents.
I would ask the Com.rnittee to accept that explanation, and allow me to proceed
with my very carefully condensed statement.

The CHAIRMAN: You are now going to deal with the statement you were
reading before?

Mr. O'MEARA: I have in mind the remarks just now made, and I arn asked,
as a witncss, to give evidence. I arn here as general counsel of the AIlicd Tribes,
but if there is any knowledge I have incidentally acquired, I would not hesitate
for a moment to give it. But I arn here as counsel for the Tribes, and having
that responsibility, I propose to, seriously present their case. Their case is em-
bodied in the petition which is before Parliarnent. In order to deal with if in a
satisfactory way, I was proceeding to deal with the very condensed statement 1
have prepared, dealing with the aboriginal titie. The hon. members did not
approve of that course, so I stopped.

The CHAIRMAN: We stopped you reading that document, because that docu-
~ment will be in the hands of the committee, and they can consider it. What we
want are the facts, te be given in evidence.

Mr. O'MEARA: This is not that sort of document. What I propose to do is,
if the committee will allow me to proceed-

Hon. Mr. MURPHY: What could he plainer, as te, the requirements of this

.cornmittee, than was stated in the language of Mr. MePherson a f ew moments
ago? Mr. O'Meara, acting for the Indians, should state their dlaims in con-
secutive order. That is ail we need.

Mr. O'MEARA: That is what 1 was about to do.

Mr. MOIN: You are always about to do it, but neyer do if.

Mr. O'MEARA: 1 was stopped. 1 have to obey the cornmittee. 1 know
what the remark was that was made by the hon. Chairman, but 1 say this is
not that sort of paper; this is a paper which is intended to enable me in the
clearest, and rnost definite, way, to meet the desire of the committee, as 1
understand it.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: For goodness sake, proceed.
[AL E. O'Mear&]
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Mr. O'MEARA (Reading):
The territorial land rights so claimed have been, in a remarkable

degree, misunderstood and mîsrepresented. The Allied Tribes do not
dlaim such territorial rights for any purpose of ejecting from the terri-
tory those who are not members of the Tribe, or disturbing any title
held in good f aith in this province.

The CHAIRMAN: 1 do not want to interfere with you, but you have not made
any answer to vwhat Mr. MePherson asked you. H1e asked you for a definite
statement.

Mr. O'MEARA: 1 give my assurance to the committee that what I have in my
hand does contain the answer. Will the committee please allow me a certain
amount of discretion in placing it before the committee?

The CHAIRMAN: If you will put in the document, that is ail that is neces-
sary.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: We will consider that document along with the other
documents.

Mr. O'MEARA: Arn I entitled to do two things, Mr. Chairman and hon.
gentlemen, first, to support this petition sufficiently to place it before Parliament;
and then to present the argument upon it?

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: You are not entitled to occupy the time of this com-
mittee by wandering ail over.

Mr. O'MEARA: If the matter is to be seriously dealt with, it is necessary.
to occupy the time.

Hon. Mr. BENNETT: Mr. Chairman, will you ask the witness upon what facts
he raises the question of the aboriginal title of the Allied Tribes?

The CHAIRMAN: Can you answer the question?
Mr. O'MEAuRÂ: I amn ready to answer; I have the information right hiere

ready to give the afiswer.
The CHAIRMAN: Well, answer it. Do not read the document, answer the

questions of the Committee.
Mr. (YMEARA: The question is not the sort of question to be answered

just in a few sentences.
Hon. Mr. BENNETT. Well, start with one sentence-
Mr. O'ME.ARA: If the Committee says to me, "Mr. O'Meara, as counsel

for the Allied Tribes, do not go on presenting this case"; I suppose I must
obey the Committee.

The CHAIRMAN: We are not desirous of, in any way, stopping your
presentation of the case. We ask you to file the document, and to answer the
questions of the Committee. There is no necessity of reading the document,
you can file it withI the Clerk, and the Commîttee will have it for tlieir
information.

Mr. O'Mp-à.A: Apart from every other consideration, Mr. Ch'airman,
may I point out that it is a practical certainty that the. members of the Com-
mittee would desire to ask questions with regard to the very matters which I am
now about to put before them.

The CHAIMAN: The Committee have asked you questions, but you will
not answer them.

Mr. O'M&uu: I refer to what I was about to place before the Comnmittee.

Hon. Mr. STEVEcNS: We have as'ked you, haîf a dozen times, to file the
document. If you would answer the questions that are asked, in a frank manner,
we cuuld make progress. I do not think you are doing your clients a bit of
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good by the course you are taking. You must, at least, respect the wishes of
this Committee as ta the manner in which the case is to be presented.

Mr. O'MEARA: 1 will obey the wishes of the Committee.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: I again ask you, in the interests of your clients,

ta file that- document with the Committee, and then be good enougli to answer
one or two questions that have been asked. If you would do that, it would help
your clients a great deal more than your persîsting in this matter.

Hon. Mr. MuRPHaY: It is now more than hall an hour since this gentleman
said he would present the case ta us in five minutes, and lie lias not yet began
to do so. How mucli more time is tlie Committee going ta waste witli this sort
af performance?

Mr. O'MEARA: Will the hon, gentlemen please accept my assertion that
I neyer heard of any remark ta the effect that I would only take five minutes.

Mr. MaRIN: You made the remark yourself.
Hon. Mr. MURPHYu: In view of what is contained in the record, I certainly

will not accept the gentleman's assurance.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: I know that this Committee would like ta hear wliat

any of tlie Indians tliemselves would have ta say. I think that Parliament is
always ready ta extend ta the personnel of aur Indian tribes, representing them-
selves and others, a most courteous and kindly liearing. But I submit, not
only from wliat I have expericnced this morning, but from, my knowledge of
wbat lias taken place in the last seventeen years with Mr. O'Meara acting as
counsel for the Indians. that, he can do nothing but xnystify and becloud the
issue before the Commit-tee. That is my conviction. I have let it go until this
time, but I think tlie Committee will agree witli me that it is now apparent,
that instead of listening ta Mr. O'Meara, we should hear from, tlie Indians
themselves, and thcir rcprcscentatives. We will give ta tliem a most cordial and
courteous hearing.

The CHMARMAN: I understand Mr. IPaull, is the relWesentative of certain
ai the Allied Tribes, and Mr. Mclntyre represents other Indians, as their counsel.
Mr. Kelly is ta be here on Saturday. In order ta keep the matter straiglit before
the Committee; is it the wisli ai the Committee that Mr. O'Meara file tliese docu-
ments, and we tlien proceed ta hear what Mr. Melntyre, and the Indians he rep-
resents have ta say?

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: We have ta make saine progress.
Mr. O'MEARA: Mr. Chairman, and hon. gentlemen; in view of the remarks

made-and I have a very higli regard for every member of both buses af Par-
liament-may I say riglit now ta tlie hon, gentlemen, that the remarks made are
not well founded. Moreover, I must state that this paper is the result of the
most careful tliought I have been able to give it, and it bas been condensed as
mucli as possible. I ask on behaîf of the Indian Tribes ai British Columbia
that I have tlie opportunity ai proceeding.

The CHAIRMAN: Is it the wish ai the Committee that Mr. O'Meara sliould
read the document?

Hon. Mr. GREEN: Yes, if lie is going to immediately file it.
Mr. O'MEiiR: I do not intend ta read the wliole document.
The CHAIRMAN: Y-ou understand that the document is ta be filed just as

it is.
Mr. O'MEARA: Certainly, am I at liberty ta read it?
The CHAIRMAN: Yes, go ahead and read it.
Mr. O'MEAiu. (Reading):

They dlaim sucb territorial riglits and are seekîng ta establish them
as a basis af equitable settlement ta be brouglit about between the Indian
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Tribes and the two governments. They think that such settiement shouid
include their permanent rights in respect of reserved lands together with
their foreshore rights and their fishing rights, hunting rights, water rights,
and ail other general rights, and in respect of ail territory which shall
be surrendered should provide for compensation to, be equitably settled.

The objective of the Allied Tribes has always been, and 110w i5,
settlement-a real settiement based upon the actual rights of the Tribes
and equitably brought about-such settiement as the late Mr. Harcourt,
Secretary of State for the Colonies in the course of his despatch, which
was sent to the Governor-General of Canada in the month of July, 1ý911,
described as ' an equitable solution of this troublesome case.'

The allied Tribes, and ail advising themn professionally and otherwise,
and ail helping them, have done their utmost towards accomplishing such
settiement by means of discussion and negotiation with the two Govern-
ments, and they continued to do so, notwithstanding serious difficulties
placed in the way, notably, the McKenna-McBride Agreement, and the
law of the year 1920, until on 19th July, 1924, by passing Order in Council
adopting the Report of Royal Commission, the Government of Canada
closed the door against the bringing about of any such settiement.

From the door so closed against them, the Allied Tribes turned to
the door of is Majesty's Privy Council, which had already, for a length
of time, been opened before them. Thus, judicial decision of the Indian
Land controversy became their one fixed, irnmedxate o~bjective, and they
resolved to exclusively devote themnselves to the establishment of their
riglits.

Consequentiy, it will be found that the petition 110w before Parlia-
ment does not bring before Parliament the subject of terms of settiement,
and that the prayers of the petition seek only to obtain the safeguarding
of the aboriginal rights of the Indian Tribes, the defining and settling
of the issues requining to be judicially decided, and the facilitating of
the independent proceedings of the Allied Tribes. 110W in Ris Majesty's
Privy Council, and such other independent judici-al proceedings as shall
be found necessary.

1 had not intended reading the whoie of the document, but 1 think, as it
bas to be handed in, 1 will read the whole of it.

The dlaims of the Allied Indian Trîbes, the grounds upon which.
their dlaims rest, the present position of their case in lis Majesty's
Privy Council, and bcfore the Parliament of Canada, and the resulting
responsibility resting upon the Dominion of Canada, are shown with
some degree of fullness by three papers to which attention is requested,
-namely:

1. Letter addressed by general counsel to Minister of Justice on
l7th 1 August, 1925.

2. IPetition presented to both Houses of Parliamnent on the lOth
day of June, 1926, and fully reported in both Hansards of the
14th day of the same month.

3. Notes prepared for the acting Minister of Interior by the Chair-
man, and the general counsel of Allied Tribes on lOth July, 1926.

I have advised the Allied Tribes that the territorial land rights
which they have always claimed are constitutionally of the
nature of tribal or communal ownership, have 'been expressly
preserved by the Britieh North America Act, and i.mder Section
109 of that Act, are an interest in ail lands acquired by the
Province of British Columbia, which an Indian Tribe can assert
against t.he province.[AE.'Ma]
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Hon. Mr. BENNwT: Do you mean ail the lands of the Province of British
Columbia, the whole, 350,000 square miles?

Mr. O'MEm.n: Ail the lands of the Province.
Hon. Mr. BFNFxi=: Do you claim aboriginal titie to the whole 350,000

square miles, to, the whole Province?
Mr. O'MEiiA: To aIl territory, except certain parts that have been ceded.

Claim is made in respect of practically ail the lands, because it is ail territory
of the Tribes.

Mr. O'MEAR: (Reading):
The advice sa given is supported by the report of the Minister

of Justice, issued in the month of January, 1875, the opinion of Mr. E.
L. Newcombe, K.C., now a judge of the Supreme Court of Canada, and
stated in his book, " The British North America Acts " published in the
year 1908, at page 89, and a nunmber of judgments delivered by their
lordships of the Judicial Committee of is Majesty's Privy Council,
notably that delivered i the Southeru Nigeria case, which was decided
in the month of July, 1921.

In the month of September, 1916, the Allied Tribes received definite
assurances of His Majesty the King, conveyed in writing by lis Majesty's
representative in, Canada, the Duke of Connaught, that is Majesty's
Privy Council would consider the petition of the Nishga Tribe, which
had been presented to His Majesty in Council.

In the month of December, 1918, by correspondence which had
been conducted 'between the London agents of the Allied Tribes, and
the Lord President of His Mai esty's Privy Council, it had been made
clear, as the Allied Tribes are advised, that they are entitled to obtain
judgment of the judicial committec deciding the Indian Land controversy,
and that the only question then remaining open was that of procedure.

The result of what has been stated în the preceding two paragraphs,
as the Allied Tribes are adviýed, is that their constitutional right of pro-
ceeding independently in His Majesty's Privy Council, and isecuring
judgment of the Judicial Committee has been estabiished in the most
authoritative, possible way. Having thus stated the position of the
Indian case in England, I proceed to state the assurances which, on
'behaif of Canada, have been given to the Ailied Tribes.

Ia the month of August, 1910, at Prince Rupert, Sir Wilfrid Laurier,
Prime Minister of Canada, addressing, in that capacity representatives
of the Northern tribes-

Hon. Mr. BE-NNEIT: Mr. O'Meara has stated the facts upon which hie
relies ta support the dlaim with respect to aboriginai titie, as referred to in the
reference, but he is now going outside of the subjeet matter of the reference. If
hie were to quote judclial decisions, I would agree, but when hie proposes ta, read
extracts from addi esses made by members of Parliament, I do not agree. For
instance, in a cour, of law, you would not be allowed to quote fram HJansard.
It seems ta, me that what Mr. O'Meara now proposes ta, read, cannot possi'bly
advagce us. I do not want ta interrupt.

The CHAIRMAN: llow mucli more is there?
Mr. O'MEARA.: NoV very mucli more. I suggest that you permit me Vo

finish it, whatever may be the merits of it.
Hon. Mr. STEvnNs: The only point is that the Committee should not per-

mit Mr. O'Meara to place on the record a statement of the late Sir Wilfrid
Laurier's, or any other prominent public man, who happened to ýbe passing
through the Province of British Columbia, and was courteous enough to receive
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delegatians, sa that it may be quoted as having 'been given, as evidence ta this
Cammittee.

Mr. O'MEARA: That evidence is available, there are those in this romr
wha can testify ta what was said.

Hon. Mr. STEWART: Yau are now attempting ta quate a statement made
by the late Sir Wilfrid Laurier. Yau quated ene statement I made, but you
failed ta quate what I had said in prefacing my remarks. The same is true
with respect ta the statement alleged ta have been made by the late Sir Wilfrid
Laurier. It is like the statements whîch are mnade by public men when touring
in Canada.

The CHAIRMAN: Yau state in the dacument that yau want ta have yaur
case presented ta the Privy Cauncil. It is impartant that we shauld get dawxn
ta what are the facts, and 'we can deal with them.

Mr. O'MEAiA: WThat 1 arn naw reading is the resuit of absalutely can-
densing what is maiterial, to the very last degree af candensing it.

Han. Mr. STEvENS: What the late Sir Wilfrid Laurier said an his trip ta
British Columbia is not germane. at ail, to the questian.

Mr. O'MPARA: May I assure the han, gentlemen that the facts can be
shawn that it was a serious interview -with Sir Wilfrid Laurier, given to a dele-
gatian representing the Narthern tribes af British Calumbia. Sir Wilfrid
Laurier said, in sa many wards, that he was representing the Dominion af
Canada; I think the exact language was that he was the Gavernment af Canada.

The CHAIItMAIN: Yau have practically made yaur statemnent, and yau are
now adding ta it by argument.

Mr. O'MEAR.A: 1 arn endeavouring to answer the questian.
The CHAIEMAN: The decisian af the Committee wîll be that yau must

stap rîght there.
Mr. O'MEARA: I will abey that. I simply reserve the ather matter.

Han. Mr. McLENNAN: Other matters af that kind. Anything else that yau
have yau may give to us, 1 should think, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. O'MFARA: Mr. Chairman, it has been suggested, and is it definite, that
I should nat now go an with that paper any further?

The CHAIRMAN: Yes.
Mr. O'MEARA: Because the last paragraph of it is prabably the most

material ta this Cammittee to have.
Han. Mr. STEWVART: Then let us have the last paragraph and file it.

Han. Mr. MuRPHY: Let it be only one paragraph though.

Mr. O'MEARA: 1 will read then, with yau-r Cammittee's approval, the Iast
two paragraphs af the paper. I canclude tiiese notes by requesting special
attention ta, the fallowing wards quated from rny letter addressed ta the Min-
ister af Justice: These words are quted:-

"'Natwithstanding the pravisians of the law af the year 1920, and the
positian which has arisen f ram that law as stated in the two papers issued
,by the delegates and my own letters, the seriaus character af which I
fully appreciate, 1 believe that the Minister's unending difficulty might
ha brought te an end very simply and speedily. If you should be pre-
pared ta discuss this matter I shalh be prepared ta suggest for yaur
cansideratian comman graund which might be reached by the Gavern-
ment af Canada and the Allied Tribes. I would with same degree of
confidence expect ta, canvince you that it is the only comman graund
canstîtutianally and practically passible."[AR 'em11
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Those words were quoted from niy letter of August, 1915, addressed to the
Minister of Justice,

Then my concluding paragraph is this:-
" The offer then made which was placed before the Parliarnent by

paragraph 22 of the petition--that is the petition of June last-still stands.
When action having been decided upon and a special committee or special
committees of the two Houses shall have been appointed, I shall be pre-
pared to bring before the special comrnittee or special committees, par-
ticulars of the common ground to which I made reference."

Hon. Mr. BENNETT: What are the particulars of the cominon ground?
Mr. O'MEAItA: When the comnmittee bas perrnitted me to sufficiently present

this petition of the Allied Tribes, sufficiently prove it and sufficiently satisfy
the Comrnittee of the real dlaims of the Tribes, 1 shahl be prepared to put upon
thiîs table the exact particulars of the common ground which 1 shall subrnit to
the Dominion of Canada, that the Dominion and the Allied Indian Tribes of
British Columbia can stand upon with a view to bringing about as rapidly as
possible an equitable settiement of the whole controversy satisfactory to the
Government as well as to, the Indian Tribes.

Hon. Mr. GRuEN: Mr. Chairman, I think we have heard enough of this
piffle, of a man telling us that he will do something if we will allow him. to do
sornething else. I think we have heard ail we want to hear frorn Mr. O'Meara.

Hon. Mr. MuRPHY: The five minutes have been expanded into fifty.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: And now hie cornes to the point where hie wants to com-

mence.
Hon. Mr. GREEN: And after that hie will corne to something else. If the

Committee will permit it, hie will go on for two weeks with this kind of rubbish.
The Ci-A1iMAýN. If yOU liaVt fliihed Lijat ,tateilenlt, MI,. O'Meara, We

want the document handed in to the Clerk of the Committee.
Mr. OMEARA: I ar n 1W ready to present the petition.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: We do not need the petition. We have been pleading

with you to give us somnething in support of that petition, and you have up to
this moment persistently refused.

Mr. O'MEAu-: No, pardon nie, I have been endeavouring to reach that
point.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: You have not even reached a beginning. I think this is
an exhibition of what the Indian Tribes have been obliged to put up with.

Hon. Mr. GREEN: It is what they have had to put up with.
Hon. Mr. STEVENs: Yes, it is what they have had to put up with, and the

manner in which they have been deluded and deceived by this man for nineteen
years to my knowledge is plain. I remnember the first meeting in Vancouver;
I presided over it as acting Mayor and I took the stand then that lis attitude
wýas inimical to the interests of the Indians. I have been in touch with him ever
since, and this is an exhibition of what these tribes have been up against for
nineteen years.

Hon. Mr. MuRPHY: And now hie wants to do to the cornrittee what hie
has been doing to the Indians.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: I think it is an outrage myseif, just an outrage.
The CHAIRMAN: Have you any further evidence you want to put in Mr.

O'Meara?
Mr. O'MFuu: I beg to say that it is net an outrage at ail.
The CHAinmAw: We do not want any argument. Have you any further

evidence that you want to put in in answer?
[AL B. 0'Meara.]
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Mr. O'MEARA: The answer to that, Mr. Chairman, is this: that Mr.
Beament who was with me, lias discussed that matter with Dr. Scott and bas
suggested to him to go over the petition and point out as to which para-
grapli it is necessary to put in as documentary evidence. At the present moment
I have not received an answer with regard ta that. 1 hope that very littie
evidence is actually needed.

Dr. SCOTT: Mr. Cliairman, Mr. Beament asked me ta go over the petition
and ta designate those paragraplis on which there should be no contention and
whicli the Department would admit. I refused ta do that.

Hon. Mr. BENNETrT: Naturally.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS-. There are only four clauses.
Dr. SCOTrT: Anyway the petition is before the Committee. I would not

presume ta toucli tlie petition and decîde what sliould be considered by this
Committee. I told Mr. Beament that this morning.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: It'is not within your riglit ta decide that, of course.
Hon. Mr. MuRPHY: I propose that, if this witness lias no evidence ta

offer, we proceed with some witness wlio lias evidenc'e.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: I second that motion.

The CHAiRMAN: The motion is carried. Then will you stcp down, Mr.
O'Meara, for thc time bcing.

Mr. O'MEAuA: Pardon me, Mr. Chairman; I must point out that I amn not
a witness.

The CHAIRMAN: No, you are here as Counsel and wc have been hearing
you as Counsel.

Mr. O'MEAR~A: Yes, and I must in view of my responsihility in the matter,
reserve ahl riglits and just simply reserve what furtlier lias ta lie said.

Tlie CHAIRMAN: The committee will consider tlie question and give you
anather opportunity.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: The sooner lis responsibîlity ends the better for the
Indians.

Mr. O'MEARA: I have liere sucli documents as seem ta be necessary.
Hon. Mr. GREEN: Put them in then.
Hon. Mr. BENNETT: We have asked you for tiern.
The CHAIEMAN: Have you any witnesses now here that yon wish ta caîl.
Mir. O'MEAA: I do not desire ta call any Indian witnesses. On account

of wliat occurred yesterday before this committee, and the communications
with the province of British Columbia, and the refusai of the province ta lie
represented liefore tliis committee, and in view of the important documentary
evîdence regarding that matter which is with me -among these papers, I desire
tliat the Committee take appropriate steps for securing that, the Honourable
John Oliver, Premier of British Columbia sliould lie here.

Hon. Mr. 'STEVENS: Rot. Nonsense. You are here ta present your side
of tlie icase and we will attend to Mr. Oliver.

Tlie CHAIRMAN: Does the committee wish ta licar Mr. Panil, wlio is the
only witness Mr. O'Meara lias here?

Hon. Mr. BENNETT: I arn willing ta liear anything lie wants ta say.
Hon. Mr. GREEN: If Mr. Pauli want8 ta be heard, yes, certainly.
Mr. O'MEARA: Mr. Pa-uli is thc secretary of the Allied Tribes of Britishi

Columbia.
lion. Mr. MURpHîY: We have been tald tliat twenty-five times.

[A. E. O'Meara.]
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Mr. O'MEARA: And I arn general counsel for the Allied Tribes. I have
not called Mr. Pauli.

Hon. Mr. BENNETT': W7e are calling him.
The CHAIRMAN: The Coinmittee has a right to ask any questions the

members please. You say you have no witnesses, and 1 ask theeommittee if
they wish to hear Mr. Pauli at this stage.

Hon. Mr. BENNETT: We will.
Hon. Mr. GREEN: Yes.
Mr. O'MnAiA: I just wish to point that out, that I amrn ot calling hlm.
Mr. CHAIRMAN: Make way then please for Mr. Pauli.
Hon. Mr. STEVErNs: 1 would like you to, note, Mr. Chairman, that Mr.

O'Meara bas Up to the present refused to file the documents that hie dlaims
to have. If we have not these documents it is his fault.

The CHAIRMAN: The clerk bas received one document.
Mr. O'MEAnA: May I repeat what I have said?
Hon. Mr. MURPHY: Oh no. You have put in fifty-five minutes of repeti-

tion now.
Mr. O'MEAPA: What I intended to convey was that I did flot think, as

stated in so many words-I thought that very littie documentary evidence was
needed, and I wanted to find out just what was needed and then commnence to
offer it.

The CHAIRMAN: We understand that you have put in ail the documentary
evidence you wish.

Mr. O'MEARA: I will do so.
Hon. Mr. MuRpHy: Next witness.
The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Pauli, wl you take your place? You are already

5w-cm.

ANDREW PAULL recalled.

The CHAIRMAN: You do not need Vo take up the time of the committee
by making any further statements of your case. You are recalled for the
purpose cf the committee asking you questions, if they have any questions they
wish Vo ask you.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: I think hie should take a chair and we will ask him
any question we wish.

The CHAIRMAN: Do any members of the committee wish Vo ask Mr. Paull
any questions?

Hon. Mr. BENN.ETT: Yes, Mr. Chairman.
The CHAIRMAN: Proceed then.

By Hon. Mr. Bennett:
Q.You have heen well educated I understand, Mr. Paull.-A. I attended

Borden school that the government lias provided us with; anti I have had some
experience. I have been tolti by my people, ever since 1 entered school, Vo make
a speciai study cf the Indian Land question; which I have donc.

Q. What is your age?-A. 35 yeams.
Q. And you have heen devoting you.rself to the study cf this question?-A.

Yes.
Mr. MORIN: A littie louder, please.

[Andrew Paul]j
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By Hbn. Mr. Bennett:

Q. Can you provide the committee with any evidence on which you base
the dlaim of the aboriginal title?-A. Yes.

Q. Will you be good enough to give it now?-A. If I may stand up, 1 prefer
it, if you will allow me. So much lias been ,said about the aboriginal titie that
perhaps the committee wiil be patient with me if I give it in an Indian way so
to speak.

Q. Yes, that is what we want.-A. Perhaps if I tell you some of the ex-
periences of the Indians before my timne you will far sooner understand the reason
why they have continued to press this dlaim. ever since the time even prior to
the advent of the white people in British Columbia. In formier times the Indian
Tribes reigned supreme in British Columbia. When the white people came into
British Columbia, the adventurers by some means acquired pastures that the
Indians had cleared, and naturaliy that caused trouble, and as the population
increased the trouble increased.

New, we maintain that we were neyer conquered. We were neyer conquered.
And we should not be submitted to anything that a conquered people or nation
hias to put up with.

The Indians of British Columbia ltave sworn allegiance to the British Crown
and flag and therefore we expect justice.

Soon after Confederation trouble arose as to the reserves that were to, be
allotted to the Indians and an awful amount of correspondence occurred between
the local government and the Dominion Government. An agreement was entered
into, namely Article 13 of the Termis of Union. I think the honourable gentle-
mien are acquainted with the terns of that agreement. The Indians contend
that the policy that lias been adhered to by the Colonial government was not a
sumfciently liberal policy for the Dominion government to strictly adhere to. I
find in my study of this question that in colonial days the per capita area
allotted to the Indians was only about 10 acres. Now you can readily under-
stand that that is an insufficient amount, and if the government were to adhere
strictly to the tenms of that l3th Article I arn sure that the government would
find it unsatîsfactory.

J3y Hon. Mr. Stewart:

Q. Was that for reserve purposes?-A. That was for reserve purposes only.
This Committee wîll find that that is altogether inadequate for the Indians.

By Hon. Mr. Bennett:

Q. Does it disturb your thought, Mr. Paul], if 1 interrupt you with questions?
-A. It does not, disturb me at ail, sir; in fact I welcome interruptions.

Q. 1 do not want to interrupt you, but what was, the condition prior to
BriLish Columbia coming into Confederation, during the days when British
Columbia was a Crown Colony? Just give us the situation, if you do not mmnd,
as you find it at that time.-A. From the Indian viewpoint?

Q. Yes.-A. 1 find that each tribe had a certain territory which was recog-
xuized by the other tribes as the territory of that particular tribe. The Indians

'of that particular tribe would hunt and fish and exercise all the privileges of
free men in that tribal territory. The same would apply to an Indian in the
next territory. Since the white men came to British Columbia these privileges
bave gradually been diminished.

Q. What waýs the condition, if you know from your study, at the time British
Columbia became part of the Dominion, before the 13th Article? I wish to know
the condition of the Indians with relation to the land.-A. They thought they
owned the whole country.

[Andrew Paull.]
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By Hon. Mr. Green:
Q. Between 1843 and 1871?-A. Oh, I arn sorry to say that I have flot

documentary evidence to substantiate the position of the Indians at that time.
Perhaps this is what the honourable gentleman wishes. I was employed by the
government in the year 1923 to visit the southern part of British Columbia, and
during the course of my work I found out what was the position of the Indians
at that tirne. I visited the west coast and the Indians related to me their
,knowledge of the former conditions. One Indian told me that hie was quite 1
youngster at one time when a battleship visîted their country and a man by the
name of Brown was the spokesman for the governrnent officiais who came in
what hie called a battleship. Mr. Brown is alleged to, have said this:-" Indians;
:we are going to occupy your country. We have been sent here by the Queen and
we are going to govern this country. Wlienever, we seli a piece of land we will
put into a fund one-quarter or one-third "-the Indians were not sure, they were
not conversant witb fractions or decimals, but anyway they were told that a
certain portion of the proceeds of any sale of lands would be allotted to a fund
for the Indians, another portion would be sent to the Queen, and the other portion
would be held by the local authorities.

Now I also found that many of tlic Indians adjacent to the city of West-
minster and on the southern coa.st made a similar statement.

The Indians also related to me that Governor Douglas held a meeting of
a great number of Indians in the city of Westminster, wherein hie made a simîlar
staternent, and that one Father Foquet, missionary, was the interpreter.

In order to try and ascertain whether the statement of the Indians were
correct or not I wrote a letter to Father Cherouse, another missionýary, and
asked him to search the diary of Father Foquet and see if there was anything
noted down in bis diary that would in some measure coincide with the statement
of thc Indians.

Father Cherouse wrote to me saying that hie had searched the records, the
diary of Father Foquet, and lie found the statement that on a certain day
Governor Seymour met two thousand Indians and sixty chiefs at Westminster
which was then called Queensborough.

Q. Have you got that letter?-A. I arn sorry to say that I have not, but I
have wired for it and it will be here to-morrow. I will place it before the com-
mittee before I leave.

Q. Do you remember the date of the lettei'? New Westrnster was not
called Westminster then?-A. No, it was called Queensborough. The date of
that reported meeting with the Indians is given in the letter from Father
Cherouse. Now that was the position of the Indians at that time, that they
were going to be dealt with justly and that a tirne would corne when they would
bie properly compensated according to the alleged agreement that, was entered
into by Governor Seymour and these men who represented the Imperial Gov-
ernment on this war-ship.

Now my investigations also show this. I have ýfound that some similar
staternent was made in the northern country. And prior to Confederation that
was the mind of the Indians.

By Hon. Mr. Stewart:
Q. Mr. Pauli, was Mr. Brown, associated with Governor Douglas?-A. No

Sir.
Q. There were two different times?-A. Two different times.

By Hon. Mr. Bennett:
Q. Mr. Seyrnour would be the commander of the ship?-A. No, hie was the

Governor. Governor Seyrnour was the man who made the statement at Queens-
fA.ndrew Pauli.]
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borough. INow we cannot find any documentary evidence to substanitiate this,
but that is what was in the mind of the Indians as to what occurred.

Q. Apparently the thought in the mind of the Indians, as it cornes to you by
tradition, is that a battleship or a warship, and the (Covernor or Governors and
represcittatives of the King or Queen, stated that they were taking the country
and they promised that they would deal with the Indians in a certain way.-
A. Yes.

Q. And tiiat was that they would provide them. with portions, we will put
t, of the monies that iniglit corne from disposing of the property.-A. Yes.

By Hon. Mr. Murphy:
Q. Mr. Pauli, may 1 ask you this question: Do T understand you to, say that

there was an entry in the diary of the missionary whomn you mentioned?-
A. Yes.

Q. And tihat entry is in corroboration of this sta-tement that you make.-
A. Yes, but not in toto.

Q. Will this letter y.ou say you expect to-morrow, give the text of the
entry in the diary?-A. It wilI, yes. Now that was the mind of the Indians, I
must suppoýse, prior to, Confederation. Now at a time snon after Confederation
steps were taken to allot the different reserves to the different Tribes.

Now I must say this, that the Indian in British Columbia is an Indian who
has a si.ecial location for each different 'scason. During the fishing season, at
certain times of ýthe fishing season he would be in one location. At berry-
pickîng time he would be in another location. During the hunting season he
would be in another location. In every one of these locations he would have a
place cleared and a litt-le shack built.

Now I think it was the intention of the governments that alI existing Indýian
settilements were to be made Reserves. But my information is that wihen the
alloting Commissioners visited these ýdifferent villages, oftentimes the ow'ners
or occupants of these different little bouses and settlements were not at that very
spot at the time of the visit of the Commission. The resuit was that many of
these Indian villages were not made reserves.

By Hon. Mr. Stevyens:
Q. That is the Commission of 1912?-A. No, the Commission of 1871.
Q. At Confederation?-A. Yes, and up to 1878 or something like that.

By Hon. Mr. Bennett:
Q. That is the Allotment Commission?-A. The Allotment Commission,

yes. Now even to-day, even after the work of this 1912 commission there are
yet old Indian settlements that are not made Indian reserves, but I will deal
with the 1912 commission later on.

By Hon. Mir. Stewart:
Q. Mr. PaulI, do you state that the commission of 1872 were carrying out,

at least partially, if nol. altogether, the arrangement made by Governor Seymour
previous to Confederation?-A. No, I think they were carrying out and I
know, after reading the correspondence between the two governments, that they
were trying to carry out the terms of Confederation in that l3th Article, whereby
the province was to allow the Dominion to establish Reserves here and there.

By Hon. Mr. Murphy:
Q. And you are explaining why they were not established in certain places,

because of the season. That is the commission might visit a settlement in the
berry-pickîng area during the fishing season?-A. Yes.

Q. And the Indians were not there but were in a fishing settlement?-A.
-Yes.
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By Hon. Mr. Bennett:
Q. Whereby they lest their reserves for berry-picking?-A. Yes, that la

what I arn explaining. Now I arn not going te take up the tirne of the Coin-
rnittee by telling thern all*the trouble that occurred as a resuit of that.

Byj Hon. Mr. Stewart:
Q.Mr. Pauli, what 1 was trying te get was, this: Evidently there was

an arrangement rnade hy Governor Seymour, with the Indians, by which the
Indians understood that they were to have a beneficial ri.ght in these lands,
and that the coiriission, following the Act of Union-we have not got the date
of Seyrnour's visit-you say you will fix that definitely in a letter to-rnorrow?
-A. Yes.

Q. That under the Act of Union when there was an attempt made to carry
out whaît evident]y was tihe clear intent of that agreernent for the allotrnent
of lands for the Indians, it was merely carrying out what had been agreed upon
before?-A. Evidently se, yes. I say we mnust presurne that Governor Seymnour
miglit have said this: We wiIl set aside Reserves for your exclusive use. I
presurne that lie said that. And the other portions of the province we will,
seli, and sa mucli will go ta Her Majesty, so rnuch ta the local governrnent
and sa rnuch to the Indians.

Bu Hon. Mr. Ben.nett:
Q. That is your understanding?-A. That is xny understanding.
Q. Do I follow you that your tradition, is that your people were actually

upon reserves at the tiie British Columbia carne into Confederation?-A.
May 1 ask, what do you rnean by Reserves i~n that question?

Q. That is what I want yau to make clear te mne.-A. Prior ta, Confedera-
tion, my information îs that there were some portions recognizedl by Lhe Colonial
Governrnent as reserves for Indians, but in the maj oritv of cases they were
settiernents, whetiher they lie called reserves or some other naine; they were in
existence and occupied by the different Indians. But I do not think they were
recognized as reserves, and I contend that the Colonial Governrnent did not
have tirne te go through ail the province and have aIl the different settlernents
recorded as Indian Reserves.

Q. Sorne were though?-A. Yes, some were I think. Yes, somne were.

By Hon. 31r. McLennan:
Q. But certain lands were in occupation of the Indians at different seamons

of the year, although they wcre not specifical'ly set apart as reserves for thern?-
A. Yes.

Hon. Mr. BENNETT: They wcre not recorded as Reserves.
Hon. Mr. MOLENNAN: NO.

By Hon. Mr. Bennett:
Q. You were going on with the commission of 1872 I think?-A. Yes. iNow

befare this Allottrnent Commission had tîrne ta complete its work, Indian clear-
ings, pastures and so forth were bcîng occupied by white settlers, either by pre-
emption or in sorne other way, and the result was that there was a lot of trouble
and the Indian6 were protesting and sa forth. Vîsits were made ta the different
localities by the Commissioner of Indian lands, at that time Mr. Powell.

And then, in 1873, I find there was a petition signed by the Indians of the
Lower Fraser River-I would say froin Hope down ta the Mouth of the Fraser
River, and froin the southern coast to Bute Inlet. The Indians signed a petition
praying that they bie treated in this way, that there should bie a declaPatian that
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sufficient land should be surveyed for their exclusive use and benefit. I refer to
" Journals and Sessional Papers (1875) ". I will be very pleased if that book
can be brought here so I can refer to it.

Now, 1 would like to deal with Article 13.

By Hon. Mr. McLennan:
Q.Before you go on, may I ask you about the pastures. The Indians stili

had cattie and horses?-A. Yes, principally horses.
Q. The pastures were being used by your people?-A. Yes, Vhey were really

used by the Indians. There was a lot of trouble about their stock, especially
in the Fraser Valley.

By Hon. Mr. Bennett:
Q.The Fraser Valley was rich pasture land ?-A. Yes. The condition as to

that was that the Indians would have the pasture, and in the absence of the
Indians, sorne white man would corne and preempt that pasture. On the Statute
books of the Province there was the provision that whoever owned the pasture
could take action against the one who cncroached upon the pasture. The resuit
of that was that the Inians werm being proseouted because the stock were feed-
ing on the pasture which had belonged to the Indians prior to preemption.

By Hon. Mr. Stevyens:
Q.The difficulty between the preemptors and the Indians was a matter of

discussion and adjustment, and the difficulty was practically removed?-A. 0w-
ing to the change of conditions, the difficulty automatically removed itself.

Q. I may say that 1 can recaîl many instances of that character, but those
difficulties have graduaiiy passed away; the Department at Ottawa, and the
local authorities have made efforts to get those matters ironed out?-A. Ironed
out to somie extent, yes.

Now, I intend to, deal with Article 13, when the book arrives. On behaîf
of the Indians, I want to SaY thcy have tried to adjust the mater as between
thc Province and the Dominion as Vo the allocation of the reserves, and to live
up exactly Vo the rneaning of Article 13, but it has been shown that Article 13 is
altoagether inadequate. I say that because the Province of British Columbia
contends that they have satisfied ail their obligations by the allotment of those
reserves. Now, I want to, make myself understood as to that. The Province
says "We have satisfied any obligation that is ours."

By Hon. Mr. Bennett:
Q.Under Article 13?-A. Under Article 13. These resqerves were allotted

to the Indians, but, Vo put it plain.ly, the Indians say. "You did not allot
enough."

Q. It is your contention th-at the Dominion Goverament, under Article 13
should press the Province of British Columbia for further reserves?-A. Yes.

Q. You contend that the reserves allotted by Article 13 are not sufficient or
adequate?-A- Yes.

By Hon. Mr. Barnard:
Q. Was not an agreement made as a result of this agitation?-A. Yes; sir.

Q.And the reserves were increased?-A. Increased and decreased.

By Hon. M r. Bennett:
Q.The reserves were readjusted?- A. The reserves were read.justed.
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By Hon. Mr. Barnard:
Q.Where one reserve was not taken by the Indians, it was taken back by

the Government, and lands were given to the Indians in other places?-A. Al
that was doue, of course, without the knowledge, or consent of the Indians.

By Mr. McPhers on:
Q. What was the acreage allowed the Indians per head?-A. To my

knowledge, there is no specified number of acres agreed upon. For instance, on
the coast, in my tribe, they have, per capita, sixteen and a fraction acres,
whereas in the Interior of the Province, where grazing lands are acquired, the
per capita acreage iý f ar in excess of that.

By Hon. Mr. McLennan:
Q.The coast tribes are mainly engaged in fishing.-A. Fishing, logging,

working in the milis, and so forth.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: And packers.

By Hon. Mr. Bennett:
Q.And workers in the canneries?-A. Yes.
Q.Now, Mr. Pauli, you know that the Dominion Governrnent have been

guardians or trustees for your people?-A. Yes, sir. 1 know that; and ail the
Indians know that.

Q. And you look to the Dominion Governent, as your guardians?-A. We
do.

Q. And as your trustees?-A. We do. And we say te the Dominion Gov-
einment, you have a sacred duty te perform towards us. Now, there is a memo-
randum in that book " Journals and Sessional Papers, (1875) " which was written
by the Hon. David Laird, the then Minister of the Interior on Article 13, wherein
lie states that living up te the exact terms of Article 13 is altogether inadequate.
iNow, that memorandum was adopted, if my memory serves me right, by the
Privy Council of Canada, and it was ordered that a copy be submitted te the
Secretary of State for the Colonies, and to, the Lieutenant-Governor of British
Columbia. 1 presume that was carricd out.

Q. That letter is also in the " Journals "?-A. Yes. That is the position
taken by the Dominion Government, who were the trustees of the Indians at
that time, as well as now; that Article 13 was altogether inadequate.

Q. Would you nmmd just there telling how many Indians there were at that
time in British Columbia ?-A. The only authoritative information we have is
the statement by Governor Trutch who e6timated the Indian population, prior
to ,Confederation. at about 100,000.

Dr. ScoTrr: I think I made the statement, in the letter to Sir John Mac-
donald, which was read yesterday, that the population of the Indîans prîor to
Confederation was 70,000.

By Hon. Mr. Stevyens:
Q. The population has since declined?-A. Oh, yes.

By Hon. Mr. Bennett:

Q.At what do you estimate the number now?-A. 23,000, according te, Dr.
Scott. I wish the Committee would bear in mind when dealing with the Indian
question as it relates te) British Columbia, that one-quarter of the Indian popu-
lation of Canada is in British Columbia. In Saskatchewan, there are only
perhaps 4,000, or 5,000 Indians; they certainly would not require the amount that
would have to be spent in a province where there are 25,000 Indians.
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Q.What bothers me, is this: at the timne of Confederation, when the aliot-
ment of lands was made, there were about 70,000 Indians; now, there are about
23,000, and the 23,000 have as miuch, or a greater area than the 70,000 then had?
-A. Perhaps that is true. But as the Indians advance in civilization, and be-
corne agricuiturists, being talight in the schools how to raise stock, and become
f armers, they require more land; whereas my ancestors did not know anything
about that.

By Hon. Mr. Barnard:
Q.nT relation to the question Mr. Bennett bas, asked you; there is a great

deal of land held as reserves by the Indians, that lias been leased to outside
parties, is there not?

Hon. Mr. STEvENs: Land that was leased on behaif of the Indians.

Hon. Mr. BARINARD: It is land the Indians do not use.

By Hon. Mr. Barnard:
QI amn informed that land belonging to the Indians lias been leased to

people other than Indians, in some 1.50 cases, or thereabouts; do you know
anything about that?-A. 1 know there are a great number of leases in British
Columbia, but I do not think the number of leases should be taken to mean that
the area is great. Most of the leases are for roads, waterways, and so forth.

By Hon. Air. Stevyens:
Q. And for grazing?-A. There are leases given for grazing lands in the

Interior.
Q. Anid leases given for the operation of saw milis?-A. Yes.
Q. And other uses of that character, on the coast, such as canneries?-A.

Yes. At Duncan there was a 99 year lease given to the Agricuiturai Association
for the land where they heid their exhibition.

By Hon. AIr. Barnard:
Q. As a motter of fact, there is something like $20,000 a year received as

rentais, by the Indians, for those leased iands?-A. 1 amn not prepared to
estimate the amourAt.

Hon. Mr. STEvENS: The record wiii show that.
Hon. Mr. BENNETT: The point is there is considerable land that is ieased.

By Mr. McPherson:
Q. While there were 70,000 Indians at the time of Confederation, and a

certain allotment was made to them, in addition to that, there were ail kinds
of f ree lands on which they eould hunt?-A. Yes.

Q. And pick berries?-A. Yes.
Q. And now, aithougli the number of Indians has been reduced, they are

more rcstried to the actuai use of the land set &part for them, than they were?
-A. Yes.

Hon. Mr. BARNARD: That wouid not apply on the coast.
Mr. MCPHERSON: That may account for the apparent difference in the

number of Indians aliotted to the same area.
Hon. Mr. GREEN: In the ea.rly days, the Indians did flot go in for agri-

culture, at all.
WITNESS: 1 wouid like to correct what I have said. In my preiiminary

remarks, I think 1 stated that the present existing reserves were not then in
existence as reserves. 0f course, 70,000 Indians had more land than what the
Indians have now. Why? Because they occupied ail the area wîthin their
tribal terrîtories. Do I make myseif clear?
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By Hon. ,Mr. Stevens:
QIn other words, do you mean that some of the land occupied by the

Indians at that time, before Confederation, was not recorded as reserves in the
allotment that was macle after Confederation?-A. Not recorded, no. For
instance, the Saanich Indians rangeil fýrom the west side of Howe Sound, up
Howe Sound, along the Squamish Valley.

Q. That took in the city of Vancouver?-A. Yes. That is where they used
to camp. They now have only small portions in that area.

By Hon. Mir. Bennett:
QI suppose there was no community of interest among the Indians?-A.

Yes.
Q. Was there any inter-tribal interest?-A. No, the only inter-tribal inter-

est they had was that they had an alliance in case of war.
Q. Each tribe occupied its own reserve, separate from the other Indians?-

A. Yes.
Q. There was no community interest among the Iiidians?-A. No. If

another tribe wanted a certain portion of land, they would have te fight for it

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q.There was constant warf are between the Indians at Port Simpson and

the land to the South?-A. Yes.

By Hon. Mr. Bennett:
Q. Will you give us an idea of the age of the oldest man from whom you

have been able to gather traditions?--A. I think the oldest person from whom I
gathered traditions in connection with the tratnsition of the Indians was the great
granddaughter of the original chief Capalino who met *Captain Vancouver in
Burrard Inlet.

Q. When you were able to talk with ber, what would be her age?-A.
Pretty close to 90.

Q. Had she still possession of her faculties?-A. Oh, yes, she had possession
of her faculties.

Q. And she could tell you of the past traditions?-A. Yes. In order ta
further my study, I found it necessary, not only to search the records of the
white people of the district, but to listen to the traditions of other people.

By Hon. Mr. Stevyens:
Q.Was that Joe Capilano's mother?-A. No, Jos. Capilano was a distant

relation.
By Hon. Mr. Bennett:

Q. What year did Captain Vancouver corne there?-A. 1 think it was the
year 1792.

Hon. Mr. McLENNAN: I think it was before 1792.
WITNESS: Does the Committee wish me to read the petition of the Indians,

that I spoke of, that was macle on July l4th, 1874?

By Hon. Mr. McLennan:
QIs that the earliest document ta which you refer?-A. It is a petition

written by the Indians soon after Confederation; macle to the Indian Commis-
sioner for the Province of British Columbia.

By Hon. Mr. Benne tt:
Q.He was a Dominion official?-A. Yes.
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Q.And it was in consequence of article 13?-A. Yes. This is the intro-
ductory remark:

Having been, along with sorne others, cornrissioned by the chiefs to
present our common petition to you, we have corne down to New West-
minster yesterday, and after consultation, we carne to the conclusion to
send the petition by mnail.

You have told Alexis and rnyself not to go down tili you send notice.
We expect to hear frorn you through Reverend Father Duricu, at

New Westminster.
This is a petition to the Indian ýCornrissioner for the province of British

Colurnbia:
The petition of the undersigned, chief s of Douglas Portage, of Lower

Fraser, and of the other tribes on the seashore of the mainland to Bute
Inlet, humbly sheweth:

1. That your petitioners view with a great anxiety the standing
question of the quantity of land to be reserved for the use of ecd Indian
f amily.

2. That we are fully aware that the government of Canada has
always taken good care of the Indians, and treated thern liberally, allow-
ing more than 100 acres per farnily; and we have been at a loss to, under-
stand the views of the local goverrnent of British Columnbia, in
curtailing our land so rnuch as to leave in many instances but few acres
of land per farnily.

3. Our hearts have been wounded by the arbitrary way the local
governrnent of British Columbia have deait with us in locating and
dividing our Reserves. Charniel, ten miles below Hope, is allowed 488
acres of good land for the use of twenty families: at the rate of 24 acres
per f amily; Popkurn, eighteen miles below Hope, is allowed 369 acres
of good land for the use of four families: at the rate of 90 acres per
family; Chearn, twenty miles below Hope, is allowed 375 acres of bad,
dry, and mounitainous land for the use of 27 farnîlies: at the rate of 13
acres per f ami ly; Yuk-yuk-y-yoose on the Chilliwhack River, with a
population of seven farnilies, is allowed forty-two acres, five acres per
farnily; Surnaas, (at the junction of Surnaas River and Fraser) with a
population of seventeen farnilies, is allowed 43 acres of rneadow for their
hay, and 32 acres of dry land; Keatsy, nurnbering more than 100 inhabit-
ants, is allowed 108 acres of land. Langley and Hope, have not yet got
land secured to, them, and white men are encroaching on thern on alI
sides.

4. For many years we have been complaining of the land left us
being too srnall. We have laid our complaints before the goverrnent
officials nearer to us. They sent us to sorne others; se we had no redress
up to the prescrnt; and we have felt like rneî trarnp1ed on, and are
cornrencing to believe that the airn of the white men is to exterrninate
us as soon as they can, although we have been always quiet, obedient,
kind, and friendly to the whites.

5. Discouragemnient and depression have corne upon our people.
Many of themn have given up the cultivation of land because our gardens
have not been protected against the encroachrnents of the whites. Sorne
of our best rnen have been deprived of the land thcy have 'broken and
cultivated. with long ànd hard labour, a white man enclosing it in his
dlaim, and no compensation given. Sorne of our rnost enterprising men
have lost a part of their cattle, because white rnen had taken the place
where those caille werc grazing and no other place left but the thickly
tirnbered land, where they die fast. Some of our people now are obliged
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to eut rushes along the bank of the river with their knives during the
winter, to feed their cattie.

6. We are now obliged to clear heavy timbered land, ail prairies
having been taken from us by white men. We see our white neighbours
cultvate wheat, peas, etc., and raise large stocks of cattie on our pasturelands, and we are giving thern our money te buy the flour rnanufac-
tured from the wheat they have grown on saine prairies.

7. We are not lazy and roaming-about people, as we used to be.We have worked hard and a long tirne te spare rnoney to buy agricul-tural implements, cattie, horses, etc., 'as nobody bas given us assistance.
We could point out rnany of our people who have those past yearsbought with their own money ploughs, harrows, yokes of oxen and
horses; and now, with your kind assistance, we have a bright hope to
enter into the path of civilization.

8. We consider that eighty acres per family is absolutcly necessary
for our support, and for the future welfare of our children. We declarethat 20 or 30 acres of land per family will not give satisfactLon, butwill create iii feelings, irritation among our people, and we cannot say
what will be the consequence.

9. That, in case you cannet obtain from the Local governrnent, theobject of our petition, we humbly pray that this, our petition, be for-
warded te the Secretary of State for the provinces, at Ottawa.

Therefore, your petitioners humbly pray that. you may take thisour petition into consideration ,and see that justice be dene us, and aiiow
each famiiy the quantity of land we ask for.

And your petitioners, as in duty bound, wiil ever pray.
That is signed by a number of chiefs of Douglas Portage, Lower Fraser,

and Coast Indians.
By Hon. Mr. Stevens:~

Q. Would you mind referring back te the quantity of land ailocated te theCheami Band?-A. 375 acres of bad, dry, and mountainous land for the use of
27 families.

Q. That is rather interesting, because I think it bears on the whole subject.For the last 15 years, to my knowledge, and for many years before that, the
Cheam Band have owned what is known as Seabird Isiand?-A. The Indians
are fighting for Seabird Island.

Q. As a matter of fact, the Cheam Band dlaim ownership of that Island?-A. Not only the Chcam Band, but the Indians from Thompson, and other
Indians.

Q. Seabird Island is generaily recognized as belonging te, whom?-A. I arn
flot sure of that.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Couid Dr. Scott teli us?
Dr. Scott: I think the Department bas decided as te the titie of the Island,

but I cannot give you the namnes.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q.No matter to whom the Island beiongs, that would indicate that the 27failies of the Cheam. Band only had a few acres. It seems to me the matter

muist have been adjusted, because here is a piece of land, 6,000 acres aiiotted to
them, subsequently?-A. Yes.

Q. I understand there is farmiýng land in the centre of the isiand, aise at
the westerly end, but outside of that land, there bas been no clearing undertaken
in the iast 30 years; that is correct, is it not?-A. That is a correct statement.Q. And furthermore., ail the cedar, which is xrery valuable, and other timber
on that island bas been seul on behaif of the Indians?-A4. Yes.
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Q. Indicating that this prayer received consideration and somne response?-
A. You mean that Seabird Island was included 'as a reserve for the Cheam
Band?

Q. Yes?--A. The position in regard to Seabird Island is rather peculiar.
Several tribes have been fighting for the ownership of that particular reserve.

Q. 1 can say this of my own knowledge, Lhat some of the f amulies of the
Cheamn Band did reside on Seahird Island within the last 20 years?-A. Yes, I
think they did.

Q. My point is that thcy complain, perhaps justly, in that petition 'Of its
being a too restricted area; but the fact of Seabird Island, in part at least, being
allocated to them, woulcl indicate there was a response to, their prayer, and an
adjustment?--A. That would indicate it was the case.

Dr. SCOTT: That was after the -date of that petition. A Royal Commis-sion
was appointed to investigate. as a resuit of this petition. The Indians and the

Government got together, and decided upon what land should be reserved. That
was the first real attempt on the part of the Government to, adjust the difficulty,
with respect to reserves. and to carry out the terms of Article 13.

WITNESS: NOW, 1 think that in justice to the people I represeUl, since the
Province of British Columbia, as 1 suppose, depends on Article 13 as the ma-
chinery for enactmnent through which they have exercised ail their obligations,
I should file, and read, this memorandum which was adopted by Order-in-Coun-
cil on the 4th of November, 1874.

By Hon. Mr. Bennett:
Q. Is not this a faot, that in eonsequence of the petitions signed by the

Indians, and presented. to the Government at Ottawa, the Government sent

Mr. Laird out. He xvent and made an investigation, and a report. That is
what you have ýreference to?-A. That must have been as the result of some
investigation. There was a Iengthy report written showing what were the

actual conditions, made by the Hon. David Laird. Perhaps you might appre-
ciate the value of the memorandum he made, if 1 were to read the notation by
the Privy Council. This is a copy of the report, of the Committee of the Privy

Council, approved by His Excellency the Governor General on the 4th of,
November, 1874. It states that the committee of the Privy Council have given
their attentive consideration to a memorandum of the Honourable the Minister
of the Interior in reference to the unsatisfactory state of the Indian lands
question in the province of British Columbia, and they respectfully report their
entire concurrence in the view and recommendations submitted thereunder.
Then they recommend that a copy of ibis minute, when approved by His
Excellency, be transmittcd to the Lieutenant-Governor of British Columbia, in
the hope that the views entertained by the Dominion Govcrnment on this
important question as embodied -in the said memorial may meet with an earlv
and favourable consýideration at the hands of thc Government of British
Columbia. They further advised tihat a copy of this minute and the annexed
memorandum be transmitted by His Excellency to the Right Honourable Her
Majesty's Secretary of State for the Colonies, accompanied by copies of each of
the other documents submitted as the Minister of the Interior might think
necessary to enable Lord Carnarvon to understand in all its bearings the great
national question now seeking solution at the harids of the Dominion and of
British Columbia.

Mr. Chairman, this great national question xvas then in existence in 1874,
and it is equally a national question, and it is yet before us in 1927.

By Hon. Mr. Bennett:
QIf I may interrupt you for a moment; after that Allotment Commission

completed its work, an agreement was arrived at bet-ween the governments of
[Andrew Paul].]
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the Dominion and Mr. MeBride's government, the government of British
Columbia, which purported to be a final settlIement of the differences.

A. The intention of the two governments was that it was to be a final
settiement, but it was not a final settiement.

By Hon. Mr. Murphy:
Q. Why?-A. Because it oniy deait with Indian Reserves, and did not deai

with the fore-shores, the hunting rights, the fishing rights and a number of
other things. To put it squarely before you, the agreement thinks that it is to
be a final settiement. I wilI read the very words of the agreement:-

Whert-as it is desirabie to settie ail differences between the govern-
ments of the Dominion and the province respeeting Indian lands and
Indian affairs generaliy in the province of British Columbia;

Therefore the parties above named have, subject to the approval of
the governments of the Dominion and of the province, agreed. upon the following
proposais as a final adjustment of aiýl matters reiating to Indians affairs in the
Province of British Columbia.

By Hon. Mr. Murphy:
Q.That is the preamble is it te the McKenna agreement?-A. No, that is

the agreement.

By Hon. M4r. Bennett:
Q. What is the datc?-A. The 24th day of September, 1912.
Q.. And that was inconsequence of Mr. MeKenna having gone out with a

commission and investigated the matter on the ground, and I arn informed
that yaimr p",pie had an oppartuinity to be heard?-A. That is correct.

his. And they did, in f act, make representations te Mr. MeKenna?-A. And
hsco- commission ers, yes.

Q. And as a result an agreement was arrived at which was adopted, between
the province and the Dominion?-A. That is correct.

Q. 'And that purports to be a final 6ettlement?-A. It did purport te be a
final settiement.

Q. Now your people knew what Mr. McKenna and bis associates were there
for and you presented'your case te him as best you could?-A. Yes, from time
to time. Yes.

Q. Now you knew the settlement was being made?-A. We were teid. We
were not in possession of the actual Order in Council or the actual agreement.

Q. No, but you got the agreement afterwards?-A. Afterwards, yes. I can
speak with some knowledge of this because I was one of the interpreters.

Q. You. were a young man of 21 at that time?-A. Yes, I was an interpreter.
Hion. Mr. STEVENS: He was active. I recali him very weli at that time.
WITNESS: Now, in justice to the commission I must say that they said

they coul1d not deal with the Indian titie, and they had no power to, deai with
fisheries.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q.That is what the commission said?-A. Yes, the commission so reports.

Now that is an ilustration of one of the failures of the commission.
To prove my contention, I wili read from Volume III of a report of the

commission inconnection with fishing rights in British Columibia, a minute and
resoiution of the 6th June, 1916:-

Whereas former Indian Reserve Commissioners, acting under joint
government agreements, aiiotted defined fishing rights to certain Tribes
or bands of Indians in British Columbia;

[Andrew PouIl.]
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And whereas this Commission has been unable to obtain any advice
from the law officers of the Crown in right, of the Dominion -of Canada,
as Vo, the authorities of the said former Comniissioners to allot such
fishery riglits;

And whereas this Commission desires that any right or titie which

Indians may have to such allotted fisheries may not be adversely affected
by the action of this board;

Be it resolved that the expense Vo which the allotting Commissioners

have authority to allot sucli fishery rights, this Commission in sa f ar

as the power may lie in it so Vo do, confirma ail such allotted fishery.
rights as set forth in the sehedule hereto.

Now that is conclusive that the 1912 commission was aware that iV did not

have power Vo deal with it.

By Hon. Mr. Bennett:

Q. NoV Vo deal with it? They had no power te create new allotments, but

they confirmed the existing fishing allotrnents as made by the original Allotment

Commission; that is so is it not?-A. May I answer that in this way?

Q. But that is so, Vhey did confirm the allotments of the original Allot-

ment Commission with respect to the fisheries?-A. Yes.
Q. But they declîned for the reasons given, Vo make any new allotments?-

A. They did.
Q. Now you complained týhat you should have more flshing allotments, and

the government of British Columbia would noV become a party Vo granting any

further allotments.-A. Yes, we do contend that we should have more fishing

places. More fishing stations; and our flshing rights should be explicitly defined

so that there would he no question.
Q. Meaning what? That your fishing rights should be exclusively defined,

meaning what?-A. Meaning that we« have an absolute right Vo take flsh for food

wherever and whenever we want te.

By Hon. Mr. Stevyens:

In other words. Mr. Paull- this 1 think is the point, Mr. Bennett-your

people dlaim that in disregard of any provincial law preserving fisheries on

any stream, you should have the right Vo take flsh from that streami for.your own
purposes.-A. Certainly.

Q. Irrespective of place, time, or circumnstance?-.A. Yes, as we had from

time immemorial. Because the amount of flsh that the Indian takes is 50

negligible in comparison with what the big canneries Vake. IV is hardly notice-

able. The amount of flsh that the Indians in British Columbia take for Vheir
own use-

By Hon. Mr. Bennett:

Q. But, Mr. Paull-I can see that you are a man of more than ordinary
understanding-A. I Vhank you.

Q. If the province makes allotmnents, or if they issue licenses and then Vhey

allow Vwenty thousand people Vo disregard the licensed area, that would create
chaos. You see Vhat yourself, do you not?-A. Yes.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. You would noV insist upon the absolute right in disregard of ail other

regulations or practices to the full limit of what you have stated, would you?-
A. 1 think we are civilized enough Vo come Vo some kind of an agreemenV, but

we do object Vo being out at the mercy or at the dictates of an official, an

inspetar.[Andrew Pault.]
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By Hon. Mr. Bennett:
Q.Or a lessee?-A. An inspector, or a cheechaco, you know what I mean

Mr. Stevens? lie is one who cornes from some foreign countrv t'O our country,
and ail hie knows is the Fishery Act which lie has before him and hie exercise.,
power under that irrespective of sympathy with Indian customs. Just to give
you an illustration, 1 think you wiIl not hiame me for saying this in regard to
fishing. On the west coast of Vancouver Island, in the Antinak Lake, and iii
Nitinat Creek, there was an old Indian there with only one leg, and another who
was blind, and another so old hie could hardly move; they were setting a little
net in the stream'to catch fish for food. The officer of the Crown came there and
smashed 'their canoe, smashed up their nets and fined tliem $10 right there on the
spot. Now it is that sort of treatment that we do not want to have occur.

Q. Did they have the money to pay the fine?-A. I think the other Indians
paid it for them.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q.Was hie a provincial officer?-A. I think lie was Dominion. They were

asking me to get it back for them. That was some years ago.

By Hon. Mr. MeLennan:
Q. Was a complaint made to the departrnent about that?-A. Yes, 1

included it in my report.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q.What about Mr. Ditchburn?-A. 1 included it in my report to Mr. Diteli-

burn.
By 21fri. McPherson:

Q.I suppose, Mr. Pauli, that the inspector was carrying out the letter of
the law as it stood?-A. Absolutely, in the absence of some definite understanding
between the government and the Indians. Now I have gone to Mr. Found on
numerous occasions, nearly every occasion on my visits to Ottawa, and this
is my fifth visit, and 1 arn sorry to say 1 cannot get any sympathy from him.
lie wants to proceed on lines that may be right in theory, but to carry them out
is impossible.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q. Mr. Pauli, nearly ail, or a very large number of our coast Indians, get

employment from the canneries.-A. They do.
Q. And they get usually very remunerative ernployrnent.-A. If there îs

lots of fish they get employment, yes.
Q. And usualiy they get rpmunerafive employment.-A. Yes, they do.
Q. And sorne years they make very mucli money.-A. Yes.
Q. Now, don't you think, and do your people not consider, that in a large

measure that ernployment wiIl compensate you for the restrictions placed upon
your alleged absolute rights to fish at all times?-A. I amn afraid I cannot regard
that as compensation for these restrictions.

Q. Then, consider this question. Take the case you mention of those three
Indians; as pictured by you that is rather a pathetie case; but suppose they had
been three good husky Indians and here was the salmon running in the sock-eye
season we will say, and they had put a net across the mouth of the stream,
stopping the salmon frorn going in, and they were selling those salmon, not using
them for their own food, but selling them, then that fishery inspector would have
heen justified in equity as well as by law in doing what hie did, would lie not?-
A. Absolutely, perhaps, in that case; but we include in our requests, or in our sub-

[Andrew Pauli.]
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missions-which 1 may have to deal with later on-that some areas, not at the

rnouth of streams where the fishes hatch, but some areas be set aside where the

Indians could fish commercially.
Q. In other words give them leases of areas?-A. Leases. Just as you have

Indian Reserves.
Q. There is good sound sense there I think.-A. So that only Indians could

fish there, for commercial purposes, and exclude the Jap and the other foreigners,

but the Indian or the young man catching fish in strearns where the fish hatch 1
amn not in sympathy with himi.

Q. You realize that it is in the interests of -the Indian and the whitema

both, that we should preserve the freedom of the fish in their hatching ground.

-A. Yes, but not at the expense of depriving the Indians of his fish for food.

By Hon. Mr. Barnard:

Q.Is it not the case that in so-me of the streams the Indians are accorded

privileges that are not accorded to anyone else, such as the establishment of

wxeirs which are against the law, but they are allowed.-A. I don't think they are

allowed to have weirs now.
Q. 1 think you will find the weirs there and lots of themn.-A. There were

some in Kowichan River, but the owners were prosecuted.
Q. That is the river 1 had in mind.-A. Yes, they were prosecuted, and the

regulation in that river is that they catch fish in the mouth of the river.

By Hon. Mr. Bennett:

Q. Let me see if 1 follow you about the fish. You dlaim that you should

have special consideration at the hands of the government?-A. Yes.

Q.You have not asserted that you have the right to, ail the fisheries, but you

say you should receive consideration with respect to catching fish for food.-A.

We do not pretend to say we have the right to ail the fishecries, superseding the

right of the canneries' interests and so forth, we do not claim that.
Q. You do not set that up against the Govemment.-A. No, absolutely

not.
Q. You say the Goverument should consider that you have original rights as

a matter of grace of the Sovereign.-A. Yes, and we should be allowed to take

fish for food wherever and whenever we want to. But for commercial purposes
there should he special waters set aside for the Indians only.

By Hon. Mr. McLennan:

Q. What obstacles are there to that now? The Indians are qualified to get
those are they not?

Hon. Mr. BENNETrT: They cannot compete.

Hon. Mr. MCLENNAN: We should try to help them in that if we can.

WITNESS: May I have the question again.

By Hon. Mr. McLennan:

Q. What is there to interfere with an Indian or a group of Indians getting a

license to fish in certain places, the same as anyone else?-A. There is nothing

preventing him, but he lias te fisli in competition with numerous other fisher-

men. As an illustration: In Allert Bay, at the mouth of the river there, for some

years there were only four or five seine boats manned by Indians, and they made

good money. To-day 1 think there is 20 or 30 seine boats fishing at the mouth
of that littie streamn for sock-eye.

tAndrew Pauhl.]
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By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q.Do you flot find the Japanese competition very keen?-A. It was very

keen prior to the time that this enactment came through whereby they had to
be gradually put off.

Q. That was in 19217-A. Yes, they were getting awfully fier-ce. They
had a monopoly of the fishing on the west coast of Vancouver Island.

Q. Now the Indians are getting more employment than they were prior to
1921 and 19227-A. Yes.

By Hon. Mr. McLennan:
Q.What you are putting forward is that the Indian, on account of his long

residence in the country, shouki, be given a.s favourable treatment as possible
in prosecuting the fisheries in a commiercial way.-A Yes.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: I think that is a very fair request.
Hon. Mr. McLENNAN: I think so too.

WITNESS: Now take the people, my friends from the Interior. The fishery
Inspector says, these streams are streamns where the fish hatch and you must
not take any fish. We are in sympathy with the people of the interior or
anyone else in British Colum-bia. Their forefathers took fish fromn these very
streanis before the white man came. Because of their taking the fish from the
lakes and streams, it neyer resulted in the extermination of the fish. There
were so many fish in those streams before the white man came that you could
,almost walk across the stream on the fish.

Hon Mr. STrEVENS: Yes, I have seen that.
WITNESS: Yes, I have no doubt you have. Because there X.an effort now

being made to rehabilitate the fish in these streams-the goverunment should not
do that-at the expense of the Indian being debarred of fish for his food.

Bp Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q.Would your people be satisfied with the right to fish as you are in-
dicating? To the degree nece.ýsary for them to smoke for their winter use and
their use as they go along.-A. Yes sir.

Q.For family *use?-A. Yes sir, f aiily use in British Columbia.

By Hon. Mr. Bennett:

Q. You know how difficult that is Mr. Paull. I can sc that you know much
more about it than we do, and you can see ho-w difficult that would be?-A. It
would be very difficult, if you leave the fishing regulations as they are now,
practically at the discretion of the Deputy Minister or the Fishery Inspector.
But if the Parliament of Canada defined. it in some way so that we could
understand it, and not be left entirely to the discretion of the local officer, then
I think the problem would be solved.

Q. Mr. Paull, if there 15 no0 supervision locally with respect to the matter,
you would be the first maxn to admit that it would result in great abuses?-A.
Yes.

Q. If you pass a statute as you suggest, to give a certain thing, the result
would he an abuse of it in a very limited tirne, whether it be by a white man or
an Indian?-A. There is. a statute already in the Statute Books of Canada, but
it provides for local super-vision.

Q. Whether it is the Dominion Fisheries Act or not, I know there is local
supervision?-A. We would welcome all the supervision necessary.

[Andrew Paull.]
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By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q. How would you suggest that we could control your people frorn abusing

that privilege, if it were given to them? Have you any suggestion to make

about that?-A. The Indian bas been taught not to destroy anything that he

uses for food, but to use ail of that that is necessary for bis food.

Q. He used to destroy a lot of it though. You know bow tbey used to do

in their hunting, for instance; set out a string of fires in the 'bush, so tbat the

deer would be driven along certain lines. 1 have seen that d.one myseif. I do

not think they would do that now because they have been restricted,-A. Per-

haps that happens when they bave no guns.
Q. 1 recail sorne very bad fires twenty or thirty years ago.-A. 1 arn not

in a position to dispute tbat.
Q. On the fisbing question, give us a sdggestion how we can control that.-

A. Well, if yeu will allow the Indian to take fish for food wbere and whenever be

requires it. You would have to repeal or amend some of the exxsting laws. In

the Indian Act there is a law giving the Superintendent General of Indian

Affairs power to supervise the fisbing on the Indian reserves, and in streams

flowing tbrougb or by or adjacent to an Indian reserve. Now that law exists

in the Iîidian Act. On tbe other band, the Fisheries Departrnent bas an Act

now in existence tbat they have supervision over ail fishing.

Q. That is in tbe province?-A. No, it is a Dominion statute.

Q. Is not that fishery control exercised by the province?-A. In inland

waters it is, but in tidal waters it is by the Dominion.

Q. I mean, in inland waters; up stream.-A. I think the Indian pretty

nearly bas to steal the fisb to take for bis food in inland waters. What I mean

by that is that he is automatically a crirninal for taking fish for food under the

provincial law. But suppose the provincial law deprives the Indian frorn taking

fish in the inland waters, tbis Parliament and this committee, in order to bring

about the requirernents of the Indian, would bave to approach the governrnent
and get them to alter their laws.

Q. You are not restricted very rnuch on the coast regarding the troll fisbing,

like the whitc mcn wbo fish around Vancouver. You are iaot restricted there.-

A. Well, they can troll ail right, but as you know, trolling is principaliy for
sport.

Q. Oh, no; wbat about ail th-ose fishermen on Dead Men's Island? You

know those people who corne in at the Hynes Wharf, ail those white fishermen?

-A. They troll in sorne cases in Howe Sound and Burrard Inlet, for spring

saîrnon, during July and the latter part of June, and then tbey go up the Coast

to fisb for codfisb.
Q. They fish the year round?-A. Yes, 'but they bave big boats, and the

necessary equiprnent for procuring these fishes, that the Indian has not got.

Q. Oh no, the Indian can get equiprnent as well as tbey can. They are

rnostly poor men; poorer, most of tbern, than the Indians are.-A. Mhey belong

to a co-operative cornpany; tbey advanee thern the rnoney to equip thernselves.

Q. But they are not restricted by law?-A. To procure fish tbey are, but

not in the matter of troliing.
Q. You want the privilege of gi net fishing at any time?-A. We sbouid

be allowed to gi net for food.
Q. I arn afraid you would find it verY difficult to control that.-A. Wbat

I mean by that is a short net, not a gili net of 150 fatboms, or 300 fatboms, but

a smail net, say the length of this roorn, to put in adjacent to the rnouth of the

streaina. Not to put across the streams near Vancouver; a little net, say 150

feet long, big enough to put in a canoe, about one fathom in depth. We sbouid

be aliowed to gaif fisb if we want them, fresh fish, if we bave not a net, in

Capilano Creek. [Andrew Paull.]
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QTo spear them?-A. Yes, spear them.Q.At night?--A No in the daytime. Capilano has been closed by theFisheries Department. We cannot fish there. We cannot gaif them as we have
done, although that Stream passes through an Indian Reserve. It appears thatthe authority of the fishing inspector supersedes the authority of the Superin-
tendent General to look after fishing in stream.s which. pass through the IndianReserves. One of my Indians was prosecuted there last year for gaffing dogsalmon. Now the sort of salmon that the Indians use is not the sock-eye Salmon,which is greatly used for commercial purposes; it is a cheap kind of salmon,that they do not can very mucli of, and flot sock-eye, but dog salmon, Cohoes
salmon, and other cheap varieties.

By Hon. A4ir. Bennett:
Q. Who carnies on that authority?-A. The Fisheries Department of Can-ada through their local officer. Mr. Perry and myseif defended an Indian,and we won out in the Police Court. They appealed the case and it was heard

before Judýge Cayley. I think he gave a sort of fifty-fifty decision, but theFisheries Department said the decision was in their favour.
Hon. Mn. STEVyENS: Well, that ouglit to be about right, a fifty-fifty

decision.
The CHAIRMAN:- Now, Mn. Pauli, it is just one o'clock. Probably youhad better stop there. Have you more evidence that you want to give?
The WITNESS: Yes, Mn. Chairman, I have. I have just got beyond Con-federation in my narrative. I want to get to the McKenna agreement at some

time.
Hon. Mr. BEN-NETT: I congratulate you very sincerely, Mr. PaulI, on your

statement.

Hon. Mr. MCLENNAN: Mr. Chairman, I would suggest that upon thispoint there might be a Conference between the Indian Department and our
fisheny people.

Hon. Mr. BENNETT: Mr. Scott said Mr. Fouad would like to be heard.
Dr. SCOTT: Mr. Found would like to be heard on the question later on.
Discussion followed.

The Committee adjourned.
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EXHIBIT No. 1.

(Filed by A. E. 0'Meara)

THE ALLIED IINDIAN TRIBES 0F BRITISH COLUMBIA.

Memo2'andum Regarding General Counsel

We, Peter R. Kelly Chairman of the Executive Gommittee of the allied
Indian Tribes of British Columbia and James A. Teit, special agent of the allied
Tribes, hereby certify as follows:

1. In the month of May 1916, Mr. Arthur E. 0'Meara, Barrister, who had
previously acted as Couns'el for the Nishga Tribe in an honourary capacity, agreed
to take fuli professionai responsibility for the Petition of that Trîbe and to
represent t-hat Tribe before Ris Majesty's Privy Council, the Parliament of
Canada, the Governments and ail others concerned. The Delegates of the Nishga
Tribe then in Ottawa by letter addrQîsed to the Minister of Interior informed
the Government of Canada of the arrangement -so made.

2. An alliance of Tribes having been subsequently formed, upon occasion
of meeting of the Executive Committee of the allied Tribes held at Vancouver
in the month of February 1919 it was arranged between the allied Tribes and
Mr. 0'Meara that lie should act as General Counsel having charge of the British
Columbia Indian case, in whatever way it might be carried through to final
adjustment of ail matters.

3. A larger alliance of Tribes having been formed in the present month,
upon occasion of meeting of the Executive Committee of that alliance this day
held it was arranged that Mr. 0'Meara shouid contbinue to act as Generai Counsel
having charge of the Indian case and Mr. 0'Meara was duly appointed to lie
General Counsel of the newly formed alliance of Tribes.

4. In particular Mr. O'Meara has been fully authori-zed as sucli Generq:i
Counsel to present to and discuss with the Government of Canada ail matters
contained in and arising from the Statement which in the year 1919 the allied
Tribes prepared for the Government of British Columbia, the matter of the laws
enacted by the Parliament of Canada in the year 1920 known as Bill 13 and Bill
14, and the matter of ail funds expended and ail funds whîch will require to lie
expended by the allied Tribes in connection with the British Columbia Indian
case now before His Majesty's Privy Council and in securing determination of
ail questions related thereto and final adjustment of ail differences between the
two Governments Fnýd the alîed Tribes.

PETER R. KELLY,
Chairman of Executive Committee.

J. A. TEIT,

VANcovER, .C.,Special Agent.

2Oth January, 1922.

1 Andrew Pauli, Recording and Corresponding Secretary of the newly
formed Alliance of Indian Tribes of British Columbia, hereby certify that
paragraphis 3 and 4 of the above memorandum are correct in every particular.

ANDREW PAULL.

4232"Recording and Correspondirg S.ecretary.
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EXHIBIT No. 2.

(Filed byj A. E. O'Meara)

ALLIED INDIAN TRIBES 0F BRITISH COLUMBIA

ANDRFW PAIJIL, Rev. P. R. KELLY,

Secret ary Execlttive Comm ittec, Chairmaon Executive Committee,
North Vancouver, B. C. 763 Albert St., Nanaimo, B.C.

VTANco-uvERJ B. C., 2nd December, 1926.
DEAR FRIENDS: In order that at the present time we may report toi you as

clearly and briefly as possible wc first ask that you again read the chief con-
tents of the circular letter sent out on 3lst December last.

The Petition which had then been decided upon was presented to Parliament
in the month of June iast and contains a full and strong statement of the case
of the Indian Tribes of this Province. The great importance of the Petition
having been recognized in both Houses of Parliament, it was printed in fuill
in the officiai reports of proceedings in Parliament known as Hansards, copies
of which were sent from Ottawa to ail members of the Executive Committee
and to others.

Ail possible was done for securing that the Petition should be seriousiy
debated in Parliament and that the desired action of heiping forward the case
in Ris Majesty's Privy Council should be taken. The accompiishing of this
resuit, of which there seemcd to be good prospect, was made quite impossible
by the politicai upheavai that occurred and the dissolution of Parliament that
foliowed.

In the month of .Juiy the case was brought before the Government of Right
Hon. Arthur Meighen. Important and encouraging interviews were had with
members of that Govcrnmcnt. Thc Hon. R. B. Bennett of Calgary, then acting
Minister of Interior, gave to your Chairman and Generai Counsel assurances
that the Government if sustained in power would take early action in accord-
ance with Mr. Meighen's statement made in the House of Commons on 26th
June, 1925, deciaring that the Indian Tribes of British Columbia are entitied
to obtain from Ris Majesty's Privy Council decision of the Indian Land
controversy.

The Executive Committee of Allied Tribes upon occasion of meeting heid
in October after full expianation unanimously adopted resolution approving al
contents of the Petition presented to Parliament and ail other action taken
by the Chairman and Generai Counsci at Ottawa.

In pursuance of another resolution adopted by the Executive Committee
the Chairman addressed to the Minister of Interior letter expressing the hope
that the present Government of Canada will recognize that ail assurances on
the subjcct of the Indian Land controversy which have been given by previous
governments are binding iipon the Dominion of Canada and should now be
fulfilied, and to that end wili help forward early action of the House of Commons
referring the Petition to a Speciai Committee as requested by the Aliid Tribes.

Upon occasion of the same meeting of the Executive Committee the General
Counsel advised that as rapidly as possible the case should be carried through
Parliament and carried forward in Ris Majesty's Privy Council.

The Committee decided that for securing funds sufficient for taking full
advantage of the very strong position reached by means of the Petition now
before Parliament and if possible carrying forward the case and the whoie work
of the Ailied Tribes to eariy and complete success a campaign shouid be carried
on throughout the Province during the month of December.

The present position of the Indian case at Ottawa is that the Petition has
brought before Parliament the Indian case as brought before Ris Ma.jesty's
Privy Council and therefore manifestiy requires to be deait with aiong sound
judicial iincs.
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There is good reason for expeeting that on eariy day of the Session leading
members of the House of Commons will press for the taking of action upon the
Petition of Allied Tribes.

If, as resuit. the House of Commons shall appoint a Special Committee-, the
first business of such Committee wiih be consideration of the matters which are
subject of discussion which was entered upon by the General Counsel with the
Minister of .Justice, namehy the fiat which was promiscd by the Minister of
Interior in the Housc of Gommons and common ground which might be reached
by the Governmnent of Canada and the Allied Tribes in connection. with the car-
rying forward of their independent judicial proceedings. The Special Commit-
tee wiii ai-o consider the cioseiy reiated mat-ter of the first three prayers of the
Petition asking for, (1) Safe-guarding of tlue aboriginai rights of the Indian
Tribes of British Columbia, (2) Defining of the issues between the Aiiied Tribes
and the two Governments whieh require to be judiciaiiy decided and, (3) Heip-
ing forward the independent judicial proceedings of the Aiiied Tribes.

After these matters shahl have been discussed we shall be in a position to,
decide whether it has become necessary for the Chairman-or other representative
of the Ailied Tribes to go to Ottawa. The Allied Tribes are advised that the
sending of a larger delegatîon would be rendered necessary only by some quite
new developments which might occur in Parliament flot now thought to, be
probable.

We trust ail the Indians of the Province wiii cleariy understand that there
are not two separate objectives of the Ailied Tribes, Parliament and the Privy
Council, but there is one objective, that of carrying the case right through to a
hearîng before the Judicia.l Committee of His Majesty's Privy Council. Also
we trust it xviii be ecarly understood that ail workdone and to be donc at Ottawa
is intended for accomplishîng safely and rapidly this one great purpose by reach-
ing a complete understanding with Parliament and if possible securing the power-
fui help of Parliament.

It is necessary to bear in mind that the Allied Indian Tribes of Britishi
Columbia is the only organization officîaliy recognized. by the Government of
Canada. Any statement coming fromi other sources may be regarded as unre-
liable and shouid be ignored. The Executive Committee will promptly inform]
you of ail important events.

For practically carrying out the decisions of the Committee above stated
it is most important that commencing during the first week of Dýecember every
tribe should carry out a weil organized plan for secu-ring larger funds than have
ever before been raised. To accomplish this end in a systematie way the Com-
mittee adviscs that every member of the tribe of eighteen years of age should
provide at least three dollars and in the case of tribes that did flot provide funds
hast Spring at least five dollars. The Committee earnestly hopes that those able
to provide larger funds will do so. It is strongly advised by the Committee that
this work of securing funds be eompleLed before end of December or in cases in
which the letter shall be delayed at the earliest possihle date cf January.

If every tribe will do its share in meeting this responsibility the common
goal of ail the tribes will be reached.

Ail funds to be secured as resuit of this campaigu shouidl be sent to the
Treasurer, Rev. P. R. Kelly, 763 Albert, Street, Nanaimo, B.C.

With ex-ery good wish for a 1\Ierry Christmas and a Happy New Year.

Yours faithfully,
P. R. KELLY,

Chairman and Treasitrer.

ANDREW PAULL,
Secret ary.
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CLAIMIS 0F THE ALLIED INDIAN TRIBES, B.C.

CommiTTEE RoomM6,

HousE 0F COMMONS,

MONDAY, April 4th, 1927.

The Joint Special Committee appointed ta inquire into the dlaims of the
Allied Indian Tribes of British Columbia, as set forth in their petition sub-
mitted to Parliament in June, 1926, met at 10.00 o'clock, lion. Mr. Bostock
presiding.

The CIIAIRMAN: Gentlemen, it is past aur time for beginning, and we shall
commence our morning sitting. Mr. Paull, have you any further evidence ta
bring before the committee?

Mr. PAULL: Yes, sir. Shall I proceed, Mr. Chairman?
The CHIAIRMAN: Yes.

ANDREW PAULL recalled.

The WITIÇESS: At the last session of this committee, Mr. Chairman and
hon. gentlemen, 1 was about ta read a memorandum issued by the Hon. David
Laird in 1874 dealing with Article 13 of the Terms of Union.

By the Chairman:
Q.Do you tbink it is neccssary ta take up the time of the committee read-

ing that?-A. Yes, Mr. Chairman. The Province of British Columbia depends
upon Article 13. Dr. Scott bas mentianed some material facts in cannection
with Article 13 and this memorandum af the Ilonourable the late David Laird
coincides with aur opinion af this whale mat ter in connection with Article 13.

Q. The committee already have that befare them in the statcmcnt which
Doctor Scott placed in the record.-A. I amn sorry ta say that Doctar Scott did
not include this in'bis remarks, and that is why I want ta include it. (Reading):

" When the framers of the Terms of Admission af British Columbia
into the Union inserted this provision, requiring the Dominion gavern-
ment to pursue a policy as liberal tawards the Indians as that hitherto
pursued by the British Columbia government, they cauld bardly have
been aware of the marked cantrast between the Indian policies whicb had,
Up ta that time, prevailed in Canada and British Columbia respectively.

Whereas, in British Columbia, ten acres of land was the maximum
allowance for a family af five persans, in ail Canada thc minimum allow-
ance far such a fa.mily was cighty acres: and a similar contrast abtained
in regard ta grants for educatian and ail other matters connectcd with

* the Indians under the respective gavernments. Read by this light, the
insertion af a clause guaranteeing the aborigines of British Columbia the
continuance by the Dominion government of the liberal policy heretafore
pursued by the local gavernment, seems littie short of a mockery af their

* daims.
The first step taken by the gavernment of tbe Dominion of Canada

in dealing witb this subject, was the passing of an Order in Council ai the
2lst March, 1873, recommending that eighty acres af land sbould be
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assigned by the local government of British Columbia to every Indian
family of five persons.

To this recommendation (Made in accordance with the general policy
heretofore pursued in old Canada in such matters, but without taking
into consideration the bearing of the l3th clause already referred te,
securing a liberal policy to the Indians of British Columbia), the govern-
ment of that province peremtorily dcclined to accede, alleging that the
quantity of land which the Order in Council proposed to assign to the
Indians was greatly in excess of what was found to be sufficient by previous
local governments, and the Indian Commissioner was notified that the
government of British Columbia had decided that the land reserved for
the Indians should not exceed twenty acres for each head of a f amily of
five persens.

Even this allowance of twenty acres for each head of a f amily, in-
adequate as it would have been considered by the Indians, has, by the
interpretation lately put by the local authorities in their Order in Couneil
granting it, been very materially reduced. They now hoid tihat that (rder
in Council was intended to apply to new reserves only, and not to the
old reserves existing at the time of Union. Such, with the exception of
the latter interpretation, was the psition of the Indian land question in
British Columbia when the duty of administering Indian affairs devolved
upon the 'undersigned in his eapacity of Minister of the Interior.

is first step in connection with the subject was to submit a memo-
randum to Council setting f orth the f acts of the case and recommending,
as under the circumstances was inevitable, that the Order in Couneil of
the 21st March, 1873, assigning eîghty acres to eacb Indian family, be
rescinded, and that only twenty acres be allowed to each family, but also
recommending, inter alia, that the local government should he invited tO
reconsider their Indian land policy with a view to co-operate in every way
with the government of the Dominion in satisfying the reasonable demnands
of the native tribes west of the Rocky Mountains.

This memnorandum was approved by the Governor-General in Counc-il
on the 24th April last.

Mr. Indian Commissioner Powell duly submitted this Order in Council
te the Britisfi Columbia government accompanied by such arguments as
he could use in favour of the adoption by that government of a more
liberal land policy toward the Indians.

The British Columbia goverment, however, appear to be reserved
to adhere to their deter.mination not to go beyond the grant of twenty acres
to ecd Indian family, and even that allowance, as already observed, is
authoritively declared to be intende-d not " te affect or unsetie reservations
before established, but is confined te the cases in which, at -the time of
Confederation, tie original tribes were flot provided with the land set
apart for their exclusive use."

The Indian Commissioner, on being officially notified of the views of
the local government, feit reluetantly obliged to arrest the surveys of the
Indian reserves in the province-surveys which had been authorized by
him, and which were tien beîng proceeded with, on the understanding
(sanctioned, as lie believed, by the local govermnent) that twenty acres
of land were te be allowed te each Indian f amily, whether on the old
Reserves or otherwise.

This suspension of the surveys, though under other circumstances a
necessary step, is calculated te aggravate the discontent and alarm of
the Indians in reference te their treatment by the government, and will,
in a great measure, help te keep open the long-pending dispute between the
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white settiers and the Indians in reference to their respective land dlaims;
disputes which, in the summer of 1873, nearly led ta an outbreak of the
Indian population of the province, and to the recurrence of which it -ias
hoped these surveys would put an end.

How universal, deep-seated, and intense, the feeling of discontent
among the Indians of British Columbia was, previous even to the last
decision of the Local Government, limiting the twenty acre grant, is
unmistakably apparent in Mr. Commissioner Powell's report of his visit
ta the native tribes last summer, and in the ]etters of the Roman Catholie
Bishup of the province, and Father Grandidier.

In this connection Mr. Commissioner Powell does not hesitate to
write that-

If there has not been an Indian wrar, it is not because there has been
na injustice to the Indians, but because the Indians have not been
sufficiently united.

These gloomy anticipations are shared, not only by bath the Indian
Commissianers, but allsa by the white settlers generally in the province,
and are expressed stili more strongly, if possible, in the communication
already aliuded to, of Father Grandidier, and the Roman Catholie Bishop
of the province.

Ail1 concur in the opinion that, until the land grievances of which the
Indians complain. are satisfactorily redressed, no statement, however
liberai or huinane in the way of money grants or presents, wiil aveul ta
secure peece or contentment amang them. As an evidence of the strength
of this feeling of dissatisf actian, Commîssioner Powell stetes that the
Indien bands at Nicola and Okenanan Lakes, wholly declined ta accept
eny presents from. him last summer, lest by so doing they should be
thought ta waive their ýc'laim far compensation foar the injustice donc them
in relatian ta the Land Grents.

The views of the Roman Cetholie Bishap, and of Father Grandidier
entirely accord, as we have said, with thase af the Commissioners; and the
opiniîons of thase Reverend gentlemen, are, it is thought, worthy of
special consideretion from the f act that they speak with a tharaugh
knowledge af the subjeet, acquired by long residence among the Indiens,
and close and habituai intercourse with them.

The other principal land grievances, of which the Indiens complein,
besides thet af the insufficient quentity allowed them, as already referred
ta, may be briefly stated under twa heads: -

lst. They ýcamplain thet, in many instances, the lands which they
hadc settled upan end cultivated, have been taken from them withaut
compensation, and pre-empted by the white settlers, and that in same
cases, their burial graunds have been thus pre-enrpted.

2nd. They complain that, in consequence af the prcscnt state cf
the iew in reference ta pastoral land, their cattle and horses are
systematicelly driven away from the open country by the white
settiers, who have taken leeses of pastoral lend in the neighbaurhood.

Ail these severel grievances have been, for many years past, the sub-
jects of complaint among the Indians. But, during the lest two or three
years, they have assumed a more serious aspect then heretefore; partly
from the fact that the Indians are now, for the first tîme, feeling prac-
ticelly the inconvenience of being, hemmed in by the white settiers, and
prevented from using the land for pastoral purposes; partly because the
Indians are anly now becaming, to understand the value of agriculture,
and ta desire the possession of -land for cultivation; and partly, it may be,
beceuse they have been recently made eware cf the liberal land palicy
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extended to the Indians of the Xorthwest in recent Treaties, and naturally
contrast this treýatment with the policy meted out to themselves.

The Indians of British Columbia, especiaily those in the interior 'of
the Province, are intelligent and industrious, and likely to turn to good
account any farming lands -whioh may be assigned to them. Moreover,
they already own large herds of horses and cattie, and a liberal allowance
of pastoral l.and is te them a matter of absolute necessity, te enable them
to support their stock.

The undersigned f cols that the Government of the Dominion cannot
be charged with want of liberality, in its dealings with the Indians of
British Columbia, since the admission of that Province into the Union.
During the last two years, the sum of $54,000 has been voted by Parlia-
ment for their benefit; and before the expiration of the current financial
year, the whole of that large sum will probab]y have been expended,
either in supporting Indian sehools, making surveys, distributing agri-
cultural implements and seed, or for other objects calculated te promote
their mater]al and moral well-being.

When At is stated that prior to the admission of British Columbia
into the Union, the entire annual expenditure od the local Government
on the Indians, did not exceed, at most, a f ew hundred dollars; that as
Mr. Commiissioner Powell states:-

Money paynients hy the Government, on a-ccount of the native
race, have been rcstricted te expenditure incurred by Indian outrages,
and ne efforts have been put forth with a view te civilizing, them; it
havîng heen considered that the best. mode of treating them was te,
let them alone."

Hon. Mr. STEWART: Mr. PaulI, I do not want to stop you, but really this
bas been the subject ef an inquiry. I want to say te the Chairman týhat the
House of Cominons begins sit.tings to-morrowr morning at elevcn o'elock. There
are a number of witnescs the Committee would like to hear, and 1 would ask
you te, condense; if you are going to read long articles of this sort, you will bar
others who are anxi:ous te appear before the Committee, altogether.

Mr. McPHEr-soeSý-,: Why is it not sufficient to give us the references to what
you wish read.

Hon. Mr. STEWART: Could you not have that filcd?
WITNESS: It weuld not be fair, MN'r. Chairman, since Dr. Scott has read a

document upon tliis question.
Hon. Mr. STEWART: You can file anything you want to, without taking up

time reading long extracùts. It would serve your purpose as well, as we will have
them printeýd for the benefit of the Committee.

By lion. Mr. Stevens:
Q.Are you through wîth that extract?-A. It îs nearly finished.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: He bas just about a paragraph te read; why not let
him finish it?

Hon. Mr. STEWART: Very well.
WiTNEss: I have less than haîf a page yet te read.
The CHAIRMAN: Finish it then.
WITNESS (Reading):

" It cannot be alleged that, in this respect, the Government of the
Dominion bas f ailed, on its part, te continue towards the Indians of that
Province 'a policy as liberal as that previously pursued by the British
Columbia Government.
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In'laying the foundation of an Indian policy in that Province, on
the same permanent and satisfactory basis as in tlie other portions of
the Dominion, the Government of the Dominion feel tliey would not
lie justified in limiting their efforts to what, under the strict letter of the
Ternis of Union, they were called upon to do. Tliey feel that a great
national question like this, a question involving possibly in the near
future an Indian War with ail its horrors, should be approaclied in a
very different spirit, and deait with upon other and higher grounds.
Actuated by these feelings, the Government of the Dominion in the
dealings with the Indians of British Columbia, lias acted as lias been
shown, in a spirit of iiberality f ar beyond what thie strict ternis of thie
agreement required at its hands; and tliey confidently trust tliat on a
ealm review of tlie wliole subject in ail its important bearings, thie Govern-
ment of that Province wiil be prepared to, meet tliem in a spirit of equal
liberality.

The policy foresliadowed in tlie provisions of the 13th Clause of
tlie Britishi Columbia Terms of Union, is plainly altogether inadequate
to satisfy the fair and reasonable demands of the Indians.

To satisfy these demands, and to secure the good-will of tlie natives,
tlie Dominion and Local Governments must look bey-ond tlie terms of
that agreement, and be governed in their conduct towards the aborigines
by the justice of tlieir dlaims, and ýby the necessities of tlie case.

Thie undersigned would, tlierefore, respectfully recommend, that tlie
Government of thie Dominion sliould make an earnest appeal to tlie
Government of Britishi Columbia, if tliey value the peace and prosperity
of their Province-if they desîre tliat Canada as a wliole should retain
tlie liigli claracter slie lias earned for lierself by lier just and honourable
treatment of tlie red men of the forest, te reconsider in a spirit of wisdom
and patriotism the land grievances of whicli the Indians of tliat Province
complain, apparently witli good reason, and take such measures as may
be necessary promptly and effectually to redreiss theni.

In conclusion, tlie undersigned would recomniend that, sliould the
views submitted in this Memorandum lie approved by the Goveruor
General in Council, a copy of tlie Order in Council passed in tlie case,
witli a copy of this Memorandum, be transmitted to His Honour tlie
Lieutenant-Governor of British Columbia, with a request tliat lie would
take an early opportunity of submitting tbem to bis Executive Govern-
ment, and express the hope tliat tlie views of the Dominion Government
tlierein emliodied, may obtain an early and favourable consideration.

H1e would further recommend, tliat copies of tlie Order in Councii

and tlie Memorandum, should also lie transmitted by tlie Governor
General to the Secretary of State for the Colonies, accompanied by copies

of sucli of tlie otlier documents lierewith suhmitted as may lie thouglit
necessary to enable the Colonial Seuretary We understand in ail its bear-
ings tlie great national question now seeking solution at tlie liands of
tlie Dominion Government and the Government of British Columbia."-

(Signed) DAVID LAIRD,
Minister of Interi or.

Hon. Mr. MURPHY: Wliat is tlie titie of tlie volume froni wliicli you have

been reading?-A. Tlie Journals and Sessional Papers of Britisli Columbia of
1876.

Q. And wliat is the date of the recoxumendation to Council?-A. The
recommendation to Council is the 4tli of iNovember, 1874.
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By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q.What is the point you want to make in regard to that report?-A.

The points I want to make are these: Tihe 13th Article was inadequate to
satisfy the requirements of the Indians insofar as the obligation to establish
Indian reserves w-ere concerned.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: I think with the Chairman's permission, I would draw
the attention of the Committee, and of Mr. Pauli and his associates, to the
following facts; 1 think 1 have them collected accurately, but the Deputy
Superintendent Gieneral w'ill correct me if my figures are not approximately
correct.

The complaint at this time was that twenty acres per family was altogether
inadequate. Now, the acreage to-day is 756,000 acres of Indian reserves,
allocated to Indian use. Roughly, that amounts to 132 acres to, a family of
four, taking four as a normal family, which I thinks perh.aps would be reason-
able.

Hon. Mr. MURPHY: And what is the total population?
Hon. Mr. STEVýENS: I have taken àL as 23,000. iNow, that means, that

instead of a grievance based upon an allotmnent of 20 acres, you have a situation
where there are 132 acres per f amily. It was pointed out that there was an
inadequate expenditure of public money in the interests of the Indians. At
that time I think there were 50,000 or 60,000 Indians, something like that, and
the figure mentioned is $50,000, in thât memorandum. Last year I think we
spent $600,000 for 23,000 Indians as against, at the time of this grievance,
$50,000 for some 50,000 Indians. I merely draw attention to the changed
situation. Apparently the chief grievances set out in that memnorandum. have
been well ta-ken care of by the action of both Governments.

Hoin. Mr. MuxpH-Y: Does Dr. Scott say that the H-on. Mr. Stevens'
suinary is a correct onc?

Dr. SCOTTv: Yes, it Is correct. I might point out to the Commiittee that
on page 46 of the proceedings of March 3Oth you will find the printed Order
in Council which put into operation the selection of reserves. That was a
preliminary memorandum to the Council that was drafted by the Hon. David
Laird. You will notice that this is signed by the Hon., R. W. Scott,' Acting
Minister of the Interior. I think that Mr. Laird had gone west, at least he
ýwas not on duty then. I thought that there would be no purpose in burden-
ing the record with the first Order in Council, because that is the operative
Order in Couneil on which the Commission set out the reserves.

Hon. Mr. MURPHY: It superseded what went before?
Dr. SCOTT: Yes.
Hon. Mr. MCLENNAN: The one that has just been read was preparatory to

the one that is in the Minutes?
Dr. SCOTT¶: Yes, it was a preparatory Order.
Mr. PAULL: My pu 'rpose in reading the Hon. David Laird's memorandum

was to show to this Committee the conditions that obtained. I would just like
to answer the statement that was read by the lion. Mr. Stevens, as to, the area

-of reserves. It is true, perhaps, that the area of reserves now allocated to the
Indians is in excess of what they were in the past but that condition was brought
about in an arbitrary way by both governments. To illustrate that; the 1912
Commission took away fromý the Indians 47,058 acres, cut. it out from their
reserves. The value of that 47,000 acres is $1,522,704. When the Commission,
under their powers, eut off that area from the existing reserves, they allocated
to the Indians an acreage far in excess of what they took away. Probably, that
is why that statement is brought about. The new reserves comprise an area of
87,292 acres, valued at $444,853. Now, that shows that the Commission took
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away good land fromn the Indians and gave them, bad land. I can mention a few
cases from my knowledge, but 1 would not take the time of this Committee.

Hon. Mr. STEWART: That is very important evidence for this Committee,
and if you will just confine yourself to things of that character we will get some-
where. When you make the statement that there were 44,000 acres of land sold,
which was va-luable land, and you got in lieu of that more acreage of less value,
then that is important for us. 1 merely mention that so that you will confine
vourseif to evidence of that kird; it is very important to the Committee.

Dr. ScoTT: I want to point out to the Committee that the Indians will get
50 per cent of the value of these lands when they are sold.

Hon. Mr. McLENNAN: That was carried ont?

Dr. SCOTTr: It will be carried out.
Mr. PATJLL: I would like to point out the possîbilities of that regulation.

The Provincial Government can seli any of this cut-off land to friends of theirs
for a dollar, and the indians wili get 50 cents of that. There is no provision
protecting the Inýdians at ail.

Hon. Mr. MeLEN-NAN: Have you information of any case where that has
happened, Mr. Pauli?

Mr. PAIJLL: No, but there is no provision protecting us. I have no vote and
1 arn not criticising anybody's policy. 1 am glad that Mr. Stewart pointed that
out to me, and in thatconnection I think I had better deal with the McKenna-
MeBride agreement. The agreemnent is that this shahl be a final settlement. Now,
we have always contended that conditions would be brought about just as the
agreement savs.

Hon. Mr. STEWART: It would be better for you to say that it is contended it
was a final settiement of the reserve lands.

Mr. PAPLL: No, I cannot say that, Mr. Stewart.

Hon. Mr. STEWART: There is no final settlement by the Federal Govern-
ment for such other matters as educational matters, and otherwise?

Mr. PAULL: The Deputy Minister of Justice gave an opinion that it was
a final settlement.

Hon. Mr. STEW.ART: So far as lands for the reserves were concerned?

Mr. PAITLL: Ail matters in British Columbia.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: What is your objection to that? Let us know why
you object to that terni being used?

Mr. PATJLL: Because, by the actions of the Dominion and Provincial
Governments, they have put to an end one of the provisions of the British North
America Act; that is, article 13.

Hon. Mr. STLVENS: That is not what 1 mean. Do you dlaim that this
final settlement has injured you or injured your people?

Mr. PAULL: Because they have not deait wit-h other matters that are
of more concern to the Indians, such as foreshores, hunting, water-rights, and
so f orth.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: I think it is generally recognized that this does not
deal with foreshores, water-righits and fisheries?

Mr. PAULL: The agreement says that this shaîl be the final settlement
of ail matters pertaining to Indian Affairs, yet they do not touch upon matters
that concern us.

Dr. SCOTT: It is only contended thaï it is a final settiement as between
the Dominion and the Province.
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Hon. Mr. STEWART: The point I want to make, Mr. Pauli, is that there is
no final settiement of definite amounts, either per capita or otherwise, for
Indians from the Federal Government; that may be raised from time to time.

Mr. PAuIa1 : Do I understand you, then, even after the passing of the
adoption of the report of this Commission, that the Dominion Government could
go to the Provincial Goverument and operate the conditions of Article 13;
that is, secure fromn the Province additional lands?

Hon. Mr. STEWART: When you confine it to the land question, I Say yes.
I want te make it clear that it is not final, so f ar as the responsibility of the
Federal Government to the Indians is concerned. On the land question, yes.

Mr. PAULL:- But the trouble is this; that the Indians require other things
that are only held by the Province and not by the Dominion.

Hon. Mr. STEWART: That is ail right; go on with that.
Mr. PAULL: How can the Dominion procure from, the Provincial Govern-

ment things that we will require in the future when the Dominion and the
Province bas agreed that this is final?

Hon. Mr. STEWART: So f ar as lands are concerned.
Mr. PAuLL: Not only lands, but everything.
Hon. Mr. STEWART: You are right in that respect. The Province of British

Columbia say, " We are through now, there is nothing more we are going to do.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Tell us what your dlaimi is; let us get some idea of what

you want; fisheries, hunting, foreshores, and so on. Set themn ail out so that this
Committee can have some idea of what your dlaims are.

Mr. PAT-JLL: The dlaims that are not being deait with by this Commission, as
I said; foreshores. Perhaps 1 might condense my statement if I rcad a state-
ment prepared and presented by James Teit, a white man who was associated
with the Indians of British Columbia.

Hlon. Mr. STEVENIS: What is the date of that?
Mr. PAULL: 2,5th of .Iuly, 1920.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Prcsentcd to whom?
Mr. PAULL: Presented to the Banking and Commerce Committee of the

Senate in the year 1920.
The CHAIRMAN: That includes ail the dlainis you are now making?
Mr. PAULL: That includes our objection to this Commission of 1912. Shall

I read the material parts of this?
Hon. Mr. McLENNAN: Would It flot save time to have it handed in?
Mr. PAULL: 1 would wil-lingly do that.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Summarize it briefiy.
Mr. O'MEARA: It is very short.
Mr. PAULL: The Indians dlaim ail foreshores fronting on Indian reserves.

[s that what the Committee wants?
Hon. Mr. MOLENNAN: Yes, that is exactly what we want.
Mr. PAULL: That statement is briefiy just what 1 amn about to say. It is

a carefully prepared statement
Hon. Mr. MuRPHY: Could you not put it in this way? The Indians dlaim

ail foreshore in front of Indian reserves; the reasons for that claini are to be
found in this statement at pages so and so.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: On pages 30, 31 and 32.
Statement of James Teit filed as follows:

I want te read a statement here which was prepared by our late
friend, Mr. J. A. Teit, in the spring of 1920, in Ottawa, te be presented te
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the Senate, but it was neyer delivered. The document has been preserved.
1 would like to, just read parts of that. This applies Vo conditions which
existed at that time, and refers to the conditions which exist now. "The
Indians see nothing of real value for them in the work of the Royal Com-
mission. Their crying needs have not been met. The Commissioners did
not fix up their hunting rights, fishing rights, water rights, and land rights,
nor did they deal with the matter of reserves in a satisfactory manner.
Their dealing with reserves has been a kind of manipulation to, suit the
whites, and not the Indians. All they have done is to, recommend that
about 47,000 acres of generally speaking good lands be taken from the
Indians, and about 80,000 acres of generally speaking poor lands, be given
in their place. A lot of the land recommended Vo be taken froma the
reserves has been coveted by whites for a number of years. Most of the
80,000 acres additional lands is Vo be provided by the Province, but it
seems the Indians are really paying for these lands. Fifty per cent of
the value of the 47,000 acres to be taken from the Indians is Vo go Vo the
Province, and it seemns t.his amount wiil corne to more than the value of
the land the Province is Vo give the In-dians. The Province loses nothing,
the Dominion loses nothing, and the Indians are the losers. They get
fifty per cent and lose fifty per cent on the 47,000 acres, but, as the 47,000
acres is much more valuable land than the 80,000 they are actually losers
by the work of the Commission."~

Now, this was the opinion arrived at by our laVe friend, and we attach
a great deal of importance Vo statemnents that he prepared carefull'y. It
is not a statemnent prepared by our general counsel, but by one who went
carefully into the matter, and who strived Vo interpret the whole thing as
he saw it, and that was bis conclusion. Perhaps it is educational to read
some more from this same document. There is another reference Vo Bill
13, and 1 will read that. It will speak for itself, and I think it expresses
the Indians' viewpoint very accuratcly.

" Bill 13 is Vo empower the Government of Canada Vo adopt the find-
ings of Royal Commission as a final adjustment of alI lands to be reserved
for the Indians. The McKenna-McBride Agreement, the Order in
Council, the findings of the Royal Commission, and B3ill 13, are all parts,
of a whole. The Order in Council states that the Indians shail accept the
findings of the Royal Commission as approved by the Governments of the
Dominion and the Province as a full allotment of reserve lands, and
further, that the Province, by granting sa.id reserves as approved, shahl
be hcld Vo have satisfied all daims of the Indians against the Province.
What chance will therc be for the Indians in the future Vo geV additional
lands or a f air adjustment of ahl their rights, if Bill 13 is made law?I' I
simply read from the document. Mr. Scott bas said Bill 13 is merely
an enahhing Act, givîng the Government power Vo, deal with British
Columbia, and that the whole bargain is so advantageous Vo, the Indians,
that the Indian Department feels justified in backing it up. We are sorry
the Indian Department is of this opinion, for it places it out of sympathy
with us, and makes it appear to the Indians an instrument of oppression
and injustice.

The chief enabling the Indians see in the Bill is that of enabling the
Government to take their lands without their consent. There may be some-
thing advantageous to the Government in the Bill, but certainly not Vo
the Indians.

Mr. PAULL: The reason the Indians dlaim foreshores on reserves in tidal
waters is because the- foreshore is just as neccssary to the Indians as the
reservation is. Up to about the year 1920 whienever forcshores fronting on
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Indian reserves were required for publie purposes, the consent of the Indians was
always secured. The Vancouver Harbour Commissioners were given a quit-
dlaim deed in the year 1918, and the consent of the Superintendent General of
Indian Affairs was first sccured hefore that quit-dlaimi deed was granted to the
Vancouver Ilarbour Commissioners. We also claim ownership of foreshores, or
water lots, fronting on reserves in the Interior, on non-tidal waters.

Hon. Mr. MOLiEN-NAN: Just say that again, what is it yau dlaim on the in-
land waters?

Mr. PAULL: Foreshores and water lots fronting on Indian reserves in the
interior.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Riparian rights?
Mr. PA-ULL: No, beyond riparian rights. Absolute beneficial ownership of

the foreshores.
Honi. Mr. BARNARD: What is the foreshore in non-tidal waters?
Mr. PATJLL: On lakes and rivers.
Hon. Mr. STEV'E-NS: You mean between high and low waters?
Hon. Mr. McLENA-N: He means water lots, I take it.
Hon. Mr. BARNARD: Hie said it vwas not that. le said hie wants more than

riparian rights, and I want to know what they mean.
Mr. PAULL: Riparian rights mean that the Indian w'ould only have the

right of access.
Hon. Mr. BARNARD: What do you want?
Mr. PAULL: We want to have ail the rights beyond that.
Hon. Mr. BARNARD: Do you want the land under the water?
Mr. PAULL: NO. We want to be allowed, I suppose, to establish whatever

we want on the foreshores, of the reservc. If we did not have that right there
would be nothing to prevent anyone frorn establishing sorne industry or nuisance
fronting on the Indian Reserve.

Hon. Mr. BARNARD: I do not want to get into an argument with you, but if
the Indianq have the land down to the water's edge, where there is no risc and
fail of tidc, how can anyonc establish ahything in front of it?

Mr. PAULL: Perhaps sornehody is liable to corne in there and put something
there that the Indians abject to.

Hon. Mr. BARNARD: Thcy cannot do it without being trespassers on the
reserve.

Mr. PAULL: Pcrhaps I arn mistaken in giving an expression in that regard.
Hon. Mr. STEVENs: Presurnably what they want is the riparian rights and

the water lots, whatever thcy might be, in front of the reserves. There is no
such thing as foreshores on lakes; there might be, 1 suppose, between high and
low water, but really the terni does flot apply ta a lake or river. What they
want really is unimpaîred riparian rights, so that no0 ane can put an obstruction
on the water lots.

Mr. MCPHERSON: Up to the present you only have the fear of that bcing
done ta you?

Mr. PAULL: Fear of what?
Mr. MCPH-ERSON: 0f sorncbody intcrfering,
Mr. PAULL: No, we have expericnced it alrcady in North Vancouver.
Mr. MCPHERsoN: I arn talking of interior waters.
Mr. PAULL: No, we have flot experienccd anything in non-tidal waters.

The province says that the Indians only have riparian rights and we want to go
beyand that.
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Hon. Mr. BARNARD: I was trying to find out what you want in non-tidal
waters. You say that you want te go beyond riparian rights; what do you
want?

Mr. PAULL: Absolute beneficial interest in the water lots.
Hon. Mr. BARNARD: Lands under the water?
Mr. PAULL: In non-tidal waters, in manýy instances, by some action of the

provincial government, the stream is diverted and the resuit is that erosion is
caused by some action of the lo-cal authorities. Now, if we owned siome part of
the water adjoining the Indian reserve, when the water is dîverted and en-
croachment occurs on what is formerly the Indian reserve, we could stili
maintain benceficial ownersâip of that part of the reserve which is now covered
by water. I know of a case in Squamishi where the provincial government
diverted the course of a big river and wiped out a big parcel of our reserve.
We want water for irrigation purposes in the interior. The Commissioners of
1878 gave so rnany inches of water te the reserve, but by some Act of the
provincial government that was taken away from the Indians and the Indians
in the interior are nOW at the mercy of the looail authorities as to the amount
of water they can secure from the streams, many of which'run over their own
reserves.

Hon. Mr. STEWART: Just now we are in litigation with the mining com-
panies. The Indianq have signed away riglits, which I personally think they
should not have donc and do not propose te let them do, by which they have
been deprived of their water rights. We are standing by that, I may say.
That is what the Commission of 1912 stated-that they discovered that water
riglits were allotted to the Indians, but they spoke of it in the same way as
they spoke about the fisheries.

Mr. DITCHBVRN: When these reserves were allotted by the Reserve Com-
missioners, t.hey made certain water lots. They found, however,, under the
agreement between the Dominion government and the province that water was
not mentioned; that these Commissioners were merely instructed to set aside thec
land ns reserves under the agreement. Thcy found there was nothing in the Act
allowing them to set, aside water for the Tndians, consequently they made certain
allotments. An Indiancould not take up water in the olden days, and the Corn-
missioners did the best thcy could with the water allotments with the allotment
of land. It was taken for granted that they had some value, but under the British
Columbia Water Act these water allotments had no status whatever, and the
only way an Indian can get water is by way of license under the provision of
the British Columbia Water Act.

Dr. SCOTT: I think, Mr. Ditchburn should go on and explain what has been
done with reference to the water lots; lie should complete his statement to show
what the Department of British Columbia and the govcrnmcnt, working together,
have been able to do. These matters are practically settled now, There are a
few cases-

Hon. Mr. STEWART: Would it not lie better to let Mr. Paull get along with
bis statement now?

The WITNESS: The trouble is that the Indians are not satisfied with the
conditions as they prevail now. At the moment we arc governed by provincial
statute. Now, it is hardly possible for a representative of the Indians of British
Columbia to confine the statement-I arn troubled in my mind with what I shall
say in order to please thîs committce, and 1 want to be at liberty te say, as I
sc it-

Hon. Mr. STEWART: Just present your troubles, Mr. Paull.
Hon. Mr. McLENNAN: Tell us your troubles as thcy exist now; not as they

existed twelve or twcnt-y years ago. AdePal.



SPECIAL COMMITTE

The WITNESS: The trouble is that twelve or twenty years ago-these con-
ditions which exist to-day were brought about as the resuit of conditions then.
We want hunting rights and fishing rights recognized. I deait with the fishing
rights last Thursday.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q.When you say you want hunting rights recognized, state briefly what you

want.-A. We want to be allowed to hunt in ail unorganized districts.
Q. 0f course, you recognize, or you ought to recognize, and I hope the com-

mittee will recognize, that that is impossible. Supposing the Indians were given
carte blanche to hunt at any season in any way they liked, in any unorganîzed
territory, it would result in the game being more or less destroyed in a very short
time. We might as well come to grips on that now; it is hopeless.-A. I have
in mind the northern interior where the Indians absiolutely depend on the hunt-
ing and trapping for their existence; they should be allowed to hunt ail the year
round, because that is the only way they can exist.

Q. Well, it depends on the methods. I wouid not object to a prospector,
or an Indian getting food. That is recognized in our province already. I know
I spent six months in the mountains and lived off what we could shoot, but to
have unlimited rights to hunt as you like at ail times is another question.-A.
Xow, the Inclians in that part of the country had trap lines which were handed
down fromn generation to generation, an.d which were always recognized by the
Indians as being the property of particular Indians, but the trouble, is the seût-
lers go in there and take these trap lines, and the result is the Indian is pro-
secuted for coming in confliet with the white man who took his trap lines.

By the Chairman:
Q.Mr. PaulI, can you n* ot register the trap lines the same as the white

man?-A. I suppose we could.
Q. Would that not settie the whole difficulty?

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
QIs not the dlaim you are putting up now both in regard to the trap Unes

and the hunting thiat von dlaim on behaîf of the Indians the right to trap and
hunt in unorganizcd territory in utt-er disregard of any provincial regulation?-
A. I do not know that we could, Mr. Stevens. However, that might he reason-
able.

Q. Let us put it the other way. Are you satisfied to have the privilege of
liunting and trapping in this unorganized provincial territory, subject to the
regulations of the province'?-A. I don't knoxv what those regulations of the
province are, Mr. Stevens.

Q. Put it this way; subject to the same restrictions and regulations as are
imposed upon the white men in the saine territory?-A. I would reaýdily agree
to that for trapping for commercial purposes.

Mr. 0'MEARA: May I interrupt for a moment, hon, gentlemen?
lion. Mr. McLF,.N.-AN: I suggesrt we let Mr. Paull go on.
The WITNESS: We would consent to be governed hy the regulations for

commercial. purposes, but where it is necessary to kill game for our livelihood,
we should be alýlowed to do it.

By lion. Mr. Stevens:
Q.There is a very generous provision in British Columbia for men-white

men or Indians--killing for food; it has always been recognized.-A. Just a week
before I left two Indians were fined $25 for killing a deer for food.

Q.The chances are they did not require it very hadly.
[Andrew PauII.1
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By the Chairm an:
Q.Where wvas that?-A. On the Saanich River.

Hon. Mr. STEVENs: That is very near to civilization.
The WITNESS: Tbey had no money to get thieir meat frorn a butcher shop.

Two years ago Indians went to the garne warden and were tol.d they did not
need a permit as long, as they were Indians; that they wouid be ail right; and
they operated under that misunderstanding That news was spread around
among the Saanicli Indians-

Hon. Mr. STE.VENS: There is the danlger of the verv t1hing you are asking;
if thev had 'secured a permit thev nould have heen ail right.

The XITNESS: Thev were to!ld they did flot need a permit.
Mr. DITcLEBL RN: 1That is organîzed territory; anything south of the 53rd is

organized territory.
The WITNESS: These regu]ations are enacted by the provincial government,

and the Indians are not acquainted wvith these reaulations. It mnust be under-
stood thiat at lcast 90 per cent, of the Indians of British Columbia cannot read
nor write.

By Hon. Air. Stei.q!rt:
Q. iMr. Pauli, just so that we will he clear on tixis; rny understanding lias

been that the' unrestricted hunting for food-not for commercial purposes--was
largely confined to the northern territory.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Unorganized districts.

By lIon. Mr. Steuart.
Q. Hunting in the unorganized districts, and the dlaimi is that they should

not be restricted therc. That is right? Or do vou want tha.t ail over the whole
province.-A. For the whoie province. There is a provincial statute, to the
effect that no one can shoot within 500 yards of an-' dwelling; that operates in
organized districts.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: That is for the reasona hie protection of human life.
We cannot consider waiving a regulation of that kind.

Hon. Mr. STEWART: What I arn trying to get at, M1\r. Stevens, so as to he
clear on it-and if 1 arn wrongo I want to be corrected-but my understanding
was tbat it %vas confined to the northern territory, where it was unrestricted, but
bhat the Indians were willing to abiýde bv the gan' euain ntesuhr
part of the province. cgm euain ntesuhr

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Mr. Paull now complains of a case within 30 miles of
the city of Vancouver-in an organi zed district, xvhere there are scores and
liundreds of wvhite settlers-wýhere two Indians were arrested for shooting in
that district, and tlîis, lie complains, is an invasion of what hie says is an
Indian's inherent, riglit. I subinit that this cornmittee cannot for a moment
consider a privilege of that kind.

The WITNDss: The reason that is brought about is because the government
of Canada bias said they have settled everytbing, and I arn illustrating these
clifferent matters whicb have not been settled.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Very good, Mr. Pauli, but I want to make it clear that
as far as I arn concerned, we cannot for a moment, consider that as a reasonable
claim.

Hon. Mr. STEWART: The samne condition is prevailing rigbt across Canada
in the provinces which control their naturai resourees, and indeed, in the prairie
provinces. The price of fur lias gone up so materially in recent years that the
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white men are becoming very aggressive hunters. Formerly, the Indians were
practically unmolested, but now they are being crowdcd out. That is a inatter
upon which we are working in B3ritish Columbia, and in the rest of the provinces
of Cana-da.

Hon. Mr. ST nVENS: 1 think every effort should be made to help the Indians
in unorganized territory,; 1 agree te that, within reason, but not to the extent
suggested by Mr. Pauli.

Hon. Mr. McLENNAN: And to protect bis trap lines from improper inter-
ference from ýwhite men.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: That can be done by registration.
Hon. Mr. S'rEwART: I think when we corne to consider the matter, we can

throw considerable light on the whole thing.
Hon. Mr. STEvENS: Surely.

By Mr. McPherson;
Q. What you want is unrestricted hunting rights ail over British Columbia,

especially in the unorganized districts?-A. Yes.
Q. You have that right there now, but you also want it in the organized

districts?-A. Yes.

By Hon. Mr. McLennan:
Q. Can you tell us more about the fishing rights in tidal waters? What was

taken away from you-from your foreshore-from your rights of the foreshore?
-A. For fishing?

Q. For anytbing that interferes with the rights you believe you ouglit to
have.-A. The province of British Columbia does not recognize that the Indians
have any foreshore rights, and they refuse to allow that. The only foreshore
upon which *we could hope to corne to 8ome agreement, is the foreshore in
public harbours; that cornes under the jurisdiction of the Dominion. We hope
to corne to, some understanding with the Dominion on that, but it is almost
hopeless to expect any concessions in that respect from the province.

By Hon. Mr. Barnard:
Q.When a foreshore is sold in a publie barbour by the Dominion, do the

Indians get any of the purchase money?-A. In earlier days, the Indians were
getting ail the monev accruing from the sale of the foreshore-I arn speaking
of the Saanich Indians' foreshore-but tbe Quit Claim Deed issued by the
Dominion government in 1918 allows them only te receive 50 per cent of the
net rentai, whereas in former years we got 100 per cent frorn anything accruing
from the sale of our foreshore.

Q. Who gets the other 50 per cent? -A. The Vancouver Harbour Board.

Hon. Mr. STrVENS: The Saanich, of course, was a provincial matter.
The WITNEss: Is there any further question on that? Noîw, Section eight

of the McKenna-McBride agreement provides that new reserves be set aside
f rom existing Crown lands at this time. The Indians contend that there was
insufficient area of Crown land made available to, the Commission at that time;
consequently parcels of land, which the Indians asked. for in their representa-
tions te the Commission, could not be procured for thern. We object te the fact
that these cut-offs as recomniended by the Commission, are te be taken away
from us witbout ourconsent. The original thing under the MeKenna-Me.Bride
agreement was that they could only be sold with the consent of the Indians.
Now, since the law of 1920, these cut-offs can be taken away from us without
our consent.
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.By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q. Did you have an opportunity of appearing before the Commission when

it was sitting?-A. Yes.
Q. And did you have full opportunity of presenting your views?-A. rro

present our views as regards the matters they asked for.
Q. Did you present any views on this point?-A. This agreement was flot

before us.
Q. On this point, of reduced acreage of the reserves?-A. They discussed

that, but we did not want any of our existing reserves taken away, and in
addition to that, we asked for new reserves.

By Mr. M1cPherson:
Q. Did they give you any compensation for what they took?-A. Not yet.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: They are to get it when they are disposed of.
The WiTNESS: Now, I would like to ask the committee if it is within the

powers of this cornrittee to deal with a great error that the Commission made
in their report. iPerhaps Mr. Stevens wîll know of this. The Commission
reported that the Capilano Reserve was surrendered, whereas it was neyer
surrendered, but it was recorded that it was surrendered, and 1 would appeal to
this committee to take such action as will show the province that it was not
surrendered.

Hlon. Mr. STEVENS: I arn inclined to agree with the Indians that it was
neyer surrendcred, so I arn with you very much on that.

The WIrNESS.: Thank you very much, Mr. Stevens.
Hon. Mr. SrTVENS: 1 neyer did believe it was properly surrendered.
The WITNEss: Perhaps 1 may deal with what we rely on in support of

our dlaim of aboriginal titlc to a limited extent.

By Mr. Hay:
Q. That is the agreement you havc-thcse are major agreements?-A.

Thcse are some of them.
Mr. HAY: Let us deal with them.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Perhaps I could helin him for the moment.

By Hon. Mr. Steven.s:
Q. Would you agree that this memorandum by Kelly and Teit entitled

"Conditions as proposed as basis of settiement," as appears on pages 36, 37
and 38 of the report of the proceedings of this committee, contain in detail
your clairns?-A. Yes.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: If he wîll agree to that, we have the wholc thing in
our hands.

The WirNxss: I agree to that, but we made some further additions to that,
Mr. Stevens.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q. Let us have further additions, and then we will have the whole thing

complete.-A. Now, the additional demands we make are embodied in Appendix
H of the appendices submitted by Doctor Scott, on page 65.

Q. What part of that?-A. It starts on page 67-
Q. Entitled "Fishing Rights, Hunting, Timber, Funded Money, Pelagie

Sealing, Education, Medical Attendance and Hospitals?-A. Yes.
Q.With the addition of these, it represents your claims?-A. Yes.
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Hon. Mr. STEVENS: That wiIl give us the whole thing.
Hon. Mr. MURPHY: Yes, that abbreviates matters considerably.

B11 the (ihairmzan:
Q. Is there anything more you wish to say?-A. I would like to say how

we support our dlaim for aborig.inal title. In the first place we dlaim we have
a beneficial intcrest in the soil, beoause of the fact that we are the aborigines
of the country. That bas neyer been disputed, and il. is recognized, and we
have neyer ceded titie in this country. Xow, in support of that, we base our
dlaimn on the opinion expressed by the Minister of Justice in 1875. We are
flot in agreement with the mode of dea]ing with the Indians which was related
by Dr. Scott in his memorandum. That is, that the ways and means of how
,hese Indians would be compensated for the extinguishment of their titie was
decided by an Order in Council, or that it was ernbodied in the Commission
of Commissioners to visit the Indians. We are not in agreement with that
system. The terms sbould be arrived at by negotiation. We respectfully submit
that that bas been the policy of the Imperial Government in connection with
British Columbia, and in support of that contention may I be permnitted to
read a short despatchi by Lord Carnarvon. On the 11th of April, 1859, Lord
Carnarvon wrote (3overnor Douglas:-

I am giad to, perceive that you 'have -directed the attention of the
House to that interesting and important subjeet, the relation of Her
Majesty's Government and of the Colonies to the Indian race. Pro')fs
arc, unhappily, stili too frequent of the neglect which Indians experience
when the white men obtain possession of their country. Their dlaims
to consideration are forgotten at the moment when equity most demands
that the hand of the protector sbould be extended to help them. In the
case of the Inýdians of Vancouver Island and British Columbi.-, Her
Majesty's Government earnestly wishes that when the advancing rcquire-
ments of colonization bear upon lands occupied by memibers of that
race, measures of liberality should be adopted for compensation to, them
for the territory which they have been taught to regard as their own.

Now I want to quote an important paragraph, fromn the opinion
of the Minister of Justice in 1875 in that connection. It appears at page
40 of thc proceedings of Wednesday, March 3Oth.

The undersigned helieves that he is correct in stating, that w'ith cne
slight exception as to land in Vancouver Island, surrendered to the Hudson
Bay Company, which makes the absence of others the more remarkable,
no surrender of lands in that province bas ever been obtained from
the Indian tribes inhabiting it, and that any reservations which have
heen made, have been arbyitrary on the part of the government, and
w'ithout the assent of the Indians themselves, and though the policy
of obtaining surrenders at this lapse of time, and under the altered
circumnstances of the Province, rnay be questionable, yet the under-
signed feels it bis duty to assert such legal or equitable dlaim as may be
found to exist on the part of the Indians.

Now, this is the important part:-

There is not a shadow of doubt, that from the earliest times, IEngland
bas always felt it iniperative to meet the Indians in council, and to
obtain surrenders of tracts of Canada, as from time to time such were
requîred for the purposes of settiement.

What I want to emphasize in that paragrapb is that England bas always
been prepared to meet the Indians in Council. That would appear not to
be in aceordance Wfith what Dr. Scott mentioned as being the systcm in Canada.
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By Hon. Mr'. MeLennan:
Q. Mr. Pauli , may 1 ask you were not those meetings with the Indians

that were held by Governor Douglas, and that you referred us to the other day,
instances of meeting tlie Indians in Council, in British Columbia?-A. It is pos-
sible that that is one instance. But I do flot think it would meet the situation
if the Government of the day was, by Order in Council, without consulting the
Indians, just te set out what should. be their conditions of settiement. We
respectfully submiit that we should be gîvea the privilege of submitting our views
upon any particular case.

By Hon. Mr'. Steven.s:
Q. Let me ask you one or two questions on this, Mr. Pauli. You have made

very extensive researches?-A. Yes.
Q. As you gave evidence to us the other day?-A. Yes.
Q. And, 1 may say very valuable researches. Is it not true, that up until

recently, the Indians have always discussed with the Dominion and Provincial
authorities their rights on the basis of the adequacy or otherwise of the area of
their reserves; that is, that the reserve was too small or too large, as the case
may be?-A. Yes.

Q. That lia-, becu thetbasis until Mr. O'Meara advanced before Parliament
and other bodies the dlaimi of the aboriginal titie to the whole of Britishi
Columbia?-A. No, 1 think the Indians took steps before that.

Q. Will you point out whien, picase?-A. In 1906, Chief Joc Capilano and
two other chiefs waited on I-is late Ma.jesty, King Edward VII.

Q. Yes, I remember that?-A. And lie was told by some authority in Eng-
land, that hce should go back to Canada, and take this matter up with the Cana-
dian Goveranent, and if you cannot get satisfaction thcre, corne back to us,
and we will take it Up.

Q. Have you any record of that? Anything you can put in as evidence of
that?-A. Only thîs, that Chief Joe Capalino told me that himsclf.

Q. I remernhber the occasion, and I knew Chief Capalino verv well, but you
could hardly caîl that evidence upon whichi to base a dlaim for aboriginal title,
could you?-A. No, no. The reason 1 say that I got that from Chief Joe
Capalino is, because I was groomed in my young days to be his successor, and hie
would speak to me more confidentialIly and earnestly than hie would to anybody
else.

Q. But prior to that, the adjustments were always made on the basis of
their reserved areas?-A. Well, to be plain; the Indians for some reason or other,
the older people, had some feeling and they had absolute faith in the Queen.
They said, " The Queen will do this for us, you are not treating us right. And the
Queen said it would be this way or that way."

By Mr. Hoy:
Q. Do we gather from your rernarks that no recommendation, no matter on

what generous lines it might be, from this Committee, and if concurred in by
both Hues, would not meet with your approval unless ycu were consulted?-
A. If the conditions were arbitrary te what we have submitted, then, we would
not be in a position to agree with them. We have always said we are willing to
come to some amicable understanding.

By Mr. McPher,ýon:
Q. Providing all the termis you suggest are met?-A. That is a pretty sweep-

îng statement te make. I think we have said in our petition that we would not
be unreasonable.

Mr. HAY: I was absent the other day, Mr. Cliairman. may I ask if all the
trîbes are agreed among themselves?
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The CHAImmAN: I do not think so, from what haýs been sad.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: No, they are not.

By Mr. McPhersom:
Q.When 1 made that remark, Mr. Pauli, I did not.-mean to be arbitrary;

but 1 gathered this, that unless ail the terms are as outlined to-day in the printed
record, you ahre flot in a position to agree to them?-A. 1 think we may make
some modifications if we are shown that it cannot be got or is not a reasonable
dlaim.

Q. Take that hunting dlaim, for instance. Don't you realize personally,
that it is impossible to throw the organized territory open to indiscriminate
hunting as a matter of safety only?-A. We recognize that. We would not ask
to hunt in the city of Vancouver, or close to it.

By Hon. Mr. Barnard:,
Q. But the only reason would be because there is inothing to shoot?-A.

That would be a reason.

Ry Hon. Mr. McLennan:
Q.Another f act I gather, Mr. Pauli, is that. eXen if you agreed with this

Committee, it would flot follow that &Il the Tribes in British Columbia would
be bound by w.hat you agreed to?-A. Mr. Kelly has made several statements
here in that connection, and ixn some documents that we have presented to the
Government, it is said that we would be willing to accept something reasonable,
and perhaps it would be well for Mr. Kelly to deal with that himself, since he
has made that statement to the Premier, and to the Hon. Charles Stewart in the
past.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q. Have you finished your statement Mr. Paull?-A. I bave almost

finished, sir. I wish in support of our dlaim for aboriginal title to read from the
statement of the Minister of Justice at page 43. It is part of the same statement
that I have previously quoted from,-

ýConsidering then, these several features of the case, that no surrender
or cession of their territorial rights, whether the same be of a legal or
equitable nature, has been ever executed by the Indian tribes of the
Province-that they allege that the reservations of land made by the
Government for their use, have 'been airbitrarily so made, and are totally
inadequate to their support and requirements, and without their assent-
that they are not averse to hostilities in order to enforce rights which it
is impossible to deny them, and that the Act under consideration, not
only ignores those rights, but expressly prohibits the Indians from enjoy-
ing the rights of recording or pre-empting lands, except by consent of the
Lieutenant-Governor ;-the unýdersigned feels that he cannot do otherwise
than advise that the Act in question is objectionrable, as tendine to an
assumption which completely ignores, as applicable to the Indians of
British ýColumbia, the honour and good faith with which the Crown bas,
in all other cases, since its sovereignity of the territories in North America,
dealt with their various Indian tribes.

The undersigned would also refer to the British North America Act,
1867, section 109, applicable to British ýColumbia, which enacts in effect
that ahl lands belonging to the province shaîl belong to the province, sub-
j ect to any trust existing in respect thereof, and to, any interest, other
that that of the province, in the same.

iNow, I further contend that that opinion given in 1875 hms been supported
by a decision of the Privy Councîl in the case of the Attorney General for the

[Aadrmw Paull.]
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Dominion of Canada, appellant, vs. Attorney General for Ontario, respondent,
and the Attorney General for Quebec Appellant, vs Attorney General for Ontario,
Respondent. This is an appeal from the Supreme Court of Canada, reported in
Law Reports appeal cases 1897, at page 199. In this case sections 109, 111, and
112 of the British North America Act were deait with, but for the purpose of my
case, I refer only to Section 109 as their lordsliips dca] with it. I arn now reading
an extract f rom the j udginent of their lordships, delivered by Lord Watson, at
page 210, last paragraph. (Reading):

The expressions subject to any trusts existing ini respect thereof? and
subject te any interest other than that of the province? appear to their
lordships te be intended to refer to different classes of right, their lord-
ships are not prepared te hold thiat the word " trust " was meant by the
legisiature to be strictly limited te such proper trusts as a court of equity
would undertake to administer; but, in their opinion, it must at least have
been intended to signify the existence of a contractual or legal duty, in-
cumbent upon the holder of the beneficial estate or its proceeds, te make
payment out of one or other of these, if the debt due to the ereditor to
whom that duty ought to be fulfilled.

On the other hand, "an interest other than that of the province in the
same " appears to thein to denote some right or interest in a third party,
independent of and capable of being vindicated in competition with the
beneficial interest of the old province.

We contend, Mr. Chairman, and hion. members of the Committee, that that
decision supports the decision of the Minister of Justice, in 1875.

Now, we also know that the Crown lias deait with the natives of thc country
in a fair way by recognizing the native titie, such asin Canada east of the
Rockies. That hias been recognized in New Zealand also, and the native titie is
recognizýed in Southern Nigeria.

These are just a few of the principal reasons with which we can support our
elaim.

By the Chairman:
Q. Is that all you wish to say, Mr. Paull?-A. Yes, Mr. Chairman. That

concludes my presentation of my case.

The CHAIRMAN: If it is the pleasure of the Committee we might hear Mr.
Maclntyre now and get through with him. It is as the Committee wishes. Mr.
Maclntyre, will you state te the Committee what you have to say?

Mr. MACINTYPX: Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee, as ýcounsel
for the interior Tribes only, 1 have a few remarks te make. As I have explained
te the Chairman on a previous occasion, when the Indian chiefs appear before a
counicil or authority, and bring a counsed with them, the most that they expeet
of their counsel is te sit and look wise, and advise them when they request him to
do go. They neyer expect him Wu orate at all; they de that for themselves. So
my instructions are just to niake a few remarks, su as to place the chiefs whom
I represent before you.

But, in the first place, Mr. ýChairman, I shouki ecear u.p the question of who
represents the Tribes of the interior. I will only require one or two minutes te do
that. Mr. Paull-I think his name is,--has assumed that hie represents certain!Iy
some of the Okanagan tribes. Now, there is nothimg te be gained by siniply
contradicting that, but I may say that having lived for a quarter of a century
adj acent to and in confidential couneil with these Tribes- and I may mention
two or three of the prominent counsel, the late Mr. Dennis Murphy, and the
present Mr. Stewart Murphy, and Mr. James Heuderson, and other counsel who,
like myself haýd represented the Indians of the interior right through te Prince
George, I have assumed that we have represented them and I eau say that during
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ail those years, 1 have neyer in my life-time seen Mr. Panli or the Reverend
Mr. Kelly. They may have been in Kamloops, but that is aqI I know about it.
I have here a list of the Indian chiefs whom I have represented, over their own
signatures by the three chiefs andl an additional chief who came with them this
time. I have promised to give this to the secretary. If the Committee wishes,
I can rapidly go over it. There are 29 chiefs altogether.

Hon. Mr. STEvENS: Just hand in the list. The names mean nothing.
Mr. MACINTYRE: I have already handed it in.
Hon. Mr. STEvENS: 29 of them, you say?
Mr. MACINTYRE: Yes, sir, 29.
Hon. Mr. McLENNAN: Could you tell about how many people are repre-

sented by those 29?
Mr. MACINrrYRE: Or rather, I suppose you mean bands and reserves.
Hon. Mr. MOLENxNAN: Yes.
Mr. MACINTYRE: That is what I mean. The 29 represent, as far as I can

make out, 29 reserves. But what I suppose the hon. Senator meant was, that
t.hey are Separate reserves, and not two chiefs in one locality. Now, this list
represents reserves reaching from Port George away at the north, righit down to
the American beundary, and practically the whole of the interior.

Mr. HAY: How many people?
Mr. MACINTYRE: I cannot give you the number.
Mr. HAY: One thousand?
Mr. MACINTYRE: I have not the faintest idea.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: That includes ail the Indiins from Fort George, down

the Thompson and the Lillooet?
Mr. MACINTYRE: Yes.
Hon. Mr. BARNARD: East to the coast range?
Mr. MACINTyIRE: That is about it.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: And the Kamloops and Okanagans?
Mr. MACINTYRE: Most assuredly, the Okanagans.
The CHAIRMAN: There is a letter that has been placed in my harnds which

I want to read to the Committee. (Reading):

OLIVER, B.C., Mar. 16, 1927.
DTJNCAN C. SCOTT,

Department of Indian Affairs,
Ottawa, Ont.

DEAR SIR: I have heard John Chillihitza has gone to Ottawa but I
do not know the object of his going.

I wish to inform you that lie is not representing the Indian Tribes
from the interior of British Columbia, but he might be a representative
from the.Shuswap trihe.

Last May I asked him what was his purpose of going to Ottawa but
wouldn't give me an answer or explain his reason for going.

Yours truly,

NARCISSE BATISE,

('ommittee of Interior Tribes, Oliver, B.C.
[A. D. Maelntyre.1
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Mr. MACINTYRE: Dr. Scott shewed me that letter and 1 was aware of such
a letter being in existence. 1 told Dr. Scott, and lie ought to have known himself

thnt Chief Narcisse Batise, is an obscure chief down there and represents nobody

but himself. The existence of bis protests against Jolinnie Chillihitza has been
known for some four or five years. 1 would like to ask if lie is the Chief that
was put on te this Allied Committee as representing the Indian Trihes; may I

ask if that is the case? Dr. Scott would bc able to tell me.

Mr. KELLY: 1 think, as Chairman cf the Executive Committee cf the Allied

Trihes, that it is my duty to answer sucli a question. The purpose of the

formation of the Executive Commit-tee of the Aliied Tribes was to bring before

the Government sucli grievances as have been brouglit before this Committee.
On that Executive Committee were represented ail the Indian Trihes- cf British
Columbia, from every part cf the interior cf British Columbia, and they bave
neyer repudiated their membership on týhat Executive Committee to this day,
except hy a letter which was sent eut by Chief John Chillihitza, net over the
signatures cf these chiefs, but simply with their names written down by the

interpreter for Chief Johnnie Chillihitza. That is what has been donc. They
Pave neyer repudiated; those tribes whe became members cf the Allied Inctian
Tribes have neyer repudiated their membership.

Mr. HAY: Are they now represented?
Mr. KELLY: They have neyer repudiated.
Mr. HAY: Have yen had any indication now that they are repudiated?

Mr. KELLY: Nothing at ail, except what has heen brought hefore us~ hy this

gentleman. I take it that this Committee, which is the iligli Court cf Parlia-
ment, bas bccn constituted te consider the petition cf the Allied Tribes cf British

Columbia, and if these Trihes which Mr. Macintyre represents are net members
cf the Allied Trihes cf British Columbia, then I centend they have ne business
te be here.

Mr. MACINTYRE: 1 would like te ask Mr. Kelly how many tribes cf the
interior lie represents.

Mr. KELLY: Wc have filed a list with the Secretary.

Mr. MACINTYRE: D)id ycu have the ,ignat.ureýs of any cf thern?
Mr. KELLY: Yes. At the formation cf cur Executive Commnittee they were

present.
Mr. MACINTYEE: What year was that?

Mr. KELLY. In the year 1916. We have the signatures cf Chief Johnnie

Chillihitza and Chief Basil David, whe are the leading Chiefs cf the interior.

Mr. MACINTYRE: That was in 1916?
Mr. KELLY: Exactly.
Mr. MAC.INTYRE: Did ycu have any connection with them, se te speak, since

1916?
Mr. KELLY: Yes.
Mr. MACINTYRE: Where and when?
Mr. KELLY: In North Vaneouver, when their alliance was made. There

were certain tribes who were net in the alliance and they came into the alliance,
and at that meeting these two chief s were present who are'here this merning.

Mr. MACINTYRE: What year wvas that?
Mr. KELLY: I think it was in January, 1922.
Mr. MACINTYRE: 1 wîhl just recall it te you, se as te make it clear; there

was a meeting teck place in Vancouver three or four years ago at which the Hon.

Minister, Dr. Scott and Mr. Ditchhurn were present. iNow, was there net so-me

sort cf a Cemrnittee struck at that tÉme on whichi Mr. Alex. Leenarcl was put?
[A. D. Maclntyre.]
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Mr. KELLY: There was no cornmittee struck.
Mr. MACINTYRE: When was Alex. Leonard put on?
Mr. KELLY: June, 1919.
Mr. MACINTYRE: Is he a Chief?
Mr. KELLY: I arn not prepared to say; hie was a representative of lis people.
Mr. MACINTYRE: I will differ with you there, but we will flot argue on that

point. What about Narcisse Batise?
Mr. KELLY: He is a son of Chief George Batise.
Mr. MACINTYRE: Is he on the Committee?
Mr. KELLY: Yes.
Mr. MACINTYRE: That is two. Were there any others representing the

Tribes of the interior?
Mr KELLY: Chief Thomas Adolphe.
Mr. MACI-NTYRE: Is hie actually a chief?
Mr. KELLY: Actually a chief.
Mr. MACINTYRE: These three, you say, represent the Tribes from the

interior?
Mr. KELLY: No, Chief Stephen Retachet is also another member.
Mr. MACINTYRE: Where does hie live?
Mr. KELLY: He is also from the Lillooet district.
Mr. MACINTYRE: M-Nr. Mýinister, I propose making you acquaînted with what

actually took place at this meeting, because you were there. A circular was sent
out, as I reminded Mr. Ditchburn ýonly last evening, calling a meeting down
there. Chief Johnnie Chillihitza was very much worried, as Mr. Kelly properly
stated. and the other man

Mr. KELLY: Mr. Chairman, I contend that if Mr. MacIntyre is here on
any kind of business from that of our petition, hie bas no right to take Up the
time of this Committee w!hich was appointed for one specific purpose, to con-
sider the petition of the Allied Tribes of British Columvbia.

Mr. MACIINTYnE: Mr. Kelly is explaining, to you Why this Committee was
appointed and whiat its duties were.

Mir. HAY: Is tiiere anv difference between these inland Trirbes and tbe
coastal Tribes?

Mr. KELLY: 1 woulýd like to say this an*d expiain that there is no difference.
Mr. IIAY: I do not think we are concerned as to local differences between

these Tribes.
Mr. KELrY: I would like to say that there bas been agitation by several

factions from the interior-
Mr. MACINTYRE: This is altogether out of order and I objeet. I have not

interrupted any other speakers nor attempted to butt in.
The CHAIRMNAN: I think you had better let Mr. MacIntyre finish what hie

bas to say.
Mr. MACINTYRE: On the way down to that meeting-, in Vancouver 1 met

Chief Johnnie Chillihitza, hie had hurried away from important engagements in
his harvest fields, so to speak. I met him at Spence's Bridge and on finding out
that Mr. MacIntyre was on his way down there on Mr. Maclntyre's own
business, hie asked me to caîl on the Minieter, Mr. Stewart, and explain that
the Indian Tribes of the interior wished to be represented only by their own
men.

Hon. Mr. MuRPHY: This is in 1922?
[A. D. MacIntyre.]
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Mr. MACINTYRE: I think it was 1923. 1 could not -ive you the date exactly,

but it was a very important meeting. The Minister, or Dr. Scott, or Mr. Ditch-
humn can give you the exact date. Mr. Maclntyre went doxvn there and met
Alýex. Leonard.

Hon. Mr. STEvrNS: Is tihat yourself?
Mr. MACINTYRE: Yes.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Then say "F'.
Mr. MACINTYRF: 1 met Mr. Alex. Leonard down there. He is one of the

most efficient inýtempreters in the country. He has never got above the grade of

Captain, and consequently the Indian Chiefs would no more think of putting
him on as their representative on a Committee than the Minister would of

putting bis stenographer, no matter how efficient the stenographer might be.

Hon. Mr. Mt'npHxq: Iýs this man an indian?

Mr. MACINTYRP: He is a half-breed, but he manks as an Indian, because
he lives on the reserve. Hie hms obtained the rank of Captain, but has neyer
got to be a sub-chief, or anything like that. He was sent down on that occasion
with merely a watching brief to find out and report exactly what occurred;
that was bis sole purpose. 1 met him on the streeit and asked where the meeting

was to take place. I took the trouble to, go around to this meeting and sent a

note in to Dr. Scott, whom 1 had met repeatedly before and with whom. 1 was

on vemy friendly temms, acquainting hlm with the fact that Chief Johnnie

Chillihitza found it impossible to come down and was worried at to, what had
taken place atnd had asked Mr. Maclntyre to see the Minister and to lay before

him three medals which he is very pr.oud Vo weam. These inedals were presented
to him by different individuals;, one by Quecn Victoria, and one ýby His Holiness,
the Pope. Mr. Macintyre sent in notes twice to Dr. Scott asking for an inter-

view with the Minister, but found it impossible Vo get, and accordingly had

Vo leave the meeting. 1 think it was that same evening that Mr. Maclntyre
took the trouble Vo find eut-

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Why don't you say "I?"

Hon. Mr. MuRPHY: What bas all this got to do with the business of the
Committee, who presented inedals or who wears them.?

Mr. M.wINTY nE: 1 want Vo put the Chief, who is Vo present bis grievances

Vo y.Gu, in the proper position and Vo show why he did not present these griev-
ances before.

Hon. Mr. M-URPH-Y: Who is this Chief?

Mr. MACINTYRE: Chief ,Johnnie Chillihitza.
Hon. Mr. MuRPH-Y: Is he here?
Mr. MACINTYIm: Yes.
Hon. Mr. MURPHY: Could we not hear him?

The CHIAIRMAN: 1 think the Committee understands the situation.

Mr. MAcINTYRE: The majomity of the matters brought before you by the

coast Indians do not concern the Interior Indians at all. They were cameful Vo

draw up a list. The first one is in regard Vo, the foreshomes. So f ar as the

interior Indians are concerned,' we are not bothered about that. No. 2; further

land grants by the B.C. Government. We do noV understand what that means.

No. 3; Unrestricted rights te take fish for food purposes. They dlaim that.

Hon. Mr. MLuRPHiY: Who dlaim that?

Mr. MACINTYRE: The interior Indians claim that. No. 4; full rights to

fish for commercial purposes off the foreshores of Indian reserves. We are not
concerned with that. No. 5; rights for commercial fishing without license fee.

We are not concerned with that. No. 6; right to secure license for purse and
[A. D. Maclntyre1
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seine fishing at haif usual fee. We are not concerned with that. No. 7; right
to eut timber outside of reserves for fuel and for the manufacture of canees.
They are allowed to do that, so really they do neot find it necessary to trouble
the Committee about it. No. 8; amendment of the Pelagic Sealing Treaty. We
are not concerned with that. No. 9; Ample water for irrigation purposes. What
they require is the water pertinent te the land, especially in the dry beit. This
is the mest serious one. There was a concrete case which was called to the
Minister's attention a week or twe ago. This was close to the Kamleops reserve,
through which the Canadian National runs. This is a very old reserve, and for
hundreds of years the Skidam Creek has been pertinent to that. Nearby is the
valuable ranch, known as The Harbour Ranch, ewned by the old Hunter peeple.
Within the last two or three years, the water rights of the Indians have been
ab:solutely taken away by the local Provincial Water Board, upon the ground
that the right was granted to the Harbour Ranch in priority to the Indians.
It startled everybody, but there is the pesition. That is ail I have to say on
that.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Did they ever use that for irrigation purpeses?
Mr. MACINTYRE: Right along.
Mr. DITCHBURN: That was a decision of the Court of Appeal of British

Columbia.
Mr. MACINTYRE: Was that case appealed froni?
Mr. DITCHBURN: The Court of Appeal decided that case. The Water

Board gave the Indians priority.
Mr. MACINTYRE: 1 think you are mistaken.
The CHAIRMAN: That is right.
Mr. DITCrniunN: They gave priority over the ranch and the Ranch Com-

pany appealed against it.
Mr. MACINTYRE: Over the Harbour Ranch?
Mr. DITCHBTRN: Ycs.
Mr. MACINTYRE: And then it went to the Court of Appeal?
Mr. DITCHBT-RN: Yes.
Mr. MACINTYRE: It was on the evidence of James Todd that they lost the

right, but it must have been the way it was brought up before the Board that
caused the Board to gîve that decision. But at any rate, Mr. Ditchburn will
admit that the Indianýs of the Kamnloops reýserve have lost that right?

Mr. DITCHBIJRN: That is righit.
Mr. MACINTYRE: It was simply a rank outrage. We are interested in

No. 9. No. 10; Unrestricted righit te liunting and trapping and hunting areas
to be reserved where necessary. Tbey dlaim that aise. No. il; Extension of
the present schoeol facilities. They are completely satisfied. No. 12; Free
medical and hospitai attention. They get a fair amount of that, se that does
not concern them. No. 13; Sufficient grazing areas. This is a very important
matter in the upper interior and the dry belt; thev are flot getting a square deal
there. No. 14; Mother's and Widow's pension. 'Thev are not concerned with
that. No. 15; Cash compensation. They de not quite understand what the
other Commiittee is driving at. No. 16; Reimbursement of about $100,000 spent.
They do not quite understand that. I have narned those that these Indians are
specially concerned with.

There is one question that I can explain more easily than the Indians; that is,
as to tenure in the land.

Hon. Mr. MURPHYi: You mean aboriginal title?
Mr. MACINTYRE: I am net going into that at ail. They must have some,

sort of tenure, that is the only terni 1 can apply to it; they must have some sort
[A. Di. MarThtyre.]
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of holding so that they cannot be dispos'sessed of it because they reclaim Voo

mucli of the land. That particular outrage was perpetrated on this very Chief

himself, and iV stili exists. He, with bis two brothers, 50 years ago-my

authority for this is the well known priest, Rev. Father Lejeune-reclaimed large

acreages between the Douglas Cattle Company on the one side, and the Triangle

Company on the other. lie suddenly found out that the Department proposed

calling upon him to show whether he had sufficient cattle to pasture on that, and

if he had not they would bring it up withi the Minister. 1 leave that just as it is,
because it could not be set.tled by thc Comnrittee.

The CHAIR-JAN: That is the reserve, Mr. Macintyre?

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Outside the reserve.

Mr. MACINTYRE: That is part of the reserve.

H-on. Mr. STEVENS: Is it in the reserve?

Mr. MACINrYRE: Yes, it is in the reserve.

The CHAIRMAN: What you are referring to is that they want some individu2A

titie to the land?
Mr. MACINITX'E: Yes, individual titie to the land for their lifetime, after

they have reclaimed it. You can caîl it "Squatters Righits " or anything else

you want to, but they want to be certain that if they fence in the land and build

the ditches on the promise of the agent that it shall be looked upon as theirs,
and their children's, they shall have that right. I do not know that I have aay
more to say.

The CHAIRMAN: What Indians have you here whom you want to be heard?

Mr. MACINTYRE: 1 think only Chief Johinny Chillihitza, about the upper

interior. That is the usual way they do; they insist upon three or four attending,
but they fix upon one to preseat their case.

Hon. Mr. MURPHY: As their spokesman?

Mr. MACINTYRE: Yes.

Tlie CHIAIRMAN: I think the cornmittee will have no objection Vo that.

Mr. MACINTYRE: Oh, yes; there is one hing-about, the deer. Mr. Stevens

will pardon me for mentioning that. In an organized district an actual instance

took place three weeks ago. The Indians have a grievance there and it should be

corrýected. My flrm defended two Indians for killing two deer out of season.

The hardships were very great in each case. Each Indian came before the

magistrate and announced he had killcd the deer. ln one case the Indian had -a

mother-in-law, another relative practically stone blind, and two others almost

helpless; in the other case Vhe Indian had a f ather and one or two others, and

the question was asked of the provincial police officer in the presence of the

magistrate if these farts were correct, and the provincial policeman corrobor-

ated those f acts; so it was a clear case of killing for food, but in spitc of that,
a heavy fine was inflicted by the magistrate, who said 'hie saw no way out of it.

That is ail I have to say.

CHIEF JOHNNY CHILMHITzA called and sworn.

(The evidence of this witness war, given in the Okananan language, and

was translated into English and vice versa by Mrs. Williams, sworn interpreter.)

The CHAIRMAN: Does any member of the committee wish to ask this witness
any questions?

The WITNESS: 1 arn very well pleased to meet ahl the comrnittee here. 1

dîd not corne here Vo Ottawa to say what is noV true; I came Vo speak about

what is true. You see how old 1 arn, and stili I try to speak about rny country.
[A. D. Maclntyre.]
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By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q. How old are you?-A. I arn about 80-nearly 80. My forefathers andmy own father and rny other people were ail old men,' and when they discussabout that country I know every one of thern, because I have been listening tathern and know liow they speak about the country.

By Mr. Hay:
Q. What is your grievance? What remedies have you to, suggest that wouldrnake it more comfortable for your tribe?-A. 1 know what I arn to say about it.I arn going ta refer to it. My forefathers and rny own father were some of thelcading chiefs of Britisli Codlumbia and they nover relinquished their tiLles, butnow they are dead, and 1 arn their successor, and I stili have the tiLle; I didnot give them to anybody, and now I corne over here in Ottawa so that thegovernxnent in Ottawa will give me power in rny titloe and rny riglits.
The Indi ans do flot want to be enfranchised; they want to, be, as they are.Ail the Indians want is to ho just Indians, and not to be taken as white people,and made to live like the white people; they want to be the way their fore-fathers used to, be, just plain Indians. That ils what rny people want. They donot.want to be enfranchised. Long ago the Indians had Indian laws, but sinc0the white people came, the Indian Iaws are cast aside by the white people, andthey impose their white man's law on the Indians. 1 arn going to refer to thetirne when Sproat came as a messenger from the Queen, and lie said "The Queenbas heard of you people here, and sent me over to have a conference with youIndians." They asked him to tell the Indians what the Queen intended ta dofor thc Indians, and Sproat said "The Queen has learned of your country, andit is a big country, and the Queen, wants Vo keep your reerves, and put thern infour posts," and Sproat said, "Now , if you Indians believe in the Queen, and shewîll say tbis-I will tell you what she intended to do," so they asked him to tellthern what the Queen wus saying, and he said "If you believe in the Queen, andtake lier as your sovereign, she will tàke care of you always; she and hersuc.cessors wîll look after the Indians; if in any way you. have trouble in yourcountry, you willl speak Vo the Queen and she will send word over and have thetrouble fixed up for you Indians". That is what the messenger Sproat said.The Indians did flot seern Vo agree to have their lands in four posts, andthea Sproat told the Indians that if Lhey consented ta have, their reservesposted,-that is, made out the reserves-there is another promise that theQueen made that she would send another messenger--even if iL was flot Sproatit would be some-body else-to corne and have another conference, with theIndians about their country, and lie said, "When the messenger cornes again youwill speak about your country; it is a big counîtry, and all what is in iL, and youIndians and the Qucen will make an agreernent". So the Indians were toIdby Sproat that the Queen would not touch their Indian rights and their rightswould include their riglit to keep their native titles. Sproat told a lot of thingsto thc Indians of what the Queen said, but I will not speak about that, as itwill take up too mucli fime, but the Indians have kept in mind what Sproatto'ld them concerniing the white men.

I want to speak to you about grazing. Long ago the Indians alreadystarted to have cattie, liorses, and everything, and tliey liad the -use of the rangeand the Indians succeeded in getting large stock for tliemselves, and at thattirne they liad big use of the range; iL was not under control then, aild theyliad a lot of stock, and iL increased because there was range for the Indians atthat time-open range. iNow the white people seIl iL between Lhernselves, andthey are ail taken up, and the Indians have no more land, and finally the Indians'cattie diminished, because tliey were short of land. Tliere is one white man-his name is Mr. Ward of Douglas Lake-who took ail the land and the
[Chief Johnny Chillihitza.J
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Indians have not any Pasture, and their horses, of course, are diminished

because they had not sufficient land. So, for that reason, the Indians came

over and decided to corne here and have a conference with the government about

their country and their lands, se that they will get enough range for their

stock. That is what they want; they want grazing land for their horses and

cattie. 1 arn not the only one who bas not had sufficient land in rny country;

there are 28 reserves there just. the sarne; they have not enough land. At the

time Sproat came and had the reserves surveyed out for the Indians he said,
"This stream that runs tlîrough the reserve is for your use; after a while you

rnaybe will get to know how to cultivate your land, and that will be for your

water-for irrigation. Now, I arn going to record this water for you Indians

with the Queen." Now, the water is taken away from the Indians by the

white people. It is not only at Kamnloops, but ail over the reserves, that their

waters are taken away, but Kamloops is the worst that is badly treated by the

white people about the irrigation by the waters. Long ago, when they had the

use of the waters, the Indians had a lot of grain and petatoes which they

planted, and they sowed their wheat, and were just lîke cattie when the cows

are f ed. iNow the Indians are poor because their water is taken away from

them, and the water is taken from the Indians in Kamloops by the harbour

account, and their land is dried up, and they have no water to irrigate it. Now,
the Indians want to have their water given back te thern. Right in rny own

country there is a big lake that is up in the mountains, and from that lake the

stream runs out, and from that strearu the Indians used to get their water,
and the source of the lake is taken by the white man on the other side-the

feeder of the water is taken by the white people. The other part of the feeder

is geing to be taken by Mr. Warwick, and then there will be no more water for

the Indians, and the lake will be dried up. That stream that goes out of the

lake is used by the Indians for their irrigation. There are 16 dîtches that have
been made from that stream.

Ever since. the Indians carne into their lands they have neyer known
anything for their food only the deer and the fowls- There were plenty of deer

and plenty of fowls. The Indians killed both deer and fowls, but stLll there

was always plenty of game. Now, the white people have made laws concern-
ing the deer and they have told the Indians not to kill any more deer. They

say ta the Indians: " It is you Indians, that exterminate the deer, and the

fowl by killîng them off in such numbers; now, we will net allow you to kill any
more deer; if aaiy of you Indians is found out killing the fowl. or the deer,
you will be sent to prison." The Indians do not know why it is that they are

treated in that way. Now, there are serne Indians who are net well-off; there

are some of the Indians who are poor, and they go and steal the deer; they

steal thern, that is, they take thern underhanded, and use the meat, and that
was their food from long ago. New, he bas te steal it while formerly he was

f ree te takc it, and if any of thern are caughit while t.hey are huntrng, they

are put in j ail. If thc Indian who is caught bas any money, he pays bis fine,

and if he bas net he stays in j ail. Whien he bas net the rnoney te pay bis fine,
well, he stays in j ail. Fer that reasen now, I ain here before the-se gentlemen

te get for us our food or te keep our food, the deer and the f owl. Thiat is one
thing that the Indians want.

Then, as te, the salmon. The Indians used te cure the salmon fer their

food. When the saîrnon carne the river was full of them and se the Indians

cured their sairnen, because they knew hew te go about it. If they have sufficient

sairnen, they cured thern te last until the next run of the salmon carne again.

If they have net sufficient salmon, they have te go hungry. New, the white

people told the Indians not te kili any rnore sairnon, because they sadd, " Yeu

are killing off âll the salmon." Now, they have made a law cencerning the
[Chief Johnny Chillihitza.]
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salmon. But the chief says the sairnon do flot corne back after spawning, they
die anyway.

By lion. Mr. Stevens:
Q.Does hie mean that, he wants to get the salmon when they go up theStream to spawn?-A. The chief says that the saîrnon die off, and stili, thewhite peuple are puttîng laws on for the Indians flot kili any salmon. TheIndians want to kili the s!almon in their own tirnes. When they used to drysalmon in the old times, there was no law against it, and that is what the Indianswant to do. They want to have their former wa)ys of living, about the Salrnon,and they want to have the use again of their food, that is, the deer; and theIndians want to have some grazing lands. Now, the country of the CaribouIndians, is nýot a very good country. It is flot good for crops. It is just goodfor trapping and from that the Indians -make their living. Now, where theIndians used to trap the land has ail been taken'by the white people, and thoseIndians over there want to get back their land where they used to trap.And the chief says, now, 1 leave rny case before the Committee here forthem to decide, but before 1 conclude I want to speak concerning the Indianagents. Long ago, the man whuo was called Dr. Powell came over and saw bischief's father, Chillihîtza. Dr. Powell said: " I arn going to tell you that theQueen said that ail of the Indîan reserves are goîng to, bave agents." So theIndians asked him what the agents were going to do. He said that the agentswere going to look after them, and if anyThing is going to happen Vo, the Indians,the agent is there to, defend the Indians. So the Indians said they accepted theagent, as hie was goîng to look after their welfare and help thcmn in everything.And at that time the agent looked after tile Indians so weil that they beiievedin what the Queen Vold them to do. But now, the present agents are not actingas the other agents used to act towards the Indians. The7agents now do not-orne and talk with the chiefs before they do anything. They just go wýith thehalf-breeds, and take what the half-breeds say. That is, they speak with thehalf-breeds, and they do nut Valk with the Indians, and now when the agentwants to do anything, hie takes bad people, both men and wornen. The chiefsays now that you ouglit to know that wherever a half-breed is, there is alwaysSomething bad coming fromn him; and if there are more than one, they havemade bad friends xvith the other Indians. The half-breeds corne and tell theIndians, "I arn going to write down my name with you people," and now thereare many half-breeds in the reserves. The Indians have consented to, that.Then, if a cliief is going Vo have a conference with the Indians, they caîl a meet-ing, the half-breeds will not go over there and mix with the Indians. The hiaîf-breed says, "I arn noV an Indian to be going to these meetings, 1 arn a whiteman." The Indîans are satisfied to have the agents, but if there is an agent tobe made, the Indians want to have the righit to state about wbichi one Vhev wouldlike tu have for their agent. We do not want the white people themnselves to,select our agent, if that agcnt is not of good-will towards the Indians. Hle hassaid to Commissioner Sproat, and to George Reîlly and Dr. Powell, that theIndians have chiefs, and they bave policemen on their reserves, and tbey do notwant the white policemen te comc and arrest the Indians from their reserves,unless they ask the consent of their chief, and the chief says "ail right," thenthey have the rigbt to take a man out of the reserve and to, arrest bim. Mr.Powell told the Indians that they would have that right, but in disregard of whatMr. Powell has said, Indians are stili getting arrested frorn their reserves. Thewhite people just corne and arrest any -of the Indians, wîthout asking the consentof the chief. Now, wlien hie xvas over in London, they told hirn to corne here toOttawa, and bis case would be settled. The chief says: "I did not have thepleasure of seeîng, the Kitig," but Mr. Hume, who is one of the authorifies under

[Chief Johnny Chillihitza.]
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the King, was the one who was speaking to him when lie was in London. And
Mr. Hume told the ýchief that there was an election at the time when lie was
over in London. and lie says, if it is not bis Honour, Mackenzie King who is
going to be Premier in Ottawa, you could put your case before another Premier.
So the chief says, "I was told to come and settie my case here in Ottawa, and if
I arn not satisfied with anything, then 1 may go over again and have another
talk with the Government." And Mr. Hume tol thern to settle their case here,
and this is to be always their court. Long ago, there used to lie a village for the
Indians at Mara lake and the Indians put in potatoes, and got everything they
needed out of the ground. They made a ditch to their gardons; but the Indians
were driven away from that reserve by the white people; they would flot give it
to them, but the white people said it was their lands, and so they drove the
Indians from their village, and white people are using lands tbat the Indians
made long ago. Now tbe Indians are living in very bad shape, they have no
water, not anything, and the Indians want to take back that land that is taken
away from them by the whi'te people, because it is their land. There is a white
man that is living in the reserve that the Indians do not want.- The Indians do
not want tbat white man to be living in the reserve. That is on the Squilax
Reserve..

By Hon. Mr. Stevyens:
Q.What is that white man doing there; is lie on the C.P.R. tracks?-A.

H1e is staying inside of the resrcrve.
Q. But is lie working for the C.P.U.; is he one of theC.P.R. trackmen?-A.

He made a store in there.
Q. H1e has got a store?-A. Yes.
Q. Is he down on the lakeshore?-A. No.
Q. Up on the bull? A. H1e is quite a ways frorn the lake, 'but it is inside

the reserve.
Q. Did you tell Mr. Ditchiburn?-A. 1 do not know whether Mr. Diteli-

huin is acquainted with it.
Q. You ouglit to tell him; that is something that ouglit to ho told Mr.

Ditchburn.-A. (No audible answer.)
The CHAIRMAN: TheCommittee appreciates the statement you have made

to them and will take these matters into ýconsideration.
The WITNFSS: I am finished with my statement and I leave this to the

Committee te decide upon me. 1 forgot, to tell you about Jimmie Teit.

By Hon. Mr. Murphy:

Q.What do you want to say?-A. It is a little long and 1 think the gentle-
men are tired.

By Mr. McPherson:
Q. Who is Jimniie Teit?-A. He used to be interpreter for English.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Is tbat the one you wcre spcaking of, Mr. Kelly?
Mr. KELLY: Yes. H1e is dead now.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. We have got riglit here something signed by Jimmie Teit.-A. 1 went
over to see him at the time lie was sick and lie told me hefore he died-

Mr. MACINTYRvE: Chief Basil David wou]d like to address the Committee.
Witniess retired.

CHIEF BASIL DAVID calýled and sworn.
(The evidence of this witness was given in the Cariboo language, and was

translated into English and vice versa, by William Pierrish, sworn interpreter.)
42325-10 [Chief Johnny Chillikitza.]
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The WITNESS: 1 do not want to be very long, but 1 have just a few words.
My Indians throughout Cariboo, they are ail short of irrigation waters and they
are short of grazing range.. 1 want s'ore water for thern and I want sorne
grazing range for thern. Farther ta the north they live just an trapping and
fishing and hunting; I want sorne hunting for thern and trap exploring lines.
Another word I want ta, say; saine of rny boys went in the War and I want rny
case ta be settled before the Cornrittee here and the Governrnent wilI hear what
I say. Sorne of rny children are Iying in France and sorne of thern corne back
wounded. I want to satisfy Vhem. At the turne of the War 1 used ta collect sarne
money ta, help, Red Cross. Ail my returned soldier boys, sorne are wounded
badly. I wish we had sornething to, satisfy thein. We are ail giad to see the War
is over and everything settiled but I want ta satisfy these boys. I arn giad ta 'say
this and the Gavernrnent wili hear this. That is ail I want ta say.

Hon. Mr. MCLENNAN: How rnany soidiers were there frorn your Tribe?
Mr. PrnRisHi: Frorn ry Tribe abut twelve, 1 think.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Did you lase your arrn over there?
Mr. PinluusH: Yes, I lost rny arrn over there.
Han. Mr. STEVENS: Are you frarn the sarne band as the Chief ?
Mr. PrEnisHi: I arn from the Shuswap Trihe.
Hon. Mr. STVENS: And the Chief is frarn the Cariboo Tribe?
Mr. PIIRRIsH: Yes.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Whereabouts does he live?
Mr. PIERRISH: Bonaparte.
,Mr. O'ME~A.&: We wish ta ýask sorne questions.
Han. Mr. STEVENS: We do not want ta, get inta a wrangle between Mr.

O'Meara's group and these others, if it is saine personal fight.
Mr. KELLY: We do nat want to get inta a wrangle, but I do not like ta have

aur group referred ta as Mr. O'Meara's graup, and sornebody else's graup. We
do not belong ta Mr. O'Meara. We have engaged Mr. O'Meara as legal adviser,
and, as I said ta the Minister of the Interior in Vancouver, I think in the year
1922, he agitates just insofar as we aliow hirn ta agitate, just as any legal adviser.
We take exception ta that sort of staternent very rnuch, that we bellong ta Mr.
O'Meara or are Mr. O'Meara's .ohildren. I, for one, do not wish ta say anything
ta the Chief wha was the last speaker, or ta the other Chief. They have rnade
their staternent and that is ail there is ta it.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: There was no offense meant whcn 1 said that. What I
rnean is thîs; we have two groups of Indians here and it is quiteclear that there
is s'orne feeling between the twa, and we do not want to listen ta a wrangle
between twa graups of persons. That is my objection, Mr. Chairinan, and I
think it is pertinent.

Witness retired.
The Co'rnrittee adjourned at 1.00 p.m. until 3.30 p.rn.
The Cornrittee resurned at 3.30 p.rn., the Hon Mr. Bostock, Chairrnlan,

presiding.
The CHAIRMAN: Are we ready ta hear Mr. Kelly?
SEVERAL MEMBERS: Yes.

Rev. PErER R. ]KELLY callêd and swarn.
The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Kelly, I understand you are the chairrnan of the Allied

Indian Tribes of British Colurnbia. Will you proceed with your staternent?
The WITNESS: Mr. Chairrnan, and hon, gentlemen: I feel just a littie at a

luss ta cornmence, in view of several things which have transpired here since
f R.w P. R. Kelly.]
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my arrivai. I want to say this, speaking on behaif of the Indians of British
Columbia, that this, I take it, is the culmination of about fifty years of endeavour
on the part of the Indian tribes of British Columbia to obtain a hearing. I say
this to bring before you the importance of the effort made by the Indian tribes
of British Columbia.

Long before my time-long before I saw the light of day-the Indian tribes
sent delegations to Victoria and also to Ottawa to bring before i hem their
grievances. During the last eleven years-ten years ago last June-the Indians
were organized in a more definite way to press their dlaims so that the "powers
that be" would listen to them in the manner to which. they feit they werc entitied,
and as a resuit, we have been here several times,' sometimes coming without the
invitation of the government, and at other times with the invitation of the
govcrnment, to present our views to the government, and the government has
taken steps on different occasions to listen to us, but nothing has resulted from
that. We have submitted our dlaims to the government, I think, in a very full
way. The Deputy Superintendent General of Indian Affairs, who is well
acquainted with this whole situation, knows just what we have done, and I arn
glad he has included in his evidence and presented the things we have brought
bef are the government at dîfferent times.

Now then, there are two groups of things which miust be considered; one is
the Indian grievances, and 1 suppose it was to overcome one phase of the Indian
grievances that a Royal Commission was appointed in the year 1913. But that
Commission lookcd into just one thing, only one phase of Indian grievances, and
that was to provide Indians with adequate lands. The Indians were visited and
were asked to present their views, which they did. That Commission laboured
for ncarly four ycars and then made its report, but the Commission deait with
only one thing, and one thing only, which they reiterated again and again, that
they had no right at ail tu touch on any other grievances excepting the adequate
area of lands for Indians. Only that was deait with. Connected with that, as was
shown this morning by the different witnesses brought bcfore your committee,
there were many other grievances, and these grievances need to be rîghted. Now,
the other side is this: at the bottom of ail that is a f undarnental issue-a
fundametital issue. That is tu say, the Indians of British Columbia were not
treatcd as Indian tribes in other provinces of this Dominion, not because it was
flot known at ahl, but after some endeavour on the part of the Colonial govern-
ment in the early days, which government strove to deal with this great
fundamental issue, and I frankIy refer to the aboriginal title of Indians.

When British Columbia was organizcd as a province, the British Columbia
govcrnment knew ail about it, talked about it, discussed the whole thing, but
because it was a disagreeable sort of t.hing, it was dropped. It was introduccd
into the flouse of Commons shortlv after Briti--h Columbia entered Confeder-a-
tion. When the British Columbia Lands Act was inîtroduced, it was disallowed,
on the advce of the Minisùer of .Tustire, hecausc it ignored that great funda-
mnental principle as hiaving ohtained in British Columbia. It was ignored, as
you hon. gentlemen know. That thing has not been righted to this day.

Hon. Mr. BARNAnD: Just one moment; when the Land Art asý it subscquently
came into effect in British Columbia, was passed, was this question of dis-
allowance dîscussed again?

The WITNESS,: NO, it Was pas-sed at the following session of Parliament.
Hon. Mr. BARNARD: The same Act?
The WITNESs: Yes, the saine Act.

By Hon. M1r. Stevyens:
Q. .Iust one other question, while you are interrupted: you say it was dis-

allowed on that fundarnentai principle? Would you mmnd elucidating that,
42325-10â [Rev. P. R. Kelly.]
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Mr. Kelly?-A. I mean this, it was because the British Columbia government
acted as bhough. there was no other interest in the Crown lands of British
Columbia.

By Hon. AIr. MeLennan:
Q. Than their own?-A. Than their own-that is, the province.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: I woul'd like, Mr. Chairman, to, get that point cleared

up, because 1 think it is important.

By lion. 3fr. Ste vens:
Q. Was not t.he argument for disallowance based upon this; that the Land

Act of British Columbia--that wras the subject of disallowance-was in contra-
vention of the trust features of Section 109 of the British North America Act?-
A. I do not just understand your question.

Q. You referredl, I think, to the Honourable Mr. Fournier, Mînister of
Justice. Here is a clause 1 notice in reference to that---

The undcrsigned would also refer to the British North America Act,
1867, Section 109, applicable to British Columbia, wlich enacts in effect
that ail land belonging to the province shall bedong to the province, "sub-
jeet to any trust existing in respect thereof, and to, any înterest other
than that of the province in the same."

Now, is nat that the real point of conflîct upon çwhich the Minister of Justice
founded the disallowance?-A. Exactly; that is the point I arn trying to make.
It was in view of that, that it was dlisallowed. At that time, it was recognîzed
that the Indians had not ceded their aborignal titie, and since that day, it lias
not been done.

l3y Hon. Mr. Barnard:
Q. Can you tell me what caused the Dominion Governmcnt to change its

attitude the next year?-. 1 arn not prepared to say. I cannot say just why it
was done.

Q. Evidently their previous attitude was abandoned within 12 months?-
A. 1 think it was abandoned-if you will allow me to pass my opinion, it is the
only thing I have now-it was abandoned because it was likely ta disrupt Con-
federation. That is the only thing I can say.

By the Chairman:
Q. Have you anything upon which to base that opinion?-A. I have nat

anything to back that, up right now. Now, if I may proceed; it is because of
that, and in a very authoritative way, when, on behaîf of the Government, the
Deputv Superintendent General of Indian Affairs, issued a memnorandum, recently,
I think. in 1924, conceding that the Indian titie had neyer been extinguished.
But the point made was this: that there were other interests than the Indian
interesf s at stake, therefore, being the mincir interest, it should flot be taken
too seriously. 1 think that was the purport of that argument; and on that
ground. that memorandum proceeded, that the Indians were receiving as much
as Treaty Indians were receiving in the way of their education grants, and other
benefits coming to, Indians ail over this country.

Now then, your honourable Committee, Mr. Chairman, seemir press for one
thing. At least, if 1 arn in the wrong, I would like to, be corrected, but my im-
pression has been this: you want us to bring before you grievances. If we
have any grievances to be righted, you say let us have it, and we will right those
grievances., or recommend the righting of them.

By 3fr. McPherson:
Q.If possible?-A. Yes. in so far as they can hie righted. I grant that. But

let us say for the sake of argument that this Committee recommends a certain
LRev. P. R. Kelly.]
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thing to Parliament, and Parliament passes a bill, and ail the grievances are
made right at one blow at it were; there would still remain this fundamentai issue.
1 contend that there would stili remain this fundamental issue, and 1 was highly
pleased when the Minister in reply to my wire advised me of the fact that a
Committee of Parliament had been appointed te look into this matter. Now,
since that has been done, 1 beg of this Committee to be a little more tolerant
in supporting our petition, whielî was lodged with Parliament Iast year. We
realize that this is the one privilege for which we have been pressinlg for the
last fifty 'or sixty vears; and I also realize that at the present time-I might say
the dying moments of Parliamient- I notice that Parliament is trying to finishl
business by the l4th of this month, and 1 know you are rushing things through
-but in view of the f act that the rightful dcaling of this question affects the
future of 23,000 Indians who are not represented in Parliament, who have no
voice in the affairs of this land, except through the Indian Department, I beg
of you to be a littie more tolerant, and if we are to have a constitutional argu-
ment to present, 1 thînk it ie only fair that this Committee should hear it, and
let us have it on record. Now, I know that bv saying these things, I may raise
several vexatious points, and that some such thing as a shadow of doubt May be
cast upon our general counsel. 1 would like to say this; would yeu kindly forget
any disagrecable features which may have arisen in the past, and give us the
same right and the same privilege as would be extended to any other body of
people. comîng with their grievances, to present our'constitutional argument in
a connected way, se that it will appear before you in a connected form; hecause
you would have to consider that in any case.

1 notice that your Committee asked to havc documents prcsented. Well,
let me say that if we did nothing more than, simply present documents this
afternoon, and say to you gentlemen, "now we have finished, we have nothing
more to do," you would stili have the task of analysing those documents in
camera. In view of that, 1 think it is only fair that we should be allowed to
present our constitutional argument in a connected way, and then we will have
done with it.

Now, that is the position 1 take here this afternoon. I may continue, and
discuss several features cf this, but just in support cf what I may say, I wantod
te rcad a passagc or two which might bring bcfore your honourable body the
importance of this, if you have not been seized cf it before, I read from Law
Reports Appeal Cases 14.-1889, at page 55:-

Thcre was a great deal of learned discussion at the Bar with respect
to the precise quality cf the Indian rights, but their lordships do net
consider it necessary to express any opinion upon that point.

By lion. 1fr. Stevcens:
Q.What is the case you arc citing?-A. It is t:he St. Catherinc's Milling

Case. TNow, Ïbat is oue quctation. Later on in the same case, we have this
passage:-

The fact that the power cf legislating for Indians and for lands which
were reserved te their use has heen entrusted te the Parliament cf the
Dominion, is net in the least degree inconsistent with the rig'hts of the
provinces te a beneficial interest in these lands, available to them as a
source cf revenue whenever the estate cf the Crown is disincumhered cf
the Indian titie.

So, in view cf tbat, this is the iss-ue:
Q. But, Mr. Kelly, surely you observe that that refers to lands reservcd for

the use cf the Iindians. It does not refer te the general lands cf the province
at ail; it refers te lands reserved for the use of the Indians?-A. I centend that
if it refers te lands reserved fer the use ef the Indians, it refers in a ten

[Rev. P. R. Kelly.]
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thousandfold higher degree Vo lands not reserved for the use of the Indians, but
Vo which their aboriginal titie has neyer been extinguished. That is the point
I wish to make.

Q. Ail right; go on. 1 was just calling your attention to that?-A. And in
view of that I plcad for tolerance once again, that you allow our general counsel
to prefent in a connected way our constitutional case. It may take some littie
time, but once again let me say we have been labouring for thîs for the last fifty
years, and surely the Committee wvill be tolerant enough to allow us if need be,
three or four additional hours to present that important feature of the'argument
which is necessary.

By Mr. McPherson:
Q. Mr. Kelly, I arn a new member on this Committee. I was under the

impression that that had been submitted to the House before by Mr. O'Meara in
an address at ýsome length, some years ago. Is that not correct?-A. [ do not
think so.

By Hon. Mr. Mlurphy:
Q.Are you quite sure of that, of your own knowledge?-A. I do not think

it was just that kind of an argument.
Dr. Sco'rr: 1 think, Mr. Chairman, it was presented ini 1923, in Victoria. I

asked, that instead of having a speech on the subject, we should have a memo-
randum on the constitutional question, and I think that was submitted and
incorporated in the evidence at that time. If that is available now-

WITNESS: I would like to say, Mr. Chairman, in reply to the Deputy Super-
intendent General's correction, that that is quite true. But I would like also
to, say that I do not think the presentation of the case at that time was quite
adequate. I think we have additional information to add te that, whîch should,
be ernbodied in that, and hrought before this Cominittee. I contend, gentlemen,
that every information that can strengthen our position, we are entitled to
present before this Commîttee.

By the Chairman:
Q.Yes, Mr. Kelly, we want to geV ail the information we can; but in order

to save the time of the Committee, could you not put in your argument that
was made at that time, and now add te it what you want Vo add?-A. I beg
pardon, Mr. Chairman; I did noV quite hear that.

Q. Could you not put in that presentation of the case that was given Vo
Dr. Scott in 1923; could you noV put that in now, and th 'en add Vo, it what you
want to add?-A. Yes, that can be done; we ean put that in; we have that in
writing here. But in addition to that, 1 sVili matintain that our general counsel
should be-given the privilege of presenting in a connected form, the arguments
supporting our stand.

The CHAIEMAN: That is a matter for the Committee to consider, after we
have heard'ail the evidence that you wish to place before us.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: I wouid like Vo say this, Mr. Kelly, that 1 arn certain
that the Committee would very much like to hear whatever evidence you have
Vo offer now. I think the Comxnittee will agree with me when I Say that the
evidence we have received from Mr. Pauli and from others, has heiped us
a great deal more than the attempted evidence we had the other day, or the
attempted argument, and I think you wiil advance your case a great deal if you
wiil give us, out of your experience, your evidence now.

WITNESS: Well, one's own experience, is after ail, a very limited thing on
which Vo advance an argument.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: I mean your experience, and your knowledge of the
case, obtained as Chairman of your Executive Conîittee.
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Mr. HAY: And your own knowiedge of the conditions, perhaps.
Hon. Mr. McLENNAN: As I see the case, Mr. Kelly, the -Committee will be

very grateful for any presentation of facets which might modify their judgment,
and to which we will give full weight, rather than a constitutional argument on
ded-uctions from 1 know flot what. I think we all feit very grateful the other
day ta Mr. Pauli when he told us about Governor Douglas, and we will be
gratefu'l for any similar things. If you can show us facts of that kind, or the
absence of any dealings with the Indians through the old Colonial government,
ail that would help the Committee, whereas an argument will not hel-p it.

WITNESS: 1 see, and I arn just a little nonpiussed when that phase of the
question is brought forward. I thought an argument would be the necessary
thing, and would be the most important thing. Perhaps I should say, not
exactly an argument, but rather the presentation of the evidence in a .connected
way, on the constitutional issue, which would show that the Indian titie has
aiways been recognized, and has neyer been extinguished.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Mr. Kelly, we tried the other morning to get evidence,
and we could not get any.

WITNESS:. I arn prepared ta say that you will get it now.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS' Mr. O'Meara took the ground that lie was counsel and

not here to give evidence at ail.
WITNESS: Weil, whether counsel or not, I think the counsel is here to present

the constitutionai points in support of the position of bis clients, and that is the
right that we ask.

Mr. MCPHERSON: Mr. Kelly, are you basing your case reaily on past state-
mentd made, and reports made, either by Governmeiit officiais, or representatives
of the Crown, in one f orma or another? Is that where yau expect ta get your
constitutional evidence, or the evidence that wili support a constitutianal
argument?

WITNESS: No.

By Mr. McPherson:
QIt is in the state papers of ail kinds that are before us?-A. Yes, in the

State papers that came into existence, bearing on the subjeet, and the decisions
that have been made on similar points in other cases, bath in Canada and else-
where. That is what we depend upon, and I think if you wiii pardan a layman
speaking in this way, that that is the procedure of ilaw, is it nat?

Q. I must say, as far as the case you have cited goes, I think I wauld quate
it against you; that is, the reasons for the whole judgment?-A. Then, that is
aur lass, if that is the view taken of it.

Mr. MOPHEUSON: That is only my personal view. I have been reading
the case.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: I think the case as cited a marnent ago would go against
you.

WITNESS: Weli I would be sorry ta think a court would take that view.
Mr. MOPHERSON: They might not.
WITNESS: Hawever, the point I would like to make is this. I amn nat going

ta labour anything because of this. The grievances we have set out in a rather
full way in 1919, embodied in a pamphlet which was submitted to the Govern-
ment of the province of British Columbia, have been included. by Dr. Scott in
bis statement.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: We have that here in his documents.
WITNESS: Yes. Now, I do no t know wh at this Committee is prepared

to do about that, but I realize that a Coininittee like this cannot very well deal
ERev. P. R. Kielly.)
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with it in a detailed way. You may make a general recommendation, and
that is about as f ar as anybody can go; but there would stili remain the deter-
mination of the form of machinery or the effective way of dealing with those
different grievances that have been Ibrought before you. The question has
become acute, because of conditions that have arisen of late years. In the
early days, that is, prior to Confederation, and during the earlier time of
Confederation, although the question was quite pronounced ail along. even
after the date of the entrance of British Columbia into Confederation, it bas
become more and more acute. I think it was i~n 1887 that a large dýelegation
came down from Fort Simpson to interview the Provincial government in
Victoria. At that time they brought before the Government this fact, that
they were not adequately provided for as f ar as land was concerned, and they
became conscious of the fact that in days to corne rights which they had inherited
from time immemorîal would be taken away from them. Even at that early
date, forty years ago, they were conscious of that, and it was brought to the
notice of the Provincial Government. About that time, when Reserve Commis-
sioners went around and approached the Haida Tribe of the Queen Charlotte
Islands, I heard this from the lips of those who were present asking them to
state a certain area of land to he set apart for them writh which they would
be satisfied. The Cýhiefs who gathered in council together said this, " Why
would we ask you to set lands apart for us This territory -is ours and it has
been ours as f ar back as we can rcmember. Any time any other people claimed
our lands we disputed their dlaim wlith force. Why are you coming here and
asking us to say what area of land would satisfy us?" The Commissioners
were treated courteously; they were always on the best of terms wîth those
Commissioners. They told the Commissdoncrs that they were not prepared
to name any area because the whole area of land was theirs.

By the Chairman:
Q. What commission was that?-A. I arn not prepared to name any partie-

ular Cýommissioners, but it was the Reserve Commissioners who went around.Q. That was one that was appointed in 1875 or 1876?-A. I would think
about that time. That was their view. Qradually they have been hemmed in
littie by littie until the things which they had enjoyed in the past have been
taken away ,from them. I know it is the viewpoint taken here by some mem-
bers of this Committee that because of the encroachment of civilization it is
necessary to regulate things. We grant ail that. I do not think anything should
bc allowed to go on wîthout a certain amount of regulation. Nevertlheless, we
must recognize this also, that the people that you have been regulating things
for are not up to your standard. These people were not in contaet with civili-
zation more than seventy-five years ago. I grant that on this eastern coast of
the North American Continent the Indians have been in contact with civilization
longer than we have been on the coast. You would ask those people to subscribe
to the same regulations,.ats you have made for yourself, and ask tliem to make a
living under those conditions. I contend, gentlemen, that it is becoming harder
and harder for them to corne under that restraining hand and at the same time
nýot being adequately brought forward to take their place among the body politie
of this land.

By 317% Hay:
Q. Does that apply to the younger generation as well as the older?-A.

Generally, yes; there are a few exceptions always, but that applies to aIl the
Indians. 1 stressed thiýs to the present Minister of the Interior, and also the
Deputy Superintendent General of Indian Affairs. whien they came to visit us
on the coast. It was in view of that that we stressed that the Indians should
receive intensive training, conditions making it necessary that if if is not done
the time wilI soon corne when they will lose out in the race for existence.
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Another point 1 would like to raise, is this: 1 wouid like to say, whether
this Committee sees fit to recommend to Parliarnent that the aboriginal titie of
the Indians of British Columbia is not a good one and cannot be supported, and
recommends to Parliarnent that it be set aside and not considered at ail, the
fact remains that you have not treated us as you shouid have treated us in the

days gone by. That is the great issue. In 1871, when British Columbia entered
Confederation, if treaties had been made with the Indian Tribes of British
Columbia, as was doue elsewhere, we would have received certain benefits from

that date, and we have not received those benefits. There was brought against
our dlaims a computation of what annuities of five dollars per capita wouid
corne to, something over $2,500,000, in the course of twenty years. I contend

that if the country can get off with $2,500,000, 1 think they would be getting off

rather iightly, in view of the fact that the Indian Tribes who are receiving

annuities contînually, and xviii receive them until the last Indian dies or is

enfranchiseil, they are receiving rnany times more than $2,500,000. In the course

of tirne it xviii arnount to a huge sum of money. and yet it has been brought for-

ward as an argument to hinder the fair consideration of the case insofar as our
dlaim is concerned.

By Mr. McPherson:
Q.You do not expect, of course, that titie will be given to the Indians of

British Columbia?-A. Oh, no.
Q. You expect further consideration, though?-A. Considerationý and bene-

ft.Q. What amount do vou think is right?-A. 1 couid not say that; 1 do

not think that is a fair question.
Q. I wondcred whether you had arrivcd at an amount?-A. No, I have not.

I think even the Privy Council has refi,ained from stating any amount, and I

arn not presuming to be a greater authority than that wonderful body.

Q. You are the man that is askîng for value received?-A. Yes, I think it

could be worked out.
Q Tt is UiP to you to put your price on it?-A. Yes. I see your point, but

this procedure has been foilowed in the past and 1 think we have docurnentary
evidence in support of that to sa'tisfy any dlaims of the Indians along those lines.

The Imperial Government, before the days of Confederation, followed the pro-

cedure of negotiating with the Indian, Tribes; met the Tribes in Council a.nd

negotiated with thern. The negotiations xvith them perhaps was just a formai

procedure. What was said ýby the Deputy Superintendent of Indian Affairs rnay

be truc when he said something to the effect that treaties were already prepared

and were sirnply suhrnitted te the Indian Tribes. That may be quite truc; I

cannot dispute that. Nevertheless, they went through the formality of negotiat-

ing with those Indian ýChiefs who wcre responsible and who represented their
Tribes.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q. Your real desire is to receive officiai acknowledgrnent of the aboriginal

titie; that is your point?-A. Yes.

By Mr. McPherson:
Q. Which titie would be in the province of British Columbia and not in the

Dominion of Canada?-A. Quite truc.
Q. How can w-e do that?-A. Well, 1 think that is for you to decide, not

for me. There seems to me, under the terrns of union when British Columbia

entered Confederation, there were certain things agreed to. Among those is

article 13, which was quoted hy Premier Oliver in his telegram. to Hon. Charles

Stewart the other day; that after British Columbia gives an adequate area of
[Rev. P. R. Kelly.]
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land to the needs of the Indians it seemed to him that Canada becomes respons-
ible for satisfying the dlaims of the Indians.

Q. There is just the point. You say they have not given, that?-A. We
tried to get adequate lands and we have not been successful.

By Hon. Mir. Stevens:
Q. Mr. Pauli read this morning, and also on Thursday, extracts from the

petitions or reports indicating that certain areas were inadequate 30, 40 or 50
years ago?-A. Yes.

Q. Well, it is quite clear that since that time, flot only in 1912 but prior to
1912, very substantial additions were made which apparently satisfied the claims
raised at that period?-A. (No audible answer.)

By Mir. Hay:
Q.Mr. Stevens worked it out on the basis that what was originally 20

acres is now 127 acres?-A. I think that needs explanation.
By lion. Mr. Stevens:

Q.I arn not talking about whether that is adequate IIOW or not. The point
is; the Indians raised this very question of inadequacy of land, say, 50 years
ago-I think there was one in 1874, which would be 52 years ago--and the basis
then was 20 acres. There is ample evidence to show that that amount has been
augmented very considerably since then, indiýcating that the Government did
respond to the request of the Indians and apparently satisfied them, because
there was very littie heard of it again for a long time. In 1912 a settlement of
the same question was atteznpted again. You will admit that, will you not?
-A. 1 do admit it.

Q. We corne to this situation; you want either one of two things; either the
dlaim to aboriginal title or the dlaim for further consideration of the amount
of land set aside in te reserve?-A. Well, this is wliat, we did. We criticized
the report of the Royal Commissions of 1913 and 1916. In view of our criticis.m,
the present Minister of the Interior, when he came to British Columbia in
the year 1922, agreed that we should be privileged to supply the Commission
with additional dlaims for land. We did that, and I think of ail the dlaims that
were submitted at that time, not one bas been acceded to. Three of us went out
to interview the Indian Tribes and they asked for certain things. Thoýse dlaims
were filed with the Commission as additional dlaims of the Indians, as far as
lands were eoncerned, and as far as I am aware I do not think a single dlaim
was acceded to. I just want to point that out.

Q. That was subsequent to the filing of their report?-A. Yes, but before
the report was accepted.

Q. But it was subsequent to the filing of the report by the Commission?
-A. Yes. That is the position to-day; there is not any more land available.
Now, we talk about lands, hecause it is one of the basic things of one's living.
We admit that conditiôns are different ini British Columbia. I think in that
province we have ahl the living conditions that are found ail over the Dominion.
It is true that we are not dependent entirely upon lands for our living; we are
not agricultural people entirely. Certain portions of the province are dependent
upon their land for a living, such as the interior, the Fraser Valley, and other
stretches of land that are fertile, but the fact is this; in1 other parts of the
Dominion, say in the provinces of Saskatchewan and Alberta, the Indians, are
provided with adequate lands to ensure their living for all time to come.

By lion. Air. Murphy:
Q.Do you know how znuch land per head the Indians have in Saskatche-

wan?-A. I arn not just prepared Vo say; 1 think the figures are available.
Mr. O'MEARA: About nine times as much.
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The WITNESS: I think Dr. Scott has it.
Dr. ScoTT: A square mile represernts five; 640 acres for a family of five.
The WITNESS: And that is land which. is capable of producing things,

where we have great heaps of mountains in aur lands, which were quoted as
107 acres, 1 think.

Hon. Mr. STEVINS: 1312 acres.
The WITNESs: 132 acres for each f amily. You must realize that the

greater portion of that is composcd of rocky land.

By Hon. Mr. Stevyens:
Q.Take for instance ail through the lower Fraser Valley, anywhere on

the coast; you would not require 132 acres for a f amily?-A. Yes.
Q. I do not recali of one Indian on the Fraser Valley cultivating more than

a very few acres, and the very grreat bulk of theni will cultivate nothing at ail?
-A. Quite so.

Q. Although they have thc land there?-A. Quite so. That is not to be
wondered at, Mr. Chairman; 1 think you know the reason why. They have
not been agricultural people until just within the past f ew decades. Con-
ditions have forced them to change and conditions will force theni more and
more Vo depend upon their land.

Q. Take that remarkably fertile reserve at Kamloops, where the two
Thonipson Rivers join. I have been watching that for thirty-five years now,
and the Indians neyer use that land?-A. Well, as a matter of fact, Mr. Stevens,
you cannot grow a blade of grass on that unless you bring water on that land,
that Kamloops Reserve.

Q. Right beside it is some of the most productive land on the whole
continent, and white men have gone on there and are growing the most magnifi-
cent fruits, and so on?-A. No doubt about it.

Q. Then corne down to Penticton, that very fine reservation about -two
miles south of Penticton. 1 have known that for thirty years and it is just
lying there. I was down there last year and right in almost to the city
boundaries, of Penticton there are thousands of acres of land hlghly developed,
and on this reservation there is nothing done. I merely draw your attention
to this to show that. while you criticize the treatment, with ail the efforts that
have been made the Indians will not cultivate this very valuable, fertile land.
After aIl, there are two sides to this problem?-A. Quite so. Il want Vo be
fair; I do not dlaim anlything that we are noV entitled to. Take the Kamnloops
area, for instance-the Chairman has a large area of land there and he know's
just as welI as 1 do that you cannot grow a blade of grass unless you have water
on that land.

By Hon. Mr. Murphy:
Q. Whnt do you say about this eontrast that Mr. Steverrs has drawn down

at Penticton?-A. Well, as I said hefore those people have been more interested
in stock than in fruit growing. As you know, the Okanagan valley has only
become a wonderful fruit growing district within a comparatively short time,
and the Indians have not been keeping up to the times. The tîme is coming-
perhaps the time is now-when the Indians will be forced to do what their white
brothers are doing.

By Hon. Mr. Ste ven.s:
Q. I think it is just as well to get the other side of this picture. You

complain-and justly perhaps-that the provincial government seems, ta be
sornewhat unsympatiietie. Ail the witnesses have complained of that. Now,
take Penticton, and this area around Summerland, or around Vernan-any of
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the districts in the Okanagan-and one of the great problemas facing the
authorities is the infection of the orchards from the Indian orchards; you cannot
get an Indian to look after his orchard. Mr. Ditchburn or any of the officers
of the Department will agree that they have great trouble in getting the Indians
to cean their orchards up, so there is an infection of the other orchards. That
is one reason why the provincial government is not sympathetic. 1 think the
committee should get both sides of the picture.-A. As I said be'fore, I think the
Indian needs more intensive training to-day than the white man does.

Q. That is one of your problems, is it not?-A. Yes.
Q. And if that problem were solved, this chimerical demand, that we

recognize the right to, all underlying land in British Columbia, would fade out
of existence?-A. No, I don't think so.

Q. You do not like to, let go of that bone?-A. No, and you would not like
to let go of it either.

By Hon. Mr. McLen non:
Q. Our ancestors have al! gone throughi that at one time or another; they

have been conquered-A. WTe have not been conquered.
Q. Well, caîl it peaceful penetration in British Columbia, f ortunately.-

A. It probably wa.9 peaceful penetration.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: When we talk about their being conquered-
The WITNESS: We were not conquered. We might have been exterminated,

if necessary.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: That touches a sore spot with Mr. Kelly.
Hon. Mr. MeLENNAN: I was sîmply giving-
The WITNESS: No, it does not.
The CHAIRMAN: He seems to be giving a good demonetration of it here.
The WITNEss: That is a thing of the past; it does not worry me any.

By Hon. Mr-. Barnard:
Q.Can you tell me any reserve on the southern portion of Vancouver Island

that is cultivated by Indians up to 50 per cent. of its capacity?-A. I cannot say
offhand. The secretary tells me that the reserve in Duncan county is cultivated
Up to 50 per cent. I am not going to argue that point out, because I do not think
I can; I arn not prepared to do so. This is the point I wish to make; gentlemen,
if the white people, after hundreds of years of agrieultural life, find it necessary
to send their braîniest boys to agricultural colleges so they may learn StiR further
how to tilI the soil, how much more necessary is it for thle Indians to learn the
primary principles of agriculture?

Hon. Mr. STEVNS: That is sound.
By lion. Mr. Murphy:

Q. Is that onc of your claims?--A. That is one of the dlaims.
Hon Mr. STEVENS: That is sound commonsense, and you will have a sympa-

thetie hearing here.
Hon. Mr. McLENNAN: You have struck a sympathetic chord in ail of the

committee on that.
The WITNESS: Thiat is one of the things we have asked for. You belittie

my contention for our aboriginal title, because when our aboriginal title is estab-
lished-some people seem to have said in the past that it is very questionable
what the Indians will be satisfied with. Once their title is established, perhaps
they will wreck the city of Vancouver and drive out all the population-

Hon. Mr. STrEVENS: They will have a hard job doing that.
The WITNESS: Ridieiilous as it sounds, that has been stressed in certain

places, to, the detriment of the Indians, because there is not the faintest kind of
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CLAIMVS OF THE ALLIED INDIAN TRIBES. B.C. 157

a notion in the mind of any intelligent Indian to do that to-day. It is purely an
academic thing. We dlaim the riglit exists and has neyer been extinguished, and
we ask you to deal with that right as you have deait with it elsewhere.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q. Mr. Kelly, let me ask you at this point; you belong to the Haida tribe

on Queen Charlotte Island?-A. Yes.
Q. And you remember the Tsimpsians at Fort Simpson?-A. Yes.
Q. I have some recollection from stories told me by old residente Up there,

and you have no doubt heard your people talk about it-bow long has it beez
since the Haidas came over and fougiht with the Tsimpsians?-A. 1 would say
about 60 or 70 years.

By Hon. 31tr. Murphy:
Q. And if the necessity arose, would they not do it to-day?-A. No, not to-

day; we have got beyond that stage.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q. 1 have beard them 30 years ago tell about coming over there.-A. Yes.
Q. Kow, another question I want to ask you is this; take the tribes along the

north shore from Fort Simpson up the Skeena river; they neyer had quite estab-
lished possession of their area; they were aiways subject to invasions by other
tribes, were they not?-A. Yes, but not for territorial conquest.

Q. And they neyer had what might be termed a government of possession of
the land?-A. Oh yes, they had.

Q. Where were the boundaries of the Tsimpsian Indians?-A. They bave
very well defined boundarieýs; I arn not .prepared to state where their boundaTies
are. I can tell you better where the boundaries of the Haida Indians are,
because I know considerably more about that.

Q. You take in all of Graham Island pretty well?-A. Yes, we take in
Grahamn Island. You know, there are clans and tribes of the Haida nation.

Q. Where were your headquarters?-A. At Skedigate Inlet.
Q. Was there a government established there?-A. Ycs.
Q. Did that govcrnment administer the island?-A. Yes; it was not a

central government, a large central government such as you have, for instance,
in a provincial government; it was more of a municipal government. Our
government was something like the city state of the Greeks of long ago. There
was no large central government, but there was a municipal government.

By Hon. Mr. McLennctn:
Q. Each grove had a government of its own?-A. Yes.
Q. And the groves came together for certain purposes of their own?-A.

Yes.
Q. But normally it was, as you say, like a Greck city?-A. Yes.

By the Chaù-man:
Q. And the Haidas had control over Graham Island?-A. The whole of

Queen Charlotte Island, Graharn Island, and Normsby Island.

By Hem. Mr. Stevyens:
Q. And you used to go to the coast very frequently?-A. Yes.
Q. And it was a constant war-or shaîl we say "strife"ý-between the coast

tribes and the Haidas?-A. Yes, it was for gain; not for territorial conquest.
They did not want the land of the Tsîmpsians because it was no good to them;
it was across the water.
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By Hon. Mr. McLennan:
Q.They made raids there?-A. Yes, they made raids; the Indians used to

deal in slaves, and they would make a raid and carry off so rnany slaves, and
slaves represented property, and, therefore, these wars continued.

Q. The early Greeks again?-A. Yes. The benefits I have been stressing
-one of them is agriculturai training, and the present Minister of the Interior
and Doctor Scott wiil bear me out that I stressed this very thing in Miy address
before the committee in Victoria; that is, that we should have such intensive
training for the Indians as would enable them to earn a decent living among
the cîvilized people of to-day. That was my big point, and I stili stress that
point.

By Mr. McPherson:
Q.Do the Indians as a whole-the young peopie-want that, or is that

merely because you know better what they shouid have?-A. I ar n ot prepared
to say the greater majority-yýes, 1 think so; 1 think the majority of the young
Indians want that, and feel the necessity for it to-day.

Q. You will remember the elderiy chief who spoke to us only pieaded for
one thing, and that was to let them be Indians?-A. With ail due respect to that
veteran chief-and we ail respect him-I do flot think he realizes what he is
saying; we have alwàys taken that view.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q.I notice there has been spent on education in British Columbia a consider-

able amount. I will go back but a few years and give the figures, and then I
want to ask you a question on them. In 1920-21 there was: spent $318,000; 1921-
1922, $478,000; 1922ý-1923, $354,000; 1923-1924, $492,000; 1924-1925, $422,GOO;
and 1925-1926, $381,000.

Hon. Mr. MURPHY: What are those figures?
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Figures of amounts spent on the education of the Indians

in British Columbia by the Dominion government.
By lon. 31r. Stevens:

Q. Now, these figures will compare very favourabiv with the amount spent
on the education of the white children by the provincial government, will they
not,, in your estimation?-A. I think so, because I think a certain part represents
capital expenditures; that is to say, putting, Up permanent buildings.

Q. Very likely.--A. Buildings to the coSt of perhaps $200,000.
Q. That is quite poSsible, but take it ail through since Confederation, there

bas been spent $5,500,000, soine of it in capital expenditureýs, no doubt. Now,
take these aids to agriculture; they are not verv large sums; they only amount
to $6,000 or $8,000 a year, which is very sm'ali. But what I' amn trying to
impress on your mind, or get. you to admit, is that these figures compare very
favourably with ýwhat ba-s been spent for education of the white population, so
that if you could tell us where the complaint is-you must admit we cannot
spend too fabulous a sum, this seems very generous.-A. 1 would lîke to Say
this, and I would like to make myseif clear on this; I think every progressive
Indian is grateful for every cent which has been expended on education. I feel
that way, and I say that from the bottom of my heart: it bas "made me what I
amn to-day," and we are grateful for it. But after ail, is it not a fact that
education is the duty of the State to anybody, not just the Indians?

Q. Yes; nobody is objecting to that; do flot misunderstand me. What 1 amn
getting at is if this is wrongly directed, we would be glad to have a suggestion
as to a more proper direction. The amount seems to me to be fairly reasonable.

Hon. Mr. MuRPHîy: Fairly generous.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: If it is not being properly expended, we ought to know
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By Hon. MIr. MIcLennan:
Q. In other words, would your view be that a larger proportion should be

spent on agricultural education?-A. I do net just say that; I dû not say
lessen one te, increase the other.

Q. But if it is shown that what. is being done for education is not being
properly done, we shouid know it, and 1 think your view is that these amount,,
which are quite srna1l-6,0OO or $8,0O0 per year-should be increased.-A. To
$60,000 or $80,000.

lion. Mr. STEVENS: But these amounts, this $6,000 or $8,000, arc separate
from education.

Hon. Mr. McLE-NNAN: That seems te me te be a verv small amount.
Hon. Mr. STEWART: A very small proportion of that $8,000 would be spent

on agricultural educatien; that is more as aids te agriculture.
Hon. Mr'. STEVENS: Yes; it says " Aids to agriculture, cleansing orchards,

etc,'., ,;praying.iy
Hon. Mr. STEWART: As I understand Mr. Kelly, his idea is that wvhen the

public sehool course, which is practically the same as that given te the cbildren
in ail the schools, is coxnpieted, something rnigbt be done supplernentarily
in the way ef agricultural education.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: That might be worth considering.
The WITNxss: Not only agriculture, but vocational training for Indians.

That is what we have been dcman-ding.
Hon. Mr. STEVNS: I think that is verv valuable evklence myseif.
Hon. Mr. M-uRpihy: The best we have had.
The WITNESS: Because necessity is forcing the Indianýs to demand that

more and more. While the sums expended on education seem large ones, yet
they are not too large at ahl-

Hon. Mr. STEVENS. We are not suggesting that. I want you te get that
out of your mmnd. If we can increase it, if it is desirable, or properly dîrected,
or if we can direct it in a different way-

Hon. Mr. McLENNAN: It was said by the old chief there were quite a
number of invalids of the war, and as I understood him, tbey were not getting
the conzideration he thought they should be get.ting.

Hon. Mr. MURPHY: I thought he referred rather to some members of
his own f amily.

The WITNESS: Some memibers of bis own band. I arn not prepared te
speak of that in any definite way-

Hon. Mr. McLENNAN: Have you noticed any such cases?
The WITNESS: I know there are seme cases, but in nearly every case, the

returned Indian soldier has been treated the same as any other returned soldier.

By Hon. Mr. Murphy:
Q. That is your opinion on that point?-A. Yes; there is ne difference at

ail; the returned Indian soldier bas been treated just as iconsiderately as any
otber returned soldier. So we bave put in the things that we consider to be the
necessary basis ef settlement. iNow that is on recerd. Before we are entitled
to that., we must show that we are entitled to it, and we daim that our aboriginal
titie gives us the right te claim that, because it bas been advanced that we
received these things as a matter of grade, net because we were entitled to them,
but just because it is the goodwil of the Government and nothing else.

By Mr. MePherson:
Q.And you are putting forward a different proposition?-A. Yes.
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Q. And is flot that the very reason why you have to arrive at what the
value of the land was?-A. Well, give us a negotiating committee, and we will
meet you, and 1 think we can arrive at some valuation of what we are claiming.
You have not been able to do that, or at least you have not been willing to do
that in the past. We have asked for that, but we have not been able to receive it.

By Hon. Mr. Murphy:
Q.As I understanýd it, Mr. Kelly, you take the position that what you have

received up to the present time bas been given as a matter of grace, and not in
satisfaction of this aboriginal title?-A. Exactly. It has been so stated offi-
cially.

Q. Therefore, if you were to sit down and negotiate now, ail that has been
given would be wiped out of conusideration? The new considération would be an
amount over and above ail that you have already received?-A. Something like
that. We would not forget what has been received.

Q. Would you take it into account thougli?-A. That is a matter of negotia-
tion, I would say.

By Hon. Mr. Barnard:
Q. Would you suggest, Mr. Kelly, that the basis of negotiation should be

on the values as they were, at the time of occupation, or the present day values?
-A. We have two extreme views on that of course. I might say that the Indian
departrnent has officially stated that progress means nothing at ahl to the value
of ',he aboriginal titie.

Bjj the Chairman:
Q.Do you dispute that?-A. Yes, somewhat, we do. And once again .1

say that is a matter of negotiation, and if it cannot be negotiated, it is hecause
of that that we thought the -court decision would be a remedy. Then we would
either gain our point, or we would lose out on it. That was the point, and that
was the reason why we have pressed for a judicial décision of the matter. We
realized the complications of it. Just as the Mînister of the Interior said in
Vanc~ouver, it is a tremendously complicated affair; we reahize that, and we can-
not say that this matter can be settled by a mere wave of the band.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q.Supposing the aborigînal title is not recognized? Suppose recognition is

rcfused, what position do you take then?-A. Then the position that we wouild
bave to take would be this: that we are simply dépendent people. Then we
wouldl have to accept from you, just as an act of grace, whatever you saw fit to
give us Now that is putting it in plain language. The Indians have no voice
in the affairs of this country. They have not a solitary way of bringing any-
thing before the Parliament of this country, except as we have done last year by
petition, and it is ai righty bard thing. If we press for that, we are cahled
agitators, simply agitators, trouble makers, when we try to get what we consider
to be our rights. It is a might-y hard thing, and as I have said, it bas taken us
between forty and fifty years to get to where we are to-day. And, perhaps, if
we are turned down now, if this Committee see fit to turn down what we are
pressing for, it might be another century before a new géneration wilh rise up and
begin to press this claim. If this question is not settled, in a proper way on a
sound basis, it will flot be settled properly. Now, that is.the point that we want
to stress. I said to the Hon. Mr. Stevens hast year, when he was Acting
Minister of the Interior,-I think these are the words I used: " Why not keep
unbhemishied the record of British fair dealing with native races? Why refuse
to recognize the claim of certain tribes of Indians in one corner of the British
Dominions, when it bas been acrorded to others in another part of the same
Dominion."
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Hon. Mr. STEVENS: That, 1 think, is not quitea fair way of putting it, Mr.
Kelly. As I have already told you-

WiTNESS: At that time, 1 think you agreed with me.

Hon. Mr. STEvENxS: No, that is one thing 1 neyer did agree Vo in the last

twenty years, or the nineteen years since I heard Mr. O'Meara first moot this
dlaim for an aboriginal titie. 1 neyer admitted itV, and 1 neyer could bring my

mind Vo see any solid ground for the aboriginal titie. I do say this, that the
Indians deserve, and we ought Vo accord them, the most generous treatment that
we possibly can, and I have always advocated that we should try Vo bring the
Indians Vo the position of independent citizenship as quickly as we can. That, is

my position, and bas been throughout my whole life in British Columbia; but

I have neyer yet been able to see any soand ground for admitting the existence

of an aboriginýal titie, and the evidence we have received here up to the moment,
has only confirmed my views.

WITNESS: It seems Vo me that the view taken by the Hon. Mr. Stevens

confirms our contention that it must necessarily be settled by a judicial decision.

We can argue on both sides of the table until we are black in the face, and we
cannot geV very far.

The CHAIRMAN: Just at that point, Mr. Kelly, I would lîke to read to you

from page 54, of 1883 Law Reports Appeal Cases, the St. Catherine's Milling

Company, vs. the Queen. Beginning at the bottom of the page:-

It was suggested in the course of the argument for the Dominion
that iua!-riluch as the proclamation recites that the territories thereby

reserv2d for Indians had neyer been ceded Vo or purchased by the Crown,
the entire property and the land remained with them.

That is practically your contention.

That inference is, however, at variance with the terms of the instru-

ment, which show that the tenure of the Indians was a personal and
usufructuary right dependent upon the goodwill of the Sovereign.

There is a good deal more that 1 could read, but 1 think that covers the
point.

WITNESS: Well, I would say, Mr. Chairman, the goodwill of the Sovereigu

has been Vo recognize whatever the aboriginal title of the Indian was in the past.

1V bas always been so, and that has been very forcibly brouglit out iu the report

of the Minister of Justice in 1875, wherein he points out that very thing that

the obligation of that goodwill was denied to the Indians of British Columbia.

By lion. Mr. Murphy:

Q. Mr. Kelly, just before the Chairman read that extract, you said that the

only way in which that question that you are submitting Vo Vhis Committce can

be settled, is by a judicial decision. Is that correct?-A. Yes, 1 said thut.
Q. Do 1 understand you Vo take the position that that judicial decision should

be rendered, not by the courts of Canada, but by the Imperial Privy Council?
-A. We have been advised of that, but it stems to me, Mr. Chairman, that that

is a matter of procedure.
Q. Have you .any objection to submitting this question to the courts in

Canada?-A. NQt at ail.,. Providing they are proper courts, noV at ail.
Q.Imean, the oÎdiinary courts, Vo which ail citizens have recourse. Do you

obj ect Vo go there?-A. NoV at all. -We do not obj ect Vo that aV ail. The proper

procedure is what we want. We do not want any unheard of procedure.
Q.No, you want the ordinary procedure?-A. Yes.
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By Mr. McPherson:
Q.But, do you want it taken ta the Privy Cauncil first?-A. That court is

the final Court of Appeal.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: 1 think your caunsel has always taken the position that

you should go direct ta the Privy Council. But here is your position as stated,
and thi8 la one ai the things that objection is taken ta:-

That immediate steps be taken for iacilitating independent pro-
ceedings-

Hon. Mr. MURPHY: That is what I have in mind, and that is why 1 asked
my question.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
-of the Allied Tribes and enabling tbem by securing reference of the
Petition naw in his Maiesty's Privy Council, and sucli ather independent
judicial action as shall be found neeessary ta secure judgment ai the
judicial Committee af His Majesty's Privy Cauncil, deciding ail issues
involved.

That is rather arnbiguous language, but the intent ai it is there.
WITNESS: That is a very contentiaus point, and perhaps we will take quite

a littie tirne, but I would like ta surn it up if I arn able ta do sa. The reason
that was put that way was that Canada having entered inta that MeKenna or
McBride Agreement with the Governrnent af British Columbia, and by the text
af that agreement, bringing ta a final settiernent ail matters relatîng te Indian
affairs in the Province af British Columbia, put itseli in a position where it was
not competent ta defend the affairs ai the Indians. Naw, when we say that, it
is nat just aur opinion. In fact, I will go beyand that. It is the opinion ai the
Hon. Mr. Dahierty, the Minîster ai Justice in the Borden Governrnent. That
was the opinion he expressed.

By lion. Mr. Stevens:
Q. Yau say that is bis opinion. Where do you get that?
,Mr. O'MEAR: It ail appears cleariy in the papers that yeu have.
WITNESS: We have that in black and white, se I arn not speaking just

irorn my mernery.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: These things are quoted rather reeklessly semetimes.
,Hon. Mr. MuRPHY: Mr. Kelly says this is, in black and white, it is on

record..
WirNEss: Yes, it is a record.
The CHAIRMAN: It is in Appendix G ai Na. 1 ai the pro eeedings of this

Committee.
.WiTNEss: I wiil get Mr. O'Meara ta brinýg it out. Wbat we want Dow is

Mr. Doberty'S opinion.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Is this it an page 61, then continuing on page 62 oi the

proceedings ai Wednesday?,
Mr. O'MEARA: No, that bas nothing ta do witb it, Mr. Stevens.
lion. Mr. STEVENS: This bappens te bear just an the point we are discuss-

ing. On November l4th, 1914:-
As te your remark that it bas always been the view ai those advis-

ing the Nishgas that the only feasibie rnethod ai securing a judicial deter-
mination ai the rigbts ai tbe Indians ai British Columbia is that of bring-
ing their claims directiy before His Majesty's Privy Council. 1 wish
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you would realize as an endeavour te convince those whom you d&Scribe
as advising the Nishgas that this Goverument bas no power or authority
to refer a question directly Vo His Majesty's Privy Oounc.il; that the
only constitutionai method of obtaining the judicial vie-w of lis Majesty
in Council, relating to, a question limited. to, the internai affairs of Can-
ada is by appeal from the local tribunals.

That bears out what lias been said.
Mr. MCPHERsoN: You have to begin in the local courts and then if the

decision is against yoll, appeai from it. You migit skip one or two of the local
courts of appeal, and get permission to go directly to the Privy Council.

17Eon. Mr. STEVENS: That was clearly impressed upon Mr. O'Meara.
Mr. O'MEARA: May I suggest that judgment be reserved in the matter.
Hon. Mr. MU'Rix': A f ew fines further down, that letter continues-

If therefore it be possible for me Vo make any statement here which
can, consistently with the amenities of officiai correspondence, impress
you with the futility of urging upon this Government a reference direct
Vo the judicial committee, I beg of you Vo consider that statement, incor-
porated in this ietter.

WITNESS: Here are the words that we referred to. This is a quotation f rom
the opinion of the Minister of Justice issued in month of December, 1913, from
which the foilowing words are taken.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q. What are you reading fromn?-A. Relating Vo the MeKenna-MeBride

agreement, aiready quoted. I arn readiag from notes which were prepared for
the Hon. H. H. Stevens, Acting Minister of the Interior, on the 6th of January,
1926.

By the Chairman:
Q. Is that a document which has been piaced before the Committee?-A. No,

it bas not yet been placed before the Committee. I refer to page 3, and the
date is the 6th of Juiy.

Q. If you are going to read from that document, it shouid be placed on
reeord?-A. We wîll place it on record.

Mr. O'MEARA: It is a very desirable thing te have on record.

By Hon. Mr. McLennan:
Read it in the meantime ?-A. The whole document?
Q. No, just the part you wishi to quote?--A. This refers to the MeKenna-

MeBride agreement. (Reads Extract>.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: That is an extract sent te, a Minister, from an opinion

of the Minister of Justie. Now, where is that opinion? It is hardly f air to
put in evidence an extract froiiî a statement alleged to, have been made by
the Minister of Justice, read from a document prepared by Mr. O'Meara. There
is not even a reference to what it is f rom.

WITNESS: I beg Vo say it is a direct quotation. It ýis not simply rcferring
te what was offered, but it is a direct quotation.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: I say that it is an cxtract, but I say that it is hardly
fair Vo take an extract in that way.

Mr. O'MEARA: The opinion is available.

By Hon. gr. Murphy:
Q.Is that an extract froîn a letter written by the then Minister of Justice?-

A. By Mr. Doherty, yes. RvP..Kel]
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Q. To whom?-A. Lt was an opinion given on the MeKenna-MeBride
-Agreement, for the benefit of his government. Is that not right, Mr. O'Meara?

Mr. O'MEARA: And handed out Vo us.

By Hon. Mr. Murphy:
I. t was not a letter t-hen?-A. It was flot a letter, no.

Mr. O'MEAnA: Lt was an opinion. A memorandum of an opinion handed
tous.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Where is the original?
Mr. O'MFARA: 1V is no doubt on file in the Department.

By the Chairman:
Q.Have you the original of that opinion, Mr. Kelly?-A. We wilI have

the original placed on record. Mr. O'Meara will geV the original, if that will
satisfy the Committee.

By lion. Mr. Stewart:
Q. Mr. Kelly, Mr. Stevens quoted from an extract or from a subsequent

statement by Mr. Doherty with respect to going direct Vo, the Privy Council?
-A. That bears simply on the matter of procedure, does iV noV? Lt was because
of that that we stress the matter of independent proceeding Vo the Privy Council.

Hon. Mr. MiuP}n: You had previously over the signature of Vhe Mini8ter
of Justice the assurance of the Government of Canada Vo, Vhis effet:-

I should think it unlîkely that the Indians8 would eoncern. them-
selves with procedure. They have, I imagine, sufficient discernment to
proceed, if Vheir deliberations be noV infiuenced Vo Vhe contrary. The
question of procedure is at present quite irrelevant. No point of pro-
cedure will be permitted Vo prejudice the decision on the monits of the
case, and the Government will see to it that the proceedings are brought
and conducted in such a manner as Vo provide for the admission of aIl
the parties and arguments which are material.

That is an assurance given over the signature of the Minister of Justice, on
behialf of the Government of Canada. Now, surely iV is a waste of ime Vo be
discussing procedure Vwelve years after that letter was written.

The CHAIRMAN: Before that extract is proved it can hardly bo allowed Vo
go into the record as evidence.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: 1 would like Vo draw attention Vo this extract, which
jMr. O'Meara bias put into this memorandum.

Hon. Mr. MLuPi{Y: That Mr. Kelly lias just read?
H1-on. Mn. STEVENS: Yes. LV deals with a somewhat different subj oct. The

point thon was that this McKenna Commission deait with-and the Minister
of Justice of the day, acconding Vo this, says that-this reference Vo the Royal
Commission was the lands, and thon hie goes on to say-apropos of what, I do
noV know, bocause wo have noV the context-thaV the question of the aboniginal
titie was noV relevant, which Mr. O'Meara injeets into this; and thon what I
objected Vo the other day is that this is stated as if it was a positive finding of
the Minister of Justice that thene was an aboriginal Vile. ThaV is what I objeet
to, that hie is putting this in as evidence when it is noV evidence at ail. That
is the type of procodure I obj oct Vo befone the Committee..

The CHAIRMAN: Mn. Stevens, thon you agree that this should noV go into
the record at ail?
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Hon. Mr. STEVENS: This quotation of the Minister of Justice shouid flot go
into the record at ail because we have flot got the document it is taken from;
ail we are doing is Vaking Mr. O'Meara's word that he got it from sornewheTe.

The WITNESS: Willi i t be ail right to go in if we get the proper documents?

The CHAIRMAN: You get the proper documents.
Hon. Mr. STEVNENS: On the other hand, these other documents are before

us in the proper officiai manner.
Mr. O'MEmu: May I ask for information? I have a copy of that, but

it is not availabie at the moment.
The CHAIRMAN: It wili be on record in the Departrnent of Justice?
Mr. O'MEARÂ: Certainly.
The WITNESS: There is no doubt about the existence of this.
Hon. Mr. STEENS: 1 arn not questiornng it.
Mr. MCPHERSON: It is a question of how the extract deais with the context.
The WITNESS: The reason that question has aficen is this; 1 do not think

the Committee has heard this side of it; if they have, 1 do not know it. As
you know, today is my first presence here, and I did not notice in the record
of the proceedings this particular phase of it. There was an Order in Council
brought into existence in June, 1914, which made provision for the reference
of the case through the proper courts te the Privy Council.

By the Chairman:
Q. Where is that Order in Counil, is that in this record?-A. No. We are

trying to geL titis Conimitkee to agree to, our submitting a connected form of
our case s0 that it wili go on record.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q.1 wiii just give you precisely what has happened. The other day, Mr.

O'Meara, presumàing to represent you as~ counsel, would persist in making
quotations and reading such things as this?-A. I beg your pardon, the Order
in Council is on record at page 55.

Q. We are not objecting to the production of these things, but we do ask
that when they are referred to they shouid be produced?-A.' The reason that
was objected to-the Indians, without exception, objected te that. Just take
that and come down te the body of it, No. 1.

Hon. Mr. MuRoeHY: Reading now from page 55?
Hon. -Mr. STEVENS: P.C. 751, dated 2Oth June, 1914.
The WITNESS: We have the preambie set out, then we come to the body..

No. 1 rends as foiiows:-

The Indians of British Columbia shall, by their chiefs or represen-
tatives, in a binding way, agree, if thc court., or on appeai, thc iPrivy
Councîil, decides that they have a titie to lands of the province, te sur-
render such titie, receiving from the Dominion benefits te be granted for
extinguishment of titie in accordance with past usage of the Crown in
satisfying the Indian claim to unsurrendered territory, and to accept the
findings of the Royal Commission on Indian Aiffairs in British Columbia
as approved by the Governments of the Dominion and the province as
a full allotment of Reserve lands to be administered for their benefit as
part of the compensation.

Now, that was the heart of the issue, as we took it. The Indians were asked,
you sec, " in a binding way through their Chiefs and representatives," to agree
to whatever the Government saw fit to submit to us as satisfying our titie and
extinguishing our titie. R.P.. el]
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By lion. Mr. MkcLennan:
Q.Part of the covenancy for your surrendering the titie was the reserves;

the reserves were Vo he considered Vo be part of the compensation?-A. Yes.
Q. If they had given you $100,00,000, you would have had to surrender

titie and take the lands as part of the compensation?-A. That is so.
Q.That is the way it reads?-A. Lt does not read that way.

By lIon. Mr. Stevens:
Q.A moment ago you took the stand that what you claimed was that you

had a right Vo settie this. ouestion as it had been settled in other parts of Can-
ada; that the British Columbia Indians had been treated differently. That
says: " benefits to be granted for extinguishment of titie in accordance with
past usage of the Crown." Now, that is throughout the whole of Canada?-A.
Exactly. Just a while ago I pointed out the fact that in the other parts of the
Dominion Commissionýers were sent out and they met the Indians in a formai
way in council and negotiations took place. I said that perhaps it was just a
formai procedure; it might be true that treaties were drawn up beforehand
and the Indians could not make any advance in reference to them, but the fact
is they had negotiations and the Indians were met and terms discussed and
agreed to. This says that we shall accept whatever the Government sees fit Vo
give to us.

Q. It says, "receiving from the Dominion benefits to be granted for ex-
tinguishment of titie in accordance with past usage of the Crown in satisfying
the Indian dlaim to unsurrendered territory?"-A. There would have been no
objection, I assure this Coinmittee, to this particular paragrapli if there was
any reference made to negotiations, if the Indians were Vo be represented there
and after talking about the matter we would agree Vo some sort of settiement.

Dr. SCOTT: The whole thing is provided for in the clause. Negatiations
would have Vo, take place, but the benefits would be in aceordance with past
usage of the Crowii ini these inatters.

Hon. Mr. MuRPHY: iNot merely past usage in relation Vo the Indians of
British Columbia, but the Indians of the whole Dominion?

Dr. SCOTT: Ycs. In the mernorandum which accompanied it I explained
what these usages were, and in my report I analyzed some of these things, but
there was to be an agreemnent according to the past usage of the Crown.

Hon. Mr. MCLENNý,AN: Were the Indians made aware of that?
Dr. 'SCOTT. This was ntver brought before them in a formai way. This

Order in Council was printed and they knew what it was. 0f course, the real
objection was that they did flot wish to accept the findings of the Royal Com-
mission.

The WITNESS: I think the Doctor will agree with this; that forms were
sent out to the different agencies in the province of British Columbia and it was
demanded 'that the Indian Chief s or representatives sign their names signing
away their Tights, even before they knew the contenis of the report of the Royal
Commission.

Dr. SCOTT: That îs quite wrong; that is noV the fact at ah. I gave my
agents certain copies but they were noV authorized. or dîrected to submît them
to the Indians or discuss them with the Indians. Lt was only for their own
information, but Mr. Kelly got a copy.

The WITNESS: If my understanding of that is wrong I amn quite willing Vo
be corrected; I do not wish to stretch anything 'beyond its proper meaning and
intention. Since the Deputy Minister of Indian Affairs has brought this before
the Committee and given that explanatîon, I accept lis explanation.
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By Hon. Mr. MuTphy:
Q.Mr. Kelly, this P.C. 751 not only ýprovides for what Dr. Scott said, but

it goes on to say that in the event of submission to the Courts the. Government
of British Columbia shall be represented by counsel and the Indians shall be
represented by counsel inominated and paid ;by the Dominion?-A. Yes.

Q. So that there was every provision made in this Order in Council for
safeguarding the rights of the Indians, and for submitting thema properly to the
court?-A. If the Indians were taken into confidence a littie more I think a
great deal of misunderstanding and trouble would have been eliminated. I say
that in ahl seriousness.

Q. You mean that if the terms of this Order in -Council had been first sub-
mitted to a conference or meeting, such as you describe, and ail the matters
thrashed out and fully* understood, the whole thing would have been probably
agreed to then?-A. I think so. I firmly believe that if that sort of thing had
been done a great deal of trouble wouLd have been eliminated. It bas noV been
done. I hope that the Committee is prepared to admnit this; that we are noV
quite as illiterate as we used to be; we are not quite as ignorant as we used to
be in British Columbia sixty or seventy-five years ago. We lhave mnade a littie
progress since that day. My friend, Mr. Pa.ull, the Secretary of our Alliance,
is a very competent man, and I think seemed to impresýs the Commîttee. They
are flot ail just like him but we have-

Q. He is a fair sample?-A. He is a fair sample of a good many. Wc have
young men who are capable of doing their own thinking and who are capable
of seeing things just as any ordinary man. There bas noV been a frank under-
standing about that particular matter. I would like to givd a great deal of
credit to the present Minister of the Interior, noV because he is here, but I think
he was the first Minister of the Crown who made a trip Vo British Columbia to
find out the facts of the case as f ar as he was able Vo, and who, met us in con-
ference and discussed matters frankly. Now, we did not go the whole way, but
1 thînk it was the beginning of a progress. It was the sort of thing that should
have been done in days gone by, but it was noV done, and because of that there
bas been a great deal of mîsunderstanding and perhaps a great deal of expendi-
ture of money needlesshy. I say that in ai frankness. We have taken our
interpretation of this Order in Council, whether rightly or wrongly, and the
report of the Royal Commission was not acceptable to the Indians. We had to
agree Vo that, as you see in the reading of this, to accept that which was objec-
tionable.

By Hon. Mr. Steven.s:
Q.You were asked to accept before the Royal Commission made their

findings; this was when the Royal Commission were really doing their work?-
A. (No audible answer.)

Mn. PA-ULL: They were right in the field.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q. They were in the field?-A. Yes.
Q. Tbey wene ýasking you to accept a finding that was repugnant Vo yo'i?

They were asking that you would accept, as the two governments had, the fini-
ing of this Commission, and abide by it, as to lands and lands alone. Surely that
is not unreasonable?-A. I think Màr. Stevens knows that the Indians strongly
objected We great areas being eut off, which. was part of the report of that Royal
Commission; 30,000 acres in Penticton.

Q. You did not know that at the time you turned this down?
Mr. PATJLL: That is wby the'Indians would not agree to the contents _)f

this Order in Council, before they knew what the report of the Commission would

[Rev. P. R. Kelly.1
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Hon. Mr. STEVENS: That may be the reason, but 1 amn pointing out that
they could not have objected to the McKenna Report because they did not know
what it was.

Mr. PAULL: That is the very reason. We were asked to accept something
in the report which we did not know anything of. Another condition was that
this report would be accepted by the two governments. Th. actual facts of the
case are these; that the Dominion Government did not accept this report until
ten years from the time this Order in Council was passed. Were the Indians to
accept a report which they knew nothing of? Supposing, in 1914, the Indians
had agreed to the provisions of the Royal Commission. Some of them would
have been very sorry now, because great portions of the best parts of their reserve
are eut out by that Commission.

Mr. DITCHBURN: You were not being asked to d6 that, Mr. Pauli.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: That is what 1 arn trying to impress on the minds of

the Committee. Both Mr. Kelly and Mr. Pauli are arguing this thing wrong.
This is a voluntary act on the part of the Government to try and assist this
thing to a settlement.

The WITNESS: I beg to correct that. .1 do not think the Hon. Mr. Stevens
is just correct when he says that.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Not correct in what?
The WITNESS: In this respect: that the Commission had power, not only

to make additions to the Indian lands, but to eut off, and the Indians objected
to thaît word "eut-off". They did not know what was going to be eut off
and that was one of the objections. If they agreed to that they did not know
where they were going to get pff at.

Mr. DITCHBUIuN: At that time the eut-off was only to be made with the
consent of the Indians; you will remember that.

The WiTNEss: Perhaps it was with the consent of the Indians. Well, that
was one of the objections.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: It could not be an objection if it did not exist at
that tirne.

Mr. DITCHBURN: There was no objection, then, because of the eut-off.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Because, as Mr. Ditchburn says, the eut-off was subse-

quent to the agreement by the Indians.
The WITNESS: I arn just a littie bit at a loss; my memory does not carry

me back that far.
Hon. Mr. STEWART: There is no doubt, as far as I can discover, that the

Indians were neyer prepared. to agree; the body of Indians I came in contact
with, known as the representatives of the Allied Tribes, were nover prepared
to a.gree to the full text of the land settlement, for two reasous. One that there
were cut-offs whieh they thought were too extravagant, and the other was that
they did not think they had land enough in the whole area provided for the
InýâUans.

By Hon. Mr. Stewart:
Q. Those were the two reasons you gave me whlen we were discussing

this?-A. That is quite right.
Hon. Mr. STEWART: I do not know that we will get very far in discussing

what might have happened or what rnight have been done. The fact reinains
that you neyer signed the agreement to that effeet, and it is stili unsigned.
What I would ilike to get from you is this: you have put in a petition of rights
to, Parliament, and subsequently you have filed a petition asking that you be
perinitted to go to the Privy. Council; that is the text of the latest petîtion,
the one that we are discussig now?

[Btey. P. R. Kelly.]
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By Hon. Mr. Stewart:
Q.Are you stili satisfied that that petition will satisfy the people you

represent? That is, you ask for certain things; the latest addition to which 1
took exception was $2,000,00O; the otjher was mostl1y for educatdon and ail that

sort of thing. You are stili in the saine position as when you filed that peti-

tion?-A. Yes; we have had nu occasion to change our minds; we are exactly

in the same position we were in then.
Q. That has extinguished the dlaim you might have to aboriginal titie?-

A. Yes.
By Mr. McPherson:

Q. And you want the Privy Council to fix the terms of the extinguishing?

Hon. Mr. STEWART: Mr. Kelly and 1 have discussed that, and I do not know

whether or not that should corne up here. That is the one thing which caused

me to hesitate to suggest to our governinent, or even later to discuss it in

Parliament-a reference to the Courts. In discussing it it developed that Mr.

Kelly and others held'the view that ini ail probability, even if it reached the

Privy Counil-Perlhaps 1 had better preface that by saying this to them; law

is usually, when it is obscure, a matter of precedent; a precedent exists ail

over Canada; the government has dealt with the Indian îtribes largely by

Treaty, sometimes, otherwise; but throughout this, the fact was very apparent

that* the Crown, whether by conquest or otherwise, claimed the land, and they

were dealing with the Indians on the basis of providing them adequately wit4i

land to, carry on as Indian people, and later, by education, medical attention,
and otherwise. That discussion, in my opinion, would bie settled by precedent,
even if it reached that stage, and then we would be left in a very unsatisfaM-

tory position, by the Courts or the Privy Council deciding w'hat the ternie

were to be; that would still have to be settled. 1 think that was agreed to very
largely by you, Mr. Kelly.

The WITNESS: Yes.
Hon. Mr. STEWART: If that is the case, that is why 1 hesitated at once

to recommend procedure by law. The reason this has not been settled is that

there lias been a hýope that some grounds of settlement could he arrived at,

but as yet it lias not been reached, and the British Columbia governmlent, no

matter of what polîtical stripe, maintains the position-and we may as well

be frank-that ail they would do was to provide adequate reserves for the

Indians, and the rest of the problemn was for the Federal goverument, leav-

ing the thing in a very obscure position so that. we -wýould still have to, settle

ail these things in detail.
The WIrTNESS: .I want to read a couple of paragraphs from the record

No. 1 of March 3Oth, appearing on page 31, appendix A, "Statement of the

AIIied Indian Tribes of British C'olumbia for the government of British Colum-

bia; General Introductory Remarks:
The statement prepared by the committee appointed by the confer-

ence held at Vancouver in June, 1916, and sent to the governinent of

Canada, and the Secretary of State for the Colonies, contained the
following:

The committee concludes this statement by asserting that while it is

believed that ail of the Indian tribes of the province will press on to the

judicial committee, refusing to consider any so-called settiement made up

under the McKenna agreement, the committee also feels certain that the

tribes allied for that purpose will always be ready to consider any really

equitable niethod of settlement, out of Court, which might be proposed by
the governments.

We stili maintain that position to-day, and we think it is a fair position to take.
[Rev. P. R. Kelly.]
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A resolution passed by the Interior Tribes at a meeting at Spencer's
Bridge on the 6th December, 1917, contained the following:-

We are sure that the government and a considerable number ofwhite men have for many years had in their minds a quite wrong idea ofthe dlaims which we make, and the settiement which we desire. We donot want any-thing extravagant, and we do not want anything hurtfu! tothe real interests of the white people. We want that our actual rights bedetcrmined and recognized; we want a settiement based upon j ustice. Wcwant a full opportunity of making a future for ourselves. Wc want ailthis donc in such a way that in the future we shall be able to live andwork with the white people as our brothers and fellow-citizens.
I think that brings before this committee the real mind of the Indians ofBritish Columbia. After ail, I think we are not so very far apart, if we are willing

to admit that the Indians have a right.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q.Are you through, Mr. Kelly?-A. I do nlot think that there is any morethat I can add to it. Mr. Chairman, I wuuld like to say this; it seems to methat this high court of this Parliament of Canada -at Ieast, some of the mem-bers of it-have not come to any decision. There is the question, have we anyright? If wc have no right, why have we no right? The right has never. beentaken away from us, as has been concedcd time and again. The govcrnmenttakes that view; then why not deal with our righit, as wc have been asking for?That is putting the thing in a nutshchl.

Q. I do flot know how you establish that.-A. We say our aboriginal titiehas neyer been extinguished. Can you show us whcn it has been extinguished;
if it has been, it was donc while we werc asleep.

Dr. SCOTT: It has been cxtinguished from 104,000 acres, more or Iess, by
Trcaty Number 8.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: I think it w-as extinguished in the lower part of Van-
couver Island by Treaty.

The WITNESS: Yes, we admit that. We have admitted where iL lias been
donc. The Hudson's Bay Company has donc that.

By Hon. Mr. Stevyens:
Q.Then there would appear to be an extinguishment of it-I cannot Saythere is any document or instrument available-bv common consent over a very,very long period of ycars, by acquiesence on the part of the Indians, and therehas not been a single citation that I can recail of early negotiations, which didnot rest upon merely a discussion of the area to be set aside. The fact that theQucen or other authority was setting aside an area seems to permeate everynegotiation.-A. 1 think that is the very point on which we differ. One member

says that iL has dicd a natural death, if one may put it that way, because manyyears have elapsed since the matter was discusscd, or at least acknowledged, orrecognized by the governmcnt, and it has not yet been deait with.
Hon. Mr. MCLENNAN: You want to go further back than that.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Prior to Confederation.
Hon. Mr. MOLENNAN: Whcn the British people came to British Columbia,they exercised without contest the righit to sovercignty.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: They týook possession of the land in the name of the

Qucen, or of the King. as the case might he.
Hon. Mr. McLENNAN: Yes. And occupation continued from that Lime.

[Rev. P. R. Kelly.]
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WITNESS: Well, once again, 1 maintain, if you say that we have not estab-
lished our position, then just in the same measure the Governent cannot
show-either this Government or the Provincial--cannot show by what instru-
ment the Indian titie has ever been extinguished.

Mr. MCPiE:RSON: In a great number of the provinces, tities have been
extinguiished ii tiirLy years. That is, tile Go land has been lost, by riglit of
occupation, by an adverse occupant.

Hon. Mr. STE.VENS: Squatters' rights.
WITNE-SS: Then white men who came to British Columbia were squatters?
Mr. MOPHERSON: We mîghit say that.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: There are lots of squatters in British Columbia now.

There are some right in the heart of Vancouver.
WITNESS: If you take that position, then may I say this?
Mr. MCPHERSON: I arn not taking that position, I arn suggesting that the

extinguishment of title by occupation is not an unheard of statement.
WITNEss: Then the land that has not been squatted upon is the 'land of

the Indians.
Mr. MCPHERSON: No, tlic King took possesmion of the whole territory.
Mr. PATYLL: Mr. Chairman, if I may interrupt for the moment?
The CHAIRIUAN: No, wait until Mr. Kelly finishes.
WITNESS: Mr, Chairinan, I began with a plea for tolerance on helhaif of

our counsel to present his argument, juLst to mcet. such questions as are now being
brought to the surface; to preýsent a constitutional argument so thýat, wfhether
it be strong or weak, the constitutional side of our stand may 'be presented in
a full way. Then, gentlemen, I would take it that vou would be in a position
to decide in a vcry fair, unbiased way, whatcver vou wish to decide upon this
very important question.

The CHAIRMAN: The Committee will take that into consideration.

By Hon. Mir.. Stewvart:
Q.Mr. Kelly, supposiag Dr. Seott has made an estimate based upon a

settLement by treaty of a certain portion of Vancouver Island; if he has taken
the amount of that settiemeat and has calculated it on that basis, that if the
rest of the title had been settlcd at that time bhy treaty, and the amount hiad
been claimed-that has not been discussed this afternoon, but what would your
opinion be? Have you seen that statement?-A. No, I have not.

Q. It would be unfair then to ask you the question?-A. I have not studied
that at ail.

Mr. PAULL: May I ask whichi statement that is?
Hon. Mr. STEWART: Tt is a staten]ent in Dr. Scott's memorandum, indicat-

ing what yýour titie would have been worth at that particular time on the
basis of the other.

Mr. PAULL: He estimated that in twenty years, it would have been worth,
$2,472,00.

Dr. SCOTT: No, that is not what the Minister referred to at all. He refers
to, the comparative statement that I made when I was addressing the Committee,
and which appears on page 15.

Hon. Mr. STEWART: This is on tlie Treaty for Vancouver Island.
Dr. SCOTT: It appears on page 15 of the proceedings of March 30, and the

following pages 16 and 1,7.
Hon. Mr. STEWART: I do not want to delay the Commit-tee to a.Sk Mr.

Kelly that queýstion.
(Rev. P. R. Kelly.]
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Mr. PA-ULL: Vancouver Island happens to be my constituency, so to speak,
and that is why 1 amn anxious to speak about it. Mr. Kelly deals with the other
parts of the province. I arn entrusted with the work of discussing the matter
of the treaties that were entered into with the Hudson Bay Company.

Hon. Mr. MuRPHY: As they affect Vancouver Island?
Mr. PAULL: Yes.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Are you bringing them into the question?
Mr. PAULL: No, 1 ar n ot introducing that. I thought that was what we

were being asked about.
Hon. Mr. McLENNAN: Here is a calculation býased on what was paid when

that titie was extinguishied.
Mr. MÇPIR.soN: It was baised on one dollar a square mile. I thought

Mr. Stewart was asking you whether you would be satisfied with one dollar a
square mile.

Mr. PAULL: Then 1 understand you. The Indians in the immediate vicinity
of where these treaties were made contended that they only sold a certain area
of the land, and that they did not seil their aboriginal titie.

Mr. MOPHERSON: I think what Mr. Paull means is that while they sold
a definite location, they stili claimed an interest in the balance of the Province.

Mr. PAULL: Shall I read the, Treaty?
Hon. Mr. MURPHY: What he said was that they stili held an interest in

what they sold.
Hon. Mr. McLENNAN: That is that they maintained their sovereign rights.
WITNESS: Mr. Chairman, let us be fair. I submit that the Committee is

not quite fair to us in this. Because the Hudson Bay Company gave a blanket
here and there to the Indians, and thereby claimed a certain area of land, it
cannot be said that that was a fair dealing at aIl. Surely that can be conceded.
Surely no hon, gentlemen would suggest that on the basis of what the Hudson
Bay Company bas done in a certain portion of Vancouver Island, now in this
way any Governnient would begin to treat with non-Treaty Indians. The idea
of one dollar per square mile is impossible.

By Hon. 11r. Barnard:
Q. For the Indian title?-A. Yes. I think it is an insult to intelligence for

any title, whether Indian or any other.
By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q.Mr. Kelly, before you get warmed up, let us corne to the complaint that
the Indians of British Columbia have not an opportunity of negotiating treaties
on the same basis and in the saine manner as others have. That was one of your
complaints?-A. Quite so.

Q. Now, as a matter of fact, two sections of British Columbia were deait
with by treaty in precisely that. manner?-A. By the Hudson Bay Company.

Q. By the authorities of that time?
By Hon. Mr. Barnard:

Q. They were not both by the Hudson Bay Company?-A. Vancouver
Island was by the Hudson Bay Company.

By Hon. M1r. Stevyens:
Q. One was by the Crown?--A. That is the one that is brought in as a

suggested basis, Vancouver Island, which was done by the Hudson Bay Comn-
pany; not Treaty No. 28.

Q. I have not given utterance to the thoýight that that should be the basis
of settlement, but supposing the question of the aboriginal title is admitted,

[Rev. P. R. Kelly.]
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what would you want? That is what we have been trying to get from every
witness who has been before us, but we have neyer been able to get it?-A. I

do not think that is a f air statement. Dr. S'cott has filed as part of the evidence
subrnitted. by him, our dlaim; what we consider to be ani equitable basis of
settiement, and I cannot see why it is asserted again and again that we have not
made any specific dlaim, but have rnereiy rnadc a sort of general dlaim. That
is not a fair thing Vo say.

Q. I arn talking about the aboriginal title?-A. Exactiy. The aboriginal
title is what I arn discussing. Lt is what we ask for in extinguishment of the
aboriginal title.

Mr. DiTcHBURN: Mr. Kelly, in a portion of Vancouver Island, they sold
not only the aboriginal tiLle but they sold the whole of the land, retaining enly
certain areas for their reserves. They flot only ceded the aboriginal titie, but
they sold the whole of that land to the Hudson Bay Company, and that was
always recognized by the Victoria Goverrnent afterwards.

WITNEss: I arn not disputing that. I do not intend to repudiate what was
done, however unjust it was. I arn not for one moment repudiating that. Lt
was done. Whatever area was described by those treaties, of course we are

*bound by to-day. We do not question that for one moment. But what we do
say is, why pick out that as being the basis for dealing with the other parts of
the province?

By Hon. Mr. LMcLennan:
Q. Lt is for you to bring forward evidence controverting iL. This was a

thing which actually took place at a certain time?-A. Yes, it was done by a
trading company.

Hon. Mr. MCLENNAN: What the Department of the Interior says is not

law to the Committee. Lt is simply something to enlighten us, and we are

anxieus to hear from you anything that wilI enlighten us on the other side.

WITNESS: On page 36 of No. 1 this appears:-

Conditions proposed as basis of settiement.

Now, is not this what you want, Mr. Chairman? I take it this is what he

asked for. I arn reading from page 36 of No. 1 of the proceedings of this Com-
mittee, on Wednesday, March 30.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q.Are they ail set forth on these three pages signed by yourself and Mr.
Teit?-A. Yes.

Mr. PAULL: Those are the conditions on which we are agreed te relinquish
any titie we may have.

WiTNEss: To carry this out, L presume this Committee would bave to
labour for a year, to get through ail the details of iL. You can only rccommend

in a general way. Lf you wish me to read it, L will read it?

The CHAIRMAN: Ne, it is not necessary to read it.

WITNEsS: Well, there it is then; these are the conditions we have put for-

ward, and this was amplified when we met the Deputy Superintendent General

of Lndian Affairs in Victoria, in the summer of 1923, appendix "Ht' L believe
it is.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: 1 think thcy want the grarnt of the existence of abori-
ginal title, and, secondly, those are the conditions under which they are pre-

pared to surrender that aboriginal tiLle; that is really what it amounts to.

Hon. Mr. STENVART: That is the contention, yes. With respect to fishing,
there are not many complaints.

[Bey. P. R. Kelly.]



SPECIAL COMMITTEE

By Hon. Mr. Stewart:
Q.The complaints with respect te fishing rights have been greatly reduced

since 19J22?-A. Yes, thev have been wonderfully adjusted; discriminations
agaînst the ,Indians have been done away with, 1 arn glad to say, since that
Commission on fisheries made its recommýeAdiations. But this is a sore point;
when an Indian needs fish for food it has been made harder for him to get it;
for commercial fishing he has been put on equal footing with the white mani.

Q. Fishing for food, what iýs the difficulty about that?-A. I will give yeu
a case in point. Just a yecar ago last summer a young man went up the Nana.imo
river and speared a salmon, and he was hauled up by the guardian and the fish
taken from him.

QThe Provincial Guardian?-A. No, the Dominion Guardian.
Q.One of our own fisheries men?-A. Under the Fisheries Act. He was

taken to court and fined. That is only one instance of many similar cases. The
point, of course, made eut was this; that he had to get a special permit before
he could catch fish for himself.

By ffim. Mr. Stevens:
Q. What permit is this; is it a very difficuit thing to get-A. It is a written

permit on which is specified the time limîts in which he is privileged to catch
fish for food, and the manner in which he shaîl catch the fish is specified also.

By Mr. Hay:
Q. He killed this fish out of season?-A. Ne, it was not out cf seasen; he

did nlot have a permit.

By Hon. Mr. McLennan:
Q.Would the white mani have been subjected te the same thing if he had

takcn out fish without a pcrmit?-A. 1 suppose se.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: What explanation do you give, Mr. Ditchburn, frem

your acting as a sort of guardian cf the Irndians' rights, cf that instance; what
;Q your view?

Mr. DITC.IBUUN: 0f the fishing?
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: 0f an instance such as Mr. Kelly mentions?
Mr. DITCHBIJRN: Well, this Indian was pulled up for non-cempliance with

the regulations set up by the Department cf Fisherieis, whereby he mnust net
take fish for food purposes without a license. They were net allowed to take fish
hy means cf a spear or gaif hock; they are new, in some instances, but they
specify the method cf taking these fish in different streams.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: From yeur knewledge cf the situation do you censider
there was a grievance :because cf this regulation?

Mr. DiTO HBIJRN: I think se; 1 felt that they had a right te get at these
fish. I think it is a matter of net interpreting the Spirit cf the regulation
properly. If the local authorities would use a little more common judgment
and have a proper appreciation cf things, I do net think there would be haif
the trouble with the lIndians that there is.

The CHAIRMAN, When you say that, does that apply te the other?
Mr. DiTCHBURN: As far as I know, in British Columbia aIl the fisheries

are held by the Dominion Department; I do net think that the Provincial Game
Branch dees anything about isheries at all.

The CHAIRMAN: What I mean is, have you had complaints from up-
country cf the same nature as Mr. Kelly menmions here, as occurring down on
the coast?

Mr. DiTcHBURN: Well, they occur at different positions; it depends on
where the Indians are taking their flsh. Sometîmes they allow them te take
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them on spears; sometimes with a dip net; sometimes by a gafif, and sometimes
by littie pens. There would flot be haif the trouble with these Indians if the
officiais would go out and find out just what practical methods could be put
into effect at the different points. That dees not seem to have been done so far.

Hon. Mr. MCLENNAN: Is there any difficulty in applying for a permit?
Mr. DITCHBURN: Not for food purposes.
Hon. Mr. STEwART: As f ar as I can learn, with few exceptions we have

pretty well met the petition. We will have the Fiehery Commissioner,' Mr.
Found, here. Mr. Ditchburn does think that the Indians are entiled to more
consideration that they have got.

The WiTNEss: I arn very glad the Commissioner of Indian Affairs bas
made the explanation. Hie knows exactly what he is talking about. We had a
discussion wiîth Mr. Found ini Ottawa two or three years ago >on that very thing.
H1e said that the Capilano river was for the: sportsmen of British Columbia and
the Indians' needs were not to be considered; that the sportsmen, fishing with a
fly, rod and line, had the riglit of way and the Indian wanting to get fish for
food, and getting it wiith a gaif, was flot to be considered; he was to be punished
for doing so. Those, are the words, and if the gentleman was here I think he
would eonfirm them. Mr. Pauli said to hima, " Where will we go for our fish?"'
" Oh, go to Vancouver Island, the Cowichan river, or some other river on
Vancouver Island, and get your fish. That particular thing is too valuable;
it is for the interests of sportsmen, and not for the nceds of Indiians." That
sort of spirit has aggravated things. There is too much of that.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, it is six o'clock, and we 'have had a long
sitting this afternoon. When shall we meet again?

The witness retired.
The committee adjourned untid Tuesday, April 5, 1927, at 10 a.m.

EXHIBIT NO. 4
From Andrew Paull

ALLiED INDIAN TRIBES 0F BRITISH COLUMBIA

We represent nominally ail the Indians of British Columbia with the excep-
tion of those Indians coming under Treaty No. 8, and the Songhees and the
Sooke Indians on Vancouver Island.

At the conference in June 1916, the following tribes were allied.
The Interior:-The Okanagon, Lake or Senjextee, Tompson River at Cour-

teau, Shuswap, Lilooet, Kutenai, Chilcotin, Carrier, Tahlton, Kasha; and on
The Coast and North :-The Nishga, Tsimpshian trihes, Kitikshian, ilaida,

Bellacoola, Cowichan and Lower Fraser or Stalo.
A larger alliance was formed in the year 1922 When the foqlowing tribes

were represented.
"The Reverend Chairman informed the meeting that this was not au~

allied tribe meeting but a general meeting of ail B.C. Indians, and for the
assembly to express their views.

Those present were as follows:-Rev. P. R. Kelly, representing Haida
tribe; Charlie Saylaykultin, representing Musqucan; Chief Paul White, repre-
senting iNaimo; Chief Billy Yaklum, representîng Naniamo; Sam Smith, repre-
senting Naniamo; Ohief Charlie, representing Naniamo; Chief George, repre-
senting Cowichan; Chief Modiste, representing Cowichan; John Elliott, repre-
senting Cowichan; Chief David, representing Saanich Triibe; Tommy Paul,
representing Saanich Tribe; Chris Paul, representing Saanich Tribe; Chief Billy
Asser, representing Cape Mudge Tribe; James Howell, represtnting Cape
Mudge Tribe; Johnny Dick, representing Cape Mudge Tribe; Chas. Nowell,
representing Albert Bay Tribe; Johnny Drable, representing Albert Bay Tribe;
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Harry Mountain, representing Fort Rupert Tribe; Chief Smith, representing
Fort Rupert Tribe; Bob Harris, representing Fort Rupert Tribe; Jim Humehet,
representing Kingcome Inlet; Harry Johnson, representiing Kingcome Inlet; Albert
King, representing Bella Coola; Rueben Schooner, representing Bella Coola;
Chief Harry Stewart, representing Lower Fraser Tribes; George Matheson, repre-
senting Lower Fraser Tribes; Chief Harry Joe, representing Lower Fraser Tribes;
Dennis, Peters, representing Lower Fraser Tnibes; Chief Stephen Retasket, repre-
senting Lilloett Tribes; Johnny Antoine, representing Lilloett Tribes; Chief Harry
Peters, representing Fort Douglas Tribes; Chief A. J. Stager, representing
Pemberton Tribes; Paul Dick, representing Pemberton Tribes; Willie Pascal,
representing Pemberton Tribes; Aleck Leonard, representing Kamloops Tribes;
Johnny Galokuum4 representing Campbell River Trîbes; Chief Bazil David,
representing Smilkamien Tribes; Wm. Turpa.skiatt, representing Smilkamien
Tribes; Narcisse Batiste, representing Nakiimip Tribes; Chief Michael Jack,
representing Penticton Tribes; Jimmny Antoine, representing Okanagon Tribes;
Francoise Guguere,-representing Okanagon Tribes; Joseph George, representing
Fairview Tribes; Chief Johnny Chillikitza, representing Nicola Valley Tribes;
Chief Jonoh, representing Merritt Nicola Valley; Ambrose Reid, representing
Tsimptian Tribes; Andrew Paull, representing Squamish Tribes; Chief Mathi as,
representing Squamish T1ribes,; Chief George, representing Squamish Tribes;
Chief Moses Joseph, representing Squamish Tribes.

At the above mentioned meeting, the following resolution was passed.
Whereas it is apparent that there are two factions of organization at this

meeting, namely the Allied Tribes and independent party. To try and bring
these two parties together, therefore, be it resolved that the Indians of B.C.
join an organization of Indians to fight Bills 13 and 14 and adopt for its policy
the statement of the Allied- Indian Tribes of B.C. for the Government of B.C.,
said organization to have standing executîve committee which will consist of
Indians and others dccmcd acceptable by Interiors."

Since the above meeting all Indians on the coast of the main land and on
the east and west coast of Vancouver Island have joined that organization.

Certified Correct,

ANDREW PAULL,
Secre tary.

EXHIBIT NO. 5
From A. D. Maclntyire

A JOINT ýCOMMITTEE ON INDîAN AFFAiRtS 0F SENATE AND HOUSE 0F COMMONS

Names of Indian Chief s and their Reserves of the Interior of British Colum-
bia represented by Chief Johnny Chillitza, liereditary Chief of the Okanagan
tribes.

Chief Basil David of the Bonaparte of the Cariboo, tribes; Chief William
Pierrish of the Shuswap Reserve for the Shuswap tribes, and Chief Etienne
Adrian of Squilax, also a Shuswap; Chief Eli Larue, Kamloops Reserve; Chief
Jimmy Gabriel, Clinton Reserve; Chief Joe Moses, High Bar Reserve; Chief Wm.
Tilliam, Williams Lake Reserve; Chief Sampson, Aikali Lake Reserve; Chief
Louie Timmaskin, Canoe Creek Reserve; Chief Christopher, Canim Lake
Reserve; Chief Joe Machel, Silver Creek Reserve; Chief Jimmy Antoine, Dead
Man's Creek Reserve; Chief Major Checkslish, Leon's Creek Reserve; Chief
Duncan, Prince George Reserve; Chief Michel, Masco Reserve; Chief Morris
Gray Tlooskis Lake Reserve; Chief Tommy Sannish, Anahame Lake Reserve;
Chief Edian Chilhouwskin, Chase Reserve; Chief Charlie Francois, Squilax
Reserve; Chief Johnny Isaac, Okanagan Reserve; Chief Louie Paul, Athîmer
Reserve; Chief David Cassimer, Chuchua Reserve; Chief Scottie, Askcroft
Reserve; Chief Michel Jack, Penticton Reserve; Chief Alexis Sceanse, Smiika-
meen Reserve; Chief Louie Abel, Windermere Reserve; Chief Joe Hanna, Cha-
louse Reserve; Chief Charlie Squakam, Spences Bridge Reserve; Chief Francois
Silpahan, Tappen Reserve.
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Com.NiTTE Room 368,

TIJESDAY, April 5th, 1927.

The Joint Special Comrnittee appointed to inquire into the dlaims of the
AIlied Indian Tribes of British Columbia, as set f orth in their petîtion sub-
mitted to Parliament in June, 1926, met at 10.00 o'clock, Hon. Mr. Bostock,
presiding.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, what further evidence do you wishr to hear
this morning? Mr. Dit.chburn is here, and I understand Mr. Found wiIl be here
shortly.

Hon. Mr. MCLENNAN: There is one point, Mr. Chairman, I was flot clear
about in Mr. Kelly's evidence. As 1 understood it, he claimed that a purchase,
such as that made by James Douglas at Victoria of a certain area of land, did
not extinguish the title,--the aboriginal titie to that land. Was I correct in
that?

The CHAIRMAN: Senator (Hon. Mr. McLennan) would you like to put
Mr. Kelly Iback on the stand?

Hon. Mr. McLENNAN: Yes, I would.
The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Kelly, will you take your place at the end of the

tablc again?

Rev. P. R. KELLY recalled.

The CHAIRMAN: You have already been sworn.
The WITNESS: Yes. I do not think I sa.id that.

By Hon. 31r. McLennan:
Q.1 wanted to be clear on that point, Mr. Kelly.-A. It was the secretary

who made that remark. A treaty is a treaty; it does not matter what the
grounds are; nevertheless it is binding on both parties, and I think the treaty
should speak for itself. We have the text of the treaty here, and it should be
put -before the committee. That will clear the matter up. Shahl I read the
treaty?

Q. Read the essential point of it.-A. It is not long; just a paragraph. This
is a conveyanAce of land to Hudson's Bay Company-

The CHAIRMAN: I do flot understand from what you are rcading.
The WITNESS: A conveyance of land to the Hudson's Bay Company.
The CHAIRMAN: That has not as yet been put in the record; it will have

to be filed.
The WITNESS: Yes, we will put it in the record. This is the Saanich

trihe-south Saanich. (Reading):
Know aîl men that we, the chiefs and people of the Saar4ch Tribe,'

who have signed our names and made our. marks to, this deed on the
sixth day of February, one thousand eight hundred and fifty-two, do
consent to surrender, entirely and for ever, to James Douglas, the agent

LRev. P. R. Kelly.]
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of the Hudson's Bay Company in Vancouver Island, that is to say, for
the Governor, Deputy Governor, and Committee of the sanie, the whole
of the lands situate and lying between Mount Douglas and Cowichan
Head, on the Canal de Haro, and extending thence to the line run»ing
through the centre of Vanc 'ouver Island, north and south.

The condition of or understanding of this sale is this, that our
village sites and enclosed fields, are to be kept for our own use, for the
use of our children, and for those who may follow after us; and the land
shall be properly surveyed hereafter. It is understood, however, that the
land itself, with these small exceptions, becomes the entire property
of the white people for ever; it is also understood that we are at liberty
to. hunt over the unoccupied lands, and to carry on our fisheries as
formerly.

We have received, as payrnent, forty-one pounds thirteen shillings
and four pence.

In token whereof, we have signed our names and made our marks,
at Fort Victoria, on the 7th day of February, one thousand eight hundred
and fifty-two.

And then follows the signatures. I might say there are several other
rcatics, but they are ail similar, except in the definition of the areas concerned.

The CHAIRMAN: Does the comrnittee wish to have ail the treaties put in
the records?

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: 1 think ail the treaties should be in the record. What
others have you there, Mr. Kelly?

The WITNESS: They are ail there.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: You have these, Doctor Scott, have you not?
Dr. Sco'rr: Yes; they are in the printed record.
The CHAiRmANi\: Are there any other questions te ask of Mr. Kelly?
The witness retired.
The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Pauli, you undertook to produce a letter the other

day when you were giving your evidence. The cierk tells me it lias not been
produced.

Mr. PAIJLL: Unfortunately it has flot arrived. The first day I was on
the train 1 discovered the document waS missing, and 1 wrote te my 'wife, but
she, not heing acquainted with my filing system, did not find it until Saturday.
I got a telegram saying she had mailed it on Saturday; I will have it here on
Thursday or Friday.

The CHAIRMAN: Does the cornmittee wish to examine Mr. Ditchburn?
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: I think we shouid hear Mr. Ditchburn, Mr. Chairman.
The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Ditchburn, wîhl you please take the stand?

WILLIAM EIINEST DÏTCHBURN called and sworn.

By the Chairman:
Q. What is your occupation, Mr. Ditchburn?-A. I arn the Commissioner

of Indian Affairs for Britishi Columbia.
Q. You may be seated, Mr. Ditchhurn. Is there any statement you wish

te make to the Committee, or would you prefer to be questioned?-A. I think,
Mr. Chairman, I woul prefer to answer any questions that the Committee
miglit wish to put to me, and 1 will try to answer them.

9»Mr. W. E. Ditchburn.]
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-By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q.Mr. Chairman, 1 would like to ask Mr. Ditchburn a -few questions.
First, Mr. Ditchburn, would you mind giving the Committee a very brief
statement regarding the evidence given in regard to fisbing. The Indians
complain of being deprived of their alleged. rights in fishing. 1 do not ask for
a long story, but just a brief statement f rom your experience and knowledge
of the case?-A. Do you mean fishing commercially, or fishing for food?

Q. Both. There is a line of demarcation which is a littie indistinct, there?
-A. Well, Mr. Chairman and gentlemen, so f ar as fishing for commercial
purposes is concerned, 1 do not think the Indians have any complaint in that
regard. They are in a much better condition to-day than they were some two
or tbree years ago, in view of the fact that very many Japanese have been.
climinated from the fisbing business.

Q. As a resuit of the Royal Commission of 1922?-A. I would assume sa,
yes. The Indians can fish now under what is known as independent licenses,
just the same as the white man, and for a reduced license fee.

Q. That is commercial fishing?-A. Yes, that is for commercial fishing.
Q. And you say there is really no complaint about that?-A. No.
Q. 1 do not notice that there is very much made. Take the other, the

real complaint they are making, tbat their ancient right of fishing to use the
flsh for food bas been taken away, or unreasonably interfered witb. Will you
state your views on that?-A. Their right bas not been taken away, but it
bas been restricted under the Fisheries Act. The Indians are permitted to take
fish for food purposes under tbe supervision and according to, the regulations
of the chief inspector of Fisheries. In some instances, it is found that the
Indians are not able to get their flsh, owing to the kind of regulations put into
effect.

By lion. Mr. Murphy:

Q. Do you mean unable to get fish for food?-A. Yes, for food purposes.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. That is, you mean that these regulations are unreasonable and too
restrictive?-A. In some cases, yes.

Q. Will you point out in wbat particular they are sucb, in your opinion?-
A. For instance, the Indians on the Capilano reserve at Nortb Vancouver have
recently bad considerable trouble in view of the fact that one of their members
was prosecuted for taking fish vwitb a gaif. H1e was taking wbat is known as
thc cbump or dog fisb.

Q. And tbey objected to that?- A. Yes. The regulations on the Seymour
Creek are that you can only take fish by means of angling.

By Mr. Hay:

Q. Are these regulations Federal or Provincial?-A. Federal regulations.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q.Do you mean to say that the Indians are not permitted to take the dog
fish by gaffing?-A. Yes, there are only two classes of salmon tbat you eau
take by ýangling. You cannot take the dog salmon nor can you take the
sock-eye with hook and line.

Q. Capilano Creek runs tbrough the reserve?-A. Right tbrough the
reserve.

Q. There is a reserve at Seymour too?-A. Yes.
Q. And the river runts through tbat?-A. Yes, it runs flhrough týhat.

422-.121 [Mr. W. E. Ditchburn.I



SPECIAL COMMITTEFI

Q. In your experience, have you had coxnplaint6 of the Indians exceeding
this right 'when it was reasonably adniinistered, of fishdng for commercial
purposes, when they are ostensively fishing for food-A. Yes, I have.

Q. Is there any way that you can suggest that the Indian can be kept
within bounds, providing this right is given te him with less regtriction?-A. 1l
have always iooked upon it that if the Indýian is given what hie considera or
what may be ccrnsidered reasinnabIe regulations, previing for himi takin-g his
fish for food purposes, hie is not so liable to violate those regulations which are
put into effect.

Q. Gen-eraliy speaking, the Indian will observe the regulations, except when
hie thinks they are unfair?-A. That is my opinion.

Q. Andi it is the injustice of the regulations that prompts hîm te violate
them?-A. Yes, it is the sense of injustice.

Hon. Mr. STEwART: You are speaking te the whole of the Cormmdttee, Mr.
Ditchburn. You are net addressing Mr. Stevens alone.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
QSpeak a littie louder, Mr. Ditchburn. Do you find any c<msiderable

amount of violation of the law by the Indians, taking it ail over Britishi
Columbia ?-A. Not a greait deal, ne.

Q. Not very much oomplaint?-A. No. There may be icomplaints th-at have
not reached my attention. Possibly Mr. Found, when hie cornes here later on,
maybe able te give you. some e-vidence about that.

Q. So far as You are concerned, you have not had very much cemplaint?
-A. No.

Q. Can you recali ýany instances which. would illustrate te the Commàttee
the extent to which the Indians turn their right of priva&e fishing iutoecoin-
mercai fishing? I mean do they amount te anything?-A. They reaily dO not
amount te anything, no.

Q. Just trivial cases?-A. Yes, there are cases where an Indian wilI ta.ke a
salmon, ostensilbly for food purposes, and then go and turn it into a store for
some 'provisions ef some kind, and then he wiil be arrested and prosecuted.

Q.Rather petty stuff?-A. Yes.

By Mr. Hay:
Q.Do others offend in that way as well as the Indians?-A. Well, of

ýcourse I am only taiking about the Indiaus.
Q.But I arniasking you?-A. I cannot say that, sir.

By Hon. Mr. Stevyens:
Q. Perhaps just about the samce as the Indians. That is au odd one, but it

is not very general, I do net think. It is just petty?-A. Yes, 'by Indians.
Hon. Mr. GREEN: 1 do flot think there is verv much of that.

By Hon. Mvr. Murphy:
Q.You were in the room. yesterday, Mr. Ditchburn, and heard the witnesses

who addressed the Committee, or gave evideuce?-A. X es.
Q. You heard one witiness state that the Indians took objection to the

manner in which Indian agents were selected, and aise that those selected were
not gooti men, did you not?-A. Yes.

Q. What have you to say about that?-A. I do not think their staternut
has any virtue lu it at ail. There would be no use of the Governinent appealing
to the Indians to appoint representatives over them.

Q. But the witnesses who made those statements also stated, or hie, for it
was one of them, stated that in his opinion the Indians should be consulted in

[Mr. 'W. B. Ditchburn.]
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the selection. What is your opinion in that regard ?-A. It would not be
practical.

Q. Why ?-A. Because you would neyer get the Indians Vo agree. 1 think it
was Chillihitza who said that, and possibly chief Johnny Chillihitza may have his
own reasons for making a statement of that kind.

By Mr. McPherson:

Q.Do you not think that that refers toi the man who was appointed Indian
agent at Kamloops un one occasion who wau a negro?-A. lt i8 very likely in
that particular instance it did.

Q. I thuinik t-hat is what hie was referring to?-A. I will net say that, but it
may have been that which he had in bis mind. There was unfortunately a
inegro appointed Indian agent over the Indians in the Kamloops agency.

By Hon. Mr. Green:
Q. He did not make a bad agent?-A. A very good agent; a very respect-

able mani.

By Hon. Mr. Steven.s:
Q. He is a West Indian?-A. Yes, hie is a West Indian, but the Indians did

niot like it.

By the Chairman:
Q.Is it not a fact that they prefer a white mani as an agent, and not a mani

of, colour, or foreigri nationality ?-A. Yes, there le not the slightest doubt about
that.

By Hon. Mr. McLennan:
Q.No doubt an agent who is persona grata with the Indians gets on a

great deal better than a man who is not.-A. Yes.

By Hon. Mr. Mutrphy:
Q. Certainly better than someone whom they do not like?-A. Oh, yes.

0f course it is the duty of any maîî who ie appointed to supervise Indians, to
become persona grata with thein, as far as is consistently possible. H1e should
not become t.oo f amiliar with them or he would lose the dignity of bis office.

By Hon. Mr. M41cLennan:
Q.There was another suggestion made by the old Chiief, that it did noV

make for smoothness, or for good relations, Vo send in the police to arrest an
Indian; he thought, he should be brought out by the Indians, by their own
policemen, and given over teo the white policemen rather than that the policemen
should go in on their reserve. Now, is that a point in which, without any
difficulty, their feelings could be considered ?-A. I do noV think there is any-
thing in that. You cannot subject the carrying out of law and order Vo the
Indian chiefs. That muet be left with the police departmnent.

Q.That is the King's writ must run everywhere?-A. Absolutely, yes.

By Hon. Air. Murphy:
Q.You heard these witnesses also speak about the division of water, for

irrigation. purposes ?-A. I did.
Q. Are you in a position Wo express any opinion on that subject?-A. 1 amn.QI mean, from the standpoint of the Indian, as Vo whether he bas been

unjustly dealt with, or whether the prevailing conditions in that regard could
(Mr. W. E. Ditchburn.]
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be iinproved?-A. I may explain, gentlemen, that under the old regime, that
is by the Colonial Government, it is quite evident that the Indians were con-
sidered to have water rights with their land. That is proved in the case of the
Kamloops Reserve where in 1869, two gentlemen named Todd and Thompson
applied for water licenses for property known as lots 1 and 2 on the top of
Paul Mountain, almost inside of the Kamloops Indian reserve.

Q. Applied to whom?-A. .Applied to the stipendiary magistrate of that
day, who was Mr. Peter O'Reilly. They applied for a water license, and the
water record was given to them, with this provision:

Subj ect to the prior right of the Indians.

Acting on that assumed prior right of the Indians, the Government of
British Columbia issued a water license to, the Kamloops Indians, giving themn
one day of priority over and above Messrs. Todd and Thompson, whioh is now
known as the Harper Ranch. That carried on for some time, but the British
Columbia Cattle Company, who are also now interested in that Harper Ranch,
took exception to the ruiing of the Board of Adjudication under the British
Columbia Water Act, and they appealed against. the ruling to the Court of
Appeal of B3ritish Columbia, contending that the record issued to, Todd and
Thompson did not constitute a record for the Indians as provided for under
the British Columbia Water Act.

Q. You mean, did not constitute a basis of right?-A. Yes, did not con-
stitute a record. The Department of Indian Affairs, of course, opposed the
appeal, but we lost out. The date of priority was then reversed, putting the
Todd and Thompson record ahead of the Indian record.

Q. That is, the one day priority given to the Indians was cancelled?-
A. Yes, we lost it.

By Mr. McPherson:
Q. Wýas the basis of that ruling because the Todd and Thompson right a

issued by the Government?--A. Issued by the Government.
Q. That is the Todd and Thompson right issued according to the Act and

flot according to the reservation?-A. Yes.

By Hon. Mr. Murphy:
Q.Are you sure of that?-A. (No answer.)

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. I think it would probably be this: the Court did not recognize that the
Indians had filed an application, while Todd and Thompson did?-A. ihat is
it exactly.

Q. Although the Colonial Government said that the Indians had a prior
right, the Indians not having applied formally did not have it, which. seems to
me pretty narrow reasoning.

Mr. MCP HERSON: Under the British Columbia law, the right must he main-
tained by filîng the application.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Yes. At that time IF doubt if there was such a regula-
tion, but suhsequently, there was.

WITNESS: Under the British Columbia Water Act, the interpretation of the
word " record " is given, and it means some document filed with the Government
of British Columbia.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q. What is the date of that Act?-A. This is the Act of 1924.

[Mr. W. E. Ditchburn.]
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Q. But what was the original date of it?--A. It is a consolidation. The first
Water Act was in 1897.

Q. That was long subsequent to this Kamloops incident?-A. Yes.
Q. That was before Confederation?-A. Yes, prior to Confederation.
Mr. MCPHERSON: It was in 1869.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: It strikes me that in that case the Indians have a very

just complaint.

Hon. Mr. STEWART: Mr. Ditchburn, in your opinion the Indians are correct
in the statement that they have priority rights in these waters for irrigation
purposes? 1 know the courts say they have not, but 1 amn asking you if their
contention that they have priorîty riglits is correct?-A. The contention of the
Indians is that they have always used the water with the land, and they couid
not use the land wîthout having the water, in the dry beit.

By Hon. Mr. Stevyens:

Q. Take the Okanagan district, in the bench land. The land is worthless
without the water. They had the water on their land, and they used the two
together, and the fact that they had not filed some formai application, I think,
should not extinguish any right which they had by use.

By the Chairman:

Q.Was there any question about their not having the use of the water, in
the trial?-A. I have not the evidence of the trial before me, and 1 do not
think that was brought up. The Indians were using it, there is no doubt about
that.

By Mr. McPherson:

Q. I wish that point made clear. I understand that the case was decided
against the Indians, not because they had not an inherent right, but because
they had not taken the statutory method of recordîng their ciaim?-A. There
was no way of recording it.

Q. No matter about that, that was the way the decision went?-A. Yes.
Q. Now, has the department seen to it that dlaims are filed on alI the

reserves where there are water rights?-A. Undoubtedly, since then.
Q. So it cannot happen again?-A. No, you will remember that this was

in the oid colonial days, when there was no water right.
Q. There is no chance of the Indians losing another lawsuit through the

same oversight?-A. No.

By Mr. Hay:

Q. Hlow much territory is affected by this one dlaim that has been lost,
that one water riglit?

By Hon. Mr. Stevyens:

Q. To what degree in that Kamloops reserve-that is what Mr. Hay en
-to what degree are they affected? Ha-,e they lost ail their water?-A. No,
they haven't lost it ahl. By a subsequent record we got the right between the
British Coiumbia Cattie Company and the Department of Indian Affairs so
that we go fifty-fifty on the water in Faîl Lake. That was arrived at recently.

Q. Does that give the~m ample water for the cultivation of that reserve?-
A. No, neither party bas got. enough. Neither the British Columbia Cattle
Company nor the Indians have enough.

[Mir. W. B. Ditchburnj
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By Hon. Mr. Green:
Q.Are the Indians using it up to, their fui] capacity on that reserve?-

A. Yes&

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q.What would it cost to put in a pumping plant, and pump, the water for

irrigation out of the North or South Thompson?-A. WTe figure it about $12,00O
to, irrigate about 75 or 80 acres.

By Hon. Mr. MoLennan:
Q.The Plant would cost that?-A. Yes.

By the Chairman:
Q.This water question is a very complicated matter. When you say the

Indians get fifty-fifty with the ranching company, does it mean that they get
enough water to, raise a crop, or merely enough water to induce them. to'start
a crop, and then not, have enough to finish it?-A. It is not enough. to raise cropaS
in-the manner in which they are cultivaiting at the present time. If they would
cultivate muore on the community system, not in separate littie holdings, they
would get much botter resuits and their water would carry them along much
farther than it does at the present time. We have beep trying to, induce the
Indians to plot ail their poctatoes together, and their aif ala together, each man
having his holding iii tItis coluimunity division, and then their water would go
much farther than where they have their crops scattered.

By Hon. Mr. McLennan:
Q.Are 'there other cases at ail similar to this Kamloops one?-A. The loss

of priority in the Okanagan has affected the Indians considerably.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q.Which one is that?-A. That is the Okanagan Indians; that îs the

Indians from Spallumcheen to Osoyoos.

By Hon. Mr. McLennan:
Q. Is that the district that we heard of yesterday where the lIndians were

not properly using their orchards?-A. Yes. I would like to, just refer to that.
Mr. Stevens mentioned the f act yesterday that thc Pcnticton Indians were not
cultivating their land up to, the extent which it was possible to cultivate it. I
have to say thait I cannot agrec with Mr. Stevens in that regard. I believe every
acre of thé Penticton reserve is under cultivation that is possible to be irrigated.

By Hon. Mr. Steven.s:
Q. How long since?-A. Has been for the last ten years.
Q. Is that the reason they are not cultivating the rest of it?-A. That is

the reason they are not cultivating the rest of it.
Q. There is a lot of it not cultivated?-A. There is undoubtedly a lot of

it not cultivated, but there is no water there to cultivate it with.

By Hon. Mr. McLennan:
Q.Could water be brought there?-A. Possibly Mr. Stevens is referring

to that large tract of la.nd that is on that side bill just opposite Penticton?

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q.Yes. That takes in the reserve?-A. It is impossible to put water on

there economiýcally. The Government of British Columbia took that into con-
[Mr. W. E. Ditchburnl
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sideration when I was endeavouring to try to, arrange an exchange of that cut-
off in that reserve. The Royal Commission on Indian Affairs recommended the
cutting off of over 14,000 acres. Included in that 14,000 acres there are about
2,600 acres of that large fiat that you see from Penticton. The Penticton Board
of Trade made a suggestion four years ago that the eut-off should be a.mended
by running the line further south to a stream called Shingle Creek, and taking
in the whole of that fiat up there, leaving the rest of the cut-off to the Indians
for pgsturage and range for th.eir cattie. The matter was takexA up with the
Minister of Lands,. the Hon. Mr. Pattullo, and he put his engineers on that land
to see if it was possible to bring water in there from Trout Creek, the same as is
done at the Dominion Experimental Farm, which. is somewhat further north.
So far as the exchange was concerned, 1 was perfectly willing to have that
exchange made instead of the original 14,000 acres eut-off first recommended
by the Commi 'ssion. Mr. Cleveland, who has control of water rights, reported
that it was not economically feasible to put water on that land for irrigation
purposes, and consequently it was dropped.

Q. That is the bench land?-A. That is the beAch land. A great many
people see that up there and they seem to thînk it is lying there and the Indians
are not doing anything with it.

Q. What about down.in the fiat, along the river? Have they any orchards
in there the same as the rest of the district?-A. Oh, yes, if you walk right down
to the village you will see that the Indians have some very good, orchards down,
there right ba-ck of Penticton. Down along the river fbottom it is grass land
for their cattie. I can truthfully say that so f ar as the Penticton Indians are
concerned they are utîlizing their land to the fullest extent possible.

Q. In the fiat?-A. In the fiat.

By Hon. Mr. McLennan:

Q. Whiere they can get water they are utilizing it?-A. Yes; they must
have the water.

By Hon. Mr. Mlurphy:

Q.What about their orchards being a menace to the adjoining orchards;
that was nwentioned yesterday?-A. I do not think there is very much in that.
This Department bas an officer known as the Inspector of Indian Orchards,
whose duty it is to go around to al-

Q.You mean your Departmgnt has?-A. In our Department.

By Hon. Mlr. Stevyens:
Q. Is that Wilson?-A. No, Wilson is dead; bis name is Anderson.
Q. Wilson was for a while?-A. Yes, he, was our officer. Ife goes around

and he teaches the Indians how to spray their trees. We supply thcm with
spray pumps, show them how to prune trees, and to keep their orchards generally
in much better condition.

Q. But there bas been a great deal of complaint on that ground for many
years back?-A. Yes.

Q. 1 presume you are getting it into much better shape now, but there was
complaint years ago?-A. We have bhad that policy in existence for the last
twenty years.

Q. I know you have, but without very much success?-A. And it is bring-
ing out good resuits.

By Hon. Mr. Green:
Q.Were flot the compIaints Iargely from isnlated fruit trees, and not so

much from orchards from which they expected to make money?-A. Individual
iMr. W. E. Ditchburn.
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Indians grow somP scrubby trees around villages and the fruit is not worth
very much.

By Hon. Mr. Murphy:
Q.Is the matter of water legisiation the subject solely of provincial jurisdic-

tion, or joint]y provincial and Dominion jurisdiction?-A. It is, wholly
provincial.

Q. At the present time it is wholly provincial?-A. Yes. You will see
that in dealing with any of these old water records, or in making an appeal to
the Courts, we must deal under the British Columbia water rights.

Q. In conjunction with the British Columbia Government?-A. Yes.
Q. You heard the witness> yesterday urge that there should be more

intensive education, 1 think hie called it, of the Indians with regard to agricul-
ture, fruit growing, and so on. Have you anything to say to the Committee
on that point?-A. I think it is a very good suggestion. Lt isi the policy of
the Department, at the pre.sent time. The great difficulty iis that the Indians
do not seem to appreciate the efforts that are put forth in their direction to
benefit by this education.

.By Hon. Mr. Steven.s:
Q. Could you give the Comrnittee an idea of some of those efforts in the

direction of intensive oducation?-A. Well, as I explained a littie while ago,
we have a special man going around the province, «,throlighotit the agricultural
districts, teaching the Indians how to grow fruit.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
QOne man?-A. One man, yes.

By Hon. Mr. Murphy:
Q.Over the whoLe province?-A. Yes. 0f course, through certain sections

of the province there is no use iii teaching at ail; on the coast district, for
instance, which is not an agricultural district.

Q. lias anything been donc in -the way of congregating the Indians at special
points and giving them what is generally understood as a course oyf education in
agriculture, or anything of that kînd?-A. At the schools?

Q. Yes.-A. At our residential schools in the interior we teacli the children
the rudimentary principles of agriculture.

By ir. McPherson:
Q.Is there any institution similar to the agricultural college in the prairie

provinces, where they can attend and learn fruit culture?-A. Tîtere is a
provincial college. There is one man that we almost put through with a special
course, a man named Harris.

By Hon. 3fr. Stevens:
Q.He was an Indian?-A. Yes.

By Mr. McPhe.rson:
Q. Can the Indians go there after they have obtained high school or

ordinary school education?-A. 1 do not think the Department has ever turned
down a worthy case where we thouglit we would get resuits.

By Hon. Mr. Murphy:
Q. That is, a promising man would get a chance?-A. Yes.
Q. lias the Department done anything in the way of providing demonstra-

tion plots whtih we have elsewhere?-A. Like experimental farms, as it werc?
[Mr. W. E. Ditchburn.]
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Q.No; a farmer is picked out in a district-mn Cape Breton there are four
places-fertilizer is given, and this man grows a rotation of crops close to the
road so that everybody cau see the advantage of it?-A. Nothing very much in
British Columbia along that line, not se f ar.

Dr. Scorr: I woyuld like te, direct Mr. Ditch'burn's attention to the fact,
so that he rnight get the evidence on the point, that instruction takes place at
aur residential sehools. Take the Kamloops school, which is in the dry bet-
ail the Indian pupils being recruited from the dry belt,-we have an elaiborate
systemn of irrigation where the boys become acquainteil with rnethods of
cultivation under irrigation. We endeavour to carry out that systemn at ail our
industrial schools; have the tuition foll-ow the line of the after life of the pupil.

By the Chairman.
Q.With regard to this question of aboriginal titie, have you anything to

say as to what you have heard expressed by the Indians?-A. Well, as to the
merits of the question, of course 1 arn not prepared te argue, but I do know
that it is a canker dn the minds of the Indians to-day. If it were removed,
either by proving that there was a dlaim, that they had an interest in the lands
of the province, or proving to thern that they had not, it would go very far
towards more satisfactory working out of the administration of affairs by this
Department.

Q.That applies to the whole province, does it?-A. Ahl over the province.
Q.With the tr.ibes ahl over?-A. Generally, yes. There are some tribes

that are not sa rnuch interested in it as are ýothers. The tribes in the northern
interior, up through the Cassian country, and over to the east of the Rocky
Mountains, or up through the Fort St. James district, do not bother about
it at ail; we neyer heur a peep out of them.

Q. Then you heard Chief Chillihitza's evidence yesterday about that water
on the iNicola River? H1e was cornplaining that the provincial Government
had allowed people in the Okanagan ta take water that he thought ought ta
corne down to the Nicola Reserve. Have you heard anything about that?-
A. I could not understand just. what he was alluding ta. I thought he was
alluding ta the Guichon Creek trouble. At the Guichon Creek, which empties
into the Nicola River, the Government Water Board bave allowed a diversion
by Tunket Lake.

.Q. Into another watershed?-A. At the top of the watershed, the water
which would otherwise be running down to the west into Nicola River, they
allow this water to be diverted; known as the Laighton diversion. If that is
what he had reference ta, I cannoit see that it is doing the Indians any harrn,
provided a proper date is set for closing off that diversion.

Q. Well, of course, Colonel Pragnell would know a great deal more than
you do about that?-A. 11e would not know any more. Just what Johnnie
Chillihitza had reference ta, I could not say. Water going over the divide
into the Okanagan, of course that is another divide altogetiier.

The CHAIRMAN: I know that Mr. Frank Ward has toid me that he thinks
the Department in British Columbia treated bim very badly over that, and
I thought it was the sarne thing with the Indians.

By 31r. Hay:
Q. Do the young people stili harbour the thouglit that the land ownership

wili ultirnately be vested in them?-A. D}o you mean the land an the reserves,
or the aboriginal title?

Q. The aboriginal titie.-A. They read as they run of course, and their
idea of the aboriginal titie is much more exaggerated than that of the aid

people.[Mr. W. E. Ditchburn.J
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Q.Mucli more exaggerated?-A. Yes.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q.How long have you been in charge of the Department?-A. Close on to

seventeen years.

By Mr. Hay:
Q.What would be, in their mind, the commercial value of the ownership?-

A. Well, of course, they know that the Indians east of the Rocky Mountains
are treated differently to, the Indians in British Columbia.

By Dr. Scott:
Q. You do not mean that they are treated chfferently; you mean they were

treated differently with respect to the treaty?-A. Yes, that is it. So f ar as
any benefits are concerned, the Indians of British Columbia are getting just
the saine as the Indians east of the Rocky Mountains.

Q. With the exception of annuities?-A. They are noV getting annuities,
or what is called " treaty moneys."

By Mr. Hay:
Q.Are they Vhrifty, or is the money usually spent?-A. As a rule they

spend it before they get it.

Dr. Scorr: There is great thrift among the tribes. A man with five in
a f amily gets $25 a year. H1e usually spends it immediately to buy something
for bis family, or bie bas debts at the store and goes and pays them. Sometimes
it is bypothecated, but it is of no0 practical benefit financially. The annuities
wvere a means of compensating for the individual riglits; that was the only way
ini wbich tbey coulýd be compensated, by a money payment.

By Mr. Kelly:
Q. I hink I heard you say tbat the Indians did not appreciate all the

educational advantages put at their disposal?-A. Yes.
Q. Are you aware that there are long waitinýg lists at, the scbools?-A. I

know that, but, 1 think, Mr. Kelly, if you will make a visit to our schools you
will find that we cannot keep a boy or girl at the scbool ýafter they -are fifteen
years of age.

Q. You are referring to wbat grade of sehool ?-A. I mean the residential
school, wbere it is possible for the cbildren to get a splendid education. Their
parents do not desire to keep themn in long enough in order that they may
complete that education.

Q. Is it not a fact, though, that for instance in the Cbilliwack, we bave a
long waiting lisV?-A. Yes, I am aware of that.

Q. And tbe saine tbing applies at Port Alberni on Vancouver Island ?-
A. Yes.

Q. And the scbool at Ahousat on the west coast is filled?-A. Our schools
are aIl filled, but unfortunately they do not stay long enough to get their
education completed.

Q. But there is a regulation tbat every Indtian boy and girl stays there
until their eighteentb birthday ?-A. The law says we can only comnpel tbem
to gio Vo chool until they are fifteen.

Q. But the Indian regulations demand their attendance up Vo, eigbteen
years; is that not a fact?-A. Yes.

Q. And it has been lived up Vo, almost to the letter of the law, all the way
through?-A. No, it bas not; not since the law was cbanged.

[Mr. W. B. Ditchburn.]
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Q.Are you prepared to say that in the majority of cases they leave before
they are eighteen?-A. Yes, I do.

By Mr. McPherson:
Q.The provincial law cails for fifteen years?-A. Yes; that is compulsory

education.
Q. And they only stay there until they have complied with the law?-

A. Yes. These are residential schools, and we clothe and feed and educate
them, and wc consider that if a child will stay thcre, he will receive a very
fair education-ail the education we can give them.

Q. Would you blame the parents or the childrcn for leaving?-A. I would
hiame the parents; it is on the parents' side.

By Mr. Kelly:
Q.You said sonie of the tribes were not interested in this question of the

aboriginal title?-A. Not to any great extent.
Q. The point 1 want to ask is this; is it not true only where they are far

a\vay fro;m the centres of civilizatîon?-A. That is right.
Q. Where they are not in contact with civilization and do not bother about

it at all?-A. That is right.

The witness retired.

WVILLIAm A. FOUND called and swýtorn.

The CHAIRINAN: Have you given your name to the reporter, and your
occupation?

The WITNEss: Yes. I arn the Director of Fisheries.
The CHAIRMAN: Do the committee wish to ask Mr. Found any questions

about the fishing?

By Hon. Mr. Stevyens:
Q. You were not here and did not hear the evidence about fishing, did you,

Mr. Found?-A. No, sir.
Q. Briefiy, a complaint is made that the rather rigorous enforcement of

the regulations by the Fishery Officers of the Dominion deprived the Indians of
the right to, fish for food. That is what they complain of, and they cite several
cases. For instance, they cite a case on the Capilano, where a man was arrested
and fined for fishing dog salmon, which is rather inconceivable to me. In
another case an Indian wvas arrested near Nanaimo somewhere, for spearing
fish for food, and three old people- this was rather a queer case on the west
coast of Vancouver island whcre a sLreain was running in (I have forgotten just
where it was) -but three old men, one of whom, was blind, had put out a littie
net, nothing like the regular 6ize, and were catching a few fish. They were
arrested and fined, and their canoe destroyed, and the net confiscatcd and
burned. I do not know whether they were fined, but anyway their apparatus
was taken f rom them and destroyed. Then there were some other minor cases.
-A. Mr. Chairman, 1 sometimes wonder if the Indians themselves, and the
people generally, have a conception of the importance the protection of the
fisheries of British Columbia is to, the Indians of British Columbia. I happened
to be here at the opening sessions, and I noted with interest that there are some-
where about 26,000 Indians in British Columbia-

Q. Twenty-three thousand.-A. -and 1 think it may he safely said that
4,000 of these secure the maj or portion of their learnings from the fishing indus-

[Mr. W. A. Found.1
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try. Last year there were 3,352 Indians who received fishing licenses out of a
total of 11,750 licenses.

Q. That is, maie fishermen?-A. Yes, fishermen. In addition to that
number, ail of those f amiliar with the conditions in British Columbia know
there are a large number of Indian women who find employment in the canner-
ies. Now, notwithstanding the need for adequate fishery protection, it bas been
the policy, an~d is the policy of our Department, to co-operate as fuily as we
feasiýbiy can. with the Department of Indian Affairs, to make it easier for the
Indians in the more remote sections, where it is necessary and compatible from
a fishery standpoint to obtain flsh for food pur-poses. That is not only our
policy, but I have not the sliitest doubt that Doctor Scott wiil bear me out
when I say that the two Departments seek cordialiy to carry out that policy
and make it effective. To that.end, iin the more remote sections of the country,
a very considerabie number of permits are issued to the Indians, to enabie them
to take fish by means which no one else is allowed to use in any season of the
year. When it came to Capilano; it seems atrocious that a man is gone after
for spearing dog salmon, but that does not tell the story, and those who are
familiar with the Capilano know it is the most noted spearing stream of British
Columbia, and know it is a stream that abounds with steelNheads, the only fish
which will rise to a fly. It is a littie streama which you can almost walk across
anywhere. The wboie interest in the way of angiing clubs in British Columbia
is weii-known and they are crying out to have that river afforded adequate
protection. It is not known only in British Columbia, but ail over Canada, al
over the continent, and ail over other continents as weii.

Q. The complaint was the spcaring of dog saimon.-A. I was coming to
that. The people desire to have that river protected. Now, if you are going
to allow spearing for salmon in a river in which there are these other varieties
of fislh, and where there are not too many chump saimon, and where these other
lines abound-and 1 need not press this-it can be readily seen that ail the other
fish are in jcopardy. There are other fisheries around Capilano and the sur-
rounding places, where fishing is accessible, and there is no particular need for
the Indians fishing in the Capilano. The Indians are placed on the same basis
there as the white men.

Q. The Indian Reserve is there?-A. Yes.
Q. It is one of the old reserves, and there are quite a number of Indians

living there ail the time?-A. Yes.
Q. Can you see any objection to aliowing an Indian to spear for chump

and dog saimon in the reserve section of the river?-A. Not in any section, if
you have somebody else besîde the Indian there to see that none but the chumps
are hurt, but when the public know the danger wbich is there, you bave another
situation, and to meet the public interest it was feit, and 1 stili f eei, that the
public sympatby of those who know the situation is bebind the principle tbat it
is not a desirable thing to ailow spearing in a river of that kind.

Q. There is no objection to an Indian fishing freeiy any time of the year
by troll or otherwise, in the harbour?-A. Not at ail. There is no iAterference
witb the reserves; 1 meati, s0 f ar as that is concerned; no one else ean go on
their reserves without tbeir permission. It is simply la matter of placing the
Indians on the Capilano on the same plane as everybody else. Wîtb regard to
the Cowichan; there has been difficulty with that stream. I think we bave over-
come it to a considerable extent. We bave been seeking to corne to the point,
that no commercial fishing is permitted on the Cowichan, but the Indians are
aliowed to net salmon for their own food purposes.

Q. Is it possible to make an arrangement wîth the Indians on tbe Capilano
so that they eau take only dog saimon, or bump-backs, and not tak2 the sportirig
fish out of season?-A. In the liglit of experience, 1 do not tbink the thing is

[Mr. W. A. round.]
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feasible, Mr. Chairman; that is, the other fish are always in jeopardy, and are
likely to be taken. If there was any considerable run such as there is at
Cowichan, it would be a different matter.

By Hon. Mr. Green:
Q.In other words, it is hardly possible for an Indian or anybody else to

know when he is striking a fish whether it is a dog salmon or what it is?-A. It
dcpends somewhat on weather conditions to know, but the Indians are flot
different from most people who arc given permission to do certain things, and
if permission of a certain kind is given, there usually is but one resuit. More-
over, the amount of chump salmon which would be taken is flot an important
factor, I submit, to the Indians there, while the protection of that river is an
important factor for British Columbia. It is a river that is drawing people to
British Columbia from long reaches.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q.Your argument is that the Indians, even if deprived of that right on

that river, will not suifer as a result?-A. Within easy reach roundabout he can
readily procure the amount of fish he needs for food purposes.

Q. And your further argument is that you think it would be hopeless to
make an arrangement with the Indians which they would observe, whereby they
would take only- -A. Chump salmon.

By Hon. Mr. MoLennan:

Q.So far you have only directed your attention to this very precious river?
-A. Yes.

Q. What about other rivers elsewhere in the province?-A. In the various
parts of the province, permits are issued to the Indians to take fish for their own
food purposes at any time of the year, by spears or by other methods. We try
to keep them down from doing that, as much as we can, but after looking into
ail the instances where these are regarded as being desirable, it wifl be quite
readily realized what it means to take salmon which have run long distances
to their spawning ground, and are on the point of spawning,-

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:*
Q.The old chief complained about the upper country; I suppose he bad

reference to the streams emptying into the Shuswap Lake. Years ago they used
to be thick with salmon, but his argument is that the salmon neyer returned.-
A. Quite so.

Q. And bis argument is that there is no injury to the fisheries if the Indian
took these salmon for food-A. Unfortunately, so f ar as the Indians are con-
cerned, and so far as everybody else is conceriied, since 1913 there bave been
very few salmon above Hell's Gate.

By the Chairman:
Q. Yes, and you know the reason for that?-A. Quite so.

By Hon. Mr. Stcvens:,
Q. Chief Johnny eomplained that if that were stopped-A. For some years

there was no fishing allowed by the Indians in the upper Fraser. That was
during negotiations for the treaty with the United States which contemplated
such, but for some years past, permits have been issued on the upper Fraser to
take fish for food purposes. Considerably over 200 permits have been issued in
that upper country during the past year.

LMr. W. A. Eound.]



,SPECIAL COMMITTEE

By the Chairman:
QIs it your contention that no0 Indians should be allowed to take fish

without a permit in the south Thompson, the Bonaparte, or the Nicola rivers?-
A. Yes, but they are issued permitis free.

Q. By whom?-A. By the Fishery Officer. If such were not done, it would
be difficuit to safegua.rd the situation. Metal tags are issued which are attached
to the nets, and if this were lot done, others would set nets there, and it would
be impossible to, control the situation.

Q. Lt is not only a question of nets, but ýalso a question of spears.-A. They
are given permits for spearing purposes as well. Lt is desirable to do that, I
think, and is a good thing, noV only f rom the standpoint of control, but for the
records.

Q. Is it not a f act that, in the upper reaches of the Fraser, fishing is increas-
ing 110w since the river bas recovered from the obstruction which was placed
there by the Canadian National Railway, when it wvas being built?-A. Fish go
back to the spawning beds in which they were bred. That bas been very well
demonstrated, and we are succeeding in getting some runs into the upper Fraser
by consistent stocking of certain fish in the upper Fraser, in certain areas.
During the past year we have had bigger runs of fish to the upper Fraser than
since 1913, which is one of the most encouraging things we have had, and shows
whe.t can be done if we oan geV an international c&iperative effort. Last year,
the Fraser river produced-and I speak subject to correction-about 101,000
cases of salmon, possibly 120,000; I think it was 81,000 on our sîde, and about
40,000 on the United States side; that is, sock-eye salmon. In 1913, the pack
of sock-eye salmon was two and a quarter million. That shows the capabilities
of the Fraser river.

Q. Two million cases?-A. Over two million cases of sock-eye alone. The
river is as good as it ever was if we can build it up. What it would mean to
the Indians te, have the river built up is fairly obvious.

By Hon. Mr. Murphy:
Q.You have not addressed vourself to the cases mentioned by Mr. Stevens.

Perhap you have no0 information about them.-A. I do not recail them. I would
be inclined to think that in Nanaimo, it was another instance where spearing was
carried on where it was not permitted.

By the Chairman:
Q.Can you explain. Mr. Found, why an officer of your Department would

administer the law in the way stated?-A. Mr. Chiairman, I am inclined to
think this is an extrem-ely ex parte statement, and 1 would like an ýopportunity
to look into it.

Q. You do not know anything abou.t it at all?-A. I do not recail the case.
If a man is, found breaking the law, he would be deait with as any law-breaker
would be deait with, iby a fishery officer but we are not without expérience of
Indians breaking the law.

By Mr. MePherson:
Q.Would this icase not be the resuit of carrying out the letter of the law

by the fishery officer?
Hon. Mr. S'rEVENS: The complaint rea]ly is that his action was too

dras tic.

By Mr. McPherson:
Q.Yes, admitting that the law had been broken, the oorplaint, really is

that the oircumstances should have been considered and discretion should have,
[Mr. W. A. EOUn-i'
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been used. The complaint is 'that the 'officer used no discretion?-A. Well, Mr.
Chairman, 1 do not think I can let that go.

Q. I do flot think that is an improper way te state it, thaï the fishery
officer has ne discretion if the law is, broken?-A. When 1 said I could net let
that go, I used perhaps the wrong words. I meant, I couid not let the impression
go that the fishery officers act without any discretion in dealing with violations.
They are instructed te exercise discretion. But of course, the man who is
penalized usually thinks ne discretion is exercised.

By the Chairman:
Q.Have you got written instructions te give out?-A. To our officers, yes.

Q. It might be a good thing if you wvould file a copy of those instructions,
with the Comsnmittee ?-A. These are not the only instructions the officers receive.
We have what we eal our book of instructions that has been carefully prepared
in the liglit of ;a good deai of experience, and officers are aise being instructed
f rom time te time in the light of incidents that arise.

By Hon. Mr. Murphy:
Q. Speaking fromn your own experience, what satisfaction dO your officers

out there give?-A. I think, on the whoie, it can safely be said that our officers
show discretion and intelligence in dealing with matters. We sometimes have
to employ people for a short time, who are called flshery guardians--they are
not the regular fishery officers-who may not always exercise as much judgmont
as a regular fishery overseer would exercise, but hie reports te the fishery overseer,
and as I said a littie while ago, we try te have the officers of our own departmnent
and the offers of the Indian A.ffairs Departmerit keep together as mucli as
they can, in dealing with ail difficuit situations. That is our general course.

Q. Is there any difference in fishing conditions in the Fraser or Thompson
Rivers as eompared with the rivers in New Brunswick?-A. Net very much.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q. Let me read one or two of the dlaims of the Indians, and then, if you

will, give us hriefly your answcrs, Mr. Found. This is their statement of dlaim,
appearing on page 67 of the record of Wednesday, No. 1.

The Indians wish Vo dlaim the right to catch fish in ail rivers, lakes.
and idai waters of the province without permit and without any limit,
with the explicit understanding that the fish. wiil be used by the Indians
for food oniy.

That is the first one. What have you te say te that?-A. Our Department
could not concur in that unquaiified dlaim.

Q. From your experience what would be the result if thaV were granted?
-A. We would be unable in many instances te aiford the fisheries the protec-
tion they need, and it wouid mean that the commercial industry would have
te be curtailed or the whole industry mrould suifer.

Q.Then they go on:

They wish to be ailowed te fish or troll for saimon without license
in ail tidal waters of the province, and te be allowed seining licenses,
both drag seine and purse seine, at haif the prevailing fees.

-A. When an Indian engages in competition with the white man in ordinary
commnerce, I see no very good reason why hoe shouid not be on the same basis.
He is given the samne license as they are for ail kinds of fishing, if he appiies
for it.

Hon. Mr. MuRpiiy: You make no distinction.
42325--13 [Mr. W. A. Foumd.]
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By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q.You would flot consider it fair or wise to give them, a Iower rate of

license fee than the white man?-A. In the commercial fishery, 1 see no reason
for it. As a matter of fact, our fees are ail nominal. It is noV a matter of
very great revenue.

Q.What is the drag seine license now?-A. $20 a year.
Q.Then they say next: " They desire that the Indians only should be

granted seining licenses to, catch fish at the rnouths of strearns or rivers which
flow through Indian reserves." Now, that is flot quite clear, whether the rnouth
of the strearn is in the reserve, but presuming it is, what would y-ou say to,
Vhat?-A. There is no ownership in Vidai waters. In every instance where drag
seining is carried on adjacent to an Indiean reserve, the Departinent makes
it a condition that only Indians shall be employed-no matter who has the
license-in the operation of the seinikng.

Q. You make that condition now?-A. We make that, and have made that
condition for years.

Q. And that is carried out?-A. That is carried out.
Q. The next one is:

They desire that in ail fishing districts certain waters be reserved
for the exclusive use of Indian bands or tribes in those localities.

-A. That, 1 assume again, is for commercial purposes?
Q. Yes, 1 presurne so. That is where there is an area and the right is

given over that area?-A. There is a public right of fishery in the idai waters,
and the Federal Governrnent is not in a position to grant exclusive rights to,
anybody.

Bij lon. Mr..Stewart:
Q. Mr. Found, would there be any serious harm, or any serious objection

te giving the Indians preference under the fishing laws? If Vhey did noV wish
to Vake it, then the license could go Vo others?-A. Well, I arn not quite sure
what preference could he given.

Q. The preference of taking out the licen6e in those particular areas; that
is, that they should be given the right to take thern if they desired Vo do so ?-A.
They are given the right, but the sarne right applies Vo everybody.

Q.But only so far as application is made. The Indian cornes on a territory
with the white man, and if hie does not happen Vo be the first applicant, he
does noV get that consideration?-A. Oh, I see what you mean. This will be
a drag seine license now that you are dealing witb. That is for a fixed location.

Q. IV is for a certain location within Vhe vicinity of these Indian reserves, in
tidai waters?-A. The only kind of fishing for which there can be a permanent
location is a drag seine. Assuming that this table is the sea, and this is the
shore Where I arn, one end of Vhe seine i6 atVached to the shore, and Vhey go
away around with the other end, and drag the net in on the shore. That is a
fixed location. All other fishing is afloat. Now then, what I said a moment ago
i-z that while licenses are issued te applicants who apply for them, in ail instances
where the fishing le carried on, opposite Indian reserves, we make iV à condition
that the licensee shaîl employ Indians Vo operate the seine..

Q. What I mean is, that you do noV give the Indians priority?-A. We have
not got the authority te do so.

Q. I quite understand that, but I want an answer to this question; the Indian
may be an applicant for that license, Vo use that net, but if he does noV happen
to be the first applicant, some one else gets ahead of him?-A. There may be ten,
sir, operating there at different times. A man cannot stay there day and night,
for instance. Take a place that is known possibly Vo the representatives of the
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Indians that are here: the Nimpkish-well now, that is not a good illustration,
because it is nearly ail purse seining there. There are some ten seines operated
about the mouth of that stream. Unless we are to get legislation whereby we can
take away a public right-supposing we did grant a license to an Indian, if a white
man cornes along, and applies for a license there too, he is logically entitled bo it.
Ahl we do is to issue a man a license which authorizes him bo operate a certain kind
of net at a certain place. If it is a drag seine, or if it is a purse seine, he gets a
license to operate in the coastal waters of Bjritish Columbia.

By Hon. Mr. Stewart:

Q.Where it is fishing from a boat, your license is not limited?-A. Lt is
usually issued for a general district, if they want it transferable without a f ee.

By Hon. Mr. McLennan:

Q. t is this poin~t which I think Mr. Stewart has made. Could the Indians
up to a certain time, get the priority in applying for and receiving the licenses,
such as they take out?-A. Let me try to, make the situation clear. Supposing
there is an area here in which drag seining will be carried on. Drag seining may
be carrîed on betwieen certain dates. Now, there may be several people who
want bo carry on drag seining there. If they do, licenses are given, but we will
have bo, keeping in view the amount of fishing that is carried on, determine the
conditions under which that fishing may go on. For instance, he may have a
limitation, a weekly closed time, and we may have to lengthen that closed, time
very consîderably. If there is one seine operating there, we might have a close
tinme of 24 hours; if th.ere are 20 seines operating there, we might have to have a
close time of 72 hours, and so on.

By Hon. Mr. McLennan:

Q.That is a time during which they must corne out?-A. During which
time ail fishig must be forbidden.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q.This is the contention that prompted Mr. Stewart's question: -

They, the Indians, desire that in ail fishing districts, certain waters
be reserved for the exclusive use of Indian bands or tribes in those
localîties.

Would you see any objection bo that?-A. Yes, sir. Lt cannot be done. There
is a public right of fishing in the tidal waters the"e people want us to reserve
to them specially, certain waters in which they, and no one else, will be per-
mitted bo fish for commercial purposes.

Q. Now, Mr. Found, some years ago--I think it is not followed now-you
used to allocate bo a cannery, a large area, miles of territory, or a whole inlet,
or a portion of an inlet. You do not do that now?-A. No.

Q. You used to?-A. Yes, it useci b be done.
Q. That is what the Indians I presume are asking for here?-A. That is

what they apparently want bo have done. That is, certain places located which
will be given to them.

B11 Hon. Mr. McLennan:

Q.But the draw net involves the use of the shore?-A. Lt does, and should
be allowed no where if there was any other method of fishing. Lt is an
inno-cuous method of fishing, if there is any other method that is feasible. Yoi
can run a net out across the mouth of the river, and close the whole mouth of the
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river up, unless we are watching there, and so we are restricting it as much as
we can.

Q. You are not allowed to close the whole mouth of the river?-A. No, sir.
1 mean that as a possibility in exercising that kind of fishing, and it is therefore
a kind of fishing that everywhere where there are salmon fisheries that is sought
to be done away with. We are restricting it to areas where no other method of
fishing would be feasible.

Mr. DITCHBURN: I think, Mr. Found, what the Indians have in mind is the
fact that the Government of the United States bas set aside a certain area
absolutely for the Indians for fishing purposes, off Annette Island, near Alaska?

The WITNEss: Yes, that is a condition of the United States law.
Mr. DITCHBURN: They have the absolute right for haîf a mile from the shore

for ail fishing.
Mr. KELLY:' Three miles.
Mr. DITÇHBURN: Three miles is it? Well, they have that right.
Hon. Mr. S'rvs: In a given area?
Mr. DITCHBURN: Yes.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q.Why could we not do this, Mr. Found, in British Columbia, and 1 ask

the question so that you can state the precise reasons why it is not feasible?
Why could we not give the Indians an arca preeisely the same as we used to give
to a cannery, or to, one of the big fishing concerns. 1 am not suggesting that we
go back to that generally, because that was abandoned, I understand; but why
should we not make an exception of the Indians and give them say, a certain
area, like certain inlets or stretches of the coast?- A. It could not possibly be
done, as a matter of Government policy-if it were considered a wise policy.
Under the Fisheries Act, wherever an exclusive rîght of fishing does not already
cxist by law, the Goveriior in Council may grant leases.

Q. What exclusive rights exist now?-A. There are no exclusive rights in
tidal waters.

Q. None at ail? Are they ail donc away with?-A. They are ail donc
away with.

Q. But they did exist for many years?-A. Thcy used to be grantcd
exclusive privileges.

Q.That is what I mean. And none are granted now?-A. No.
Q.But there is no reason, other than the general reason you have given,

why the Indians should not be given such an area? There would be no physical
difficulties about supervising it, and so on?-A. No, none greater than the
existing difficulty. ln fact, it would make it casier if we could give an exclusive
privilege of fishinýg in any area to any individuals. These individuals then,
would only have to be watched; thcy would watch ail others.

Q. Yes. There does not stem to be any other difficulty in my view, to
prevent granting it. Here is another point thcy make:-

That salmon and hcrring seining licenses similar to those which in
the past have been issued to resident whites will in the future be avail-
able to Canadian Indians, in their own names.

Is that, the case now?-A. Yes, they are availahie now.
Q.That is in practice now?-A. Yes.
Q.That is about ail there is on fisheries in this dlaim. Rave you the fishing

regulations re Indians there?-A. I have the fishing regulations for British
Columbia. May I confirm a statement I made a littie while ago on the license
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fee, if you will permit me a moment. I was right when I said $20, for that
license.

Q. You might give us a brief summary of the fishing regulations as they
relate to Indians?-A. You want the gist of them.

Q.Yes, do not read every word of the regulations, but an outline of them.

By Hon. Mr. Murphy:

Q.First of ail, are there special regulations affecting Indians only?-A. No,
but there are conditions in the regulations that affect Indians only; for instance,
the regulations provide that there shall be no fishing otherwise than by angling,
above tidal waters. But an Indian may at any time, with the permission of
the chîief inspector, catch fish to use as food for himself and his f amily, but for
no other purpose. The chief inspector shall have the power, in such permit,
to limit or fix the area of the waters in which such fish may be caught; Vo
limit or fix the means by which, or the manner in which, such fish may be
caught; and to limit or fix the time in which such permission shall be operative.
An Indian shall not fish- for or catch fish pursuant to the said permit, except
in the waters. by the means, or in the manner and wîthin the time limit
expressed in the said permit, and any fish caught pursuant to any such permit
shall not be sold or otherwise disposed of, and a violation of the provisions
of the said permit shail be deemed to be a violation of these regulations.

Q. How do you allow Indians to catch fish above tidal waters?-A. He is
allowed to catch them by a spear, and by different methods, depending on the
local condition.

Q. Are you aware of the prosecution of this Indian in Capilano, last ycar?
-A. Quite.

Q. Was it not a fact that the Indian Department took action to defend this
Indian which the Fisheries Department was prosecuting?-A. That does not
change the situation.

Q. That fýact existed. These two Departments were confiicting in this case
-A. (No audible answer).

Hon. 'Mr. STEVENS: That would flot make any difference; they were both
doing their duty.

By Hon. Mr. Murphy:
Q. What other regulations apply to the Indians?-A. No one shahl fish with

nets, only for commercial purposes mn-I need flot naine the places-except with
a permit provided free. The Chief Inspector may grant a free permit to Indians
resident in the Indian Reserve adjacent to the Guichon River, etc., which will
authorize them to use salmon gill nets during the time the chump salmon are
running, for the capture of chump salmon for food for themselves and family.

By the Chairman:-
Q. Those permits are only issued by the Chief Inspector?-A. They are

issued by ail our fisheries officers, ail ov-er the country.

By Hon. Mr. McLennan:
Qi . It would not be onerous for an Indian to, get that permit?-A. Oh, no,

si;they are issued by the people on the spot.

By Mr. Pcvull:
Q. I wish you wouid teli just what happened when Mr. Perry, an Indian

Agent, applied to Inspector Marlborough for fi'shing permits for ail 1,1?e Indians
in lis agency; were those granted?-A. iNo.
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Q. Why?-A. Because it was not considered that it would be in ,lhe publie
interests to do so.

Q. Was it not a fact that the Inspector contended that only indigent Indians
should receive those permits?-A. The area to whicb reference is made is the
agency more or less in the vicinity of Vancouver, that lower section of the
province where the rivers are small, and if the runs of fisb are not afforded pro-
tection they can be readily killed out. It bas been our policy for years, and I
arn quite satisfied it is a reasonable and fair policy, that the number of permits
that should be granted there should be limited as much as is reasonably feasible
to meet the requirements. There are no Indians there that are really in need
of any permits.

Hon. Mr. STEFvENs: 1 think that our friend, Mr. Pauli, ihas chosen a rather
unbappy site in Capilano. This privilege of fishing for food would really be
more applicable to places a littie more remote. 1 thînk that preventing an
Indian from spearing a dog salmon in the Capi(lano, or anywbere else, seems
extreme, except, as Mr. Found pointed out, that it mîglit lead to other abuses.
The Indians at Capilano are not dependent upon fish for their food. It is SO
easy to demonstrate, being so close to, the city, whether they need relief in that
way. It is a rather unhappy location as a test for tbe soundncss of the regula-
tion. 1 would like to see more reference made, if possible, to interior points,
or to the nortbern section away from the city altogether, and then we can better
judge of what change there should be in tbe fisbing regulations, if any.

Mr. DITCHBURN: Tbe application Mr. Paull has reference to, put in by
the Indian Agent, referred more particularly to the Indians wbo were living
in the northern part of wbat is known as the Vancouver Agency, whicb runs
Up as far as the bead of Bute inlet.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Tbat is different.
Mr. DITcHBURN: They were the Indians known as the Homaîbo, tbe

SecheRit and the Sabioose, more particularly, and the Squamish, wbich are
immedîately in tbe city of Vancouver.

By Hon. 11fr. Stevyens:-
Q. What have you got to say to that, ,Mr. Found?-A. I think I faîrly

answered tbat. 1 .would like to ask Mr. Ditcbiburn if hie urges that ahl the
Indians in that section should bave permits?

Mr. DITCHBTJRN: I think 1 bave already told your Chief Inspector, tbat
for the purpose of keeping down any Indian complaint it would be desirable
that your department sbould issue permits to each famnilv.

The WITNESS: That is quite another tbing.
Mr. DIrCHBURN: To the head of every family, not to every Indian. lb

was neyer understood that every Indian sbould get it. but it is týo the bead of
eacb family.

The WIrNESS: Wbat we were trying to arrange was that the Indian Agents
sbould select the people whio required permits, and tbe permits would be issued
to these peoplte. The agent knows these people better tban our officer. The
Indian agents put in the names of tbe beads of f amulies to wbom bie tbouglit
permits sbould be isýsued, and to any others.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: And tbey were refused?
Mr. DITOHURN: Tbey bave not been issued yet.
The WITNESS: Tbat bas not corne before me. Mr. Paull's question to me

was tbat tbe agent put in, a request for every Indian on these reserves.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: 1 thouglit Mr. Paull said every Indian in tbe Capilano

Reserve.
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The WITNESS: In the Vancouver Agency.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Did you put in an application for every Indian?

Mr. PA uLL: Every maie Indian over the age of twenty-one. Even after the
Indian agent had made application for the Indians of Bute, because they did
not have a permit they were prosecuted, after application had been made by
the Indian agent.

The WITNESS:. 1 wish we had a map here, and then you could sc our
point. These streams flowing into these inlets are short streams, but it means
in the aggregate a good rnany salmon. They are nearly ail fail salmon. The
Indians of British Columbia, to the extent of over 30 per cent, are dependent
on fisheries for a ýlàveiihood. Now then, is it good business to allow a prac-
tically unrestricted amounit of fishing in these smali strearns?

By Hon. Air. Murphy:
Q.You mean fishing for a Iivelihood, not for food?-A. For such earnings

as they make.
Q. That is, it is the fishîng industry they are engaged in?-A. Quite so,

very largeiy.

By Mr. McPherson:
Q. The Indian bas te, be kept alive to earn that rnoney, and if hie requires

fish for food why should hie flot get a perrit?-A. It is not difficuit at ail for
the Indian te get food fish. It is not a long distance on any of these rivers to
corne down to the tidai water and get fish. These salmon play around the
mouths of the streams and wait there until nature bids themn go up ta Spawn.
What the Indian wants to, do is to wait until they go up te spawn and take them
there when they are on the spawning bed.

.By Mr. Pauli:
Q. Wiil you name the species of salmon that the Indian takes for his food?

-A. It dcpends entireiy on the portion of the country in which hie às If lie
is i11 the portion of the country -Where lie can get sockeye Salmon, which are the
most valuabie, hie will take them in preference to any other, and hie is quite
right in doing se. When conditions are different, hie takes other salmon. In
that area hie bas got te take what comes through, mostIy chumps.

By Mr. McPherson:
Q. The quantity of fish that an Indian famiiy of four would require mnust

be lirited?-A. Mr. Chairman, the amount of destruction of saimon that bas
taken place in British Columbia in eariier days by the Indian's methods of
fishing is sornething deplerable. The cutting up of barricades right across the
stroarns and loaving them thorc was onc of the things whieh wc had a lot of
work to do in stepping. When they catch their fish they juat leave the barri-
cades there.

By Mr. Kelly:
Q. I wouid like ta, ask if Mr. Found is aware of this fact; that according

te the report of Mr. Babcock, who was the fisheries expert in British Columbia,
iess than one per cent of ail the fish caught were caught by the Indians for
food purposes?-A. Oh, yes, quite so.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q. The way it appeals to me is this, the Indians ought te have the inherent

right te catch fish for food. Then cornes the question of how we can harmonize
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that inherent right with the safeguarding of the interests of fishing. Our effort
lias been to find out Just where the rub cornes in, where the difficulty and the
dispute between the Fisheries Department and the Indians arises.

The WITNxESS: I think they are being rubbed out year by year.

By Hon. Mr. McLennan:
Q.There are niany of these streams which you say are short. How f ar are

the spawning beds up?-A. Borne of themn a few miles, some of them not a mile.
There are some of them up which the fisli cannot get until the f ail rains corne
and the waters risc. We are as anxious as any department of the Government
service could be that there should be satisfaction on the part of the Indians.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q.Supposing we set aside certain districts, as we used to do for commercial

purpoSes, where the Indians could have the exclusive riglit f fishing, then super-
vise the fishing out of season on these areas reasonably close, but at least give
the Indian an opportunity to catch food fislh in these areas?-A. There is no
trouble about that at all. We will give the Indians allthe privileges they want
down on the commercial areas to get fish, and give themn permîts without any
price whatever. What they want, as I understand it, is the exclusive privilege
in large arcas to, catch fish for commercial purposes.

Q. I mean,, why could we not do that for commercial purposes, and then in
these areas permit them to take food fish up these little streams out of season.
The difficulty undoubtedly is the supervision and controlling of a huge territory.
Assum-ing that we gave thern these areas in the fishing district for exclusive com-
mercial fishing, give the Indians permits to take whatever fish they wanted in
there for food purposes. It would be in their own interests to preserve the if e
of the fish in these areas because they are exclusive for commercial purposes,
and if thcy depletcd the fish there they would be cutting their own throats, as it
were.

Hon. Mr. GREEN: In other wnrds, you think they would kccp off the spawn-
mng bcd?

Hon. Mr. STEvEýNs: Not only that, but with the rcstricted ameas you could
give more rigorous supervision than you can with the large areas.

The CHAIRMAN: Are you dcaling wîth tidal waters?
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Yes, and streams going into tidal waters.
The CHAIRMAN: Tien you are infringing on the public right.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: No, I do not think so, Mr. Chairman, because for years,

up until about ten years ago, we gave exclusive rights.
The WiTNESS: 1922.
The CIIAIRMAN: Ycs, but you hýad no right to do it.
Hon. Mr. ST'EVENS: Was that ever challenged, the matter of constitutional

rights?
The CHAIRMAN: 1 think you will find that that is the position.
The WITNESS: I arn cxtrernely doubtful if the Govcrnment bas got power

to give exclusive rights in tidal waters.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q.But we did it.-A. Wc did, but there is an inherent public right of fish-

ing in tidal waters; that bas been determincd. by the Privy Council.
The CHAIRMAN: Any British subjeet in Canada bas the right to go and fish

in these tidal waters.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: For twcnty years to rny knowledge, and back of that,

thcy gave thcse exclusive arcas.
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The CHAIRMAN: But they had no0 right to do so.

The WiTNESS: And in the only instance where the matter came up before
Parliament, Parliament advised against it.

Mr. MOPHERSON: If the agent permits the Indian to have exclusive riglits
over tidal waters he is maintaining the aboriginal titie.

The WITNESS: That bas already been determined by the Privy {Jouncil,
that there is a public right of fishing in tîdal waters, which is controllable by
the Parliament of Canada only.

By Hon. Mr. Steven.s:

Q.When you say " controllable," does that not give you the riglit of deter-
mining who shall or shall not fish in there?-A. Yes, who shall or shall not, but
it does not give the riglit te take away from, a citizen of this country a riglit
which he bas in common with another citizen.

Q. You will not permit me te go and fish anywhere unless I corne te you
and get a certain permit or license?-A. No.

Q. Why could we not set aside certain districts and say, " In these districts
we will give a license only to Indians," and dedicate it te them, as it were?-A.
1 do not think that you could deny me, if J1 wcnt there and applied for a license,
the grantin-g of the license.

By Mr. MePherson:

Q.Let me put it in this way, Mr. Found, although it may seem ridiculous.
If you issue a license to fish in British Columibia tîdal waters, would that
restrict a man from fishing in the Nova Scotian waters?-A. Oh, yes.

Q. Then, are you not locating him within a certain arca under the law?-
A. Yes, but let me follow your question, sir. If I want a license for iNova
Scotian waters also, I must get it, if I apply for it.

Q. I mean this, Mr. Found; your law is under the control of the Dominion
Parliament, and is administered hy your Department, and, if you issue a license
to fish in British Columbia tidal waters, that license you say is confi.ned te
fishing in British Columbia. But if you cannot restrict him from. any coastal
waters there, is it not just as good in Nova Scotia waters, which are aise under
the Dominion authority? I admit that that would be ridiculous, so f ar as loca-
tion is concerned, but the fact remains the same, does it not.?-A. We can say
to everybody, that they may fish under certain conditîins. Now then, every-
body bas got the same riglit te fish under those conditions, and that is not
limîted te any particular person.

By Hon. Mr. Ste ven.s:

Q.If you issue me a license in district No. 1, can I fish in district No. 2?
-A. At present, you may, yes.

Q. You say I may?-A. Ycs, at the present time the regulation provides
that the licenses are transferable from one district to another.

Q. No, that is not the point.

Hon. Mr. MuRPHY: If lie just hoids it for No. 1.

By Hon. Mr. Stevcns:

Q. Yes, can you rcstrict me then to No. 1?-A. Yes, but I cannot rcstrict
you from taking out a license for No. 2.

Q.That is another thing?-A. Then, I do not sec the point.
[Mr. W. A. Found.j



SPEUJAL COMMITTEE

By Hon. Mr. McLenncrn:
QlIn other words, Mr. Found, supposing you issue a license under the

rnherent rights and restrict it to certain tirnes and to certain areas?-A. But we
are not restricting the rights of anybody to fish in compliance with these require-
ments.

Q. No, leave the compliance out. I arn not quarrelling with that?-A. Here
is the Privy Councîl decision, and 1 think it is clear enough.

Q. You say there is an inherent riglit to any national, any British subject,
Vo fish in British tîdal waters?-A. Yes, since Magna Charta that bas been the
case.

Q. Yes, but that is regulated and controlled and limited by the fact that
Vo fish in those waters, the fisherman must get a license, and that license as I
understand it, is restricted to certain areas or to certain districts.

Hon. Mr. STEvENS: District No. 1, for instance.

1By UIr. 9cPherson:
Q. lIs your trouble this, Mr. Found, you have the right Vo issue licenses,

but you have no right Vo refuse a license to anyone?--A. That is my point. 1
must issue them to every British subject wýho applies.

Q. And, if 1 ask you for a license for Nos. 1 and 2, you have no power Vo
refuse me?-A. Yes, not Vo fish in accordance with the regulations.

Q. And is there any reason why the regulations should not bc changed s
that the fisherman's riglits could be granted to the Indians on these points?-A. I
do not think that there is any power. There is the power of IParliament, but
short of that power of Parliament, 1 do not think there is any power that we
have now that will enable us Vo give the exclusive rights in any area Vo any
individual.

Q. At the present time, you think it would nced lcgislation?-A. Yes, I
do not think there is any doubt about that.

Q. The departmental right would not be strong enough?-A. Yes, I do not
think there is any doubt about that cither.

,By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q. Here is the law, is it not?-A. Yes, those are the regulations under the

Act.
Q. This says: "No license shahl be transferred except by special written

permission of the chief inspector or fishery officer."-A. Quite so.
Q. That means that you locate a license?-A. In a broad way, yes.
Q. Then why can we not loeate a license for the Indian-s?-A. So you can,

Mr. Stevens, but you cannot refuse any one cisc who wants Vo go in there. You
cannot give the Indian an exclusive franchise.

Q. You say here that no one shaîl transfer a license. You eau give the
others licenses except in that area?-A. But there is nothing there Vo prevent a
man getting a transfer.

Q. He eannot get a transfer without written permission, and you can refuse
him permission.

Mr. MCPHoRSON: 1 think Mr. Stevens; the difficulty is, that they have
power to control the license but not Vo limit the number.

Hon. Mr. STEvENs: The power bas always been exercised.
The WITNESS: Not always. By the Privy Council decision in 1920, the

situation bas been made pretty clear.

By Hon. Mr. Murphy:
Q. From the feeling of the Committee as revealed in the questions, you

have heen asked, Mr. Found, can you make any suggestions as Vo how the appli-
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cation of the present regulations could be altered in any way, so as to make
themn more acceptable Vto the Indians?-A. 1 have a very strong feeling that if
we can get the Indians Vo corne down to the tidal waters and fish there for their
food purposes, their difficulties, and the difficulties of fisheries' protection will
be very largely eliminated. That is noV practicable in long streams like the
Fraser and the Skeena where the people are very rernote.

Q. The distances they would have to go are too great?-A. Yes, too great;
but in ail these shorter streams, it is iniquiýtous, the fishing in the spawning
grounds. If we can get away from it, it ought to be restricted as much as it can
be in the permanent interests of every one, in the permanent interests of the
Indians themselves.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: It is very desîrable that the spawning grounds should
be protected.

Hon. Mr. MCLENNAN: In the smnall rivers, that is practicable.

By Hon. Mr. Murphy:
Q.Have you any suggestion in that regard?-A. My suggestion has been,

and 1 Vhink it has be'en more or less considered, the one 1 have just indicated;
that we will give the Indians any reasonable privilege they desire to corne down
and catch salmon in the tidal waters. We will be glad to lend equipment.

By the Chairman:
Q.How far would they have to travel to do that?-A. In these rivers they

are speaking of, as these gentlemen know, it is cox1hparatively a few miles.

By Hon. Mr. McLennan:

Q.Ten or five miles?-A. I arn not f amiliar with the location where the
Indians mainly live.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q.There are a lot of rivers fiowing into these inlets, where the spawning
grounds would extend ten, fifteen or twenty miles up-stream, or in sorne cases,
much further.

Hon. Mr. MCLENNAN: And where do the Indians live?
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: There are some living up there. Then take rivers like

the Naas and the Skeena, rivers of that character are very long.

Mr. MCPHERSON: That can be. cleared up in this way, that those are
reserves that they are asking as special privileges on the ocean, of fishing in
idai waters. They do that because they are near enough Vo use those waters,

and if they can use them, then they can abandon the fishing in the strearns a
little furthcr up. They must be near enough in order to give them the fishing
grounds and privileges on the shore, and Chat would eliminate the necessity of
giving themn privileges on the rivers, the spawning grounds.

WITNESS: I don't think you would find Vhat Vo be the case. 1 think Mr.
Kelly will tell you that there are a numiber of Indians who do not corne down,
aud these people are the difficulty.

Mr. KELLY- There is another side Vo, it which perhaps ought Vo be
explained.

The CHAIRMAN: Let Mr. Found finish h.is statement, and then you may
explain.

Mr. KELLY: Yes, but 1 thought I might suggest certain things, if you
will allow me, that he would answer.

The CHAIRMAN: Very well.
[Mr. W. A. Found.]



SPECIAL COMMITTEE

Mr. KELLY: Mr. Found no doubt is aware of this faet, that te bring the
Indians, down to the tidal waters to fish for food would be a new departure
in this way, that the Indian would be under the necessity of getting a net,
w'hich is a very expensive affair; it runs into hundreds of dollars te get a net.

By Hon. Mr. Murphy:
Q. Could the department supply that?-A. The Department of Indian

Affairs in several instances is supplying nets, such as would enable thcm te,
catch enough fish for their own food purposes, down on the coast.

Mr. KELLY What part of the coast?
WiTNzss: Ail around, anywhere where we allow commercial fishing. We

would be mest happy, and have suggcsted it, Iany times.
Mr. KELLY: A net 150 fathoms long, at the present time, is quite an

expensive net. Would you supply the material?
Mr. FOUND: Yes, but there is no0 need for such a net. An Indian has no

need te use more than a few fathoms.
Mr. KELLY: I would like to draw Mr. Found's attention to this fact.

Immediately you go out there, you are brought into competition with commer-
cial men who are using not only drag seines, but large purse seines, and a
gill net is simply out of the question, under such conditions. That is the diffi-
culty, and Mr. Found is no doubt aware of this fact teo, that the fish caught
for food by the Indians at the present day, do not begin to compare with what
hie used te catch in days gone by.

WiTNESS: Truc.
Mr. KELLY: It is only the older, and the more indigent, Indians who are

doing that. Those who are working have not the time to go te the trouble
of catching fish, and curing themn as they used to do . A very small fraction of
Indians who used te, do that are now doing that sort, of thing. The others are
cngaged in something else. Therefore,' we contend that even if they were
permitted te catch fish for food, without licenses, that privilege would not be
abused, and it would he provided that anyone who abuses the privilege would
be disposscssed of it at once for that scason. 1 think it weuld be fair to, do that.

Hon. Mr. MuRPHY: How would you dispossess them whcn they are wit.h-
out a license?

Mr. KELLY: We have Dominion constables in the employmnent ef the Indian
Dcpartmcnt, who are pretty much on the scene most. of the time.

Hon. Mr. MURPHY: But, the -Indian would not have any license you
have said; dieu liow wnuld you dispossess them of the right to fish. If t1hey
had a license I undcrstand you could cancel it.

Mr. KELLY: If hie was caught selling fish for commercial purposes, when
lie was supposed te bie catching them for food purposes, hie could be brought
into court like any one cisc.

Hon. Mr. MuRPHY: Then that is what you have rcfercncc to?
Mr. KELLY: Yes.

By Hon. MIr. Ste'vens:
Q. Geming back to what I said a moment ago, here is the Act. I presume

this is the consolidated Act?-A. The Act is at.taehcd to the regulations there.
Q. It provides that the minister mav, wherever the exclusive right of fishing

does not already cxist by law, issue, or order to be i-stued. fishery leases or
licenses for fishing., wýhercsoever situated or carricd on, but leases or licenses for
any terni exceeding ninc years shall be issued only undcr the authority of the
Governor in Council. That would indicate that you have the right te issue leases

[Mr. W. A. Found.]
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or licenses for exclusive areas. Then it provides that the Governor in Council
will make regulations, amang other things, pres--cribing the time and the manner
ini which fish mav be fished for and caught. Now, under those two powers given
in the Act-the other is the regulation that we have over here-it looks ta me as
if we had a perfect right to set aside areas for the Indians, and I believe, myseif,
that the solution of this main difficulty is to set aside main areas for these In-dians.

Mr. McPHER-soN: Mr. Chairman, may 1 make this suggestion? 1 think
perhaps the Committee feels that the right of the lndians to fish for food is para-
mount, and it is vefy desirable that it should bc secured. If that is the opinion
of the Committee, should we not at, some stage settie the matter by recommend-

ing that the Department of Fisheries and the Department of the Interior get
together and make such necessary changes in the regulations regarding the loca-
tion of the reserves, to allow tbem to take fish for food. It is a matter of detail,
apparently depending on the individual location of each reserve. A regulation
at one point in British Columbia might be absolutely faulty in another.

WITNESS: Yes, conditions are very different in different places.

Mr. MePHERsoN: We might discuss these details here for the re.st of the
session without making any progress.

Hon. Mr. STEvENS: I do not think there is any question about the right or
the power of the minister to make the regulations. I agree with Mr. MePherson
that we should let this go now.

WITNESS: The regulations already exist, Mr. Chairman. They are right
here.

The CHAIRMAN: You mean, that if the members think there should be some-
thing done-

WITNESS. It is a matter of working it ont.

By Mr. McPherso-n:
Q.It is a matter of taking the different reserves, and then reporting to the

department as tai the conditions of those reserves, is it not?-A. Yes.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any oither questions the members of the Coin-
inittee want to ask Mr. Found?

Hon. Mr. STEVEN--S: I think Mr. Found has been very frank, and verv infor-
mative ta us. I have nathing more ta ask him.

WITNEss: I think the Indlians will bear me out that it is aur desire not ta
be arbitrary. We may have different views, but that is aur desire.

Mr. MOPHERSON: I tbink it would save the face of the Department af the
Interior and it would save the Indians if a conference were held, as I have sug-
gested.

WITNESS: We may bave differences of opinion, but we have no difference
in desire.

The CHAiRMAN: Is there any one else the Committee wants ta examine?

Han. Mr. STEvENs: I tbink not. Net for me, Mr. Chairman.
Han. Mr. MOLENNAN: I think we hiad better carry on in private, if 1 may

make that suggestion.
Hon. Mr. STEVENs: Yes.

The CHAIRMAN: Yes. As Mr. O'Meara is not here, can you tell me, Mr.
Kclly, if he wishes ta, make a further statement, to the Committee?

Mr. KELLY: Yes, Mr. Chairman, he wishes just wh.at I asked for yester-
day.

The CHArRMAN: That can be done by a written statement.
Mr. KELLY: If that is the ruling of the Committee, we will have te, bow te

[Mr. W. A. Found.]
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it. If you will not allow him Vo present an argument except by a written state-
ment, I arn inclined Vo think it is unusual.

The CHAIRMAN: You were not here the other day, Mr. Kelly, but Mr.
O'Meara started to make statements, and he was rambling about ail over the
case, Vo such an extent that we had to stop hlm because we wanted Vo get oni*"
with the work of the Cominittee.

Mr. KELLY: I would like to remind you of the fact, Mr. Cýhairman, that
this is very important Vo us. I have known Mr. O'Meara for long years, have
had close and intirnate connection with him, and I will guarantee that if lie
were accorded tihat privilege that, at a certain time Vo be set, while it is, a very
heavy matter, if he proceeded with the argument without many interruptions,
I think he would geV through in, two or three hours.

Hon. Mr. MuRnHy: We had a fairly long session with Mr. O'Meara.
Mr. McPHEnsoN: We will be adjourning shortly now, Mr. Chairman, and

the Committee might meet this afternoon in camera and discuss tihe matter and
at the same time discuss the question of whether we will hear Mr. O'Meara or
noV.

Mr. KELLY: May I suggest this as an alternative? While the hon. gentle-
mcn are wcll aware that I have no ability at all to presuine Vo treat on the con-
stitutional sîde of thîs very important question, yet if iV is thought fit, I might
read the material part, the papers on which we are depending for our argument,
and place them on record, if there, is no desire Vo hear Mr. O'Meara.

Hon. Mr. STEvENs: JusV a suggestion, Mr. Chairman. One of our troubles,
Mr. Kelly, with Mr. O'Meara is that lie will cite some document; he does not
present iV; lie quotes an obscure extract froni it, and offers tliat Vo the Commit-
tee as tihe opinion of some man in authority. For instance, lie quoted some-
Vhing that a Senator had said, and somethîng that Sir Wilfrid Laurier h *ad s'aid,
and so on. That is not evidence, and we cannot go Vhrough the library looking
for the documents referred Vo. My suggestion is-and I think it will shorten
this very materially-if Mr. Kelly and Mr. Paull and Mr. O'Meara will oit
downand assemble Vhe documents they wish Vo cite, and lay them, on tihe table
before this Gommittee, that would be of assistance. Personally, I would rather
have Mr. O'Meara file a written argument, supporting the documents, than
hear him, because I think he is hopeless. Ilowever, I arn prepared Vo hear him
in a limited time on those documents, but let him file the documents, so that
we may have them before us, and judge ourselves as Vo the merits of the little
extracta that he Vakes from Vhem. That is iny position, and I certainly must
obj oct Vo having Mr. OMeara or anyono el-se merely cite a paragrapli hore or
thore out of a document, without filing the document.

Mr. KELLY: That is agreeable to us, and I Vhink we will do that. We do
not want Vo injure our case by.insisting upon any method that is noV acceptable
Vo the Committee. We are anxious to expedite matters as mucli as possible, and
under as agreeable conditions as possible.

The CHARMmAN: Mr. Kelly, you referred yosterday Vo a docision or a letter
of the Minister of Justice?

Mr. KELLY:- Yes.
The CHAimAN: Well, of course aIl that evidence of yours was practically

struck out of the record, because you had noV put in the document. If you want
Vo hring that in, you will have Vo produce that document.

Mr. KELLY: You will realize, Mr. Chairman, that it was then about six
o 'dock, and we could not procure the document at that hour. We met again at
ten o'clock this morning, and îV was impossible Vo geV the document at that ime.
But let me say that Mr. O'Meara is engagod now in doing that vory Vhing; he is
procuring that document, and we will file iV.

[Mr. W. A. Foimd.]



CLAIMS OF THE ALLIED INDIAN TRIBES, B.C.

Mr. MCPHERSON: 1 do not want to, frighten the Committee, but I have been
looking at that file of books Mr. O'Meara has there, and 1 suggest that it con-
tains a large number.

Mr. KELLY: Yes, but, gentlemen, 1 do not think there is nothing here to bc
afraid of.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: We will not be frightened by the books, if you produce
the documents.

Hon. Mr. MURPHY: Mr. Kelly has undertaken to do that. He say-s that
he is agreeable that that should be done, that the documents shaîl be produced
and filed, and the argument limited to the documents so, produced.

Mr. KELLY: Yes.
Hon. Mr. MutRPHY: When can you be ready? This afternoon or to-morrow

morning?
Mr. KELLY: To-morrow morning would be preferable, 1 think.

Hon. Mr. MuRPHY: Will that be agreeable, Mr. Chairman?

The CHAiRmAN: If that will suit the members of the Committee.

Mr. KELLY: In view of what has been said, we will get busy and we will
undertake to be prepared.

Mr. HAY: Mr. Chairman, we had several witnesses yesterday, who would
not come under the order for payment of wîtnesses. They are Mrs. Williams,
Chief Basil David and William Pierrish. With your permission, Mr. Chairman,
I move that we recommend the payment of these witnesses.

Hon. Mr. MURPHY: Certainly. I will second that. IPut through the usual
motion.

Witness retired.

The Committee adjourned until Wednesday, April 6, at 10 o'tlock a.m.
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CommiTTEE ROOM 368,

WEDNESDAY, April 6, 1927.

The Joint Special Committee appointed to inquire into the dlaims of the
Allied Indian Tribes of Britsh Columbia, as set forth in their petition submitted
to Parliament in June, 1926, met at 11 o'clock, a.m., Hon. Mr. Bostock presid-
ing.

The CHAIRMAN: Now, I understand that Mr. O'Meara wants to make a
statement. Is it the pleasure of the committee that Mr. O'Meara 'be heard?

Hon. Mr. McLENNAN: Does the unilerstanding of yesterday stili hold
good?

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: The understanding at the close of yesterday's pro-
ceedings was, I think, that Mr. O'Meara would make his presentation, and we
adjourned until this morning so that he could have his documents supporting bis
statement well in order, which we now presume he has, and there'by cut dowrn
bis statement to reasonable 'bounds. I think the committee are quite willing to
hear Mr. O'Meara in that manner, as long as the documents from which he is
going to quote are presented as-

The CHAIRMAN: A matter of record.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Are "proven"-I ýbelieve that is the legal term.
The CHAIRMAN: Mr. O'Meara, are you ready to proceed?
Mr. O'MEAnA: Yes, sir.
The CHAIRMAN: Before you commence, Mr. O'Meara, you have heard

what Mr. Stevens said. We want you to make your statement as short as you
possibly can, and where you have to refer to the decisions of the Court, or any-
thing of that kind, we want yon to give the reference, so as to, save the time of
the committee as much as possible.

Mr. ýO'MEARA: I assure you, hon, gentlemen, that is my desire exactly,
and it will be carried out to the fullest possible extent.

I first will put in some necessary documents proving the petition. The first
is the letter addresscd hy myseif to His Royal Highness the Duke of Connaught
on the 29th May, 1916. The second is the original letter of His Royal Highness
the Duke of Connauglit addressed to myseîf on the 25th September, 1916. The
next is a statement issued by the British Columbia Indian Conference whieh
was held at Vancouver in the month of June, 1916, and proves the unwillingness
of the tribes of British Columbia to accept the terms of the government of Can-
ada. The next is the text of the Order in Council passed by the government of
the province of British Columbia in the month of August, 192,3. The next is
the full stenographic report of the interview had by the Min;ister of the Interior
with the executive committee of the Allied Tribes a.nd myself at Vancouver, in
the month of July, 1923, and in that I refer especially to these parts to be found,
first, on page 38, commencing at line three, and including alI to the words "a
reference of that character"; the second extract commences on page 39, at line
fourteen, and includes all to the end of the page, and the third extract is found
at page 43, beginning at line eleven, and includes the words down to, "there can
be no questionx about the moral sense."

The CHAIRMAN: That is the official report of that conference?
[Mr. 0'Meara.J
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Mr. O'MEARA: The officiai stenographic report of that interview, hon.
Chairman. The next is the text of memorandumn issued and pubiished by the
Department of Indian Affairs on the 9th day of August, in the year 1,924. 1
have it here in the shape of a eiipping; no doubt there is easily available an
officiai record of that.

The CHAIMmAN: We had better hear from Dr. Scott on that.
Dr. Scorr: I object to that.
Hon. Mr. MutPHY: That can be verified by comparison with the officiai

records.
Hon. Mr. MCLENNAN: Does it give the date?
Mr. O'MEAR: Ninth August, 1924.
The CHiAiRMAN:- But you cannot put in a newspaper clipping like that;

you must put in either the original or a certified copy, and if you want that, you
must ask the Department to produce the document.

Mr. O'MEARA: -I concede the point, Mr. Chairman; 1 shall he pleased to
do that. The text is there.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: That is, frankly, Mr. O'Meara, an article in the Ottawa
Citizen?

Hon. Mr. MuRPHY: Purporting to he, from the Department.
Dr. Sco'r': I ohject to that.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Lt is pretty far-fetched; I do not think Mr. O'Meara

shouid press that.
Mr. O'MEARA: It is an officiai memorandum.
Hon Mr. ST'rEv1Fs: No, it is a newispaper clipping.
Dr. ScoTr: 1 do not think anything in the Ottawa Citizen is an officiai

memorandum.
Hon. Mr. MCLENNAN: Does it refer to the report?
Mr. O'MEAnA: It gives the text of an officiai ineuorandum issued hy the

Indian Department. 1 admit at once 1 shouid give proof of that.
The CHAIRMAN: We cannot acccpt that. You can ask Doctor Scott to

produce that.
Mr. O'MEA-,A: I wili. The next is the fuli text of a letter addressed by

inyseif to the Minister of Justice on the l7th of August, 1925.
The only remaining item, hon, gentlemen, is the text of the resolution of

the Executive Council of the Allied Tribes, passed in the month of January, 1925.
This is mentioned in the petition. If any e-Vidence is asked as to that, Mr.
Pauli wili bc in a position to furnish it.

The CI1AIRMAN: Wouid the Committee Say if they wish ail these documents
that Mr. O'Meara has handed in to he printed in full in the records of the
oroceedings.

Hon. Mr. MOLENNAN: We had better leave that to your discretion, Mr.
Chairman.

Mr. HAY: Would it not do to just say that he made reference to these things,
and then they couid he supplemented later on and have a separate production, if
necessary?

Hon. Mr. Mu-RPHy: The printing wouid take a long time.
Mr. MCPHERSO0N: We are asking Mr. O'Meara to eut down lis address by

filing documents and it wouid oniy he fair, where other documents have been
fiied up to date, that the documents shouid be printed.

Hon. Mr. MCLENNAN: Lt is a question of whether we want to take the time
and expense of voluminous printing.

[Mr. O'Meara.]
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The CiîAlRNAN: It is for the Committee to decide if they want them printed.
Hon. Mr. STEvENS: 1 think before they are printed they ought Vo be

examined te sec the necessity of printing.
Hon. Mr. MURPHY: We could have a round table conference and talk about

it.
Mr. O'MEARA: lion, gentlemen, I consider it a great honour Vo address you,

and 1 will condernse absolutely everything that can be condensed.
The first remark 1 wish to inakle is with regard Vo the telegramn that came

from the Government of British Columbia, in which the province relies upon
section 109 of the British North America Act. 1 point out that that is the out-
standing ground upon which the Allied Indian Tribes are relying Vo-day. They
rely very strongly upon Section 109 of the British North America Act.

The next matter is the statement put before the CommiU~ee by the Minister
of the Interior, rcgarding the subject of conquest. Reference was made to some
stated f acts which seerned to show that the Indian Tribes of British Columnbia
are in the position of a conquered people.

The first rcply te that question is that, as a matter of fact, the Tribes of
British Columbhia have not been conquered.

.The second reply will be found in a very recent judgment of the Judicial
Committee of His Majesty's Privv Council. That is a case known as the
Southern Nigeria case, in which, that matter is distinctly deait with. 1 refer
especially Vo page 410, at which it will appear that conquests alone will not
destroy the native land rights. In that case the colony of Lagos had been
conquereçl. There had been a cession of the territory Vo the British Crown and
their lordships held that neither the conquest nor the cession made to the
British Crown destroyed the native land rights. I rely upon that as distinctly
distinguishing the point as Vo conquest.

The CHAIRIMAN :* Mr. O'Meara, -would you give the name of the case and
the reference?

Mr. O'MEARtA: Lt is the case of Amodu Tijani vs. The Secretary of South-
cmn Nigeria, reported in Law Reports, Appeal Cases 1921, Volume 2, at page
399.

I wish to speak further on that case in a few minutes, but at the present
time I arn only speaking on the point of conquest.

The additional reply that 1 wish to make is Vo be found in a few words
quoted from the officiai report of an interview had by the Minister of the
Interior, and others representing the Government of Canada, with the members
of the Executive Council of the Allied Indian Tribes, in the month of July, 1922.
The Minister addressing the Indians said, "I do noV want Vo go into details, but
Vo say that you are the aborîginal owners of this province as nw Vreaty was ever
made with the Indians of British Columbia."

I wish Vo briefly reply Vo some outstanding points contained in the memo-
randum of Dr. Scott, a memorandum upon which I must sincercly congratulate
Dr. Scott, as I think it is clonstructed with very great skill and states in an
admirable manner the point of view of the Department of Indian Affairs. But,
hon, gentlemen, it will be my duty Vo place before you the fact that there
cannot be shown Vo be any sound constitutional difference between the position
of the Department of Indian Affairs, as thus so ably set forth, and the position
taken by the province of British Columbia.

First of all I refer Vo a few words to be found on Page 3, " No Cession
of the aboriginal titie claimed by the Indians over the lands of the Province
of British Columbia bas everbeen sought or obtained." I desire Vo take very
strong ground on this, that there is an admission of the first order as Vo the
actual facts upon which the allied tribes stand to-day.

The next i.s to be f uund in these words at the bottom of that page, where
Dr. Scott says: " The Proclamation of 1763, which is referred Vo by the advisers
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of the British Columbia Indians as a basis of their aboriginal titie to the lands
of the Province, was issued after the conquest of Canada, to establish is
Majesty's Government in the newly conquered territory. By subsequent Acts
of the Imperial Parliament, the Proclamation was repealed, the courts were set
up, and a system of government was gradually developed."

Now, honourable gentlemen, I arn incli-ned to think that there we find
the ground upon which the Minister o -f the Interior based his remark about
the conquered position of the tribes. 1 wish to point out some facts, with regard
to that. The first fact is that there was no conquest of the native Indian
tribes of this country at all. The conquest there referred Vo, was the conquest
of the British over the French. And the second fact was that when there was
a treaty of peace and Cession from France to Great Britain, ail the rights
of the aboriginal tribes of Canada were explicitly preserved by the very language
of that document.

Then I refer very specially to a few words Vo be found in the opinion of the
Minister of Justice given in the year 1875. Pardon me a moment, Mr. Chair-
man, where is that?

Hon. Mr. BARNARD: In Appendix B.
Mr. O'MEARA: May I ask Dr. Scott which Appendix contains the opinion

of the Minister of Justice?
Dr. Scorr: In 1875, it is in Appendix B, I think.
Mr. MORIN: At Page 39.
Mr. O'MEÂRA: These words are of importance. I shall read from the

language of this report: " It is not necessary now to enquire whether the lands
to the west of the Rocky Mountains and bordering on the Paciflc Ocean, form
part of the lands claimed by France, and which, if such dlaims were correct,
would have passed by Cession to England, under the Treaty of 1763, or wbether
the titie of England rcsts on any other ground, nor is, it neressary to consider
whethcr that Proclamation covered the land now known as British Columbia.

IV is sufficient, for the present purposes, to ascertain the policy of England
in respect te the acquisition of the Indian Territorial Rîghts, and how entirely
that policy has been followed te the present time, except in the instance of
British Columbia.

It is true, also, that the Proclamation 1763. to which allusion has been
made, was repealed by the Imperial Statute 14 George III, Chapter 83, known
as The Quebcc Act; 'but that Statute mrerely, s0 far as regards the present case,
annuls the Proclamation, '<so far as the satine relates te the Province of Quebec,
and the commission and the authority thereof, under the authority whereof,
thec Govcrnrnent of the said Province is at present administered. and the Act was
passed for the purpose of effecting a change in the mode of the Civil Govern-
ment of the administration of justice in the Province of Quebec."

So that two outstanding points are shown there, honourabie gentlemen.
One is that the Minister of Justice did Dlot th(ink it necessary te rely upon the
Proclamation of 1763, and the second point is that he says if waýs only repealed
Vo that extent.

The next is to lie found on Page 5, 'and 1 read these few- words: "By the
Dominion Parliament and the Government of British Columbia this was con-
sidered"-that is, Article 13-"a sat.isfactery division of responsibility for the
Indians and the Imperial Government -acquiesced. The terms of the union were
approved by Order of fer Majesty in Council on the l6th May, 1871."

May I point ont that that propoýsition simply assumes that ail responsibili-
tics werc deait with. And if is submittcd that that is not. an exact proposition;
only certain responsibilities were dealt with in Article 13, 'whether on the side
of the Govcrnment of Canada or on the side of the Governmcnt of British
Columbia.

[Mr. O'Meara.]
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I next ask atitention te these words: "The Indians hav.e, in f act, been held
to be the special wards of the Crown." Those words are quýoted from Mr.
Trutch's mnemorandum. Now I do ýnot wish to enter upon any full discussion
about that, but I wish just to place my clients, these tribeïs, upon record that
they do flot admit that the relation of the Go'vernment of Canada towards the
tribes of British Columbia is that of a guardian. This submission is and will
be that that rel-ation is one oyf trustee-ship. I do not think it necessary t'O go
further into that matter.

Hýon. Mr. MIJRPHY: The relationship with the Government of Canada?
Mr. O'MEARA: Yesý, that it is not that of guardian but of trustee-ship. That

is the distinction which 1 draw, which 1 humbly submidt is a very important
and ýfundamental distinction; because a ward has no power to do anything for
himself; no power to make an agreement; no power to, do anything; but his
guardian must do everythàng for him. The relationship, of trustee-ship is
radioally different; and I submit respectfully tha-t the relatioýn'ship of the Govern-
ment of Canada to the Indians of British Columbia is that of trustee-ship.

1 next refer te a f ew words to 'be found on Page 7. Dr. Scott is narrating
the opinion of the Minister of Justice and the disallowance of the Liand Act
of British Columbia, and he uses these words: "The main reasen" for the
disallowance "being the f'act that ne cession of the Indian titie had been obtained
and the Act was dis'allowed by Order in Council of l6th Miarch, 1875." There
again, Mr. Chairmýan and honourable gentlemen, in the briefest 'possible way,
I rely and very strongly rely upon the proposition that the absence of a cession
of titie in British Columibia was the ground upon -which that Act of the
Province was disiallowed.

May I add a f ew words to that, in answer to a question which arose, which
was te, wh.at happened afterwards. What happened in the next ye-ar was that
Mr. IEdward Blake had become Mimister -of Justice, and he made another report.
In the ineantime, the Provincial Legisiature had again enacted the Land Act,
and it came before, Mr. Blake. Hiýs opinion was given and it is ail set out in
the paper and is available in this appendix. is opinion absouly agreed, as
1 submit, with that of his predecessor, who had become Judge Fournier, of the
Supremp, Court of Canada; but he said that -he was net prepared te go the
length of advising that again the Act should be disallowed.

The next will be found in a few words on Page 8. These are the words
used with reference to the opinion of the Minister of Justice given in the month
of January, 1875: " It would hardly be possible to draft a stronger document
in support of the dlaim, for an aboriginal titie than this memorandum."l

Again, Mr. Chairman and honourable gentlemen, I simply submit te you
that that weighty sentence is enough in itself to prove the title of the Indian
tribes of British Columbia.

Mr. MCPHERSON: Mr. O'Meara, do you seriously contend that the opinion
of the Superintendent of the Indian Department is evidence of title? That
is only his opinion.

Mr. (JMEARA: 1 am sorry if I conveyed that meaning. I mean that what
he is referring to there, the opinion of the Minister of Justice, which, honourable
gentlemen, was adopted by Order in Council and the Governor General at that
time. That is what 1 mean is conclusive.

Mr. McPHERSON: What you read was Mr. Scott's opinion on that.
Mr. O'MEAnÂ: I apologize. What I meant to convey is that in that

sentence Dr. Scott puts before this Committee the proposition that it would not
be possible to find a stronger document in support of the dlaim for an aboriginýal
titie than the document by the Minister of Justice on which I rely.

Hon. Mr. MuRPHiy: And after that, Mr. Scott may go on to point out an
opinion diifferent fromn that.

Hon. Mr. MOLENNAN: And he des in the next line.
[Mr. O'Meara.]
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Hon. Mr. STEVENS: I think you will note that Dr. Scott says on the one
hand so and so and on the other hand so and so. I do not think it is right to
infer that that opinion given there is supporting your argument.

Mr. O'MnExxA: The opinion upon which I rely is the opinion of the
Minister of Justice itself.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Oh, well, go on.
Mr. O'MEARA: There is just one other point to which I wish to refer in

the memorandum by Dr. Scott, and that is to be found on Page 57. I refer
specially to what appears on Page 57, the memorandum that was issued by
Dr. Scott on the llth March, 1914. 1 ask attention to the exact view expressed
in that memorandum. Honourable gentlemen will find that Dr. Scott says
here that his purpose in putting that memorandum before the Government was
to show the reai nature of the Indian fitie. I submit for your consideration that
when you examine that memorandum you will find that the real nature of the
Indian titie as there set out is simýply this. Hie says: "It foilows that the
Indýian titie, when acknowledged by the Crown, cannot be separated from what
the Crown elects to grant."

That is the heart of the whole memorandum; and what I submit, honourable
gentlemen, is that whether the view is right or whether it is wrong, the position
taken is that the tribes of British Columbia have no actual titie, and I specially
refer to that because I xviii be abie to put before you, honourable gentlemen,
that the recent case, the Southern Nigerian Case, takes an absoiutely different
view of the native titie.

I wish next to place before you, honourable gentlemen, the memorandum
that was presented by the late Doctor MeKenna to Premier McBride on the
27th July, 1912. I have if in my hand, but no douht the officiai copy is avail-
able. This is a copy furnished by the Department of Indian Affairs, and I nsk
attention to two facts; one is that this memnorandumn contains a very strong
argument for fthe proposition that the Province of British Columbia bas no
revertionary titie in the reserves; and the other prominent feature of this is, as
will be found towards the close of the memorandum, it shows that Dr. McKenna
fully realized the actual titie of the Indian tribes as being an interest in ail the
lands of British Columbia. I ask special consideration of that memorandum.

I go on from that, Mr. Chairman and honourable gentlemen, to put before
you some very positive grounds supporting the aborîginal title claimed by thec
tribes of British Columbia. If is contained in the memorandum whîch was
placed in the hands of the Government of Canada on the 29th February, 1924,
by three delegates of the allied tribes together with myseif as general counsel;
and fthe parts specially relied upon will be found on the first four pages. With
regard to reading this or any part of if, I am completeiy in the hands of the
Committee. I put the document in because if contains that matter.

The next definife proof, as I submit, of the Indian tifle claimed by the tribes
is to bc found in fthe decisions of their lordships of the Judicial Committee of
the Privy Council extending over a number of years. There are quite a
number of those decisions and I am fortunate in being able to present the result
of if ahl as stafed by Mr. Newcombe in bis book, which was published in the
year 1908, instead of attempting fo present fhem in detail.

Hon. Mr. MuRPHY: What is flie title of fthe book?
Mr. O'MEALIA: The tîtle is " The British North America Acts "; and if was

published in the year 1908.
Hon. Mr.. MunPHy: At what page Mr. O'Meara?
Mr. O'MnExnA: At page 89 I read one paragrapli.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Will you give us the subject of the chapter which you

are quoting from, so that we will know what he is talking about?
Mr. O'MEARA: The heading is " Indians and Lands Reserved for the

Indians." I will read what Mr. iNewcombe says:-
[Mr. O'Meara.]
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it therefore appears that lands reserved for Indians and subject to
a titie such as existed in the St. Catherines Milling case are vested in the
Crown in the right of the province subject to the Indian titie or interest,
which though a mere burden is an interest other than that of the province
in the same within the meaning of Section 109 and therefore apparently
an interest independent of and capable of being vindicated in competition
witb the beneficial interest of the province. The titie is in the Crown,
burdened with the Indian interest and subjeet to this beneficial interest
is in the province within which the lands lie."

Mr. MoniN: Is he referring te the Reserved Lands?
Mr. O'MEARA: No, the whoie of the territory.
Hon. Mr. STEvENS-: No, the language which you have read refers entirely

to Reserves.
Mr. O'MEARA: 1 was just going on te, explain that point. H1e uses the

expression "It therefore appears that lands reserved for Indians, subject te a
titie such as existed in the St. Catherines Millîng Case"-he uses the word
"reserved" but the explanation is simple, honourable gentlemen; the Proclama-
tion of 1673 uses the word "reserved."

Hon. Mr. ISTEVENS: 11e is dealing there with lands reserved and with
nothing else.

Hon. Mr. MIJEPHY: The facts will speak for themselves.
Hon. Mr. MOPHERSON: Personally, I want to go on record that the opinions

quoted, whether expressed by Departinental officiais, Ministers of Justice of
the past or by anybody else, much as 1 may respect them, are not evidence of
the facts in the case but merely of their opinions. This is an opinion of Dr.
Newcombe?

Mr. O'MEApA: Yes, but it sumns up a number of judgments of their lord-
slips.

Hon. Mr. MCPHEnSON: It sums up his opinion of their judgments. The
only reason 1 mention it now is because no doubt there will be a lot of these

and 1 do xiot want to be bound by them as evidence of fact.
Mr. O'MEARA: Honourable gentlemen, 1 am prepared to prove absolutely,

by bringing the evidence here, te point out what proves it.
Hon. Mr. STEvENS: The point 1 object to is this, that you. quote that and

you Say that it ppplies te ail the lands of British Columbia. The text itself
clearly shows that it applies to lands reserved. There is no use in kidding
ourselves about this; we have to face the facts. You cannot hypnotize yourself
or your clients.

Mr. O'MEARA: May 1 read that sentence again, where hie says that the
titie is in the Crown burdened with the- Indian interest, and subj ect te this the
beneficial înterest is in the Province within which the lands lie.

Hon. Mr. -nEvFxN. Certainiy.
Mr. O'MEA: I submit it would be impossible to apply that language

to an Indian Reiserve in the sense te which Mr. Stevens refers.
Hon. Mr. McPHlRnSON: Did not hie apply that to, a case which was of

that kindý?
Mr. O'MEARA: The St. Catherines Milling Case has reference to the terri-

tory of a tribe and not to a reserve. We have the text of it here. Undoubtedly
that case deals with the general question of Indian titie. I have the St.

Catherines Milling Case, to which Mr. Newcombe specially referred, whidh is

te be found in 14 Appeal Cases 46; and beyond any doubt it shows that.
Hon. Mr. MCLENNAN: Read the text of the report.
Mr. O'MEA.iA: 1 will read the headlines.
The CijAIMAN: I did not catch the naine of the case.

[Mr. 0'Meama]
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Mr. O'Mxmu: The St. Catherines Milling and Lumber Comnpany vs. The
Queen, which is to be found in 14 A. C. 46. 1 was just wondering what I could
find that is brief enough te read here.

Hon. Mr. MuRPHY: That is what we are wondering too.
Mr. O'MEARA: I will read the Head Note. Mr. Chairman and gentlemen,this is a long judgment, and 1 will read the Head Note: " Section 109 of theBritish North America Act, 1867, gives te each Province the entire beneficial in-terest of the Croxvn in ail lands within the boundaries which at the time of theUnion were vested in the Crowri, subj ect te such rights as the Dominion can

maintain under sections 108 and 107. By Royal Proclamation of 1763, pos-session was granted te certain Indian ti'ibes of such lands parts of Our dominions
and territeries as not having been ceded to or purchased by the Crown werereserved for the present to them. as their hunting ground. The Proclamation
further indicated that ail purchases from Indians of lands reserved te them mustbe made on behaif of the Crown by the Governor of the Colony in which the lands
lie and not by any private person."

In 1873 the lands in suit situated in Ontario, which hýad been an Indianoccupation until that date, under the said Proclamation, were te the extent ofthe whole right and title of the Indian tribes therein, surrendered to the (loy-ernment of the Dominion for the Crown, subjcct to a certain qualified privilege
of hunting and fishing.

Held: That by force of the Proclamation, the tenure of the Indians
was a personal and usufructuary right dependent upon the goodwiil ofthe Crown; that the lands were thereby and at the time of the Union,vested in the Crown, subjeet to the Indian titie, which was an interest
other than that of the Province in the same within the meaning of Section

* 129.

Mr. McPHERsoN: And which had been roservcd te thcm under that Pro-
clamation.

Hon. Mr. BELcounRT: A defined usufruct.
Mr. O'MEARA: A beneficial titie.
Hon. Mr. BELCOUET: Their tîtie nicans, not fee or anything of that kind;it is a usufruct; a usufructuary interest.
Mr. O'MEARA: Indian titie does not mean fee, un.der any cîreumnstances.It is a beneficial titie. Now, Mr. Chairman and hion, gentlemen, the expian-

ation of the point that is giving difficulty is simple. It is to be found in this:That the Royal Proclamation dcaling with ail lands occupied by the tribes ailthrough the country uses the expression " Reserve." It reserves ail that greatterritory for the Indians. That is the explanation, and that is the reason why
that terni " Reserve " is used.

Hon. Mr. STrEVENS: No one cau be surprised that your clients have been
misled by your advice.

Mr. O'MEAm: On what point, Mr. Stevens?
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: On ail points.
Mr. O'MEARA: Well, if my advice is as sound on other points as it is onthis, I think it is ail right; 'because every one who has studied this case knowsahsoiutely that what was dealt with was the large territory that has been occu-

pied 'by the tribes.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: They know nothing of the kind.
Hon. Mr. BELCOURT: Will you tell us Mr. O'Meara what is the definition

of the word "usufructuary"?
Mr. O'MPA1A: Beneficiai.
Hon. Mr. IBELcOURT: No, it does not mean anything of the kind. It means

an entireiy different thîng.
Mr. O'MEARA4: Well, I submit that the word is the same.

[Mr. O'Meara.]



CLAIMS 0F THE ALLIED INDJAN TRIBES, B.C. 217

Hon. Mr. BELCOURT: No, it has a meaning in law.
Mr. O'MEARA: Usufructuary? I think it will be found in the decisions,

an~d in the judgments that it is used ia that sense, Mr. Chairman, but this point
that lias arisen is more a question of fact than of constitutional law, and once
the Committee is satisfied that the facts are according to what I have said, I arn
quite satisfied.

Hon. Mr. STEv.ENs: You will be a long time peresua-diug soine of the Com-
mittee.

Mr. O'MEARA: I will hand this in to, the chairman and ask him to look at
it himself. I have tried and I will try again to point out that the St. Catherine's
Milling case did rAot deal with reserved lands, in the sense of reserves, sucli as
are ordinarîly called reserves. It does ýdeal with the large lands, the lands that
have been occupied for a long time under the Proclamation, by the tribes. I
will be pleased to have this confirmed before I pass on, because I would flot
like any hon. member to think for a moment that there is anything misleading
about it. The case speaks for itself.

Hon. Mr. STEvENs: It is not misleading. That is your opinion, s0 I sug-
gest that you go on.

The CHAIRMAN: What we are listening to, is your statement of your case,
Mr. 'O'Meara, on behaîf of your clients. We do flot deny, nor do we accept,
your statement of the case. That is the position of the Committee. We think
you should finish as soon as you can.

Mr. KELLY: Mr. Chairman, may I make this explanation? According to
the well-defined statement here, it does not refer to lands reserved in the sense
of a "Reserve" that we have now; sucli as for instance "Squamish Reserve",
whi!ch is a reserve in the ordinary sense of those words; 'but, the reserved lands
referred to in this decision were not set apart as the reserved lands on which
Indian villages are situated now. They were rather "Common" lands.

Hon. Mr. BELCOLIRT: Is it not this: that the "Reserve" reserved the whole
territory, and sulbsequently, this territory was carved up into special reserves,
to which a special name was given, but there is no change in title or in interest
by that at ail. They were subdivided and giveý -certain names, but the titie
remaining exactly what it was before. Is not that the case?

Mr. O'MEAm.: That might be done, but that is flot the St. Catherine's
Milling case.

Hon. Mr. MURPHY: The report of that decision speaks for itself. Let us
go on.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: That case is well understood.
Mr. MCPHFRsoN: May 1 oecupy my time by looking over the report of

that case, if I may have the book?
Mr. O'MEA1M: Certainly. The next matter to be placed before the Com-

mittee, Mr. Chairman, is the judgment delivered by their lordships in the
Southern Nigeria case.

Hon. Mr. MCLENNAN: We hiad that before, 'had we not?
Mr. O'MEARA: The reference has already been given, but I refer to, the

same case for anot.her matter.
Hon. Mr. STEVENIS: That case, Mr. Chairman, is well known to the Com-

mittee. Mr. Bennett, who unfortunately is iii just now and unable to be present,
referred to it the other day, I think, and merely to state that they dlaim this
case as supporting their argument would be sufficient. I do not think it is
necessary to go over it. It is a well established case, and the Committee will
know just what value to place upon it.

Hon. Mr. MURPHY: Mr. O'Meara bas already stated it.
Mr. O'MEARA: Not on this point. I cited it with regard to conquest.

Now, I refer to it and ask attention to the full dealing with the whole subject
of native title to be found in that case. As the judgment is quite long, I will

[Mr. O'Meara.]
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simply refer to the outstanding points of it. First of all let me remind the
Committee that in the St. Catherine's Milling case, their lordships were urged
to decide what was the exact nature of Indian title, and they declined to do so.
It is important to note, that they declined, to do so. That which the St.
Catherine's milling case did not do is done by the judgment of their lordships
in the Southern Nigeria case. They say that it is necessary to define what is
the nature of the native title, and they proceeded to do so. The hon. gentlemen
will also find that they, in so many words, refer to title in British Dominions,
and not merely in Southern Nigeria, and they make special reference to the
matter of Indian title in Canada as included within the scope of the principles
which they lay down in this judgment. And, the remaining point is that
clear'ly and explicitly, as I submit, they lay down the principle that in British
Dominions, native title to land is of the nature of communal ownership. Their
lordships do not use the term "tribal", but use the term "communal." And, they
lay down the principle that native title to land in all British Dominions is of
the nature of communal ownership. I submit that there is no difference in
principle between the word "communal" and the word "tribal." I just leave it
at that, Mr. Chairman, but asking that most serious and very special attention
be given to the judgment of their lordships in this Southern Nigeria case.

What remains is that I should present some inatters connected with the
issues existing between the Indian tribes of British Columbia, and the two
governments, and I will state just what those issues are, putting each in a
very few words.

The first issue is:
(1) Did the Indian tribes of British Columbia have the title that they

are claiming before British Columbia entered Confederation.
(2) Whether Article 13 of the terms of Union had the effect of destroying

the native title.
(3) Whether the McKenna-McBride Agreement had the effect of destroying

the title of the Indian tribes
(4) Whether the Indian tribes of British Columbia have ownership of the

fore-shores in front of the reserves held for their use and benefit. And in that
issue there are two sections: One relates to the fore-shores in front of Indian
reserves, situated upon public harbours, as to which the issue is between the
Indian tribes and the Government of the Dominion of Canada. And, the second
section consists of a large number of fore-shores in front of Indian reserves all
along the coast, as to which the issue is between the Indian tribes and the Province
of British Columbiû.

(5) Have the Indian tribes of British Columbia aboriginal fishing rights
in respect of their territories.

(6) Have the Indian tribes of the Province aboriginal hunting rights in
respect of their territories.

(7) Whether the Indian tribes have aboriginal water rights in respect of
their territories.

(8) Whether the Parliament of Canada has authority for putting an end
to the rights of the Indian tribes of British Columbia by means of the enact-
ment that was passed in the year 1920.

(9) Whether, if the power be granted, the Parliament of Canada intended
to take away these rights by the passing of that Bill, the enacting of that law.

And another issue, which is connected with what I have just spoken of,
relates to the validity of the Orders in Council which have been passed under
the Statute or Act of the Dominion of Canada passed in the year 1920, and the
similar statute passed by the Legislature of the Province of British Columbia.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Is that all.
Mr. O'MEARA: No, not quite all. I have a few remarks to make with

regard to some of the issues.
[Mr. O'Meara.]
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With regard to the first, the question of aboriginal titie before Confedera-
tion, I simply say that in view of the Southern Nigeria case, it is flot open to
serious doubt. Tliat is my submission.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: May 1 ask you this question: In regard to that area
which formerly was attached to British Columbia before Confederation, now
included in the States of Washington and Oregon, down to the Columbia River,
do the Indians south of the Boundary-some of whom belong to tribes I think
on either side?

Mr. O'MEARA: Yes, that is right.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Do they dlaim as against the United States Govern-

ment the titie to that property?
Mr. O'MEARA: 1 know nothing of the details, but my general understand-

ing is that they make the saine dlaim, and also that treaties have been made
with them. That is my understanding, that treaties have been made with
them.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: What treaties, and when?
Mr. O'MEARA: 1 do not profess to have the particulars. I just give my

understanding. I know the fact to be, Mr. Chiairman, as Mr. Stevens says,
that they belong to the same, tribe; but 1 cannot say from personal knowledge
whesther treaties have actually been made with thcm, but our understanding
lias been that they have been made.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: 1 have neyer heard of it, and 1 would like to know
whiere they are.

Mr. O'MEALX: I base xny understanding principally upon this, that pretty
well throughout the United States trea-ties have been made with the Indian tribes.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: But the ownership of that area-I think it is rather
important-was sottled as between the United States Government and the British
Government.

Hon. Mr. BARNARDt: I should think that if this dlaim was well founded, that
trihe would have a dlaim against the British Government for giving Up that
territory.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: 1 have nover heard of that question being broughit up.
It would be interesting to know hiow it was deuit with. That area was claimed
bv the British Crowri and was ceded to the United States as a resuit of the
awrard of 1846. Then there was the San Juan claim; taking San Juan Island.
That is within the purview of yoiir investigation, Mr. O'Meara, and if your in-
vestigations have been as thorough as they appear, you must know this: do the
Indians dlaim the aboriginal titie to San Juan Island?

Mr. KELLY: 1 do not think there are any Indians living on it.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Oh, yes. That is a very fine Island. That Island was

ceded by the arbitration award of the Emperor of Germany in 1872. Do you
know of any dlaim there?

Mr. O'MEARA,: No, 1 do not. 1 have no knowledge of that matter at ail.
In f act, I do not know where the place is.

Mr. KELLY: It is South of Victoria.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: It was a famous question at one time. But apparently

your studies have been directed to boister up your own opinions with extracts
selected here and there from the documents.

Mr. OMEAiiA: May I remark that my duty has been on the constitutional
side, and I have relied upon others on the practical side. May 1 proceed, Mr.
Chairmaln?

The CHAIRMAN: Yes.
Mr. O'MEARA: As to the second question: Whether Article 13 had the effect

of destroying the title of the Indian tribes, I submit to the hon. gentlemen that
that Article requires to be examined with very great care, and that it will be
found that it does not carry the Province of British Columbia as far as the

[Mr. 0'Meara.]
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Province is claiming that it is carried. First of ail, as to, the effect of the British
North America Act, iny submission is that not Article 13, but. the provisions of
the whole British North America Act govern the situation, and if the hon, gentle-
men will look at the provisions of that Act, they will find Section 109, which.
expressly, as we submit, preserves the titie of the Indian tribes. It was under
Section 146 that British Columbia entered Confederation. Article 13 was a
termi of the Agreement between British Columbia and Canada, and approved as
one of the ternis of the Union,. but under the exclusive language of Section 146
that Article is subject to Section 109. That poýssibly, is the outstanding point
to, bring before the Committee with regard to Article 13; but if we look at the
Article itself, even if it should be regarded as an out and out enactmoent and not
subject in any way to the provisions of Section 109, 1 submit that it does not sup-
port the position that has been taken by the Province of British Columbia.
The charge of the Indians is given to, the Government of Canada. As I submit,
that means the administration of Indian Affairs in British Columbia. Then,
the trusteeship of lands for the use and benefit of Indians is, gîven to Canada,
and that is a very important f act. Then the Article proceeds to provide for
the setting aside of lands which shaîl be conveyed by the Province to the
Dominion for the benefit of the Indians. Now, what I subimit there is that there
is nothing goîng beyond machinery set up for dealing wîth this matter of lands;
machinery set up to be used by the two governments. I submît that there is not
from beginning te end of that Article one word whichi purports te take away the
rights of the Indian tribes.

Then in addition, I have to bring before the Comnmittee a matter of some-
what, statutory importance. Before 1 refer to a case decided by the House
of Lords on the point involved, I point out what bas bccn done by that article.
The Dominion of Canada becomes a trustee, hion, gentlemen, and 1 suppose no
one will dispute that.

Hon. Mr. STExVENS: A trustee of what?
Mr. O'MFA: Trustee for the Indian tribes. The trusteeship of the

lands reserved for their use and benefit.
The CHAIRMAN: What are you reading from, Mr. O'Meara?
Mr. O'MEARA: I read from Article 13 of the ternis of the Union at page

5 on "Trusteeship."
Hon. Mr. STEVENS.: Please read correctly what you do read?
Mr. O'MEAR: I will read it.

The charge of the Indians and the trusteeship and management of
the lands reserved for their use and benefit, shaîl be assumed by the
Dominion Government.

Then 1 point out that the Article goes on to provide for the conveying of lands
to be held by Canada in trust to the Indian tribes.

Hon. Mr. BAuRNAiw: Do you contend that that extends to lands other than
reserves?

Mr. O'MEARA: No, my submission is, sir, that Canada becomes a trustee
in respect of lands.

Hon. Mr. BAIRNARD: Ahl lands?
Mr. O'MEmui: Ahl lands that are to be held for the Indians; that Canada

takes the position of trustee.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Let us be clear on that. Let us read it again, and then

!et us once for ail accept the reading of the words:-

The charge of the Indians and the trusteeship and management of
the lands reserved, for their use and benefit.

It is so clear that 1 cannot see the sense-it is annoying to me te hear you
go on arguing that that extends to aUd of the lands.

[Mr. O'Meara.]
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Mr. O'MEARA: Pardon me. I huxnbly subinit simply this: that Canada
took there a position of trusteeship toward the Indian tribes.

Hon. Mr. MCLENNAN: There is no dispute about that.
Mr. O'MARA: I did not suppose that any one would dispute that. Now,

then, the second point is that, by that article there was given Vo the Dominion
of Canada a power, and that power was to demand land from the Province of

And my third point is that the resuit of that Article is also to give to the
Secretary of State for the Colonies a power, and that is a power Vo decide on
the lands to be reserved, and the extent of them, in face of the Act, the power
to set aside lands, or rather, Canada had the power to demand lands from
British Columbia.

Hon. Mr. STErENS: Let us geV that right according, toý the Article, and
not according Vo your interpretation. " A policy as liberal as that hitherto
pursued by the British Columbia Government."

Mr. O'MEARA: Yes, exactly.
Mr. PAIJLL: Mr. O'Meara's, contention, Hon. Mr. Stevens, is this: that

article 13 only deals with lands Vo be reserved as reserves for Indians. IV does
flot touch upon the prior or aboriginal titie. It does not toucli on that at ail.

Mr. O'MEARA: The fact is, there is rcally nothing between Mr. Stevens and
myseif at ail.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Except that I would like you to read quotations cor-
rectly.

Mr. O'MEARA: I think I have stated my point sufficiently. There is a power
conferred upon Canada, and a power conferred upon the Secretary of State for
the Colonies. Now, hein. gentlemen, may I ask somewhat special attention to
this; and to what has been donc~ under that.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: What power do you dlaim is placed in the Secretary of
State for the Colonies?

Mr. O'MEARA: The power to finally decide the matter.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Decide what?
Mr. O'MEARA: De-cîde what lands shahl be set aside for the Indian tribes.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Or rcscrved?
Mr. O'MEARA: Reserved, set aside and conveyed.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: According to the policy hitherto carried on by the

British Columbia Qovernment?
Mr. O'MEARA: According Vo the policy, hitherto, yes. Now, before referring

to the authorities upon that, I have two matters that relate Vo the facts of the
case, Vo bring before the Committee. The first is that I submit to the Com-
mittee some brief historical evidence answering the contentions that there were
certain limited lands to be set aside because at a certain time, British Columbia
set aside 20 acres per man and so on. I propose to give historical evidence to
show that up Vo thc ycar 1864, in which year Sir James Douglas seems Vo be
Govcrnor of the two Colonies-up Vo that time, the Colonial policy was radically
different. That is my first point that I wish to bring before the Committee. I
have here some brief extracts from historiýcal evidence establishing that, and
1 wiil hand in this paper. It ail consists of historical evidence, but I will read
certain parts of it that are the most material. Here is a despatch from the
Secretary of State Vo the Colonies Vo Governor Douglas, dated the 3lst July,
1858.

The CHAIRMAN: Where is that despatch Vo be found?
Mr. O'MEARA: I have taken this from the records in the Parliamentary

library. They are there in big volumes, and 1 have taken this very brief extract
from it.

The CHAIRMAN: Can you give the number of the volume and the page?
[Mr. O'Menra.]
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Mr. O'MEARA: 1 have the date here: The 3lst Juiy, 1858. It is easily avail-
able. They are in the form of books of considerable size. 1 will take the
burden of producing anything of that sort if the Committee desire it produced.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: What is that, Lord Lytton's instructions?
Mr. O'MEARA: Lt is a despatch from the Secretary of State for the Colon ies.

I do not know whether he was Lord Lytton at that time.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: I think so.
Mr. O'MEAn-&u Possibly.
The CHAIIRMAN: H-ow are we to know that your quotation is correctlv

extracted?
Mr. 0'MBA.n&: I will undertake to produce the original. My quotation

has been taken from the actual historîcal record that is in the Parliamentary
lîbrary, and perhaps for my iminediate purpose, the Committee will allow me
to undertake to bring that book here if necessary. The records-are sessional
papers, and ahl that sort of record. This is in the year 1858. 1 appreciate the
point, Mr. ýChairman and hon, gentlemen, and I arn willing to take the burden
of producing riglit here ail these actual records. Perhaps the Committee, with
that undertaking, will permit me to read these f ew words from them.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Our experience hitherto has not been very satisfactory
about that sort of thing, Mr. O'Meara.

Hon. Mr. McLENNAN Let us hear it and get on.
Mr. O'MEARA: This is rather important historical evidence, Mr. Chairman.

May I read it? It is very short. This is what he said to Governor Douglas:

-Let me not omit to observe that it should be an invariable condition
in all bargains or treaties with the natives for the ýcession of lands
possessed by them, that subsistence should be supplied to them. in sorne
other shape.

Now, hon. gentlemen, it b as betn advanced ani advanced over and, over
again as an outstanding proposition in connection with this Indian land ques-
tion, that while on Vancouver Island certain things were donc by way of
conceding that there was an Indian title, nothing whatever of that sort was
done in respect of the maînland. That is a contention that bas been very
strongly made. Now will honourable gentlemen notice that the date on which
this despatch was conveyed from London te Governor Douglas was the very
day on which the Royal assent was given to the bill by which as an enactment
the Colony of Britishi Columbia, the mainland colony, came inteo existence.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: When was that?
Mr. 0'MEARA: The 21st July, 1858, on the day on which the Royal assent

was given te the Act whîch created the mainland colony of British Columbia,
the Secretary of State for the Colonies sent this despatch te Governor Douglas.
And allow me to go on te point out that that despatch, in so many plain words,
recognizes the necessîty of making a treaty wi.th the natives for the concession
of lands posBessed by them. And let me also point out-

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: 0f course that is an assertion of yours.
Mr. O'MEARA: Lt is this language.
Hon. Mr.- STEVENS: No, let us make that clear. 1 objeet, Mr. Chairman,

to this dlaim that these things are proved.
Mr. OMx-àitA. 1 submit the language used te the Committee to judge.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: I have another part of it before me, which indicates

something altogether different. If we had the whole of the dispatch here it
would be quite different from an isolated quotation. The whole of the dispatch
from the Secretary of State for the Colonies to Governor Douglas, of 1858,
indicates that the British authorities had been up to that time in fui] possession
of British Columbia, administering it as a colony. In this dispatch, Sir James
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Douglas is ma.de Governor, and lie is asked te inaugurate institutions for the
good government of the country. They sent out a royal survey party to survey
the very lands which he is talking about, whîch was done. Two or three years
later, the lands that were so surveyed were put up to public auction, to whom-
soever wanted to buy them, and were se sold with a Crown titie. That is
altogether different f rom what Mr. O'Meara is trying to show is the effect of
that dispatch.

Mr. O'MEARA: Mr. Chairman and gentlemen, 1 think that must be a
different dispatch.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: No. 1 canot hielp but object, Mr. O'Meara, for what is
a common practice of yours of taking a simply sentence and erecting upon it a
dlaim for your clients, a dlaim which is so serions that it will affect every partîcle
of land in British Columbia if your dlaim is sustained, and which is not sustained
l)y the very document from which yon presume to quote.

Hon. Mr. MURPHY: To how much land in British Columbia does your dlaim
of titie apply?

Mr. O'MEAR4: To ail the lands in the territory coniprised by the dlaims of
the aboriginal claimants. The dlaim is only a tribal dlaim and nlot a dlaim for
absolute titie.

Hon. Mr. MUin'nx: XVhat area is affected?
Mr. O'MEARA: Mainly, the whole of the area that has been stated in the

formai documents.
Hon. Mr. M-uRPHY: 1 want you to state it here now.
Mr. O'MEARA: 1 would ask Mr. Kelly to state that.
Mr. KELLY: According to the paper filed, or the memorandum, some 251,-

000 square miles have not been snrrendered.
Hon. Mr. MURPHY: 1 want to, know what is the dlaim of the Indians?

What territery does the c]aini of the aboriginal Indians cover?
Mr. KELLY: 251,000 square miles.
Mr. MURPHY: And that is Mr. O'Meara's dlaim on behaif of the Indians

still.
Mr. O'MEARA: Yes.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS' Which includes ahl the lande, including Prince Rupert,

VTancouver, and ail these areas which according te the records were settled, long
before Confederation, by the whites, and the surveyed Crown title given te the
properties. 1 want this Committee te appreciate really what this means.
Once that dlaim is admitted. I ob.ject, Mr. Chairman, to the frivolous manner
-and I use that word advisediy-in which Mr. O'Meara quotes excerpts from
the documents to support that serions dlaim, without supplying ail the docu-
ments or the context from which his quotations are taken.

The CHAIRMAN: The Committee wishes Mr. O'Meara te finish his state-
ment.

Hon. Mr. MuRp I-Y: Yes.
Hon. Mr. MCLE.N.A-N: He fias undertaken to produce those document--
The CHAIRMAN: And if lie dues not produce them?
Hon. Mr. McLENNAN: Then the application shonld not be considered.
Hon. Mr. STEvENS: Mr. O'Meara says, "Here is a document which was

presented to Parliament," and he produces it as proof of the dlaim of the Indians
and as having been accepted by this Committee. 1 will not allow that to go
out without my protest.

Mr. O'MEAPu.: 1 appreciate the remarks of Mr. Stevens. May 1 suggest
to him that he exercise a judicial mind.

Hon. Mr. STEVENIS: Oh, I have had twenty years of your nonsense, and I
am tired of it.

The CHAIRMAN: We want the original document, and do not want your
notes of what the document contains.

[Mr. 0'Meai-a.]
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Mr. O'MEARA: I will undertake to get them.
The CHAIRMAN: We do not want the undertaking, but we want the original

document here now.
Mr. KELLY: That is the order of the Committee.
Mr. ýOMEARA: It will take more than ten minutes to get it, I am afraid.
Hon. Mr. BARNARD: While Mr. O'Meara is getting the document, Mr.

Kelly, I would like to hear for my own information something on the question,
apart from the question of aboriginai titie altogether-conceding for the sake
of argument that it exists-how the position of the Indians, their course of con-
duct during ail these years in accepting the benefits of The Indian Act, benefits
which were not given to any other subjects in this country, and t.heir occupation,
and s0 on, is consistent with their now making a claim with rega.rd to the
aboriginai titie? Surely they cannot have it both ways.

Mr. KELLY: Quite so. I think the point raised here is this, if a thing that
has been going on and accepted did not do away with what had existed before,
-that is the point you are making?

Hon. Mr. BARNARD: Yes, I wouid like to, know what your suggestion is
with regard to it.

Mr. KELLY: It is quite true that, Chat is a matter of fact, and we do not
question it for a moment, that the Indians of British 'Columbia have been
treated as generously* as other Indian tribes throughout the rest of the Domin-
ion. But within recent years, shahl I say during the past twenty-five to thirty
years, Indian tribes have become curtailed in their activities. You know as
weli as I do, Senator Barnard, that they were a iaw uxýto themseives and roamed
the forests and went wherever they wanted to go; they were the lords of ail they
surveyed. With the settiing up of the country these rights were curtailed,
naturaliy; and as thcy became curtailed more and more and as the fishing rights
were interfered with and their hunting rights began to be interfered with, and
regulations restricting their activities became more apparent, their thoughts
naturaliy went back to the days when they were the lords of the land; and
upon consulting advîsers here and there, even as white men do, it came to, the
surface that their titie had not been ceded.

If it had not been ceded, then, in view of the f acts that their ancient rights
were taken away, why shouid not a formai recognition be made and a con-
sideration equivalent to that conceded to other tribes of Indians in other parts
of the Dominion be granted to the Indians of British Columbia? That was at
the back of ail this trouble.. I hope I have answered you.

Hon. Mr. BARNARD: Your answer appears to make it clear in this way,
that the Indians accepted the situation as it was, accepted the benefits, and
t.hen, when they found out tha-t the thing was not working out to their satis-
faction, they want to, go back on the deal, have afi the expenditures and get the
lands. It seems to me that this is what your argument amounts to, Mr. Kelly.

Mr. KELLY: Not exactiy.
Hon. Mr. BARNARD: You know what estoppel is in iaw?
Mr. KELLY: I must confess I do not.
Hon. Mr. BARNARD: If two men aot as if a contract were in existence, act

mutually upon it, they cannot afterwards deny that it did exist.
Mr. KELLY: Provided a bargain has been struck?
Hon. Mr. BARNARD: NO.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: That is a principle of iaw which is very important

which Mr. Barnard has suggested. Independent of written iaw or law courts,
where two men, who may be whoiiy ignorant of the law, by mutuai assent, go
on on a certain uine, share certain benefits, and so on, that becomes in the eyes
of the courts a law or bas the effect of a contract.
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Mr. HAY: That is, you cannot take the benefits of another man's action
and deny that that party lias a part in the contract. Your action estops you
from raising that objection.

Mr. KELLY: 1 understand you now. With the exception that the Indian,
as quoted by the Chief the other day, had been told, " If you are not justly
dealit with, if you are not satisfied, the King or the Queen will set this matter
riglit." As pioneers, 1 suppose, ail over the country know, the Indian had a great
deal of faith, especially in the Queen, because she reigned the longest and they
heard of the Queen so often. The Queen would set the thing riglit. Even if
there had been wrong donc by Government officiais, the matter would ultimately
be set right, and believing in that, tthey went on acqu¶escing in the matter ail
the way through until the pinch began to hurt a littie more, and they woke up
to the fact that perhaps after aiýl the Queen was not very much concerned with
them if they did not mnake a noise and draw attention to their grievances.
That was the situation.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: 1 think most of us who are well acquainted with British
Columbia know that there have been many instances where the Indians have
justifiable grievances; but I think ail the evidence submitted by iPaull and your-
self and others here on behaîf of the Indians indicate that from time to, time
the Governments, Provincial and Dominion, but chiefly Dominion, have recog-
nized this and have sauglit to adjust these grievances. 1 think the Committee
would be prepared to admit that there are some grievances stili existing which
we would like to smooth out or iron out, but 1 would like to ask you this, lias
it not been in the last fifteen or twenty years that -there lias been an actual
dlaim for aboriginal titie arîsing?

Mr. KELLY:. Quite so; something about that length of time, sinýce it has
taken a definite form of a legal dlaim. Before that time it was a sort of a
general dlaim.

Hon. Mr. SrEvnrNs: I recall very well the first meeting that Mr. 0'Meara
had in British Columbia, at which he formed the Society for the protection of
the Indians; and that dlaim was not even set forth then. Lt was the other
dlaims set forth in your petition; that is, that the Indians were deprived of some
of their riglits in regard to huntîng, fishing, and so on; and also that they were
too much restricted. That was the basis of bis dlaim then. But later, if i
recali rightly, around 1913 or 1914, there arose this dlaim about aboriginal
titie.

Mr. KELLY: About that; 1 think it started in 1911, to be exact. 0f
course, you must admit that no man can make a dlaim unless he can support
it after careful researchi into the records of the country andcl into the law records,
to, see that bis dlaim is substantiated before it can be madt a paramount issue
and be brought before those who are responsible.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: But in making a claim of that kind, very great care
ought to be taken to base such a dlaim upon very sound documents and con-
tentions.

Mr. KELLY: Speaking as a layman, as f ar as I have been aware, I have
always understood that the support that we have for our dlaim was a good one.
And is it not a fact that in legal procedure this is the practice, to do as Mr.
0'Meara bas been striving to do, to support bis contention by making quotations
f rom this authority and from, that authority? Why is it objected to in this
case?

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Because he does not quote correctly.
Mr. PAIYLL: May 1 be allowed to interrupt for a moment? There is a

book that lias been published many years ago, which contains ail the dis-
patches in colonial days with the Imperial Government. Ail of those dispatches
are contained in that book and we have been trying ail the time since 1 have
been associated, with this matter to get a copy of it. I have been to the Depart-
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ment, and Dr. Scott could not let me have it. 1 have been to the Library,
and they have not got it there. I know that Commissioner Ditchburn has that
book; and I would ask to have access to it.

Mr. STEVENS: I thought Mr. O'Meara told me he could get production
of the book.

Mr. KELLY: H1e is not its custodian.
The CHAIRMAN: fie ought to, knuw, as your counsel, that he should

not quote from something which he cannot produce.
Hon. Mr. MuRPHY: Is the book in this room?
Dr. Sco'rr: I have no c0py of this book, but this one for myseif. 1 have

no objection te allowing them to look at this book. 1 thought Mr. O'Meara was
referring to something original fromn the Imperial Government.

Mr. PAULL: That is why we could not g"c it, it is not available in the
Library.

Mr. KELLY: The point is that the quotation was made from a book which
was in the Library, but somebody bas taken that book from the Library since,
and it cannot now be procured there.

Mr. DITCFIBURN: I do not want that book to be put in and impounded.
It is my personal (0py and I do not know wbcre to get another copy of it.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Read the section into the record, and then you will
have it.

The CHAIRMAN: We want you to read what you are referring to now,
Mr'. O'Meara, into tuie record, because tlie book froin which you are taking it
belongs to the Indian Department, and they have only one copy of it, and
they eatnuo[ IeL ià go.

Mr. O'MEARA: I have already given the particulars, have I not?
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: No.
Hon. Mr. MuRPHY: It is a despatch fromn Lord Lytton?
Mr. O'MEAnA: (Reading):
This i8 an Extract from a despatch from the Right Hon. Sir E. B. Ly-tton,

Bart., to Governor Douglas, dated 3lst July, 1858.
3. 1 have to enjoin upoa you to consider the best and most humane

means of dealing with the Native Indians. The feelings of this country
would be strongly opposed to the adoption of any arbitrary or oppres-
sive measures towards them. At this distance, and with the imperfect
means of knorwiedge which I possess, I arn reluctant to offer, as yet, any
suggestion as te the prevention of affrays between the Indians and the
immigrants. This question is of so, local a character that it must be
solved by yeur knowledge and experience, and I conmmit it to you, in
the full persuasion that you will pay every regard to the interests of
the Natives which an enlightened humanity can suggest. Let me not
omit to observe, that it should be an invariable condition, in all bargains
or treaties with the natives for the cession of lands possessed by them,
that subsistence should be supplied to themn in some other shape, and
above all, that it is the earnest desire of fier Majesty's Government
that your early attention should be given to the best means cf diffusing
the blessings of the Christian Religion and of civilization among the
natives.

Hon. Mr. MURPiiY: Is that the whole of the despatch?
Mr. O'MEmu: That is the whole of what is described lhere as an extract

from a despatch. It is paragraph No. 3, an extract from a despatch set out
in this book, and it so appears in the record as I have given it.

Hon. Mr. M-uRPHY: That is ail that is contained in that book, of that
despatch?

Mr. O'MEARA: Yes, that is all that is contaîned in this book, from that
despatch..

[Mr. O'Meara.]
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The next despatch te which I refer is a despatch from the Colonial Secretary
to the Chief Commissioner of Lands and Works, dated the 5th Mareh, 1861. It
is te be found in the samne book.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: The Commissioner of Lands and Works, of British
ColuM4bia?

Mr. O'MEARA: Yes, that means the officer of Britisli Columbia:-

The Colonial Secretary to the Chie f Commise joner of Lands and Worcs
KEw WESTMINSTER, 5th March, 1861.

SI Iarn directed ' by Hi:s Excellency the Governor to request
that you will take measures, so soon as may be practicable, for mark-
ing eut distinctly the sites of the proposed Towns and the Indian Reserves
throughout the Colony.

2. The extent of the Indian Reserves to be defined as tliey may be
severally pointed ont by the Natives tliemselves.

1 have, &c.,
(Signed) C HARLES GOOD,

for Colonial Secretary.
Thýat, Mr. Chairman, was the principle on which reserves were then to be

Set aside.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Presumaibly that was donc.
Mr. O'MEARA: The next letter bearing on the matter is -a letter ýfrom Mr.

B. W. Pearse te the Chief Commnissioner of Lands and Werks, dated the 21sf
Octeber, 1868. 1 think this is in the saine book.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: It is at page 53.
Mr. O'MARïA: The letter is a report upon the deciining ef reserves in the

Lower Fraser Valley. Mr. Pearse 'says fliat lie went in comnpany witli the
Stipendiary Magitrate, and hie gives this as tlie resuit of it. 1 quote tlic
following werds:-

The principle kept in view was te give tliem. frem ten te twcnty
acres for eacli adult in the tribe, and an extra quantity f or those possess-
ing stock or herses. This xvili throw epen'about 40,000 acres! for setitle-
ment by white men.

Now, gentlemen, may 1 submit te you the position as sliewn by this
histerical evidence?

Hou. Mr. STEVENS: Just a minute. We will read a littie more, Mr.
Cliairman. I will rend the despatch or report.

The CHAIRMAN: May we know first exactly what tlie document is?
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Yes. If lias 'been put in as Mr. O'Meara lias taken

an excerpt from it. I wvould like te read a lîttie more bearing on this question:-

Mr. Pearse to the Chie f Cominissioner of Lands and Worce

LANDS AND WoRKs DEPARTMENT,

21st October, 1868.
SIR,-I have the lionour to, inferm. yeu that in compliance witli

instructions I preceeded in cornpany with Captain Bail, Stipendiary
Magisitrate, te define precisely on tlie ground thie limifs of flic various
reserves for fhe Indians on the Lewer Fraser. This was doinc by xnarking
trees or plan-ting posts en eacli frontage, and making accurate sketches
for the guidance of the surveyor. The chiefs of -the varieus villages were
with us in nearly every case, and witli one exception (that of Wlio-.nock),
expressed tliemiselves theroughly satisfied witli the landsallotted te tliem.
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We took great care to include their potato, grounds in every case. Where
doîng so would have involved too large an undivided ýarea, we gave them
a second lot. The principle kept in view, was to give themn f rom ten to
twenty acres for eaeh aduit in the tribe, and an extra qu'antiity for those
possessing stock or hoirses. This will throw open about 40,000 acres for
settiement, by white men. We left Mr. Launders to run the lines and
complete the survey of the river line.

Ln our reconnaissance in the Chilliwh'ack District we were acom-
panied by nearlyail the settlers, ýsome sixteen in nuinber, who were very
useful and obligiýng in pointing out McColl's and other suirveyors poats.

That gives me an altogether different impression from that whioh would
be left by Mr. O'Meara's partial quotation. Lt will be noted that this report says
that the chiefs of the various villages were with them in nearly every case, and
that with one exception, they expressed themselves as thoroughly satisfied with
the land allotted to them.

Mr. O'MmAnA: That does not speak, Mr. Stevens, of the cutting down of
the larger reserves. Lt refers to niew matters, does it not?

Hon. Mr. STEVENS' Lt speaks for itself, and requires no further comment.
I have not read the whole despatch, but I have read ahl that seems to be of
any particular interest.

Mr. O'MEARA: Gentlemen, I arn not discussing the merits in any manner
of that sort, I quote this for the limited purpose of proving by historical evi-
dence, that the Colonial policy up to the year 1864 was very different from
that whieh has been relied upon as the foundation of Article 13, and 1 submit
that the evidence is conclusive upon that.

Mr. MCPHFRSON: This was before 1864?
Hon. Mr. MCLENNAN: Lt Was 1868.
Mr. O'MxAnA: Up to 1864, Sir James Douglas was Governor. H1e was the

Governor to whom the Imperial despatch was sent of the 3lst of July, 1858,
recognizing completely as 1 submit the necessity for treaties securing cessions
of lands from the natives, and as a matter of fact, as shown openly by the
Statute, Governor Douglas proceeded under that to set aside large reserves
for the Lndian tribes.

Mr. MCPHEBSON: Why would they set aside reserves on that occasion, and
have the boundaries marked with the consent of the Indians, unless the Indians
were consenting to release the balance of the lands?

Mr. O'MEAnA: 1 appreciate that point, sir. But, I am going to refer to
what is quite strong evidence on that subjeet, namely the petition of the Lower
Fraser tribe presented on the L4th of July, 1874. L think that is already in
evidence before the Committee. That shows the great dissastisfaction of the
Lower Fraser people.

Hon. Mr. BARNARD: That is thirteen years ilater.
Mr. O'MEAnA: 1874.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Which was subsequently met and adjusted. I would

like to point out before we leave this, that in this report of Pearse just referred
to, it will be noted that the Indians were taken along when the surveys were
made, which is in harmony with thc instructions of the Secretary of State for
the Colonies, given in the despatch quot-ed a moment or two ago, to Sir James
Douglas. In other words, the Government of British Columbia at that time
was apparently carrying ont the instructions of the home Government, in con-
sulting the Indians regarding these adjustments.

Mr. 'O'MnEuRA: L submit that on the historical evidence it is perfectly clear
that there was a radical chance in policy as to setting aside lands when Sir
James Douglas quittcd office, and one result is shown here in the throwing open
of 40,000 acres of land in one locality for the white people. My purpose is not
to go into the merits of ail that, but to point out that it has a bearing upon
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Article 13 of the Ternis of Union, and that it cannot safcly and soundly be

argued that the huperial Government and the Government of Canada were

intending to continue the sort of policy that there was fromn 1864 te 1871. It

is quite as reasonable to suppose that those Governments had in view the policy

that was in force uip to the year 1864; and that remark, as 1 submit, applies,

with special force to the Imperial Government, because naturally the hnperial

Government would consider that those early despatches had been carried into
effect.

The other important matter of fact te which 1 need to refer is that the

practice of the two Governments since Confederation bias been on the principle

of sitting down and making an agreement; coming in some way to an agree-.

ment as to the quantity of 'land to be set aside for Indians in British Columbia,
Vo be conveyed by the province to the Dominion. That principle was acted

upon in the early days, and that principile bas been acted upon under the

McKenna-McBride agreement, and after ail the work of the Royal Commission.
It is ail completed and before the two, Governments,; and what is done as a

matter of principle is that the two Goveruments sit down at a table and agree

that those findings shall be the end of everything, and say, " Those are the

lands for the Indians." Now I point out and submit very strongly, Mr. Chair-

man and hon. gentlemen, that in carrying that out a wrong principle bias been

acted upon, and that the Dominion of Canada and the province of British
Columnbia have no constitutional power or authority for settling the matter of

lands by that means. 1 submit-at the moment without referring Vo, the

authorities on the subjet-as a matter of principle that there being the tnxstee-

sbip of Canada for the Indians, for the wbole of that province, there being the

power of Canada Vo demand adequate lands for the Indians of British Coluin-
bia-

Hon. Mr. STEvENS: Where do you get tbat from?
Mr. O'MEARA: From Article 13.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Well, it is not there.
Mr. O'MEARA: I amn humbly presenting my submission as to the effect of

that article.
Hon. Mr. MuRPHY: This is his argument upon that Article.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: It is not there.
Mr. O'MEARA: 1 submit that tbat is the effeet of iV, the right te dernand

lands from British Columbia, and that t.here is a power conferred upon the Sec-

retary of State for the Colonies te deal with that matter. And, on princip1e

only for the moment, I submit that the Dominion of Canada as trustee was

under obligation to exercise that power, because at the very bottom of trustee-

sbip, you will find obligation, and tbat is, the principle upon which trusteesbip

is based, tbat there is an obligation on the part of the Dominion of Canada for

carrying out Vbat, and for demanding the lands from British Columbia. That

is what 1 submit. And tberefore on behaif of the tribes of British Columbia,
I humbly submait that those powers, or that power, possessed by the Dominion

of Canada for demanding lands, and the power of the Secretary of State for tbe

Colonies settling the matter, are continuing powers, and that wbat bias been

done by the McKenna-McBride Agrcement bias noV destroyed those powers, but

tbey are continuing.to-day.
Hon. Mr. STEWART: In the first place you say that tbe Dominion of Can-

ada bias tbe power to get tbe land, and then you say, if they do not get the land,
the Secretary of State -steps in?

Mr. O'MEARA: 1 amn saying the Dominion of Canada is trustee under
Article 13, and that, as trustee, there is conferred upon Canada tbe power
to demand adequate lands from the province of British Columbia.

Hon. Mr. STEWART: Quite right.
[Mr. U'Meara.1
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Mr. O'MEAnA: And that there is also created by that same instrument
-Article 13-a power on the part of the Secretary of State for the Colonies
to give the final word upon sucli demand.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Again I must eall the attention of the Committee to
the fact that it is a policy as liberal as that, hitherto pursued by the British
Columbia Government which shall be continued by the Dominion Government
.after Union. The basis of the Dominion Government treatment is a liberal
policy, or a policy as liberad as that of the Colony before the Union.

Mr. MoRiN: Ta not your argument inconsistent with that, Mr. O'Meara?
Hon. Mr. STEWART: The Dominion Government is to have the land, and

it is to have adequate land. Is not that the basis?
Mr. 0'MEAuRA: May 1 remnind the hon. member that, in the document now

before this Committee, if my memnory is correct, the Minister of the Interior
of 1874 declared in very emphatic language that Article 13 was fully inadequate
for meeting the situation, and he used very strong lauguage es regards that.

YIr. McPHEEsoN: Was that that the provisions of the Provincial Gov-
ernmcnt prior had not been adequate?

Mr. 0'MEARA: Well, he speaks very strongly on that subject.
Xow, Mr. Chairman, I wish to submit to you an authority upon that

subject which I shali sûhmit is quite conclusive. 1 refer first, to a case decided
by the House of Lords, and reported in Scott's Appeal Cases. First, Weller vs.
Ker reported in Law Reports Scotch Appeals, Volume 1 at page 11. I refer to
that as an authority but 1 leave that there because in a subsequent case, there
has been made a vcry useful statement of the principle for which 1 amn coutend-
ing at this moment. I give this as the authority of the Huse of Lords, for
the proposition that a power of that sort is a continuing power, and cannot
be clestroyed [by any mere agreement. 1 refer also to this case in which the
principle bas been laid down, decided in the Chancery Division of the High
Court of Justice in England, by Mr. Justice Kay. It is to be found in the
Law Times reports Vol. 49 at page 259. I shall read a few words from, the
judgment of Mr. Justice Kay:

It is argued that by this release the power even if simply col-
lateral is entirely destroyed under Section 52 of the Conveyancing Act of
1881. Assuming that this would be the case as to an ordinary collateral
power, the first question is whether if it be a power given to trustees
coupled with a duty it eould be so destroyed, and 1 am clearly of opinion
that in equity it could iiot, if thiat be the nature of the power. A trustee
who bas a power which is coupled wîth a duty is, I conceive, bound so
long a,- he remains trustee, to preserve that power and to exercise bis
discretion as circumstances arise from time to time whether the power
should be used or not, and he could no more by bis own voluntary act
destroy a power of this kind than he can voluntarily put an end to or
destroy any other trust that may be committed to him.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: What are you quoting from, now?
Mr. 0'MEAR.A: Mr. Justice Kay's statement of the principle. The case

is "In re Eyre."
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: That is a case of a trusteeship of an individual, of a

minor, the same as this other case you quoted.
Mr. 0'MEAEA: It is a trusteeship, and that is the principle.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: 0f an individual.
Mr. 0'MnAR: Yes, of an individual.'
Hon. Mr. STEWART: If it is on trusteeship generally, as far as we are con-

cerned, we might accept it. We are not questioning the power of a trustee, not
for a moment.

[Mr. O'Meara.]
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Hon. Mr. MLRPHY: Mr. O'Meara is drawing a distinction between a true-
teeship and a guardianship. He is arguing that the position of the Dominion
of Canada is that of a trustee, and noV that of a guardian.

Mr. O'MEA: The case is:

In re Eyre; Eyre vs. Eyre.

Upon the next issue, as to whether the McKenna-McBride agreement
destroyed the land rights of the tribes in British Columbia, I subrnit that it
did not. 1 submit that there is nothing whatever to be found in Article 13
whicb could be relied upon as empowering the two, Governments to go to the
length of making an agreement for the adjustment of ail matters in British
Columbia, relating to Indians and their affairs in British Columbia, by means
of that agreemnent. 1 submit that article 13 bas nothing in it to authorize the
two Governments Vo do that.

Hon. Mr. STEWART: Mr. O',Meara in a word you say the two goveruments
have not the authority Vo settie Reserve questions?

Mr. O'MEARA: Nýo, Mr. Stewart, very different Vo that is my submissîon.
Hon. Mr. STEWART: Thcn, I do not know what 1V means if it does not

mean that.
Mr. O'MEARA: If the MeKenna-MeBride agreement was limited Vo the

putting in operation of the machinerv for conveying lands to Canada for Vhe
Indians, or in other words, for creating what we eall reserves, then my point
would noV apply; but I humbly submit that when the two Governiments sit
down and .put in that language, that the carrying out of that arrangement -shall
be a final adjustment of ail matters relating Vo Indian Affairs in British Colurn-
bia, they did that whi:ch they bcd no authnrity under Article 13 Vo do.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: IV does not say that.
Mr. McPmERSON: Your submission then is that the Dominion Govern-

ment, as rustees for the Indians, as alleged, had no rîght Vo enter into an
agreernent Vo settie the int>erest of tliuse Indians with the province.

Mr. O'MEARA: Yes, sir, certainly.
Mr. MePiinmisoN.: You do not need Vo repeat it, if that is the centention.

Therefore, at no time could Vhey finally settie the Indians' riglits as their
trus tees.

Mr. O'MEAnA: As a trustee, yes. If iV could be established that they were
in the position of guardians, and the Indians had become wards, then there
wouid be something in your contention.

Mr. McPHER.SON: I arn noV contending, I arn Vaking your own contention.
Mr. O'Mn-ýA~: My own submission is that Vbey are absolutely trustees,

and the relation is that of trusteeship, and thaV there was no power under article
13 for the Vwo governments Vo, go the length of providing for the final adjust-
ment of matters relating Vo Indian affairs in British Columbia.

Mr. MCPHERSON: Then to foilow that up; if they have no power to make
a settiement on behaîf of the Inýdians as trustee, then they have no power now
to do it without the consent of the Indians.

~Mr. ýO'MEABA: Exactly, that is my submission.
Mr. MCPIIERSN: Then if the Indian is controliing bis own affairs, wby is

the Dominion Government the trustee and noV Vbe guardian?
Mr. O'MEABA: I bumbly submit that a trustee may be a trustee for cer-

tain persons, and I submit that rusteeship is radically different, from guardian-
shiýp.

Mr. McPHERSON: I do noV sce how that applies Vo, one side of the dilemme
and not Vo the other.

Mr. O'MEARA: I am arguing upon the basis of the relationship being VhaV
of trustee.
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With regard to the next issue, whether the Indian tribes have the owner-
ship of the fore-shores in front of their reserves, I put in a short memorandum
on that subject, which will be found in this record, and which states the posi-
tion in regard to the fore-shores. I am not going to add to that. I ask that
it be received and made a part of the record. It is a statement presented in
Victoria regarding the fore-shores in front of Indian reserves.

Hon. Mr. MuRPiHy: What date?
Mr. O'MEARA: In the month of August, 1923.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Presented by yourself?
Mr. O'MEARA: By myself as general counsel of the Indian tribes. I put

that in as part of my argument.
The CHAIRMAN: Was that at a meeting?
Mr. O'MEARA: Yes, between Dr. Scott and myself and others.
Dr. Sco-r: That was the meeting in August, 1923, in Victoria. I allowed

Mir. O'Meara to put in his argument on " fore-shores," instead of listening to it.
Hon. Mr. MURPHY: We have that filed then.
Mr. KELLY: I might say, Mr. Chairman, that this meeting was an impor-

tant meeting, held at the request of the Minister of the Interior; it was an official
meeting.

Mr. O'MEARA: As to the next issue, whether the tribes have aboriginal
fishing rights, I do not require to go into that. I simply put it before the Com-
mittee.

Hon. (Mr. MURpHY: What do you mean by aboriginal fishing rights? Do
you mean by that unrestricted fishing rights?

Mr. O'MEARA: Yes, fishing rights that would extend to their territory, the
territory they had 200 years ago.

Hon. Mr. STEVENs: Without restriction or control by white men?
Mr. O'MEARA: Yes, without restriction, absolutely. That was their

aboriginal title.
The next issue is whether they have aboriginal hunting rights, the same

applies to that. But with regard to that matter, may I point out to the hon.
gentlemen that an exceedingly important issue exists, and that is whether the
Province of British Columbia has legislative authority for enacting restrictions
upon Indian hunting rights. The Indian tribes of British Columbia, or the
allied tribes, submit that the Province of British Columbia has not such legis-
lative authority; and it will be found, gentlemen, that their submission is very
strongly supported by decisions that have been given, which can be quoted by
authoritative sources here in Ottawa. For the sake of brevity, I am merely
indicating what the position is and am not going into that, which in itself is a
large matter. But, before going on, may I point out this, which I submit is a
rather important consideration: the position bas been taken and has been
brought up at this committee, during this sittings, that Canada is offering to
the British Columbia tribes all that has been given to the tribes of the rest of
Canada. Let me respectfully point out that, with regard to the hunting rights,
the position is this: in some of the most important treaties relating to other
parts of Canada, as no doubt Dr. Scott will agree, in, for instance, the Robinson
Huron Treaty and the Robinson Superior Treaty, and also in several of the most
important treaties in Western Canada and Northern Canada, a part of the
treaty is the reservation of hunting rights to the Indians. So that just as the
lands are reserved to them under the Treaty, the hunting rights are reserved to
them.

The Dominion of Canada unfortunately is not in a position to offer to do
that in British Columbia, because the Province claims two things. It claims
that the McKenna-McBride agreement under the constitution is a final adjust-
ment of all matters relating to Indian affairs in British Columbia; and the
Province also claims tha.t the Provincial Legislature can validly enact every

EMr. O'Meara]
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restriction desired upon Indian hunting riglits. 1 submit that for the con-

sideration of the Committee.
Hon. Mr. MuRPHY: When you began this last argument did 1 understand

you to draw a distinction bet.ween the treatment accorded the Indians of British

Columbia in regard to hunting rights, and the treatment accorded Indians else-

where in -Canada.
Mr. O'MEARA: The suggestion is officiai and on the records, tliat Canada is

saying to the tribes of British Columbia, "We will give you everything that has

been given to the tribes in the rest of Canada." 1 arn pointing out that in regard

to hunting riglits Cana-da is not in a position to do that, because British Colum-

bia says that there lias been a final adjustment of ail matters in connection with

Indian affairs, and yet, when you go into other parts of Canada, hunting riglits

have been reserved by treaties.
Hon. Mr. STEWART: Reserved by treaty?
Mr. O'MEÂRA: Under the treaties.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: Do you suggest that in other parts of Canada the

Indians have all their original riglits of hunting?
Mr. O'MEARA: No, because the matter lias been matter of controversy.

Hon. Mr. STEWART: Because that would be an absoiuteiy absurb statement

to make, if it ref ers to lands which are not ýCrown lands.

Mr. PATJLL: If I might answer that, by some treaty in Vancouver Island,

between some Indians and the Hudson Bay Company, on Aprii 29, 1850, "with

the smaii exceptions becomes the entire property of the white people forever. Lt

is also undrstood that we are at liberty to hunt over the unoccupied lands and to

carry on our fisheries as formeriy." That was the agreement entered into between

the Hudson Bay Company and some tribes on Vancouver Island. Our sub-

mission is that now we cannot fish and we cannot hunt on tliete lands.

Mr. DITCH1BURN: I think you ought to take ito consideration that t-here

are no unoccupied lands in that part of the country. Now those are ail privately
owned lands.

Hon. Mr. STEWART: And the same thing applies in Ontario.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: IL inakes a reasonabic ciaim almost hopeiess to'put up

any preposterous dlaims with it,.
Hon. Mr. MURPHY: There can be no shootitig in Vancouver streets..

The CHAIRMAN: Have you finisheýd, Mr. O'Meara?
Mr. O'MEARA: No, not ye.t, Mr. Chairman. I have promiéed to be as brief

as possible, but there are some important matters yet to bie put before you. I

submait these hunting rights are important.
Hon. Mr. MuIoeHv: You have stated them anyway.
Mr. O'MEARA: Yes. With regard to generai riglits, the oniy other issue is

have the aboriginal tribes original water rights? I want to put a very important

statute of British Columbia before this Committee. Wili Mr. Pauil put ît in?

Mr. PA-uLL: Mr. Ditchburn put that in aiready.
Mr. O'MEARA: But may I point out that the final section of that statute

in so many words enacts that aboriginai water rights shall not be recognized in

British Columbia. I ask special attention to that enactment. of the Province,

showing the position which the province takes on this whoie subject of the riglits

of Indian tribes.
Hon. Mr. STEVBNS: That statute is ail in. Mr. Ditchburn put it in.

Mr. ?ÂULL: Lt is chapter 19 of the British Columbia Statutes of 1921.

Mr. O'MEARA: The next two issues honourable gentlemen, as I shall sub-

mit, are of ail the most important issues to be placed before this Committee;

and at the same time I hope to be able to put them before you in not more than

ten minutes. Those relate to t.he law of 1920, which, as I submait under the

memorandum before you now, is regarded as a sort of a vise in which the Indian

tribes are heid and in which even the Dominion Governinent is preventing any
[Mr. O'Meara.]
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further action whatever. There is the heart of this whole trouble, as I submit.
There is the greatest difficulty standing to-dav in the way of a real adjustment;
this law of the year 1920, which it is clairned carnies into effect the McKenna
agreement, which. says in so many words that the carrying out of this agree-
ment shall be a final adjustment of ail matters relating to Indian affairs in
British Columbia.

Hua. Mr. MUIU'HY: Are you referring to the British Columbia Act?
Mr. O'MiAmx: No, to the Dominion Act of 1920.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: You have already stated that twice.
Mr. O'MEAR.,: 1 will state them, aad state them shortly. First of ail, letme refer to a very important judgmeat of the Judîcial Comrnittee of the Privy

Council in what is knowa. as the Burrard case. Mr. Pauli will give you the
reference. The Burrard case, which related to water rights, was a case of the
Burrard Power Company vs. The King, fouad in L.R. (1911) A.C. 94.

Hon, gentlemen will find that case most distinctly lays down the principle
that such riglits as water rights depend upon the title to the land itself. There
is the principle upon which the Burrard case is based; and I humbly submit
that 'that has a tremeadous application to this position regarding the Indian
trihes, because it means this, if the tribes have the actual beneficial territorial
rights whîch they have always claimed to have and are claiming to-day to have,then, accordiag to the Burrard case, they have fishing rights and hunting rights
and water rights. They have these because they have an actual beneficial title
to their territories. And if they have flot that titlc, thca thcy have no't the rights.
Now then, having all that in view, what do we fiad with regard to the Iaw of
thc ycar 1920? The facts about ià are familiar.

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: You have not put in the Burrard case.
Mr. O'M1ea.RA: Yes, I state the principle, aad I think that will be f ound to

be a correct statement of the principle.
Ia view of aIl of that, including the momentous matter of the principle of

the Burrard case, I corne to ask this Committee to fully face what is meant bythe law of 1920 empowering the Governor General in Council to carry into effeet
the McKenna agreement, which Mr. Newcombe saîd in his opinion, in so many
words, involves a final adjustmeat of ail matters relatiag to Indian affairs ia
British Columbia.

I suhmit that the Parliament of Canada has not legislative authority for
enacting the law that was eaacted in the year 1920; and I submît that, even
if the Parliament of Canada bas such power, that statute is not properly inter-
preted as being intended for taking away the riglits of the Indian tribes. Those
are my two submissions with regard to the law which the Parliament of the
Dominion of Canada passed in the year 1920.

In support of it, honourable gentlemen, I think perhaps it might be suffi-
cient to refer to the presentation of that matter of legislative jurisdiction with
regard to property rights, which was placed before the Huse of Commons a
f ew days ago by Mr. Bennett. I aýsk to make reýference to that, and I submit
that the principle I amrnaow placing hefore this Committee is the same principle
which was relied on by Mr. Bennett in debating the matter of the Ottawa River
and the rights of the Province of the legisiative jurisdiction of the Parliament
of Canada.

Hon. Mr. BARNARD: But those views did not prevail, did they?
Mr. O'MEARA: I amn going further and I place before thîs Committee the

principal authorities supporting rny submission. Frorn some of those authori-
ties I wili read a few words; but these are ail authorities-

Hon. Mr. STEVENS: This is the aid game, Mr. Chairman, of referring to a
case without putting it before us. What is the Burrard case which you speak
of? What was the case? I do not mean the titie of it, but was it a fishery
case or water rights?

[Mr. O'Meara.]
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Mr. O'MEARA: It is reiating to water rights in the interior.
Dr. Sco'rr: It related to land within the raiiway beit.
Mr. O'MEAnmu I think so. Anyway the subject was water rights.
Hon. Mr. STrEvENs: What were the contentions?
Mr. O'MEAiA: If it should be necessary I shahl look it up, but I think

I can gi.ve it sufficientiy from this. This is what I put before the officiais in
Victoria.

"I1 wish to ref er 10 a few words used by their iordships of the Judicial
Committee of the Privy Council, which had a most material bearing upon this
matter, and I humbly submit wili be f ound conclusive."

Then I gave the reference to the Burrard case, Law Reports Appeai Cases
1911, page 94, and these words are quoted: " Their Lordships are of opinion
that the judgments of the Courts of Appeai are right. The grants of public
land undoubtedly passed the water rights incidentai to those grants."

It is on the samne malter that I referred to the case generaiiy known as the
Fisheries Case, reported in 1914 Appeai Cases. I was intending, Vo give a
reference to the principal authorities upon that, and I was intending to, read a
few words taken from them.

The CHAIRMAN. We cannot alhow you the time to read them.
Mr. O'MEARA: Then, I wili put before you the references.
Hon. Mr. STEVENS: That decision was aceepted by 'both Parliaments, and

laVer an Act was passed by the Dominion Parliameut, reconveying the right
of administration of the water power in the rai.lwsy beit to the province. They
considered that settled that part of it. It is not uecessary to go ovcr it again.

Mr. O'MEA1A: May I give a reference to this case, of the Attorney General
of Canada vs. the Attorneys Generai for Provinces, Law Reports 1898, Appeai
Cases, page 700, and especially at pages 709, 712 and 713.

The next case is Attorney Generai for British Columbia vs. Attorney
General for Canada, Law Reports 1914, Appeai Cases 753.

The next case is Attorney Generai of Canada vs. Attorney Generai for
Quebec, Law Reports 1921, Appeai Cases, Vol 1, page 413. And one more,
in Law Reports 1898, Appeal Cases at page 709, which contains Lord Herschell's
judgment on this whole matter.

What I submit as a resuit of these cases to which 1 have given reference is
this, that there is a broad distinction between property rights aud legisiative
jurisdiction. 1 submit that in passing the enactment of the year 1920, the
Parhiament of Canada was seeking Vo deal with the malter of property rights.

That i.s ail that 1 have to place before your honourable Committee.
Mr. MCPESON: Mr. Chairman, as to these eaues that have been quoted,

I wish Vo place something on the record. Mr. O'Meara referred Vo two cases,
and asked us to consider them closely. 1 have read the full judgment in the

African case, which bas been referred Vo as the Southern Nigeria case. I just
want bo draw to the attention of the Committee that that was a case in whiich
the basis of the argument w'as as Vo whether the chief of the tribe had a right
to, colleet only partial duties, annual duties as it were, or dues, and not full
compensation as the owner of the land for the tribe. The case decided that he
was entitled Vo receive f ull compensation. Now, iu that there were some remarks
made by bis lordship, Viscount Haldane, as Vo, general British principles in con-
nection with aboriginal tities. Tbey are noV part of the judgment, but only
his remnarks regarding them the world over, and happily he mentions in that very
case the fact that the Privy Couneil bad already explained elsewhere the prin-
ciples that guided it in connection with Indian tribes sud their right Vo reserve
lands in Canada. The case he refers to is the other one cited by Mr. O'Meara,
the St. Catherines Mîlling and Lumber Company vs. the Queen, in wbich the
judgment was delivered by Lord Watson. Iu that judgment bis lordsbip states
as a matter of fact, this clause:-

[Mr. O'Meara.]
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By an article of treaty it is stipulated that subjeet to such regula-
tions that may be made by the Dominion Government, the Indians have
the right ta pursue their avocations of humting and fishing, throughout
the surrendered territory, with the exception of those portions of it which
may from time to time he taken up for settiement, mining, lumbering or
other purposes.

Now, that is ail the reference there is to the Indian titie, and the balance of the
case was based upon whether the province of Ontario had control of the lumber-
ing rights, or the Dominion Governýment. The Dominion Government had
issued a lumbering license and the rest of the case is devoted to deciding which
Government could collect those duties. It was held that the province of Ontario
had full control, not only of the lands, but of the lumbering also. That is ail
there is in that case, and it conclusîvely extinguishes the Indian rights ta the
lumbering in that territary. The treaty speaks for itself. Even their hunting
rights disappear when it is used for other purposes.

Mr. KELLY: Mr. Chairman, I notice that the hour of adjournment is just
arriving, but before eoncluding, I would like ta say something whîch has been
omitted, and 1 think it is of too great importance to be overlooked. I think it
brings before us in a very definite way the suhject of the argument of this morn-
ing. This is Governor Douglas to the Secretary of State for the Colonies,
Despatch No. 24, dated Victoria, March 25, 1861. It is set out here in full,
and the answer thereta is also, given. 1 would like to put that on record, with
the permission of the Committe.e.

The CHAIRMAN: Yes, read it. Do you want Lu put in the two despatches?
Mr. KELLY: Yes, this first dcspatch ocdupies a page.
The CHATRMAN: Is it thc picaeiure of the Cornmittce thaL ihese decuments

should be put on record?
Hon. Mr. STEvENs:' BoLli despatches should go in.
The CHAIRMAN: It is hardly necessary ta read them.
Hon. Mr. STEvENS: No, 1 do not think so.
Mr. KELLYS You have still minutes, Mr. Chairman, and I can get through

in three if you. will allow me.
The CHAIRMAN: Very well, proceed.
Mr. KELLY (reads):

Governor Douglas to the Secretary of State for the Colonies

VicToRu, Mardh 25, 1861.
My LoRD DuKE,,-

" I have the honour of transmitting a petition from the Huse of
Assembly of Vancouver Island to your Grace, praying for the aid of Her
Majesty's Government in extinguisýhing the Indian title ta the public
lands in this Colony; and setting forth, with much force and truth, the
evils that may arise from the neglect of that very necessary precaution.

2. As the native Indian population of Vancouver Island have dis-
tinct ideas of property in land, and mutually recognize their several
exclusive rights in certain districts, they would not fail to regard the
occupation of such portions of the Colony by white settlers, unless with
the full consent of the prcoprietary tribes, as national wrongs; and the
sense of injury might produce a feeling of irritation against the settiers,
and perhaps disaffection to, the Government that would endanger the
peace of the country.

2. Knowing their feelings on that subjeet, 1 made it a practice up
ta the year 1859, to purchase the native rights in the land, in every case,
prior ta the settlement of any district; but since that time in conse-
quence of the termination of the Hudson's Bay Company's Charter, and
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the want of funds, it has not been in my power to continue it. Yot
Grace must, indeed, be well aware that 1 have, since then, had the utinost

difficulty in raising money enough to defray the most indispensable

wants of Government.
4. Ail the settled districts of the Colony, with the exception of Cow-

ichan, Chemainus, and Barclay Sound, have been already bought fromn

the Indians, at a cost in no case exceeding £2 10s. sterling for each

f amily. As the land basý, since then, increased in value, the expense

would be relatively somewhat greater now, but 1 think that their dlaims

might be satisfied wîth a paymient, of £3 to each family; so that taking

the native population of those districts at 1,000 families, the suin of

£3,000 would meet the whole charge.
5. It would he improper to conceal from your Grace the importance

of carrying that vital measure into effect without delay.

6. 1 will not occupy your Grace's time by any attempt te investigate

the opinion expressed by the House of Assembly, as to the liability of

the Imperial Governent for all expenses connected with the purchase

of the dlaims of the ahorigines to the public land, which simply amounts

to this, that the expense would, in the first instance, be paid by the

Imperial Government, and charged to the acceunt of proceeds arising

from the sales of public land. The land itself would, therefore, be ulti-

mately made to bear the charge.
7. It is the practical question as to the means of raisîng the money,

that at this moment more seriously engages my attention. The Colony

being already severely taxed for the support of its own Government, could

not afford to pay that additional sum; but the difficulty may be sur-

mounted by means of an advance froin the Imperial Govcrnmcnt te the

extent of £3,000, to be eventually repaid out of the Colonial Land Fund.

8. 1 would, in fact*, strongly recommend that course to your Grace's

attention, as specially calculated te extricate the Colony from existing

difficulties, without puttîng the Mother Country te a serious expense; and

I shahl carefully attend to thc repayment of the sum advanced, in full,

as soon as the Land Fund recovers in some measure from the depression

caused by the delay lier Majesty's Government has experienced in effect-

ing a final arrangement with the Hudson Bay Company for the recon-

veyance of the Colony, as týhere is little doubt when our new system of

finance comes fully into operation that the revenue will be fully adequate

te the expenditure of the Colony.
I have, etc.,

(Signed) JAMES DOUGLAS.

Now, 1 put that on record as proviug the policy pursued Up te that time

in the Colonial days, which is clearly embodied in that. Shaîl I read the reply

thereto?
Mr. MCPHERsoN: It also proves something else, that the value of the land

was £3,000.
Mr. KELLY: $15 per f amily.
Mr. O'MEARA: That is not material.
Hon. Mr. MOLENNAN: And ahl Vancouver Island had been bought except

thosc three district8.
Mr. PAuLL: No, not ail Vancouver Island, around Cowichan had been

bought.
Mr. KELLY: It says the settled districts of the Colony, with the exception

of Cowichan, Chemainus, and Barclay Sound.
Hon. Mr. McLENNAN: Will you read the reply?

[Mr. Kely.)



SPECIAL COMMITTEE

Mr. KELLY: The reply is as follows:

The Secretary of State for the Colonies to Governor Douglas, C. B.

DowNiNG STREET,

October 19, 1861.
Su,-I have had under my consideration your despateli No. 24, ofthe 25th of Mardi last, transmitting an Address from the House of

Assembly of Vancouver Island, in which they pray for the assistance ofHer Maj esty's Government in extinguishing the Indian Title to the public
lands in the Colony, and set f orth the evils that may resuit f rom a neglect
of this precaution.

I arn fully sensible of the great importance of purchasing withoutloss of time the native titie to the soil of Vancouver Island; but the
acquisition of the titie is a purely colonial interest, and the Legisiaturemust not entertain any expectation that the British taxpayer will beburthened to supply the funds or British credit pledged for the purpose.I would earnestly recommend therefore to the bouse of Assembly, thatthey should enable you to procure the requisite means, but if they
should not think proper to do so, Her Majesty's Govcrnment cannotundertake to supply the money requisite for an object which, whilst it isessential to, the interests of the people of Vancouver Island, is nt thesame time purely Colonial in its character, and trifling in the charge that
it would entail.

I have, etc.,

(Signed) NEWCASTLE.
Mr. KELLY: Another thing, Mr. Chaîrman: "At the request of Mr. O'MearaI think you commanded Mr. Chisholm to bring a memorandum here?
The CHAIRMAN: No, 1 did nut czommand Mr. Chisholm to do anything.I asked Mr. Chisholm to attend here.
Mr. KELLY: I arn sorry. You asked Mr. Chisholm to be here, to bring thememorandum which was prepared for Sir Wilfrid Laurier. Was not that it?The CHAIRMAN: I do not know anything about a memorandum. I askedMr. Chisholm to be present at this session of the Committee. If y.ou want toask Mr. Chisholm any questions, he wiIl answer them.
Mr. KELLY: Then, may I ask Mr. Chisholm for a memorandum preparedby the bon. Mr. Newcombe for Sir Wilfrid Laurier, in June, 1910.
Mr. C111SHOLM: This memorandumn was prepared by Mr. Newcombe forSir Wilfrid Laurier, who was then Prime Minister. It contains an outline ofthe respective dlaims made by the Dominion and the Province, and the Indiandlaims now under consideration. It also contains certain views expressed byMr. INewcombe about each dlaim. I arn quite sure that it was neyer intendedto be produced and given to the public.
Hon. Mr. MuRPHY: How has Mr. O'Meara obtained knowledge of it then?
Mr. CHisHoLm: I do not know.
Mr. O'MEAEA: Dr. Scott brought it forward, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. CHISHOLM: H1e mentioned it to me yesterday, when he came over tothe Department. I do not know how he bas any knowledge about the existenceof the document. I submît that it is not in the public interest to have thismemorandum produced. Litigation may arise at any time between the provinceand the Dominion or on the Indian dlaims,' and the legal views expressed inregard to the dlaims should not be produced.
Hon. Mr. MuRpHiy: It is a memorandum for the information of Sir Wil-frid Laurier.

[Mr. Ohisholn.]
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EXHIBIT NO. 6
Filed by P. R. Kelly

CONVEYANCE 0F LAND TO Huns-oiN's BAY COMPANY

Saanich Tribe-South Saanich

Know ail men that we, the chiefs and people of the Saanich Tribe, who
have signed our naines and made our marks to this deed on the sixth day of
February, one thousand eight hundred and flfty-two, do consent Vo, surrender,
entirely and for ever, to James Douglas, the agent of the Hudson's Bay Company
in Vancouver Island, that is Vo say, for the Governor, Deputy Governor, and
Comunitkee of the saine, the whole of the lands situate and lying between Mount
Douglas and Cowichan Head, on the Canal de Haro, and extending thence to
the line running through the centre of Vancouver Island, INorth and South.

The condition of or un-derstanding of this sale is this, that our village sites
and enclosed fields, are Vo he kept for our own use, for the use of our éhilren,
and for those who may follow after us; and the land shall be properly surveyed
hcrcaftcr. It is undcrstood, however, that the land itself, with these small
exceptions, beomes the entire property of the white people for ever; it is
also understood that we are at liberty Vo hunt over the un ccupied lands, and
Vo carry on our fisheries as formerly.

We have received, as payment, Forty-one pounds thNnsilig n
four pence.

In token whereof, we have signed our names and made our marks, at Fort
Victoria, on the 7th day of February, one thousand cight hundred and fifty two.

(Signed) WHUJr-SAY-MULLIrr his X mark.
and 9 others.

Witness Vo signatures,

(Signed) JOSEPH WILLIAM MCKAY,

Olerk H.B. Co's. service.

RIcHD. GOLLEDGE, Clerk.

.Saanich Tri be-North Saanich

Know ail men, that we the chîefs and people of the Saanich Tribe, who
have signed our names and made our marks Vo this deed on the eleventh day
of February, one Vhousand eight hundred and fifty-two, do consent Vo surrender,
entirely and for ever, to James Douglas, the Agent of the Hudson's Bay
Company, in Vancouver Island, that is Vo say, for the Governor, Deputy
Governor, and Gommittee of the saine, Vhe whole of the lands situate and lying
as follows, viz:-commencing at Cowichan Head and following the coast of
the Canal dc Haro northwest nearly Vo Saanich Point, or Qua-na-sung; from
thence following the course of the Saanich Armn Vo the point where it ternun-
ates; and from thence by a straight line across country Vo said Cowih TMan
Head, the point of commencement, so as Vo include ail the country and lands,
with the exceptions hereafter named, within those boundaries.

The condition of or understanding of Vhs sale is this, that our village sites
and enclosed fields are Vo be kept for our own use, for the use of our children,
and for those who may follow after us; and the land shall be properly surveyed
hereafter. It is understood, however, that the land itself, with these small
exceptions, becomes the entire property of the white people for ever.
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Mr. CHîisHoLM: That is ail. It was reaiiy confidential, although it is not
so marked.

Hon. Mr. Mu"RPHy: Does your Department regard sucli documents as
confidential when exchanged between the Department and the Prime Minister
of the day?

Mr. CHISHOLM: Certainly, the same as a memorandum from. an officer
of the Department to the Minister.

The CHATRMAN: That document bas neyer been brought down to the
flouse or the Senate?

Mr. CHISHOLM: No, Mr. Cliairman, not even the Indian Department had
it until I gave a copy to Dr. Scott yesterday.

Mr. MCPHERSON: At best. it îs the legal opinion of Mr. Newcombe.
Mr. -CHISHOLM~: It gives a short outline of sales in the different parts of

the country.
Hon. Mr. MuRPHY: Is it a narrative of fact about the position of affairs

as it stood betwcen t.he Dominion Government, the Provincial Government
and the Indians?

Mr. CHISHOLM: Yes.ý
Mr.- KELLY: Mr. Chairman, since we consider that of importance, in view

of what bas bec id W e do not ask for public exhibition of it, but would
it not be possijN for tleat document to be submittcd to this Conmmittee in
camera. We d ot wish it to go beyond tbe bounds of this roomn. That is
ail I wish to say, Mr. Chairman.

The CHAIRMAN: The Committee wili take up the question of the pro-
duction of the document just referred to when they come to it.

Hon. Mr. MURPHY: No Minister of t.he Crown would agree to the produc-
tion of a document like that. 1 have heid office, and I would not agree to it,
if I were in office. I do not tbink Mr. Stewart wouid agree to it. It is a private
document and if it were submitted to me for information in the capacity of a
Minister, 1 would say that it is not a document for publication.

Hon . Mr. STEVENS' 1 do not know anything about the document. 1 have
neyer heard of it until Mr. O'Meara mentioned it.

Mr. PAULL: The reason we desired the introduction of that document, or
that we mentioned it, was that Sir Wilfrid Laurier made a statement in British
Columbia, after having received the advîce of the Deputy Minister, the advice
which. was contained in the document in question.

Hon. Mr. MuRPHY: You do not know whether it was advice, or merely
a narrative of facts?

Mr. PAuLL: No, until the document can be produced, I do Dot know that.
Mr. MOPHERSON: Mr. Pauli, I think the Commnittee have intimnated. that

they do not think a statement made by officiais as to their own ideas, is binding
upon this flouse. Regardless of what they were based upon, or who made it,
we would not accept Sir Wilfrid Laurier's statement, and much less would we
regard a memorandum, prepared for him.

Mr. PACLL: Would you regard Dr. Scott's memorandum in that light?
Mr. 'MePHERSlON: I would regard it as not binding on the Dominion of

Canada. Any opinion expressed-
The CHAmmAN: Wben will the Commîttee meet again, gentlemen?
Hon. Mr. MuRPHiY: Is any further evidence to be adduced?
The CHAIRMAN: Have you any further evidence to offer, Mr. Kelly?
Mr. KELLY: No, Mr. Chairman, we have no further evidence.
Mr. MCPHERO-N: I tbink we sbould meet whule everything is fresh in

our minds.
The CHAIRMAN: To-morrow morning at ten o'clock then, j ust the Com-

mittee, not to hear further evidence.
The Committee adj ourned.[M.Cihl]
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It is also understood that we are at liberty to, bunt over the unoccupied lands,
and to carry on our fisheries as formeriy.

We have received, as payment (amount not stated).

(Signed IIOTUTSTIJN bis X mark.
and 117 others.

Witness to signatures,
(Signed) JOSEPH WILLIAM McKAY,

Clerk H.B. Co's. Service.
RICHD. GOLLEDGE, CleTk.

Certified Correct,
W. E. DiTcHiBu-R-N.

EXHIBIT No. 7

Filed by P. R. Kelly

Copy-59335-5l

DEPARTMENTT 0F JUSTICE

OTTAwA, 17tb December, 1913.
Petition of the Nishga Indians of British Columbia

DEAR DR. RocHE: I have received your letter of 3rd ultimo, enclosing the
petitian of the Nisbga nation or tribe of Indians of the province of Britishi Col-
umbia to His Majesty in Council.

The dlaim of the Indians is based upon the proclamation of lis late
Majesty King George III issued on 7tb October, 1763, that is, shortly after the
conquest of Quebec, a time, of course, long antecedent to tbe colonization, or
even, it may be said, the discovery of British Columbia. It must, of course,
be at least doubtful, wbether, under these circumstances, tbe general words of
the proclamation, whicb, it may be reasonably supposed, related only ta Canada
as then known, can be taken as baving anytbing ta, do with the Indians of
British Columbia. It is necessary for the petitioners' case, and in the seventh
paragraph of their petition it is alleged, that the territory now known as British
Columbia is ail part of the Indian territories referred ta in the proclamation.

You ask for my opinion as ta the right of tbe Indians ta present the peti-
tion, and as ta wbat effeet the support of the Dominion would have upon the
legal questions involved.

I sbould be disposed ta think that the Imperial Government would not be
inclined ta initiate proceedings for the determination of the Indian dlaim, if
tbere be a remedy by proceedings, in the local courts, nor can I see any reason
wby the dlaim sbould not be determined locally if the Government of Canada
sbauld determine ta press it.

I may remind you that it was the declared policy of aur predecessors in
office to submrit ta tbe courts for decision thc question of the aboriginal title
whicb is the subject of tbis petition and bas been for some years agitated in
British Columbia. Questions witb that abject in view were framed for reference
tc. tbe Supreme Court of Canada, but the proposed reference felI tbraugb because
tbe Government of British Columbia would not agree ta the submission. After-
wards the Indian Act was amended by the enactment of subsection 1 of section
73A as it now stands under section 4 of chapter 14 of 1911. By tbe provisions
of this enactment it is competent ta His Majesty ta proceed in the Exebequer
Court or in the Supreme Court of British Columbia to recover possession of
lands for the benefit of the Indians, and the enactment was devised to provide
a means or convenient procedure for the determination by the courts of the
questions wbich are raised by this petition.

42325--16
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The agreement of 24th September, 1912, between representatives of the
Dominion and British Columbia, which was approved by Order in Council of
27th Noveniber following, appears to evince a departure from the policv of the
late Government. It is recited in the preamble that it is desirable to settie ail
differences between the Governments of the Dominion and the provinces respect-
ing Indian lands and Indian affairs generally in British Columbia, and upon
this recital the stipulations or proposais of the agreement are said to be agreed
upon as final adjustment cf ail matters relating te Indian affairs in the
province. The agreemcnt, while it provides for the ascertainment of the varieus
Indian reserves and the disposaI thereof, or confirmation of the titles in the
manner therein provided, makes ne reference to the aboriginal title, and it
may be considered that it would be incompatible witli the intention of the agree-
ment that thc Dominion should maintain the cause of the Indians in respect
of the aboriginal title, seeiug that this title is ignored by the agreement and
that the proposais or stipulations of the agreement are declared to have been
agreed upon as a final adjustmnent of ail matters relating to Indian affairs in
the province.

I think, therefore, that the polîcy cf the Government in relation to the
matter is a preliminary question to be determined. If the Govcrnment pro-
poses te maintain the dlaim of the Indians, it would be advisable to institute
procccdings in a proper case under the statute to which I have referred, and
the case could then be carried if necessary on appeal to the Judicial Committee
with the advantage of the opinions of the local courts as in ordinary cases.
If the Government do net propose te uphold the dlaim, I think that the inadvisa-
bility of making any reference of this petitien should be represented to the
Colonial Office; and the Indians would in censequence presumably be left with-
out any intervention or support from this Government, and in face cf the
deliberate opposition of the Government cf British Columbia, te pursue such
legal remedies on their own behaîf and at their own expense as the very meagre
prospects cf the situation might afford.

Upon the merits I think the Indian dlaim. is a very doubtful one, but I arn
net prepared te say that it is net without sufficient foundation te justify con-
sideration by the courts.

I am retaining the petition, of which I daresay yeu have another copy, but
if you require àt te be returned, please let me know.

Yours sincerely,

(Signed) CHAS. J. DOHERTY.
The Hon, W. J. ROCHE, M.D., M.P.,

Minister cf the Interior,
Ottawa.

EXHIBIT Ne. 8
Filed by A. D. Macintyre

ALLIED INDIAN TRIBES OF BRITISH COLUMBIA, CANADA

ANDREW PAIJLL, REv. P. R. KELLY,
Secretary Executive Committee, Chairman Executive Committee,

North Vancouver, B.C. 46 Gillespie St., Nanaimo, B.C.

Circular Letter to the Tribes

DEAn FRIENDS,-At the conclusion of our conference with the Hon. Chas.
Stewart, Minister of the Interior, -he]d in the city of Vancouver on the 27th day
of July this year, and centinued with Dr. Duncan C. Scott, Deputy Superin-
tendent General of Indian Affairs, in the city of Victoria, which was concluded
on the llth of August, it was decided by the Executive Committee te send a
letter te the Tribes informing them of the dlaims made by the Committee on
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behalf of all the Indians of this province. Great pains were taken to point out
to the representatives of the Dominion Government that the conditions pro-
posed as a basis of settlement are only general in character. When the Govern-
ments accept these conditions in principle, the Committee requested that a
Commission be appointed on which the Allied Tribes would have equal repre-
sentation, said Commission to arrange the particulars of these conditions.

We have firmly declined to accept a settlement, based on the Order in
Council of the 20th of June, 1914. As the report of the Royal Commission on
Indian Affairs is based on this Order in Council, we have strongly objected to
its confirmation by the Dominion Government, because it does not satisfy the
land requirements of the tribes and also it empowers the Governments to reduce
the area of some of the reserves, amounting to 47,000 acres.

We clearly stated that we would be glad to effect a full settlement of the
whole question as it now seems probable, but at the same time pointed out very
clearly, if negotiations reveal that a settlement satisfying the claims of the
Indians cannot finally be arrived at by this method, we would insist on the
whole question of Indian Title being submitted to the Judicial Committee of
the Privy Council for a decision, such as we have always pressed for, in the
past.

We shall not know the result of the Conference until the report has been
fully considered and a decision arrived at by the Government of Canada, and
whatever decision is arrived at will be communicated to us immediately and
of course, the Tribes will be informed of that decision by the Executive Com-
mittee.

We submitted the following conditions as a proposed basis of settlement,
having in mind the peculiar needs of the different parts of the Province:-

1. All foreshores fronting on said reserves to form part of said reserve.
2. Further Land -Grants by the B.C. Government on a basis of 160 acres

per capita, as a standard.
3. Unrestricted right to take fish for food purposes.
4. Full rights to fish for commercia(l purposes off foreshores of Indian

reserves.
5. Rights for commercial fishing without license fee, off areas to be especially

reserved for that purpose as obtains around Annette Island, Alaska, also the
right to troll salmon for commercial purposes without license fee in all the tidal
waters of British Columbia.

6. Right to secure license for purse and seine fishing at half usuall fee.
This privilege is not enjoyed by the Indians.

7. Right to cut timber outside of reserves for fuel and for the manufac-
ture of canoes.

8. Amendment of the Pelagic Sealing Treaty of 1911 to allow the towage
of canoes, by gasoline launches, to be used in the capture of seals from the
rcserves to the sealing grounds.

9. Amplc water for irrigation purposes.
10. Unrestricted right to hunting and trapping, and. hunting areas to be

reserved where necessary.
11. Extension of the present school facilities by high and technical educa-

tion on equal terms to those available to white residents, also university
courses to those who show capability.

12. Free medical and hospital attention and a tubercular sanatorium in the
Province.

13. Sufficient grazing areas.
14. Mother's and Widow's pension as effective in B.C. for white women,

also Old Age Pension.
15. Cash compensation, to be finally paid within an agreed number of

years (this matter to be further considered by the Executive Committee).
42325-ICi



SPECIAL COMMITTEE

16. Re-imbursement of about $100,000 spent by the Indians of B.C. in
endeavouring to secure a settIement of the Land Titie question.

17. Many arnendrnents'of the Indian Act were asked for.
During the past year very littie money has corne f rom the Tribes, the

amounts received did not corne up to expectations. The whoie arnount has been
used for current and other expenses of the Executive Cornmittee. The Com-
rnittee faces heavy and pressing obligations and it is necessary to have funds on
hand for any eventua'lity. In view of the important and critical position the
land question has now attained, funds rnay decide full victory. The Com-
mittee mnust have ample means to take f ull advantage of any opening to press
for sucess which would make possible the full attainiment of the aspirations of
the Indian Tribes.

You must realize that the Executive Committee has discharged its respon-
sibilitiýes faithfully and successfuily on your behaîf, and the ieast you can do is
to give it your support financiaily so that it may keep on functioning. Where
there is no system in vogue for collecting money the Uommittee recommends that
each maie and female member of the age of sixteen and over, contribute at
ieast one dollar ecd. The Committee begs to remind the tribes of this fact;
that while certain tribes faîthfully bore the heavy financial burdens that were
necessary, there were others that did not make any serious effort to assist in
this matter. We would urge upon those Truces thc fairncss of making more
liberal contributions than what is suggested herein.

Above ail, the operation of the organization of thc Ailied Tribes is a neces-
sity in your intercst, and its existence is dependent on your financial support,
s0 please realize your responsibilities.

Please send ail contributions to tic Chairman and Treasurer of the Allied
Indian Tribes of B.C. wio is Rev. P. R. Kelly, 46 Gillespie street, Nanaimo,
B.C., and tianking you in advance, on behaif of the Executive Committee
of the Aiiied Indian Tribes of B.C.

Sincerely,

P. R. KELLY,
Chairman Ezecutive Committee,

46 Gillespie St., Nanaimo, B.C.

ANDREW PAULL,
Secret ary Executive Committee,

North Vancouver, B.C.

VAcouvzR, B.C., September 12, 1923.



CLAIMS 0F THE ALLIED INDIAN TRIBES, B.C.

INDEX 0F EVIDENCE

COUNSELS-WITNESSES

Beament, A. W., Barr:ster, Solicitor, Ottawa, Canada:

1{epresents the Petitioners as Co>uns-el-Exýpres-e-s opinion that petitioners should be

gî ven an opportuflity to put in evidence sueh ns will prove the allegations stated
in petition,, etc., 2&.

Directs attention to the fact that the petition is the petition of the Allied Tribes-
Petitioners advised, whetber righ-tly or wrongly, thuat they have in law a righýt, by
a petition to is Mai esty in Council, to have a judicial determinat-ion of the
substantive question as to merits of their dlaim, 75-77.

ChiUihJ.tza, Chief Johnny, Hereditary Chief of the Okanagans:

States that leading Indian Chiefs of British Columbia neyer relinquished their titie-
Do flot want franchise-Do not want to be ruade to dive like the white people, but
just plain Inidians--Ilaýtes w'hat the Qýueens messenger told the India~n chiefs
regarding hIdian rights and native title,--Change of conditions regardilg water
rights, etc. Do flot want res-erves brokon up-No grazing lande--Diversion of
stre,&ms ru.nning through reserves for irrigation purposes works hardsbip on Indians
-Hunting and lishing rights ignored-Indians desire to be consuited in the appoint-
ment of idian Agent&--Indianis do not want certain white mani to be living on the
Squilax reseoeve, 142-145.

Chisholm, John, Assistant Deputy Minister, Department of Justice:

Produces, bY Tequ est, eopy of Memorandum re3pecting In2dian elaims, which had been
prepared by Mr. Neweombe for Sir Wilfrid Laurier, in 1910--Submits that it i flot
in the publie intexest to have this Memorandean produced. Considderantion of saine
feidlows, 238-239.

David, Chici Basif, Cariboo Tribe:

States thnt his Indians througho-ut Cariboo are ail short of irrigation waters and gnazing
range-Wants water and grazing range for them; aqso hunting and trap expl'oring
lines-Hîis Inidian boys went ta War in France; some of theen came baek woundeid;
o>thcrs are lying in Fýrance--Colilected mnoney for -the Red Cross-Wants to satisfy
his children who were wouuiled at war, 146.

Ditchburn, W. E., Commissioner of Indian Affairs for British Columbia:

Does flot think the Indians complain so far as fishing for commercial purposes i
co)ncerned-Fishing conditions have improved, since two or three year&s-Indians can
fish now under wha.t i known as an independent Jicense -the sme as the white mnan,
and fer a reduce'd license fea., 178-9.

For food purposes. Indians' fishing rights have not heen taken away-Are permitted ta
take fl.sh for food under the supervision of and according ta the regulations of the
Chief Inspector of Fie.heries&-Regulations governing fishing on the Capilano reserve
and on Seymour crack. 179-180.

It would not bc practiaal for IndianisVo be consulted in, the appointinent of governirnent
,emts-L)oes not think Vhat statenient made by previous wîtness re consultation

with Indians i0 the matter of appointinents has any vîrtue in it at ail-There was
unftortunately a nogro agent appointed oveir the Indians in the Kamloops agency,
180-181.

Opinion of witness regarding aTrest of an Indian on lis reserve, byv police deparaent, 181.
Explanation giveîn regar<ling water rights under regime of Colonial govenment-The

Todd and Thompson watfr liconse-Th)e British Columbia Water Acts of 1897
and 1924 consolîdated, and what ench Acts meant to the Indian&-PrioDrity right&--
How a -certain lawsuit i-e water rights was lost Vo the Indiians, 181-183.

Water supplýy not ample for oultivation in Kamloops reserve, but British Columubia
Cattle Company and Dîspartmnent of Iidian Affaîrs bave water in Faîl lake on a
fifty-fifty basi'-Cost of pumpîng plant for irrigation on the North or South Tbomp-
son rivers--Cultivation on the community systecn iîmportant-Indians advised ta
plot their potatoes and aifafa together-Loffl of priority in -the Okanagan-Every
acre of the Penticton reserve that is possible ta bei irrigated, is under cultivation,
1 &1-185
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Ditchburn, W. E.-Concluded.
Very good. orchards in the Penticton distriet-Indiansitaught to cultivate, orchards a.nd

governsnen. suppliy them with spray pusnps-Duty of InDspecter of Inda, Orchards-
Some sorubby trees around village&-Water iegiàlation wholly provincial-Indians'
appreciation does flot fol]ow idirection to benefit them through eduication and such
condition is the groat difficulty-At Tesidentiail schools chitiren are taught principies
of agriculture, 185-187.

Aboriginal title, reiedy suggested te remove griýevane Irid'ians east. of Rocky Moun-
tains treated differentily from the Indiae of British Columbia with respect to the
treaty. So far as benefits are conoerned they are treated the saine with the exception
of annuities, 187-188.

Very liard to km-p Indian chiltiren a.t sechool after they reach the age of 15 years-Tribeýs
fair from civilization, not interested in aboriginal titie, 188-189.

Remarks made in the course of evidenice given by other witnesses, 127, 1,29, 140, 168,
173-175, 196, 198, 226, 233.

Found, W. A., Director of Fisheries, Department of Marine and Fishieries:
Importance of fisheries protelotion in British Columbia-About 4,000 out of 26,000 Indiane

secure the major portion of their earnîngs fromn the fisbing industry-Out of 11,750
licenses issued last year Indiano recei-ved, 3,352, 189-190.

How Depaxtment tries to ovejrcome difflcu¶lties with Indians in mnethods of obtaining
fish for food and commercial purposes-Spearing fish flot permitted in certain sections
and Iaw breakers severely deait with-Departmoitael officers allways try to use tactin dealing with Indians who are found breaking the regulations--Indiar-s mnust get
preference, when drag seining is cafrried, on near an Indian reserve--Fedeýral govern-
ment is net in a position to grant exclusive fishing rights f0 Indians or whites in
tidail waters, 190-105.

Present regulations do net differentiate between Indiens andi whites in respect te seining
licenses for Salmon and herring-IDdians should flot be allowed te fish during
spawning season, 196-200.

Will give Indians ail the privileges tbey wanit down on the commercial areas to getfish; also give them permits without any price-Extremely doubtful if Government
bas got. power -te give exclusive nigbts in tidal waters&-Eveybody bas got the samne
right to lish under certain 4oondition&--Cannot give the Indian an exclusive franchise
to fish-By the Privy Council decision in 1920, the situation, bas been made pretty
elear, 200-202.

Spawning groundo sholi be protected-Wi1 give Indian nny reasonable privillege tbeydesire-,Will lensi flem equipmen-t if they corne down fo catch Salmnon in f idal
waters,-- Prov.isýions in the Act; Regulations-Remedy suggested to enable Indiean te
secure flsb for food, 202-207.

Kelly, Rev. P. R., Chairman, Executive Comiîttee of Allied Indian Tribes, Brifish Columbia:
Purpose for which executive committee was formed-Tribes represented-Membership,

of, neyer repudiated te this day, 137-8.
Fifty years' endeavour f0 obtain a hearing-Delegations.ý organizations, views presented

to government-Royal Commission of 1913 re grievance in respect f0 necessity of
adequate areas of land for the use of Indians, and provision therefor-Memorandum
of departmcnt in 1924, conceding thiat Indian tif le had neyer been extinguished,
146-8.

Fundamental principle still remains, namely, that aboriginal title te lands, not reserved
for the use of Indians, 'bas neyer been extinguished, 149-150.

Admits that. in 1923, at Victoria, a request for a memorandum on the constitutional
question was submîtted by the Federal officer, and this was ineorporated in the
evidence at that tirne-IDoes net think that presenftfion of case in 1923 was quite
adequate-Maintains that general counsel shouJd be given privilege of prese'nting, in
a connected form, arguments supporting stand taken, 1,50-151.

Grievances presented in 1914, 1,51.
Delegation. of Indians te Victoria in 1887 re land question-The Raids Tribe and the

Reserves Commissioners re land-Jýntensive training needed for Indians, 152.
Annuities f0 Indians-Negotiations and Treaties-ýOffieîl acknowvledement of the abori-

ginal titie-Certain Vbings agreed to under the 'Ternis cf Union" such as Article
Thirteen, 153.

Tried te get adequate lands-The basis of 20 acres in 1874 considerably augmented sine
then, and admits thaï; the Governiment did respond te the request of the Indiens in
this respect--4Report of Royal Commission of 1913-1916 critieised-Additional claims
for lands filed in 9922-Not dependent entirely upon lands for a living, 154.

Describes land conditions in varieus parts of the province. 155.
The Indian needs more intensive training to-day than the white man, 156.



CLAIMS OF THE ALLIED INDIAN TJIBES, B.C.

Kelly, Rev. P. R.-Concluded.
Present state of civilization of the Haidas and Tsimpsians, 157-8.
mounts spent for education of Indýians in British Columbia. and ifs benefits, 158-9.

Returned Indian soldier lias been treated just as consideratelir as any other returned
soldiers, 159.

Askýs for a negotiating cornmittee to arrive at same valuation of what Indians are

claiming-Aboriginal title furtiser diGecussed-Judicial decision in 1883 Law Reports-

The McKenna-MýeBride Agreernent-Varouis points considered, 160-163.
Order in -Council of 20th of June, 1914, re Dominion benefits to be granted in return for

aboriginal titie to lie surrendered-Reserves to lie part of chýe éompe-nsation--G ive-,

reason wliy paragraph in Order-in-Council was objected to, 164-166.
Accepts explanation of Superintendent of Indian Affairs r.' certain f ormns sent out te

Indian Agencies to bie distributcd conveying certain information to the Indians in

respect to propcised settiement as set eut in Order-in-Council-Admits that provision

was made for representation hy counsel in the event of having to subrnit differences

to thle Courts-Misunderstandinig and trouble would have been eliminated liad thse

Indians been taken jute confidence a littie more-Not quite as ignorant as we

used to be sixty or seveuty-five years ago--Gives credit to tihe present Minister of

the Interier in his endeavour te find out the facts of the case-Gives further reason

why Indians would not agree to certain contents of Order-in-Council, 166-168.

Have had nu occasion f0 change our minds-Exactly in the same position as in 1914-

Coufirios stafement of Minister of tise Interior re matters discussed and what the

ternis of settlement w.'re to hp-Reads statement prepared by committee lu June,
1J16--Reads a resolution passed by tlie Trilies of tlic Interior of BC., in Deýcember,

1917 -Contends that Indians have a right, 169-170.
Parts- of British Columbia where aboriginal titie was extinguished, adxitted-Point upon

which witness differs in s-tatement made by a rnember-Witnoes' appeal that counsel

be aI-lowed to present conrstitutional argurnent-Further discussion re Indian titie,

170473.
Complaints ce fishing rights greatiy reduced since 12-rentregulations make it

harder for an Indian to get fisis for food-Relates an instance of an indian being

arrested for non-compliance of regulatioas-IntervixV with Fisheries Commissioner

r.' fishing regulations on thse Capilano river, 174-175.
Produces copy of treaty r.' cenveyance of an area of land on Vancouver Island, by fthc

Saanich Trihe. to James Douglas, Agent of the Hudson Bay Company, 177-178.

Remarks made in the course of evidence given by other witnesses, 137-138, 146, 188-189,
199, 203-2907, 219, 223-260.

MacIntyre, A. D., Representing certain Indian Tribes of British Columbia:

Takes exception to statement thiat C-unmittee of Allied Indian Tribcs represent ail tise

Indians lu British Columbia and dlaims that 28 trilies lu tise interior of B. C. do flot

corne under the Aliance; that he aJone, the wîtness, is authorized te speak for

them, M3-74.
Question of counsel for certain Indian tribes, and instructions received, 135.

Produces Iist of namres of 29 Chiefs of Indian Tribes representing rcserves reaching from

Fort George at thle north down te the American houndary, 136. See also Exhîbit

No. 5, page 176.
Interior tribes dlaim unrestricte-d rights to fisli for food purpeses; also ample water for

irrigation of their land; aise unrestricted riglit te hunt and trap; hunting areas te lie

reserved wliere necessry, etc., 137-141.
The question of tenure or holding cd land s0 that Indians cannot be dispessessed of if-

Individual titie te land-Rlelates instance of har&,hip caused by the arrest and fine

tif twu Ludians wlie had killed deer out of seaoirni gn unorganiz.'d &istrict; a clear

case of ýkilling the deer for food was made out; a lieavy fine wau inflicted; request

that such be redre&,;ed, 140-141.

O'Meara, A. E., Counsel for the Allied Indian Tribes of British Columbia:

Says lie lias net yet stated a scntence on behaîf of flic tribes-Wîil he given an opper-

tunity to-morrow-Instructed te corne prepared to argue ftle points already raised,

29-30.
Appearing as general counsel for ftle Associaftion of Indian Tribes of British Columbia-

Written aufliority of appeintment as sucis, 72-75.
Reads circular letter outlining present position of thec Indian case at Ottawa-Witnese'

delinite advîce te the Tribes last October re p"tition, 78-80.
Files stafement re "The British Columbia Indian Land Centroversy'. 81-84.

When Alliance was forcned in 1916, witness undertook flic professional charge of case

for thse Indians-Discussion follows re presentation of case and basis, of dlaim of

native titie, 84-88.
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O'Meara, A. E.-Concluded.
Reads document in respect to territorial rights, foreshore, hunting, flshing, water, and

ai other general rights, the objective of which would be a settiement of t.he ques-
tion,-Discussion follows, 88-94.

Presents documents f0 prove the petitiom, 209-211.
Section 109 of the B.N.A. Act is keystone f0 whole of Indians' claim-Documentary

statements follow with consideration thereof, 211-235.
Remarks made in the course of evidence given by other witnesses, 162, 163, 164, 165,

237, 238.

Pauli, Andrew, Sccretary, Executive Committee, Allied Indian Tribes, British Columbia:
Asks that ail proceedings of this Committee be reported in book formn and that Indians

be supplied with such record, 2.
Ia a full-blood'ed Iïndian of the Squamish tribe--Speaks for the organized Indians of

B.C., dealing with the question of aboriginal titie-Also represents Indians of the
initerior parts of B.C. with the exception of those who are represented hy Chief
Chilihitza, 24-25.

Expenditures of government money for Indians, arranged in sub-heads, namely, for
education, relief, aid to agriculture, medical attendance, dyking, irrigation, surveya,
boarding, and day schools, forming a total of over ten million dollars, about haif of
which was, for education, 25.

Indians themselves expended some money. out of tribal funds in paying policemen to
maintain law and order-Would like Dr. Scott to file a report showing how much
of the Indians' own funds have been expended for achools, etc., 24-25.

Article Thirteen of the "Ternis of Union" and Section 100 of the British North America
Act, considered in respect to question of aboriginal tille-S-ection 109 read into the
record-Discussion follows, 26-30.

Was educated at the Borden sehool and made a special study of the Indian land ques-
tion-Evidence on which witness bases dlaim of the aboriginal title-Relates earlier
experîences of the Indians up to the time when the "Terras of Union" comprising
Article Thirteen was agreed to-Trouble arose on account of the reserve<'s soon after
Confederation-Indians had sworn allegiance to British Grown-In Colonial days
the per capita area allotted to Indians was only about 10 acres-Witness followa
up gradua] discontent of Indians on account of insufficiency of land and other
questions, 94-06.

Refera t0 statements contained in diary of Father Foquet and letter to Father Cherouse
-Meeting called by Governor Douglas--Alleged agreement entered into by flov-
ernor Seymour-Allotment of reserves soon after ConfÀederation-The Indian in
British Columbia has a special location for each different. season-Explanation follows
-Allot-ment Commission of 1872-Petition signed by the Indians of Lower Fraser
river praying that sufficient land be surveyed for their own exclusive use and benefit,
96-99.

Deals with Article Thirteen and allotment of reserves--All Indians know that Dominion
government are their guardians; or trustees-Memorandum of Hon. David Laird in
Journals and Sessional Papers of 1875 re living up to the exact terras of Article
Thirteen is altogether inadequate, 99-100.

Indian population prior ta Confederation and now-Indians now require more land,
gives reasons, 101-102.

Indian characteristica-Petition f0 the Indian Commissioner for British Columbia, read
into the record-Land allocatcd to the Cheam Band and to others--Refers ta this
land question as having been a great national question in 1874 and equally a
national question as it is now presented in 1927, 103-105.

The MeiKenna-MeBride Agreement--Order-in-Couneil deflning flshing rights to certain
tribes or bands of Indians-Fshing and Canneries question considered, 106-112.

Province of Britishi Columbia depends uponL Article Thirteen-States that Mcmorandum
of Hon. David Laird coincides with opinion of Indians-Reada into the record
portion of said memorandum relating to a libera!l policy on the part of the Dominion
Goveroiment to be pursued towards the Indians of British Columbia as to lands
and other beneflts-Discussion follows, 117-124.

Indians dlaim aIl foreshore in front of Indian reserves--Reasons for such dlaimi found
in statement of James Teif, in" 1920-&Satement read into the record-Dscusion
follows. 124-126.

In non-tidal waters, atreama, in many instances by the action, of the provincial govern-
ment, are diverted and result is that erosion is causcd; encroachment occurs on
what was formerly the Indîan reserve -Gives instance of such case in Squamiqh-
Indians also, want hunting and fishing rights recognized-Ninety per cent of the
Indians cannot read the regulations enicteri by the provinciail government-Want
no hunting restrictions in unorganized districts, 127-129.
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Pauli, Andrew-Concuded.
Foreshore rights taken away fromn the Indians-Province of British Columbia does not

recognize that Indians have any foreshore rights-Can oniy hope for some agreement
in res;pect te foreshore in publie harbours from Dominion Gocvernment--The Me-
Kenna-McBride agreement again considered re area of Crown lands made available
to Commission, 130-132.

Reads short despatch of Lord Carnarvon to Governor Douglas, dated llth April, 1859
-C-onsideration foilows, 132-134.

Reacis statement from Minister of Justice in support of dlaim for aboriginal titie-
Reacis extract fromn the jucigment of their Lorciships, delivered by Lord Watson
relating te meaning of expressions "subject tei any trusts existing iii respect thereof"
etc., 135.

Remarks made in the course of evidence given by other witnesses, 24, 167, 168, 171, 172,
173, 178, 197, 198, 199, 221, 225, 226, 233, 237, 239.

Scott, Dr. Duncan C., Deputy Superintendent Generai of Indian Affairs:
Reacis into the record historical statement on the British Columbia India'n question, 3-20.
Since Confederation Indians have claimed aboriginal titie te, provincial iands-Article

Thirteen of "Ternis of Union" establishes the relations between, the Government of
M.., the Federal Government, and the Indians, 3-7.

Several Commissions at various tîmes have tried te settle differences between Indians
and the Government but without any marked success-A total of 310,800,300.37
has been spent by the Federal Government on the Indians of M. since Confedera-
tien, 8-1O.

Federai Government should take Indian question te the Exchequer Court te obtaîn a
decision on the aboriginal dlaim, as the Provincial Government of B.C. dlaim they
have done ail that the law requires, 11, 20-25.

Federal Government ha.s at al-! times tried te reach an agreement with the Inidians but
witout success (See aise Appendices B, C, E, F, G, 11,), 12-14, 20.

Indians in B.C. receive better treatment fromn Federal Goveroment than elsewhere as
they are net self-supporting-Quotes comparative figures, 15-18.

Dominion ýGovernment establishes vocational training se bools for Indians, 19,
Remarks made in the course of evidence given by other witnesses, 25, 93, 104, 122, 123,

127, 155, 166, 170, 171, 178, 187, 188, 210, 212, -926, 232.

GENERAL SUBJECTS
Aborigmnal Titîcis

Since Gonfederation the Indians have claimed aboriginai titie te ail the provincial lands
in B.C., 3, 90.

Unde'r Article 13, Ternis of Union, aboriginal tifi'e was not admitted, 5.
Indians were aiWays congidered wards of the Crown, 5.
Severai Commissions at various times have tried te, settie the differences between the

Indians andi the various goveroments, but without any marked success, 8-10, 154.
The Dominion Government considercd bringing the government of B.C. into Court se

that the whole question of titie te the landsa couid be enquired in*tso, but witheut
suecess, 11-14.

Dr. D. C. Scott, Deputy Superintendent Genieral of Indian Aflairs thinks the Indians have
been ftvirIy conipensatcd hy the governmonts of B.C. and the Dominion, in the provi-
sien of reserves, 14.

The Governinent cif B.C. say the Indians have ne dlaim te the provincial lands, 20, 99.
Section 109 of the B.N.A. Act shoulci le baken into consideration When dýeal-ing with the

question of aboriginal tif le, 26-28, 211.
Indiansedaim tliat ùhey were neyer a eonquered nation and sh'ould lie entitcci to ai.1 the

landi they formerly hcld, 95.
Indians were always led te believe that they would be treateci fairly by the Government

in respect te theilr claim te aboriginal title of the land in B.C., 95-67.
Indians have always claimeci that the reserves granted were tee emaîl, 103.
If Indýians had been granted title te, lands of B.C. it wouid have disrupted Confeder-

ation, 148.
Indians dlaim thiey should be copensatec fur lues of thieir -lands liy a paynient of

$2,500,000, 153.
Indians' meaq desire de te have official recognitien of the ahoriginal,,title, 153.
Indians f edl that if their dlaim were te be censidered by a Judîcial Committee of His

Majesty's Privy Coi'ncii they wniild- rereive justice, 161-165.
Reserves were considereci as part ef the compensation when Indian titie surrendered, 166
Indians daim their aboriginai titie bas neyer been extinguished, 170.
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Aboriginal Titie -Con cluded.
If this question of abcriginal title were removeti, either by provinýg that there was a d.taim,

or proving to the Indians tJiat they had flot suci é1aim, it wouId go very far towards
more satisfactory workiŽng eut of the administratiion of affairs by the departinent, 187.

Tribes far away in the interior not interested in the question of aboriginal tities, 189.
Mr. O'Meara produces documenta-ry evidence in support of Indians' dlaims (see Appen-

dix G), 209-210.
Clýaims that, in 1875 the Minister of Justice in a report to the GOvernor-in-COnuncî1

acknowledges Indians' aboriginal titie to landis of ýB.C. (See Appendix A) and that
Section 109 of the B.N.A. Act bears this eut, 211-216.

Absence of docu'mnenitary proof in support of aboriginaid cia.ms, 216-232.
Claim is madie that Article 13 of the " Termis of Union » tieetroys titie of Indian lands

,and that Section 109 of the B.N.A. Act lias been ignoreti, 219.
Indians claim 251,000 square miles of dand ia B.C. have not been surrendered, to them by

the Crown, 223.

Agents, Indian:
In-dians shoulti be consulteti in appoinbment of Indian agents, 144.
Mr. W. E. Dîtchburn, Commissiener of Indian Affairs in B.C., does not think it wise for

the Indians to, be oonsulted when Indian agents are appointeti, 181.

Annuities, or Trealy Monevs:
Indians do not receive any annuities or " Treaty Moneys " from the government, 25, 188.

Appendices:
A. Statement of the Allied Indien Tribes of British Columbia, dateti June 1916, fileti by

D. C. Scott, 31-38.
B. Excerpt from Dominion andi Provincial legisiation 1867-189, page 1024, Repont of

the Minister of Justice to, the Governor-in-Council dateti 23,-1-1875, 39-44.
Exeerpt fromn Dominion andi Provincial legislation 1867-1895, page 1038, Report of
the Minister of Justice to the Governor-in-Counei1 dated 6-5-1876, 44-45.

C. Excerpt from British Columbia papers relating to ithe Indien Lands question, page
160, 1875-1878, Report of the Acting Minister of the Interior to the Governor-in-
Council, dated 10-11-1875, 46-49.

D. Statement of expenditure on aoeount of Indians in B.C. from 1871-1926, by the
Department cd Indian Affairs, 50-51.

E. Copy of Order-in-Counil No. 1081 doateti 17-5-111 together with annex t o the Order-
in-Counjid being a mnemorandum on the British Columbia Indien Land Situation,
52-M4.

F. Copy of Order-in-Council No. 751 dateti 20-6-14 together with a, memorandum to the
Superintendent General of Indin Affaira fýrom Dr. D. C. Scott dateti 11-4-14 and a
statement of the Nishga, Nation or Tribe of Indians dateti 22-1-13, signeti by W. J.
Lincoln, as Chairmian of the Meeting, outlining their claims, 55-60.

G. Copy of Privy Council decision 59, 335-4A of 16-12-18, 61.
Copy of letter te A. B. tYMeara £rom Minister of Justice, dateti 14-11-14, 61-62.
Copyof letter to A. E. O'Meara from the Secretary to tihe Governor General, dated
25-9-16, 63.
Copy of letter to A. E. O'Meara from the Secretary to the Governor Goneral, dateti
17-3-20, 63-64.

H. Memorandum from the Deputy Superintendent G,-neraî, of Indian Affairs to the
Minister of ithe Interior re meeting oif Councîl of Indian Tribes anti various govern-
ment eficialo, da.týet 29-10-23, 65-71.

Article 13, Terms of Union, British Columbia and Dominion of Canada:
Indians dlaim that (this Article destroys the title of Indian lands, 219.
When interpreting Section 109 of the B.N.A. Act the Article above mentioned shoulti be

taken intoe onsideraitioný, 26, 219.
Inýdians 'have trieti to live up te the provisions -of this Article, but they finti it is inadequate

in iits terms, as there was net sufficient landi put aside for reserves, 99.
Article 13 establishes the relations between the Government of B.C., the federal govern-

ment and the Indians, 4-7.

Britiîh Northi America Act:
References made te Sections 109 andi 146 appl-icable to British Columabia, rend in connec-

tion with disallowance of Landi Art in the course cf evidence given, 148, 211, 216, 219.
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Pauli, Andrew-Concluded.
Foreshore rights taken away fromn the Indians-Province of British Columbia does flot

recognizo that Indians have any fore.shore rights-Can only hope for somne agreement
in respect to foreshore in public harbours fromn Dominion Government--The Mc-
Kenna-MeBride agreement again considered re area of Crown lands made available
to Commission, 130-132.

Reads short despatch of Lord Carnarvon to Governor Douglas, dated llth April, 1859
-Gonsideration follows, 132-134.

Reads statement fromn Minister of Justice in support of dlaim for aboriginal titie--
Reads extract fromn the judgment of their Lordships, delivered by Lord Watson
rclating to mcaning of expressions "subject to any trusts existing ini respect thereof"
etc., 135.

Remarks made in the course of evidence given hy other witnesses, 24, 167, 168, 171, 172,
173. 178, 197, 198, 199, 221, 225, 226, 233, 237, 239.

Scott, Dr. Duncan C., Deputy Superintendent General of Indian Affairs:
Reads jnto the record historical statement on the British Columbia Indian question, 3-20.
Since Confederation Indians have claimed aboriginal title to provincial lands-Article

Thirteen of "Terras of Union' establishes the relations between the Government of
B.C., the Federal Goveroment. and the Indians, 3-7.

Several Commissions at various times have tried to settle differences between Indians
and the Government hut without any marked success-A total of $10,800,300.37
bas been spent hy the Federal Government on the Indians of M. since Confedera-
tion, 8-10,

Federal Government should take Indian question to the Exchequer Court to obtain a
decision on the aboriginal dlaim, as the Provincial Government of B.C. claim they
have done ail that the !aw requires, 11, 20-25.

Federal Government hias at al'~ tumes tried to reach an agreement with the Indians but
witout success (See also Appendices B, C, E, F. G, 11,), 12-14, 20.

Indians in B.C. receive better treatment from Federal Goveroment than elsexvhere as
they are flot self-suipporting---Quotes comparative figures, 15-18.

Dominion Covernment establishes vocational training sc hools for Indians, 19.
Remarks made in the course of evidence given hy other witnesses, 25, 93, 104, 122, 123,

127, 155, 166, 170, 171, 178, 187, 188, 210, 212, -926, 232.

GENERAL SUBJECTS

Aboriginal Title:
Since Confederation the Indians have claimed aboriginal title to ahl the provincial lands

in B.C., 3, 90.
Under Article 13, Ternis cif Union, aboriginal tit'e was not admitted, 5.
Indians were alWays considered walrds of the Crown, 5.
Several Coimmissions at various tirnes have tried to settle the differences; between the

Indians and the various governments, but without any marked suecesa, 8-10, 154.
The Dominion Government consîdered bringing the government of B.C. into Court so

that the whole question of title to the lands could be enquired into, but without
~suecess. 11-14.

Dr. D. C. Scott, Deputy Superintendent, General of Indian Affairs thinküs the Indians have
been faiirly compensated by the governinents of B.C. and the Dominion, in the provi-
sionof re~serves, 14.

T1he Governmenrt oaf B.C. say the Indians have no dlaima to the provincial lands, 20, 99.
Section 109 of the B.N.A. Aot should be taken into eonsideration when dealing with the

question of ab'original titte, 26-28, 211.
Indians claim that they were neyer a conquered nation and should be entitlcd to ail the

land they formerly he4d, 95.
Indians were always led to believe that they would be treated fairly by the Govemnment

in respect to their claim to aboriginal title of the lands in B.C., 95-97.
Indians have always claimed that the s'eserves granted were too small, 103.
if Indians had been granted title to lands of B.C. it would have disrupted Confeder-

ation, 148.
Indians elaim they ehould be ccmpensated for loffs cf theïr lands by a Payment of

$2,500,000, 153.
Indians' real desire is to have officiel recognition of the ahboriginal title, 153.
Indiane f ecl that if their dlaim were to be considered by a Juduicial Committee of His

Majesty's Privy ('ouncil they would receive justice. 161-165.
Reserves were considered as part of the compensat ion when Indian title surrendered, 166
Indiens dlaim their aborigina! title has neyer been extinguished, 170.
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Aboriginal Title: Concluded.
If this question of abotriginal tifle were removed, either by provinýg that there was a am

or proving te, the Indians that they had not suchcdaim, iit wou'ld go very fer towards
more satisfaotoiry workingout eif the administration of affaira by the department, 187.

Tribes far away in the interior flot interested in the question of abariginal tities, 189.
Mr. O'Meara produces documentary evidence in support of Indians' claims (see Appen-

dix G), 2N9-210.
'Claims that in 1875 the Minister of Justice in a report to the Governor-in-Gouncil

acknowledges Indiens' aboriginal titie to lands of ýB.C. (See Appendix A) and that
Section 109 of the B.N.A. Act beurs this out, 211-216.

Absence of documexetary proof -in support oi aboriginal dlaims, 216-232.
Claim. is made that Article 13 ai the "Termis of Union » destroys titie of Indien lands

and that Section 109 of the E.N.A. Act has been ignored, 219.
Indians dlaim 251,000 square miles of fland in B.C. have flot 'been sur'rendered -ta them by

the Crown, 223.

Agents, Indian:
Indians should be consulted in appointment of Indian ýagents, 144.
Mr. W. E. Ditchburn, Commissioner of Indian Affaira in B.C., does not think it wise for

the I.ndians to, bc onsultecb when, Indien agents are appointed, 181.

Annuities, or Treaty Moneys:
Indiaens do not receive any annuàties or " Treaty Moncys " from the goverament, 25, 188.

Appendices:
A. Statement of the Allied Ind.ian Tribes of British Columbia, dated June 1916, filed by

D. C. Scott, 31-38.
B. Excerpt f'rom Dominion and Provincial legisietion 1867-18M5, page 1024, Rapont of

the Minister of Justice to, the Governor-in-Council dated 23-1-1875, 39-44.
Excerpt lrom Dominion tand Provincial legisiation 1867-1895, page 1038, Report di
the Minister oi Justice ta the Governor-in-Council dated 6-5-1876, 44-45.

C. Exceript -irom British Columbia papers relati-ng ta, the Indian Lands question, page
160, 1875-1878, Report of the Acting Minister af the Interior ta the Governor-in-
Council, dated 10-11-1875, 46-49.

D. Statement of expenditure on acaunt of Indlians in B.C. from 1871-I926, by the
Department ai Indian Affairs, 5"-1.

E. Copy of Order-in-Counoil No. 1081 daited 17-5-111 together with ennex 'to the Order-
in-Council being a memorandum. on the British Columbia Indien Land Situation,
52-M4.

F. Copy af Order-in-ýCouncil No. 751 dated 20-6-14 together withi a memorandum ta the
Superiatendent Gen-eral of Indian Affaira from Dr. D. C. Scott dated 11-3-14 and a
stetement of the Nishga, Nation or Tribe of Indiens dated 22-1-13, signed by W. J.
Lincoln, as Cheirman iof ithe Meeting, outlining ýtheir claims, 55-60.

G. Capy ai Privy Council decision 59, 335-4A af 16-12-18, 61.
Copy od latter tao A. E. (I'Meara £rom Minister oi Justice, dated 14-11-14, 61-62.
Copy of 'letter .to A. E. O'Meara lrom the Secretary ta the Governor General, dated
25-9-16, 63.
C'opy of let-ter ta A. E. O'M'eara fromn the Secretary ta the Governor General, daïted
17-3-2,0, 63-64.

Hl. Memaorandum frýom the Th'puty Superintendent Generai' af Indien Affaira ta, the
Minister ai the Interior re meeting oif Council af Indian Tribes and variaus govern-
ment officiais, de-ted 29-10-23, 65-71.

Article 13, Terms of Union, British Columbia and Dominion of Canada:
Indiens dlaim that tis Article destroys the title af Indien lands, 219.
W-hen intcrpreting Section 109 of the E.N.A. Art tbe Article above mentioned should be

taken into consideration, 26, 219.
Indians 'have tried ta lîve up ta the provisions -of this Artioio, but they find iit is inadequate

in lits termis, as there was not aufficient land put aside for reserves, 99.
Article 13 establishes the relations bet;ween the Government ai B.C., the federai gavera-

ment and the Indians, 4-7.

l3ritidx North America Act:
Raierences made .to Sections 109 and 146 applicable ta British Columbia, read in connec-

tion with disallawance of Land Act in the course af evidence given, 148, 211, 216, 219ý.
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Cases Referred Io ini Evidence Given:
St.. Catherines' M'i11ing Case, 149, 161, 215, 216, 235.
Soiithern Nigera Case, 90, 211, 214, 218.
Weller vs Rer Case, 230.
Eyre vs Eyre Case, 230-231.
Robinson Huron Treaty, 232.
Robinson Superior Treaity, 232.
Burrard Case, 234, 235.

Claims, Allied Indian Tribes and Unassociated Tribes:
See Exhibit No. 8, 242-243.

Commissions, Royal and Otherwise:
Heserves were formeriy selected by a Joint Commission, this was Inter changed to a

Dominion Commissioner, 8.
Report of MaKenna Commission of 1912 flot acted upon, resud't McKenna-McoBride

Agreement, 8-9.
Royal Commission of 1913-1916 looked into onJly one pthase of grievances and that was

to provide Indians with adequate land&--Laboured four years--Had no0 right Vo touch
on any other grievances, 147.

Report of Royal Commission of 1913-1916 coisfirmed by the Province of British Columbia
in 1923 and by the Fedieral Goveromnent i0 1924, 10.

Compenr.ation (Sec also Annuities):

Indians dnaim they shoulci be omnpensated to the cxtent of $2,500,000 for t1oss of annuities
and treaty money, 153.

Ind1ians of B.2C. do not receive any annties -or treet-y money, 188.

Counsel, Allied Indian Tribes and lJnassociated Tribes:
Mr. Warwick Beamen.t. Barrister, Ottawa., appea-rs as counseil for the A'llied Indian

Tribes of B.C., 28-29, 75-77.
Mr. A. D. MacIntyrec dms 10 represent as coun.sdl certain t5ribes of the interior of B.C.

who do not f orm part of the Allied Indian Tribes, 73-74, 135-139.
Mr. A. E. O'Meara cilaimse te, be the officiai counsel for the A'Ilied Indian Tribes of B.C.,

73-75, 81.
Request, that general counseti be adlowed ito present oonstitutional argument. to Com-

mittee, 149-151.

Crown Lands:
Insufficient crown lends availeble for distribution to Indians,, 1,30,

Delegations:
Sir Wilfriid Laurietr meats deputation of Iindians at Peince Rupert and Kamloops in

1910, il.
Nishga Indians comne tb Ottawa e Vocm«sut, with the Government re Cleims, 13.
In 1922 Hon. Chatles Stewart meets a representa-tive delega&tion, of Indiens in Vancouver

to discuss comp1ein.ts, 14.
Prior to Confederation the goverument of B.C. met delegations of the bidians on many

occasins and tried to satify their demands, 96.
In 1906 Chief Joe Capilano and two other chiefs waited on His late Majesty, King

Edweard VII. 133.
Chief Joluny Cli'lihitza takes bis compleints to the King in an effort to get ýatisf"otion,

144-145.
Degaýtioýn of Inîdiau tribes to Vict-oria in 1887 re insufllciently providod with land, 152.

Documents read int the record:
Telegram dated Muerch 17. 1927 froma John Olivex, Premier, Bri.tish Columbia stating

that the province wild not ýbe, respresented ýbefore the Commi'ttee. Govemnîment, robles
on Section 109 of the BiN.A. Act und Sections 10 and 13 of the Terms of Union, 2.

Memorandumù on ýthe British Columboia Indian Question prepared by D. C. Scott, Deputy
Superintendent General1 of Indian Affairs. 3-20.

Extracts ferm Exhibit 2. reail into record, eircular letter from executive of Indien Tribes
to aill metmbers of the Association, deted 2-12-26, 78, 79.

Memora-nduma on the British Columbia Indien Land Corsbroversy pre:pare.d by A. E.
OMenra, 81-84, 88-92.

Petibion prepared by the Indiens shortly after Confederation andI presented td the
Indien Commissioner for the Province of British Columbia, l103-104.
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Documents read into the record:-Con cluded.
Memorandum prepared by the Hon. Davîd Laird in 1874 dýeailing wi.th Article 13 of the

Terms of Union, 117-121»
State!ment prepared. by James Teit in, 1920 outiining the claims of the Indians of B.C.,

125.
Extract frQm a letter to, Governo(r Douglas of B.C. from Lord Carnarvon dated 11-4-

1859, 132.
Extract froma Appendix B. a rep>ort of the Minister of Justice 'to the Governor-in-

cuncil dated 23-1-1875. 134.
Excerpts from, Law Reports appeal cases 1897, pages 199 and 210, portion of judgment

of Lord Watson on Section 109 of the B.N.A. Act, 135.
Letter from Narcisse Baitise datýed Oliver, B.,C., Mardi 16, 1927 te, D. C. Scott re Chief

Johnny Chillilhit7a, 136.
Extract £rom page 89 of "The British North America Aets" re Indiens and lands reserved

for the Inýdians, 215.
Extract from a dispatch frorn the Seoretary of State to the Colonies te Governor, Douglas

of B.C. dated 31-7-1858, re instructions to be f ollewed in deàling with the Indiftns,
222, 226.

Copy of a letter from the Colonial Secretary to, the Chief Commissioner of Lands and
Works in B.C. re marking of Indian reserves, dated, 5-3-1861.

Copy of letter from Mr. B. W. Pearse te, the Chief Commissioner of Lands and Works
in B.C. reporting on Indian reserves, dated 21-10-1868. 227-228.

Copy of lettcer frcim GovetinoS Douglas te the Seretary of State for 'Vie Colonies,, dated
25-3-1861, re compensation for loas of lànds, 236-237.

]Reply of the Secretarv of State for the Cdlon-iýe te Goývernor Douglas' iletter, dated
1!..10-1861, 236-237.

Education:

Dominion Govojrement has estaiblished vocational training seho--ols for the Indians, 19.
Witness Paul laimis tint major portion of governrnent expenditure on Indians in, B.C.,

did not go for schooals and education., 25.
Indians contrihuted, the-r own -tribal fonds te anaintain. the schools, 25.
Figures given of amount spent for tic education of Indians in B.C., 1920-1926.-Agri-

culturel training, 158-159.
Federal gove'rnmenit teaci Indians; how to cultivatep orchards and supply themn witi the

necessary equipment, .185.
Government sehools are of material assistance te tie Indians but the henefits are not

fully appreciated by tiem, 186-187.
Very bard te keep Indian cildren at sehool after they reaci the age of 15 years, 188-189.

Executive Committce, Allied Indian Tribes of B.C.:

Organization and membersiip of Committee in 1916, its purpose, additional memabers
in 1922, 24L25, 74-75, 175-176, 1317-138.

Exhibits:

No. 1. Memorandum re appointment of Arthur E. O'Meara as General Couinsel for the
AIlhed Indian Tribes of British Columbia, dated 20-1-2-,2, filed hy Mr. O'Meara, 113.

No. 2 Copy of circular letter te aIl tribes comprising the Alliance in whith the authority
of thc General Counsel of the Alliance is specifically confirmed, dated 2-12-26, filed
by Mr. OýMeara, 114.416.

No. 3. Statemient cumprising introductory notes for the Parliament cf Canada prepared
by the general counsel of Allied Indian Tribes, read into the record by Mr. O'Mcara,
81-82.

No. 4. List of Indian Tribes comprising the Allicil Lndian Tribes of British Columbie,
filed by Andrew PaulI, 175-176.

No. 5. Namnes of Indian Chiefs and ticir reserves of the Interior of British Columbia
representcd by Chief Jo'inny Chillihitze, hereditary ciief of the Okaniagan tribes,
filed hy A. D. MacIntyre, 176.

No. 6. Copy of deed ofi sale and agreement of sale by Saanicb Tribe te Hudson's Bay
Company, dated 6-2-1852, filed by Rev. P. R. Kelly, 240-241.

No. 7. Copy of a letter from. the Minister of Justice te the Minister of the Interior re
Petition of thc Nishga Indians cf B.C., dated 17-12-13, flled by Rcv. P. R. Kelly,
241-242.

No. S. Copy of circular letter te AlIied Indian Trimes of BUC., from thc executive of the
Tribes, re dlaims against the government, daed 12-9-23, filed by Mr. A. D. Mec-
Intyre, 242-244.
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Expenditure, by the Dominion Government:

'Reference to educational and othier financial assistance to the Indians by the Federal
Governmnent, 10, 15-19), 25, 158-159, 185-187,

Exploring or Mining Rights:
Refercnces to, in the course of evidence given, 146-147.

Farming:
References to, nced for further irrigation, etc., 89, 139-141, 143, 146, 182-187, 232-236.

Federal Government, llelp 10 Indians, etc. (Sec Education):

A total of $10,800,300.37 lias been expended by the Federal government on the Indians of
B.C. since Confederation, 10.

Fishing:
Reference to, in the course of evidence given-flshing rights ignored and no compensa-

tion paid, 89, 124-130, 143-144, 232-236.
Additional fishing riglits for tribes, 146.
Indians dlaim they should have unrestricted riglits to fish, 139-141.
Indians should have no complaint re treatment by Government, 179.
Indians dlaim flshing riglits greatly reduced since 1922. They find it difficuit to obtain

fiI for food, 174-175, 179-180.
Out of 11,759 fitshing licenses granted in BOC., Indians received 3,352 while thcrc are

large numbers of Indian women who fish but who have no license, 190.

Fishery protection is very important, Indians do not respect protection regulations. Gov-
ernment tries to assist Indians to obtain fish for fond, etc., 190-192, 195-201.

Spearing not permitted in certain sections, and law breakers severeiy deait with, 192.

idians must get preference when drag seining is carrîed out near an1 Indian reserve,
194.

Federal Goverpnent is flot in a position to grant exclusive fishing rîglits to Indians or
whites, in ti*dal waters, 194.

It is impossible to allocate certain fishing areas for use of the Indians solkly, 194-196.

The present regulations do net differentiate between Indians and whites in resýpect to,
scining licenses for salmon and herring, 197.

Inidians shouid not be allowed to flsh during the spawning season aithougli they ask that
they be allowed to fish at ail times, 199-.200.

Indians must realize that ail fishing must bie donc aceordîng tu iaw and that the regula-
tions must be observed, 202,

Fishing, Commercial (Sc olso Fishing):

Indians shouid have no conipiaint insofar as fiýhing for commercial purposes is concerned
a.s foreign competitors have been eliminated, 179.

Foreshore Rights, Fishing, Etc.:

Refierence to, in the course of evidence given, 89, 10,14112, 126, 194. 2329-236.

Franchise:
Witness Chillihitza dlaims Indlians do flot want franchise, 142.

Funds, Tribal:
Indians eontributcd own funds to assist in keeping up govcrnincut schoob, hospitals, etc.,

26.

Grievances of the Indians of British Columbia:

Two main grievances: inadequate arens of land nnd aboriginal titis of Indians to lands,
a fundamentai issue as betiween lands reserved,, and lands flot reserved for the use
of the Indians, 146-150).

Hunting Rights:

Hunting riglits ignored. Greater prix ileges and more areas to be ýallowed for hunting for
food and commercial purposes, 89, 124-125, 128-129, 139-141, 143-144. 146, 232-236.

Indian Affafrs, Deputy Superinlendent General of:

Historiýcal statement on the Brititah Columbia Indien question read inito the record, 3-25.
Memoraivhim of 1924, conceding that the Indian title had neyer been extinguiîhed-

argument foillows, 148-9.
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Indian Chief s, Varionis:
References to, in the course of evidence given-

Johnnie Chillihitza, 25, 137, 138, 139, 181, 187.
Joe Capilano, 102, 133.
Narcisse Batisse, 137.
George Ba.tisse, 138.
Basil David, 137. 207.
Thomas Adolphe, 1,38.
Stephen Retachet, 138.
(Sec aiso at p. 175).

Indian Tribes of British Columbia, Varions:
References to, in the course of evidenee given-

The Haidas, 152, 157.
The Saa-nich. 74, 102.,129, 177, 178.
The Tsimnpsians, 157.
The Nishga, 12, 13, 75,
The Squa.mish, 24.
The Okanagan. 74, 184.
The Lillooet, 74.
The Chilcottens, 74.
The Songhýees, 74.
The Sooke. 74.
The Shuswap, 146.

Indian Tribes, B.C., Executive Cominittee of AJlied:
Organization and membership of Commiutee in 1916, its purpose, additionai menibers

in 1922, 24-25, 74-75, 1371-138, 175-176.

Indian Reserves:
Reforences to, in the course of evidence given-

Indians do not want reserves broken U-p, 142, 145.
Witness Pauhl, eladims that discrimination is shown in, the alilotiment of reserves, 103-

106, 117, 135.
])ndian reserves incrcasod from 47,058 acres in 1912 toý 87,292 acres a.t present tirne,

but with dcoreased value, 122, 131.
Acreage of, 122.
No protection for Iodians in the sale of reserves, 123.
Foreshore and othýer rights, 123-129, 130.
Witness Peull daims that Capilano Reserve was neyer surrcndoeed, 131.
The Squilax Rescrve,-Indiane do flot want a certain white muai to live on this

reservc, 145.
Witness Macintyre daims Indians of the Interior have neot sufficient reserves, 139-141.

Irrigation, Water for:
India-ns shoulid be compcnsated for loss of wa.ter being diverted, for irrigation purposes,

89, 143.
In memorandum ipoepared by the 'late J. A. Teit in 1920, hc stress*s the ne M of fturther

assistance in irrigation owing to poor qua)dity of reserve lands, 124-125.
Tribes of the interiar of B. d1aim they should, have more water for irrigation, 139-141.
Indians of Shuswap tribe want more irrigation, 146.
Water righ.ts flot evenly distributed andi preference shown, to whites, 182-184, 187.
Federal or Provincial governmcotis have no right to inteirfere with Indians' aborigîinal

watcr rights, in the opinion of Mr. A. E. O'Meara, Counsel for the Trisbes, 232-236.

Lands, Grazing:
References to, in the course of evîdence given-

Ind:ans want more land for grazing purposes, 139-141, 142-143, 146.

Laurier, Ri. lIon. Sir Wilfrid.:
Wit.ncss Kelly requcats Justice Departmoent to produce. for thec information of the Coin-

mittee. eopy of a memýorantdum on the B.C. Indian question prcýpare-d by E. L.
Nnewcombe. Deputy Minieter of Jqusice--This was refused as the Deparbiment, took
the stand it was a private and coonfidcn-tal document, 238-239.

Referenices to. in the course of evidence giveal, 11, 12, 83, 91.

L.and Act of Britiïh Columbia:
Disalluwanre of, ht-caiuse of conîtravention of the trust features of fbectian 109 of the

B.N.A. Act of 1867-Olause rcaid supporting disalbowane. 147-148.
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Law Reports Appeal Cases :
Part of decisian re Indian rights, read by witness Kelly, 149, 161.

Licenses, Fishing, Hunting and Mining:
Roferencos ta, in the couirse of evidence given, 139-141, 1434144, 146, 179,, 180, 190-102,

195, 197, 202, 232-236.

Md< pnna-MeBride Agreement:
iReferences to, in the course of evidence given, 8-15, 89, 214. By witness Pauli in state-

ment of James Teit, 124-125.
Section 8, re agreement as to niew reserves and sale of Crown lands with consent of the

Indians. 130.
By Witness Kelly, llow agreement is unde.rstood re Indian affaifrs in the province,

162-164.
Statement prepared hy cammittce appointed in 1916, contains reference to agreement

in respect ta refusai of Indians ta coasider settiemýent under sarne, 169.
Witness O'Meara dlaims that agreement did not destroy the land rights af the tribes, 231.

Newcombe, E. L., Former Deputy Minister of Justice:

Prepared memorandum an the B.C. Indian question foar the Rt. Han. Sir Wilfrid Laurier,
238-239.

Orchards:
Goveroment tcach Indians haw ta cu-iltivate orchards and cupply thesu with spray

pumps, etc., 185
Very hard ta zet the Indian ta look after bis archard and in rnany cases ueighbouring

orchards are infected by disease, etc.. which cames f rom the Indians' trocs which axe
nat properly cared for, 155-156,

Petitions:
Petition of the AlIlied Indiau Tribes of Britis.h Columbia as suhmitted ta Parliament in

June 1926, iv-viii.

Privileges:
Indians of B.C. redoive botter treatment froma Federal Governmcent as they are flot

self-,supporting, 15-18.
Indians' aid privileges have diminished with the advent of the white man and civilization

95.
îndians do not appreciate all the Government is doing for them, 186.
Indians must get preference when drag seining is carried out near an Indian reserve, 194.

Procedure:
Mr. W. Beament suggests procedure Committee should follow in dealing wîth Indians'

olaims, 28-29. 75 77.
Discussion in committee as ta procedure Mr. O'Meara i.s ta fo'llow when presenting the

case for the Iiidians, 77-81, 85-87. 91-94.
General counsel requests permission ta present constitirtianal argument ta Committee,

149-151.

Promises, made by British Government before British Columbia entered Confederaion:.

Indians dlaim. that pramises made te, themn by representatives of the Queen and others
have nlot been kept by the Government, 83, 96-99, 142.

Recommendations of Special Committees. See Final Report, p. x i-xviiu.

RcgulationF., Fishing, Hunting, etc. (Sec Licenses):

Reserves, or Indian Lands (See Indian Reserves).

Reserve Commissioners:
References ta, in the course of evidence given 097, 107, 119.
Approached the Raida tribe of Indians of the Queen Charlotte Islands re area of land

ta be set apart, 152.

Beturned Soldiers, Indian:
Witness David pleads for special coneideration for the returned so1dier members ai his

tribes, 146.
Twel1ve memabers of the ('arihan Trihp served overseas, 146.
Witness Kelly states that as far as ho knows the Indian returned saldier is being treated

the same as any other returned scldier, 159.



256 SPECIAL COMMITTEE

Rights, Htrnting, Grazing, Fishing, etc. (See under Fishing, Hunting, Licenses, etc.).

St. Catherine's Milling Case:
Part of decision re Indian riglits, read by witness Kelly, 149, 161.
Referred to, in the course of evidence given-215, 216, 235.

Scbools:
Dominion Government establishing vocational training schools for Indians. 19.
Witness Pauli dlaims Indians contributed own tribal funds to help maintaîn schools, 25,
Government schoolp are of assistance to Indians but benefits of education not fully

appreciated, 186-187.
Very hard to, keep Indian children at school after they reach the age of 15 years, 188-189.

Seining, Drag:
References to, in the course of evidence given-193, 194, 197.

Spawning, Fishing while:
References to, in the course of evidence given-190-192, 195, 199-200.

Spearîng, Fish:
References to, in the course of evidence given 126-130, 139-141, i43, 144, 146, 179-180, 192.

Teit, James A.:
Memorandum prer>ared in 1920 outlining Indians' claims or rights re hunting, fishing,

etc., read into the record, 124-125.

Terms of Union (Sec Aboriginal Titie and Article 13).
References to, in the course of ex idence given-5, 7, 26, 117, 118, 121, 122, 124. 153-154, 219.

Training, Vocational 'Sec Sehools).

Treaties:
Treaty No. 6, analysis read into record by D. C. Scott, 15-16.
Treaty No. 8, analysis read into record by D. C. Scott, 17-18.
Reference made to Treaty No. 28, 172.
Procedui'e followed wxhen treaties with Indiaus xvere effeeted before Confederation-

Formalities of negotiation, etc., 153.

Treaty Monies:
Indians of B.C. nover received any monies, 25, 153.

Union, Ternis of (Sec Aboriginal Tîtle and Article 13).

Waters, Tidal:
References to, in the course of evidence gix en 89, 126-130, 194, 196, 197, 232-236.

Waters, for Irrigation (Sec Irrigation).


